
 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED & REGULAR SESSION 

550 E. Sixth Street, Beaumont, CA 

Tuesday, August 02, 2022 
Closed Session: 5:00 PM | Regular Meeting: 6:00 PM 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda 
packets are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s office at 550 E. 6th Street during normal business 

hours. 

AGENDA 

MEETING PARTICIPATION NOTICE 

This meeting will be conducted utilizing teleconference communications and will be recorded for live 
streaming as well as open to public attendance subject to social distancing and applicable health 
orders. All City of Beaumont public meetings will be available via live streaming and made available 
on the City's official YouTube webpage. Please use the following link during the meeting for live 
stream access. 

beaumontca.gov/livestream 

Public comments will be accepted using the following options. 

1.  Written comments will be accepted via email and will be read aloud during the corresponding  
     item of the meeting. Public comments shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless otherwise  
     authorized by City Council. Comments can be submitted anytime prior to the meeting as well 
     as during the meeting up until the end of the corresponding item. Please submit your 
     comments to: nicolew@beaumontca.gov 

2.  Phone-in comments will be accepted by joining a conference line prior to the corresponding 
     item of the meeting. Public comments shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless otherwise 
     authorized by City Council. Please use the following phone number to join the call 
     (951) 922 - 4845. 

3.  In person comments subject to the adherence of the applicable health orders and social 
     distancing requirements. 
 

In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, if you require special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact the City Clerk's office using the above email or call (951) 572 - 3196. 

Notification 48 hours prior to a meeting will ensure the best reasonable accommodation 

arrangements. 

1



 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 PM 
A Closed Session of the City Council / Beaumont Financing Authority / Beaumont Utility Authority / Beaumont Successor 
Agency (formerly RDA)/Beaumont Parking Authority / Beaumont Public Improvement Authority may be held in accordance 
with state law which may include, but is not limited to, the following types of items: personnel matters, labor negotiations, 
security matters, providing instructions to real property negotiators and conference with legal counsel regarding pending 
litigation. Any public comment on Closed Session items will be taken prior to the Closed Session. Any required 
announcements or discussion of Closed Session items or actions following the Closed Session with be made in the City 
Council Chambers. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, Council Member Fenn, Council Member Santos, Council 
Member Lara 

Public Comments Regarding Closed Session 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.8:  Property: APNs 418-190-006, 418-190-007; 418-140-028; 418-140-029; and 
Portions of 418-190-004 and 418-190-005. Agency Negotiator: City Manager Elizabeth 
Gibbs. Negotiating Parties are City of Beaumont as Seller and 5th Street Development, 
LLC as Potential Buyer.  Under Negotiation are Price and Terms 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1):  In the Matter of the Appeal of Membership Determination of 
James J. Gregg & City of Beaumont, OAH No. 201807055.1 

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.  Title: City Manager. 

4. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation: Significant Exposure to 
Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and/or(3) Regarding Bid 
Protest Related to Westside Fire Station Project 

Adjourn to Regular Session 

REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, Council Member Fenn, Council Member Santos, Council 
Member Lara 

Report out from Closed Session 

Action on any Closed Session Items 

Action of any Requests for Excused Absence 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Invocation 
Adjustments to the Agenda 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/ RECOGNITION / PROCLAMATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

2



1. Proclamation - Purple Heart Day 

2. Cherry Festival Association Presentation to City Council 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) 
Any one person may address the City Council on any matter not on this agenda. If you wish to speak, please fill out a 
“Public Comment Form” provided at the back table and give it to the City Clerk. There is a three (3) minute time limit on 
public comments. There will be no sharing or passing of time to another person. State Law prohibits the City Council from 
discussing or taking actions brought up by your comments. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items on the consent calendar are taken as one action item unless an item is pulled for further discussion here or at the 
end of action items. Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

Recommended Action: 

Approve Minutes dated July 19, 2022. 

4. Ratification of Warrants 

Recommended Action: 

Ratify Warrants dated: 

June 30, 2022 
July 11, 2022 

5. Accept Security Agreement and Performance and Payment Bonds for (Project / Bond 

Number / Improvement):  

Plot Plan No. 2019-0223 / 674215565 / Streets 

Recommended Action: 
Accept Security Agreement and Performance and Payment Bonds for (Project / 

Bond number / Improvement):  

• Plot Plan No. 2019-0223 / 674215565 / Streets 

6. Authorize Staff to Issue a Bond Exoneration Letter for Performance and Payment 

Bonds, and Accept Maintenance Bonds 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize City staff to issue a Bond Exoneration Letter for Performance and 

Payment Bonds and Accept Maintenance Bonds for (Project / Bond Number / 

Improvement / Maintenance Bond Number): 

• Tract Map No. 37426 / 0216988 / Street / 0216988-M 

• Tract Map No. 31462-7 / PB00535000069 / Monuments  

• Tract Map No. 31462-7/ PB00535000068 / Street, Sewer, & Storm Drain / 

PB00535000068-M 

7. Adopt Resolution of the City Council Ordering the Collection of Weed Abatement 
Charges and Directing the County Auditor to Collect Such Fees on the Tax Rolls 

Recommended Action: 

3



Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Ordering the Collection of Weed Abatement 
Charges and Directing the County Auditor to Collect Such Fees on the Tax 
Rolls.” 

8. Approve the Second Amendment of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply 

Contract with HASA, Inc. 

Recommended Action: 
Approve a second amendment to the Chemical Supply Agreement with HASA, 

Inc., extending the duration of the contract for one year and agreeing to the 

adjusted rates as outlined in the amendment. 

9. Approve the Second Amendment of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply 

Contract with NorthStar Chemical 

Recommended Action: 
Approve a second amendment to the Chemical Supply Agreement with NorthStar 

Chemical with any non-substantive changes made by the City Attorney 

consisting of a one-year extension of the existing contract for the supply of the 

listed chemicals with adjusted quarterly rates as outlined, not to exceed the 

Producer Price Index by Commodity for chemicals, currently running at 16%. 

10. Amendment to the Perricone Juices Pretreatment Facilities Agreement with an 

Extension until December 31, 2023 

Recommended Action: 
Approve an amendment to the Perricone Juices Pretreatment Facilities 

Agreement, granting an extension to December 31, 2023, including a $3.24/HCF 

rate for July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, and a $3.41/HCF rate for the period 

of July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

11. Public Hearing to Consider the Placement of Delinquent Sewer Service Charges on The 

Property Tax Roll 

Recommended Action: 

Conduct a public hearing, and 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only, “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Authorizing the Collection of Delinquent 
Sewage Service Fees and Charges on the Property Tax Roll.” 

12. Public Hearing to Consider the Placement of Delinquent Solid Waste Handling Service 

Charges on The Property Tax Roll 

Recommended Action: 

Conduct a public hearing, and 

4



Waive the full reading and adopt by title only, “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Authorizing the Collection of Delinquent Solid 

Waste Handling Service Charges on the Property Tax Roll.” 

ACTION ITEMS 
Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

13. Update from Mayor Pro Tem Martinez on Delivering the Letter Regarding “Failure to 

Represent the Residents of Beaumont” to the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors 

Recommended Action: 
Receive and file. 

14. Authorize Employment Contract with City Manager 

Recommended Action: 

Approve the employment agreement with Elizabeth Gibbs and authorize the 

Mayor to sign the agreement.   

15. Approval of Compensation Plan and Salary Table  

Recommended Action: 
Approval of the Compensation Plan and Salary Table.   

16. Annual Resolution Directing the Riverside County Auditor-Controller to Place the Levy of 
Special Taxes for the City's Community Facilities Districts on the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
County Tax Roll 

Recommended Action: 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 
Districts No. 93-1, 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 and 2021-1 
and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on the Tax Rolls (93-1, 2016-
1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 and 2021-1).” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 
Districts No. 93-1 (IA 18) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on 
the Tax Rolls (IA 18)” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 
Districts No. 93-1 (IA 14 and 14B) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the 
Same on the Tax Rolls (IA 14 and 14B).” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 
Districts No. 93-1 (IA 9) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on 
the Tax Rolls (IA 9).” 

5



 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 
Districts No. 93-1 (IA 17A) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same 
on the Tax Rolls (IA 17A).” 

17. Award a Public Works Agreement to Kemcorp Construction Inc. for Construction of 

Westside Fire Station CIP 2018-028 

Recommended Action: 

Waive all minor bid irregulates and award a public works agreement to Kemcorp 

Construction Inc. for construction of Westside Fire Station CIP 2018-028 in an 

amount not to exceed $7,475,000; and, authorize the City Manager to sign 

change orders up to an additional $638,500 for a total construction budget of 

$8,113,500.  

18. Update on Veterans and First Responders Memorial Plaza Improvement Project 

Recommended Action: 
Receive and file the concept plans and digital renderings.  Make any suggestions 

or remarks pertaining to the improvement plans of the Veterans and First 

Responders Memorial Plaza, and 

Direct staff to proceed with a Request for Proposal for Professional Services of a 

Landscape Architect for full design of the plaza to include engineered plans and 

complete construction documents. 

19. Banking Services Contract 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize the Mayor to sign the contract and authorize the City Manager to sign 

any associated agreements between the City and Wells Fargo to provide 

continuity of banking services needed to ensure timely processing of financial 

activities.  

20. Traffic Mitigation Measures for Veile Avenue at Sixth Street 

Recommended Action: 

Provide staff direction on whether or not to implement recommended traffic 

mitigation measures. 

21. Review and Discussion of Continuing or Rescinding Local Emergency Declaration 

Established via the Adoption of City of Beaumont Resolution No. 2020-07 Adopted on 

March 17, 2020 

Recommended Action: 
Review and discuss Resolution No. 2020-07; and 

Take no action and keep the existing declaration of emergency resolution in 

place; OR 

Direct staff to bring back Resolution No. 2020-07 at the next regular City Council 

meeting on August 16, 2022, for rescission in its entirety; and 

6



Direct staff to begin notification of all elected and appointed officials of the 

requirement for in person meetings after August 16, 2022.   

22. Discussion on a Proposed Land Use Management Policy for Logistics, Warehouse, 

Distribution and Other Similar Industrial Development  

Recommended Action: 
Adopt the Land Use Management Policy; or 

Discuss and provide direction to staff on the draft Land Use Management policy.  

LEGISLATIVE UPDATES AND DISCUSSION 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE  
Economic Development Committee Report Out and City Council Direction 

CITY TREASURER REPORT  
Finance and Audit Committee Report Out and City Council Direction 

CITY CLERK REPORT 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

23. Park Projects at a Glance 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

COUNCIL REPORTS 
     -   Lara 
     -   Santos 
     -   Fenn 
     -   Martinez 
     -   White 

ADJOURNMENT 

The next regular meeting of the Beaumont City Council, Beaumont Financing Authority, the Beaumont 
Successor Agency (formerly RDA), the Beaumont Utility Authority, the Beaumont Parking Authority and 
the Beaumont Public Improvement Agency is scheduled for Tuesday, August 16, 2022, at 5:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise posted. 

7



Proclamation 
Military Purple Heart Day 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Beaumont recognizes Purple Heart Day as it is observed on August 7 of each year; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart medal is the oldest decoration in present use and was initially created as the 

Badge of Military Merit by General George Washington in 1782; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is a time for Americans to pause, remember, and honor the brave men and women who were 

either wounded on the battlefield or paid the ultimate sacrifice with their lives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Beaumont continues to show this recognition each year by reaffirming Resolution 

2018-41 which recognizes Purple Heart Medal recipients; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Civic Center has a designated parking stall specifically for Purple Heart Medal recipients; and 

 

WHEREAS, the appropriate special recognition is provided for veterans who are recipients of the Purple 

Heart and have been wounded in combat; and 

WHEREAS, this recognition is a small gesture of appreciation for those men and women in the Armed 

Forces; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEAUMONT HEREBY 

PROCLAIMS THE RECOGNITION OF PURPLE HEART DAY 2022. 

 

 

          ATTEST: 
____________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Mayor               City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED & REGULAR SESSION 
550 E. Sixth Street, Beaumont, CA 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022  
Closed Session: 5:00 PM | Regular Meeting: 6:00 PM 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packets 
are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s office at 550 E. 6th Street during normal business hours 

MINUTES 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 PM 
A Closed Session of the City Council / Beaumont Financing Authority / Beaumont Utility Authority / Beaumont Successor 
Agency (formerly RDA)/Beaumont Parking Authority / Beaumont Public Improvement Authority may be held in accordance 
with state law which may include, but is not limited to, the following types of items: personnel matters, labor negotiations, 
security matters, providing instructions to real property negotiators and conference with legal counsel regarding pending 
litigation. Any public comment on Closed Session items will be taken prior to the Closed Session. Any required 
announcements or discussion of Closed Session items or actions following the Closed Session with be made in the City 
Council Chambers. 
 

CALL TO ORDER at 5:00 p.m. 

Present: Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, Council Member Fenn, Council Member Santos, 
Council Member Lara 

Public Comments Regarding Closed Session 

None 
1. Conference with Labor Negotiators - Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 City 

Designated Representatives Interim City Manager Elizabeth Gibbs and Administrative 
Services Director Kari Mendoza. Employee Organizations: SEIU 
Motion by White 
Second by Santos 
To approve a MOU between SEIU and the City for the General Unit Employees 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

2. Public Employee Appointment/Employment Pursuant To Government Code Section 54957 
Title: City Manager 
Motion by Mayor White 
Second by Council Member Fenn 

9

Item 3.



To appoint Elizabeth Gibbs as City Manager. 
 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

3. Conference with Labor Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6. Agency 
Designated Representative: Mayor Lloyd White 
No discussion. 

REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:15 p.m. 

Present: Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez, Council Member Fenn, Council Member Santos, 
Council Member Lara 

Report out from Closed Session: see above 
Action on any Closed Session Items: see above 
Action of any Requests for Excused Absence: None 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Adjustments to the Agenda: None 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure: None 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/ RECOGNITION / PROCLAMATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 
1. Parks and Recreation Month Proclamation 
2. Recognition of David Valdivia Sr. and David Valdivia Jr.  

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) 
 
D. Rose - Owners of Marla's gave an update of their business and its current status regarding the fire 
damages sustained.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items on the consent calendar are taken as one action item unless an item is pulled for further discussion here or at the 
end of action items. Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Recommended Action: 

Approve Minutes dated June 21, 2022. 
 

4. Ratification of Warrants 
Recommended Action: 

Ratify Warrants dated: 

10

Item 3.



June 13, 2022 
June 24, 2022 

 
5. Authorize Mayor to Execute a Grant Deed and Lot Line Adjustment 2021-LLA-0028 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize the Mayor to execute grand deed and lot line adjustment 2021-
LLA-0028. 

 

6. Canine Inspection Services Agreement 2022/23 

Recommended Action: 
Approve the agreement with the Beaumont Unified School District for 
police canine search services. 

 

7. Final Approval of Parcel Map No. 38090  

Recommended Action: 
Approve Parcel Map No. 38090 as it is in substantial conformance with the 
approved tentative map and accept security agreement for survey 
monuments.  

  

8. Beaumont Unified School District Fingerprinting Agreement 

Recommended Action: 
Approve the Agreement with the Beaumont Unified School District for 
livescan services. 

 

10. Consideration of Re-Ratification of Local Emergency and Re-Authorizing the Use of 
Teleconferencing to Conduct Public Meetings 

Recommended Action: 
Waive the full reading and adopt by title only, “A Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Beaumont Proclaiming a Local Emergency Persists, 
Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Executive Order 
N-09-21, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the 
Legislative Bodies of the City of Beaumont for the Period of July 19, 2022, 
through August 16, 2022, Pursuant to Provisions of the Ralph M. Brown 
Act.”  

Motion by Council Member Fenn 
Second by Council Member Santos 

To approve items 3-8 and item 10. 

11

Item 3.



Approved by a unanimous vote. 

 

9. Review of Local Emergency Declaration Established via the Adoption of City of Beaumont 
Resolution No. 2020-07 Adopted on March 17, 2020 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 
Second by Council Member Lara 

To take no action and keep the existing declaration of emergency resolution in place. 

Approved by a 4-1 vote 
Ayes: Lara, Santos, Fenn, Martinez 
Noes: White 

ACTION ITEMS 
Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

11. July 4, 2022, Fireworks Enforcement 

Consensus to receive and file. 

 

12. Resolution: Approving the Closing of a Purchase and Sale Agreement for Certain Land 
Exempt from the Surplus Land Act (APNs: Portions of 418-190-004 and 418-190-005) with 
Orum Capital 

Motion by Council Member Lara 
Second by Mayor White 

To waive the full reading and adopt by Title only “A Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Beaumont, California, Approving the Closing of a Purchase and Sale Agreement 
for Certain Land Exempt from the Surplus Land Act.” 

Approved by a unanimous vote. 

 

13. Resolution: Approving the Sale of Surplus Land (APNs 418-190-007, 418-140-028, 418-140-
029, and Portions of 418-190-004 and 418-190-005) with 5th Street Development, LLC 
Motion by Mayor White 
Second by Council Member Santos 
To continue this item to the Closed Session of the next City Council Meeting. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 
 

*Items 14, 15 and 16 were discussed and taken as one motion* 

12

Item 3.



14. Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad for Construction of New Signals and an Expanded 
Railroad Crossing on Pennsylvania Avenue in an Amount Not to Exceed $1,069,018; and 
Future Annual Maintenance Fees in the Amount of $21,550 Per Year  

15. Third Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Kimley Horn for the 
Pennsylvania Avenue Widening Project, in an Amount Not to Exceed $131,615 

16. Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with IDC Consulting Engineers, 
Inc. for the Pennsylvania Grade Separation Project, in an Amount Not to Exceed $1,294,849 
Motion by Mayor White 
Second by Council Member Lara 
To approve and sign the agreement with Union Pacific Railroad for construction of new 
signals and an expanded railroad crossing on Pennsylvania Avenue in an amount not to 
exceed $1,069,018; and future annual maintenance fees in the amount of $21,550 per 
year. 
and 
To approve a third amendment to the professional services agreement with Kimley Horn 
for the Pennsylvania Avenue Widening Project, in an amount not to exceed $131,615. 
and 
To approve a second amendment to the professional services agreement with IDC 
Consulting Engineers, Inc. for the Pennsylvania Avenue Grade Separation Project, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,294,849. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 
 

17. Approval of Agreement with Intrensic, LLC for Body Worn Camera Services and Upgrade 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 
Second by Council Member Lara 

To approve the four-year agreement between the City of Beaumont and Intrensic, LLC 
for Body Worn Camera Services and Upgrade in the total amount of $170,813.45. 

Approved by a unanimous vote. 

 

18. Approve the Purchase of Hon Accelerate Workstations in the Amount Not to Exceed 
$169,683.29 from Bluespace Interiors and Authorize the City Manager to Sign Change Orders 
in the Amount of $8,485 for a Total Amount Not to Exceed $178,168.29 
Motion by Mayor White 
Second by Council Member Santos 
To approve the purchase of Hon Accelerate workstations in the amount not to exceed 
$169,683.29 from Bluespace Interiors and authorize the City Manager to sign change 
orders in the amount of $8,485 for a total amount not to exceed $178,168.29. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

13

Item 3.



19. Approve a Purchase Order in the Amount Not to Exceed $45,860 for M. Brey Electric, Inc. dba 
MBE Construction for Electrical Maintenance at Stewart Park and Ratify a Maintenance 
Agreement to M. Brey Electric, Inc. dba MBE Construction in the amount of $45,860 

Motion by Mayor White 
Second Council Member Fenn 

To approve a Purchase Order for an amount not to exceed $45,860 for M. Brey Electric, 
Inc. dba MBE Construction for electrical maintenance at Stewart Park and approve the 
ratification of a Maintenance Services Agreement for a total amount of $45,860 for 
electrical maintenance at Stewart Park. 

Approved by a unanimous vote. 

 

20. Approval of City Attorney Invoices for the Month of June 2022 
City Attorney John Pinkney recused himself on this item. 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Partinez 
Second by Council Member Lara 
To approve invoices in the amount of $81,355.64. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

LEGISLATIVE UPDATES AND DISCUSSION 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE  
The next meeting will be held on August 10th. 

CITY TREASURER REPORT  
The next meeting will be held August 8th. 

CITY CLERK REPORT 
No report. 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
No report. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
21. Transportation Projects at a Glance 
22. Department Project Schedule Updates - June 2022 

 

14

Item 3.



FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
- City Staff First Aid and Safety Discussion 
- Summer Concert Series Discussion 

COUNCIL REPORTS 
Lara - Attended a ribbon cutting for Little Wishes, Big Hearts, thanked staff for the success of Rangel 
Park renovations.  
Santos - Thanked staff for the success of the 4th of July event, and attended a League of Ca Cities 
event.  
Fenn - Gave a report out from the TNOW meeting. 
Martinez - Gave a report out from meetings with BCVWD and SGPWA (water agencies). 
White - Gave a report out from RCTC, and congratulated Elizabeth Gibbs on her appointment as City 
Manager.  

ADJOURNMENT at 8:12 p.m. 

The next regular meeting of the Beaumont City Council, Beaumont Financing Authority, the Beaumont 
Successor Agency (formerly RDA), the Beaumont Utility Authority, the Beaumont Parking Authority and 
the Beaumont Public Improvement Agency is scheduled for Tuesday, August 2, 2022, at 5:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise posted. 

 

15

Item 3.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



33

Item 4.



34

Item 4.



35

Item 4.



36

Item 4.



37

Item 4.



38

Item 4.



39

Item 4.



40

Item 4.



41

Item 4.



42

Item 4.



43

Item 4.



44

Item 4.



45

Item 4.



46

Item 4.



47

Item 4.



48

Item 4.



49

Item 4.



50

Item 4.



51

Item 4.



52

Item 4.



53

Item 4.



54

Item 4.



55

Item 4.



56

Item 4.



57

Item 4.



58

Item 4.



59

Item 4.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Robert Vestal, Assistant Public Works Director 

DATE August 02, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Accept Security Agreement and Performance and Payment Bonds 

for (Project / Bond Number / Improvement):  

Plot Plan No. 2019-0223 / 674215565 / Streets 
  

Background and Analysis:  

The City requires all developers to provide security for public improvements consisting 

of, but not limited to, sewer improvements, street improvements, storm drain 

improvements, utility improvements, and monument improvements.  

 

On October 08, 2019, the Planning Commission approved the development and 

operation of an affordable, rental, apartment complex for low-income households.  The 

complex consists of two (2) three story buildings that includes a total of 24 two-bedroom 

units, 23 three-bedroom units and 1 three-bedroom managers unit, 28 parking spaces, 

a 1,752 square foot community building and 10,801 square feet of open space. The site 

is a 1.5-acre parcel located on the east side of Allegheny Avenue, north of 6th Street in 

the Commercial General (CG) zone and the 6th Street overlay, and is part of Planning 

Area 7 as identified in the City of Beaumont Housing Element. Refer to Figure 1 for 

location of Plot Plan No. 2019-0223. 

 

 

 

 

60

Item 5.



 
Figure 1 - Location of PP#2019-0223 

Table No. 1 provides a summary of bonds that are recommended to be accepted. The 

summary includes the project, bond number, improvement type, Public Works project 

number, Public Works plan number, and the principal.  For each item, the principal has 

provided a security agreement and security in the form of a bond for the public 

improvements. The agreement has been reviewed by staff and found to be consistent 

with the Beaumont Municipal Code.  

 

Table No. 1 – Summary of Bonds recommended to be accepted. 

Project Bond 

Number 

Improvement PW 

Project 

Number 

Plan 

Number 

Principal 

Plot Plan No. 

2019-0223 

674215565 Streets PW2021-

0718 

3412 Linc-Beaumont 2 

APTS, LP 

Fiscal Impact: 

The cost of preparing the staff report is estimated to be $350. All work associated with 

the bonds will be completed at developer’s expense. The City is not liable for public 

improvement maintenance until the public improvements are accepted into the publicly 

maintained system.  

 

Sixth Street 

Site 

A
lle

g
h

e
n

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 

61

Item 5.



Recommended Action: 

Accept Security Agreement and Performance and Payment Bonds for (Project / 

Bond number / Improvement):  

• Plot Plan No. 2019-0223 / 674215565 / Streets 

Attachments: 

A. PW2021-0718 - Agreement, Bonds and Plans 

62

Item 5.



63

Item 5.



64

Item 5.



65

Item 5.



66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



73

Item 5.



74

Item 5.



75

Item 5.



76

Item 5.



77

Item 5.



78

Item 5.



79

Item 5.



80

Item 5.



81

Item 5.



82

Item 5.



83

Item 5.



84

Item 5.



85

Item 5.



86

Item 5.



87

Item 5.



88

Item 5.



89

Item 5.



90

Item 5.



91

Item 5.



92

Item 5.



93

Item 5.



94

Item 5.



95

Item 5.



96

Item 5.



97

Item 5.



98

Item 5.



99

Item 5.



100

Item 5.



N89° 53' 19"E

N89° 53' 57"E

N
0
°
 
0
4
'
 
3
0
"
W

2
0
4
.
6
8
'

WM

WM

WM

2

1

45'

16.3'

NOT TO SCALE

ALLEGHENY STREET

E R/W

28.7'

TYPICAL SECTION

CROSS SECTION (PUBLIC)

INDEX  MAP

NOT TO SCALE

LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
2

W R/W

& CL

2
%

 
M

A
X

4'

3

2

7

5

PROJECT SITE

BY MARK APPR. DATE

ENGINEER CITY

DESCRIPTION

DATEDAN KRIEF, PE
R.C.E.   C76041

SEAL DESIGN BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

JOB NUMBER:

OF           SHEETS

FG/MP

PN/SS

DK

07/01/21

6420 WHILSHIRE BLVD #1000
LOS ANGELES, CA 90048
310.926.0248

AS SHOWN
FILE NO:
 3412

01.13.2022

A
l
l
e

g
h

e
n

y
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t
r
e

e
t

6' 10.3'

1/18/2022

1/18/2022

02/07/22

101

Item 5.



W
M

W
M

W
M

Allegheny                            Street

A
l
l
e

y

2
8
.
7
'

1
6
.
3
'

(
2
6
0
1
.
2
6
)
T
W

2
5
9
8
.
4
7
 
B
W

2
.
8
'
 
H

T

3 10

6

19

2
5
9
7
.
5
2

B
W

2
5
9
7
.
2
7

B
W

2
5
9
5
.
8
8
 
T
C

(
2
5
9
5
.
3
8
)
F
S

7
+

8
2
.
0
2

2
5
9
8
.
2
0
 
T
C

2
5
9
7
.
7
0
 
F
L

(
2
5
9
7
.
8
3
)
E
G

7

8
+

7
7
.
5
7

2
5
9
7
.
2
6
 
T
C

2
5
9
6
.
7
6
 
F
L

2
5
9
6
.
8
9
 
E
G

7

R=16'

1
0
%

 
M

A
X

1
.
8
%

R=16'

2
8
.
7
'

9
+

7
3
.
5
7
 
B
C
R

2
5
9
6
.
3
1
 
T
C

2
5
9
5
.
8
1
 
F
L

2
5
9
5
.
9
4
 
E
G

7

R=15'

5
.
0
'

3

11

9
+

8
8
.
6
1

(
2
5
9
5
.
8
5
)
F
S

2595.99 TC

2595.49 FS

2596.08

FS

8

.

3

%

4

.

7

%

4

.

5

%

8

4

1
1
.
1
'

5
.
1
'

1
4
.
5
'

2
.
0
'

1
0
.
2
'

5

(E) 4" STL WATER PER

BCVWD MAP 525

(E) 8" VCP SS

PER SBK-043

8
+

9
2
.
9
1

2
5
9
7
.
4
3
 
F
S

0
"
 
C
F

9
+

1
9
.
1
8

2
5
9
7
.
4
3
 
F
S

0
"
 
C
F

1
0
.
2
'

55

JOIN EX.

E'LY R/W

STREET CROWN

W'LY R/W W'LY R/W

E'LY R/W

3

6
.
0
'

1
0
.
3
'

3

4

9
+

0
6
.
0
5

2
5
9
6
.
5
6
 
T
C

2
5
9
6
.
4
8
 
F
L

6
.
0
'

1
0
.
3
'

A

BDC

E

12

4

7+80 8+00 9+00 10+00

(2595.79)

FS

9
+

3
4
.
5
5
 
B
C
R

2
5
9
6
.
7
0
 
T
C

2
5
9
6
.
2
0
 
F
L

2
5
9
6
.
3
3
 
E
G

1
1
.
2
'

10

CL

4
.
0
'

2596.15

FS

CL
CL

CL

13

-2596

-25982598-

2600-

7
+

8
2
.
0
2

2
5
9
8
.
2
0
 
T

C

N
E

W
 
6
"
 
C

F

8
+

7
7
.
5
7

2
5
9
7
.
2
6
 
T

C

2
5
9
6
.
7
6
 
F

L

D
W

Y
-
B

C
R

9
+

3
4
.
5
5

2
5
9
6
.
7
0
 
T

C

2
5
9
6
.
2
0
 
F

L

D
W

Y
-
B

C
R

9
+

7
3
.
5
7
 
B

C
R

2
5
9
6
.
3
1
 
T

C

2
5
9
5
.
7
5
 
F

L

9
+

8
8
.
5
8

2
5
9
5
.
9
2
 
T

C

(
2
5
9
5
.
4
2
)
F

S

2
5
9
6
.
2
8
 
T

C

1
"
 
C

F
 
F

O
R

 
D

W
Y

2
5
9
6
.
8
4
 
T

C

1
"
 
C

F
 
F

O
R

 
D

W
Y

7
+

8
2
.
0
2

(
2
5
9
7
.
8
3
)
F

S

E
N

D
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

.

EX. AC FS

23.54' O.C.

R
=0.987%

R
=

1
.6

0
9
%

PROPOSED E'LY TC

2
5
9
6
.
1
2
 
T

C

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

W
I
T

H
 
6
"
 
C

F

2
5
9
6
.
0
2
 
T

C

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

W
I
T

H
 
6
"
 
C

F

2
5
9
6
.
2
2
 
T

C

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

W
I
T

H
 
6
"
 
C

F

1

4

 
Δ

1

2

 
Δ

3

4

 
Δ

R
=0.987%

R
=0.987%

1
0
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
5
.
7
8
)
 
F

S

9
+

5
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
6
.
3
4
)
 
F

S

9
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
6
.
8
3
)
 
F

S

8
+

5
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
7
.
4
0
)
 
F

S

8
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
7
.
8
3
)
 
F

S

7
+

8
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
8
.
0
0
)
 
F

S

R=0.822%

R=0.861%

R
=

1.157%

R
=0.962%

R
=1.133%

-2596

-25982598-

2600-

STREET CROWN PROFILE

1
0
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
5
.
7
6
)
 
F

S

9
+

5
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
6
.
5
9
)
 
F

S

9
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
7
.
2
5
)
 
F

S

8
+

5
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
7
.
8
0
)
 
F

S

8
+

0
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
8
.
2
1
)
 
F

S

7
+

8
0
.
0
0

(
2
5
9
8
.
4
9
)
 
F

S

2598-

2600-

-2596

-2598

CL/ W'LY R/W PROFILE

6420 WHILSHIRE BLVD #1000
LOS ANGELES, CA 90048
310.926.0248

BENCHMARK:

BY MARK APPR. DATE

ENGINEER CITY

DESCRIPTION

DATEENGINEER OF WORK
R.C.E.

SEAL DESIGN BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

JOB NUMBER:

FILE NO:

OF           SHEETS

ELEV. 2606.07, NGVD 29

RIVERSIDE BM C-3 (0.25 MILES

S ON BEAUMONT AVE. FROM

INT BEAUMONT AVE AND 6TH

ST. APPROX 37 FT W/O CL

BEAUMONT AVE @ SE OF

BRIDGE CROSSING HWY 60, 2

FT E/O SIDEWALK, 1 FT E/O

CONC, DSK C-3

MP

BS

DK

11/2/16

SF 16-3804

 3412
01.13.2022

LEGEND/ABBREVIATIONS

TC TOP OF CURB

FL FLOWLINE

EG EDGE OF GUTTER

BW BACK OF WALK

FS FINISHED SURFACE

FG FINISHED GRADE

INV INVERT

RW RIGHT OF WAY LINE

BRC BEGIN REVERSE CURVE 

PRC POINT OF REVERSE CURVE

ERC END REVERSE CURVE

SAWCUT

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

WATER METER

(BY WATER DISTRICT)

AC PAVING

AC GRIND AND OVERLAY (2"MIN)

PLANTING

FIRE HYDRANT

ADA RAMP

2

2

9
+

8
8
.
5
8
 
(
A
L
L
E
G

H
E
N

Y
)

9
+

6
8
.
8
0
 
(
A
L
L
E
Y
)

2
5
9
5
.
9
2
 
T
C

(
2
5
9
5
.
4
2
)
F
S

E
C
R

LINE # LENGTH

95.55 FT

39.02 FT

BEARING

N0°04'30"W

N0°04'30"W

A

B

CURVE # DELTA

90°0'02"

90°4'37"

89°55'30"

RADIUS

16'

16'

15'

C

D

LENGTH

25.15'

25.15'

23.54'

E

TANGENT

16.00'

16.00'

14.98'

1/18/2022

1/18/2022

02/07/22

102

Item 5.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Robert Vestal, Assistant Public Works Director 

DATE August 02, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Authorize Staff to Issue a Bond Exoneration Letter for Performance 

and Payment Bonds, and Accept Maintenance Bonds 
  

Background and Analysis:  

The City requires all developers to provide construction security for public 

improvements consisting of, but not limited to, street improvements, sewer 

improvements, storm drain improvements, and survey monumentation. After the 

improvements are constructed, City staff verifies that no liens have been filed, that the 

improvements are completed in accordance with the project’s conditions of approval, 

design standards, and City requirements, and that all punch list items have been 

addressed. Once verified, City Council may exonerate the construction security and 

accept a one-year maintenance security.  

 

During the one-year maintenance period, the developer maintains all associated 

improvements. After the one-year term has elapsed, the developer may petition the City 

Council to accept the improvements into the publicly maintained system and exonerate 

the maintenance security.  

 

The principals are requesting that the performance and payment bonds listed in table 

No. 1 be exonerated and that the City Council accept the corresponding maintenance 

bond for a period not less than one year.  

 

City staff has verified that no liens have been filed, that the improvements were 

constructed in accordance with the project’s conditions of approval, design standards, 

and City requirements, and that all punch list items had been addressed.  

 

 

103

Item 6.



Table No. 1 – Summary of Bonds recommended to be exonerated. 

Project Performance 

Bond Number 

Improvement File 

Number 

Maintenance 

Bond Number 

Principal 

Tract Map No. 

37426 

 

0216988 Street 3199 0216988-M Tri Pointe Homes 

IE-SD, Inc. 

Tract Map No. 

31462-7 

PB00535000069 Monuments PW2020

-0451 

N/A Woodside 05S, LP 

Tract Map No. 

31462-7 

PB00535000068 Street, Sewer, 

& Storm Drain 

2040, 

2038, & 

2039 

PB005350000

68-M 

Woodside 05S, LP 

 

Therefore, City staff recommends that City Council accept the maintenance bonds and 

authorize City staff to issue a bond exoneration letter for the performance and payment 

bonds. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The cost of preparing the staff report is estimated to be $350. The developer maintains 
all associated improvements during the maintenance period. The City is not liable for 
public improvement maintenance until the public improvements are accepted into the 
publicly maintained system.  

 

Recommended Action: 

Authorize City staff to issue a Bond Exoneration Letter for Performance and 

Payment Bonds and Accept Maintenance Bonds for (Project / Bond Number / 

Improvement / Maintenance Bond Number): 

• Tract Map No. 37426 / 0216988 / Street / 0216988-M 

• Tract Map No. 31462-7 / PB00535000069 / Monuments  

• Tract Map No. 31462-7/ PB00535000068 / Street, Sewer, & Storm Drain / 

PB00535000068-M 

Attachments: 

A. PW2022-0817 – Bond Exoneration Packet 

B. PW2020-0451 – Bond Exoneration Packet 

C. 16-3770 – Bond Exoneration Packet 

104

Item 6.



$3,484.43
2/3/2022

PW2022-0817
R01216870

105

Item 6.



106

Item 6.



PW2018-0090
3199

107

Item 6.



108

Item 6.



109

Item 6.



110

Item 6.



111

Item 6.



112

Item 6.



113

Item 6.



114

Item 6.



115

Item 6.



116

Item 6.



117

Item 6.



118

Item 6.



119

Item 6.



120

Item 6.



121

Item 6.



122

Item 6.



123

Item 6.



124

Item 6.



125

Item 6.



126

Item 6.



No Changes

127

Item 6.



No Changes
128

Item 6.



No Changes
129

Item 6.



No Changes
130

Item 6.



No Changes
131

Item 6.



No Changes
132

Item 6.



No Changes
133

Item 6.



134

Item 6.

amelea
Line

amelea
Line

amelea
Line

amelea
Line

amelea
Text Box
Adjusted in field to PL per City inspector Jack (NV5).

amelea
Text Box
Adjusted to avoid utility conflicts in field per City inspector Jack (NV5)

amelea
Draft

amelea
Typewritten text
3/16/2022



[COMPANY NAME] 

 Punch List 

Project Name: (Locals) Street Improvement Performance Bond Bond Number: 0216988 

Tract No: 37426 PW2022-0817 File No: 3199 

Inspected By: Jason Craghead Page: 1 of 1 Date: 5/25/2022 

Item 

No. 
Description 

Completed by 

Construction 

(Sign/Date) 

Accepted by 

(Sign/Date) 

1) No items at this time 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

8) 

9) 

10) 

11)

135

Item 6.



136

Item 6.



137

Item 6.



138

Item 6.



139

Item 6.



140

Item 6.



141

Item 6.



142

Item 6.



143

Item 6.



144

Item 6.



145

Item 6.



146

Item 6.



147

Item 6.



148

Item 6.



149

Item 6.



150

Item 6.



151

Item 6.



152

Item 6.



153

Item 6.



154

Item 6.



155

Item 6.



156

Item 6.



157

Item 6.



 
 

 

April 13, 2020     

 

 

Woodside Homes 

1250 Corona Pointe Court, Suite 500 

Corona, CA 92879 

Attn: Kory Liston 

 

 

RE:  Bond #PB00535000068  Street, Sewer, and Storm Drain Improvements  

        

 

Dear Kory, 

 

The City of Beaumont has received your request in regards to a reduction of bonds in the above 

referenced tract. Upon receipt of a maintenance bond in the amount listed below, the city will 

return the original Performance bond 45 days after recordation and replace it with the 

maintenance bond to be in place for no less than one year. The amount is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you wish to discuss this matter further please do not hesitate to contact me at  

(951) 769-8520 ext. 329 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

 

Suzanne Foxworth 

Public Works Technician 

 

Project Name 
Maintenance 

Amount 

Street, Sewer, & Storm Drain 

Improvements  

 

$473,806.70 

 

158

Item 6.



159

Item 6.



160

Item 6.



161

Item 6.



162

Item 6.



163

Item 6.



164

Item 6.



165

Item 6.



166

Item 6.



167

Item 6.



168

Item 6.



169

Item 6.



170

Item 6.



171

Item 6.



172

Item 6.



173

Item 6.



174

Item 6.



175

Item 6.



176

Item 6.



177

Item 6.



178

Item 6.



179

Item 6.



180

Item 6.



181

Item 6.



182

Item 6.



183

Item 6.



184

Item 6.



185

Item 6.



186

Item 6.



187

Item 6.



188

Item 6.



189

Item 6.



190

Item 6.



191

Item 6.



192

Item 6.



193

Item 6.



194

Item 6.



195

Item 6.



196

Item 6.



197

Item 6.



198

Item 6.



199

Item 6.



200

Item 6.



201

Item 6.



202

Item 6.



203

Item 6.



204

Item 6.



205

Item 6.



206

Item 6.



207

Item 6.



208

Item 6.



209

Item 6.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Kari Mendoza, Administrative Services Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Adopt Resolution of the City Council Ordering the Collection of Weed 

Abatement Charges and Directing the County Auditor to Collect 

Such Fees on the Tax Rolls 
  

Background and Analysis:  

Annually, the City of Beaumont conducts weed abatement for vacant parcels throughout 

the City in accordance with Beaumont Municipal Code Chapter 8.08. This section of the 

code requires property owners to maintain their properties free of weeds, dry grass, 

dead trees, or any other growing material that creates a fire hazard.   

 

Notices to abate were sent to vacant property owners in April 2022, requiring them to 

remove weeds and dead vegetation and to maintain fire breaks in accordance with 

Section 8.08.015 of the code. Property owners are encouraged to participate in the 

City’s subscription program, which assigns a City approved contractor to their property 

to complete the weed abatement and the property owner is then assessed the cost of 

the abatement on their annual property taxes.   

 

Property owners that do not complete their weed abatement as required are summarily 

abated as provided for in Section 8.08.026 of the code and the costs for the abatement 

are reported to City Council for a resolution ordering the collection of weed abatement 

charges through assessments on the Riverside County Auditor tax rolls. 

 

For consideration is a resolution of City Council, ordering the collection of weed 

abatement charges and directing the County Auditor to collect such fees on the tax rolls, 

with a report of costs for weed abatement as completed by the City of Beaumont 

contractors, listed by parcel.      

 

 

 

210

Item 7.



Fiscal Impact: 

Approval of the resolution and collection of weed abatement charges on the Riverside 

County Auditor tax rolls will allow for the cost recovery by the City of Beaumont in the 

amount of $60,200.50. City staff estimates the cost to prepare this report was $390.  

 

Recommended Action: 
 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Ordering the Collection of Weed Abatement 

Charges and Directing the County Auditor to Collect Such Fees on the Tax 

Rolls.” 

Attachments: 

A. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Beaumont, California Ordering the 

Collection of Weed Abatement Charges and Directing the County Auditor to 

Collect Such Fees on the Tax Rolls 

B. Report of Weed Abatement as Completed by the City of Beaumont, listed by 

Parcel 

211

Item 7.



Resolution 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, ORDERING THE COLLECTION OF 

WEED ABATEMENT CHARGES AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY 

AUDITOR TO COLLECT SUCH FEES ON THE TAX ROLLS 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City has incurred costs of abating weeds on private property; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, weed abatement is a requirement based on Public Health and 

Safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, property owners were notified by mail to abate or have the City 

abate weeds; and 

 

WHEREAS, said property owners failed to abate such conditions; and  

 

WHEREAS, said analysis concluded with a recommendation to the City 

Council that, in the best interest of the citizens and the City of Beaumont, the 

collection of weed abatement service charges be a part of the tax assessments; and 

 

WHEREAS, such tax assessments constitute a lien assessed against the 

property and shall be collected in accordance with Article 4, Chapter 6, Part 3 of the 

Health and Safety Code of the State of California, collected on the tax roll in the 

same manner, by the same person, and at the same time, and together with, and not 

separate from, its general taxes. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the 

City of Beaumont as follows: 

 

Section 1: That the City Council does hereby confirm the written report made 

by the Community Enhancement Division of the City of Beaumont, of delinquent 

weed abatement service charges itemized for each separate parcel land. 

 

Section 2: That the City Council hereby confirm the report, made by the 

Community Enhancement Division of the City of Beaumont, of weed abatement 

subscription service charges itemized for each separate parcel of land. 

 

Section 3: That charges are in compliance with all laws pertaining to the levy 

of this assessment as cited in Section 4 of this Resolution, and is levied without 

regard to property valuation, and 

212

Item 7.



Section 4: That the cost of weed abatement service of each parcel of land shall 

constitute an assessment against that parcel and shall be a lien on such parcel of land in 

accordance with the provisions of the Government Code of the State of California and the 

Health and Safety Code of the State of California. 

 

Section 5: That an itemized written report for each separate parcel of land which 

is included by reference and is made part thereof as though fully set forth herein. That 

certified copies of this Resolution shall be delivered to the Riverside County Auditor 

Controller by August 10th of such fiscal year and shall be made part of the tax 

assessments and be made a part of the tax roll all in accordance with section 51520 of the 

Government Code of the State of California, and other provisions of the law applicable 

thereto. 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022, by the following 

vote: 

 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT 

ATTEST: 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

City Clerk 

213

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT

APN # Amount

sub non sub

404-190-002 1,136.00$         X

404-190-007 1,262.00$         X

404-190-008 464.00$             X

400-250-008 4,962.00$         X

400-250-010 464.00$             X

400-250-012 3,444.00$         X

408-080-005 1,096.00$         X

415-091-010 340.00$             X

415-091-012 340.00$             X

415-100-053 185.00$            X

415-180-022 340.00$             X

415-210-003 413.50$             X

418-113-008 235.00$             X

418-123-003 361.00$             X

418-123-005 392.50$             X

418-123-007 340.00$             X

418-123-008 445.00$             X

418-123-011 340.00$             X

418-123-012 340.00$             X

418-310-007 1,180.00$         X

418-310-008 760.00$             X

418-320-007 865.00$             X

418-320-008 812.50$             X

418-320-011 550.00$             X

418-320-012 340.00$             X

419-222-003 237.50$             X

419-222-012 542.00$             X

419-222-022 392.50$             X

418-210-019 335.00$             X

414-090-024 395.00$             X

414-090-025 1,025.00$         X

414-090-026 395.00$             X

414-120-009 731.00$             X

414-120-026 1,655.00$         X

414-120-027 1,655.00$         X

414-120-029 184.00$             X

414-120-031 185.00$             X

414-120-033 920.00$             X

414-120-034 1,130.00$         X

414-120-035 5,435.00$         X

414-120-038 1,550.00$         X

414-120-039 710.00$             X

214

Item 7.



APN # Amount sub non sub

414-120-040 605.00$             X

414-120-041 1,235.00$         X

419-222-020 358.00$             X

419-222-021 253.00$             X

419-170-034 253.00$             X

419-170-031 673.00$             X

418-270-043 288.00$             X

418-270-044 253.00$             X

419-170-035 253.00$             X

418-290-016 218.00$             X

418-290-023 253.00$             X

418-290-022 218.00$             X

418-031-010 253.00$             X

418-140-019 218.00$             X

418-140-020 218.00$             X

418-190-008 218.00$             X

418-043-002 253.00$             X

417-220-041 393.00$             X

417-220-009 393.00$             X

417-150-016 218.00$             X

417-150-010 183.00$             X

417-150-009 183.00$             X

417-150-007 183.00$             X

417-150-006 183.00$             X

417-030-002 393.00$             X

415-301-030 253.00$             X

415-282-022 288.00$             X

415-261-014 218.00$             X

415-122-019 218.00$             X

415-092-014 253.00$             X

414-142-038 953.00$             X

414-020-011 1,023.00$         X

408-080-004 813.00$             X

404-140-001 1,723.00$         X

417-020-066 253.00$             X

418-240-009 813.00$             X

418-250-001 393.00$             X

418-250-006 428.00$             X

418-250-007 498.00$             X

418-250-008 498.00$             X

418-260-013 813.00$             X

418-230-003 603.00$             X

418-300-002 463.00$             X

418-121-003 253.00$             X

403-200-010 323.00$             X

415-322-012 235.00$             X

215

Item 7.



APN # Amount sub non sub

428-030-001 632.00$             X

414-130-014 1,220.00$         X

TOTAL 60,200.50$       

216

Item 7.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Thaxton Van Belle, General Manager of Utilities 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Approve the Second Amendment of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Chemical Supply Contract with HASA, Inc. 
  

Background and Analysis:  

A request for bids was issued by City staff in May of 2020, for chemical supplies 

required to operate the new advanced treatment plant. On July 7, 2020, the City Council 

approved a contract with HASA, Inc. (HASA), for the chemical supply of sodium 

hypochlorite. On June 15, 2021, City Council approved a First Amendment to Chemical 

Supply Agreement with HASA to extend services for one year (Attachment A).  

 

HASA has submitted pricing for the next fiscal year with a cost increase due to supply 

and manufacturing constraints, as well as inflationary pressure throughout the supply 

chain with upward trends in labor and transportation costs. In a letter to Congress, the 

American Water Works Association (AWWA) references a nationwide chlorine cost 

increase of 160%, with some users experiencing 300%-700% increases (Attachment B).   

The following table illustrates last year’s FY2021 pricing and the current proposed 

pricing for FY2023. 

 

 

Chemical  2022 Price Per Gallon 2023 Price Per Gallon 

Sodium Hypochlorite 2500 

-3999 Gallons (short truck) 

$0.98 $1.90 

Sodium Hypochlorite 

>4000 Gallons (full truck) 

$0.85 $1.70 

 

All Chemical Supply Contracts are scheduled to undergo new bid requests in the next 

Fiscal Year. 

 

217

Item 8.



Fiscal Impact: 

The total cost of the agreement is based on actual usage and estimations have been 

appropriated within the wastewater special supplies budget.  The cost to prepare this 

report is estimated at $500. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Approve a second amendment to the Chemical Supply Agreement with HASA, 

Inc., extending the duration of the contract for one year and agreeing to the 

adjusted rates as outlined in the amendment. 

Attachments: 

A. FY 2022 Contract Amendment 

B. American Water Works Letter to Congress 

C. Proposed FY2023 Contract Amendment 

 

218

Item 8.



 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT 

(HASA Inc.) 
 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT  (“Agreement”) is made 

and effective as of the 1st day of July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF BEAUMONT (“CITY”), 

and HASA, Inc., a California corporation whose address is 23119 Drayton Street Saugus, CA 

91350 (“CONTRACTOR”) in consideration of the mutual promises and purpose contained herein, 

the parties agree as follow: 
 

RECITALS 
 
 This First Amendment is made with respect to the following facts and purpose that the 

parties agree are true and correct: 

 

A. On July 1st, 2020 the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into a certain agreement 

entitled “Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement” (“Agreement”), after 

following an RFP process to supply Sodium Hypochlorite used in the operation of the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant. 

 

B.  Term of Agreement states “…this agreement shall automatically terminate after one 

(1) year unless extended by the parties with the approval of the City Council of the CITY.” 

 

 

AMENDMENT 

 

The Agreement is hereby amended to replace section 4 regarding the Compensation and 

to extend the ‘Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement for a one-year term, 

effective July 1st, 2021. 

 

COMPENSATION 

 

The CITY shall pay the CONTRACTOR at the rates set forth and shall not increase any 

rate without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

 

CHEMICAL UNIT PRICE PER GALLON 

Sodium Hypochlorite 2500 -

3999 gallons (short truck) 

$0.98 

Sodium Hypochlorite >4000 

gallons (full truck) 

$0.86 

 

TERM 

 

The term of the Agreement is hereby extended to cover the time period from July 1, 2021 

ORIGINAL ON FILE

219

Item 8.



until June 30, 2022. 

 

The recitals to this Amendment are deemed incorporated herein by this reference. All 

other terms of the Agreement not expressly amended by this Amendment shall remain in full 

force and effect.  In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment, this 

Amendment shall control. 

 

[Signatures on following page] 

 

 

 

 

ORIGINAL ON FILE

220

Item 8.



SIGNATURE PAGE TO 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT  

FIRST AMENDMENT 

 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

            Mike Lara, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 

 

HASA, Inc. 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

Print Name: _______________________   

 

Title: ____________________________ 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:________________________ 

      Steven Mehlman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: ___________________________ 

      John O. Pinkney, City Attorney 

  

ORIGINAL ON FILE

221

Item 8.



 

June 7, 2022 

 

The Honorable Jeff Merkley  The Honorable Roger Wicker 

Chairman Ranking Member 

Subcommittee on Chemical Safety, Waste 

Management, Environmental Justice, and 

Regulatory Oversight 

Committee on Environment and Public Works 

United States Senate 

Subcommittee on Chemical Safety, Waste 

Management, Environmental Justice, and 

Regulatory Oversight 

Committee on Environment and Public Works 

United States Senate 

Washington, DC 20510 Washington, DC 20510 
  

Dear Chairman Merkley and Ranking Member Wicker: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this statement for the record of the subcommittee’s 

hearing on S. 4244, the Alan Reinstein Ban Asbestos Now Act. The American Water Works 

Association (AWWA) and the Association of Metropolitan Water Agencies (AMWA) have 

significant concerns about S.4244 and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) 

proposed rule to ban the use of chrysotile asbestos diaphragms in the production of chlorine, 

sodium hypochlorite and caustic soda by the chlor-alkali sector. EPA’s own analysis indicates 

that such action will impact nearly 30 percent of domestic production that serves the water 

sector. This will adversely impact the continuity of operations at utilities across the nation and as 

result, the health protections provided to our customers. 

 

AWWA and AMWA represent drinking water systems that collectively serve over 80 percent of 

the population. Our primary mission is the protection of public health. We support over 50,000 

community water systems nationwide in maintaining an essential lifeline service, safe drinking 

water. Safe drinking water is critical to both public health and the economic vitality of individual 

communities across the nation. The majority of these community water systems are part of 

municipal government, while some are independent authorities, not-for-profit organizations, or 

investor-owned utilities. No matter the type of ownership, there are three common denominators: 

1) they provide a critical infrastructure service, 2) their operations are financially supported by 

the rate payers in the communities they serve and 3) they are required to comply with regulations 

promulgated under the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA). 

 

SDWA regulations specifically require 1) any water system that relies on surface water or 

ground water under the influence of surface water (GWUDI) to meet disinfection requirements 

using chlorine, chlorine/chloramines, ozone, or chlorine dioxide, 2) these same systems must 

also maintain a chlorine disinfectant residual in the distributed drinking water supply, and 3) 

primary disinfection at groundwater systems at the direction of primacy agencies. All these 

provisions are designed to protect the public from pathogens. However, our collective capacity to 

fulfill this obligation to protect public health would be threatened by S. 4244’s proposed ban on 

chrysotile asbestos – which is commonly used in the production of chlorine. 

 

222

Item 8.



The Honorable Jeff Merkley 

The Honorable Roger Wicker 

June 7, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 

S. 4244 would prohibit the “manufacture, processing, use, and distribution in commerce” of 

“commercial asbestos” within one year of passage of the legislation. “Commercial asbestos” is 

defined to include asbestiform fibers processed from chrysotile asbestos, which is used by the 

chlor-alkali sector in diaphragms necessary to produce chlorine, sodium hypochlorite and caustic 

soda. While S. 4244 would allow existing chlor-alkali facilities to import and use chrysotile 

asbestos to produce diaphragms for one additional year beyond the prohibition date, AWWA and 

AMWA have significant concerns that this legislation would curtail domestic chlorine 

production and adversely impact the continuity of operations at water systems across the nation 

and therefore threaten the public health of your constituents. 

 

Similarly, EPA’s proposal to regulate certain conditions of use under Section 6(a) of the Toxic 

Substances Control Act (TSCA) would prohibit, after two years, the manufacture, processing, 

and commercial use of chrysotile asbestos, “including any chrysotile asbestos-containing 

products or articles” such as diaphragms in the chlor-alkali industry. The effects of this ban 

would be identical to those of S. 4244 and would introduce new uncertainties into the availability 

of chlorine for water treatment activities. 

 

Existing market pressures are pushing up the cost for chlorine – costs that water systems must 

pass on to their ratepayers. We gathered information from our members about the cost of 

chlorine. Our members have been experiencing significant increases in the cost of chlorine over 

the last 18 months and future increases are anticipated. According to AWWA’s recent national 

survey, on average the cost for each ton of chlorine delivered to water systems has increased 

over 160%. The lowest reported cost in the second quarter of 2022 was $700/ton up from 

$221/ton in the first quarter of 2021. The highest reported cost in the second quarter of 2022 was 

$7,000/ton. Higher unit costs often fall disproportionately on smaller communities that use 150-

pound containers and therefore do not have bulk volume purchasing power. However, multiple 

large systems have experienced 300-600% increases in the unit cost of chlorine over the same 

18-month period. In many cases these dramatic price increases represent millions of dollars in 

unbudgeted operating expenses that must be absorbed by the water system. 

 

The rapid escalation in the cost of this critical treatment chemical represents a significant 

opportunity cost to ratepayers. Water systems are already being forced to reallocate limited, 

available funds away from operational and maintenance needs. Deferred investments in drinking 

water treatment facility and distribution system repair are direct and real-world consequences of 

rapid escalation in the cost of chlorine. The proposed legislation and regulation fail to recognize 

these impacts on water system operations and the public they serve. While S. 4244 provides the 

President the opportunity to grant, on a case-by-case basis, a temporary exemption to the 

asbestos ban when necessary to protect national security, no similar waiver is included for the 

purpose of maintaining chlorine production to protect public health. We believe the latter is as 

critical for the defense of the country as the availability of chlorine is a necessity to ensure safe 

drinking water that provides for a sound and vital economy. In any event, the continued 

availability of chlorine to the nation’s water systems is too important to defer to a discretionary 

waiver process. If enacted in its current form, S. 4244 would magnify existing economic burdens 

223

Item 8.

tvanbelle
Highlight



The Honorable Jeff Merkley 

The Honorable Roger Wicker 

June 7, 2022 

Page 3 of 4 

by restricting chlorine production, thus compounding affordability and continuity of operations 

challenges currently impacting the nation’s water systems. 

 

S. 4244 and EPA’s proposed regulation would leave water systems with little recourse but to file 

with EPA for relief under SDWA §1441. This provision is designed to ensure that certain 

chemicals or substances, including chlorine and caustic soda, that are necessary “for the purpose 

of treating water in any public water system or in any public treatment works” are “reasonably 

available.” It is not clear that the Administration could meet this obligation under SDWA §1441 

in an environment of reduced chlorine production due to the asbestos ban. Clearly, the 

implications for public health could be profound. 

 

We are also concerned that EPA’s economic analysis for the proposed rule made no substantive 

effort to examine the impact on “reasonable availability” and downstream consequences on 

water system operations. EPA suggested that “potential supply disruptions could be addressed in 

the shorter term through increased importing . . . and over time with increased production at 

existing non-asbestos diaphragm or membrane-based chlor-alkali plants.” EPA provides no 

supply chain capacity analysis to support that finding. In addition, we do not believe that shifting 

the supply chain towards greater foreign dependency, even if short-term, is in our strategic 

national interest. 

 

Recent incidents, including Winter Storm Uri and Hurricane Laura, directly impacted chlor-

alkali production and availability. However, in responding to those incidents EPA lacked the 

data necessary to properly examine “reasonable availability” under §1441. We recommend that 

Congress task EPA with conducting a full supply chain analysis to develop an understanding of 

how production incidents may impact the availability of chemicals and substances essential to 

proper water treatment. In addition, we believe §1441 could be more anticipatory of emergency 

conditions. The current process requires a lengthy notice and comment period that is not 

responsive to emergency conditions such as those observed in the past year. Congress should 

explore granting priority allocation to use cases associated with public health, including but not 

limited to water treatment. 

 

Over the past 18 months water systems across the nation have reported multiple instances of 

inadequate available disinfectant supply, with respect to both chlorine and sodium hypochlorite. 

There have been multiple instances where water systems have been within a few days of running 

out of these disinfectants, when typically, weeks of supply are maintained onsite. This creates 

significant stress on water systems’ ability to assure adequate treatment. Should a system not 

have adequate disinfectant, SDWA regulations appropriately require public notification, and 

state primacy agencies would typically require a boil water notification. The lack of adequate 

disinfection disrupts the entire community for no reason other than chemical supply disruption. 

Our members have worked diligently to avoid such outcomes. The proposed legislation and 

regulation unnecessarily place communities at greater risk of experiencing such a disruption and 

the associated economic consequences. 

 

224

Item 8.



The Honorable Jeff Merkley 

The Honorable Roger Wicker 

June 7, 2022 

Page 4 of 4 

It should also be noted that under TSCA section 6(g) EPA was directed by Congress to consider 

how a proposed action may “significantly disrupt the national economy, national security or 

critical infrastructure.” In the current rulemaking EPA did not exercise this discretion and no 

exemption was granted. We believe the agency made a grave mistake given the existing supply 

chain and economic impacts being experienced in the water sector. At minimum Congress 

should direct EPA to conduct a full-scale market capacity assessment under §1441 given the 

strategic national economic and security role of water utilities as essential lifeline critical 

infrastructure systems under PPD-21 and the Homeland Security Act of 2002. The proposed 

transition period of 3 years is unreasonable considering similar European regulation provided 5-8 

years for the same transition. The proposed legislation and regulation create a federal 

government-imposed threat to the continuity of community water system operations and an 

unreasonable cost burden on the nation’s water rate payers. Congress and EPA must consider 

these financial burdens in weighing whether to pursue these prospective actions. 

 

We recognize that the intent of S. 4244 and EPA’s proposed regulation is to mitigate exposure to 

asbestos. However, it must be recognized that chrysotile asbestos diaphragms used in the 

production of chlorine provide a critical disinfectant relied upon by community water systems 

nationwide to ensure that water is safe to drink. Ensuring the continuity of safe drinking water is 

a critical public health issue. AWWA and AMWA urge you to, at minimum, modify S. 4244 to 

ensure that it does not inadvertently create a chlorine supply shortage that could threaten the 

safety of our nation’s drinking water supply. We would be eager to collaborate with you on this 

important issue.  

  

Sincerely, 

 

American Water Works Association 

Association of Metropolitan Water Agencies 

 

225

Item 8.



CITY OF BEAUMONT 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT 

(HASA Inc.) 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 
made and effective as of the 1st day of July, 2022 by and between the CITY OF BEAUMONT 
(“CITY”), and HASA, Inc., a California corporation whose address is 23119 Drayton Street 
Saugus, CA 91350 (“CONTRACTOR”) in consideration of the mutual promises and purpose 
contained herein, the parties agree as follow: 

RECITALS 

This Second Amendment is made with respect to the following facts and purpose that 
the parties agree are true and correct: 

A. On July 1st, 2020 the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into a certain agreement 
entitled “Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement” (“Agreement”), after 
following an RFP process to supply Sodium Hypochlorite used in the operation of the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

B. Term of Agreement states “…this agreement shall automatically terminate after one
(1) year unless extended by the parties with the approval of the City Council of the CITY.”

C. On July 1st, 2021 the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into a First Amendment
to Chemical Supply Agreement to extend services. 

D. Term of Agreement states “…this agreement shall automatically terminate after one
(1) year unless extended by the parties with the approval of the City Council of the CITY.”

AMENDMENT 

The Agreement is hereby amended to replace section 4 regarding the Compensation and 
to extend the ‘Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement for a one-year term, 
effective July 1st, 2022. 

COMPENSATION 

The CITY shall pay the CONTRACTOR at the rates set forth and shall not increase any 
rate without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

226

Item 8.



CHEMICAL UNIT PRICE PER GALLON 
Sodium Hypochlorite 2500 -
3999 gallons (short truck) 

$1.90 

Sodium Hypochlorite >4000 
gallons (full truck) 

$1.70 

 
TERM 
 
The term of the Agreement is hereby extended to cover the time period from July 1, 2022 

until June 30, 2023. 
 

The recitals to this Amendment are deemed incorporated herein by this reference. All 
other terms of the Agreement not expressly amended by this Amendment shall remain in full 
force and effect.  In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment, this 
Amendment shall control. 

 

[Signatures on following page] 

 

 

 

 

227

Item 8.



SIGNATURE PAGE TO 

 
CITY OF BEAUMONT  

SECOND AMENDMENT 
 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF BEAUMONT 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
          Lloyd White, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
HASA, Inc. 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 
Print Name: _______________________   
 
Title: ____________________________ 
 

 
 
 

 
  

228

Item 8.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Thaxton Van Belle, General Manager of Utilities  

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Approve the Second Amendment of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Chemical Supply Contract with NorthStar Chemical 
  

Background and Analysis:  

On July 7, 2020, City Council approved a contract with NorthStar Chemical for the 

following chemicals: citric acid, sulfuric acid, liquid ammonium sulfate, sodium bisulfate, 

and sodium hydroxide. 

 

On July 1, 2021, City Council approved the First Amendment to extend the Chemical 

Supply Agreement with NorthStar Chemical for one year. 

 

NorthStar Chemical has submitted pricing for the first quarter of the current fiscal year. 

Chemical pricing continues to escalate with all products from all manufacturers and 

freight/transportation rates have escalated along with it. NorthStar Chemical is limiting 

its offering to quarterly pricing due to the market volatility and unpredictability of the 

future. The following table illustrates the pricing from FY2022 and the proposed 

quarterly fixed pricing for FY2023. 

 

Chemical 2022 Price Per Gallon 2023 Price Per Gallon 

Citric Acid $9.46 $19.50 

Sulfuric Acid $2.65 $5.20 

Liquid Ammonium Sulfate $4.38 $5.75 

Sodium Bisulfite $2.96 $3.25 

Sodium Hydroxide  $1.71 $2.83 

 

Staff is recommending to reference a producer pricing index (PPI) for chemicals (shown 

and referenced below), currently running at an annual rate of 16% to apply to the 

quarterly price to establish a ceiling rate for a one-year contract.  Thus, if the next 

quarterly pricing comes in equal to or less than the PPI of 16%, the contract will remain 

229

Item 9.



in effect, and if pricing increases beyond the16% PPI, the contract will come before the 

City Council for review. 

 

 
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Producer Price Index by Commodity: Chemicals and Allied Products: Basic Organic Chemicals 

[WPU0614], retrieved from FRED, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis; https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/WPU0614, July 26, 2022. 

 

 

All Chemical Supply Contracts are scheduled to undergo new bid requests for the next 

Fiscal Year. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The total cost of the agreement is based on actual usage and estimations have been 

appropriated within the wastewater special supplies budget. The cost to prepare this 

report is estimated at $700. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Approve a second amendment to the Chemical Supply Agreement with 

NorthStar Chemical with any non-substantive changes made by the City Attorney 

consisting of a one-year extension of the existing contract for the supply of the 

listed chemicals with adjusted quarterly rates as outlined, not to exceed the 

Producer Price Index by Commodity for chemicals, currently running at 16%. 

Attachments: 

A. Approved FY 2022 Contract Amendment. 

B. Proposed FY 2023 Contract Amendment. 

230

Item 9.



231

Item 9.



232

Item 9.



233

Item 9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT 

(NorthStar Chemical) 

 
 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO CHEMICAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is 

made and effective as of the 1st day of July, 2022 by and between the CITY OF BEAUMONT 

("CITY"), and Pacific Star Chemical, LLC a Delaware limited liability company doing business 

as Northstar Chemical whose address is 14200 SW Taulatin Sherwood Road, Sherwood OR 

97140 ("CONTRACTOR") in consideration of the mutual promises and purpose contained 

herein, the parties agree as follow: 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Second Amendment is made with respect to the following facts and purpose that 

the parties agree are true and correct: 

 
A. On July 7th, 2020 the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into a certain agreement 

entitled "Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement" ("Agreement"), after 

following an RFP process to supply Citric Acid, Sulfuric Acid, Liquid Ammonium Sulfate, 

Sodium Bisulfate, and Sodium Hydroxide used in the operation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 
B. Term of Agreement states"... this agreement shall automatically terminate after one 

(1) year unless extended by the parties with the approval of the City Council of the CITY. 

 

C. On July 1st, 2021 the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into a First Amendment to Chemical 

Supply Agreement to extend services for one year. 

 

D. Term of Agreement states"... this agreement shall automatically terminate after one 

(2) year unless extended by the parties with the approval of the City Council of the CITY." 

 

 
 

AMENDMENT 

 
The Agreement is hereby amended to replace section 4 regarding the Compensation and 

to extend the 'Wastewater Treatment Plant Chemical Supply Agreement for a one-year term, 

effective July 1st, 2022. 
 

COMPENSATION 

 
The CITY shall pay the CONTRACTOR at the quarterly rates set forth and shall not 

increase any rate without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

 

 

 

 
 

234

Item 9.



CHEMICAL UNIT PRICE PER GALLON 

Citric Acid $19.50 

Sulfuric Acid $5.20 

Liquid Ammonium Sulfate $5.75 

Sodium Bisulfite $3.25 

Sodium Hydroxide $2.83 

 

 

In order to monitor the cost increases, if the amount exceeds 16% of the quarterly quote the contract will be 

taken to City Council for review per the Producer Price Index by Commodity for Chemicals (U.S. 

Bureau of Labor Statistics, Producer Price Index by Commodity: Chemicals and Allied Products: Basic 

Organic Chemicals [WPU0614], retrieved from FRED, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis; 

https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/WPU0614, July 26, 2022.) 

 
  

TERM 
 

The term of the Agreement is hereby extended for one-year, effective July 1st, 2022 to June 30th, 2023, 

with future quarterly pricing not to exceed 16% of the previous quarter’s quote. 

 
The recitals to this Amendment are deemed incorporated herein by this reference. All 

other terms of the Agreement not expressly amended by this Amendment shall remain in full 

force and effect. In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment, this 

Amendment shall.control. 

 

 

[Signatures on following page] 

235

Item 9.



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
 

 

  CITY OF BEAUMONT 

SECOND AMENDMENT 
 

 

CITY: 

 
CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

          Lloyd White, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 

 
Pacific Star Chemical, LLC, a Delaware 

limited liability company doing business as 

NorthStar Chemical 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

Print Name: _______________________   

 

Title: ____________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

236

Item 9.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Thaxton Van Belle, General Manager of Utilities 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Amendment to the Perricone Juices Pretreatment Facilities 

Agreement with an Extension until December 31, 2023 
  

Background and Analysis: 

As part of the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant Salt Mitigation Upgrade, the City 

initiated a collaborative effort with local significant wastewater dischargers to improve 

water quality at the source with the goal of minimizing impacts and resulting costs at the 

City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). In addition to minimizing impacts at the 

WWTP, revised water quality limits, monitoring and enforcement actions are necessary 

to meet the stringent discharge requirements for the brine line owned and operated by 

the Santa Ana Watershed Protection Agency. This connection is vital to the success of 

the City’s Salt Mitigation Upgrade which relies on this pipeline to dispose of salt from the 

watershed.  

 

On October 1, 2019, The City and Perricone Juices (Perricone) entered a Pre-

Treatment Facility Agreement (Attachment A). The Agreement authorized the City to 

utilize an interim wastewater rate of $3.09/HCF in return for Perricone investing 

approximately $3 million in onsite wastewater treatment equipment resulting in an 

improved effluent water quality. The interim rate reflected an overall annual revenue 

increase of 20% over the estimated revenue from Perricone in the City’s Sewer Rate 

Study (June 2018). The agreement included provisions requiring Perricone to meet 

schedule milestones, performance requirements and minimum investment thresholds or 

face financial penalties. The duration of the interim agreement was established July 1, 

2018, to December 31, 2022. Per the contract, the interim rate is scheduled to increase 

for the 22/23 fiscal year to $7.61/HCF.  

 

In a letter dated December 3, 2021, Perricone requested a one-year extension to the 

agreement and rate (Attachment B). City staff responded with a request for information 

on the state of the project and a plan moving forward and engaged in several status 

update meetings. Perricone retained the engineering services of MKN and Associates 

237

Item 10.



to formulate a revised plan committed to optimizing the design of the remaining 

components and the construction of a water recycling system to reduce effluent 

discharges further. These system improvements are estimated to cost an additional 

$900,000, bringing Perricone’s total spending to $4 million. On behalf of Perricone, 

MKN and Associates submitted a letter summarizing the challenges faced during the 

original agreement term and a recommitment to complete the project resulting in 

improved quality discharge to the wastewater treatment plant with a request to extend 

the interim rate schedule. (Attachment C) 

 

Perricone Proposed Project Implementation Schedule:  

ACTION MILESTONE 

City Council Approval of Extension August 2022 

Complete Sampling and Process Selection January 2022 to March 2022 

30% Design and Design Build Contract Executed April 2022 to July 2022 

Final Design and Permitting August 2022 to December 2022 

Materials Procurement and Construction October 2022 to June 2023 

Startup and Optimization July 2023 to August 2023 

Sampling Program/ New SIU Discharge Permit September 2023 to December 2023 

End of Interim Rate  December 31, 2023 

 

City staff supports the efforts of Perricone as a local business to improve the waste 

discharged which in turn lowers impacts on the wastewater treatment plant. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Perricone’s interim wastewater rate to continue as outlined in the amended agreement 

through December 31, 2023.  The cost to prepare this report and agreement is 

approximately $1,250. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Approve an amendment to the Perricone Juices Pretreatment Facilities 

Agreement, granting an extension to December 31, 2023, including a $3.24/HCF 

rate for July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, and a $3.41/HCF rate for the period 

of July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. 

238

Item 10.



 

Attachments: 

A. Original pretreatment facilities agreement. 

B. Perricone Juices Letter requesting an extension. 

C. MKN Letter with schedule and interim rate request. 

D. Amendment to Perricone Pretreatment Facilities Agreement. 

239

Item 10.



240

Item 10.



241

Item 10.



242

Item 10.



243

Item 10.



244

Item 10.



245

Item 10.



246

Item 10.



247

Item 10.



248

Item 10.



249

Item 10.



250

Item 10.



251

Item 10.



252

Item 10.



253

Item 10.



254

Item 10.



255

Item 10.



256

Item 10.



257

Item 10.



258

Item 10.



259

Item 10.



260

Item 10.



261

Item 10.



262

Item 10.



263

Item 10.



264

Item 10.



265

Item 10.



266

Item 10.



267

Item 10.



268

Item 10.



 

July 8th, 2022 
 

Elizabeth Gibbs 
Interim City Manager 
 City of Beaumont 
550 E. 6th Street  
Beaumont, CA 92223 
 

Subject: Perricone Interim Agreement - Extension  

Dear Ms. Gibbs: 
 

In October 2019, the City of Beaumont (City) City Council approved a Pretreatment Facilities Agreement 
which provided Perricone Farms (Perricone) with an interim waste discharge rate. For the City, this interim 
rate resulted in an additional 20% in revenue over the anticipated revenue documented in the City’s 
Sewer Rate Study (2018). For Perricone, the interim rate provided both rate stabilization and time for an 
investment in effluent treatment, which at the time was estimated to be approximately $2.78 million.  
 
Due to changed conditions over the interim period, Perricone is requesting an extension to the existing 
Pretreatment Facilities Agreement from the current expiration date of December 31, 2022 to December 
31, 2023. A summary of the primary drivers for the request are provided as follows: 

 

• Increased Cost of Compliance. As noted in the Interim Agreement Letter (March 2019, Gannett 
Fleming), provided in the October 2019 City Council packet, the estimated investment was $2.78M. To 
date, Perricone has invested approximately $3.1 million with an additional $0.9 million estimated to 
complete the treatment system. This is a 43% increase over the original estimate. These additional 
costs require time for a business to budget and absorb.  

 

• COVID-19 and Changes in Operation Impact Original Timeline. While Perricone was able to complete 
a significant portion of the treatment system by November 2020, the process of optimizing and 
collecting data required for final completion was delayed. These delays are due to a combination of 
business impacts related to COVID-19, improvements in operations which resulted in changing water 
quality, and onboarding new staff to manage the new onsite treatment operations.  

 

• Extended End Date is Achievable. The original plan outlined a multiple phase approach, including an 
interim step to address immediate concerns, piloting and final implementation of a permanent 
treatment solution. Perricone has successfully completed the interim step and piloting (Biogill), and 
has used the results of those efforts to optimize design on the remaining treatment components. 
Perricone is currently in construction for a water recycling system to reduce effluent and has 
completed preliminary design on the remaining treatment components. This extension will provide 
Perricone the ability to complete these final improvements.    

 
As noted in the original Interim Agreement Letter, the partnership between the City and Perricone 
provides multiple benefits to both parties. Approving the requested extension provides for a continuance 
of these benefits, which include:  
 

1. Lower Operating Costs at WWTP. Installing treatment at Perricone will result in improved effluent 
water quality which will lower operating costs for the City’s wastewater treatment plant. 

2. Support Local Business. A “ramp up” period for Perricone allows for a more reasonable increase 

269

Item 10.



  

Page 2 of 3  

Perricone Interim Rate – Extension 
July 2022 

in business expenses over time allowing for stable and continued operations at the facility. 

3. Exceed Planned Revenue. The requested Interim Rate results in more revenue to the City from 
Perricone than anticipated in the City’s Rate Study. 

4. Continuing a Solid Partnership. Since completion of the interim treatment system, Perricone has 
not been in violation of any local limits, and Perricone staff have developed a strong working 
relationship with City staff.    

5. Improved Quality. Perricone is delivering effluent that exceeds the anticipated interim quality for 
both BOD and TDS. This will continue through the extended interim rate period.  

In support of this extension request, MKN has prepared updates to the summary tables provided in the 
original Interim Rate Letter. Table 1 provides an overview of the updated rate analysis, with the 
requested extension.  

TABLE 1 

RATE ANALYSIS 

Description Units 

Interim Period 

FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 
7/1/23 to 
12/31/23 

PERRICONE WATER QUALITY AND FLOW(a) 

Avg. Perricone Flow(b) gpd 125,000  125,275  109,606  104,902  105,000  105,000  

BOD mg/L 3,450  3,200  2,000  1,245  1,420  1,420  

TSS mg/L 283  363  1,140  720  410  410  

TDS mg/L 4,800  3,667  2,800  1,800  1,200  1,200  

ANNUAL COST BREAKDOWN FOR PERRICONE 

Rate Increase(c)    6% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Flow Cost $/yr $172,995 $183,873 $168,946 $169,687 $178,378 $93,670 

BOD Cost $/yr $591,503 $583,141 $334,876 $209,375 $251,036 $131,823 

TSS Cost $/yr $67,083 $91,457 $263,904 $167,408 $100,212 $52,623 

TDS Cost(d) $/yr $98,172 $72,464 $46,044 $24,908 $13,424 $6,712 

Total Estimated Cost(e) $/yr $929,753 $930,935 $813,770 $571,378 $543,050 $284,828 

REQUESTED INTERIM RATE 

Rate $/hcf $2.64 $2.80 $2.94 $3.09 $3.24 $3.41 

Revenue Generated(f) $/yr $161,029 $116,196 $196,365 $155,232 $166,237 $87,275 

Difference from Potential $/yr $768,724 $814,738 $617,405 $416,146 $376,813 $197,553 
 

Notes: 

a) Water quality for FY 18/19 based on original Table 9 from Interim Rate Letter (March 2019); FY 19/20 based on average quarterly 
sampling from 8/1/19, 11/19/19 and 4/22/20; FY 20/21 based on average quarterly sampling from 11/18/20, 2/19/21 and 4/23/21; 
and FY 21/22 based on average quarterly sampling from 10/7/21 and 12/30/21. FY 22/23 based on most recent sampling and final 
period based on completion of final treatment.  

b) Flow based on monthly billing information; calendar years 2019, 2020 and 2021 used for FY 19/20, 20/21 and 21/22, respectively. 
Flows for FY 22/23 through end of term are based on average flow from January 2022 through June 2022.  

c) Rate increase from original Table 9 from Interim Rate Letter (March 2019) for FY 18/19 through FY 22/23. Increases in future years 
were kept consistent with final three years of rate period.  

d) TDS cost was not included in the 2018 Rate Study or related Proposition 218 public hearing notice. Charges were kept similar to 
original Table 9 which noted $0.12/lb over baseline of 500 mg/L. A factor of 50 percent is applied to the TDS loading due to the 
unique organic component of TDS.  

e) “Total Estimated Cost” based on calculated unit cost for flow, BOD and TSS as shown in Figure 8 (Cost of Service) and Strength 

270

Item 10.



  

Page 3 of 3  

Perricone Interim Rate – Extension 
July 2022 

Allocation Factors (Table 19). These rates are applied to the noted flow and strength for each year.  

f) Revenue based on payment information: 19/20 based on bills dated 1/2019 to 11/2019; 20/21 based on bills dated 2/2020 to 
11/2020; and 21/22 based on bills from 2/2021 to 12/9/2021. Future years based on flow rate multiplied by Perricone effluent.  

 
As noted above, the additional expenses by Perricone during the Interim Period ($4.0M) will continue 
to exceed the reduction in revenue from the City ($3.2M per Table 1). In addition, since the proposed 
interim rate extension includes annual increases consistent with the City’s Rate Study, the revenue 
received during the Interim Period will continue to exceed the revenue originally anticipated to be 
collected by the City from Perricone by approximately 20%.  
 

For the interim period, in accordance with Section 2.4 of the Pretreatment Facilities Agreement, 
Perricone will be charged using the interim rates for actual flow discharged to the City collection 
system. Future flows included in Table 1 are provided as an estimate and may be subject to change 
based on actual system operation.  
 
To reflect the updated implementation schedule, Table 2 is provided.  
 

TABLE 2 
IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 

 

ACTION MILESTONE 

City Council Approval of Extension August 2022 

Complete Sampling and Process Selection January 2022 to March 2022 

30% Design and Design Build Contract Executed April 2022 to July 2022 

Final Design and Permitting August 2022 to December 2022 

Materials Procurement and Construction October 2022 to June 2023 

Startup and Optimization July 2023 to August 2023 

  Sampling Program/ New SIU Discharge Permit September 2023 to December 2023 

End of Interim Rate  December 31, 2023 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us by phone at (714) 213-9758 or by email at 
rgallagher@mknassociates.us. 
 
Sincerely,  
MKN & Associates 
 

Ryan Gallagher, PE  

Principal  

271

Item 10.

mailto:rgallagher@mknassociates.us.


 

 

AMENDMENT TO PRETREATMENT FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO PRETREATMENT FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

(“Amendment”) is made and effective as of the 2nd day of August 2022 by and between the CITY 

OF BEAUMONT (“CITY”), a general law city, and Beaumont Juice, Inc., a California 

Corporation, dba PERRICONE JUICES (the “Owner”) in consideration of the mutual promises 

and purpose contained herein, the parties agree as follow: 
 

RECITALS 
 

 This First Amendment is made with respect to the following facts and purpose that the 

parties agree are true and correct: 

 

A. On October 1st, 2019, the CITY and OWNER entered into that certain agreement 

entitled “PRETREATMENT FACILITIES AGREEMENT” (“Agreement”). 

 

 

AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1.1 Facilities Construction. Owner agrees to construct the improvements and facilities 

described in the letter from Owner’s engineering firm, MKN & Associates, dated July 8, 2022, 

entitled Perricone Interim Agreement Extension in a good and workman-like manner according 

to the Implementation Schedule therein. The estimated cost of the design and construction of the 

Facilities is also identified in the Perricone Interim Agreement Extension Letter. The Owner 

shall provide for the design, engineering, and construction of the Facilities at its sole cost and 

expense as provided hereinafter. 

Section 1.9 Time for Completion. The Owner agrees that this Agreement is for the benefit of 

the City and the Owner and, Therefore, the Owner represents that it shall complete the Facilities 

as provided in the Perricone Juices Request for Extension Letter expiring December 31, 2023 

(“Project Implementation Schedule”). 

Section 2.4 Credit. Owner shall be subject to the sewer rates requested which are to be set at 

$3.24/HCF for the duration of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 and a $3.41/HCF rate for the 

period of July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. 

The recitals to this Amendment are deemed incorporated herein by this reference. All 

other terms of the Agreement not expressly amended by this Amendment shall remain in full 

force and effect.  In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment, this 

Amendment shall control. 

[Signatures on following page] 

272

Item 10.



 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT  

FIRST AMENDMENT 

 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

            Lloyd White, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 

 

PERRICONE JUICES 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

Print Name: _______________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: __________________________    

      Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: ___________________________ 

      John O. Pinkney, City Attorney 

  

273

Item 10.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Kari Mendoza, Administrative Services Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing to Consider the Placement of Delinquent Sewer 

Service Charges on The Property Tax Roll 
  

Background and Analysis:  

Pursuant to City of Beaumont Municipal Code Section 13.08.370 and 13.08.380, 

Resolution 2013-06 and Health and Safety Code section 5470 et seq., the City may 

collect delinquent fees or charges for commercial, single family residential, and 

multifamily residential sewer services on the property tax roll for those premises.   

In accordance with Health and Safety Code (“H&S”) Section 5473, the City has 

prepared a written report which contains a description of each parcel of real property 

with delinquent fees and charges.  This report is on file with the City Clerk and is 

attached as Exhibit A to the proposed resolution authorizing the collection of the 

delinquent fees and charges on the tax rolls.  By approving the proposed resolution, the 

City Council would be authorizing the City to collect delinquent sewer service charges 

and fees on the tax roll in the same manner and at the same time as the general taxes.   

Prior to approving the placement of the delinquent service charges and fees on the tax 

roll, H&S Section 5473 et seq. requires the City Council to conduct a public hearing.  

Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with H&S Section 5473.1, by 

publishing a notice of the hearing in the Press Enterprise on July 18, 2022, and July 25, 

2022.  The notice of public hearing was also mailed to the owner(s) of each parcel for 

which charges will be placed on the tax roll.    

During the public hearing the City Council shall hear and consider all objections or 

protests, if any, to the report and the placement of the charges on the tax roll. If the City 

Council finds that a majority of the parcel owners subject to the charges have submitted 

protests or appeared to protest, the report shall not be adopted and the charges must 

be collected separately from the tax roll.  Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the 

legislative body may adopt, revise, change, reduce or modify any charge or overrule 

274

Item 11.



any or all objections.  The resolution placing the charges on the tax roll must be 

approved by a two-thirds vote of the City Council. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 

Approval of the resolution and collection of delinquent sewer service charges and fees 

on the Riverside County Auditor tax rolls will allow for the cost recovery of 

approximately $776,224.01.   

 

Recommended Action: 

Conduct a public hearing, and 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only, “A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Beaumont, California, Authorizing the Collection of Delinquent 
Sewage Service Fees and Charges on the Property Tax Roll.” 

Attachments: 

A. Resolution – Delinquent Sewer Service Fees 

B. Exhibit A to Resolution, 2022 List of Sewer Fee Delinquencies 

C. Public Notice 

275

Item 11.



Resolution 2022- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEAUMONT, 

CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT 

SEWAGE SERVICE FEES AND CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

 

 Whereas, California Health and Safety Code Section 5473 et. seq. authorizes the 

City to adopt a resolution by two-thirds of the members of the City Council to collect 

delinquent sewer service charges and fees on the tax roll, in the same manner and at the 

same time as the general taxes; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sewer service charge billing policies and procedures and sewer 

service billing cycles are established pursuant to Ordinance No. 648, (Section 13.08.320, 

13.08.340, 13.08.350, and 13.08.360 of the Beaumont Municipal Code); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 13.08.370 and 13.08.380 and Resolution 2013-06, provides 

that the City may collect delinquent sewer services fees and charges on the property tax 

roll.  

 

WHEREAS in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 5473, City staff 

has prepared a written report, attached hereto as Exhibit A and on file with the City 

Clerk, which contains a description of each parcel of real property with delinquent solid 

waste handling fees and charges, and the amount of the delinquent fees and charges for 

each parcel; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 5473.1, the City 

provided notice of a public hearing by publishing a notice in the Press Enterprise 

newspaper on July 18, 2022, and July 25, 2022, and by mailing a copy of the notice to the 

owner(s) of each parcel for which charges will be placed on the tax roll; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on this 

matter on August 2, 2022, wherein it heard and considered all objections or protests, if 

any, to the report and the proposed placement of delinquent solid waste handling services 

charges and fees on the property tax roll. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 2: The City approves the collection of the delinquent sewer service 

charges and fees via the tax roll in the same manner and at the same time as the general 

taxes.  The City Clerk is directed to file with the county auditor a copy of the report 

prepared pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 5473 attached hereto as Exhibit A, 

with a statement endorsed on the report over his or her signature that the report has been 

276

Item 11.



adopted by the City Council and the county auditor shall enter the amounts of the charges 

against the respective lots or parcels of land as they appear on the current assessment roll. 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022 by the following 

vote: 

 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

  

 

      ______________________________ 

      Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

277

Item 11.



APN Balance APN Balance APN Balance
400-030-033 788.76$          400-080-030 406.76$          400-170-001 283.83$          
400-030-041 788.80$          400-080-033 283.83$          400-170-004 788.78$          
400-030-048 309.21$          400-080-036 788.80$          400-171-005 788.78$          
400-030-049 283.83$          400-080-059 788.76$          400-171-018 788.78$          
400-040-003 788.76$          400-080-073 288.03$          400-171-019 556.01$          
400-040-008 283.83$          400-080-080 283.83$          400-171-025 788.79$          
400-040-017 788.78$          400-080-081 752.77$          400-171-027 788.78$          
400-040-022 772.45$          400-090-005 788.77$          400-171-029 788.77$          
400-040-037 788.76$          400-090-009 627.45$          400-171-031 788.78$          
400-040-041 788.77$          400-090-016 283.83$          400-171-033 283.83$          
400-040-043 650.36$          400-100-003 302.31$          400-180-002 392.63$          
400-040-047 627.45$          400-100-014 486.71$          400-190-051 283.83$          
400-040-055 284.92$          400-100-036 788.78$          400-190-056 926.71$          
400-040-060 283.83$          400-110-014 283.83$          400-200-008 655.69$          
400-040-083 598.26$          400-110-015 788.78$          400-210-024 285.67$          
400-040-088 283.83$          400-110-040 788.78$          400-230-001 283.83$          
400-050-021 643.96$          400-110-055 351.16$          400-230-023 283.83$          
400-050-023 283.83$          400-110-073 283.83$          400-280-052 283.83$          
400-050-040 283.83$          400-120-002 788.78$          400-300-049 283.83$          
400-050-046 303.79$          400-120-007 788.78$          400-310-033 788.78$          
400-050-067 748.84$          400-120-019 283.83$          400-310-037 283.83$          
400-050-068 392.63$          400-120-023 720.02$          400-310-047 446.88$          
400-060-006 926.71$          400-120-032 283.83$          400-320-008 512.31$          
400-060-007 788.78$          400-120-035 392.63$          400-330-003 755.17$          
400-060-010 488.81$          400-120-037 315.77$          400-330-005 392.63$          
400-060-015 788.78$          400-120-039 289.23$          400-340-060 412.87$          
400-060-036 285.30$          400-120-065 393.65$          400-360-013 788.78$          
400-060-037 372.97$          400-130-002 283.83$          400-380-045 788.78$          
400-060-055 788.77$          400-130-003 775.00$          400-400-040 504.45$          
400-060-062 515.31$          400-130-023 788.78$          400-421-002 283.83$          
400-060-080 788.80$          400-130-029 788.77$          400-430-014 793.61$          
400-060-083 292.31$          400-130-036 287.63$          400-431-003 788.78$          
400-060-090 283.83$          400-130-059 283.83$          400-431-011 788.76$          
400-070-003 283.83$          400-140-004 283.83$          400-440-009 485.48$          
400-070-007 795.21$          400-140-006 283.83$          400-450-001 581.08$          
400-070-016 283.83$          400-141-003 788.78$          400-450-014 283.83$          
400-070-029 283.83$          400-141-008 283.83$          400-450-016 788.78$          
400-070-031 500.93$          400-142-013 512.31$          400-450-024 788.80$          
400-070-042 788.77$          400-142-014 283.83$          400-461-005 788.78$          
400-070-044 583.46$          400-142-037 392.63$          400-461-016 283.83$          
400-070-059 284.92$          400-142-040 493.64$          400-461-019 512.31$          
400-070-061 990.92$          400-142-044 392.63$          400-462-014 646.32$          
400-070-070 627.97$          400-151-006 678.79$          400-463-004 283.83$          
400-070-072 764.76$          400-151-010 417.07$          400-470-001 788.80$          
400-070-074 283.83$          400-154-001 392.63$          400-471-002 788.78$          
400-070-081 283.83$          400-160-013 392.63$          400-471-003 283.83$          

278

Item 11.



400-070-084 788.82$          400-161-014 788.79$          400-481-015 283.83$          
400-481-025 283.83$          400-590-041 512.31$          402-402-033 392.63$          
400-481-033 283.83$          400-590-050 788.78$          402-412-005 392.63$          
400-482-005 788.76$          400-600-015 1,055.15$       404-022-016 788.78$          
400-482-026 283.83$          400-600-025 788.77$          404-022-021 400.86$          
400-482-029 283.83$          400-600-026 788.75$          404-024-005 788.78$          
400-482-034 788.75$          400-610-006 392.63$          404-030-009 926.71$          
400-490-001 643.96$          400-610-022 643.96$          404-032-007 788.78$          
400-490-004 512.31$          400-610-026 303.83$          404-032-008 788.78$          
400-490-006 788.78$          400-610-027 347.31$          404-032-015 283.83$          
400-490-008 283.83$          400-610-036 788.78$          404-040-004 788.78$          
400-490-015 698.84$          400-620-002 283.83$          404-040-012 283.83$          
400-490-020 788.78$          400-620-015 283.83$          404-040-021 788.78$          
400-491-007 283.83$          400-620-020 384.92$          404-041-012 283.83$          
400-500-008 788.78$          400-620-034 788.78$          404-041-017 788.78$          
400-500-010 788.78$          400-630-002 788.77$          404-041-020 750.12$          
400-501-005 283.83$          400-630-006 402.44$          404-041-022 283.83$          
400-510-008 283.83$          400-630-019 788.78$          404-041-029 643.96$          
400-510-013 295.44$          400-630-031 283.83$          404-041-033 788.78$          
400-510-018 307.93$          400-630-050 283.83$          404-042-014 283.83$          
400-510-025 788.78$          400-630-054 814.99$          404-042-019 435.69$          
400-511-015 283.83$          400-630-063 716.38$          404-042-025 392.63$          
400-511-019 503.88$          400-670-004 561.27$          404-043-007 788.78$          
400-511-021 788.81$          400-681-023 283.83$          404-050-002 283.83$          
400-540-003 664.99$          402-151-023 283.83$          404-051-001 283.83$          
400-541-022 512.31$          402-151-026 522.96$          404-053-013 655.69$          
400-541-026 305.57$          402-320-026 788.79$          404-060-006 788.78$          
400-541-028 381.08$          402-332-009 788.78$          404-060-007 788.78$          
400-542-014 926.71$          402-333-002 788.80$          404-063-006 283.83$          
400-552-008 924.22$          402-333-014 788.78$          404-070-006 359.26$          
400-552-012 283.83$          402-333-016 788.78$          404-071-009 788.78$          
400-553-005 788.78$          402-333-021 788.78$          404-071-017 353.72$          
400-560-007 788.77$          402-333-057 984.62$          404-071-021 392.63$          
400-561-003 926.71$          402-341-001 634.52$          404-071-026 283.83$          
400-561-009 788.78$          402-341-029 392.63$          404-071-029 398.38$          
400-561-011 788.78$          402-342-014 283.83$          404-080-011 283.83$          
400-561-012 1,063.19$       402-343-008 797.00$          404-081-004 396.26$          
400-561-013 788.77$          402-351-010 788.78$          404-081-009 788.78$          
400-561-031 643.96$          402-351-016 283.83$          404-090-005 788.78$          
400-561-049 733.77$          402-352-001 512.31$          404-090-008 283.83$          
400-562-003 788.76$          402-352-006 788.78$          404-090-012 788.78$          
400-562-013 788.78$          402-352-011 788.78$          404-092-011 693.79$          
400-562-017 326.71$          402-381-003 643.96$          404-093-004 596.71$          
400-570-037 283.83$          402-391-009 283.83$          404-093-009 788.78$          
400-580-020 788.78$          402-391-023 528.98$          404-093-042 283.83$          
400-590-005 283.83$          402-393-002 283.83$          404-120-008 368.78$          
400-590-027 788.78$          402-393-007 788.78$          404-120-012 513.44$          

279

Item 11.



400-590-035 392.63$          402-402-021 788.78$          404-120-021 788.78$          
404-121-009 283.83$          408-101-031 402.31$          408-160-060 788.78$          
404-121-013 788.78$          408-101-032 368.47$          408-170-006 788.78$          
404-121-018 283.83$          408-101-050 283.83$          408-170-021 283.83$          
404-150-005 788.78$          408-101-062 283.83$          408-180-008 512.31$          
404-151-007 656.78$          408-101-070 512.31$          408-180-010 301.52$          
404-160-007 283.83$          408-102-012 392.63$          408-180-016 319.29$          
404-160-019 555.84$          408-102-020 788.78$          408-180-023 788.78$          
404-161-001 283.83$          408-102-043 553.45$          408-190-003 323.96$          
404-161-004 656.78$          408-102-052 283.83$          408-190-013 283.83$          
404-161-007 850.06$          408-102-054 788.78$          408-190-040 707.82$          
404-170-007 788.78$          408-102-058 788.78$          408-190-051 788.78$          
404-170-013 643.96$          408-111-007 511.09$          408-190-052 283.83$          
404-180-003 568.78$          408-111-009 788.78$          408-200-012 788.78$          
404-183-002 788.78$          408-111-019 788.78$          408-200-023 926.71$          
404-211-004 788.78$          408-111-020 391.89$          408-201-001 427.90$          
404-211-007 392.63$          408-111-021 402.31$          408-201-012 392.63$          
404-213-001 283.83$          408-111-025 788.78$          408-201-023 633.46$          
404-213-004 512.31$          408-111-029 770.09$          408-201-026 283.83$          
404-213-011 763.65$          408-111-040 450.41$          408-202-012 733.20$          
404-213-016 788.78$          408-111-061 788.78$          408-202-013 788.78$          
404-220-005 368.13$          408-111-071 331.31$          408-210-012 788.78$          
404-220-013 788.78$          408-111-079 788.78$          408-210-017 788.78$          
404-220-017 788.78$          408-112-002 541.28$          408-211-004 788.78$          
404-222-025 788.78$          408-112-006 788.78$          408-211-010 392.63$          
404-223-001 788.78$          408-112-014 788.78$          408-211-021 392.63$          
404-223-005 283.83$          408-112-016 788.78$          408-213-001 443.60$          
404-223-006 283.83$          408-112-022 511.44$          408-213-002 512.31$          
404-223-021 380.43$          408-112-026 283.83$          408-220-005 510.49$          
404-224-004 878.36$          408-112-028 449.28$          408-220-012 595.18$          
404-224-019 788.78$          408-112-032 633.88$          408-220-016 293.72$          
404-225-001 784.19$          408-112-038 341.81$          408-222-003 618.04$          
404-225-006 788.78$          408-112-040 788.78$          408-222-004 643.96$          
404-225-007 407.62$          408-112-053 1,063.20$       408-222-019 283.83$          
404-240-017 788.78$          408-150-001 283.83$          408-222-027 788.78$          
404-250-023 599.14$          408-150-009 283.83$          408-230-031 788.78$          
404-251-002 926.71$          408-150-012 788.78$          408-230-035 655.65$          
404-251-006 788.78$          408-150-018 788.78$          408-230-045 392.63$          
406-241-019 283.83$          408-150-022 392.63$          408-230-047 283.83$          
406-251-010 564.10$          408-150-027 512.31$          408-231-008 788.78$          
406-272-015 283.83$          408-150-043 356.05$          408-231-013 774.01$          
408-010-023 681.35$          408-150-062 788.78$          408-233-002 677.17$          
408-011-010 283.83$          408-160-009 283.83$          408-233-019 292.00$          
408-011-025 283.83$          408-160-025 283.83$          408-233-033 283.83$          
408-011-027 404.05$          408-160-046 512.31$          408-233-040 362.97$          
408-101-009 695.80$          408-160-047 283.83$          408-240-002 283.83$          
408-101-026 392.63$          408-160-051 1,023.93$       408-240-005 689.92$          

280

Item 11.



408-101-028 283.83$          408-160-054 940.26$          408-240-033 491.25$          
408-241-003 542.21$          413-500-015 788.78$          413-582-012 487.18$          
408-242-013 788.78$          413-500-016 805.72$          413-582-021 788.78$          
408-242-014 663.45$          413-501-001 424.04$          413-650-006 283.83$          
408-242-020 643.96$          413-501-011 283.83$          413-651-001 926.71$          
408-242-022 412.32$          413-501-017 283.83$          413-651-013 283.83$          
408-242-029 392.63$          413-510-002 283.83$          413-651-020 610.56$          
408-243-013 1,053.11$       413-510-010 283.83$          413-660-009 788.78$          
408-243-029 283.83$          413-511-003 392.63$          413-660-011 788.78$          
408-250-005 283.83$          413-511-008 283.83$          413-660-019 788.79$          
408-250-025 788.78$          413-511-010 515.93$          413-670-004 788.78$          
408-250-032 788.78$          413-511-015 315.78$          413-681-028 788.78$          
408-251-002 788.78$          413-511-017 498.76$          413-681-030 512.31$          
408-251-006 283.83$          413-511-020 283.83$          413-690-014 788.78$          
408-252-001 788.78$          413-511-039 788.78$          413-690-022 788.78$          
408-252-009 283.83$          413-512-002 788.78$          413-691-012 283.83$          
408-252-025 283.83$          413-512-007 283.83$          413-691-016 926.71$          
408-261-009 1,063.19$       413-520-009 283.83$          413-691-028 283.83$          
408-262-001 392.63$          413-520-010 283.83$          413-692-001 377.68$          
408-262-002 283.83$          413-520-021 612.63$          413-692-002 788.78$          
408-270-017 788.78$          413-520-039 1,063.22$       413-692-003 788.78$          
408-271-014 283.83$          413-520-051 392.63$          413-692-004 283.83$          
408-271-025 410.53$          413-521-013 926.71$          413-700-014 443.65$          
408-271-026 788.78$          413-531-013 283.83$          413-700-018 512.31$          
408-280-022 533.96$          413-532-006 512.31$          413-700-021 788.78$          
408-281-011 283.83$          413-540-006 283.83$          413-700-022 643.96$          
408-282-034 283.83$          413-541-001 382.34$          413-700-024 788.78$          
408-282-041 283.83$          413-541-003 1,030.36$       413-700-028 384.92$          
408-282-049 392.63$          413-541-008 283.83$          413-700-038 283.83$          
408-282-052 392.63$          413-541-011 283.83$          413-710-007 283.83$          
408-291-030 283.83$          413-541-018 506.30$          413-710-018 926.71$          
408-291-048 318.93$          413-550-002 788.78$          413-710-023 674.33$          
408-291-050 382.00$          413-550-003 788.78$          413-710-037 788.78$          
408-291-059 283.83$          413-550-016 283.83$          413-710-039 512.31$          
408-300-004 788.78$          413-550-023 392.63$          413-710-043 788.78$          
408-300-008 283.83$          413-551-010 788.78$          413-710-044 678.76$          
408-301-004 283.83$          413-551-012 283.83$          413-710-048 283.83$          
408-301-007 283.83$          413-551-022 519.09$          413-710-052 392.63$          
408-301-011 750.12$          413-551-024 788.78$          413-710-056 314.48$          
408-302-023 788.78$          413-561-022 512.31$          413-721-002 788.78$          
408-302-034 283.83$          413-570-001 283.83$          413-721-006 284.92$          
408-310-011 788.78$          413-570-006 283.83$          413-722-014 788.78$          
408-390-014 283.83$          413-570-008 291.33$          413-722-019 788.78$          
408-400-063 392.63$          413-571-008 283.83$          413-722-028 894.47$          
408-400-073 392.63$          413-572-002 392.63$          413-722-037 283.83$          
408-410-003 788.78$          413-572-005 491.82$          413-722-045 788.78$          
413-491-011 512.31$          413-572-007 283.83$          413-730-012 567.36$          

281

Item 11.



413-493-004 788.78$          413-582-010 788.79$          413-730-026 643.96$          
413-741-002 788.78$          413-860-001 284.92$          414-195-010 642.37$          
413-750-013 283.83$          413-860-041 654.74$          414-201-003 392.63$          
413-750-015 788.78$          413-872-004 283.83$          414-201-015 788.78$          
413-752-005 788.78$          413-881-006 525.83$          414-202-005 283.83$          
413-760-012 283.83$          413-882-013 374.32$          414-202-008 643.96$          
413-760-018 788.78$          413-891-001 606.62$          414-211-008 788.78$          
413-760-020 788.78$          413-892-005 643.96$          414-211-015 1,064.12$       
413-760-022 745.21$          413-892-006 788.78$          414-212-005 457.40$          
413-760-029 283.83$          413-892-011 283.83$          414-212-006 364.76$          
413-761-001 283.83$          413-892-016 788.78$          414-212-007 392.63$          
413-761-006 283.83$          413-893-004 283.83$          414-212-014 788.78$          
413-761-010 317.76$          414-032-010 788.78$          414-212-015 972.50$          
413-761-011 788.78$          414-033-003 500.35$          414-220-001 788.78$          
413-770-011 788.78$          414-033-004 283.83$          414-220-004 283.83$          
413-771-008 788.78$          414-033-005 788.78$          414-220-006 1,757.51$       
413-771-015 788.78$          414-033-013 788.78$          414-220-025 788.78$          
413-771-021 788.78$          414-034-002 283.83$          414-220-026 788.78$          
413-800-007 283.83$          414-034-014 788.78$          414-231-005 283.83$          
413-801-007 551.71$          414-034-015 788.78$          414-231-006 788.78$          
413-810-002 283.83$          414-042-004 283.83$          414-231-020 283.83$          
413-811-009 283.83$          414-141-004 643.96$          414-231-039 788.78$          
413-811-013 788.78$          414-142-007 373.13$          414-231-041 643.96$          
413-811-023 788.78$          414-142-024 788.78$          414-241-001 788.78$          
413-820-001 926.71$          414-142-026 788.78$          414-241-005 788.78$          
413-820-013 446.42$          414-142-029 283.83$          414-241-019 506.62$          
413-821-001 283.83$          414-143-008 788.78$          414-241-065 518.77$          
413-821-003 569.55$          414-150-007 788.78$          414-252-002 283.83$          
413-821-004 788.78$          414-150-011 788.78$          414-252-003 788.78$          
413-832-007 329.82$          414-150-030 314.81$          414-252-018 356.33$          
413-832-012 283.83$          414-161-001 788.78$          414-252-020 283.83$          
413-832-018 313.06$          414-161-015 643.96$          414-252-043 283.83$          
413-840-001 643.96$          414-161-017 284.31$          414-252-045 391.16$          
413-840-011 392.63$          414-162-008 381.78$          414-261-010 484.92$          
413-840-015 894.45$          414-162-015 643.96$          414-261-038 788.78$          
413-840-017 283.83$          414-163-006 283.83$          414-262-004 788.78$          
413-840-019 283.83$          414-172-004 392.63$          414-262-012 391.92$          
413-840-027 283.83$          414-181-019 512.31$          414-263-004 384.64$          
413-840-028 283.83$          414-181-027 283.83$          414-271-003 347.31$          
413-840-030 294.92$          414-181-035 283.83$          414-272-006 643.96$          
413-841-001 283.83$          414-181-037 788.78$          414-272-025 283.83$          
413-841-006 283.83$          414-183-002 392.63$          414-283-013 487.18$          
413-841-022 283.83$          414-183-006 788.78$          414-283-019 788.78$          
413-841-025 512.31$          414-183-009 788.78$          414-283-036 788.78$          
413-850-011 401.96$          414-192-003 788.78$          414-290-030 788.78$          
413-850-015 862.22$          414-192-008 458.77$          414-290-031 283.83$          
413-850-016 286.22$          414-192-012 788.78$          414-290-041 643.96$          

282

Item 11.



413-850-023 283.83$          414-193-012 296.65$          414-301-008 374.92$          
414-301-025 393.96$          414-390-029 628.85$          415-081-010 788.78$          
414-301-037 334.68$          414-390-035 283.83$          415-092-005 299.09$          
414-301-042 283.83$          414-390-048 555.68$          415-100-006 816.71$          
414-311-001 772.64$          414-390-050 1,181.96$       415-100-031 392.02$          
414-311-008 344.28$          414-400-008 1,011.93$       415-100-032 658.04$          
414-311-009 283.83$          414-400-020 283.83$          415-100-038 788.78$          
414-311-013 788.78$          414-400-039 283.83$          415-100-051 660.51$          
414-320-001 283.83$          414-400-041 788.78$          415-100-064 788.78$          
414-320-009 293.72$          414-400-070 283.83$          415-100-065 926.71$          
414-320-017 283.83$          414-420-064 852.03$          415-100-067 788.78$          
414-320-018 788.78$          414-510-012 788.78$          415-100-081 283.83$          
414-320-028 788.78$          414-510-034 940.26$          415-100-082 579.71$          
414-320-029 788.78$          414-510-037 283.83$          415-111-005 788.78$          
414-320-034 283.83$          414-510-041 318.25$          415-111-009 788.78$          
414-320-035 384.92$          414-520-001 1,244.70$       415-111-012 342.91$          
414-320-036 788.78$          414-520-004 1,233.68$       415-111-018 283.83$          
414-320-039 415.70$          414-520-008 283.83$          415-112-006 788.78$          
414-320-052 334.04$          414-520-060 283.83$          415-121-008 401.96$          
414-320-058 512.31$          414-520-062 585.69$          415-121-011 283.83$          
414-320-060 283.83$          415-031-005 283.83$          415-121-019 283.83$          
414-330-010 643.96$          415-031-024 283.83$          415-121-020 283.83$          
414-330-012 788.78$          415-042-002 788.78$          415-121-024 512.31$          
414-330-017 910.60$          415-042-020 419.10$          415-122-003 391.31$          
414-330-023 716.17$          415-042-028 647.33$          415-122-010 788.78$          
414-330-026 283.83$          415-042-039 788.78$          415-122-014 289.13$          
414-331-007 788.78$          415-042-041 788.78$          415-130-012 283.83$          
414-331-017 788.78$          415-042-042 577.96$          415-130-013 283.83$          
414-340-008 788.78$          415-042-043 283.83$          415-130-029 788.78$          
414-340-018 788.78$          415-043-008 788.78$          415-130-030 637.15$          
414-340-026 302.32$          415-043-009 788.78$          415-130-046 788.78$          
414-341-007 716.76$          415-043-017 788.78$          415-142-023 788.78$          
414-341-018 788.78$          415-043-021 283.83$          415-150-008 512.31$          
414-341-019 494.67$          415-043-023 415.48$          415-150-018 788.78$          
414-350-001 634.63$          415-050-045 392.63$          415-150-047 791.03$          
414-350-003 788.78$          415-050-046 588.25$          415-150-061 283.83$          
414-350-007 284.92$          415-050-047 788.78$          415-161-021 788.78$          
414-350-019 788.78$          415-050-067 283.83$          415-162-001 788.78$          
414-350-020 1,026.18$       415-050-078 297.29$          415-162-038 283.83$          
414-350-021 788.78$          415-061-044 1,063.93$       415-162-045 788.78$          
414-350-028 494.67$          415-070-003 788.78$          415-171-002 788.78$          
414-350-035 788.78$          415-070-008 283.83$          415-171-004 392.63$          
414-350-045 788.78$          415-070-011 283.83$          415-171-013 283.83$          
414-380-022 283.83$          415-070-014 283.83$          415-171-019 364.76$          
414-380-035 1,064.61$       415-070-040 283.83$          415-171-030 788.78$          
414-380-040 283.83$          415-071-007 283.83$          415-172-022 283.83$          
414-380-047 1,093.96$       415-071-008 283.83$          415-172-026 529.88$          

283

Item 11.



414-390-024 283.83$          415-080-009 788.78$          415-180-005 788.78$          
415-180-029 283.83$          415-281-017 788.78$          418-072-051 793.39$          
415-180-032 788.78$          415-281-021 283.83$          418-073-002 546.30$          
415-180-037 788.78$          415-282-002 788.78$          418-073-005 973.82$          
415-180-041 788.78$          415-282-026 788.78$          418-081-013 788.78$          
415-191-003 788.78$          415-291-026 377.09$          418-082-005 283.83$          
415-191-005 590.13$          415-291-032 788.78$          418-082-017 788.78$          
415-191-029 485.90$          415-292-020 1,482.55$       418-083-001 283.83$          
415-191-030 788.78$          415-293-012 392.63$          418-083-006 283.83$          
415-191-031 392.63$          415-301-004 788.78$          418-083-013 319.88$          
415-191-033 283.83$          415-302-024 512.31$          418-084-003 283.83$          
415-192-022 309.45$          415-321-005 304.54$          418-084-007 788.78$          
415-200-001 788.78$          415-321-010 314.78$          418-084-008 297.86$          
415-200-003 442.72$          415-321-018 283.83$          418-084-009 595.88$          
415-200-005 788.78$          415-322-004 544.60$          418-084-018 345.62$          
415-200-010 481.66$          415-332-002 283.83$          418-092-019 788.78$          
415-200-011 788.78$          417-052-001 283.83$          418-093-009 3,041.48$       
415-210-001 502.22$          417-054-002 623.78$          418-102-014 788.78$          
415-210-011 788.78$          417-054-006 1,670.24$       418-102-019 319.93$          
415-210-015 283.83$          417-055-003 283.83$          418-112-006 1,346.97$       
415-210-048 283.83$          417-056-002 5,066.27$       418-112-008 402.32$          
415-221-002 788.78$          417-056-011 578.30$          418-112-009 788.78$          
415-221-022 788.78$          417-062-007 788.78$          418-113-006 406.68$          
415-222-022 1,055.15$       417-063-002 520.00$          418-113-010 788.78$          
415-224-010 788.78$          417-080-004 283.83$          418-121-002 283.83$          
415-224-011 369.95$          417-122-007 788.78$          418-121-004 22,535.09$    
415-224-012 788.78$          417-123-004 1,063.21$       418-200-019 3,818.85$       
415-231-015 788.78$          417-140-011 788.78$          419-211-002 788.78$          
415-231-019 313.13$          417-140-026 788.78$          419-211-010 497.75$          
415-232-006 325.31$          417-140-029 595.18$          419-213-003 535.89$          
415-233-012 788.78$          418-020-006 788.78$          419-213-020 788.78$          
415-233-015 392.63$          418-020-018 1,482.55$       419-213-034 788.78$          
415-233-022 283.83$          418-020-033 6,362.94$       419-213-035 788.78$          
415-233-024 788.78$          418-021-002 318.69$          419-213-039 514.45$          
415-241-003 283.83$          418-031-007 392.63$          419-221-018 788.78$          
415-241-005 584.48$          418-031-008 788.78$          419-222-011 788.78$          
415-242-003 788.78$          418-031-015 418.78$          419-222-012 283.83$          
415-242-007 643.96$          418-031-017 364.76$          419-222-014 364.76$          
415-251-009 283.83$          418-032-002 283.83$          419-222-015 364.76$          
415-251-013 294.62$          418-032-024 788.78$          419-222-018 472.66$          
415-252-006 454.68$          418-043-017 1,482.55$       419-222-023 1,482.55$       
415-252-013 283.83$          418-051-004 283.83$          419-260-096 2,811.40$       
415-253-008 788.78$          418-051-011 555.14$          419-420-021 283.83$          
415-253-014 345.05$          418-052-001 1,814.04$       419-422-004 1,052.22$       
415-262-002 383.96$          418-052-009 377.09$          419-423-005 788.78$          
415-262-004 788.78$          418-052-013 391.61$          419-423-006 788.78$          
415-271-001 897.80$          418-062-007 432.45$          419-431-008 283.83$          

284

Item 11.



415-272-009 283.83$          418-071-001 556.23$          419-431-010 788.78$          
419-432-008 370.82$          419-502-001 788.78$          419-562-005 788.78$          
419-432-010 525.51$          419-512-001 788.78$          419-562-011 283.83$          
419-433-006 568.78$          419-512-017 283.83$          419-562-016 788.78$          
419-440-007 788.78$          419-512-031 784.19$          419-562-018 283.83$          
419-440-010 788.78$          419-521-003 367.22$          419-571-006 788.78$          
419-441-002 533.62$          419-521-008 788.78$          419-572-004 283.83$          
419-441-003 385.29$          419-521-016 788.78$          419-573-004 283.83$          
419-442-019 284.92$          419-522-008 788.78$          419-573-009 788.78$          
419-442-025 392.63$          419-522-014 283.83$          419-574-004 485.78$          
419-442-027 283.83$          419-522-019 283.83$          419-574-010 788.78$          
419-442-044 788.78$          419-522-024 788.78$          419-580-016 283.83$          
419-450-002 510.48$          419-522-030 488.78$          419-580-025 788.78$          
419-452-018 512.31$          419-522-038 643.57$          419-581-006 283.83$          
419-452-031 440.00$          419-532-004 643.96$          419-582-001 788.78$          
419-452-033 788.78$          419-532-006 506.50$          419-582-002 365.27$          
419-453-001 788.78$          419-532-029 788.78$          419-582-004 417.82$          
419-460-002 871.98$          419-533-013 788.78$          419-582-020 788.78$          
419-460-006 283.83$          419-533-027 788.78$          419-582-021 788.78$          
419-460-012 624.31$          419-533-044 283.83$          419-591-015 788.78$          
419-460-024 788.78$          419-534-004 788.78$          419-592-004 788.78$          
419-460-041 926.71$          419-534-008 512.31$          419-592-005 392.63$          
419-460-044 788.78$          419-534-013 283.83$          419-593-009 283.83$          
419-460-052 643.96$          419-540-001 283.83$          419-593-011 621.44$          
419-461-003 283.83$          419-540-015 788.78$          419-600-005 392.63$          
419-461-007 788.78$          419-540-030 283.83$          419-600-009 788.78$          
419-461-009 643.96$          419-541-001 284.83$          419-600-016 788.78$          
419-461-014 283.83$          419-541-004 795.41$          419-600-020 392.63$          
419-470-005 283.83$          419-541-007 788.78$          419-600-022 788.78$          
419-470-014 389.86$          419-541-016 409.86$          419-600-028 283.83$          
419-471-010 391.75$          419-550-012 482.35$          419-601-008 543.00$          
419-472-022 389.89$          419-550-034 788.78$          419-601-024 788.78$          
419-472-024 283.83$          419-551-003 283.83$          419-601-027 485.50$          
419-480-013 354.86$          419-551-014 755.10$          419-611-008 283.83$          
419-480-014 589.12$          419-551-019 412.31$          419-620-001 643.96$          
419-480-017 283.83$          419-551-021 392.63$          419-620-002 788.78$          
419-480-031 283.83$          419-551-037 788.78$          419-620-004 643.96$          
419-480-045 392.62$          419-551-041 462.46$          419-620-005 512.31$          
419-481-002 788.78$          419-552-007 283.83$          419-621-002 643.96$          
419-481-010 283.83$          419-552-018 788.78$          419-621-003 293.63$          
419-483-005 788.78$          419-552-022 283.83$          419-621-004 283.83$          
419-491-007 788.78$          419-560-006 788.78$          419-621-012 283.83$          
419-491-013 1,060.68$       419-561-001 283.83$          419-622-002 788.78$          
419-491-015 359.50$          419-561-002 788.78$          419-622-004 788.78$          
419-495-009 788.78$          419-561-004 788.78$          419-622-006 788.78$          
419-496-007 283.83$          419-561-010 354.51$          419-622-012 1,009.84$       
419-500-006 283.83$          419-561-011 283.83$          419-622-015 283.83$          

285

Item 11.



419-500-016 283.83$          419-561-013 392.63$          419-623-004 995.25$          
419-623-005 283.83$          419-692-036 788.78$          428-041-046 283.83$          
419-623-008 283.83$          419-692-048 283.83$          428-041-048 283.83$          
419-623-016 788.78$          419-692-054 788.78$          428-041-058 283.83$          
419-623-021 589.12$          419-693-010 788.78$          428-041-059 454.68$          
419-623-024 788.78$          419-693-014 283.83$          428-041-067 283.83$          
419-630-001 788.78$          419-693-029 283.83$          428-050-001 788.78$          
419-630-018 433.92$          419-693-030 926.71$          428-050-010 788.78$          
419-630-022 414.84$          419-700-009 283.83$          428-050-014 788.78$          
419-630-023 454.68$          419-701-014 283.83$          428-050-015 446.00$          
419-630-025 788.78$          419-701-016 507.44$          428-050-026 926.71$          
419-630-027 284.92$          419-702-005 788.78$          428-051-003 926.71$          
419-631-010 283.83$          419-710-001 788.78$          428-051-007 305.57$          
419-640-001 788.78$          419-710-004 283.83$          428-051-023 283.83$          
419-640-013 788.78$          419-710-036 788.78$          428-051-031 417.70$          
419-640-027 510.77$          419-711-016 352.17$          428-060-001 788.78$          
419-643-003 788.78$          419-711-017 283.83$          428-060-021 926.71$          
419-643-016 926.71$          419-712-002 341.81$          428-061-018 589.12$          
419-650-020 788.78$          419-712-010 458.77$          428-061-025 643.96$          
419-650-022 512.31$          419-720-017 553.01$          428-061-027 788.78$          
419-650-025 788.78$          419-720-034 283.83$          428-062-004 788.78$          
419-651-007 457.28$          419-721-001 788.78$          428-070-007 283.83$          
419-660-001 788.78$          419-721-019 332.73$          428-070-010 391.16$          
419-660-003 643.96$          419-731-014 1,004.74$       428-071-011 926.71$          
419-660-008 684.71$          419-731-023 392.63$          428-071-030 512.31$          
419-660-011 788.78$          419-732-023 512.31$          428-071-033 392.63$          
419-660-014 788.78$          419-732-027 283.83$          428-072-009 788.78$          
419-660-018 392.63$          419-740-015 788.78$          428-072-011 788.78$          
419-661-034 600.08$          419-740-021 788.78$          428-072-015 788.78$          
419-672-002 283.83$          419-740-034 392.63$          428-072-026 788.78$          
419-672-007 788.78$          419-741-011 788.78$          428-072-030 283.83$          
419-672-009 788.78$          419-741-012 392.63$          428-080-007 788.78$          
419-680-006 283.83$          419-741-024 788.78$          428-080-010 788.78$          
419-680-011 788.78$          419-761-020 283.83$          428-080-021 313.46$          
419-680-012 283.83$          419-761-032 283.83$          428-080-041 788.78$          
419-681-002 788.78$          419-761-038 283.83$          428-080-044 284.92$          
419-681-006 283.83$          419-761-054 284.92$          428-080-045 667.78$          
419-682-003 283.83$          419-761-057 772.63$          428-080-053 643.96$          
419-682-009 788.78$          419-761-070 788.78$          428-091-010 283.83$          
419-682-014 293.73$          419-761-090 283.83$          428-091-022 643.96$          
419-690-019 788.78$          419-761-094 788.78$          428-100-015 284.92$          
419-690-023 926.71$          421-731-040 283.83$          428-101-001 788.78$          
419-690-028 788.78$          428-040-020 788.78$          428-101-005 788.78$          
419-692-007 788.78$          428-040-035 788.78$          428-101-008 788.78$          
419-692-013 684.71$          428-040-036 788.78$          428-101-011 283.83$          
419-692-025 788.78$          428-041-009 283.83$          428-101-024 926.71$          
419-692-030 788.78$          428-041-018 283.83$          428-110-005 788.78$          

286

Item 11.



419-692-031 788.78$          
428-041-038 392.63$          
428-110-009 512.31$          
428-110-017 507.07$          
428-110-019 788.78$          
428-110-020 788.78$          
428-111-002 788.78$          
428-111-005 435.62$          
428-112-012 788.78$          
428-112-014 405.22$          
428-112-016 788.78$          
428-120-023 788.78$          
428-120-045 392.63$          
428-130-051 283.83$          
428-130-069 283.83$          
428-130-070 512.31$          
428-140-029 283.83$          
428-140-050 283.83$          
428-140-081 302.04$          
428-161-013 337.31$          
428-161-033 643.96$          
428-162-004 788.78$          
428-180-029 643.96$          
428-210-056 283.83$          
428-240-011 283.83$          
428-260-026 292.82$          
428-260-027 656.61$          
428-260-045 688.78$          
428-270-027 360.26$          
428-290-024 858.86$          
428-310-001 788.78$          
428-310-020 283.83$          
428-360-017 512.31$          
428-360-039 788.78$          
428-380-034 283.83$          
428-402-002 283.83$          
428-420-007 788.78$          
428-430-029 283.83$          
431-561-006 512.31$          

Total 776,224.01$  

287

Item 11.



CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE COLLECTION OF 

DELINQUENT SEWER SERVICE CHARGES AND FEES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Sections 5471 and 5473, et seq. of the Health and 

Safety Code of the State of California and City of Beaumont Municipal Code Section 13.08.380, 

the City of Beaumont (“City”) will consider whether to collect delinquent charges and fees for 

sewer services on the tax roll, in the same manner as general taxes. 

  

City staff has filed a written report with the City Clerk describing each parcel of real property 

with delinquent sewer charges and fees, and the amount of the charges and fees against that 

parcel. The City’s report is on file and available for public inspection during business hours at 

City Hall located at 550 E 6th St, Beaumont, CA 92223.   

 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that a public hearing has been scheduled for August 2, 2022, in 

the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 550 E 6th St, Beaumont, CA 92223. This meeting 

will be conducted utilizing teleconference communications and will be recorded for live 

streaming as well as open to public attendance subject to social distancing and applicable health 

orders. The City of Beaumont will accept testimony and comments in person, via email, and 

through a phone-in option from all interested persons at which time the City Council will hear 

and consider all evidence, testimony, objections, or protests by all interested persons, property 

owners, voters and taxpayers, to the written report proposing to have delinquent sewer charges 

collected on the tax roll.  At the conclusion of the public hearing the City Council will consider 

whether or not to adopt the report and direct the City Clerk to file said report with the Riverside 

County Auditor and request the auditor place the delinquent sewer charges and fees as described 

in the report on the tax roll. 

 

Any questions regarding this notice, the report filed with the City Clerk, sewer charges, or the 

public hearing may be directed to the Finance Director at (951) 769-8520. 

 

Dated July 18, 2022 

 

 

288

Item 11.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Kari Mendoza, Administrative Services Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing to Consider the Placement of Delinquent Solid Waste 

Handling Service Charges on The Property Tax Roll 
  

Background and Analysis:  

Pursuant to City of Beaumont Municipal Code Section 8.12.240, and Health and Safety 

Code section 5470 et seq., the City may collect delinquent fees or charges for 

commercial, single family residential, and multifamily residential solid waste handling 

services on the property tax roll for those premises.   

In accordance with Health and Safety Code (“H&S”) Section 5473, the City has 

prepared a written report which contains a description of each parcel of real property 

with delinquent fees and charges.  This report is on file with the City Clerk and is 

attached as Exhibit A to the proposed resolution authorizing the collection of the 

delinquent fees and charges on the tax rolls.  By approving the proposed resolution, the 

City Council would be authorizing the City to collect delinquent solid waste handling 

charges and fees on the tax roll in the same manner and at the same time as the 

general taxes.   

Prior to approving the placement of the delinquent service charges and fees on the tax 

roll, H&S Section 5473 et seq. requires the City Council to conduct a public hearing.  

Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with H&S Section 5473.1, by 

publishing a notice of the hearing in the Press Enterprise newspaper on July 22, 2022, 

and July 29, 2022.  The notice of public hearing was also mailed to the owner(s) of each 

parcel for which charges will be placed on the tax roll.    

During the public hearing the City Council shall hear and consider all objections or 

protests, if any, to the report and the placement of the charges on the tax roll. If the City 

Council finds that a majority of the parcel owners subject to the charges have submitted 

protests or appeared to protest, the report shall not be adopted and the charges must 

be collected separately from the tax roll.  Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the 

legislative body may adopt, revise, change, reduce or modify any charge or overrule 

289

Item 12.



any or all objections.  The resolution placing the charges on the tax roll must be 

approved by a two-thirds vote of the City Council. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 

Approval of the resolution and collection of delinquent solid waste handling charges and 

fees on the Riverside County Auditor tax rolls will allow for the cost recovery of 

$278,041.50.  These fees will be collected and remitted to the contractor Waste 

Management in accordance with the City’s franchise agreement.   

 

Recommended Action: 

Conduct a public hearing, and 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only, “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Authorizing the Collection of Delinquent Solid 

Waste Handling Service Charges on the Property Tax Roll.” 

Attachments: 

A. Resolution – Delinquent Sanitation Fees 

B. Exhibit A to Resolution, 2022 List of Sanitation Fee Delinquencies 

C. Public Notice 

290

Item 12.



Resolution 2022- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEAUMONT, 

CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT SOLID 

WASTE HANDLING SERVICE CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

 

 WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 5473 et. seq. authorizes 

the City to adopt a resolution by two-thirds of the members of the City Council to collect 

delinquent solid waste handling rates on the tax roll, in the same manner and at the same 

time as the general taxes; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 8.12.240 of the City of Beaumont Municipal Code provides 

that “The City may collect delinquent fees or charges for commercial, single family 

residential, and multifamily residential solid waste handling services on the property tax 

roll for those premises”; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 5473, City staff 

has prepared a written report, attached hereto as Exhibit A and on file with the City 

Clerk, which contains a description of each parcel of real property with delinquent solid 

waste handling fees and charges, and the amount of the delinquent fees and charges for 

each parcel; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 5473.1, the City 

provided notice of a public hearing by publishing a notice in the Press Enterprise 

newspaper on July 22, 2022, and July 29, 2022, and by mailing a copy of the notice to the 

owner(s) of each parcel for which charges will be placed on the tax roll; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on this 

matter on August 2, 2022, wherein it heard and considered all objections or protests, if 

any, to the report and the proposed placement of delinquent solid waste handling services 

charges and fees on the property tax roll.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved, by the City Council 

of the City of Beaumont, California, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 2: The City approves the collection of the delinquent solid waste 

handling services charges and fees via the tax roll in the same manner and at the same 

time as the general taxes.  The City Clerk is directed to file with the county auditor a 

copy of the report prepared pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 5473 attached 

hereto as Exhibit A, with a statement endorsed on the report over his or her signature that 

the report has been adopted by the City Council and the county auditor shall enter the 

amounts of the charges against the respective lots or parcels of land as they appear on the 

current assessment roll.   

 

291

Item 12.



 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022 by the following 

vote: 

 

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

  

 

      ______________________________ 

      Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

292

Item 12.



Parcel No Total TR

400030033 444.58                

400030041 422.46                

400040017 579.40                

400040037 58.82                  

400040083 201.20                

400050040 444.58                

400050046 430.04                

400050054 371.50                

400060014 338.12                

400060040 59.16                  

400060041 100.86                

400060051 156.00                

400060055 444.58                

400060080 243.78                

400070029 59.16                  

400070042 444.58                

400070044 201.10                

400070059 70.96                  

400070076 53.08                  

400070079 65.06                  

400070084 444.58                

400080036 444.58                

400080069 444.58                

400080080 444.58                

400080081 85.96                  

400090005 444.58                

400100014 444.58                

400100036 429.84                

400110015 602.72                

400110040 195.20                

400120002 348.74                

400120023 416.56                

400120027 444.58                

400120037 431.30                

400120038 65.06                  

400130002 422.46                

400130022 429.84                

400130023 422.46                

400130029 444.58                

400130051 170.26                

400141001 341.36                

400141004 35.40                  

400142013 193.66                

400151006 444.58                

400151007 59.16                  

293

Item 12.



400160013 253.52                

400161014 444.58                

400170002 163.78                

400170004 429.84                

400171005 416.56                

400171006 444.58                

400171025 444.58                

400171027 581.70                

400180033 373.58                

400190001 59.14                  

400190056 422.46                

400190063 59.16                  

400210006 444.58                

400260006 439.80                

400310033 290.84                

400330005 124.22                

400340018 314.76                

400340060 444.58                

400380055 59.16                  

400390019 59.16                  

400421002 59.16                  

400430014 422.46                

400431003 561.62                

400431011 444.58                

400450016 349.28                

400461003 201.10                

400461005 444.58                

400470001 444.58                

400470002 189.46                

400471002 545.30                

400471013 87.40                  

400482035 118.32                

400490001 201.10                

400490006 245.24                

400490015 628.54                

400490020 444.58                

400500003 444.58                

400500011 328.74                

400501001 428.36                

400510013 123.90                

400511019 105.40                

400511021 444.58                

400541015 444.58                

400542014 444.58                

400550002 29.32                  

400552008 341.36                

400561011 444.58                

294

Item 12.



400561012 431.30                

400561013 581.70                

400562003 444.58                

400562013 347.26                

400570028 229.74                

400580010 444.58                

400580047 874.42                

400590005 464.34                

400590041 124.22                

400590050 186.46                

400600015 348.74                

400610005 124.22                

400610020 245.46                

400610036 422.46                

400620006 118.76                

400620034 429.84                

400630032 65.06                  

400630054 124.22                

400630063 159.96                

400681023 83.90                  

404020008 41.96                  

404021005 444.58                

404022013 266.16                

404022016 422.46                

404024005 444.58                

404030009 347.26                

404031002 272.00                

404031010 416.56                

404031016 444.58                

404032007 444.58                

404032016 444.58                

404032018 429.94                

404040004 444.58                

404040018 61.14                  

404040021 444.58                

404041017 333.06                

404041020 429.84                

404041027 59.16                  

404041033 230.60                

404042012 201.10                

404042014 422.46                

404042019 429.84                

404043006 201.10                

404043007 444.58                

404060006 43.90                  

404060007 446.38                

404063002 416.56                

295

Item 12.



404063006 130.12                

404070001 422.46                

404070006 32.08                  

404071009 444.58                

404071010 444.58                

404071021 59.16                  

404071029 89.10                  

404081009 444.58                

404090005 444.58                

404090012 347.26                

404092010 310.16                

404092011 446.38                

404093004 97.52                  

404093009 165.52                

404120008 141.92                

404120021 581.70                

404121013 444.58                

404131011 243.98                

404150005 581.70                

404150008 207.00                

404150022 620.98                

404151007 363.46                

404160007 581.70                

404160019 329.62                

404161004 444.58                

404170007 444.58                

404180003 186.46                

404210019 551.82                

404211004 416.56                

404211007 65.06                  

404212005 130.12                

404213016 444.58                

404220011 444.58                

404220017 422.46                

404222025 444.58                

404223001 444.58                

404224004 444.58                

404225001 429.84                

404225006 444.58                

404240003 339.24                

404240017 340.08                

404250023 201.10                

404251006 444.58                

408101009 134.32                

408101062 124.22                

408101077 385.74                

408102016 195.20                

296

Item 12.



408102020 444.58                

408102035 581.70                

408102037 422.46                

408102043 289.70                

408102046 444.58                

408102054 272.06                

408102058 444.58                

408111009 422.46                

408111046 59.16                  

408112002 429.84                

408112006 257.24                

408112014 124.22                

408112016 446.24                

408112017 82.92                  

408112040 422.46                

408112053 434.04                

408150022 157.00                

408150027 42.04                  

408150062 455.88                

408160039 59.16                  

408160051 402.70                

408160054 537.56                

408170006 581.70                

408170031 47.52                  

408180007 68.48                  

408180009 347.26                

408180010 129.96                

408180023 422.46                

408180050 321.86                

408190040 221.88                

408190067 98.54                  

408200023 347.26                

408202013 444.58                

408211004 444.58                

408211011 422.46                

408221008 125.98                

408222027 59.16                  

408222036 78.00                  

408230023 444.58                

408230031 444.58                

408233019 140.74                

408240004 422.46                

408240033 148.16                

408241003 190.64                

408242001 157.66                

408251003 29.50                  

408252001 444.58                

297

Item 12.



408252017 341.36                

408252019 266.16                

408261009 304.46                

408271026 444.58                

408282047 59.16                  

408282049 65.06                  

408291066 78.00                  

408302023 444.58                

408400063 125.72                

408400073 112.14                

408410003 422.46                

413491011 43.38                  

413500015 444.58                

413500017 101.06                

413511010 59.16                  

413511012 59.16                  

413511039 422.46                

413512001 581.70                

413512007 165.80                

413520021 59.16                  

413520051 50.80                  

413532006 124.22                

413541008 347.26                

413550003 544.84                

413550014 29.50                  

413550016 71.36                  

413551022 347.26                

413551024 444.58                

413561007 65.56                  

413561022 59.16                  

413570008 115.22                

413572002 65.06                  

413572005 415.72                

413582005 427.58                

413582012 59.16                  

413582021 422.46                

413651009 302.82                

413660011 124.22                

413660019 416.56                

413671012 556.82                

413681014 156.00                

413681030 177.60                

413681031 444.58                

413681034 113.28                

413690012 78.00                  

413690014 422.46                

413690022 444.58                

298

Item 12.



413691016 628.46                

413692002 444.58                

413692003 444.58                

413692004 36.14                  

413692006 444.58                

413700015 141.76                

413700022 276.46                

413700038 65.22                  

413700052 444.58                

413710023 143.76                

413710037 444.58                

413710043 124.54                

413710051 65.06                  

413710052 124.22                

413710054 338.12                

413721002 351.68                

413722014 444.58                

413722019 444.58                

413730027 581.70                

413741002 444.58                

413741011 118.32                

413750015 141.64                

413751003 338.12                

413760010 349.28                

413760019 83.90                  

413760020 444.58                

413761002 444.58                

413761011 261.10                

413761013 79.20                  

413761019 581.70                

413770011 444.58                

413771008 581.70                

413800014 26.28                  

413801007 59.16                  

413811009 444.58                

413811023 385.16                

413820001 429.84                

413820013 59.16                  

413821004 341.36                

413832007 416.56                

413832021 581.70                

413840001 429.84                

413840003 444.58                

413840011 124.22                

413850003 201.10                

413850011 204.52                

413860041 269.04                

299

Item 12.



413871006 444.58                

413881006 435.42                

413881012 352.22                

413882013 233.74                

413891003 352.96                

413892005 468.96                

413892016 549.36                

414033005 444.58                

414033013 444.58                

414034014 384.10                

414034015 118.32                

414034020 118.32                

414042004 230.68                

414052008 134.58                

414142026 581.70                

414142038 2,162.98             

414150007 431.30                

414161015 371.36                

414163005 422.46                

414172028 130.12                

414181019 140.32                

414181035 53.70                  

414181037 416.44                

414182017 272.06                

414183006 444.58                

414183009 161.90                

414191005 338.12                

414192003 347.26                

414192012 422.46                

414201003 65.06                  

414202012 59.16                  

414211015 435.74                

414212014 444.58                

414220006 671.22                

414220025 554.06                

414220026 422.46                

414220037 284.12                

414220046 65.06                  

414231006 444.58                

414231020 416.56                

414231039 79.86                  

414231041 201.10                

414241001 431.30                

414241005 400.32                

414241043 444.58                

414241065 106.70                

414252003 431.30                

300

Item 12.



414252026 30.10                  

414252033 393.20                

414261038 581.70                

414263004 58.82                  

414271003 59.16                  

414272011 416.56                

414272019 444.58                

414282007 422.46                

414283013 124.22                

414283019 581.70                

414283021 201.10                

414283029 416.56                

414283036 444.58                

414283037 30.34                  

414290030 444.58                

414290041 201.10                

414301008 148.16                

414301025 457.86                

414311001 266.16                

414311013 444.58                

414320018 444.58                

414320028 564.28                

414320029 431.30                

414320035 28.20                  

414320036 444.58                

414320052 70.96                  

414330004 431.30                

414330010 341.36                

414330012 444.58                

414330023 299.88                

414331007 431.30                

414331017 537.56                

414331018 431.30                

414340018 444.58                

414340035 35.40                  

414341002 124.22                

414341007 266.16                

414341018 444.58                

414350003 308.64                

414350004 429.84                

414350011 59.16                  

414350021 444.58                

414350035 543.46                

414350045 444.58                

414350052 156.14                

414380035 124.22                

414380040 195.20                

301

Item 12.



414380047 59.16                  

414390029 118.32                

414390045 429.94                

414400039 124.22                

414400041 444.58                

414400081 52.58                  

414440077 25.10                  

414510034 124.22                

414520062 73.48                  

415042002 444.58                

415042028 326.58                

415042041 444.58                

415042042 30.10                  

415043008 444.58                

415043009 444.58                

415043017 584.06                

415050047 444.58                

415061044 423.64                

415070003 782.12                

415070014 59.16                  

415071002 113.28                

415071007 321.86                

415080009 543.98                

415081010 124.22                

415091006 351.60                

415092004 161.90                

415092006 444.58                

415100006 89.00                  

415100013 98.06                  

415100031 78.00                  

415100032 295.60                

415100051 195.20                

415100064 444.58                

415100067 444.58                

415111001 133.68                

415111009 581.70                

415112006 543.46                

415112017 65.06                  

415121005 65.06                  

415122010 434.26                

415130029 423.34                

415130030 129.12                

415130046 545.30                

415142010 59.16                  

415142012 444.58                

415150018 545.30                

415161021 581.70                

302

Item 12.



415162001 722.00                

415162009 150.78                

415162017 195.20                

415162045 59.16                  

415171002 478.88                

415171004 78.00                  

415180005 29.50                  

415180010 75.00                  

415180032 444.58                

415180037 423.56                

415191003 581.70                

415191005 444.58                

415191029 431.04                

415191030 201.10                

415191031 422.46                

415200001 326.58                

415200003 581.70                

415200011 444.58                

415210008 444.58                

415210011 444.58                

415210032 186.46                

415210036 118.32                

415221002 444.58                

415221022 444.58                

415222022 191.94                

415224010 195.20                

415224011 59.16                  

415224012 251.68                

415231013 30.08                  

415231015 444.58                

415233012 124.22                

415241003 59.16                  

415241005 679.52                

415241008 580.28                

415242003 1,902.90             

415242007 195.20                

415253008 99.52                  

415261001 975.48                

415262002 59.56                  

415262015 118.32                

415271004 1,308.48             

415271010 491.78                

415281019 147.96                

415282026 444.58                

415292020 444.58                

415303001 31.00                  

415303014 156.00                

303

Item 12.



415312024 579.40                

415313028 452.70                

415331013 156.00                

417030005 676.44                

417046007 889.18                

417054002 431.30                

417054006 422.46                

417055002 889.18                

417056011 685.56                

417062007 444.58                

417066002 679.52                

417080028 29.50                  

417093008 341.34                

417100044 29.50                  

417122007 444.58                

417122008 444.58                

417130006 112.26                

417140011 579.40                

417140026 444.58                

418020002 78.00                  

418020006 431.30                

418020024 30.26                  

418020025 416.56                

418020038 243.16                

418021002 274.32                

418031008 422.46                

418032013 1,084.28             

418032024 444.00                

418042008 422.46                

418043017 645.68                

418051011 581.70                

418052007 30.26                  

418053011 444.58                

418072005 45.66                  

418073005 83.06                  

418073013 444.58                

418073014 24.36                  

418073017 59.16                  

418082017 161.80                

418084003 59.16                  

418084007 422.46                

418084008 1,536.42             

418084014 444.58                

418084018 122.38                

418091002 422.46                

418091016 124.06                

418092019 444.58                

304

Item 12.



418093005 138.80                

418101005 3,741.66             

418102007 59.00                  

418102014 444.58                

418102019 161.74                

418112006 444.58                

418112008 208.58                

418112016 1,523.80             

418121004 25,526.16           

418123006 444.58                

418130041 219.20                

418260017 118.32                

418320009 247.48                

419150021 163.78                

419202009 59.16                  

419202011 422.46                

419211002 444.58                

419211010 236.58                

419213003 444.58                

419213008 444.58                

419213013 416.56                

419213020 422.46                

419213034 545.30                

419213035 558.74                

419221018 444.58                

419222006 444.58                

419222010 118.32                

419222011 444.58                

419222014 78.30                  

419232013 422.46                

419232020 429.84                

419420010 127.78                

419422004 155.48                

419423006 238.36                

419431010 213.06                

419432010 59.16                  

419440010 124.22                

419441005 444.58                

419441011 444.58                

419442019 94.56                  

419442044 444.58                

419450002 418.04                

419452007 431.30                

419452033 444.58                

419460006 444.58                

419460012 444.58                

419460024 124.22                

305

Item 12.



419460032 280.26                

419460044 444.58                

419461009 149.58                

419471011 118.32                

419472004 444.58                

419472011 229.26                

419472012 59.16                  

419480014 118.60                

419491007 248.46                

419491013 444.58                

419500012 65.06                  

419502001 444.58                

419512001 201.10                

419521008 422.46                

419522008 444.58                

419522030 429.84                

419522038 311.84                

419533013 444.58                

419533017 444.58                

419534004 581.70                

419534010 59.16                  

419540015 422.46                

419541007 431.30                

419550015 310.78                

419550050 444.58                

419551014 416.56                

419551041 226.22                

419552007 444.58                

419552018 444.58                

419561002 722.00                

419561006 156.00                

419562016 422.06                

419563015 118.32                

419571003 435.74                

419571013 266.16                

419573009 444.58                

419574010 223.62                

419574013 444.58                

419580025 422.46                

419582001 431.30                

419582004 444.58                

419582005 59.16                  

419582020 444.58                

419591006 124.22                

419591013 444.58                

419591015 444.58                

419592004 416.56                

306

Item 12.



419592005 272.06                

419600009 444.58                

419600022 347.26                

419601027 444.58                

419601036 118.32                

419601041 357.58                

419602005 341.36                

419620001 444.58                

419620002 431.30                

419622002 444.58                

419622004 444.58                

419622006 581.70                

419622012 182.90                

419623004 431.30                

419623013 444.58                

419623016 195.20                

419630001 424.82                

419630010 267.58                

419630022 429.84                

419631011 444.58                

419640013 422.46                

419643003 444.58                

419643016 348.74                

419650022 183.58                

419650024 416.56                

419651007 296.44                

419660001 444.58                

419660002 429.84                

419660008 159.96                

419660014 444.58                

419661001 444.58                

419661002 241.90                

419661012 444.58                

419661018 207.00                

419680006 59.16                  

419680011 59.16                  

419682003 59.16                  

419682009 444.58                

419683001 444.58                

419683009 86.18                  

419690019 431.30                

419690023 59.16                  

419690028 171.70                

419692007 444.58                

419692009 46.54                  

419692030 444.58                

419692054 452.80                

307

Item 12.



419692057 59.16                  

419693010 429.84                

419693017 118.00                

419693030 347.26                

419701004 59.16                  

419701013 59.16                  

419702005 444.58                

419721001 444.58                

419721019 47.52                  

419730017 124.22                

419732020 59.16                  

419740015 321.86                

419740021 429.84                

419741011 431.30                

419741024 348.74                

419761015 65.06                  

419761054 124.40                

419761057 124.22                

419761070 429.84                

419761090 239.56                

428040035 444.58                

428040036 444.58                

428041059 131.62                

428041064 266.16                

428050001 59.16                  

428050010 444.58                

428050014 616.54                

428050026 59.16                  

428051003 78.00                  

428051023 235.40                

428051030 65.06                  

428060001 78.00                  

428060021 444.58                

428060024 422.46                

428061027 554.56                

428062004 444.58                

428070010 137.02                

428071001 65.06                  

428071011 59.16                  

428071030 70.78                  

428072003 78.00                  

428072009 543.46                

428072015 416.56                

428072026 113.72                

428080007 444.58                

428080010 444.58                

428080041 422.46                

308

Item 12.



428080045 408.46                

428080053 201.10                

428091016 444.58                

428101001 444.58                

428101005 171.42                

428101008 608.44                

428101024 546.02                

428110019 444.58                

428111002 444.58                

428112012 444.58                

428120045 106.48                

428140066 444.58                

428140083 422.46                

428161042 195.30                

428162015 580.28                

428200005 59.16                  

428250024 211.26                

428260045 202.48                

428290054 444.58                

428350034 177.72                

278,041.50        

309

Item 12.



CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE COLLECTION OF 

DELINQUENT SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE CHARGES AND FEES ON THE 

PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Sections 5471 and 5473, et seq. of the Health and 

Safety Code of the State of California and City of Beaumont Municipal Code Section 8.12.240, 

the City of Beaumont (“City”) will consider whether to collect delinquent charges and fees for 

solid waste collection services on the tax roll, in the same manner as general taxes. 

  

City staff has filed a written report with the City Clerk describing each parcel of real property 

with delinquent solid waste collection charges and fees, and the amount of the charges and fees 

against that parcel. The City’s report is on file and available for public inspection during business 

hours at City Hall located at 550 E 6th St, Beaumont, CA 92223.   

 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that a public hearing has been scheduled for August 2, 2022, in 

the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 550 E 6th St, Beaumont, CA 92223. This meeting 

will be conducted utilizing teleconference communications and will be recorded for live 

streaming as well as open to public attendance subject to social distancing and applicable health 

orders. The City of Beaumont will accept testimony and comments in person, via email, and 

through a phone-in option from all interested persons at which time the City Council will hear 

and consider all evidence, testimony, objections, or protests by all interested persons, property 

owners, voters and taxpayers, to the written report proposing to have delinquent solid waste 

charges collected on the tax roll.  At the conclusion of the public hearing the City Council will 

consider whether or not to adopt the report and direct the City Clerk to file said report with the 

Riverside County Auditor and request the auditor place the delinquent solid waste charges and 

fees as described in the report on the tax roll. 

 

Any questions regarding this notice, the report filed with the City Clerk, solid waste collection 

charges, or the public hearing may be directed to the Finance Director at (951) 769-8520. 

 

Dated July 19, 2022 

 

 

310

Item 12.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Elizabeth Gibbs, City Manager 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Update from Mayor Pro Tem Martinez on Delivering the Letter 

Regarding “Failure to Represent the Residents of Beaumont” to the 

County of Riverside Board of Supervisors 
  

Background and Analysis:  

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez will provide an update on delivering the letter regarding 

“Failure to Represent the Resident of Beaumont” to the County of Riverside Board of 

Supervisors. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Receive and file. 

Attachments: 

A. Letter 

311

Item 13.



312

Item 13.



313

Item 13.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Kari Mendoza, Administrative Services Director  

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Authorize Employment Contract with City Manager 
  

Background and Analysis:  

At a special City Council meeting on Monday April 11, 2022, Elizabeth Gibbs was 

appointed as Interim City Manager.  At the July 19, 2022, regular City Council meeting 

City Council voted to appoint Elizabeth Gibbs to the position of City Manager and 

authorized the City Attorney to negotiate the terms of the attached employment 

agreement.  The attached contract has a three-year term, benefits identical to the 

interim contract terms with the addition of a severance clause.     

 

Elizabeth has served the citizens of Beaumont from 1996 to 2022 in various roles 

including Interim City Manager in 2015 and lastly Community Services Director.  She 

holds a Bachelor of Arts and Masters degree from California Baptist University.  The 

City Attorney drafted the employment agreement and Council negotiated the terms and 

conditions of employment.   

Fiscal Impact: 

The contract provides for an annual fully loaded fiscal impact of $357,420.  City staff 

estimates the cost to prepare this report was $975.    

 

Recommended Action: 

Approve the employment agreement with Elizabeth Gibbs and authorize the 

Mayor to sign the agreement.   

Attachments: 

A. Employment Agreement  

B. Job Description 

C. Municipal Code Powers and Duties  

314

Item 14.



1 

CITY MANAGER  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 This CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Agreement”) is entered into and made effective the 19th day of July, 2022  (“Effective Date”), by 

and between CITY OF BEAUMONT (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and ELIZABETH 

GIBBS, an individual (hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE”). For purposes of this Agreement, 

CITY and EMPLOYEE may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a 

“Party.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

Based on EMPLOYEE’s executive and administrative qualifications and ability, the 

City Council of CITY (“COUNCIL”) desires to appoint EMPLOYEE to serve as the City 

Manager for CITY; and 

 

EMPLOYEE desires to perform and assume the responsibilities and duties as the City 

Manager for CITY; and 

 

In consideration of these recitals and performance of the mutual promises, conditions and 

covenants contained herein, the CITY and EMPLOYEE agree as follows: 

 

1. POSITION, DUTIES AND TERM. 

 

1.1 Position, Duties & Term. EMPLOYEE accepts employment with CITY as its City 

Manager and shall perform all City Manager functions, duties and services as established under 

California law and as set forth in the City of Beaumont Municipal Code (“Municipal Code”) as 

may be amended from time to time.  This Agreement is for a three (3) year term from the Effective 

Date and is subject to the “At-Will” provision in Section 1.2 and termination provision in Section 6. 

Section 2.12.060 of the Municipal Code sets forth the Powers and Duties of the Beaumont City 

Manager (Powers & Duties). A copy Section 2.12.060 of the Municipal Code is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”.   

 

As City Manager, EMPLOYEE shall function as the Chief Executive Officer of the CITY 

and shall be responsible to the CITY and its COUNCIL for the proper, lawful and ethical 

administration of all affairs of the CITY.  In the role of the City Manager, EMPLOYEE shall also 

serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL as the Director of any sub-entities/agencies of the City of 

Beaumont.  

 

1.2  Employment with CITY “At-Will”. 

 

(a) EMPLOYEE’s employment status with CITY shall be at-will and 

EMPLOYEE shall serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL. EMPLOYEE acknowledges, 

understands and agrees that EMPLOYEE may not avail herself of any procedures, provisions or 

protections set forth under CITY’s Employment Policies, as defined herein, in so far as such 

procedures, provisions or protections limit, restrict, modify, prohibit or regulate EMPLOYEE’s 

315

Item 14.



2 

status as an “at-will” employee of CITY or the ability of the COUNCIL to terminate 

EMPLOYEE’s employment at any time for cause or for convenience and without cause. For 

purposes of this Agreement, the capitalized term “Employment Policies” means and refers to any 

ordinance, resolution, regulation, rule, memorandum of understanding, or other written policy of 

CITY as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time-to-time, and any written 

employment manual of CITY which governs, regulates or otherwise relates to employment with 

CITY. CITY’s Employment Policies shall not apply to EMPLOYEE in so far as such Employment 

Policies limit, restrict, modify or regulate (or may be interpreted to limit, restrict, modify or 

regulate) EMPLOYEE’s status as an “at-will” employee of CITY. 

 

(b) EMPLOYEE shall not be entitled to any pre-termination notice or hearing 

or other similar proceeding or appeal proceeding as a precondition to any decision or action by the 

CITY to terminate EMPLOYEE’s employment whether for cause or for convenience and without 

cause. 

 

(c) Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon EMPLOYEE any right to 

any property interest in continued employment with CITY. 

 

 1.3 Work Hours. The position of City Manager is an exempt position under state and 

federal wage and hour laws. EMPLOYEE’s compensation (whether salary or benefits or other 

allowances) is not based on hours worked and EMPLOYEE shall not be entitled to any 

compensation for overtime. EMPLOYEE is expected to engage in those hours of work that are 

necessary to fulfill the obligations of the City Manager’s position. The City Manager does not have 

set hours of work as the City Manager is expected to dedicate herself on a full-time basis to serving 

as City Manager and to be available at all reasonable and relevant times. 

 

 1.4 Non-CITY Activities. In accordance with Government Code Section 1126, during 

the period of EMPLOYEE’S employment, EMPLOYEE shall not accept, without the express 

prior written approval of three or more members of the COUNCIL, any other employment or 

engage, directly or indirectly, in any other business, commercial, or professional activity, whether 

or not to pecuniary advantage, that is or may be competitive with her duties as City Manager or 

that may be competitive with CITY, that might cause a conflict-of-interest with CITY, or that 

otherwise might interfere with the business or operation of CITY or the satisfactory performance 

of EMPLOYEE’s duties as City Manager. 

 

2. COMPENSATION BENEFITS AND REIMBURSEMENT. 
 

2.1 Base Salary. Commencing on the date EMPLOYEE commenced full time work 

with the CITY, EMPLOYEE’s gross annual salary shall be $230,006.40 (hereinafter, the “Base 

Salary”) to be paid monthly or bi-weekly installments at the same time and in the same manner as 

other management employees of CITY. EMPLOYEE’s salary shall be subject to customary 

withholding for taxes and other required deductions.  In recognition of EMPLOYEE 

accomplishing goals and objectives identified by the COUNCIL, the COUNCIL may, in its 

discretion, grant EMPLOYEE merit increases in her salary and/or benefits.   

 

316

Item 14.



3 

2.2 Performance Evaluation. Immediately following the commencement of 

EMPLOYEE'S employment with CITY, COUNCIL and EMPLOYEE shall discuss the 

COUNCIL'S goals and objectives for the year. Thereafter, as needed and on the annual anniversary 

of the commencement of EMPLOYEE'S employment with CITY, COUNCIL and EMPLOYEE 

shall define the goals and objectives that they determine are appropriate for the proper operation 

of the CITY. Concurrently with the annual establishment of the goals and objectives for the CITY, 

the COUNCIL and EMPLOYEE shall establish the performance goals for EMPLOYEE and any 

specific criteria that shall be used to evaluate EMPLOYEE'S performance. The COUNCIL may in 

its discretion amend said criteria from time to time, after consultation with EMPLOYEE.  The 

failure of CITY to undertake performance evaluations shall not limit CITY’s ability to terminate 

EMPLOYEE and this Agreement pursuant to Section 6 (Termination). 

 

2.3 Reimbursement. CITY shall reimburse EMPLOYEE for reasonable and necessary 

travel, subsistence and other business expenses incurred by EMPLOYEE in the performance of 

EMPLOYEE’S official duties. All reimbursements shall be subject to and in accordance with any 

limitations or restrictions set forth under the laws of the State of California or any CITY-adopted 

reimbursement policies. 

 

2.4 Vehicle Allowance. In lieu of expense reimbursement for mileage, EMPLOYEE 

shall receive a vehicle allowance of $350.00 per month.  EMPLOYEE shall be responsible for 

payment of automobile and liability insurance, maintenance, repair, replacement costs, all taxes 

applicable to the vehicle allowance and shall be solely responsible for all expenses associated with 

her vehicle.  EMPLOYEE shall be responsible for maintaining necessary records as may be 

required by Federal and/or State taxing authorities.  

 

2.5 Cell Phone and Computer. CITY shall provide EMPLOYEE with a monthly cell 

phone allowance of $100 and a desktop computer for official use in connection with CITY 

business. 

 

2.6  Benefits. In addition to Base Salary, CITY shall also provide EMPLOYEE with the 

following benefits: 

 

(a) Cafeteria Plan.  CITY shall contribute up to One-Thousand Six Hundred 

Seventy Five Dollars ($1,675) per month to EMPLOYEE for the cafeteria benefit plan detailed in 

this section.   

 

(i) Said contribution shall be used to provide for health insurance for 

EMPLOYEE.  EMPLOYEE shall be covered by health insurance with a CITY approved health 

plan unless EMPLOYEE provides proof to CITY that EMPLOYEE is covered by another 

acceptable health plan as determined by CITY’s Human Resource Department.  

 

(ii) The balance of the cafeteria plan contribution may be used for any 

of the following or any combination thereof: 

    (1) Health Insurance for EMPLOYEE’s spouse and/or 

dependents; 

317

Item 14.



4 

    (2) Dental Insurance for EMPLOYEE’s, spouse and/or 

dependents; 

     (3) Eye care plan for EMPLOYEE, spouse and/or dependents; 

 

    (4) Supplemental Insurance Options. 

 

(iii) There is no cash-back of the remaining contributions amount, if any, 

to EMPLOYEE after payment of the selected premiums(s).  EMPLOYEE shall be responsible for 

the remaining payments(s) through payroll deduction, of any premiums selected which are in 

excess of the monthly contribution amount.  

 

(b) Life and Short Term Disability Insurance. CITY agrees that during the term 

of employment, it will pay the annual premiums for a term life insurance policy in the amount of 

$50,000.00.  If available, additional coverage may be purchased at EMPLOYEE’s expense and 

costs.  EMPLOYEE shall nominate the beneficiary under such term life insurance policy.  Thirty 

days after commencement of EMPLOYEE’s full time employment, CITY shall provide 

EMPLOYEE with short term disability insurance coverage consistent with policy terms provided 

to other non-sworn management level CITY employees.  

 

2.8 Jury Duty. EMPLOYEE will receive Base Salary and benefits while responding to 

a jury summons or serving on a jury.  Any compensation for such jury duty (except travel pay) 

shall be remitted to CITY.  
 

2.9. Administrative/Personal Leave.  EMPLOYEE shall be allocated a maximum of 

forty (40) hours of administrative/personal leave on July 1st of each CITY fiscal year. The 

maximum amount of administrative/personal leave that EMPLOYEE may accrue at any given time 

may not exceed eighty (80) hours total.  Accrued but unused administrative/personal leave may 

not be sold back to CITY. 
 

3. ILLNESS OR INJURY; DISABILITY AND DEATH. 

 

3.1 Cessation of Work Due to Injury or Disability. In addition to any right of 

termination set forth under Sections 1.3 (Employment With CITY “At-Will”) and Section 6 

(“Termination”), CITY also reserves the right to terminate EMPLOYEE’s employment along 

with this Agreement if EMPLOYEE ceases to work as a result of injury or disability which results 

in EMPLOYEE being unable to perform the essential duties of the City Manager position, with 

or without accommodation, for a period of six (6) consecutive months or more, as documented 

by a healthcare provider. The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY may terminate EMPLOYEE if the 

disability poses a direct threat to CITY, EMPLOYEE or any other employees working for CITY 

and any reasonable accommodation attempted by CITY would not mitigate or eliminate such a 

threat. CITY will not provide a severance payment if EMPLOYEE is terminated under this Section 

of this Agreement. 

 

3.2  Compensation for Work-Related Illness or Injury. In the event EMPLOYEE 

suffers a physical or mental illness or disability arising out of the course of employment, 

EMPLOYEE’s exclusive remedy or remedies against CITY for such illness, injury or disability 

shall be those legally required under the workers’ compensation laws of the State of California. 

318

Item 14.



5 

 

3.3  Medical Examination. EMPLOYEE agrees to submit to a medical and/or 

psychological examination by a qualified physician or psychiatrist selected by CITY, in the event 

a decision must be made under Sections 3.1 through 3.2. CITY and EMPLOYEE shall receive a 

copy of all medical reports related to the examination. 

 

3.4  Death of EMPLOYEE. This Agreement along with EMPLOYEE’s employment 

shall terminate automatically upon EMPLOYEE’s death. 

 

3.5  Compensation Upon Termination. Except as otherwise provided under this 

Agreement, if EMPLOYEE’s employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 3 (Illness or 

Injury; Disability and Death), CITY shall pay EMPLOYEE all Base Salary, benefits, and 

compensation due and owing EMPLOYEE through the last day actually worked. If termination is 

caused by EMPLOYEE’s death, CITY shall provide the compensation and benefits otherwise due 

EMPLOYEE to EMPLOYEE’s executor, administrator, heirs, personal representatives, 

successors, and assigns. CITY will not provide for severance pay if EMPLOYEE is terminated 

under the provisions of Section 3.1 through 3.5, above. 

 

4.  HOLIDAYS, VACATION AND SICK LEAVE. 

 

 4.1  Holidays. EMPLOYEE shall receive paid holidays in accordance with CITY’s 

current practices as such practices may be amended or modified from time to time by CITY by 

action of the COUNCIL. Paid holidays will be those approved by CITY by action of the 

COUNCIL. Unused holiday leave time shall be accumulated and paid to EMPLOYEE in the last 

pay check in June of each fiscal year. 

 

4.2  Vacation.  EMPLOYEE shall accrue twenty-five (25) days of vacation per year.  

EMPLOYEE shall be credited with ten (10) days of vacation upon commencing full time 

employment with CITY.  EMPLOYEE may convert a maximum of eighty (80) hours of accrued 

vacation time to cash during each year this Agreement is in effect. 

 

4.3  Sick Leave.  

 

(a) Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of 3.69 hours per bi-weekly pay period. 

    

(b)  CITY and EMPLOYEE agree to an accumulation cap consistent with other 

non-sworn management employees’ accumulation cap.   

 

(c) CITY agrees to a service credit of unused sick leave for PERS retirement 

when EMPLOYEE retires from CITY employment or a lump sum payment of the value of the 

unused sick leave, as requested by EMPLOYEE and permitted by law.   

 

(d) EMPLOYEE may use accrued paid sick leave for the purposes set forth in 

Labor Code section 246.5(a). 

 

319

Item 14.



6 

(e) Accrued paid sick leave shall carry over to the following year, but no 

additional paid sick pay will accrue until EMPLOYEE’s accrued paid sick leave falls below the 

accumulation cap. 

 

(f) CITY will provide EMPLOYEE with written notice of the amount of paid 

sick leave available.  The notice will be provided on the designated pay date with EMPLOYEE’s 

payment of wages.  Sick leave pay will be paid at EMPLOYEE’s hourly rate of pay when sick 

leave is taken.  Sick leave pay will be paid by the payday for the next regular payroll period after 

the sick leave is taken. 

 

5. RETIREMENT. 

 

5.1 Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). CITY shall provide EMPLOYEE 

with retirement benefits through the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). 

Such benefits are subject to applicable law and regulations, including but not limited to the Public 

Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL), the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 

2013, and CalPERS rules. For the purpose of CalPERS retirement benefits, EMPLOYEE shall be 

a “classic member” under PEPRA.  CITY shall pay the CITY’s share of CalPERS contribution 

and EMPLOYEE shall pay her share for participation in CalPERS.   

 

 
6. TERMINATION. 

 

6.1 Termination by CITY for Convenience and Without Cause. EMPLOYEE 

is appointed and serves at the pleasure of the COUNCIL as an at will employee. COUNCIL may 

terminate EMPLOYEE at any time for convenience and without cause. Nothing in this Agreement 

shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the COUNCIL and CITY to terminate 

this Agreement and the employment of EMPLOYEE, with or without cause or for convenience.  

In the event EMPLOYEE is terminated without cause, at or during such time that EMPLOYEE is 

willing and able to perform her duties under this AGREEMENT, then in that event, CITY agrees 

to pay EMPLOYEE a severance equal to one (1) year base salary, less any and all applicable or 

legally required deductions, provided EMPLOYEE has executed a full and final release of any and 

all actual or potential claims (including Civil Code Section 1542 release) that EMPLOYEE has or 

could have against CITY, its officials, employees and agents, acceptable to CITY in form and 

content. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the maximum severance EMPLOYEE 

may receive under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed the limitations provided for in Government 

Code Section 53260-53264 or other applicable law. 

 

6.2  Termination by EMPLOYEE. EMPLOYEE may terminate EMPLOYEE’S 

employment for any reason, and at any time, with or without cause, by providing CITY with 

written notice. In such event, CITY shall have the option, in its complete discretion, to make 

EMPLOYEE’s termination effective upon any date preceding any notice period provided by 

EMPLOYEE, provided CITY pays EMPLOYEE all compensation due and owing 

EMPLOYEE through the last day actually worked, plus an amount equal to the Base Salary 

EMPLOYEE would have earned through the balance of the notice period, which shall not  

exceed thirty (30) days.  

320

Item 14.



7 

 

6.3  Termination Obligation. EMPLOYEE agrees that all property, including without 

limitation, all equipment, tangible property, Proprietary Information (as defined below), 

documents, records, notes, contracts, and computer-generated materials furnished to or prepared 

by EMPLOYEE incident to EMPLOYEE’S employment are the property of CITY and shall be 

returned immediately to CITY upon termination of EMPLOYEE’s employment. EMPLOYEE’s 

obligations under this subsection shall survive the termination of EMPLOYEE’S employment and 

the expiration or early termination of this Agreement. 

 

6.4 Benefits Upon Termination. All benefits to which EMPLOYEE is entitled under 

this Agreement shall cease upon EMPLOYEE’s termination in accordance with this Section 6 

(Termination), unless expressly continued under this Agreement or unless otherwise required by 

law. 

 

7. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 

 

7.1 EMPLOYEE shall not, during the term of this Agreement, individually, as a 

partner, joint venture, officer or shareholder, invest or participate in any business venture 

conducting business in the corporate limits of CITY, except for stock ownership in any company 

whose capital stock is publicly held and regularly traded, without prior approval of the COUNCIL. 

EMPLOYEE shall also be subject to the conflict of interest provisions of the Government Code of 

the State of California, CITY’s Municipal Code, and any other conflict of interest regulations 

applicable to EMPLOYEE’s employment with CITY. For and during the Term of this Agreement 

and any extension term, EMPLOYEE further agrees that except for a personal residence or 

residential property acquired or held for- future use as EMPLOYEE’S personal residence, 

EMPLOYEE will not invest in any other real estate or property improvements within the corporate 

limits of CITY without the prior consent of the COUNCIL. 

 

8. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

8.1 Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) business 

days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, and addressed 

to CITY at the address below or at the last known address maintained in EMPLOYEE’s personnel 

file. EMPLOYEE agrees to notify CITY in writing of any change in EMPLOYEE’S address during 

EMPLOYEE’S employment with CITY. Notice of change of address shall be effective only when 

accomplished in accordance with this Section. 

 

CITY’s Notice Address: 

 

City of Beaumont 

550 East Sixth Street  

Beaumont, CA 92223 

Attn: Mayor 

 

  

321

Item 14.



8 

EMPLOYEE’s Notice Address:  

 

ELIZABETH GIBBS 

[At EMPLOYEE’s address on file with City] 

 

 

8.2 Indemnification. Subject to, in accordance with, and to the extent provided by the 

California Tort Claims Act (Government Code Section 810 et seq. including, but not limited to, 

Sections 825, 995 and 995.2) CITY will indemnify, defend, and hold EMPLOYEE harmless from 

and against any action, demand, suit, monetary judgment or other legal or administrative 

proceeding, and any liability, injury, loss or other damages, arising out of any negligent act or 

omission occurring within the scope of EMPLOYEE’s employment during the Term of this 

Agreement or any extension term. CITY shall have the discretion to compromise or settle any such 

claim, demand or action and pay the amount of any settlement or judgment rendered thereon. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, CITY shall have no duty to indemnify, defend, or hold 

EMPLOYEE harmless from any criminal proceeding, or with regard to any civil, criminal or 

administrative proceeding initiated by EMPLOYEE. 

 

8.3 Bonding. CITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the 

City Manager under any laws or ordinance. 

 

8.4  Entire Agreement. This Agreement is intended to be the final, complete, and 

exclusive statement of the terms of EMPLOYEE’s employment by CITY. This Agreement 

supersedes all other prior and contemporaneous Agreements and statements, whether written or 

oral, express or implied, pertaining in any manner to the employment of EMPLOYEE, and it may 

not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous statements or Agreements. To 

the extent that the practices, policies, or procedures of CITY, now or in the future, apply to 

EMPLOYEE and are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the provisions of this 

Agreement shall control.  

 

8.5  Amendments. This Agreement may not be amended except in a written document 

signed by EMPLOYEE, approved by COUNCIL and signed by the City Attorney. 

 

8.6 Waiver. Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver of such right. 

 

8.7  Assignment. EMPLOYEE shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 

Agreement. CITY may, upon prior written notice to EMPLOYEE, assign its rights and obligations 

hereunder. 

 

8.8 Severability. If any court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision, section or 

sentence of this Agreement to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

8.9  Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into and to be performed in Riverside 

County, California and shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 

322

Item 14.



9 

of the State of California.   The Parties agree that in the event of any dispute or litigation, venue 

shall be in Riverside County, California. 

 

8.10  Interpretation. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its fair 

meaning, and not in favor of or against any party. By way of example and not in limitation, this 

Agreement shall not be construed in favor of the party receiving a benefit or against the party 

responsible for any particular language in this Agreement. Captions are used for reference 

purposes only and should be ignored in the interpretation of the Agreement. This Agreement 

may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing; executed by the parties 

to this Agreement and by no other means. Each party waives their future right to claim, contest, 

or assert that this Agreement was modified, cancelled superseded or changed by any oral 

Agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel. 

 

8.11 Statutory Obligations; Abuse of Office or Position. Notwithstanding anything to 

this Agreement in the contrary, pursuant to California Government Code Sections 53243, 53243.1 

and 53243.2, which became effective on January 1, 2012, if EMPLOYEE is convicted of a crime 

involving an abuse of EMPLOYEE’S office or position, all of the following shall apply: (1) if 

EMPLOYEE is provided with an administrative leave pay pending an investigation, EMPLOYEE 

shall be required to fully reimburse such amounts paid by CITY; (2) if CITY pays for the criminal 

legal defense of EMPLOYEE (which would be in its sole discretion, as CITY is generally not 

obligated to pay for a criminal defense), EMPLOYEE shall be required to fully reimburse such 

amounts paid by CITY; and (3) if this Agreement is terminated, any cash settlement related to the 

termination of EMPLOYEE by CITY, said amount shall be fully reimbursed to CITY or shall be 

void if not yet paid to EMPLOYEE. For this Section, abuse of office or position means either: (1) 

an abuse of public authority, including waste, fraud, and violation of the law under the color of 

authority; or (2) a crime against public justice, including a crime described in Title 7 commencing 

with section 92 of the California Penal Code.  

 

 8.12 Incorporation of Recitals.  The Parties repeat and incorporate the recitals set forth 

above as if fully set forth herein. 

 

8.13. State & Federal Law.  The terms of this Agreement shall be applied only as 

consistent with State and Federal law. 

 

8.14 Acknowledgment. EMPLOYEE acknowledges that EMPLOYEE has had the 

opportunity to consult legal counsel in regard to this Agreement, that EMPLOYEE has read and 

understands this Agreement, that EMPLOYEE is fully aware of its legal effect, and that 

EMPLOYEE has entered into it freely and voluntarily and based on EMPLOYEE’S own 

judgment and not on any representations or promises other than those contained in this 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

323

Item 14.



10 

“CITY” 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

 

By:________________________ 

     Lloyd White, Mayor 

“EMPLOYEE” 

 

ELIZABETH GIBBS 

 

 

By:________________________ 

      Elizabeth Gibbs 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:________________________ 

      Steven Mehlman, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By:___________________________ 

      John O. Pinkney, City Attorney 

 

324

Item 14.



Exhibit “A” 

CITY MANAGER  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

(Elizabeth Gibbs) 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

City Manager Job Description 

(Beaumont Municipal Code Section 2.12.060 (Powers & Duties) 

 

325

Item 14.



           CITY OF BEAUMONT 

 

CITY MANAGER 
    

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the 

class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 

 
SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 

 

Under policy direction, plans, directs, manages, and oversees the activities and operations of the City of 

Beaumont; serves as chief executive officer of the City ensuring that public services are delivered in an 

efficient and effective manner; implements policy decisions made by the City Council; facilitates the 

development and implementation of City goals and objectives; and provides highly complex administrative 

support to the City Council. 

 

REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not 

perform all of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties from those set forth 

below to address business needs and changing business practices. 

 

1. Assumes full management responsibility for all City operations; plans, directs, manages, and 

oversees the activities and operations of the City of Beaumont; recommends and administers goals, 

objectives, polices, and procedures. 

2. Directs and participates, with department head cooperation, in the development and administration 

of the City budget; prepares long-term plans of capital improvements including financing plans; 

approves the forecast of funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; approves 

expenditures and implements budgetary adjustments as appropriate and necessary. 

3. Establishes, within City policy, appropriate service and staffing levels; monitors and evaluates the 

efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; allocates resources 

accordingly. 

4. Plans, directs, and coordinates, through department heads, the work plan for the City; assigns 

projects and programmatic areas of responsibility; reviews and evaluates work methods and 

procedures; meet with management staff to identify and resolve issues. 

5. Assess and monitor workload, administrative support systems and internal reporting relationships; 

identify opportunities for improvement and implement as appropriate. 

6. Provide staff assistance to the City Council; prepare, submit, and present staff reports and other 

necessary correspondence to the City Council including reports of finances and administrative 

activities; keep City Council advised of financial conditions, program progress, present and future 

needs of the City; prepare recommendations and advise the Council on matters requiring legislative 

action. 

7. Confer with and represent the City to all departments, residents, taxpayers, businesses, and other 

individuals, groups, and outside agencies having an interest or potential interest in affairs of City 

concern; coordinate City activities with those of other cities, counties, outside agencies and 

organizations in accordance with the City Council policies. 

326

Item 14.



CITY OF BEAUMONT 

City Manager (Continued) 

8. Respond to and resolve difficult, complex and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints; contact 

departments involved; provide direction and delegate authority as necessary to correct issues; 

interpret, analyze, defend, and explain City policies, procedures, programs, and activities; negotiate 

and resolve sensitive and controversial issues; handle public relations dealing with the news media. 

9. Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 

in the field of municipal management and public administration. 

10. Performs related duties, as assigned. 

 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 
The following generally describes the knowledge and ability required to enter the job and/or be learned within a short 

period of time in order to successfully perform the assigned duties. 

 

Knowledge of: 

Advanced principles and practices of public administration, including the organization, functions, and 

problems of municipal government. 

Operations, services, and activities of a municipality. 

Government, council, and legislative processes. 

Principles and practices of municipal budget, preparation, and administration. 

Current social, political, and economic trends and operating problems of municipal government. 

Principles and practices of program development and administration. 

Advanced principles and practices of organization, management, and supervision. 

Principles and practices of strategic planning. 

Methods of analyzing, evaluating, and modifying administrative procedures. 

Decision making techniques. 

Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations. 

Principles of effective public relations and interrelationships with community groups and agencies, 

private businesses and firms, and other levels of government. 

Methods and techniques of research, statistical analysis, and report presentations. 

  

Ability to: 

Serve effectively as the administrative agent of the City Council. 

Provide effective leadership and coordinate the activities of assigned municipal organization. 

Develop and administer City-wide goals, objectives, and procedures. 

Analyze and define problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions, 

and implement recommendations in support of goals. 

Identify and respond to sensitive community, organizational, and City Council issues, concerns, and 

needs. 

Research, analyze and evaluate new service delivery methods and techniques. 

Plan, organize, direct, and coordinate the work of staff. 

Select, supervise, train, and evaluate staff. 

Prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports. 

Prepare and administer large and complex budgets. 

Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 

Negotiate and resolve complex issues. 

Make effective public presentations. 

Delegate authority and responsibility. 

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 

327

Item 14.



CITY OF BEAUMONT 

City Manager (Continued) 

 

Education and Experience Guidelines - Any combination of education and experience that would likely 

provide the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities 

would be: 

Education/Training: 

A Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in public 

administration, business administration, planning, or a related field. A Master’s degree in a 

related field is desirable. 

Experience: 

Ten years of progressively responsible administrative or staff experience in municipal 

government with at least four years of experience in a high level administrative or executive 

capacity involving responsibility for planning, organizing, directing, and financing a varied 

work program. 

 

PHYSICAL, MENTAL, AND ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS:  The conditions herein are 

representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job 

functions: 
 

Must be found to be free from any physical, emotional or mental conditions, as determined by a qualified 

physician and/or psychologist, which with or without accommodation might affect the ability of the employee 

to perform essential job functions.  The position may require prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, 

twisting, turning, kneeling, bending, squatting, and stooping in the performance of daily office activities.  

Additionally, the position requires grasping, repetitive hand movement, and fine coordination in retrieving 

and entering data using a computer keyboard.  Near and far vision is required in order to read work related 

documents and use the computer.  Acute hearing is required when providing phone and personal service.  The 

position requires lifting, carrying, pushing, and/or pulling objects weighing up to 25 pounds.  Incumbent 

must be willing to work shift work, including nights, weekends, and holidays.   
 
 

This classification is not intended to be all-inclusive. An employee may be required to perform other reasonable duties 

as assigned by management. The City reserves the right, with the concurrence of the department head, to revise or change 

classification duties and responsibilities as the need arises and as consistent with the meet and confer process.  

328

Item 14.



2.12.060 - Powers and duties. 

The City Manager shall be the administrative head of the City government under the direction and 

control of the City Council, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. He shall be responsible for the 

efficient administration of all the affairs of the City which are under his control. In addition to his general 

powers as administrative head, and not as a limitation thereon, it shall be his duty and he shall have the 

power: 

 

A.To see that all laws and ordinances of the City are enforced, and that all franchises, permits and 

privileges granted by the City are faithfully observed;B.To control, order and give directions to all head 

of departments, subordinate officers and employees of the City, except the City Clerk, City employees 

from one department to another; and to consolidate or combine offices, positions, departments or units 

under his direction;C.To appoint, promote, demote and remove any officers and employees of the City 

except the City Clerk, City Treasurer, City Attorney, and members of the planning commission;D.To 

exercise control over all departments of the City government and over all appointive officers and 

employees thereof, except the City Clerk, City Treasurer, City Attorney, and members of the planning 

commission;E.To attend all meetings of the City Council and planning commission unless excused there 

from by the Council, except when his removal is under consideration by the Council;F.To recommend to 

the City Council for adoption such measures and ordinances as he deems necessary or expedient;G.To 

keep the City Council at all times fully advised as to the financial conditions and needs of the City:H.To 

prepare and submit to the City Council the annual budget; Council approval of the annual budget or 

schedule of anticipated expenditures constitutes approval to the purchasing agent to procure any items 

therein listed; provided, however, no purchase shall be made of an item exceeding in cost the sum of 

$1,000.00, or as amended from time to time by resolution, without first obtaining approval of the City 

Council; any items not so listed must first have approval from the City Council before purchase can be 

authorized by the City Manager; no expenditures shall be submitted or recommended to the City 

Council, except on report or approval of the City Manager;I.To make investigations into the affairs of the 

City, and any department or division thereof, and any contract, or the proper performance of any 

obligations running to the City;J.To investigate all complaints in relation to matters concerning the 

administration' of the City government and in regard to the service maintained by public utilities in the 

City, and to see that all franchises, permits and privileges granted by the City are faithfully performed 

and observed;K.To exercise general supervision over all public buildings, public parks and other public 

property which are under the control and jurisdiction of the City Council and not specifically delegated 

to a particular board or officer;L.He shall devote his time diligently to the duties of his office and the 

interest of the City;M.The services and facilities of the City Clerk, City Treasurer, and the City Attorney 

shall be made available to the City Manager to the same extent, in the same manner, and to the same 

effect they are available to the City Council;N.To perform such other duties and exercise such other 

powers as may be delegated to him from time to time by ordinance or resolution of the City Council. 

(Ord. 484 §1, 1977; Ord. 363 §6, 1965) 

329

Item 14.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Elizabeth Gibbs, City Manager 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Compensation Plan and Salary Table  
  

Background and Analysis:  

This item was tabled by City Council on February 15, 2022, until such time when City 

staff could provide additional information and complete negotiations. The City 

compensation plan and salary table were adjusted to account for all 2022 minimum 

wage requirements, negotiated salary increases between bargaining units, individuals 

and the City of Beaumont. Those bargaining units and individuals included the Police 

Officers Association approved January 4, 2022, Managers Professional Technical Unit 

approved January 18, 2022, Police Managers approved February 15, 2022, and SEIU 

approved July 19, 2022.   

 

New positions proposed during FY 2022 and 2023 budget processes have been studied 

and added to the compensation plan and salary table. These positions include the 

Assistant Director of Finance, Assistant Planner (vacant), Community Services Officer 

(2 vacancies), Deputy City Manager, Environmental Compliance Manager, General 

Manager of Utilities, GIS Analyst (vacant), Grounds Parks Facilities Superintendent, 

Management Analyst I, Police Captain (vacant), Procurement and Contracts Specialist 

(vacant), Recreation Superintendent, Senior Engineer (vacant), and Wastewater 

Collections Supervisor.  

 

In addition to the negotiated labor agreement increases, City staff also proposes 

adjustments to some executive contract staff based on the compensation study.  These 

positions include the Administrative Services Director, Chief of Police, Community 

Services Director and the Finance Director based on the compensation study. These 

proposed changes are predicated on the same median base concept outlined in the 

five-year plan that was utilized in negotiations with the City’s bargaining units.   

330

Item 15.



Fiscal Impact: 

All the new proposed positions, all negotiated benefits and salary adjustments have 

been captured in the FY 2023 budget process. The fully burdened fiscal impact to the 

personnel budget is approximately $4,553,340. City staff estimates the cost to prepare 

this staff report to be $675.  

 

Recommended Action: 

Approval of the Compensation Plan and Salary Table.   

Attachments: 

A. Compensation Plan and Salary Table  

331

Item 15.



332

Item 15.



333

Item 15.



334

Item 15.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Jennifer Ustation, Finance Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Annual Resolution Directing the Riverside County Auditor-Controller 

to Place the Levy of Special Taxes for the City's Community Facilities 

Districts on the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 County Tax Roll 
  

Background and Analysis:  

Beaumont is required to direct the Riverside County Auditor-Controller to place its levy of 

special taxes for the Community Facilities Districts (CFDs) on the County tax roll. For 

FY2022-23 this must occur prior to August 10, 2022. The resolutions before Council are 

required to complete the annual enrollment and collection of the City’s Community 

Facilities District (“CFD”) special taxes needed to meet all financial and contractual 

obligations.  

 

City staff has prepared the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Special Levy for the City’s various 

improvement areas (“IA”) of CFD No. 93-1, CFD Nos. 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 

2018-1, 2019-1 and 2021-1. The calculations incorporate various assumptions as 

applicable for each IA or CFD, including: 

1. The expected annual debt service costs; 

2. The expected costs of providing services such as the landscaping, maintenance, 

and lighting of City-owned parks, parkways, streets, roads, and open space; 

3. The expected costs of providing public safety services such as police, fire, and 

ambulance and paramedic services; 

4. The expected administrative costs; and 

5. The collection of funds for future facilities. 

 

Over the past several years the City has implemented measures to reduce special tax 

rates for all applicable IAs of CFD No. 93-1 and recently formed CFD’s for which the final 

series of bonds has been issued. The City’s developing CFDs, for which the final series 

of bonds has not been issued, are not yet eligible for a reduction. Historically, the 

reduction in special tax rates has been accomplished through two forms i) bond 

refinancing, and ii) bond issuances to fully bond CFDs/IAs. For Fiscal Year 2022-23 the 

335

Item 16.



City and finance team have reviewed available funds for services and are recommending 

enrollment of an amount that is less than the FY 2022-23 Maximum Special Tax for 

Services and Public Safety. Cumulatively, this leads to a projected savings of 

approximately $738,451 across 29 IAs and 8 CFDs. 

 

Approval of the following resolutions establishes the levy of all IAs/CFDs listed in 

Attachment A and authorizes the County of Riverside to place the levy upon the property 

tax roll for Fiscal Year 2022-23. Detailed parcel calculations will be provided to the County 

of Riverside to levy and collect such special taxes on behalf of the City. 

 

The aggregate Fiscal Year 2022-23 projected CFD levy will show an increase over FY 

2021-22, primarily as the result of building permits being issued and increased 

development within the City. In some cases, certain IAs/CFDs have seen an increase in 

their levies because the IA was not eligible for reduction and the special tax escalated 

annually per the requirements of the RMA and/or debt service requirements for bonds 

outstanding. Staff will continue to make all efforts possible to continue to reduce the 

special tax rates in future years for all eligible IAs/CFDs.  

 

Multiple resolutions are provided for individual consideration. This will allow individual City 

Council members to recuse themselves for consideration of those IAs/CFDs for which 

they own property.   
 

Fiscal Impact: 

The fiscal impact on the City's general fund is indirect, as the administration and 

maintenance portions of assessments collected are the funding source for the 

administration of the CFD processes and maintenance of the various applicable 

geographic regions. 

 

Recommended Action: 
 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 

Districts No. 93-1, 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 and 2021-1 

and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on the Tax Rolls (93-1, 2016-

1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 and 2021-1).” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 

Districts No. 93-1 (IA 18) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on 

336

Item 16.



the Tax Rolls (IA 18)” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 

Districts No. 93-1 (IA 14 and 14B) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the 

Same on the Tax Rolls (IA 14 and 14B).” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 

Districts No. 93-1 (IA 9) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same on 

the Tax Rolls (IA 9).” 

 

Waive the full reading and adopt by title only “A Resolution of the City Council of 

the City of Beaumont, California, Levying the Special Tax in Community Facilities 

Districts No. 93-1 (IA 17A) and Directing the County Auditor to Collect the Same 

on the Tax Rolls (IA 17A).” 

Attachments: 

A. Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (Balance) 

B. Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (Santos and Fenn recusal – IAs 14, 14B) 

C. Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (Martinez recusal – IA 9) 

D. Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (Santos recusal – IA 17A) 

E. Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (White recusal – IA 18) 

F. Summary of CFD Special Tax Enrollment 

G. PowerPoint Presentation 

337

Item 16.



  

 

  

1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING THE SPECIAL TAX IN 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NO. 93-1, 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 

2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 & 2021-1 AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY 

AUDITOR TO COLLECT THE SAME ON THE TAX ROLLS 

(93-1, 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1 & 2021-1) 

 

WHEREAS, The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Beaumont 

is the legislative body of Community Facilities Districts No. 93-1, 20 16 -1 ,  2 01 6 -

2 ,  2 01 6 -3 ,  20 16 - 4 ,  20 18 -1 ,  2 01 9-1  &  20 21 -1  (collectively or individually 

"District"), which District was established pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, 

Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 1993 the City Council adopted Resolution 1993-

13 establishing the District, including separate improvement areas therein (each an 

Improvement Area, and collectively, the "Improvement Area") and providing for 

the Special Tax within each such Improvement Area;  a n d  

 

WHEREAS, on August 11, 1993 the City Council e n a c t e d  Ordinance No. 

721 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of the Special 

Tax on the property located within Improvement Areas No's. 1 thru 7 (including 

6A and 6B) and 10 thru 12 of the District. (Fund Code 68-2109 thru 68-2130); and 

 

WHEREAS, on January 18, 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 873 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within Improvement Area 6Al. (Fund Code 68-2088 & 68-2183); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No's. 882 in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 7B.  (Fund Code 68-2139 & 68- 2095); and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No's. 883 in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 7C.  (Fund Code 68-2094 & 68- 2146); and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No's. 884 in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 7D.  (Fund Code 68-2179 & 68- 2180); and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

1053 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area 7A1. (Fund Code 68-1811 & 68-1812); 

and 

 

338

Item 16.



  

 

  

2 
 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2002 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

825 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area No. 8. (Fund Code 68-2127 & 68-

2129); and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 2, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 871 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 8A. (Fund Code 68-2136 & 68-2101); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 896 in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 8B. (Fund Code 68-2140 & 68-2102); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 897 in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 8C. (Fund Code 68-2141 & 68-2149); and 

 

WHEREAS, on M a y  1 ,  2007 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 913 

am end i n g  O r d i nan ce  89 7  in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing 

the levy of Special Tax on the property located within Improvement Area 8C. (Fund 

Code 68-2141 & 68-2149); and 

 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2007, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 915 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within Improvement Area 8D. (Fund Code 68-2147 & 68-2150); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2015 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1056  

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 8E. (Fund Code 68-2104 & 68-2161); and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2015 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1057  

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 8F. (Fund Code 68-2162 & 68-2163); and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 1995 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 752 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area No. 13. (Fund Code 68-2120); and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2002, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

836 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area 14A. (Fund Code 68-2181); and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2002 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 830 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of the Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area No. 15. (Fund Code 68-2128); and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 868 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

339

Item 16.



  

 

  

3 
 

the property located within Improvement Area 16. (Fund Code 60-2093 & 68-2134); and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2006 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

905 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area 17B. (Fund Code 68-2089 & 68-

2142); and 

 

WHEREAS, on August 7, 2012, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1022 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within Improvement Area 17C. (Fund Code 68-2098 & 68-2144); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 872 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 19A. (Fund Code 68-2096 & 68-2135); and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 872 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 19C. (Fund Code 68-2099 & 68-2137); and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 889 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within Improvement Area 20. (Fund Code 68-2091 & 68-2143); and 

 

WHEREAS, on August 15, 2006 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 899 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within Improvement Area 23. (Fund Code 68-2138); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 7, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1073  in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within CFD 2016 -1  (Fund Code 68-1818 & 68-1819); and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1081 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within CFD 2016- 2  (Fund Code 68-0043, 68-0045 & 68-0046); and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1082 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within CFD 2016-3 (Fund Code 68-0204, 68-0205 & 68-0206); and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1083 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within CFD 2016 -4  (Fund Code 68-0047, 68-0048 & 68-0049). 

 

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

1103  in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within CFD 2018 -1  (Fund Code 68-0208). 

 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2019, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1105  in 

340

Item 16.



  

 

  

4 
 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within CFD 2019 -1  (Fund Code 68-0209, 68-0210 & 68-0211). 

 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2021, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1133  in 

accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on the 

property located within CFD 2021 -1  (Fund Code 68-0425, 68-0426 & 68-0427). 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

Section 1: The preceding recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2: The City of Beaumont hereby determined to Levy the Special 

Taxes in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (and each subsequent Fiscal Year) in Improvement 

Area No's.  1-7 (including 6A ), 10-12, 6A1, 7B, 7C, 7D, 7A1, 8, 8A-F, 13, 14B, 15, 16, 

17A-C, 19A, 19C, 20, and 23 of CFD 93-1 and CFDs 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-

4, 2018-1, 2019-1 & 2021-1 and to each parcel therein, as provided in the schedule of 

Special Taxes, a copy of which has been presented to the City Council and lodged with the 

City Clerk. 

Section 3: The rate of each Special Tax utilized in the preparation of the 

Report does not exceed the amount previously authorized by Ordinance and is not in 

excess of that approved by the qualified electors of the applicable Dist ricts  and 

Improvement Areas. 

Section 4: As to a District and/or an Improvement Area, the proceeds of the 

Special Tax shall be used to pay, in whole or in part and as applicable, the costs of the 

following for the subject Fiscal Year as provided in the City of Beaumont Community 

Facilities District No. 93-1 Indenture of Trusts and the City of Beaumont CFDs 

2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3,  2016-4,  2018-1, 2019-1 & 2021-1 Indenture of  

Trust  (collectively the "Indenture of Trust"): 

A. The Administrative costs and other incidental expenses of the applicable District 

and/or Improvement Area; and 

B. The Interest scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable District and/or Improvement Area; and 

C. The principal scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable District and/or Improvement Area; and 

D. The sinking payments scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded 

indebtedness relating to the applicable District and/or Improvement Area; and 

E. Amounts, if any, needed to replenish the applicable Reserve Account of the 

Bond Fund to the level of the Reserve Requirement; and 

F. Amounts, if any, required to bring the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 

to the required level; and 

G. Amounts for approved services. 

Section 5: The Auditor-Controller of the County of Riverside is hereby 
341

Item 16.



  

 

  

5 
 

directed to apply to each real property statement for each parcel in such County in the 

applicable District and/or Improvement Area for the Fiscal Year listing the Special Tax 

due opposite each parcel of land affected, in a line item designated "CFD Special Tax," 

or any other suitable designation, in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 6: All Special Taxes collected will be paid to the trustee for deposit in 

the applicable Special Tax fund upon receipt by the City of Beaumont from the  

Auditor Controller pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of Trust. 

Section 7: The Auditor-Controller shall, at the close of the tax collection 

period, promptly render to the Director a detailed report showing the amounts of Special 

Tax installments, penalties, interest, and fees collected, and from which properties 

collected. Any expenses to be paid to the Auditor-Controller for carrying out the forgoing 

responsibilities shall be in accordance with a contract, if any, entered into between the 

District and the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to Section 29304 of the Government Code of 

the State of California or as otherwise provided by law. 

Section 8: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage 

and adoption. 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022, by the following 

vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

  

 

 

 

 

 APPROVED: 
 

 

    

  Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 __ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk  

342

Item 16.



  

 

  

1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-   

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING THE SPECIAL TAX IN 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 93-1 (IA 18) AND 

DIRECTING THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO COLLECT THE SAME ON 

THE TAX ROLLS 

(IA 18) 

 

WHEREAS, Council Member Lloyd White has recused himself from any 

participation related to this Resolution;  

 

WHEREAS, The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Beaumont 

is the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 93-1 ("District"), which 

District was established pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 

Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of 

the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 1993 the City Council adopted Resolution 1993-

13 establishing the District, including separate improvement areas therein including 

Improvement Area 18 (the “Improvement Area”) and providing for the Special Tax 

within such Improvement Area; and  

  

WHEREAS, on February 3, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 853 

in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax on 

the property located within Improvement Area 18. (Fund Code 68-2097 & 68-2132). 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

Section 1: The preceding recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2: The City of Beaumont hereby determined to Levy the Special 

Taxes in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (and each subsequent Fiscal Year) in Improvement 

Area No. 18 and to each parcel therein, as provided in the schedule of Special Taxes, a 

copy of which has been presented to the City Council and lodged with the City Clerk. 

Section 3: The rate of each Special Tax utilized in the preparation of the 

Report does not exceed the amount previously authorized by Ordinance and is not in 

excess of that approved by the qualified electors of the applicable Dist rict  and 

Improvement Areas. 

Section 4: As to the District and/or an Improvement Area, the proceeds of the 

Special Tax shall be used to pay, in whole or in part as applicable, the costs of the following 

for the subject Fiscal Year as provided in the City of Beaumont Community Facilities 

District No. 93-1 Indenture of Trusts (the "Indenture of Trust"): 

A. The Administrative costs and other incidental expenses of the Improvement Area 

and/or District; and 

343

Item 16.



  

 

  

2 
 

B. The Interest scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

C. The principal scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

D. The sinking payments scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded 

indebtedness relating to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

E. Amounts, if any, needed to replenish the applicable Reserve Account of the 

Bond Fund to the level of the Reserve Requirement; and 

F. Amounts, if any, required to bring the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 

to the required level; and 

G. Amounts for approved services. 

Section 5: The Auditor-Controller of the County of Riverside is hereby 

directed to apply to each real property statement for each parcel in such County in the 

applicable Improvement Area of the District for the Fiscal Year listing the Special Tax 

due opposite each parcel of land affected, in a line item designated "CFD Special Tax," 

or any other suitable designation, in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 6: All Special Taxes collected will be paid to the trustee for deposit in 

the applicable Special Tax fund upon receipt by the City of Beaumont from the  

Auditor Controller pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of Trust. 

Section 7: The Auditor-Controller shall, at the close of the tax collection 

period, promptly render to the Director a detailed report showing the amounts of Special 

Tax installments, penalties, interest, and fees collected, and from which properties 

collected. Any expenses to be paid to the Auditor-Controller for carrying out the forgoing 

responsibilities shall be in accordance with a contract, if any, entered into between the 

District and the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to Section 29304 of the Government Code of 

the State of California or as otherwise provided by law. 

Section 8: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

RECUSED: WHITE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

344

Item 16.



  

 

  

3 
 

 APPROVED: 
 

 

    

  Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 __ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

345

Item 16.



  

 

  

1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING THE SPECIAL TAX IN 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 93-1 (IA 14 & 14B) AND 

DIRECTING THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO COLLECT THE SAME ON 

THE TAX ROLLS 

(IA 14 & 14B) 

 

WHEREAS, Council Members Rey Santos and David Fenn have recused 

themselves from any participation related to this Resolution;  

 

WHEREAS, The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Beaumont 

is the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 93-1 ("District"), which 

District was established pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 

Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of 

the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 1993, the City Council adopted Resolution 1993-

13 establishing the District, including separate improvement areas therein including 

Improvement Area 14 and 14B (singly or collectively “Improvement Area”) and 

providing for the Special Tax within each such Improvement Area;  a n d   

  

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2000, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

800 in accordance the Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special 

Tax on the property located within Improvement Area No. 14. (Fund Code 68-2122 

& 68-2125); and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2002 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

836 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area 14B. (Fund Code 68-2182). 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

Section 1: The preceding recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2: The City of Beaumont hereby determined to Levy the Special 

Taxes in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (and each subsequent Fiscal Year) in Improvement 

Area Nos. 14 and 14B and to each parcel therein, as provided in the schedule of Special 

Taxes, a copy of which has been presented to the City Council and lodged with the City 

Clerk. 

Section 3: The rate of each Special Tax utilized in the preparation of the 

Report does not exceed the amount previously authorized by Ordinance and is not in 

excess of that approved by the qualified electors of the applicable Districts and 

Improvement Areas. 

Section 4: As to the District and/or an Improvement Area, the proceeds of the 
346

Item 16.



  

 

  

2 
 

Special Tax shall be used to pay, in whole or in part and as applicable, the costs of the 

following for the subject Fiscal Year as provided in the City of Beaumont Community 

Facilities District No. 93-1 Indenture of Trusts (the "Indenture of Trust"): 

A. The Administrative costs and other incidental expenses of the Improvement Area 

and/or District; and 

B. The Interest scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

C. The principal scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

D. The sinking payments scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded 

indebtedness  relating to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

E. Amounts, if any, needed to replenish the applicable Reserve Account of the 

Bond Fund to the level of the Reserve Requirement; and 

F. Amounts, if any, required to bring the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 

to the required level; and 

G. Amounts for approved services. 

Section 5: The Auditor-Controller of the County of Riverside is hereby 

directed to apply to each real property statement for each parcel in such County in the 

applicable Improvement Areas of the District for the Fiscal Year listing the Special Tax 

due opposite each parcel of land affected, in a line item designated "CFD Special Tax," 

or any other suitable designation, in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 6: All Special Taxes collected will be paid to the trustee for deposit in 

the applicable Special Tax fund upon receipt by the City of Beaumont from the  

Auditor Controller pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of Trust. 

Section 7: The Auditor-Controller shall, at the close of the tax collection 

period, promptly render to the Director a detailed report showing the amounts of Special 

Tax installments, penalties, interest, and fees collected, and from which properties 

collected. Any expenses to be paid to the Auditor-Controller for carrying out the forgoing 

responsibilities shall be in accordance with a contract, if any, entered into between the 

District and the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to Section 29304 of the Government Code of 

the State of California or as otherwise provided by law. 

Section 8: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022, by the following 

vote: 

 

AYES:           

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

347

Item 16.



  

 

  

3 
 

RECUSED:  FENN, SANTOS 

 

 

 APPROVED: 
 

 

    

  Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 
 __ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk  
 

 

 

348

Item 16.



  

 

  

1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING THE SPECIAL TAX IN 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 93-1 (IA 9) AND DIRECTING 

THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO COLLECT THE SAME ON THE TAX 

ROLLS 

(IA 9) 

 

WHEREAS, Council Member Julio Martinez recused himself from any 

participation in this Resolution; 

 

WHEREAS, The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Beaumont 

is the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 93-1 ("District"), which 

district was established pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 

Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of 

the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 1993 the City Council adopted Resolution 1993-

13 establishing the District, including separate improvement areas therein (the 

"Improvement Areas") and providing for the Special Tax within such Improvement 

Area; and  

 

WHEREAS, on August 11, 1993, the City Council enacted Ordinance No. 

721 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of the Special 

Tax on the property located within Improvement Area No. 9 of the District 

(“Improvement Area”). (Fund Code (68-2116 & 68-2124). 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

Section 1: The preceding recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2: The City of Beaumont hereby determines to Levy the Special 

Taxes in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (and each subsequent Fiscal Year) in Improvement 

Area No.  9 and to each parcel therein, as provided in the schedule of Special Taxes, a 

copy of which has been presented to the City Council and lodged with the City Clerk. 

Section 3: The rate of each Special Tax utilized in the preparation of the 

Report does not exceed the amount previously authorized by Ordinance and is not in 

excess of that approved by the qualified electors of the Dist rict  and Improvement Area. 

Section 4: As to the District and/or Improvement Area, the proceeds of the 

Special Tax shall be used to pay, in whole or in part and as applicable, the costs of the 

following for the subject Fiscal Year as provided in the City of Beaumont Community 

Facilities District No. 93-1 Indenture of Trusts ("Indenture of Trust"): 

A. The Administrative costs and other incidental expenses of the Improvement Area 

and/or District; and 

349

Item 16.



  

 

  

2 
 

B. The Interest scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the Improvement Area and/or District; and 

C. The principal scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the Improvement Area and/or District; and 

D. The sinking payments scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded 

indebtedness relating to the Improvement Area and/or District; and 

E. Amounts, if any, needed to replenish the applicable Reserve Account of the 

Bond Fund to the level of the Reserve Requirement; and 

F. Amounts, if any, required to bring the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 

to the required level; and 

G. Amounts for approved services. 

Section 5: The Auditor-Controller of the County of Riverside is hereby 

directed to apply to each real property statement for each parcel in such County in the 

applicable Improvement Area of the District for the Fiscal Year listing the Special Tax 

due opposite each parcel of land affected, in a line item designated "CFD Special Tax," 

or any other suitable designation, in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 6: All Special Taxes collected will be paid to the trustee for deposit in 

the applicable Special Tax fund upon receipt by the City of Beaumont from the  

Auditor Controller pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of Trust. 

Section 7: The Auditor-Controller shall, at the close of the tax collection 

period, promptly render to the Director a detailed report showing the amounts of Special 

Tax installments, penalties, interest, and fees collected, and from which properties 

collected. Any expenses to be paid to the Auditor-Controller for carrying out the forgoing 

responsibilities shall be in accordance with a contract, if any, entered into between the 

District and the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to Section 29304 of the Government Code of 

the State of California or as otherwise provided by law. 

Section 8: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

RECUSED: MARTINEZ 

 

 
 
 
 
 

350

Item 16.



  

 

  

3 
 

 APPROVED: 
 

 

    

  Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 __ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk  

 
 

 

351

Item 16.



  

 

  

1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BEAUMONT, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING THE SPECIAL TAX IN 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 93-1 (IA 17A) AND 

DIRECTING THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO COLLECT THE SAME ON 

THE TAX ROLLS 

(IA 17A) 

 

WHEREAS, Council Member Rey Santos has recused himself from any 

participation related to this Resolution;  

 

WHEREAS, The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Beaumont 

is the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 93-1 ("District"), which 

District was established pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 

Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of 

the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 1993 the City Council adopted Resolution 1993-

13 establishing the District, including separate improvement areas therein including 

Improvement Area 17A (the “Improvement Area”) and providing for the Special Tax 

within such Improvement Area; and  

  

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2004 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 

851 in accordance with Section 53340 of the Act authorizing the levy of Special Tax 

on the property located within Improvement Area 17A. (Fund Code 68-2090 & 68-

2131). 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Beaumont as follows: 

Section 1: The preceding recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2: The City of Beaumont hereby determined to Levy the Special 

Taxes in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (and each subsequent Fiscal Year) in Improvement 

Area No. 17A and to each parcel therein, as provided in the schedule of Special Taxes, a 

copy of which has been presented to the City Council and lodged with the City Clerk. 

Section 3: The rate of each Special Tax utilized in the preparation of the 

Report does not exceed the amount previously authorized by Ordinance and is not in 

excess of that approved by the qualified electors of the applicable Dist rict  and 

Improvement Areas. 

Section 4: As to the District and/or an Improvement Area, the proceeds of the 

Special Tax shall be used to pay, in whole or in part as applicable, the costs of the following 

for the subject Fiscal Year as provided in the City of Beaumont Community Facilities 

District No. 93-1 Indenture of Trusts (the "Indenture of Trust"): 

A. The Administrative costs and other incidental expenses of the Improvement Area 

and/or District; and 

352

Item 16.



  

 

  

2 
 

B. The Interest scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

C. The principal scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded indebtedness 

related to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

D. The sinking payments scheduled for collection on the outstanding bonded 

indebtedness relating to the applicable Improvement Area and/or District; and 

E. Amounts, if any, needed to replenish the applicable Reserve Account of the 

Bond Fund to the level of the Reserve Requirement; and 

F. Amounts, if any, required to bring the amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund 

to the required level; and 

G. Amounts for approved services. 

Section 5: The Auditor-Controller of the County of Riverside is hereby 

directed to apply to each real property statement for each parcel in such County in the 

applicable Improvement Area of the District for the Fiscal Year listing the Special Tax 

due opposite each parcel of land affected, in a line item designated "CFD Special Tax," 

or any other suitable designation, in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 6: All Special Taxes collected will be paid to the trustee for deposit in 

the applicable Special Tax fund upon receipt by the City of Beaumont from the  

Auditor Controller pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of Trust. 

Section 7: The Auditor-Controller shall, at the close of the tax collection 

period, promptly render to the Director a detailed report showing the amounts of Special 

Tax installments, penalties, interest, and fees collected, and from which properties 

collected. Any expenses to be paid to the Auditor-Controller for carrying out the forgoing 

responsibilities shall be in accordance with a contract, if any, entered into between the 

District and the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to Section 29304 of the Government Code of 

the State of California or as otherwise provided by law. 

Section 8: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 

MOVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this 2nd day of August 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

RECUSED: SANTOS 

 

 
 

 

 

 

353

Item 16.



  

 

  

3 
 

 APPROVED: 
 

 

    

  Lloyd White, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 __ 

Nicole Wheelwright, Deputy City Clerk  
 

 

 

354

Item 16.



EXHIBIT F 
SUMMARY OF CFD SPECIAL TAX ENROLLMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 

     

Fund 

Number 
District Name 

Parcels (for FY 

22-23) 

Actual FY 2021-22 

Levy 

Proposed FY 

2022-23 Levy 

68-2109 CFD No. 93-1 IA 1 79 $198,437 $202,651 

68-2110 CFD No. 93-1 IA 2 1 $32,916 $33,575 

68-2111 CFD No. 93-1 IA 3 511 $242,398 $242,200 

68-2123 CFD No. 93-1 IA 3 SERVICE 511 $190,194 $190,204 

68-2112 CFD No. 93-1 IA 4 3 $321,889 $329,367 

68-2113 CFD No. 93-1 IA 5 983 $291,635 $298,189 

68-2114 CFD No. 93-1 IA 6A 2 $7,269 $7,415 

68-2183 CFD No. 93-1 IA 6A1 953 $2,369,700 $2,369,709 

68-2088 CFD No. 93-1 IA 6A1 SERVICE 954 $340,578 $340,582 

68-1811 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7A1 485 $703,321 $701,725 

68-1812 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7A1 SERVICE 537 $191,677 $191,686 

68-2139 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7B 234 $294,452 $292,837 

68-2095 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7B SERVICE 283 $101,014 $101,019 

68-2146 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7C 318 $129,735 $124,533 

68-2094 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7C SERVICE 391 $139,564 $139,571 

68-2179 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7D 296 $231,747 $233,750 

68-2180 CFD No. 93-1 IA 7D SERVICE 296 $105,755 $105,757 

68-2127 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8 944 $663,817 $668,737 

68-2129 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8 SERVICE 946 $346,577 $346,579 

68-2136 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8A 408 $513,953 $513,471 

68-2101 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8A SERVICE 178 $65,390 $65,392 

68-2140 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8B 192 $449,043 $450,180 

68-2102 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8B SERVICE 192 $70,341 $70,345 

68-2141 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8C 686 $1,495,337 $1,520,415 

68-2149 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8C SERVICE 689 $252,491 $252,501 

68-2147 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8D 279 $462,140 $469,467 

68-2150 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8D SERVICE 279 102,242 $102,247 

68-2104 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8E 372 $672,846 $689,450 

68-2161 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8E SERVICE 372 $142,297 $142,303 

68-2162 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8F 294 $618,099 $630,100 

68-2163 CFD No. 93-1 IA 8F SERVICE 294 $112,461 $112,465 

68-2116 CFD No. 93-1 IA 9 69 $60,200 $59,200 

68-2124 CFD No. 93-1 IA 9 SERVICE 69 $15,561 $15,561 

68-2117 CFD No. 93-1 IA 10 146 $168,998 $165,600 

68-2126 CFD No. 93-1 IA 10 SERVICE 147 $33,151 $33,152 

68-2118 CFD No. 93-1 IA 11 140 $113,649 $116,650 

68-2121 CFD No. 93-1 IA 11 SERVICE 140 $34,012 $34,012 

68-2119 CFD No. 93-1 IA 12 106 $113,649 $116,650 

355

Item 16.



68-2130 CFD No. 93-1 IA 12 SERVICE 108 $39,567 $39,567 

68-2120 CFD No. 93-1 IA 13 107 $42,732 $42,733 

68-2122 CFD No. 93-1 IA 14 1899 $626,797 $632,673 

68-2125 CFD No. 93-1 IA 14 SERVICE 1941 $642,725 $642,758 

68-2181 CFD No. 93-1 IA 14A 1251 1,136,626 $1,135,944 

68-2182 CFD No. 93-1 IA 14B 310 $304,829 $303,309 

68-2128 CFD No. 93-1 IA 15 71 $27,510 $27,510 

68-2134 CFD No. 93-1 IA 16 240 $597,415 $592,213 

68-2093 CFD No. 93-1 IA 16 SERVICE 241 $86,023 $86,027 

68-2131 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17A 484 $744,975 $745,667 

68-2090 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17A SERVICE 488 $174,187 $174,196 

68-2142 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17B 388 $730,645 $736,766 

68-2089 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17B SERVICE 390 $139,214 $139,217 

68-2144 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17C 215 $479,523 $492,125 

68-2098 CFD No. 93-1 IA 17C SERVICE 216 $80,654 $80,657 

68-2132 CFD No. 93-1 IA 18 193 $413,422 $411,244 

68-2097 CFD No. 93-1 IA 18 SERVICE 194 $69,246 $69,250 

68-2135 CFD No. 93-1 IA 19A 542 $1,527,345 $1,529,663 

68-2096 CFD No. 93-1 IA 19A SERVICE 599 $210,530 $211,126 

68-2137 CFD No. 93-1 IA 19C 667 $1,695,631 1,665,660 

68-2099 CFD No. 93-1 IA 19C SERVICE 669 $240,760 $240,773 

68-2143 CFD No. 93-1 IA 20 106 $248,506 $250,317 

68-2091 CFD No. 93-1 IA 20 SERVICE 106 $38,147 $38,149 

68-2138 CFD No. 93-1 IA 23 65 $26,875 $26,876 

68-1818 CFD No. 2016-1 372 $576,634 $576,538 

68-1819 CFD No. 2016-1 SERVICE 372 $132,797 $132,803 

68-0045 CFD No. 2016-2 527 $666,894 $669,100 

68-0043 CFD No. 2016-2 SERVICE 527 $195,823 $195,828 

68-0046 CFD No. 2016-2 PUBLIC SERVICE 527 $268,391 $268,400 

68-0204 CFD No. 2016-3 373 $486,922 $598,869 

68-0205 CFD No. 2016-3 SERVICE 373 $26,178 $32,881 

68-0206 CFD No. 2016-3 PUBLIC SERVICE 373 $151,256 $189,968 

68-0047 CFD No. 2016-4 346 $275,672 $272,475 

68-0049 CFD No. 2016-4 SERVICE 346 $27,410 $27,413 

68-0048 CFD No. 2016-4 PUBLIC SERVICE 346 $176,211 $176,217 

68-0208 CFD No. 2018-1 PUBLIC SERVICE 510 $195,587 $259,771 

68-0209 CFD No. 2019-1 118 $144,636 $143,288 

68-0210 CFD No. 2019-1 SERVICE 118 $35,578 $35,579 

68-0211 CFD No. 2019-1 PUBLIC SERVICE 118 $60,102 $60,104 

68-0425 CFD No. 2021-1 201 $0 $520,000 

68-0426 CFD No. 2021-1 SERVICE 201 $0 $41,205 

68-0427 CFD No. 2021-1 PUBLIC SERVICE 201 $0 $102,309 

Total   31,218 $26,142,510 $27,092,415 

 

356

Item 16.



CFD Annual Levy
August  2 ,  2022

F Y  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3

357

Item 16.



Annual Enrollment

36 Improvement Areas of CFD 93-1 
62 Separate Taxes

Each year Council approves the annual enrollment 
resolutions. The FY 2022-23 Special Tax Levy includes: 

CFD Nos. 2016-1, 2016-2, 2016-3, 2016-4, 2018-1, 2019-1, & 2021-1 
18 Separate Taxes

Includes reductions to the Proposed Services Special Tax Levy

358

Item 16.



Purpose of the Enrollment

The Special Taxes collected each year 
pay for the following:
• Annual debt service on bonds
• Costs of providing maintenance services
• Costs of providing public safety services
• Administration costs
• Collection of Future Facilities funds (for CFD’s 

which are developing or have not issued the final 
series of Bonds)

359

Item 16.



Master Budget Summary

Budget Line Items FY 2021-22 
Actual

FY 2022-23
Proposed Total Change % Change

Debt Service Payment $19,291,415 $19,358,916 $67,501 0.3%

Maintenance Services $4,074,485 $4,115,160 $40,675 1.0%

Public Safety Services $766,416 $951,091 $184,675 24.1%

Administrative Expenses $1,553,653 $1,612,374 $58,721 3.8%

Delinquency Reserve $0 $0 $0 N/A

Future Facility $456,922 $1,058,869 $601,947 131.7%

Total Expenses $26,142,892 $27,096,410 $953,519 3.7%

There are approximately 33,690 separate charges 
proposed for enrollment on 14,705 individual parcels within the City

360

Item 16.



Changes this Year

The proposed services special tax 
enrollment for FY 22-23 provides for a 
savings to property owners

FY 2022-23 Savings vs. Maximum Rates 
• Projected savings of approximately $738,451

• 29 IAs and 8 CFDs

• 13,919 Parcels

361

Item 16.



Savings Summary for Changes this Year

Reduction in Services 
Special Tax

CFD Total Parcel Count – 14,705

93%

362

Item 16.



Aggregate Savings Summary

13,113 Parcel Count

Pay-Go Reduction
10,098 Parcel Count

Refinancing
654 Parcel Count

No Changes

CFD Total Parcel Count – 14,705
Totals above intentionally do not add up to CFD Total. Parcels may be counted in more than one category.

4%

69%89%

363

Item 16.



FY 2022-2023 CFD Annual Levy
August 2, 2022364

Item 16.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Jeff Hart, Public Works Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Award a Public Works Agreement to Kemcorp Construction Inc. for 

Construction of Westside Fire Station CIP 2018-028 
  

Background and Analysis:  

On January 19, 2022, CIP 2017-028 Westside Fire Station (Project) was publicly 

advertised soliciting construction bids. On March 11, 2022, ten (10) bids were received 

and publicly opened. A bid protest was received on April 24, 2022; subsequently, the 

two lowest bidders were deemed non-responsive, and on June 21, 2022, City Council 

rejected all bids and authorized staff to readvertise for construction bid.  

 

Pursuant to City Council’s direction, the Project was readvertised on June 22, 2022. On 

July 18, 2022, seven (7) bids were received and publicly opened. The following is a 

summary of the received bids: 

 

1. Kemcorp Construction Inc. (Kemcorp)   $7,475,000 

2. AMG        $7,565,000 

3. Archico       $7,780,000 

4. Robert Clapper Construction    $7,791,000 

5. Dalke & Sons      $7,964,890 

6. Horizons Construction     $8,081,747 

7. Newman Midland      $10,612,198    

 

Kemcorp was the apparent low bidder. The City received two bid protests, and in 

coordination with the City Attorney’s Office reviewed the protest.  It was determined that 

Kemcorp’s bid substantially conforms to a call for bids and may be accepted as the 

variance does not appear to have affected the amount of the bid, or given the bidder an 

advantage or benefit not allowed other bidders. 

 

365

Item 17.



Kemcorp possesses the appropriate contractor’s license, has provided all requested 

information and bid bonds, and provided requested references as required by the 

contract documents 

 

Therefore, staff is recommending the City Council waive all minor bid irregulates and 

award a public works agreement to Kemcorp for construction of the Project.  

Fiscal Impact: 

Project funding is based on the approved 5-Year CIP for various years as summarized 

below: 

 

FY17/18    DIF     $1,000,000 

FY18/19    DIF     $3,100,000 

FY20/21    Bond Proceeds   $3,984,954 

FY20/21     General Fund Reserves     $565,045 

Total          $8,649,999 

 

The following table is a summary of the project budget prior to the award of the public 

works agreement to Kemcorp:   

 

 
 

The public works agreement for construction is in an amount not to exceed $7,475,000. 

Staff is recommending a contingency of $638,500, or approximately 9% of the public 

works agreement, to allow for incidental expenses, for a total construction budget of 

$8,113,500. The construction budget will be established from the available CIP budget 

as shown in the preceding table.  

 

 

 
 

Project Components Budget  Encumbered Paid to Date Remaining Budget

Project Management  $                       2,500  $                     (2,317)  $                      2,317  $                       183 

Preliminary Services  $                       7,500  $                     (7,500)  $                      7,500  $                            - 

Environmental  $                   150,000  $                (146,559)  $                   63,977  $                    3,441 

Design  $                   270,000  $                (270,101)  $                 237,273  $                      (101)

Construction  $                8,113,500  $             8,113,500 

Construction Management  $                     40,000  $                  40,000 

Permits  $                     66,499  $                  66,499 

Equipment   

Project Accounting Summary Totals 8,649,999$                (426,477)$                 311,067$                  8,223,522$             

2017-028 Project Accounting Summary

366

Item 17.



Recommended Action: 

Waive all minor bid irregulates and award a public works agreement to Kemcorp 

Construction Inc. for construction of Westside Fire Station CIP 2018-028 in an 

amount not to exceed $7,475,000; and, authorize the City Manager to sign 

change orders up to an additional $638,500 for a total construction budget of 

$8,113,500.  

Attachments: 

A. Public Works Agreement (Kemcorp) 

 

 

367

Item 17.



 Page 1 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

  
 

This PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and effective  August 
02, 2022 by and between the City of Beaumont, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and 
KEMCORP Construction Inc. (“CONTRACTOR”).  In consideration of the mutual 
covenants and conditions set forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF WORK   
 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform within the time set forth in Article 2 of this 
Agreement and shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, 
and transportation and perform and complete all work required in connection with 
the Westside Fire Station CIP 2017-028 (hereinafter “Project”).  CITY’s  Invitation 
for Bids (“Invitation”) for the Project, dated June 22, 2022, and CONTRACTOR’s 
Bid in response to the Invitation, dated July 18, 2022, are attached hereto as 
Exhibits A and B, respectively and incorporated herein by this reference. The 
Scope of Work for the Project is set forth in the Invitation. In the event that any 
terms of the Bid are different from the Invitation for Bids, the Invitation for Bids shall 
control.  Any additional terms in the Bid that purport to bind the City to any 
additional terms not contained in this Agreement and related attachments shall not 
be binding on the City. 

 
By entering into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that there may be 
other contractors on the site whose work will be coordinated with that of its own. 
CONTRACTOR expressly warrants and agrees that it will cooperate with other 
contractors and will do nothing to delay, hinder, or interfere with the work of other 
separate contractors, the CITY, the Construction Manager, the Engineer, or 
utilities. CONTRACTOR also expressly agrees that, in the event its work is 
hindered, delayed, interfered with, or otherwise affected by a separate contractor, 
its sole remedy will be a direct action against the separate contractor. To the extent 
allowed by law, the CONTRACTOR will have no remedy, and hereby expressly 
waives any remedy against the CITY, the Construction Manager (if any), and the 
Engineer on account of delay, hindrance, interference or other events. 

 
II.  TIME FOR PROJECT COMPLETION  
 

All of CONTRACTOR’s work on the Project shall be completed within durations 
established for the individual activities. All work shall commence ten (10) calendar 
days after receiving a written Notice of Award from the CITY or Construction 
Manager, if a Construction Manager is employed by CITY on the Project.  
CONTRACTOR shall refer to the invitations for bids, and Project Plans and 
Specifications, all of which, as set forth below, are incorporated herein by 
reference, for contractual obligations regarding individual activity durations.  
  

368

Item 17.



 Page 2 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

III.  THE CONTRACT SUM 
 
The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR for the performance of this Agreement, 
subject to any additions and deductions provided in the Project documents, the 
sum of seven million four hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($7,475,000.00). 

 
IV.  PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 

Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Engineer by the 
CONTRACTOR and Certificates for Payment issued by the Engineer, the CITY 
shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the 
CONTRACTOR as provided in the General Conditions, which are fully 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.   

 
This Agreement is subject to the provisions of Article 1.7 (commencing at Section 
20104.50) of Division 2, Part 3 of the Public Contract Code regarding prompt 
payment of contractors by local governments. Article 1.7 mandates certain 
procedures for the payment of undisputed and properly submitted payment 
requests within 30 days after receipt, for the review of payment requests, for notice 
to Contractor of improper payment requests, and provides for the payment of 
interest on progress payment requests which are not timely made in accordance 
with that Article. This Agreement hereby incorporates the provisions of Article 1.7 
as though fully set forth herein. 

 
V.  INDEMNITY, DEFENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
 

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend with legal counsel approved by CITY, and 
hold harmless CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and 
against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation 
reasonable legal counsel fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) 
of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR’s negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct in the performance of work hereunder or its 
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except 
such loss or damage which is caused by the sole or active negligence or willful 
misconduct of the CITY. Should conflict of interest principles preclude a single 
legal counsel from representing both CITY and CONTRACTOR, or should CITY 
otherwise find CONTRACTOR’s legal counsel unacceptable, then CONTRACTOR 
shall reimburse the CITY its costs of defense, including without limitation 
reasonable legal counsels fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of 
litigation. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly pay any final judgment rendered 
against the CITY (and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers) with respect 
to claims determined by a trier of fact to have been the result of the 
CONTRACTOR’s negligent, reckless or wrongful performance. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that the foregoing provisions are intended to be as broad 
and inclusive as is permitted by the law of the State of California and will survive 
termination of this Agreement.  

369

Item 17.



 Page 3 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

 
CONTRACTOR obligations under this section apply regardless of whether or not 
such claim, charge, damage, demand, action, proceeding, loss, stop notice, cost, 
expense, judgment, civil fine or penalty, or liability was caused in part or 
contributed to by an Indemnitee. However, without affecting the rights of CITY 
under any provision of this agreement, CONTRACTOR shall not be required to 
indemnify and hold harmless CITY for liability attributable to the active negligence 
of CITY, provided such active negligence is determined by agreement between the 
parties or by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction. In instances where 
CITY is shown to have been actively negligent and where CITY active negligence 
accounts for only a percentage of the liability involved, the obligation of 
CONTRACTOR will be for that entire portion or percentage of liability not 
attributable to the active negligence of CITY. 

 
VI.  PREVAILING WAGES 
 

A. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to 
prevailing wages. Wage rates for this Project shall be in accordance with 
the “General Wage Determination Made By the Director of Industrial 
Relations Pursuant To California Labor Code, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2, 
Sections 1770, 1773 and 1773.1”, for Riverside County. Wage rates shall 
conform with those posted at Beaumont City Hall and the Project site. 

 
B. The following Labor Code sections are hereby referenced and made a part 

of this Agreement: 
 

1.  Section 1775 - Penalty for Failure to Comply with Prevailing Wage 
Rates. 

2.  Section 1777.4 - Apprenticeship Requirements. 
3.  Section 1777.5 - Apprenticeship Requirements. 
4.  Section 1813 - Penalty for Failure to Pay Overtime. 
5.  Sections 1810 and 1811 - Working Hour Restrictions. 
6.  Section 1775 - Payroll Records. 
7.  Section 1773.8 - Travel and Subsistence Pay. 

 
VII. RECORD AUDIT 
 

In accordance with Government Code, Section 8546.7, records of both the CITY 
and the CONTRACTOR shall be subject to examination and audit by the Auditor 
General for a period of three (3) years after final payment. 

 
VIII.  FINAL PAYMENT 
 

Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Agreement Sum, shall 
be paid by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR no sooner than thirty-five (35) days 
after a Notice of Completion has been recorded, unless otherwise stipulated in the 

370

Item 17.



 Page 4 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

Notice of Completion, provided the work has then been completed, the Agreement 
fully performed, and a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the 
Engineer. 

 
IX.  CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO PROCURE COMPLETION OF PROJECT 
 

In the event CONTRACTOR fails to furnish tools, equipment, or labor in the 
necessary quantity or quality, or fails to prosecute the work or any part thereof 
contemplated by this Agreement in a diligent and workmanlike manner, and if the 
CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) calendar days after receipt of written 
demand from CITY or its designated representative to do so, fails to furnish tools, 
equipment, or labor in the necessary quantity or quality, and to prosecute its work 
and all parts thereof in a diligent and workmanlike manner, or after commencing 
to do so within said three (3) calendar days, fails to continue to do so; then the 
CITY may exclude the CONTRACTOR from the premises, or any portion thereof, 
and take possession of said premises or any portion thereof, together with all 
material and equipment thereon, and may complete the work contemplated by this 
Agreement or any portion of said work, either by furnishing the tools, equipment, 
labor or material necessary, or by letting the unfinished portion of said work, or the 
portion taken over by the CITY to another contractor or by a combination of such 
methods. In any event, the procuring of the completion of said work, or the portion 
thereof taken over by the CITY, shall be a charge against the CONTRACTOR, and 
may be deducted from any money due or becoming due to CONTRACTOR from 
the CITY, or the CONTRACTOR shall pay the CITY the amount of said charge, or 
the portion thereof unsatisfied. The sureties, provided for under this Agreement 
shall become liable for payment should CONTRACTOR fail to pay in full any said 
cost incurred by the CITY. 

 
X. INSURANCE 
 

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Project, 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall maintain insurance in conformance 
with the requirements set forth below. Attached hereto as Exhibit C are copies of 
Certificates of Insurance and the waiver of subrogation endorsement as required 
by Section 6.B.1. CONTRACTOR will use existing coverage to comply with these 
requirements. If that existing coverage does not meet the requirements set forth 
herein, CONTRACTOR agrees to amend, supplement or endorse the existing 
coverage to do so.  

 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the insurance coverage and policy limits set 
forth in this section constitute the minimum amount of coverage required. Any 
insurance proceeds available to CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors in excess of 
the limits and coverage identified in this Agreement and which is applicable to a 
given loss, claim or demand, will be equally available to CITY.  

 
A. Types of Insurance 

371

Item 17.



 Page 5 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

 
Without limiting CONTRACTOR’s indemnification of CITY, and prior to 

commencement of Work, CONTRACTOR shall obtain, provide and maintain at its 
own expense during the term of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type 
and amounts described below and in a form satisfactory to CITY:  
 

1. General liability insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance 
Services Office form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, 
personal injury, and property damage, and a $2,000,000 completed 
operations aggregate. The policy must include contractual liability that 
has not been amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO 
“insured contract” language will not be accepted.  
 

2. Automobile liability insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
automobile insurance at least as broad as Insurance Services Office 
form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property damage for all 
activities of the CONTRACTOR arising out of or in connection with Work 
to be performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any 
owned, hired, non-owned or rented vehicles, in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident. 

 
3. Umbrella or excess liability insurance. If CONTRACTOR is using 

umbrella coverage to meet part of its liability insurance requirements 
under Paragraph 1 of this Section, CONTRACTOR shall obtain and 
maintain an umbrella or excess liability insurance that will provide bodily 
injury, personal injury, completed operations and property damage 
liability coverage at least as broad as the primary coverages set forth 
above, including commercial general liability and employer’s liability. 
Such policy or policies shall include the following terms and conditions:  

 

 A drop down feature requiring the policy to respond in the event 
that any primary insurance that would otherwise have applied 
proves to be uncollectable in whole or in part for any reason;  

 Pay on behalf of wording as opposed to reimbursement;   

 Concurrency of effective dates with primary policies;  

 Policies shall “follow form” to the underlying primary policies; and  

 Insureds under primary policies shall also be insureds under the 
umbrella or excess policies.  

 
4. Workers’ compensation insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance (with limits of at least $1,000,000) for 
CONTRACTOR’s employees in accordance with the laws of the State 
of California, Section 3700 of the Labor Code. In addition, 

372

Item 17.



 Page 6 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

CONTRACTOR shall require each subcontractor to similarly maintain 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, Section 3700 for all 
of the subcontractor’s employees.  

 
CONTRACTOR shall submit to CITY, along with the certificate of insurance, 

a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of CITY, its officers, agents, 
employees and volunteers. 
 

5. Pollution liability insurance.  Environmental Impairment Liability 
Insurance shall be written on a CONTRACTOR’s Pollution Liability form 
or other form acceptable to CITY providing coverage for liability arising 
out of sudden, accidental and gradual pollution and remediation. The 
policy limit shall be no less than $1,000,000 dollars per claim and in the 
aggregate. All activities contemplated in this Agreement shall be 
specifically scheduled on the policy as “covered operations.” The policy 
shall provide coverage for the hauling of waste from the project site to 
the final disposal location, including non-owned disposal sites.  

 
Products/completed operations coverage shall extend a minimum of three 

(3) years after project completion. Coverage shall be included on behalf of the 
insured for covered claims arising out of the actions of independent contractors. If 
the insured is using subcontractors, the Policy must include work performed “by or 
on behalf” of the insured. Policy shall contain no language that would invalidate or 
remove the insurer’s duty to defend or indemnify for claims or suits expressly 
excluded from coverage. Policy shall specifically provide for a duty to defend on 
the part of the insurer. The CITY, its officials, officers, agents, and employees, shall 
be included as insureds under the policy. 
 

6. Builder’s risk insurance. Upon commencement of construction and 
with approval of CITY, CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain 
builder’s risk insurance for the entire duration of the Project until only the 
CITY has an insurable interest. The Builder’s Risk coverage shall 
include the coverages as specified below.  

 
The named insureds shall be CONTRACTOR and CITY, including its 
officers, officials, employees, and agents. All Subcontractors (excluding 
those solely responsible for design Work) of any tier and suppliers shall 
be included as additional insureds as their interests may appear.  
CONTRACTOR shall not be required to maintain property insurance for 
any portion of the Project following transfer of control thereof to CITY. 
The policy shall contain a provision that all proceeds from the builder’s 
risk policy shall be made payable to the CITY. The CITY will act as a 
fiduciary for all other interests in the Project.  

 

373

Item 17.



 Page 7 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

Policy shall be provided for replacement value on an “all risk” basis for 
the completed value of the project. There shall be no coinsurance 
penalty or provisional limit provision in any such policy. Policy must 
include:  (1) coverage for any ensuing loss from faulty workmanship, 
Nonconforming Work, omission or deficiency in design or specifications; 
(2) coverage against machinery accidents and operational testing; (3) 
coverage for removal of debris, and insuring the buildings, structures, 
machinery, equipment, materials, facilities, fixtures and all other 
properties constituting a part of the Project; (4) Ordinance or law 
coverage for contingent rebuilding, demolition, and increased costs of 
construction; (5) transit coverage (unless insured by the supplier or 
receiving contractor), with sub-limits sufficient to insure the full 
replacement value of any key equipment item; (6) Ocean marine cargo 
coverage insuring any Project materials or supplies, if applicable; (7) 
coverage with sub-limits sufficient to insure the full replacement value of 
any property or equipment stored either on or off the Site or any staging 
area. Such insurance shall be on a form acceptable to CITY to ensure 
adequacy of terms and sublimits and shall be submitted to the CITY prior 
to commencement of construction. 

 
B. Other provisions or requirements 

 
1. Proof of insurance. CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates of 

insurance to CITY as evidence of the insurance coverage required 
herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for workers’ 
compensation. Insurance certificates and endorsements must be 
approved by CITY’s risk manager prior to commencement of 
performance. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with 
CITY at all times during the term of this contract. CITY reserves the right 
to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at 
any time.  

 
2. Duration of coverage. CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for 

the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property, which may arise from or in connection 
with the performance of the Work hereunder by CONTRACTOR, his 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. CONTRACTOR 
must maintain general liability and umbrella or excess liability insurance 
for as long as there is a statutory exposure to completed operations 
claims. CITY and its officers, officials, employees, and agents shall 
continue as additional insureds under such policies. 

 
3. Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by CONTRACTOR shall 

be primary and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained 
by CITY shall not be required to contribute with it. The limits of insurance 
required herein may be satisfied by a combination of primary and 

374

Item 17.



 Page 8 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall 
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall 
also apply on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of 
CITY before the CITY’s own insurance or self-insurance shall be called 
upon to protect it as a named insured. 

 
4. CITY’s rights of enforcement. In the event any policy of insurance 

required under this Agreement does not comply with these requirements 
or is canceled and not replaced, CITY has the right but not the duty to 
obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by CITY 
will be promptly reimbursed by CONTRACTOR or CITY will withhold 
amounts sufficient to pay premium from CONTRACTOR payments. In 
the alternative, CITY may cancel this Agreement. 

 
5. Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an 

insurance company currently authorized by the Insurance 
Commissioner to transact business of insurance or is on the List of 
Approved Surplus Line Insurers in the State of California, with an 
assigned policyholders’ Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial Size 
Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of 
Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the CITY’s risk 
manager. 

 
6. Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured 

pursuant to this agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation 
against CITY, its elected or appointed officers, agents, officials, 
employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow CONTRACTOR or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these 
specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. 
CONTRACTOR hereby waives its own right of recovery against CITY, 
and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses 
from each of its subconsultants. 

 
7. Enforcement of contract provisions (non estoppel). CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part 
of the CITY to inform CONTRACTOR of non-compliance with any 
requirement imposes no additional obligations on the CITY nor does it 
waive any rights hereunder. 

 
8. Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage 

features or limits contained in this Section are not intended as a 
limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a waiver of any 
coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a 
given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains 
to a given issue and is not intended by any party or insured to be all 
inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or a waiver of any type. 

375

Item 17.



 Page 9 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the CITY requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the CONTRACTOR. Any available insurance 
proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the CITY. 

 
9. Notice of cancellation. CONTRACTOR agrees to oblige its insurance 

agent or broker and insurers to provide to CITY with a thirty (30) day 
notice of cancellation (except for nonpayment for which a ten (10) day 
notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for each required 
coverage. 

 
10. Additional insured status. General liability policies shall provide or be 

endorsed to provide that CITY and its officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers shall be additional insureds under such policies. 
This provision shall also apply to any excess/umbrella liability policies. 

 
11. Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the 

coverages required herein will be in compliance with these requirements 
if they include any limiting endorsement of any kind that has not been 
first submitted to CITY and approved of in writing. 

 
12. Separation of insureds. A severability of interests provision must apply 

for all additional insureds ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance 
shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or 
suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits of liability. The 
policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 

 
13. Pass through clause. CONTRACTOR agrees to ensure that its 

subconsultants, subcontractors, and any other party involved with the 
project who is brought onto or involved in the project by CONTRACTOR, 
provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements 
required of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to monitor and 
review all such coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that 
such coverage is provided in conformity with the requirements of this 
section. CONTRACTOR agrees that upon request, all agreements with 
consultants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be 
submitted to CITY for review. 

 
14. CITY’s right to revise requirements. The CITY reserves the right at 

any time during the term of the contract to change the amounts and 
types of insurance required by giving the CONTRACTOR a ninety (90) 
day advance written notice of such change. If such change results in 
substantial additional cost to the CONTRACTOR, the CITY and 
CONTRACTOR may renegotiate CONTRACTOR’s compensation. 

 

376

Item 17.



 Page 10 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

15. Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by CITY. CITY reserves the right to require that self-
insured retentions be eliminated, lowered, or replaced by a deductible. 
Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with these specifications 
unless approved by CITY.  

 
16. Timely notice of claims. CONTRACTOR shall give CITY prompt and 

timely notice of claims made or suits instituted that arise out of or result 
from CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement, and that 
involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability 
policies. 

 
17. Additional insurance. CONTRACTOR shall also procure and maintain, 

at its own cost and expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in 
its own judgment may be necessary for its proper protection and 
prosecution of the Work. 

 

 
XI.  CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE  
 

CONTRACTOR must possess at the time of commencing work and throughout the 
Project duration, a Contractor’s License, issued by the State of California, which is 
current and in good standing. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that any subcontractor 
working on the Project possesses at the time of commencing work and throughout 
the Project duration, a Contractor’s License, issued by the State of California, 
which is current and in good standing. 
 

XII.  REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS  
 
A.  Pursuant to Section 1771.1(a) of the Labor Code: 

 
“A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid 
proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, 
or engage in the performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this 
chapter, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant 
to Section 1725.5. It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor 
to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and 
Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, 
provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 
1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.” 

 
B.  CONTRACTOR must be registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR) of the State of California in order to be eligible to work on public 
works projects. CONTRACTOR must ensure registration with the DIR that is active 
and in good standing. 

 

377

Item 17.



 Page 11 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

C.  No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public 
works project (submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 [with 
limited exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code 
section 1771.1(a)]. 

 
No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a 
public works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. 

 
This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
D. The CONTRACTOR is not subject to public works requirements (including 
registration with the DIR) if the public works project is under $1,000, unless the 
CITY knows that the same CONTRACTOR will be awarded total project costs in 
excess of $1,000 for a given year. 

 

378

Item 17.



 Page 12 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

XIII.  CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING 
 

If CONTRACTOR is a corporation, the undersigned hereby represents and 
warrants that the corporation is duly incorporated and in good standing in the State 
of California, and that David Van Dyke whose title is President is authorized to act 
for and bind the corporation. 
 

XIV.  PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW 
 

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the Agreement shall be read 
and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or 
otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not currently inserted, then upon 
application of either party the Agreement shall forthwith be physically amended to 
make such insertion or correction. 

 
XV. SUBSURFACE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 

A. In the event trenches or other excavations extend deeper than four (4) feet 
below the surface, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, and before the 
following conditions are disturbed, notify the CITY in writing of any: 

 
1.  Material that the CONTRACTOR believes may be material that is 

hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and 
Safety Code that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II or 
Class III disposal site in accordance with the provisions of existing 
law. 

2.  Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from 
those indicated.  

3.  Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, 
different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally 
recognized as inherent in the Work or the character provided for in 
the CONTRACT. 

 
B. Upon receipt of said notification the CITY will investigate the conditions, and 

if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous 
waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the CONTRACTOR’s cost of or 
the time required for performance of any part of the work, the CITY will issue 
a change order under the procedures described in the General Conditions. 

 
C. In the event that a dispute arises between the CITY and the CONTRACTOR 

whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste or 
cause a decrease or increase in the CONTRACTOR’s cost of or time 
required for performance of any part of the work, the CONTRACTOR shall 
not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by the 
Agreement, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the 

379

Item 17.



 Page 13 of 13 Public Works Agreement 

Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall retain any and all rights provided 
either by Agreement or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes 
and protests between the contracting parties. 

 
XVI. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT 
 

This Agreement entered into consists of the following CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, 
all of which are component parts of the Agreement as if herein set out in full or 
attached hereto: 

 
Notice Inviting Bids 
Scope of Work Summary 
Information for Bidders 
Bid Form 
Non-Collusion Affidavit 
Site Visit Certification 
Faithful Performance Bond 
Labor and Materials Payment 

Bond 
General and Supplemental 

Conditions 
Special Conditions 
Project Construction Schedule 
Proposed Subcontractors 

Bid Bond 
Information Required of Bidder 
Construction Services Agreement 
Certificate Regarding Worker’s 
Compensation 
Drug-free Workplace Certification 
Plans and Specifications 
Addenda 
Drawings 
Change Orders 
Shop Drawing Transmittals 
Contractor’s Certificate Regarding 
Non-Asbestos Containing 

Materials 
 

All of the above named CONTRACT DOCUMENTS are intended to be 
complementary. Work required by one of the above named CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS and not by others shall be done as if required by all. 

 
XVII.  ENTIRE CONTRACT 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract of the parties. No other agreements 
or contracts, whether oral or written, pertaining to the work to be performed, exists 
between the parties. This Agreement can be modified only by an amendment in 
writing, signed by both parties. 

 
 

[Signatures on following page.] 

380

Item 17.



14 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
 
 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

 
 
CITY: 
 
CITY OF BEAUMONT 
 
 
 
By: 
________________________________ 
            Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
KEMCORP Construction Inc. 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 
Print Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: 
_____________________________ 
 

 
 

381

Item 17.



15 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

CITY’S  INVITATION FOR BIDS 
  

(Insert behind this page.) 
 

382

Item 17.



16 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

CONTRACTOR’S Bid  
  
 

(Insert behind this page.) 
  

383

Item 17.



17 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

 
EXHIBIT “C” 

 
 

Insurance Certificates and Endorsements 
 

(Insert behind this page.) 
 
 
 

 

384

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 NOTICE INVITING BIDS 
1 

NOTICE INVITING BIDS 
 
The City of Beaumont, Public Works Department (“City”) is soliciting bids for: 
 

CIP 2017-028 WESTSIDE FIRE STATION 
 
BID DATES, TIMES, & LOCATIONS: 
Bid Published:      June 22, 2022 
Bids Must Be Received By:   July 18, 2022 @ 11:00 AM 
Place Of Bid Receipt:     550 E. Sixth Street (City Hall) 
       Beaumont, CA 92223 
Questions In By:     July 6, 2022 @ 11:00 A.M. 
Bid Opening Date:       July 18, 2022 @ 11:15 AM 
Bid Opening Location:     550 E. Sixth Street (City Hall), Room 4 
       Beaumont, CA 92223 
 
Bids received after this time will be discarded.  Bids shall be valid for 60 calendar days 
after the bid opening date. Bids must be submitted on the City’s Bid Forms.  Bids must 
be prepared on the approved Bid forms and in the manner prescribed in the Instructions 
to Bidders. Bids must be submitted with the following subject:  
 

“BID FOR CIP 2017-028 WESTSIDE FIRE STATION” 
 
LOCATION OF WORK:  
The work to be completed is located on a City-owned parcel at the northeast corner of 
Potrero and Olivewood, in the City of Beaumont. APN 414-120-042. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  
The proposed work shall be performed in accordance with the Contract; General, Special, 
and technical Specifications and Drawings. 
 
In general, the work includes construction of a new Fire Station with a 4,730 sq ft offices, 
day room, Dormitories, kitchen, and weight room wing and a 4,790 sq ft apparatus bay. 
Site development of the ~4.09 ac parcel includes grading, drainage devices, paving, utility 
construction, utility connections, driveways, sidewalks, block walls, water quality features, 
and landscaping.   
 
CONTRACT LENGTH: 
The work for this contract shall not exceed 360 calendar days. Contract time shall 
commence based on the contractor’s lead time of construction material. Appliances are 
excluded from contract time commencement negotiations.   
 
AWARD OF CONTRACT:   
The City shall award the Contract for the Project to the lowest responsive, responsible 

385

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 NOTICE INVITING BIDS 
2 

bidder as determined from the base bid. The City reserves the right to reject any or all 
bids or to waive any irregularities or informalities in any bids or in the bidding process.  
The City of Beaumont hereby affirmatively ensures that minority business enterprises will 
be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this Notice, and that minorities 
nor minority business enterprises will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or religion in any consideration leading to the award 
of contract. For further information, please see the form titled “Notice of Requirement for 
Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246)” 
within the Bid Documents. 
 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATION: 
Copies of the Contract Documents and Specification are available for inspection at no 
cost to the bidder at City Hall. The documents can also be downloaded from the City’s 
Website (https://www.beaumontca.gov) and WWW.PUBLICPURCHASE.COM and reviewed at 
no cost.   
 
BID & BIDDER: 
Bids must be accompanied by cash, a certified or cashier’s check, or a Bid Bond in favor 
of the City in an amount not less than ten percent (10%) of the submitted Total Bid Price.  
  
Each bid shall be accompanied by the security referred to in the Contract Documents, the 
non-collusion affidavit, the list of proposed subcontractors, and all additional 
documentation required by the Instructions to Bidders.  
  
The successful bidder will be required to furnish the City with a Performance Bond equal 
to 100% of the successful bid, and a Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond equal to 100% 
of the successful bid, prior to execution of the Contract. All bonds are to be secured from 
a surety that meets all of the State of California bonding requirements, as defined in Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 995.120, and is admitted by the State of California.  
   
Each bidder shall be a licensed contractor pursuant to the Business and Professions 
Code and shall be licensed in the following appropriate classification(s) of contractor’s 
license(s), for the work bid upon, and must maintain the license(s) throughout the duration 
of the Contract:  
 

• Class “A” and/or Class “B” 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Public Works Department 
Tel: (951) 769-8522 
E-mail:   rvestal@beaumontca.gov  
 

386

Item 17.

https://www.beaumontca.gov/
http://www.publicpurchase.com/


City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
3 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
AVAILABILITY OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
Bids must be submitted to the City on the Bid Forms which are a part of the Bid Package 
for the Project.  Prospective bidders may obtain one (1) complete set of Contract 
Documents at no cost.  Contract Documents may be obtained from the City at the 
location(s) and at the time(s) indicated in the Notice Inviting Bids.  Prospective bidders 
are encouraged to telephone in advance to determine the availability of Contract 
Documents. Any applicable charges for the Contract Documents are outlined in the Notice 
Inviting Bids. The City may also make the Contract Documents available for review at one 
or more plan rooms, as indicated in the Notice Inviting Bids.  Please Note: Prospective 
bidders who choose to review the Contract Documents at a plan room must contact the 
City to obtain the required Contract Documents if they decide to submit a bid for the 
Project. 
 
EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
The City has made copies of the Contract Documents available, as indicated above.  
Bidders shall be solely responsible for examining the Project Site and the Contract 
Documents, including any Addenda issued during the bidding period, and for informing 
itself with respect to local labor availability, means of transportation, necessity for security, 
laws and codes, local permit requirements, wage scales, local tax structure, contractors’ 
licensing requirements, availability of required insurance, and other factors that could 
affect the Work.  Bidders are responsible for consulting the standards referenced in the 
Contract.  Failure of Bidder to so examine and inform itself shall be at its sole risk, and no 
relief for error or omission will be given except as required under State law. 
 
INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
Discrepancies in, and/or omissions from the Plans, Specifications or other Contract 
Documents or questions as to their meaning shall be immediately brought to the attention 
of the City by submission of a written request for an interpretation or correction to the City.  
Such submission, if any, must be sent to the Project Manager by faxing (951)769-8526 
or emailing to rvestal@beaumontca.gov. Any interpretation of the Contract Documents 
will be made only by written addenda duly issued and mailed or delivered to each person 
or firm who has purchased a set of Contract Documents.  The City will not be responsible 
for any explanations or interpretations provided in any other manner.  No person is 
authorized to make any oral interpretation of any provision in the Contract Documents to 
any bidder, and no bidder should rely on any such oral interpretation. Bids shall include 
complete compensation for all items that are noted in the Contract Documents as the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
INSPECTION OF SITE: 
Each prospective bidder is responsible for fully acquainting itself with the conditions of 
the Project Site (which may include more than one site), as well as those relating to the 

387

Item 17.

mailto:rvestal@beaumontca.gov


City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
4 

construction and labor of the Project, to fully understand the facilities, difficulties and 
restrictions which may impact the cost or effort required to complete the Project.   
 
ADDENDA: 
The City reserves the right to revise the Contract Documents prior to the bid opening date.  
Revisions, if any, shall be made by written Addenda.  All addenda issued by the City shall 
be included in the bid and made part of the Contract Documents.  Pursuant to Public 
Contract Code Section 4104.5, if the City issues an Addendum which includes material 
changes to the Project less than 72 hours prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the 
City will extend the deadline for submission of bids. The City may determine, in its sole 
discretion, whether an Addendum warrants postponement of the bid submission date.  
Each prospective bidder shall provide City a name, address and facsimile number to 
which Addenda may be sent, as well as a telephone number by which the City can contact 
the bidder.  Copies of Addenda will be furnished by facsimile, first class mail, express 
mail or other proper means of delivery without charge to all parties who have obtained a 
copy of the Contract Documents and provided such current information. Please Note: 
Bidders are responsible for ensuring that they have received any and all Addenda.  To 
this end, each bidder should contact the Public Works Department to verify that he has 
received all Addenda issued, if any, prior to the bid opening. 
 
ALTERNATE BIDS 
If alternate bid items are called for in the Contract Documents, the lowest bid will be 
determined on the basis of the base bid only.  However, the City may choose to award 
the contract on the basis of the base bid alone or the base bid and any alternate or 
combination of alternates. The time required for completion of the alternate bid items has 
been factored into the Contract duration and no additional Contract time will be awarded 
for any of the alternate bid items.  The City may elect to include one or more of the 
alternate bid items, or to otherwise remove certain work from the Project scope of work, 
accordingly each Bidder must ensure that each bid item contains a proportionate share 
of profit, overhead and other costs or expenses which will be incurred by the Bidder. 
   
COMPLETION OF BID FORMS 
Bids shall only be prepared using copies of the Bid Forms which are included in the 
Contract Documents.  The use of substitute bid forms other than clear and correct 
photocopies of those provided by the City will not be permitted.  Bids shall be executed 
by an authorized signatory as described in these Instructions to Bidders.  In addition, 
Bidders shall fill in all blank spaces (including inserting “N/A” where applicable) and initial 
all interlineations, alterations, or erasures to the Bid Forms.  Bidders shall neither delete, 
modify, nor supplement the printed matter on the Bid Forms nor make substitutions 
thereon. USE OF BLACK OR BLUE INK, INDELIBLE PENCIL OR A TYPEWRITER IS 
REQUIRED.  Deviations in the bid form may result in the bid being deemed non-
responsive. 
 

388

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
5 

MODIFICATIONS OF BIDS: 
Each Bidder shall submit its Bid in strict conformity with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.  Unauthorized additions, modifications, revisions, conditions, limitations, 
exclusions or provisions attached to a Bid may render it non-responsive and may cause 
its rejection.  Bidders shall neither delete, modify, nor supplement the printed matter on 
the Bid Forms, nor make substitutions thereon.  Oral, telephonic and electronic 
modifications will not be considered, unless the Notice Inviting Bids authorizes the 
submission of electronic bids and modifications thereto and such modifications are made 
in accordance with the Notice Inviting Bids. 
 
DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS: 
Pursuant to the funding regulation, the Bidders must designate the name and location of 
each subcontractor who will perform work or render services for in the amount in excess 
of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor’s total bid, as well as the portion of work 
each such subcontractor will perform on the form provided herein by the City.  No 
additional time will be provided to bidders to submit any of the requested information in 
the Designation of Subcontractor form. 
 
LICENSING REQUIREMENTS: 
Pursuant to Section 7028.15 of the Business and Professions Code and Section 3300 of 
the Public Contract Code, all bidders must possess proper licenses for performance of 
this Contract.  Subcontractors must possess the appropriate licenses for each specialty 
subcontracted. Pursuant to Section 7028.5 of the Business and Professions Code, the 
City shall consider any bid submitted by a contractor not currently licensed in accordance 
with state law and pursuant to the requirements found in the Contract Documents to be 
nonresponsive, and the City shall reject the Bid. The City shall have the right to request, 
and Bidders shall provide within five (5) calendar days, evidence satisfactory to the City 
of all valid license(s) currently held by that Bidder and each of the Bidder’s subcontractors, 
before awarding the Contract.  Please also note that, pursuant to Public Contract Code 
Section 20676, sellers of "mined material" must be on an approved list of sellers published 
pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 2717(b) in order to supply mined material for 
this Contract. 
   
SIGNING OF BIDS: 
All Bids submitted shall be executed by the Bidder or its authorized representative.  
Bidders may be asked to provide evidence in the form of an authenticated resolution of 
its Board of Directors or a Power of Attorney evidencing the capacity of the person signing 
the Bid to bind the Bidder to each Bid and to any Contract arising therefrom. If a Bidder 
is a joint venture or partnership, it may be asked to submit an authenticated Power of 
Attorney executed by each joint venturer or partner appointing and designating one of the 
joint venturers or partners as a management sponsor to execute the Bid on behalf of 
Bidder.  Only that joint venturer or partner shall execute the Bid.  The Power of Attorney 
shall also: (1) authorize that particular joint venturer or partner to act for and bind Bidder 
in all matters relating to the Bid; and (2) provide that each venturer or partner shall be 

389

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
6 

under the Bid and under any Contract arising therefrom.  The Bid shall be executed by 
the designated joint venturer or partner on behalf of the joint venture or partnership in its 
legal name. 
 
BID GUARANTEE (BOND): 
Each bid shall be accompanied by: (a) cash; (b) a certified check made payable to the 
City;  (c) a cashier’s check made payable to the City; or (d) a bid bond payable to the City 
executed by the bidder as principal and surety as obligor in an amount not less than 10% 
of the maximum amount of the bid.  Personal sureties and unregistered surety companies 
are unacceptable. The surety insurer shall be California admitted surety insurer, as 
defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120.  The cash, check or bid bond shall 
be given as a guarantee that the bidder shall execute the Contract if it be awarded to the 
bidder, shall provide the payment and performance bonds and insurance certificates and 
endorsements as required herein within ten (10) calendar days after notification of the 
award of the Contract to the bidder.  Failure to provide the required documents may result 
in forfeiture of the bidder’s bid deposit or bond to the City and the City may award the 
Contract to the next lowest responsive, responsible bidder, or may call for new bids. 
 
SUBMISSION OF BIDS: 
Once the Bid and supporting documents have been completed and signed as set forth 
herein, they shall be mailed or hand delivered to the City at the place and to the attention 
of the person indicated in the Notice Inviting Bids. No oral or telephonic bids will be 
considered.  No forms transmitted via facsimile, or any other electronic means will be 
considered unless specifically authorized by City as provided herein.     
Only where expressly permitted in the Notice Inviting Bids, may Bidders submit their bids 
via electronic transmission pursuant to Public Contract Code Sections 1600 and 1601.  
The acceptable method(s) of electronic transmission shall be stated in the Notice Inviting 
Bids.  City reserves the right to not accept electronically transmitted bids where not 
specifically authorized in the Notice Inviting Bids, and may reject any bid not strictly 
complying with City’s designated methods for delivery.  
  
DELIVERY AND OPENING OF BIDS 
Bids will be received by the City at the address shown in the Notice Inviting Bids up to the 
date and time shown therein.  It is the Bidder’s sole responsibility to ensure that its Bid is 
received as specified.  Bids may be submitted earlier than the dates(s) and time(s) 
indicated. 
 
Bids will be opened at the date and time stated in the Notice Inviting Bids, and the amount 
of each Bid will be read aloud and recorded.  All Bidders may, if they desire, attend the 
opening of Bids at the address specified in the NIB.  The City may in its sole discretion, 
elect to postpone the opening of the submitted Bids.  City reserves the right to reject any 
or all Bids and to waive any informality or irregularity in any Bid.  In the event of a 
discrepancy between the written amount of the Bid Price and the numerical amount of the 
Bid Price, the written amount shall govern. 

390

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
7 

 
WITHDRAWAL OF BID: 
Prior to bid opening, a Bid may be withdrawn by the Bidder only by means of a written 
request signed by the Bidder or its properly authorized representative.   
 
BASIS OF AWARD; BALANCED BIDS: 
The City shall award the Contract to the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder submitting 
a responsive Bid.  The City may reject any Bid which, in its opinion when compared to 
other bids received or to the City’s internal estimates, does not accurately reflect the cost 
to perform the Work.  The City may reject as non-responsive any bid which unevenly 
weights or allocates costs, including but not limited to overhead and profit to one or more 
particular bid items. 
 
DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS; INTEREST IN MORE THAN ONE BID: 
No bidder shall be allowed to make, submit or be interested in more than one bid.  
However, a person, firm, corporation or other entity that has submitted a subproposal to 
a bidder, or that has quoted prices of materials to a bidder, is not thereby disqualified from 
submitting a subproposal or quoting prices to other bidders submitting a bid to the City.  
No person, firm, corporation, or other entity may submit subproposal to a bidder, or quote 
prices of materials to a bidder, when also submitting a prime bid on the same Project. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
The successful bidder shall procure the insurance in the form and in the amount specified 
in the Contract Documents. 
 
AWARD PROCESS: 
Once all Bids are opened and reviewed to determine the lowest responsive and 
responsible Bidder, the City Council may award the contract.  The apparent successful 
Bidder should begin to prepare the following documents: (1) the Performance Bond; (2) 
the Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond; and (3) the required insurance certificates and 
endorsements.  Once the City notifies the Bidder of the award, the Bidder will have ten 
(10) consecutive calendar days from the date of this notification to execute the Contract 
and supply the City with all of the required documents and certifications.  Regardless 
whether the Bidder supplies the required documents and certifications in a timely manner, 
the Contract time will begin to run ten (10) calendar days from the date of the notification.  
Once the City receives all of the properly drafted and executed documents and 
certifications from the Bidder, the City shall issue a Notice to Proceed to that Bidder. 
 
FILING OF BID PROTESTS 
Bidders may file a “protest” of a Bid with the City’s City Engineer.  In order for a Bidder’s 
protest to be considered valid, the protest must: 

• Be filed in writing within five (5) calendar days after the bid opening date; 

• Clearly identify the specific irregularity or accusation;  

• Clearly identify the specific City staff determination or recommendation 

391

Item 17.



City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
8 

being protested; 

• Specify, in detail, the grounds of the protest and the facts supporting the 
protest; and 

• Include all relevant, supporting documentation with the protest at time of 
filing. 

If the protest does not comply with each of these requirements, it will be rejected as 
invalid. If the protest is valid, the City’s City Engineer, or other designated City staff 
member, shall review the basis of the protest and all relevant information.  The City 
Engineer will provide a written decision to the protestor.  The protestor may then appeal 
the decision of the City Engineer to the City Manager. 
 
WORKERS COMPENSATION: 
Each bidder shall submit the Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
form.  
 
SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITY: 
The Contract Documents call for monthly progress payments based upon the percentage 
of the work completed.  The City will retain five percent (5%) of each progress payment 
as provided by the Contract Documents.  At the request and expense of the successful 
Bidder, the City will substitute securities for the amount so retained in accordance with 
Public Contract Code Section 22300.   
 
PREVAILING WAGES: 
Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates, including 
the per diem wages applicable to the work, and for holiday and overtime work, including 
employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, and similar purposes, in 
the County of Riverside in which the work is to be done, have been determined by the 
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California.  These wages are 
set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available from the 
California Department of Industrial Relations’ Internet web site at www.dir.ca.gov. Future 
effective prevailing wage rates which have been predetermined, and are on file with the 
California Department of Industrial Relations, are referenced but not printed in the general 
prevailing wage rates. Pursuant to SB 854, which amended the Prevailing Wage Laws, 
this Contract is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  Beginning 
March 1, 2015, with very limited exceptions, no contractor or subcontractor may be listed 
on a bid proposal for this Contract unless registered with the DIR pursuant to Labor Code 
section 1725.5.  Beginning April 1, 2015, no contractor or subcontractor may be awarded 
this Contract unless registered with the DIR pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5.  The 
DIR registration number for each contractor and subcontractor must be identified on the 
bid proposal - failure to identify this number could result in the bid being rejected as non-
responsive.  It is each bidder’s responsibility to ensure that they have fully complied with 
SB 854.  The City will report all necessary contracts to the DIR as required by the 
Prevailing Wage Laws. 
 

392

Item 17.

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


City of Beaumont 
Request for bid 

Westside Fire Station 
CIP 2017-028 

 

 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
9 

DEBARMENT OF CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS:  
In accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, contractors or subcontractors may 
not perform work on a public works project with a subcontractor who is ineligible to 
perform work on a public project pursuant to Section 1777.1 or Section 1777.7 of the 
Labor Code.  Any contract on a public works project entered into between a contractor 
and a debarred subcontractor is void as a matter of law.  A debarred subcontractor may 
not receive any public money for performing work as a subcontractor on a public works 
contract.  Any public money that is paid to a debarred subcontractor by the Contractor for 
the Project shall be returned to the City.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the 
payment of wages to workers of a debarred subcontractor who has been allowed to work 
on the Project. 
 
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND REQUIREMENTS: 
Within the time specified in the Contract Documents, the Bidder to whom a Contract is 
awarded shall deliver to the City four identical counterparts of the Performance Bond and 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond in the form supplied by the City and included in the 
Contract Documents.  Failure to do so may, in the sole discretion of City, result in the 
forfeiture of the Bid Guarantee.  The surety supplying the bond must be an admitted surety 
insurer, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120, authorized to do business 
as such in the State of California and satisfactory to the City.  The Performance Bond and 
the Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond shall be for one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Total Bid Price. 
 
REQUEST FOR SUBSTITUTIONS 
The successful bidder shall comply with the substitution request provisions set forth in the 
Special Conditions, including any deadlines for substitution requests which may occur 
prior to the bid opening date.  
 
SALES AND OTHER APPLICABLE TAXES, PERMITS, LICENSES AND FEES 
Contractor and its subcontractors performing work under this Contract will be required to 
pay California sales tax and other applicable taxes, and to pay for permits, licenses and 
fees required by the agencies with authority in the jurisdiction in which the work will be 
located, unless otherwise expressly provided by the Contract Documents. 
 
EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
As required herein the Bidder to whom an award is made shall execute the Contract in 
the amount determined by the Contract Documents.  The City may require appropriate 
evidence that the persons executing the Contract are duly empowered to do so. 
 
 

END OF INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

393

Item 17.



394

Item 17.



395

Item 17.



396

Item 17.



397

Item 17.



398

Item 17.



399

Item 17.



400

Item 17.



401

Item 17.



402

Item 17.



403

Item 17.



404

Item 17.



405

Item 17.



406

Item 17.



407

Item 17.



408

Item 17.



409

Item 17.



410

Item 17.



411

Item 17.



412

Item 17.



413

Item 17.



414

Item 17.



415

Item 17.



416

Item 17.



417

Item 17.



418

Item 17.



419

Item 17.



420

Item 17.



421

Item 17.



422

Item 17.



423

Item 17.



424

Item 17.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Doug Story, Community Services Director  

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Update on Veterans and First Responders Memorial Plaza 

Improvement Project 
  

Background and Analysis:  

After the success of the inaugural Veterans Day Parade and Ceremony City staff was 

instructed to re-establish the First Responder and Veterans Memorial Committee to 

begin discussions on renovating the current plaza area in front of City Hall.  The 

committee consisted of city staff and community stakeholders such as: 

  

Councilmember Mike Lara 

Anita Worthen 

Jim Lillibridge 

Bob Tinker 

Michael Granada 

 

The committee began meeting on December 9, 2021. At this time discussions began 

and direction was given to solicit the services of a landscape architect who could 

redesign the current layout of memorial plaza and address the needs for ADA 

accessibility, future expansion, and to provide areas for community members to 

remember and pay respects to Beaumont residents who had served this country in the 

armed forces or served this community as a first responder. 

 

On February 10, 2022, a Professional Services Agreement was executed between the 

City of Beaumont and Architerra Design Group in the amount of $15,825 for conceptual 

plans of an expanded and remodeled memorial plaza area.  

 

The conceptual plan includes: 

 

o New hardscape areas around plaza to address accessibility and 

expansion,  

425

Item 18.



o Water features, 

o New lighting, 

o New landscape and turf, 

o New electrical and lighting, 

o Relocation of flags, 

o Preservation of current memorial monuments, 

o Security cameras, and 

o Additional seating. 

 

Once design and construction documents are complete, public bids will be released and 

a contract will be awarded for construction of the memorial plaza. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The estimated cost to prepare this report is $175. Funding for this project is allocated 

through the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Fiscal Year 2023-2027.  Project 

No. P-14 has designated $1,750,000 for design and construction and Project No. P-15 

has designated $50,000 for security cameras in the plaza. 

 

Memorial Plaza Improvement Project 

Project Components  Budget Encumbered Paid to Date 
Remaining 

Budget 

Project Management         

Preliminary Services               

Environmental                

Design  $95,000.00   $(15,825.00)  $5,367.85   $79,175.00  

Construction  $1,643,000.00    $1,643,000.00  

Construction Management  $12,000.00     $12,000.00  

Permits             

Equipment             

Project Accounting Summary 
Totals  $1,750,000.00   $(15,825.00)  $5,367.85  

 
$1,734,175.00  

 

Recommended Action: 

Receive and file the concept plans and digital renderings.  Make any suggestions 

or remarks pertaining to the improvement plans of the Veterans and First 

Responders Memorial Plaza, and 

Direct staff to proceed with a Request for Proposal for Professional Services of a 

Landscape Architect for full design of the plaza to include engineered plans and 

complete construction documents. 

426

Item 18.



Attachments: 

A. Concept Plans  

B. Digital Renderings 

427

Item 18.



428

Item 18.



429

Item 18.



430

Item 18.



431

Item 18.



432

Item 18.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Jennifer Ustation, Finance Director 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Banking Services Contract 
  

Background and Analysis:  

The City of Beaumont has used Citibank for its general operating banking services for 

many years. City staff has been happy with the services but was notified on March 24, 

2022, that they would no longer support deposits that require collateral above the FDIC 

coverage. Government Code section 16521 requires banks to deposit securities as 

collateral with the State Treasurer valued at 110 percent of the uninsured portion of the 

collected funds deposited with the banks.  

 

City staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) on May 6, 2022, with an original 

proposal due date of June 1, 2022. Due to a lack of submitted proposals, the RFP 

proposal due date was extended to July 8, 2022. The objective of the RFP was to 

ensure fair, competitive procurement of cost-effective banking services that not only 

maintained the high quality of cash management support to the City but also supported 

continued technology enhancements that will further improve the payment process for 

residents and businesses.  

 

The minimum qualifications within the RFP included: being a federally or State of 

California chartered financial institution, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a 

qualified depository for public funds, a full service bank in good standing capable of 

providing services sought by the City, sufficient capitalization to accommodate 

cash/investment management needs, and having an established office within close 

proximity to the City and dedicated staff committed to servicing the City’s account.  

 

The City received four (4) responses from interested banking institutions. The proposals 

received and proposed estimated fees based on activity detail provided, excluding any 

earnings credits proposed are included below: 

 

 

433

Item 19.



 

Bank of America (estimated $8,848.05 monthly fees) 

Bank of the West (estimated $9,600.53 monthly fees) 

US Bank (estimated $7,777.50 monthly fees) 

Wells Fargo (estimated $5,372.59 monthly fees) 

 

Each of the proposals were reviewed and scored by the Finance and Administrative 

Services Departments and sent to the City Treasurer for review. While all of the banks 

that responded met the minimum qualifications, the two banks that had the strongest 

proposals (based on understanding of scope of work, quality of proposal, pricing 

considerations and perceived quality of service) were invited for interviews.  

 

Upon completion of the interviews, it was determined that Wells Fargo would be the 

most ideal fit for the City of Beaumont going forward.  

 

Some of the highlights of Wells Fargo’s offerings include: 

 

1. Competitive monthly fees and earnings credit rate, 

2. $35,000 transition allowance to be used in first 12 months, 

3. Locked pricing for a five-year term with option for two additional two-year 

extensions, and 

4. Personal service with representative located close to city offices. 

Fiscal Impact: 

This contract provides for services based on volume of transactions processed. Costs 

incurred are offset by an earnings credit provided by the bank upon the average daily 

positive collected balance (investable balance). The proposal submitted by the bank 

estimated that credits on the average bank balance would likely offset most, if not all, of 

the monthly banking costs. The initial term of the agreement is for five years with a 

renewal option for two additional two-year extensions.   

 

Recommended Action: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the contract and authorize the City Manager to sign 

any associated agreements between the City and Wells Fargo to provide 

continuity of banking services needed to ensure timely processing of financial 

activities.  

434

Item 19.



Attachments: 

A. Request for Proposals  

B. Well Fargo Response to RFP 

C. Wells Fargo Acceptance of Services 

D. Wells Fargo Amendment to Master Agreement Pricing 

E. Wells Fargo Authorization Certificate 

F. Wells Fargo Certification of Official Custodian 

G. Wells Fargo Presentation 

435

Item 19.



 

 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

BANKING & 

MERCHANT SERVICES 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: 

June 1, 2022 before 4:00 PM 

436

Item 19.



 2 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 

FOR: BANKING SERVICES  

TIMETABLE 

Issue RFP May 6, 2022 

Written Questions Due May 20, 2022 by 4:00 PM 

Responses to Questions May 25, 2022 

Proposals Due June 1, 2022 

Possible Interviews  June 8, 2022 

Bid Reviews (Trustee Finance Sub-Committee 
Meeting) 

June 13, 2022 

Award bid-Selection (City Council Meeting) June 21, 2022 

Implementation/Go-live TBD 
 

CONTACT PERSON:          Jennifer Ustation, Director of Finance 

justation@beaumontca.gov 

City of Beaumont 
Finance Department 
550 E. 6th Street 
Beaumont, CA 92223 

437

Item 19.



 3 

NOTICE FOR PROPOSALS 

The City of Beaumont is requesting proposals for banking services from all financial institutions 
with full-service branches located within the corporate limits of Riverside County, with a preference 
inside the City of Beaumont limits.  

One (1) original proposal and five (5) copies on the thumb drive shall be delivered to the 
City of Beaumont Finance Department at the above indicated address and by electronic 
submission via email to justation@beaumontca.gov, with a “subject” title- “City of Beaumont 
Banking & Merchant Services RFP” on or before 4:00 PM, Monday, May 20, 2022. It is the 
respondent’s responsibility to ensure that proposals are received prior to the 4:00 PM proposal 
closing time as late proposals will not be accepted. The City of Beaumont reserves the right to 
award or reject proposals in part or in whole and on any basis, it deems in the best interests of the 
City. 

BACKGROUND 

 
The City of Beaumont is a general law city incorporated in 1912 currently serving a population of 
approximately 55,000, located in Western Riverside County. The City operates under a council-
manager format of government which consists of a Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem, three 
Councilmembers and the City Manager. The positions of Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem are rotated 
among the elected Councilmembers. City Clerk and Treasurer are elected positions, each for a 
four-year term.  
 
In addition to its function as the governing body of the City, the City Council acts as the 
governing body for other separate entities: Beaumont Financing Authority, Beaumont Public 
Improvement Authority, Beaumont Transit System, Beaumont Wastewater Systems, and the 
Beaumont Utility Authority. The City’s management also has custodial, accounting and financial 
reporting responsibility for the Successor Agency to the City of Beaumont Redevelopment 
Agency. There is no requirement for separate financial reporting for these separate entities with 
one exception (Beaumont Transit System).  

Official accounting records are on-site in the Finance Department, while some supporting 
information may be located in other departments within the City. Beaumont uses the Tyler Incode 
10 accounting software. Payroll is processed through Incode 10 as well.  

CURRENT BANKING SERVICES 

The City of Beaumont currently maintains a primary commercial banking and merchant services 
relationship with Citibank. The City has determined that a review of the services offered by 
qualifying institutions is appropriate at this time. It is the City’s preference to maintain commercial 
banking services for its operating account to maximize cash flow, maintain efficiency and minimize 
administrative costs. The City of Beaumont seeks proposals from financial institutions interested in 
providing banking and services for the City. We encourage financial institutions to submit 
comprehensive proposals which offer the highest quality of service while providing opportunities 
for improving the current management of cash flow. The City is looking for improved integration with 
its systems; a clear and fair charging structure; a full-service and easy-to-use configurable 
online portal; ease of access to banking data and transactions; and high levels of customer 
service with single points of contact. The City is also interested in any technological advances and 
pilots that could improve the overall banking experience.  

438

Item 19.

mailto:justation@beaumontca.gov


 4 

In 2022, the average monthly balance in the operating account was approximately $17 million. 
The most current client account analysis statements and bank statements can be obtained from 
Finance via email (justation@beaumontca.gov) illustrating the volume of the transactions for all 
the City’s operating accounts.  

The City also maintains two (2) merchant IDs that process credit card transactions through an 
“Online Point of Sale Terminal”. One of the merchant IDs is used for utility related credit card 
transactions while the other merchant ID is used for non-utility related credit card transactions. 

This RFP does not cover institutional custody services or corporate trust services. 

The City will attempt to administer the proposal process in accordance with the terms and dates 
outlined in this RFP, however, the City reserves the right to modify the activities, timeline, or any 
other aspect of the process at any time, as deemed necessary. By requesting proposals, the 
City is in no way obligated to award a contract or pay the expenses of proposing banks in 
connection with the preparation or submission of a proposal. The award of any contract shall be 
contingent on the requisite staff and City Council approvals. Determination of best value to the City 
shall be based upon, but not limited to, the following considerations: cost; the ability, capacity, and 
skill of the proposer to provide the services; the ability of the provider to deliver timely services; the 
character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, social responsibility, and efficiency of the 
provider; and the quality of the provider’s performance on previous contracts with the City. No single 
factor will determine the final award decision. It is recommended that all proposers provide fully 
comprehensive proposals since all aspects will be considered in the determination for the award. 

All costs directly or indirectly related to the presentation of a response to the Request for Proposal 
(RFP), any oral presentations required to supplement and/or clarify a proposal, and/or reasonable 
demonstrations which may, at the discretion of the City, be required of the proposer shall be the 
proposer’s sole responsibility. 

PRE-SUBMITTAL QUESTIONS 

The City will accept pre-submittal questions from RFP participants in the interest of clarity and 
complete responses to the RFP. The RFP participants are encouraged to cover all questions in one 
request so that City staff can provide timely and effective responses. 
 
All pre-submittal questions will only be accepted via email or until May 20, 2022. Responses to all 
questions will be emailed to all RFP participants. RFP questions are to be submitted to Jennifer 
Ustation at justation@beaumontca.gov. In order to assure that the City has one contact person per 
bank, please provide this contact information when submitting the proposal. The City will conclude the 
banks that do not provide contact information do not want to be included in the Pre-Submittal 
information sharing. 

439

Item 19.



 5 

I. PROPOSAL CONTENT 

All proposals submitted must include the Proposal Submission Package provided in Section VII 
of this RFP. Other information concerning the qualifications of the bank may also be included with 
the proposal (as determined solely by the bank), such as: 

The bank's philosophy regarding its relationship with the client. 

 Experience of the bank in providing services to major commercial or governmental accounts. 

 A maximum of three references that have a current banking relationship with the bank. 
Governmental agency references are required. Please list contact person, phone number, 
email, and years of banking service. 

 Identification of staff capabilities, along with resumes of key personnel who will be working 
with the City of Beaumont at the corporate and branch level. 

 Samples of reports to be provided to the City. (Monthly Statements, Analysis Reports, 
etc.) 

 Other information the bank believes to be appropriate. 

Any supplemental information provided will be reviewed and considered during the selection 
process. The City will not consider proposals for partial services. The required documents are the 
Proposal Submission Package, which will include the last three years Financial Statements. 

II. PROPOSAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Each proposal must meet all the specifications discussed in this RFP. All information 
provided to the City in response to the RFP will become public information. If a proposal 
is submitted, it is assumed that the proposal meets or exceeds the requirements as stated. 
If a required service cannot be met by the bank, then the phrase "NO PROPOSAL" should 
be entered on the proposal form for that service. In the case of a "NO PROPOSAL" 
Statement, the bank may offer an alternative service, which must be described in detail 
on a supplemental attachment. Any non-substantial deviations may be considered by 
the City, provided the bank submits a full description and justification for the proposed 
deviation(s). The final determination regarding any proposed deviation or alternative 
will be made by the City. 

2. All questions or requests for information submitted via pre-submittal process email will 
receive an email response from the City, which will be shared with all other 

banks providing email contacts. However, it is an explicit provision of this RFP that any 
communication is not binding on the City's proposal process or selection of the successful 
bank. 

3. Proposers must be a federally or State of California chartered institution during the term of 
the contract. 

4. Proposers must maintain a full-service branch within the corporate limits of the County of 
Riverside during the term of the contract. 

440

Item 19.



 6 

5. The “Monthly Activity Detail” (page A-2) is to be used as a basis for responding to bank service 
fees. The “Monthly Activity Detail” is a summary of a sample month of all transactions on 
all City accounts included in this RFP. It is believed to be a reliable estimate of the volume of 
the City's banking activities; however, the actual number of transactions may vary, and no 
guarantees are provided by the City regarding minimum or maximum volumes. All 
applicable, one-time set up or service charges related to any of the services covered in a 
bank’s proposal must be individually disclosed in the proposal, with a cost on each one-
time service/fee (or a no charge reference), as well as a description of the service(s). 
This information should be considered an addendum to the standard bank service fees that 
should be submitted based on the “Monthly Activity Detail” of standard services and 
fees. If an addendum on one-time services/fees is not included in the proposal, the City 
will consider the proposal complete, with all applicable onetime or any other services being 
no charge to the City. 

6.  Each bank submitting a proposal will include one (1) set of their annual audited financial 
reports for the past three (3) years. 

7.  Any RFP submitted to the City becomes the property of the City. The City reserves the right 
to waive non-substantial irregularities in any proposal, to reject any or all proposals, and to 
reject one part of a proposal and accept the other, except to the extent that proposals are 
qualified by specific limitations by the bank. 

8.  The Proposal Submission Package must be completed in its entirety. The 
extensions of unit price figures for the estimated quantities as well as lump-sum prices 
must be disclosed on the Bank Service Fee Schedules, with standard monthly fees 
based on volumes listed in the “Monthly Activity Detail,” with one-time or other service 
fees listed on an addendum to that report. If the unit price and total amount quoted by 
any bank for any item are not in agreement, the unit price alone will be considered as 
representing the bank's intention, and the total will be corrected to conform to the specified 
unit price. Proposal Submission Package unit price amounts for all required services 
must be included in the Package, as well as any one-time service fees. Unit prices must 
also be included for proposed optional and/or additional services included in the Proposal 
Submission Package.  

9.  Banks may withdraw their proposals, without prejudice, prior to the date and time specified for 
proposal submission, by sending a written request or email to Jennifer Ustation, Director of 
Finance. No proposal received after the closing date or at any location other than the 
location stated in the RFP will be considered. 

10.  After notice of the award has been sent by mail to the address provided in the bank's 
proposal, the bank to whom an award is made will execute a written contract with the City no 
later than July 5, 2022. 

11.  If the bank to whom the award is made fails to enter into the contract, the award will be 
annulled and an award will be made to the next best proposer as determined by the City; and 
that bank will fulfill every stipulation as if it were the party to whom the first award was made. 

441

Item 19.



 7 

12.  The successful bank will not assign, transfer, convey, or otherwise dispose of the contract, or 
right, title of interest, or power to execute such a contract to any person, any other bank, firm, 
or corporation without previous consent in writing by the City Council of the City of Beaumont. 

13.  In the performance of the terms of this RFP, the bank agrees that it will not engage in, nor 
permit agents or employees of the bank, or such subcontractors as the bank may employ, to 
engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of persons because of race, age, color, 
ancestry, national origin, religious creed, political opinion or affiliations, sex, marital status, 
disabilities, or applicable state or federal employment laws. 

14. The contract will provide that the City reserves the right to terminate the contract at any 
time upon sixty (60) days prior written notice of the City's intent to terminate the contract. 

15. The bank will immediately notify the City should the bank fail to meet the collateral requirements 
set forth in the State Banking Financial Code Section 53630 through 53684. 

16.  Causes for termination of the contract may include any one of the following: failure to 
promptly and faithfully provide the services required in this RFP; violation of any law 
governing any municipal depository; failure to cooperate upon receiving any reasonable 
request for information or service; and improper actions of the institution's officers or 
employees which, in the opinion of the City, would adversely affect the City's interest or 
endanger the safety or liquidity of municipal funds. 

III. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following section details the services to be provided to the City. Except for non-
substantial deviations or acceptable alternatives, all services listed in this section are mandatory. The 
City will not consider proposals for partial services. 

The following required services include: 

1. The bank must be a member of the Federal Reserve System. The bank must be 
a Federal or State of California chartered commercial banking institution with at 
least one full-service branch located within County of Riverside limits. 

2. The bank must be a qualified depository for public funds pursuant to the applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations, statutes and policies. All balances must be fully 
collateralized through the pool collateral system required under the State of 
California. 

3. The bank must fulfill orders for currency and coin through the City’s courier upon 
request. 

4. The bank will engage a team or specific relationship coordinators for the life of 
the contract. 

5. The bank will provide full account reconciliation, positive pay, electronic fraud protection, 
electronic deposits and disbursement, online wire entry, and online stop-payment 
placement. 

442

Item 19.



 8 

6. Online reporting includes prior day transactions (no later than 8:00 a.m. Pacific 
Standard Time the next day) and current day transactions. 

7. Compensating balances and sweep accounts are preferred. 

8. Provide key measures of the bank’s financial strength, including ratings from 
nationally recognized rating service(s) and banking rating service(s). Include one 
copy of the bank’s most recent audited financial statements and one copy of the 
bank’s rating from a nationally recognized rating service. 

9. Provide the financial institution’s current level of public funds deposited and related 
collateral market value. 

10. The ability to accept multiple file submissions from our payment processing financial 
system. 

11. Provide the City with a check scanner for deposit of checks directly from City Hall 
as well as a “smart-safe” for deposit of cash.  

12. Image of deposited items and provide online access for deposit reconciliation including 
images of deposited items. 

13. Provide online and email notification of deposit issues within 24 hours.  

14. Possible off-site credit card payments on City-issued mobile devices. 

15. Provide positive pay services with online transmission of check details. 

16. Provide positive pay exception item review and correction online.  

17. Provide online stop-payment services. 

18. Provide all canceled checks daily (by 8 a.m. next day) and monthly, sorted in check 
number order. Provide an electronic file of paid/cleared check images (front and 
back), in addition to any alternative electronic archival system used by the bank. 

19. Provide online access to cashed check images. 

20. Method of reversal of automatic direct deposits for errors. 

21. Accept and send ACH transactions. 

22. Accept ACH payment files from 3rd parties. 

23. Provide ACH debit blocking services. 

24. Provide a secure electronic method to initiate intra-bank transfers. 

25. Provide a secure electronic method with dual authorization for wiring funds. 

26. Provide online balance reporting services

443

Item 19.



 9 

27. Allow approximately 5 City employees with different levels of authorization to access 
the bank’s online reporting system. 

28. Provide account reconciliation services for disbursements (full, partial or 
positive pay, depending on account). 

29. Provide monthly activity statements and reports by the 10th day of the following 
month or sooner. 

 

30. Provide a detailed monthly account analysis statement for each individual account 
and a consolidated statement showing charges for all account services. 

31. Collateralize all collected balances, in excess of balances insured by the FDIC as 
required by applicable Federal/California Government Codes. 

32. The city requires a daily deposit pick-up from City Hall with additional pick-up 
available upon request via an armored car service provider.  

IV. INFORMATION REQUESTED 

A. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
1. Provide a general overview and brief history of your organization, including parent 

and/or subsidiary companies and the number of employees. 
2. Provide the address of the office location(s) that will service the account. 
3. Describe the experience of the financial institution in providing similar 

services for other cities and institutions. 
4. Complete the following table with current credit ratings by Standard & 

Poor's Rating Services and Moody's Investor Services. If the proposer is 
not rated by these rating organizations, provide other evidence of the 
institution's financial strength. 

 
 

Financial Institution 

 Standard & Poor's Rating Moody's Investor Services 

Short-term Unsecured 

Senior Debt 
  

Long-term Unsecured 

Senior Debt 
  

 

Financial Institution Holding Company 
 
 

 Standard & Poor's Rating Moody's Investor Services 

Short-term Unsecured 

Senior Debt 

  

Long-term Unsecured 

Senior Debt 
  

444

Item 19.



 10 

5. Discuss the firm's current capital structure, adequacy, and coverage. If 
applicable, provide the firm's risk-based capital classification (Well Capitalized, 
Adequately Capitalized, Under Capitalized, Significantly Undercapitalized). 

6. Include an electronic copy of the most recent audited financial statement and 
the latest 10-k report with the proposal. 

7. Provide the bank’s Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) rating.  
8. Be sufficiently capitalized to accommodate the City’s cash management needs 

and ensure collateralization of funds. 

 
B. PERSONNEL 

1. Provide the name, title, address, phone number, fax number and email address of 
the primary contact person(s) assigned to this account.  

2. Describe your firm’s policy on changing the primary contact person on an account.  
3. Name the individuals who will work with the City on a day-to-day basis. Information 

should include: 
a. Experience working with other City and or government institutions. 
b. Proposed role with regard to the City’s account. 
c. Number of years of experience in this field 
d. Number of years with your firm 
e. Describe the level of local decision-making authority these individuals have 

to handle emergency need of the City as they arise. 
4. Will a specific customer service representative or a customer service department 

be assigned to handle day-to-day transactions for the City? 
a. Describe the responsibilities of the customer service personnel, 

including the chain of command for problem resolutions. 
b. Is local customer service support available at the bank's local 

branches? 
c. What are the hours of operation of each customer service unit 

involved in supporting the proposed services? 
d. If an error is discovered by the City, how would you propose to resolve 

it (i.e. who should the City contact first, etc.)? 
5. IT Resources: Will the bank provide dedicated IT liaison(s) to work on set-up, 

file transfer, testing and troubleshooting/issue resolution? During what hours 
is technical support available?  

 
C. GENERAL BANKING SERVICES 

1. Deposit Processing 
a. Please provide a listing of bank branches, noting the address and distance 

of the branch closest to the City. 
b. For deposits collected and transported by the City, which branch location 

do you propose the City use to deposit funds?  
c. Please describe the bank’s deposit requirements. How should the coin and 

currency deposits be prepared? How should un-encoded check deposits be 
prepared? 

d. What is the ledger cutoff time for deposits? 
e. How are deposits created? Are all items immediately verified? If 

provisional credit is given, when does verification take place? If the 
financial institution corrects a deposit, how with the City be informed of 
this change? 
 

 

445

Item 19.



 11 

2. Remote Deposit Capture 
a. Describe the financial institution’s ability to process checks by RDC.  
b. Is there a limit on the number of checks that can be contained in a single 

deposit? 
c. Does your service allow for multiple deposits in a single day? 
d. How will we be notified of deposit corrections and/or adjustments? 
e. Describe the process used for balancing and correcting deposits transmitted 

to your institution. 
f. Does your service offer the ability to adjust data using recognition 

technology that was not captured correctly by the scanner? If yes, please 
describe. If not, does the service allow the addition, deletion, and 
rescanning of checks during both the correction and balancing 
functions? 

g. What equipment does the financial institution recommend for RDC and 
what is the price for this equipment? 

h. Can checks be automatically endorsed with the financial institution's RDC 
service? Is the automatic endorsement an electronic image or printed on 
the check? 

i. Are checks cleared as ACHs or image replacement documents? How 
does the financial institution's software determine the clearing 
mechanism? 

j. Is there a difference in legal standing for items clearing by ACH or image 
replacement documents (IRDs)? If so, please describe. 

 
3. Coin/Currency Ordering Services 

a. Does the financial institution have an automated coin/currency ordering 
service? Describe the deposit and change order procedures, cutoff times, 
security and other features of this system. 

b. Describe change order procedures and restrictions for branch pick up. 

 
4. Returned Item Processing 

a. Can returned items be automatically re-deposited? If so, how many times? 
b. Does the financial institution offer any options that may increase the 

collection of NSF checks? 
c. Can the financial institution provide online access to electronic images 

(back and front) of returned items? How soon after an item is returned 
can these images be accessed? 

d. Can the financial inst itut ion provide a summary report of  returned 
items identifying the payer's name, depositing location, deposit date, 
and the type of item being returned? 

 
5. Positive Pay 

a. Does the financial institution offer Positive Pay and Payee Positive Pay? 
b. How would the City transmit check issuance information to the financial 

institution? 
c. What is the deadline for the transmission of check issuance files to the 

financial institution? 
d. How frequently can transmission files be uploaded to the financial institution 

for the issuance of additional check, and/or recently voided items? Is there a 
limit to the number of files per day? 
 

446

Item 19.



 12 

e. Does the financial institution offer the ability to manually enter one-time check 
disbursements issued during the day? Please describe 

f. What controls are in place to protect against lost files and duplications of 
transmissions? If duplicates are sent, is there a penalty or potential issues? 

g. How will the City be notified of exception items? What time will the City 
receive the information on exception items? What time does the City 
have to notify if an exception should be accepted or rejected? 
Does the financial institution offer a "do not pay" default for exception 
items? 

h. Will stale date checks be reported as exception items? 
i. Is Positive Pay required for all demand deposit accounts, even on accounts 

with no check writing functionality? Can accounts be designated as "post no 
checks" to prevent potential fraud? Is there a cost to make this account 
designation? 

j. Is Teller Positive Pay available? How frequently is check issuance 
information updated and available to tellers? 

k. Are there any other fraud protection services that the financial institution 
provides and/or recommends? 

 
6. Stop Payments 

a. How are stop payment orders placed? Can stop payments be placed online? 
b. Are stop payment requests effective immediately? If not, how long does it 

take for a stop payment request to be effective? 
c. Will the system verify if a check has been paid before processing the stop 

payment request? 
d. What term options are available for stop payments? 
e. Can Stop payments be automatically renewed? If so, for how long? What is 

the associated fee for each renewal? 
 

7. ACH Processing 
a. What ACH file transmission options are available? 
b. What are the transmission deadlines for ACH files? When does the 

financial institution need the file from the City and when are the funds 
debited from the City’s accounts? 

c. How are returned and rejected ACH transactions handled? What 
information does the financial institution provide to assist in identifying 
returned and rejected ACH transmissions? When is this information 
available? 

d. Describe the financial institution's procedures for handling debits to the 
City's accounts that were not authorized by the City. Does the financial 
institution notify the City of the receipt of an unauthorized ACH debit? 

e. If the financial institution provides ACH debit blocking, what level of 
filtering can be applied? 

f. Does the financial institution offer ACH Positive Pay (ability to make 
pay/no pay decisions on unidentified ACH transactions)? 

g. Does the financial institution offer Universal Payment Identif ication 
Codes (ability to mask visible account numbers to reduce the risk of 
unauthorized direct debits)? 

 
 
 

447

Item 19.



 13 

 
8. Wire Processing 

a. Describe the process of initiating wire transfers including USD domestic 
wires, repetitive wires, USD international wires, and foreign currency 
international wires.  

b. During what hours is the wire transfer system available? 

c. If wire transfers can be initiated online, describe the system’s security 
features. Can varying degrees of authorization be set (i.e. multiple 
authorizers, maximum dollar amounts, etc.)? 

d. Does the financial institution offer dual control release options (secondary 
approval levels) for electronically initiated transfers? If so, describe. 

e. What is the cutoff time for same-day wire transfers? 

f. What is the financial institution's maximum retention period for future 
dated transactions? For future dated transactions, at what time are 
warehoused wire transfers automatically released on the transaction 
date? What types of wire transfers can be warehoused? Are there 
warehousing charges? 

g. Describe the financial institution's procedure for providing payment 
confirmation information (e.g., reference numbers) upon acceptance and 
execution of the wire transfer request, including the availability and 
method of delivery of internal confirmation/sequence number and 
clearing system reference number. 

h. Describe the financial institution’s policy for handling a failed wire transfer. 
How and when would the City be notified?  

 
9. Bank Compensation 

a. Can the City compensate the bank for services with fees, balances, or a 
combination of the two at its own election? Please describe any differences in 
related costs to the City with either option. 

b. Can the City choose between paying for analysis deficiencies by check, auto 
debit, or ACH credit? 

c. What is the bank’s Earning Credt Rate (ECR) based on, and how is it 
calculated each month? 

d. List the bank’s average ECR for each the last six months (October 2021 thru 
March 2022). 

 
10. Utility Billing services 
The city currently utilizes lockbox service for utility bill payment processing. Utility 
bills are printed and mailed bimonthly and average 17,000. Lockbox transactions 
processed average 1,900 per month. 

a. Does the bank have the capability to provide lockbox and electronic lockbox 
payment processing service? If so, please describe the service and any costs 
associated. 

 
11. State Activity/LAIF Transfers 
The city transacts State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) transfers 
on a regular basis and receives State electronic payments.  

a. Please describe the LAIF transfer process. Are the transfers done by 
telephone, email, fax, wire transfer, etc.? How is the accuracy of transfers 
assured? 

b. What is the charge per transfer to LAIF? From LAIF? 

448

Item 19.



 14 

 
c. Does the bank have an office in Sacramento that maintains a direct DDA 

banking relationship with the State Treasurer’s office and the State 
Controller’s office? 

d. Is the bank an approved State of California depository? 
e. What is the charge for the deposit of State electronic payments? State 

warrant? 
f. What is the bank’s position on past issuance of IOU’s by State of CA? Does 

the bank accept IOU’s for deposits? 
 

12. Overdrafts 
a. What are the fees and interest charges associated with overdrafts? How are 

these charges calculated? 
b. Is there a fee per check or per occurrence when there is an overdraft? 
c. Is there a daily cap on fees? 

 
13. Describe the financial institution security procedures for its information reporting 

system, both for access and information protection. 
14. Is system administration performed by the financial institution or the customer? 

What functions does the security administrator perform? 
15. Is an audit trail report available, showing all activity, by whom and when, for each 

system? 
16. Describe the types of insurance and bonding carried. 
17. Include a copy of the financial institution’s most recent reports issued in 

accordance with the Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements 
(SSAE 16) for any processes or systems relevant to the services under this RFP. 

18. If not already covered in the SSAE 16 report, describe the disaster recover plans 
for each proposed service for short- and long-term disaster and power failure 
recovery. 

19. Describe any additional security measures available to the City to minimize the 
risk of unauthorized transactions in its accounts.  
 

D. IMPLEMENTATION/CONVERSION 
1. Provide a conversion plan for transitioning each of the proposed services to 

your financial institution.  
2. Who will be responsible for coordinating the transition for each of the 

proposed services? If a conversion team is used, how will the City’s account 
be transitioned to the ongoing client service team? 

3. Indicate the financial institution’s plans for initial and ongoing educating and 
training City employees in the use of your systems? 

4. Will the City be allotted a fixed number of hours and training? 
 
E. NEW SERVICES AND IDEAS 

1. Describe any new services or ideas that will enhance the City’s utilization of 
financial institution services described.  

2. Please provide any additional information that your financial institution 
believes to be pertinent, but not specifically requested elsewhere in the RFP. 

 
F. REFERENCES 

1. Provide at least three references (government entities, if possible), including 
client name, contact person, address, phone number, services provided, and 
the length of time your financial institution has worked for the entity. 

449

Item 19.



 15 

 
2. How many governmental clients has the proposed relationship manager 

gained and lost in the last five years? 
 
G. SAMPLE CONTRACT 

1. Provide a sample of the proposed contract for your financial institution’s 
services. Please also provide samples of all other documents which will 
need to be signed/entered into related to the provision of the services 
requested in this RFP, including any documents referenced or incorporated 
into the contracts/agreements.  

2. It is the intention to incorporate the RFP and your financial institution’s 
proposal response as part of the overall contract. Is this acceptable? If not, 
why?  

 
H. PRICING AND ACCOUNT ANALYSIS 

1. For how long is the financial institution willing to guarantee the proposed 
fees? 

2. Can fees be debited direct from the City’s account rather than billed to the 
City? 

3. Provide a complete fee schedule for all the services described in your 
financial institution’s proposal using Association of Finance Professionals 
(AFP) Service Codes, is possible.  
 
Fees related to all services described in the proposal must be listed, even if 
the service is not shown on the schedule. Also, include any one-time or set-
up charges, research fees, minimum fees and all other fees that will be 
charged. Include any incentives or price breaks offered bason on volume, 
timeliness of payment, rebates or other measures.  

4. Are you willing to offer any transition or retention incentives? 
5. Are there any additional price breaks or incentives? 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

The bank may desire to offer the City additional services not otherwise specified in this 
RFP. In this event, a supplemental attachment should be prepared and included with the 
proposal describing the additional services offered in detail and indicating the cost, if any, 
for these services. 

V. PRICING OF BANKING SERVICES 

OVERVIEW 

The City requires banks to offer the following options for payment of service charges: 

Direct Payment of Service Charges (Option 1) - Under this approach, no 
compensating balance will be maintained by the City. The City will pay for actual 
charges for services provided on all City accounts. If the City elects this option, 
payment will be made by bank debit against the City's general checking account. 
The bank will link all City accounts for analysis and provide individual as well as a 
summary report on the charges and fees on a monthly basis. The bank will provide 
information identifying the volume of service transactions, unit prices and total 

450

Item 19.



 16 

amounts owed, and an account analysis which will be submitted to the City within 
fifteen (15) working days of the end of the month. The City will receive an earnings 
allowance that will be used to reduce the monthly service charges. 

Variable Compensating Balance Method (Option 2) - Under this approach, the 
compensating balance required to be maintained by the City will vary monthly 
based on the City's transaction volumes for the previous month and the bank's unit 
prices for services, reserve requirement and earnings allowance. The earnings 
allowance rate to be utilized is the three-month U.S. Treasury Bill average weekly 
auction results (coupon equivalent yield) for the previous month. Written 
notification to the Director of Finance will be required to adjust the compensating 
balance amount. 

The City reserves the right to select either of the two options or a combination of both 
options as the method of payment for banking services. The City also reserves the right 
to change from one option to another. 

 
ALTERNATIVE METHOD 

Banks may desire to propose an alternative to the two options described above. In this 
event, a supplemental attachment should be prepared and included with the proposal 
describing in detail the alternative method along with computation detail. 

VI. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION 

OVERVIEW 

Proposals will be evaluated by the City's Finance Committee, with a recommendation to 
be made to the City Council for consideration. The selection of the successful bank will 
be made by the City Council and subsequent award of contract will be based on a 
combination of the following criteria: 

 Bank stability measures 

 Banking philosophy 

 Understanding scope of work 

 Quality and responsiveness of the proposal 

 Ability to meet service requirements including state-of-the-art electronic banking 
services that the City may require 

 Related experience of the bank and references (Maximum of five references with 
governmental references required) 

 Information on the Bank’s “Business Continuity” plans 

 Information on the Bank’s “Community Involvement” 

 Anticipated compensating balance requirements or direct charges for required 
services 

 Availability and price of required and additional services 

451

Item 19.



 
17 

INTERVIEWS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT 

Based on an evaluation of the proposals received using the above criteria, it is anticipated that the 
top candidates will be scheduled for interviews with the Finance Committee on June 8, 2022. The 
Finance Committee's final recommendation will then be submitted to the City Council on June 21, 
2022 for approval and award of contract. 

Following is the proposed timetable for the evaluation and selection process. In order to provide 
enough time to review and sign contracts, the effective date of the agreement will be within four 
weeks from the date of the approval by City Council. 

TIMETABLE FOR PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION 

Issue RFP 05/6/2022 

Written Questions Due 05/20/2022 
Responses to Questions 05/25/2022 
Proposals Due 06/1/2022 
Possible Interviews 06/8/2022 
Bid Reviews (Trustee Finance Sub-Committee 
Meeting) 

06/13/2022 

Award bid-Selection (City Council Meeting) 06/21/2022 

Implementation/Go-live TBD 

VII. BANKING SERVICES ADVERTISEMENT 

The City of Beaumont is requesting proposals for banking services from all financial institutions 
with full-service branches located in Riverside County. Additional information may be obtained by 
contacting: 

Jennifer Ustation, Director of Finance              
Finance Department 
City of Beaumont 
Telephone (951) 572-3236 
justation@beumontca.gov 

VIII. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION PACKAGE  

OVERVIEW 

The Proposal Submission Package should be indexed with page numbers and contain the 
following documents: 

 Banking Services Proposal Cover Sheet 

 Required Services/Pricing of Banking Services (including any addendums) 
 Additional Services 

 References 

 Bank “Business Continuity” Plan 

 Annual Financial Statements (Last Three Years Audited Reports) 
 
 

452

Item 19.

mailto:justation@beumontca.gov


18 

 

 Rating agency rating report (Veribanc, Highline, etc.) at the expense of the submitting 
bank. The report is to be sent directly from the rating agency to the City of Beaumont to be 
received no later than 4:00 p.m. on June 1, 2022. (If mailed, the report is to be addressed 
to the same address as the proposal). The City will accept Bank Rating Research 
Reports if sent via email directly from the rating agency. Report sent via email should be sent 
to Jennifer Ustation, Director of Finance at justation@beaumontca.org and must be 
received prior to the closing deadline. 

To be a complete proposal, all the above documents must be submitted via email to the City of 
Beaumont, with a “subject” title “City of Beaumont Banking & Merchant Services RFP” by 4 p.m. 
on June 1, 2022 closing date. 

In addition, the following attachments may be required as part of the original document package: 

 If the bank is proposing alternatives or non-substantial deviations to the Required Services, a 
full description and justification for the proposed alternative or deviation must be included with 
the proposal. 

 If the bank is proposing to provide Additional Services, a full description of the service 
must be included with the proposal along with the cost detail.  

Transaction indicators and estimated quantities have been provided with the standard “Monthly 
Activity Detail” list. It is assumed that the itemization of costs provided in this submittal will fully 
compensate the bank for all required services. In the event that additional itemization of 
transactions is required by the bank in order to be fully compensated for required services, an 
addendum should be completed in full by the bank. If estimated transaction volumes are required to 
complete the submittal form for additional items, the City should be contacted by email during the 
pre-submittal process for this information. The City's response to any question(s) will be 
distributed to all firms via email. 

453

Item 19.

mailto:justation@beaumontca.org


 
A-1 

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL 

SUBMITTAL COVER SHEET 

BANK NAME:  

LOCAL BRANCH ADDRESS: 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  

PHONE NUMBER:  

EMAIL ADDRESS:  

CORRESPONDING BANK: 
(If Applicable) 

 

CORRESPONDING BANK 
CONTACT PERSON / 

PHONE NUMBER: 

 

The proposed term of agreement for the services and costs quoted in this submittal is 
for a period of five (5) years, with the ability to extend for two (2) additional two-year 
periods. The undersigned hereby certifies that this proposal meets or exceeds all of the 
requirements as specified in the City's Request for Proposal (including the Notice 
Requesting Proposal, Proposal Terms and Conditions, Scope of Services, Pricing of 
Banking Services, and Proposal Submission Package Sections) except as otherwise 
indicated and supported by supplemental schedules or attachments included with this 
proposal. 

Signed by Bank Signatory:  

Bank Signatory (Print Name):  

Bank Signatory Title:  

Date:  

Address: 
 

Phone Number:  

Email Address:  

454

Item 19.



 
A-2 

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL – REQUIRED SERVICES 

Estimated Monthly Activity Detail 
 
 Unit  Activity Unit 

Service Description Volume  Price Total 

General Account Services:     

Account Maintenance 1    
Checks Returned with Statements 7    

Depository Services     
Deposits   350    
Checks Paid 40    
Deposited Items - On Us 60    
Deposited Items – Local Clearing 90    
Deposited Items – Other 100    
Currency Deposited $5,000,000    
Returned Item Debit                10    
ACH Returned Item Debit                  5    
Returned Item Reclear Fee                  0    
Returned Item Special Handling                  0    

Controlled Disbursement Services     
Checks Paid (on Accounts Payable) 40    
Positive Pay Package 1    
Cash Reporter/Information Reporting 1    
ACH Services     

     File Input                    0    
Credit - Incoming 10    

Debit – Incoming 25    

Notification of Change 1    

      Wire Transfer Services     

      Incoming Domestic Wire                     2    
Outgoing Domestic Wire 2    

Non-PC Repetitive Outgoing Domestic Wire 0    
Wire Notification (Phone) 1    
Information Reporting Services     

     Basic Online A/C Maintenance                    1    
Basic Online Detail Transactions 500    

Online CM ACH Maintenance (Stand Alone) 1    
ACH Upload Expense 1    

     
 

     Grand Total $ 
 
 

 

455

Item 19.



 
A-3 

 
Please submit information on any standard monthly service charges that are not listed in the 
Monthly Activity Detail and use the same format shown in the Monthly Activity Detail. If any 
service charges are one-time set-up or service charges, or are to be no charge to the City, 
please make note of this. 

All proposals for additional service must be accompanied by supplemental attachments 
describing in full the services offered along with monthly cost detail. 

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

COST 

 

ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY  Per Unit Monthly 

456

Item 19.



© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Deposit products are offered through Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Member FDIC. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is a banking affiliate of Wells Fargo & Company.  

City of Beaumont 
Response to Request for Proposal for Banking and Merchant Services 

July 8, 2022 

Submitted by: 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Government Banking Division 

Jamie O’Connell 

Relationship Manager 

951-295-7482

jamie.oconnell@wellsfargo.com 

Todd Reed 

eReceivables Consultant 

619-857-3855

todd.reed2@wellsfargo.com 

Gurleen Pannu 

Treasury Management Sales Consultant 

206-833-4083

gurleen.pannu@wellsfargo.com 

457

Item 19.



A-1

CITY OF BEAUMONT 
BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL 

SUBMITTAL COVER SHEET 

BANK NAME: 

LOCAL BRANCH ADDRESS: 

CONTACT PERSON: 

PHONE NUMBER: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

CORRESPONDING BANK: 
(If Applicable) 

CORRESPONDING BANK 
CONTACT PERSON / 
PHONE NUMBER: 

The proposed term of agreement for the services and costs quoted in this submittal is 
for a period of five (5) years, with the ability to extend for two (2) additional two-year 
periods. The undersigned hereby certifies that this proposal meets or exceeds all of the 
requirements as specified in the City's Request for Proposal (including the Notice 
Requesting Proposal, Proposal Terms and Conditions, Scope of Services, Pricing of 
Banking Services, and Proposal Submission Package Sections) except as otherwise 
indicated and supported by supplemental schedules or attachments included with this 
proposal. 

Signed by Bank Signatory: 

Bank Signatory (Print Name): 

Bank Signatory Title: 

Date: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Jamie O'Connell

Senior Commercial Relationship Manager

334 W. Third St.
First Floor
San Bernardino, CA 92401-1828

951-295-7482

jamie.oconnell@wellsfargo.com

6/29/2022

Not applicable

499 E. 6th St.
Beaumont, CA 92223

Catherine Ramos

951-845-2605

catherine.ramos@wellsfargo.com

458

Item 19.



 

© 2022 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved. 

Jamie O’Connell 

Vice President 

Relationship Manager 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

334 W. Third St. 

First Floor 

San Bernardino, CA 92401-1828 

 

July 1, 2022 

 

 

City of Beaumont 

Attention: Jennifer Ustation 

Finance Department 

550 E. Sixth St. 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

 

Dear Ms. Ustation, 

 

We would like to thank you for the opportunity to review the banking services for the City of Beaumont 

(the City). We are excited to share our technologies, best practices, and experience with you and hope 

you see the value in choosing Wells Fargo. 

As your local relationship manager, I am responsible for helping ensure you are up to date with the latest 

trends by providing ongoing review of current services, and ultimately, being your advocate for any 

financial services you request from Wells Fargo. With 26 years of banking experience, and 16 years 

focusing on Government customers, I take pride in the relationships that we have built over the years 

and believe great customer service is most important in building that foundation. It is my goal to show 

you the value in our efficiencies, and that Wells Fargo is the best choice for all your financial needs. In 

addition, I am a resident of Yucaipa, allowing for in-person meetings as often as requested. 

Why change banks? 
Your current growth requires the use of today’s latest technology, and you need a banking partner that 

specializes in treasury management and focuses on your financial success. Wells Fargo is a leader in 

innovation, always striving to develop new services that meet our customers’ needs — today and 

tomorrow. 

When the City is comfortable doing so, we want to offer you a Business Process Review (BPR). This 

means you will collaborate with Wells Fargo treasury management experts who will evaluate your 

processes and offer ideas to streamline and create efficiencies and help your staff with their day-to-day 

tasks. 

Our services work well together, and by having one bank process your collections, payables, and 

electronic billing, you get the added benefit of offsetting service charges with an earnings credit rate 

(ECR) based on collected balances. 

459

Item 19.



 

 

In addition, we have a dedicated merchant services team that can consolidate your departments with 

one gateway and manage your credit card processing for your customers. This service provides one 

system for all online, phone, and face-to-face transactions. We offer a robust all-in-one commercial card 

system that keeps track of receipts and out-of-pocket expenses.  

We also welcome the opportunity to show you a demo of Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®), our 

online banking platform, and all the tools you receive as our customer. 

Managing your relationship 
The City would be assigned to our local Government Banking Division in San Bernardino for all mail 

correspondence. My office is located at 334 W. Third St., San Bernardino, CA 92401. Your relationship is 

assigned to me, and I will meet with you in person, or virtually, for any upcoming projects, discussion of 

relationship goals, and ideas to improve your current position on all financial services. Your relationship 

associate, Anna Gonzales, is responsible for service requests. Anna also serves as my back up when I am 

away. Your dedicated treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, works to serve your 

treasury management need. Depending on the services you choose, we work with a team of 

government experts in their fields and will provide the City with a strategic plan for financial growth 

while optimizing your internal resources. 

We also have two Beaumont branch locations: 499 E. Sixth St., and 1494 E. Second St.; with a  

Wells Fargo branch right across the street from City Hall for convenience. 

Please reference my “Message to the City” page that is inserted in Appendix Tab A, before the pricing 

documents. We asked a lot of questions during this process to come up with scenarios and 

recommendations that the city will find most valuable. 

What’s next? 
Our proposal for banking services as requested in the RFP follows. After your request for proposal (RFP) 

period has closed, we hope to further our conversations about how Wells Fargo can potentially help take 

your banking to the next level. We look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

Jamie O’Connell, Vice President 

Relationship Manager 

Local Government Banking Division  

460

Item 19.



 

 

 

Table of contents 

III. Scope of services ........................................................................................................ 1 

IV. Information requested .................................................................................... 16 

A. Qualifications and experience ............................................................................................... 16 

B. Personnel ......................................................................................................................................... 22 

C. General banking services ......................................................................................................... 28 

D. Implementation/conversion .................................................................................................. 81 

E. New services and ideas ............................................................................................................. 96 

F. References ................................................................................................................................... 124 

G. Sample contract ........................................................................................................................ 125 

H. Pricing and account analysis ............................................................................................... 125 

Additional services .............................................................................................................................. 126 

V. Pricing of banking services .......................................................................... 127 

Overview .................................................................................................................................................. 127 

Alternative method ............................................................................................................................ 128 

 

461

Item 19.



 

 

Appendix 

Pricing .......................................................................................................................... Tab A 

Information security program letter ............................................................. Tab B 

Business continuity program letters ............................................................. Tab C 

Merchant services information ........................................................................ Tab D 

Community involvement ..................................................................................... Tab E 

Disclosures ................................................................................................................. Tab F 

Account agreements and service descriptions ......................................... Tab G 

462

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 1 

 

III. Scope of services 

The following section details the services to be provided to the City. Except for nonsubstantial 

deviations or acceptable alternatives, all services listed in this section are mandatory. The City 

will not consider proposals for partial services. 

Acknowledged. Wells Fargo meets these requirements. We provide further details in this section as 

warranted. 

The following required services include: 

1.  The bank must be a member of the Federal Reserve System. The bank must be a Federal or 

State of California chartered commercial banking institution with at least one full-service 

branch located within County of Riverside limits. 

Wells Fargo meets this requirement. Wells Fargo is a federal reserve bank and we have full access to 

all Federal Reserve services. 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., originally chartered on November 30, 1870, is a national banking association 

organized under the National Bank Act and is not incorporated under the laws of any state. Rather, it 

operates pursuant to a certificate of authority issued by the U.S. Comptroller of the Currency. 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A maintains two full-service branches within Beaumont’s city limits. 

2.  The bank must be a qualified depository for public funds pursuant to the applicable federal 

and state laws and regulations, statutes and policies. All balances must be fully collateralized 

through the pool collateral system required under the State of California. 

Wells Fargo Bank N.A. is an eligible public depository in the State of California. All public entities in 

California are entered into the pooled collateral program administered by the State. We will comply 

with all collateral requirements set forth in the California Government Code. 

3.  The bank must fulfill orders for currency and coin through the City’s courier upon request. 

The City can place change orders through our online banking portal, CEO, to be delivered to your 

location on the date and time selected. You must have this service included with your courier 

contract, but Wells Fargo can accommodate this request with the authorized users you select at the 

City. In addition to online change orders, with enough notice, change orders may be placed with the 

local branch as well, if required. 

  

463

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 2 

 

Cash vault services 
You can place change orders online, by touch-tone order service, through a standing order, by 

transmission, or through DTS Connex®. Your contracted armored courier delivers change orders 

from a Wells Fargo vault to your location. For cash vault services, we will work with you during 

implementation to review cash vault restrictions and help you to compare our suite of services to 

identify the best option for you.* 

* Some services are available subject to applicable product eligibility.  

The City should contract directly with, and pay fees directly to, an armored courier of your choosing 

from our approved list of courier companies. 

4.  The bank will engage a team or specific relationship coordinators for the life of the contract. 

Your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, and the treasury management sales consultant, 

Gurleen Pannu, are part of our Government Banking group, a team of seasoned professionals 

dedicated exclusively to serving the unique banking needs of the public sector. This team provides 

consultative, analytical, and qualitative service — your needs are our first priority. We enlist the help 

of our subject matter experts, should the need arise. 

5.  The bank will provide full account reconciliation, positive pay, electronic fraud protection, 

electronic deposits and disbursement, online wire entry, and online stop-payment 

placement. 

Acknowledged and agreed. Wells Fargo meets these treasury service requirements. We provide 

service details in our response to section C, General banking services. 

6.  Online reporting includes prior day transactions (no later than 8:00 a.m. Pacific Standard 

Time the next day) and current day transactions. 

The City can access both prior business day and current business day account information through 

our electronic banking system. 

We update previous day information by 3:30 a.m. Pacific Time Tuesday through Friday and by 

5:30 a.m. Pacific Time on Saturday. 

We update current day (intraday) information multiple times throughout the day. The exact times 

vary depending on the specific transaction types and report. We report transactions and update the 

current ledger and available balances on a near real-time basis. 

7.  Compensating balances and sweep accounts are preferred. 

We accept compensation in fees, balances, or a combination of the two. The same price schedule 

applies, regardless of the compensation method. 

464

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 3 

 

8.  Provide key measures of the bank’s financial strength, including ratings from nationally 

recognized rating service(s) and banking rating service(s). Include one copy of the bank’s 

most recent audited financial statements and one copy of the bank’s rating from a 

nationally recognized rating service. 

Wells Fargo & Company is a nationwide, diversified financial services company. We’re headquartered 

in San Francisco, but we’re decentralized, so every local Wells Fargo office is a headquarter for 

satisfying all our customers’ financial needs and helping them succeed financially. 

We identify key measures of our financial strength in the following table. 

Key facts Measure 

Capital ratios 

Total equity to assets1 

Risk-based capital2 

• Common equity Tier 1 

• Tier 1 capital 

• Total capital 

Tier 1 leverage2 

 

9.51% 

 

11.85 

13.54 

16.75 

8.36 

Market value of stock3,4 $161.8 billion 

Total assets2 $1.9 trillion+ 

Customers3 70 million 

Digital (online and mobile) active 

customers3 

32.9 million 

Households3 1 in 3 

1. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Investor Relations > Annual Reports and Proxy Statements > 2020 

Annual Report. 

2. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Investor Relations > SEC and Other Regulatory Filings > Q1 2021 

Form 10-Q. 

3. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Who We Are > Quarterly Fact Sheet. 

4. Based on sales, profits, assets, and market value as of March 31, 2021. 

9.  Provide the financial institution’s current level of public funds deposited and related 

collateral market value. 

As of 05/31/2022, public funds deposits were $4,009,119,794.93 and market value in collateral was 

$4,824,368,608.81. 

465

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 4 

 

10.  The ability to accept multiple file submissions from our payment processing financial 

system. 

Consolidated payables file transmission 
You can initiate ACH payments directly from your treasury workstation, enterprise resource 

planning (ERP) platform, or accounts payable (AP) system when you use our consolidated payables 

service. Saving you time, our service groups ACH transactions and multiple other payment types in a 

single file.  

The service supports the following payment types. 

Payment types for consolidated payables 

U.S. ACH transactions in U.S. dollar (USD) 

USD and Canadian Dollar (CAD)* paper checks 

Global ACH transactions in foreign currencies 

USD wires 

Foreign currency wires 

Requests for transfer (SWIFT MT101 messages) 

Wells Fargo virtual card transactions 

Disbursements with Zelle®† 

* CAD paper checks are available only for off-us accounts. 

† Zelle® and Zelle®-related marks are wholly owned by Early Warning Services, LLC, and are used herein under license. 

Our consolidated payables service separates payments by type and processes them accordingly, 

sending traditional or human-readable remittance information to payees as appropriate. 

11.  Provide the City with a check scanner for deposit of checks directly from City Hall as well as a 

“smart-safe” for deposit of cash. 

Your treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, helps you select and purchase 

equipment that best suits your business needs. 

Our remote deposit service is compatible with Panini, Canon, and Digital Check scanners. 

Check scanners are ordered through our vendor Superior Press, and may be applied to analysis and 

the transition allowance we are offering if used within the first 12 months.  

Prior to installation, the smart safe vendor you select will arrange for an installation specialist to 

conduct a site readiness inspection at your locations. The vendor will typically install the safes on a 

concrete base and use bolts that secure the safes to the floor. 

The smart safe is a contract between the City and an armored courier of your choice. We are only on 

the receiving end of the transmission, and those contracts are held separately from ours and are not 

included in our proposal. The safe purchase or lease is an agreement with a different vendor and not 

subject to our response, but we include information about the cash received related to this service. 

 

466

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 5 

 

12.  Image of deposited items and provide online access for deposit reconciliation including 

images of deposited items. 

Acknowledged and confirmed. Once captured, images are available for viewing through our online 

banking service within two hours of your deposit cutoff time. 

13.  Provide online and email notification of deposit issues within 24 hours. 

You can choose from several options to receive returned entries and notifications of change (NOCs). 

You can receive them by: 

• Online 

• Email 

• Transmission 

• Your ERP, accounting platform, or payment system 

• Fax 

You can choose the option that best suits your needs. The ACH Return/NOC report is available 

through our online information reporting service. This report provides a settlement summary and 

full detail about each return. The report includes: 

• NOCs 

• Dishonored returns 

• Contested or corrected dishonored returns 

• Redeposits 

• Refused NOCs 

• Administrative returns 

You can view this report in HTML or PDF format and download it in BAI V2, CSV, or Excel format. 

14.  Possible off-site credit card payments on City-issued mobile devices. 

With Clover Go, the City can use your mobile phone or tablet to accept payments wherever you do 

business. You download an app to your iOS or Android device. Then, with the use of one card reader, 

cardholders can dip or tap to pay. The card reader, which connects using Bluetooth, is EMV chip card 

enabled. The service can capture signatures for card transactions. In addition, you can record cash 

and check transactions for reporting purposes. 

You connect using your device’s cellular data plan or Wi-Fi supported with a wireless router or 

hotspot. Please refer to the response to section E. New services and ideas, Wells Fargo Merchant 

Services, for more details. 

Security and fraud protection tools 
With all devices, encryption and tokenization help protect card data, while EMV chip card technology 

helps prevent in-person fraudulent transactions.  

467

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 6 

 

To help potentially reduce your payment card industry (PCI) compliance scope, you can configure 

the Clover Station Solo, Clover Station Duo, Clover Mini, and Clover Flex devices to provide point-

to-point encryption (P2PE) and PCI P2PE-certification at no additional cost.*  

* Because Clover Go uses a Bluetooth card reader linked to your own mobile device, the solution cannot be PCI P2PE-certified and you 

cannot accept PIN-debit transactions. 

15.  Provide positive pay services with online transmission of check details. 

Positive pay is an important tool for reducing losses due to check fraud or check processing errors. 

With our same-day and next-day positive pay services, we identify checks that may be fraudulent or 

unauthorized by matching checks presented against your account for payment to the check issue 

information that you provide us.  

Please see the response to section C, question 5, for details. 

16.  Provide positive pay exception item review and correction online. 

Our balance reporting system integrates positive pay reports, both online and through our mobile 

service. You can view a list of positive pay exception items, view check images, and submit pay and 

return decisions. 

All exceptions will post to your account; however, we do not include MICR errors and misreads with 

positive pay exceptions. Our Operations group will reverse MICR errors and misreads, and then 

repost them with the correct information on the following business day. 

17.  Provide online stop-payment services. 

You can submit stop payment orders online or by electronic transmission in your account 

reconciliation or positive pay check issue file. With both methods, you can place stop payments 24 

hours a day, seven days a week, from multiple locations. We process stop payments in real time. 

Please see the response to section C, question 6, for details. 

18.  Provide all canceled checks daily (by 8 a.m. next day) and monthly, sorted in check number 

order. Provide an electronic file of paid/cleared check images (front and back), in addition to 

any alternative electronic archival system used by the bank. 

You can request front and back paid check images and receive them promptly through our online 

Transaction Search service. Images are available by 6:00 a.m. Pacific Time the business day after 

posting. Some images may also be available on an intraday basis. 

Our image transmission service, Image File Import (IFI), provides a daily, weekly, semi-monthly, or 

monthly file of paid check images, and related index information. Image files are available as early as 

8:00 a.m. Pacific Time the day after posting. 

When processing paper items, check truncation is our standard service. We image these items. The 

City can search for images of disbursement checks posted to your account for up to seven years. 

468

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 7 

 

19.  Provide online access to cashed check images. 

You can receive check image detail online or through image transmission. 

Online 
You can retrieve, view, print, and download disbursed check images through our online banking 

portal using our Transaction Search service. Images are available by 6:00 a.m. Pacific Time the 

business day after posting. Some images may also be available on an intraday basis. Images are 

available for seven years. 

Image transmission 
Our image transmission service provides a daily, weekly, semi-monthly, or monthly file of paid check 

images, and related index information. Image files are available as early as 8:00 a.m. Pacific Time the 

day after posting. Through our secure transmission platform, you can download files into your 

internal archives, or to our viewing software. During implementation, you will choose which format, 

XML or PDF, you want to use for your files. 

20.  Method of reversal of automatic direct deposits for errors. 

You can choose from the following options for initiating an ACH transaction or batch reversal: 

• Include a reversal transaction in your next ACH file 

• Submit a reversal request online 

• Email or fax your reversal request to us 

Per National Automated Clearing House Association (Nacha) guidelines, you must notify receivers of 

any reversals and submit your reversal requests within five business days after settlement. Our 

deadline for reversal requests is 1:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the fourth day after the entry’s posting 

date. For same-day transactions initiated online, through email, or through fax, reversal requests 

must be received before 5:00 a.m. Pacific Time. 

Security procedures 

ACH file 

Individuals who can originate ACH transmission files at the City can include reversal entries in the 

file. 

Online 

Only your authorized users can initiate reversal requests through our online banking portal. Your 

company administrator can grant or restrict user access. 

Email or fax 

If you choose to use our secure email or fax option, we provide you the required forms. You control 

who has access to these forms at the City. We accept all emailed and faxed forms, as long as all 

required fields are complete, and an authorized user has signed the form. 

469

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 8 

 

Notification 
We offer the following options for notification of reversal results: 

• Call our ACH Customer Service group for confirmation 

• Receive a confirmation when you initiate a reversal online 

• Receive a CNote when you send a reversal file or batch 

• Receive one or both of the following end-of-day processing reports by fax or transmission: 

Delete/Reversal Summary report and Delete/Reversal Item report 

• View ACH reports on our online banking portal 

21.  Accept and send ACH transactions. 

Our electronic link to the ACH network allows us to receive and initiate any payment type available 

through Nacha. We have no processing window restrictions. You can initiate same-day, one-day, and 

two-day ACH transactions that settle to U.S. accounts through all of our input methods. When using 

our online initiation service, you can require dual approval for outgoing ACH payments. Our ACH 

Fraud Filter service further helps to protect your accounts with options to review or stop 

unauthorized debit and credit transactions. 

You can increase your accounting efficiency with detailed treasury reporting, and you can gain a 

more predictable cash flow — versus using paper checks — because settlement options let you 

know when payments will clear. Streamlining your business, you can use our ACH services to: 

 • Deposit employees’ wages directly into their checking accounts 

• Pay vendors 

• Convert paper checks to ACH debits for electronic processing 

• Make state and federal tax payments 

• Make international payments 

• Handle cash concentration and disbursement transactions 

• Make other direct deposits and direct payments 

. 

22.  Accept ACH payment files from 3rd parties. 

We receive files from hundreds of vendors who process payroll files for our customers. During 

implementation, we ask for a contact from the City whom we contact in the event that there are any 

production issues when processing your ACH transactions. We also ask for a technical contact from 

your third-party processor. 

During implementation, we: 

• Coordinate the transmission setup with your technical contact 

• Discuss various transmission protocols we support 

• Require acceptable test files before moving into production 

470

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 9 

 

Once in production, we process the files from your vendor as if you sent them to us directly. Because 

your processor sends your payroll file to us, the processor receives the CNote file confirmation. You 

can choose for us send your returned items either to your processor or the City. 

23.  Provide ACH debit blocking services. 

We offer two options that block ACH debits to your account. 

We can automatically return transactions that you did not preauthorize* and process all that you 

preauthorized. Alternatively, we can block all ACH activity from posting to your account. 

* ACH reversals bypass the ACH Fraud Filter service and post to your account automatically. 

24.  Provide a secure electronic method to initiate intra-bank transfers. 

Online banking portal 
Our online banking portal is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week, providing you with single 

sign-on access to account information and a wide range of financial services. By tailoring your user 

preferences on the portal home page, you can view your account balances and transaction 

information at a glance. Transfers are secure, requiring dual control on all money movements 

between accounts. 

The services you can access through our online banking portal are listed in the following table. 

Online services 

Treasury Management 

ACH Payments 

Alerts 

Basic Banking 

Bill Manager 

Cash Concentration 

Cash Vault 

Centralized Disbursements 

Deposit Maintenance 

Desktop Deposit® 

Electronic lockbox (E-Box®) Decisioning 

Electronic Document Delivery 

Fraud Manager 

• Positive Pay 

• Check Issues1 

• ACH Fraud Filter 

Healthcare Claims Payments 

Healthcare Supplier Payments 

Lockbox 

Payments 

Payment Manager® 

Treasury Information Reporting 

• Pooling and Intercompany Loans 

WellsOne® Expense Manager 

WellsOne Virtual Card Payments 

WellsTax® payments 

Wire Transfer 

International Services2 

Canadian Treasury Services 

CyberSuite 

Foreign Exchange (FX) 

CEO Trade 

Credit, Loan, and Finance 

Capital Finance 

Commercial Mortgage Servicing View 

Credit Management 

Customer Online Management System 

Trust and Investment3 

Allspring Funds® 

Commission Management System 

Derivatives Access 

Fed Funds 

471

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 10 

 

Online services 

Payment Manager File Validation Tool 

Receivables Manager 

Returned Item services 

Reverse Positive Pay 

SAFE Transmission 

CEO Administration 

Statements & Notices 

Sweep Statements and Confirmations 

Transaction Search 

• Search transaction history 

• Images 

• ACH Deletes and Reversals 

• Stop Payments 

Institutional Investing: Reporting 

Institutional Investing: Trading 

Mutual Fund Reporting 

Mutual Fund Trading 

Prime Services 

Security Valuations 

Trust Information Delivery 

Trust Portfolio Reporting 

Wells Capital Management 

Wells Cap Portfolio Reporting 

 

1. Add new checks, cancel existing checks, or place stop payments. 

2. Deposits held in non-U.S. branches are not Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured. 

3. Investment products are not FDIC insured, are not deposits of, or guaranteed by the bank, and may lose value. Deposit and 

credit products are offered by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. 

Features and capabilities 
With our online banking portal, you can: 

• Sign on for services, including alerts by email or text 

• Centralize your payment and disbursement capabilities 

• Place stop payments, research transactions, and view images 

• Customize and download current and previous day reports 

• Initiate domestic and international ACH payments, wire transfers, FX, trade, credit, and trust 

transactions 

• Help mitigate fraud and operational risk with advanced monitoring tools 

• Set and manage user authorizations, transaction limits, and assign administrators 

To see a demonstration of our online banking portal, please contact your treasury management 

sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu. 

Security features 

User security 

All users must enter a company ID, user ID, and password to access our online banking portal. 

In order to access transaction-based or user-management services, a user must enter a PIN and 

token code. This second level of authentication helps ensure that the individual performing an 

activity on your account is authorized to do so. 

472

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 11 

 

Dual custody 

To help reduce your fraud risk, we require dual custody (separate users to initiate and approve) to 

release online payment transactions, and for any administration services related to transaction-

based services. 

Dual custody is an industry standard and best practice. This feature helps protect against 

fraud that could originate inside or outside your company. 

For maximum effectiveness, dual custody should involve two users on different computers or 

mobile devices. You can choose to add dual custody to other online features such as user setup and 

password resets. By separating user tasks to initiate and approve a payment or make changes to 

user access, you are better positioned to help prevent fraud. 

Additional security measures 

We offer extensive security measures to help safeguard your information when you access any of 

our online services. From physical security of our data centers to encryption of data transmissions to 

sophisticated access controls, we take precautions to help ensure that your information is safe. 

The security of our online banking portal includes: 

• Computer network security 

• Data center security 

• Round-the-clock monitoring 

• Data integrity 

• Access controls 

• Internal controls 

25.  Provide a secure electronic method with dual authorization for wiring funds. 

We offer multiple methods for electronically initiating transfers. All methods provide the ability to 

require dual control release capability. This includes wires sent to other Wells Fargo customers and 

beneficiaries at other banks. The City may also set up a dual control wire template for vendors like 

LAIF and preapproved agencies. 

26.  Provide online balance reporting services. 

Previous day 

Our previous day reporting includes all transaction types that post to your accounts. Our standard 

data storage provides access to seven calendar days of history. We also offer optional extended 

storage of 30, 60, 90, or 120 calendar days for balances and transaction details. 

We update previous day information by 3:30 a.m. Pacific Time Tuesday through Friday, and by 5:30 

a.m. Pacific Time on Saturday, though it is often available sooner. 

473

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 12 

 

Online and mobile information reporting 

Previous day reports With this report you can: 

ACH Customer Activity Access ACH settlement information and adjustment details by account, as well 

as a summary of return activity so you can make more informed decisions about 

managing your accounts. 

Express Balance Receive a quick snapshot of your previous day account balance information as 

well as your current available balance. 

Month-to-Date Balance View a daily summary of account balances — including averages, aggregate 

float, and total transactions — posted to your account for month-to-date, prior 

month, or a specific date range. 

Previous Day Posting Status View this report throughout the day to see when your accounts’ previous day 

information is available. This report can include information for Wells Fargo 

accounts and accounts at other financial institutions. 

Previous Day Composite Receive a comprehensive view of previous day posted account information, 

including balances, transaction summaries, and transaction details. You can also 

view images of each check transaction and view full detail for wire transfers and 

received ACH transactions. 

Previous Day Return Item View details of paper returns after they are charged to your account. You can 

also view images of each returned item. 

Sweep Account Position* Monitor your line of credit, view your investment position for the next day, see 

how sweep activity impacts your line of credit, and track dividend accruals. 

* For Money Market Mutual Fund Stagecoach Sweep® and Credit Sweep customers only. Investment products are not FDIC 

insured, are not deposits of or guaranteed by the bank, and may lose value. Deposit and credit products are offered by  

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. 

Current day 

Our current day reporting includes balance information and the following transaction types: 

• ACH debits and credits 

• Cash letter deposits with availability 

• Incoming and outgoing domestic and international wire transfers 

• Lockbox deposits with availability and detail 

• Remote deposits with detail 

Our standard data storage provides access to seven calendar days of transaction history. We also 

offer optional extended storage of 30, 60, or 90 calendar days. 

We update current day information multiple times throughout the day. The exact times depend on 

the specific transaction. We report transactions that post, and we update current ledger and 

available balances, on a near real-time basis. 

474

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 13 

 

Online and mobile information reporting 

Intraday reports With this, report you can: 

ACH Origination View ACH-originated transactions and confirm that Wells Fargo received and 

processed them. 

ACH Receive  View timely information for all received ACH transactions that will post to your 

account at the end of the current day. 

ACH Return/NOC Receive detailed information for all ACH transactions that were returned for any 

reason, as well as NOC information for items that processed successfully but 

may require additional action. 

Deposit Detail View your electronic deposits for the day, including the items in each deposit 

and whether the items were processed as checks or converted to electronic 

transactions. 

E-Box Review and post payments that originate through an online bill pay service. View 

information needed to match payments to your accounts receivables (AR).* 

EDI Payment Detail Obtain detailed ACH and EDI payment data with addenda translations from 

your trading partners in a comprehensive format. 

Intraday Composite Receive a comprehensive view of intraday information, including balances, 

transaction summaries, and transaction details. 

Intraday Position View total balances across multiple accounts with summarized debit and credit 

information, helping you determine your intraday cash position, and make daily 

investment and borrowing decisions. 

Intraday Return Item Detail Access details of returned paper items before your account is charged for the 

returns. 

Lockbox Availability Determine your funds availability for all lockbox deposits. 

Lockbox Detail View detailed information about received lockbox payments from your 

customers. You can also view images from each deposit, including checks and 

remittance documents. 

Wire Transfer Detail Receive complete details for all outgoing and incoming wire transfers, including 

book transfers, domestic U.S. wires, and cross-border wires. 

* Standard report storage is 60 days. We do not offer extended storage for this report. 

475

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 14 

 

27.  Allow approximately 5 City employees with different levels of authorization to access the 

bank’s online reporting system. 

Your company administrator can perform a variety of functions through our online administration 

service, including: 

• Creating, maintaining, and deleting user access, including password resets 

• Restricting user access to services and accounts and setting transaction dollar limits 

• Creating account or user lists to better organize your users and accounts — lists can be used 

throughout the administration service to easily select multiple accounts or users to 

administer 

• Setting up multiple users with similar access controls at the same time 

• Establishing additional controls for specified transactions and functions that require review 

and approval by a one or more approvers before the request is executed* 

• Setting up forced dual controls for all tasks performed through the online administration service* 

• Running management reports that show current user entitlements for a rolling 365 days of 

administration activity history 

* We require dual custody for money movement transactions and changes to user access. 

28.  Provide account reconciliation services for disbursements (full, partial or positive pay, 

depending on account). 

We offer our disbursement customers the option of either full or partial account reconciliation plan 

(ARP) services. 

We work with you to help you choose the service option that best meets your requirements. 

29.  Provide monthly activity statements and reports by the 10th day of the following month or 

sooner. 

Monthly statements are available online for the current month and the previous 12 months.  

The following table lists the mailing dates and online availability of statements and optional reports. 

Service option Business days after cutoff: 

online 

Business days after cutoff: 

mailed 

Demand deposit account (DDA) 

statements 

1 day 3 days 

Full reconciliation statement and 

reports (with or without positive 

pay)  

Month-end cutoff 

Non-month-end cutoff 

 

 

4 days 

4 days 

 

 

6 days 

4 days 

476

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 15 

 

Service option Business days after cutoff: 

online 

Business days after cutoff: 

mailed 

Partial reconciliation statement 

and reports (with positive pay) 

Month-end cutoff 

Non-month-end cutoff 

 

 

4 days 

4 days 

 

 

6 days 

4 days 

Partial reconciliation statement 

and reports (without positive 

pay) 

Month-end cutoff 

Non-month-end cutoff 

 

 

1 days 

1 days 

 

 

2 days 

1 days 

. 

30.  Provide a detailed monthly account analysis statement for each individual account and a 

consolidated statement showing charges for all account services. 

Our interactive account analysis statement is available online. 

The City can select individual or multiple items to trend up to 13 months of analysis history, giving 

you a quick overview of changes in your activity and pricing. 

31.  Collateralize all collected balances, in excess of balances insured by the FDIC as required by 

applicable Federal/California Government Codes. 

Agreed. We will comply with all collateral requirements set forth in the California Government Code. 

32.  The city requires a daily deposit pick-up from City Hall with additional pick-up available upon 

request via an armored car service provider. 

The City should contract directly with, and pay fees directly to, an armored courier of your choosing 

from our approved list of courier companies. 

We will assist you in identifying local courier services. 

477

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 16 

 

IV. Information requested 

A. Qualifications and experience 

1. Provide a general overview and brief history of your organization, including parent and/or 

subsidiary companies and the number of employees. 

Our history 
On March 18, 1852, our founders — Henry Wells and William G. Fargo — began an innovative start-

up company dedicated to helping customers build businesses and manage money in a rapidly 

changing world. Wells and Fargo used their hands-on experience making deliveries by steamship and 

stagecoach to develop a network of offices from California to New York and around the world. 

Wells Fargo agents in thousands of communities provided financial services to local businesses, 

including money orders and funds transfers by telegraph as well as delivery of valuable goods and 

mail. 

Much has changed since 1852. New communities and industries have emerged and grown. Evolving 

technology has made communication and financial transactions faster. Across time, and for every 

generation, Wells Fargo has continued helping customers go further by providing innovative 

financial services to get ahead. In times of prosperity, depression, or war, people and businesses have 

turned to Wells Fargo for the solutions they need to survive and thrive. We’re committed to 

continuing this legacy of providing essential services, innovative solutions, and removing barriers so 

that we help enable consumers and communities achieve prosperity and success. 

Our footprint 
Wells Fargo & Company is a nationwide, diversified financial services company with $1.92 trillion in 

assets. We provide banking, insurance, investment, mortgage, and consumer and commercial 

finance services through more than 7,200 locations, 13,000 ATMs, as well as, online 

(wellsfargo.com), and through mobile devices. We’re headquartered in San Francisco, but we’re 

decentralized, so every local Wells Fargo office is a headquarters for satisfying all our customers’ 

financial needs and helping them succeed financially. We do business with more than 70 million 

customers and one in three U.S. households. We have approximately 254,000 employees.* 

* As of August 2021. 

The list of Wells Fargo & Company subsidiaries is included in the annual 10-K filing at 

https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/investor-relations/filings/ 

We have approximately 254,000 employees.* 

* As of August 2021. 

478

Item 19.

https://www.wellsfargo.com/
https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/investor-relations/filings/


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 17 

 

2. Provide the address of the office location(s) that will service the account. 

For local convenience, we have two Beaumont branch locations: 

Beaumont branch  2nd Street Marketplace branch 

499 E. Sixth St.  1494 E. Second St. 

Beaumont, CA 92223  Beaumont, CA 92223  

Your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, will house the City’s relationship with our local 

Government Banking group, and her office is in San Bernardino. She works with the City on all 

projects and requests directly, and visits you onsite at City Hall as requested. 

3. Describe the experience of the financial institution in providing similar services for other 

cities and institutions. 

Wells Fargo Government Banking 

For almost 170 years, Wells Fargo has been a trusted 

financial institution. We’re a leading national bank ranked 

third in assets by the FDIC in 2022. The strength of our 

balance sheet helps us serve our government customers 

across the country. 

Government Banking is part of our Specialized Industries 

group. Through this group and its resources, we strive to 

provide the high level of service that you expect and 

deserve from your banking provider.  

Our more than 300 

Government Banking team 

members work with nearly 

5,500 government customers 

across our footprint of 39 

states and the District of 

Columbia, with $42 billion in 

deposits and $21 billion in 

commitments. 

A dedicated government team 

Our Government Banking group aligns sales, specialized banking teams, investment banking 

professionals, and tax-exempt fixed-income trading and distribution capabilities. 

The team itself consists of more than 300 banking, credit, and treasury management professionals 

including relationship managers, treasury management sales consultants, treasury management 

sales analysts, customer service representatives, and implementation consultants who work together 

as one team in order to help provide you with industry knowledge and expertise. 

Our 79 relationship managers are tenured professionals who are local to their markets. A dedicated 

relationship manager oversees your relationship, with your treasury management sales consultant 

further supporting your relationship by sharing new ideas and consulting with you about your 

services.  

Customers like you 

We support approximately 5,500* government customers with our coast-to-coast, national GB 

practice, giving your local team access to industry intelligence and innovative best practices. 

* Wells Fargo internal reporting, as of 2021. 

479

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 18 

 

In the State of California, our dedicated Government Banking team of local relationship managers 

provides solutions for 801 government organizations who hold an average balance of $4 billion. 

Our customer relationships include federal, state, county, and city governments, as well as 

government agencies, authorities, and municipal utilities. In addition to the regional support 

provided by our teams, we also specialize in key subsectors of the industry including public power, 

transportation, and state housing finance authorities. 

Helping you meet your challenges 

We understand the different needs and challenges facing our government customers. Our 

employees work with you to help you maximize efficiency and take advantage of cost-saving 

options. They can also help you navigate the strict guidelines and technology challenges unique to 

government customers. Whether advice on how to raise capital, manage assets, or increase 

operational efficiencies, we constantly share the knowledge we’ve gained from other government 

customers that have similar challenges.  

An enhanced customer experience 

We regularly monitor our service levels to validate and help ensure the consistent quality of the 

customer service that we provide you. We also offer educational sessions on current treasury 

management topics to keep you aware of industry best practices and regulatory changes. 

Why Wells Fargo?  

We help make it convenient to use our services. As one of the first banks in the U.S. to offer web-

enabled treasury management services, Wells Fargo is recognized as a leader in online and mobile 

services, as shown below. 

Global Finance* Best Corporate/Institutional Digital Bank in North 

America (2020) 

• Best Online Portal 

• Best Online Investment Management Services 

• Best Trade Finance Services 

• Best Integrated Corporate Banking Site 

• Best Information Security and Fraud 

Management 

Best In Social Media Marketing and Services 

• Best Open Banking Application Programming 

Interfaces (APIs) 

Keynova Mobile Banking Scorecard† #1 in Overall Performance, tied with Bank of America 

and Chase 

#1 in Mobile Web Banking Experience and Privacy and 

Security (March 2020) 

Keynova Small Business Banking Scorecard† #1 Overall Performance — Small Business Banking 

Experience through Digital Channels (2020) 

* Global Finance. August 12, 2020. “World’s Best Digital Bank Awards 2020 Press Release.”  

† Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Who We Are > Quarterly Fact Sheet. 

480

Item 19.

https://d2tyltutevw8th.cloudfront.net/media/document/press-release-worlds-best-digital-banks-2020--1597244345.pdf


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 19 

 

4. Complete the following table with current credit ratings by Standard & Poor's Rating 

Services and Moody's Investor Services. If the proposer is not rated by these rating 

organizations, provide other evidence of the institution's financial strength. 

Wells Fargo subscribes to DBRS, Fitch, Moody’s, and Standard & Poor’s ratings agencies. We include 

our current ratings in the following table.* 

Wells Fargo & 

Company 

DBRS 

Morningstar 

Fitch Moody’s S&P Global 

Long-term Issuer 

Rating 

AA (low)  A+ A1 BBB+ 

Short-term Issuer 

Rating 

R-1 (middle) F1 P-1 A-2 

Senior Unsecured AA (low)  A+ A1 BBB+ 

Subordinated A (high) A- A3 BBB  

Preferred Stock A (low)  BBB Baa2 BB+ 

 

Wells Fargo 

Bank, N.A. 

DBRS 

Morningstar 

Fitch Moody’s S&P Global 

Long-term Issuer 

Rating 

AA AA- Aa2 A+ 

Short-term Issuer 

Rating 

R-1 (high) F1+ P-1 A-1 

Bank Deposits AA AA Aa1 A+ 

Senior Unsecured AA AA- Aa2 A+ 

Subordinated AA (low) A Aa3 BBB+ 

* The information provided can be found on our Investor Relations site and is provided for informational purposes only. We do 

not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of information on or available through this site, and we are not responsible for 

inaccuracies or omissions in that information or for actions taken in reliance on that information. Please read Legal 

Disclaimers before using or relying on information on or available through this site. Potential investors in our securities should 

seek professional advice before they invest. 

5. Discuss the firm's current capital structure, adequacy, and coverage. If applicable, provide 

the firm's risk-based capital classification (Well Capitalized, Adequately Capitalized, Under 

Capitalized, Significantly Undercapitalized). 

Wells Fargo & Company is a nationwide, diversified financial services company. We’re headquartered 

in San Francisco, but we’re decentralized, so every local Wells Fargo office is a headquarter for 

satisfying all our customers’ financial needs and helping them succeed financially. 

481

Item 19.

https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/investor-relations/credit-ratings/
https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/investor-relations/legal-disclaimers/
https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/investor-relations/legal-disclaimers/


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 20 

 

We identify key measures of our financial strength in the following table. 

Key facts Measure 

Capital ratios 

Total equity to assets1 

Risk-based capital2 

• Common equity Tier 1 

• Tier 1 capital 

• Total capital 

Tier 1 leverage2 

 

9.51% 

 

11.85 

13.54 

16.75 

8.36 

Market value of stock3,4 $161.8 billion 

Total assets2 $1.9 trillion+ 

Customers3 70 million 

Digital (online and mobile) active 

customers3 

32.9 million 

Households3 1 in 3 

1. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Investor Relations > Annual Reports and Proxy Statements > 2020 

Annual Report. 

2. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Investor Relations > SEC and Other Regulatory Filings > Q1 2021 

Form 10-Q. 

3. Wells Fargo. 2021. wellsfargo.com > About Wells Fargo > Who We Are > Quarterly Fact Sheet. 

4. Based on sales, profits, assets, and market value as of March 31, 2021. 

Capital adequacy and risk coverage 
Wells Fargo manages a variety of risks that can significantly affect our financial performance and our 

ability to meet the expectations of our customers, shareholders, regulators and other stakeholders. 

We continue to monitor our business, including our loan portfolios, for potential direct, indirect, and 

macro-economic impacts. 

For additional information about how we manage risk, see the “Risk Management” section in our 

2021 10-k annual report, link below.  

6. Include an electronic copy of the most recent audited financial statement and the latest 10-

k report with the proposal. 

You can locate Wells Fargo & Company’s most recent annual report through the following site: 

wellsfargo.com/invest_relations/annual. 

You can locate Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.’s last four quarterly call reports through the following site: 

https://cdr.ffiec.gov/public/ManageFacsimiles.aspx by using the Wells Fargo Bank, National 

Association FDIC Certificate No. 3511.  

482

Item 19.

https://www.wellsfargo.com/invest_relations/annual
https://cdr.ffiec.gov/public/ManageFacsimiles.aspx


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 21 

 

7. Provide the bank’s Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) rating. 

Community Reinvestment Act rating 
The Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) of 1977 requires banks to meet the credit needs of all the 

communities where they do business, especially low- and moderate-income communities. In its 

most recent CRA Performance Evaluation, which covers the years 2012-2018, the OCC gave  

Wells Fargo an overall CRA rating of “Outstanding.” 

The CRA Performance Evaluation notes that Wells Fargo is a “leader in making community 

development (CD) loans,” and makes “significant use of innovative and flexible loan products” to 

meet credit needs. The Performance Evaluation also noted that our retail banking options are 

accessible in a majority of the areas surveyed and that we serve our customers through full-service 

ATMs, phone banking, online and mobile banking, and mobile payments. On the individual 

components of the Performance Evaluation, Wells Fargo received an “Outstanding” on the Lending 

Test, a “High Satisfactory on the Investment Test, and a “High Satisfactory” on the Service Test. 

The OCC also rated our performance in the State of California as “Outstanding,” which reflects our 

strong track record of lending to, investing in, and providing service to low- and moderate-income 

communities, both in the State of California and nationwide.  

We are deeply committed to economic growth, sustainable homeownership and neighborhood 

stability in low- and moderate-income communities and expects to invest above and beyond what is 

required by the CRA. Community reinvestment is an integral part of our business culture. We have 

long understood that we can be no stronger, nor more successful, than the neighborhoods and 

communities where we do business. Supporting our communities allows us to better meet our 

customers' financial needs and helps us to achieve our goal to be one of America's best companies. 

You can find our most recent CRA performance evaluation at the following link: 

wellsfargo.com/about/community/wfcra/perf_evaluation. 

The California evaluation starts on page 245. 

8. Be sufficiently capitalized to accommodate the City’s cash management needs and ensure 

collateralization of funds. 

Wells Fargo meets this requirement. Our public funds deposit collateralization program complies 

with all applicable statutes and regulations governing public funds deposits, including the pledge and 

perfection of collateral. Identifier codes — used on public funds accounts — trigger collateralization. 

We determine collateral needs based on the prior day’s close of business account balance. However, 

we can accommodate same-day collateral requests upon sufficient, advanced notification of an 

incoming deposit. 

The Public Fund Database generates daily reports that allow us to monitor daily balances, and FDIC 

and collateral requirements. We collateralize deposits by using securities that maximize the bank’s 

liquidity while meeting all applicable collateralization requirements. Wells Fargo obtains market 

value from established third-party services. The collateral value is market-to-market daily. 

483

Item 19.

https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/community/wfcra/perf_evaluation


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 22 

 

We closely monitor deposit balances to ensure they are operational in nature and support the 

ongoing business needs of our customers. For deposit balances consistently in excess of a customer’s 

operational needs during periods of elevated liquidity, we offer off-balance sheet solutions through 

our sweeps to money funds and fixed income platform to accommodate a customer’s needs. We 

reserve the right to assess a monthly deposit balance fee based on average positive collected 

balances that we determine are in excess of a customer’s operational cash needs. 

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS: NOT FDIC INSURED • NO BANK GUARANTEE • MAY LOSE VALUE 

B. Personnel 

1. Provide the name, title, address, phone number, fax number and email address of the 

primary contact person(s) assigned to this account. 

Your Wells Fargo Government Banking team understands your business objectives and has the 

experience to provide the City with the solutions and relationship support you deserve and expect of 

your financial service partner. Your core relationship team is led by relationship manager,  

Jamie O’Connell, and treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu. Together your team 

looks forward to working with you as your primary banking partner and are committed to bringing 

you innovative, efficient solutions to enhance your treasury management processes. 

We center our business on the needs of our customers. We take pride in approaching each 

relationship individually and, as one team, leveraging our resources to create the most value for our 

customers. We create value through providing industry knowledge and expertise, strength and 

stability, and an enhanced customer experience. 

Jamie O’Connell 

Relationship Manager 

334 W. Third St. 

First Floor 

San Bernardino, CA 92401 

951-295-7482 

866-205-4778 (eFax) 

jamie.oconnell@wellsfargo.com 

Gurleen Pannu 

Treasury Management Sales Consultant 

999 Third Ave. 

42nd Floor 

Seattle, WA 98104 

206-833-4083 

gurleen.pannu@wellsfargo.com 

Biographies of your full Wells Fargo relationship team follow. 

2. Describe your firm’s policy on changing the primary contact person on an account. 

We consider your preferences when assigning a relationship manager to your relationship and make 

a concerted effort to keep the existing relationship assignments in place and unchanged. However, 

there are cases, mostly due to natural attrition, where a new relationship partner is assigned to 

replace a departing employee. 

In the event that your relationship manager exits their role, we provide you with as much advanced 

notice as possible, and also make a good-faith effort to replace the individual with someone equally 

qualified and experienced.  

484

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 23 

 

We facilitate a full knowledge transfer, as well as a warm handoff, so that you’re comfortable with 

the transition and feel confident that your services will continue without interruption.  

In addition, our top priority is to provide all members of our Customer Care for Businesses (CC4B) 

Service Office with equal training, so that in the event of staff turnover the City will receive the 

same high level of attention and customer service. 

3. Name the individuals who will work with the City on a day-to-day basis. Information should 

include: 

a. Experience working with other City and or government institutions. 

b. Proposed role with regard to the City’s account. 

c. Number of years of experience in this field 

d. Number of years with your firm 

e. Describe the level of local decision-making authority these individuals have to handle 

emergency need of the City as they arise. 

Local, dedicated relationship team 
Our relationship-focused approach to our diversified set of products and services helps ensure you 

have solutions that are right for you — at the right time. We are your advocate, and our goal is to 

exceed your expectations and establish an interactive relationship. The following chart contains the 

biographies with pertinent information of your team. 

Your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, and her leadership team have full local decision-making 

authority to handle emergency needs of the City as they arise. 

Relationship Manager 

Jamie O’Connell, Vice President 

 
. 

334 W. Third St. 

Fourth Floor 

San Bernardino, CA 92401 
. 

jamie.oconnell@wellsfargo.com 

951-295-7482 mobile 

Jamie offers the City consultative financial and banking 

guidance and coordinates the team of specialists that support 

your banking relationship. Jamie is your advocate at the bank 

and assists with all financial services you request from the bank. 

She began working for Wells Fargo in 1996 and has been a 

relationship manager since 2012, but has focused on 

Government customers for the past 15 years. She is celebrating 

her 26th work anniversary at Wells Fargo this year.  

She is an active member of the Wells Fargo Volunteer Chapter 

and is on the advisory board for the Inland Empire Ronald 

McDonald House. She also organizes volunteer groups for 

Habitat for Humanity and the Community Action Partnership of 

San Bernardino County. Jamie is also very involved with 

CSMFO’s annual conference, and local chapter meetings. 

. 

 

485

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 24 

 

Relationship Associate 

Anna Gonzales 

 
. 

333 S. Grand Ave. 

Seventh Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071 
. 

anna.l.gonzales@wellsfargo.com 

213-253-7304, ext. 7304 office 

Anna supports your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, and 

helps to enhance your customer service experience. She serves 

as your liaison with other areas of the bank. She also assists with 

questions related to account analysis statements and 

overdrafts. 

Anna has been in banking since 2008 and a relationship 

associate since 2019. 

She received her business management degree from Mount 

San Antonio College. 

. 

Treasury Management Sales Consultant 

Gurleen Pannu, Assistant Vice President 

 
. 

933 Third Ave. 

42nd Floor 

Seattle, WA 98104 
. 

gurleen.pannu@wellsfargo.com 

206-833-4083 mobile 

Gurleen offers her treasury management expertise to the City. 

She shares best practices and product and service information 

to guide you in developing your treasury management program. 

Gurleen has worked in banking since 2011, where she began her 

career with the Wachovia and Wells Fargo merger. With more 

than 11 years in finance, Gurleen’s background spans from retail 

to business, and Government Banking. Gurleen has been 

working with government entities since 2018. 

Gurleen received her bachelor’s degree in human services from 

The George Washington University. 

. 

 

486

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 25 

 

Treasury Management Sales Analyst 

Jessie Volz, Assistant Vice President 

 
. 

1350 Fashion Valley Rd. 

Fourth Floor 

San Diego, CA 92108 
. 

jessie.volz@wellsfargo.com 

619-688-2850 office 

Jessie supports your treasury management consultant, Gurleen 

Pannu. She works with you to begin new service 

implementations and can assist with treasury management 

questions when Gurleen is unavailable. 

Jessie brings more than 14 years of banking experience to her 

current position. 

Jessie earned her B.S. in business management from San Diego 

State University in 2008. 

. 

Lead Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant 

Todd Reed 

 
. 

1350 Fashion Valley Rd. 

Fourth Floor 

San Diego, CA 92108 
. 

todd.reed2@wellsfargo.com 

619-857-3855 office 

Todd recommends payment processing solutions to fulfill the 

City’s processing needs. He shares best practices and product 

and service information to guide you in developing your 

eReceivables program. He can also assist you with other 

receivables and print services products. 

Todd has worked in banking since 2000. He began working for 

Wells Fargo in 2017 as an eReceivables consultant. He is a Six 

Sigma Black Belt, an Enterprise Content Management 

Professional (ECMP), and a Management Action Program 

(MAP) graduate. 

Todd received his B.S. in business administration from the 

Rochester Institute of Technology. 

. 

4. Will a specific customer service representative or a customer service department be 

assigned to handle day-to-day transactions for the City? 

The City will contact our industry award-winning* CC4B Service Office for assistance with your 

inquiries related to online services. For all other requests, you will contact your relationship team; 

relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, and your relationship associate, Anna Gonzales. 

* 2020 American Business Awards silver winner for Customer Service Department of the Year. 

487

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 26 

 

a. Describe the responsibilities of the customer service personnel, including the chain of 

command for problem resolutions. 

The City will contact our CC4B Service Office for assistance with your services. Client service officers 

assist you until your issues are resolved. They take ownership to navigate your inquiry through any 

needed solutions and assist with any simple or complex issues you encounter. They are service 

experts who understand treasury management from your perspective and quickly understand your 

questions and concerns. Your relationship team prefers to be included on any issues related to 

signer changes, maintenance on accounts, and escalated inquiries. 

Continuity of service 
Our client service officers do not have an assigned number of customers. They are trained to 

understand and respond to the City’s needs without interrupting your service. 

Escalation process 
If you have an issue our client service officers can’t solve, they will escalate it on your behalf. It is the 

responsibility of our client service officers to use the leadership structure to assist with escalations. 

They may also engage technical support and key product and operational associates. 

b. Is local customer service support available at the bank's local branches? 

The City may conduct transactions using the local branch, but due to the many customized needs of 

our Government customers, it is important to always include your relationship manager, Jamie 

O’Connell, for any of these requests. She can coordinate an appointment for a branch need with the 

local manager, but all maintenance on accounts is conducted with the local government team. Jamie 

is located 15 minutes away and can support local meetings at your request.  

In the rare occurrence a branch transaction is needed, Jamie can introduce the City to the local 

branch manager, Catherine Ramos, for additional support. Most of your needs will be met with our 

treasury management solutions, local government expertise, and online maintenance with your 

relationship team. 

c. What are the hours of operation of each customer service unit involved in supporting the 

proposed services? 

Our CC4B Service Office representatives are available Monday through Friday from 4:00 a.m. to 

7:00 p.m. Pacific Time and Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. Pacific Time. 

Your relationship team can be reached between normal business hours Monday through Friday from 

8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Pacific Time, holidays excluded. 

488

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 27 

 

d. If an error is discovered by the City, how would you propose to resolve it (i.e. who should 

the City contact first, etc.)? 

If an error is discovered, your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, and relationship associate, 

Anna Gonzales, prefer to be the first notified of the issue. For any technical support issues, or online 

banking support, they may refer you to our CC4B Service Office team that can provide more in-

depth training or assistance. 

When you contact our CC4B Service Office with an inquiry that requires research, the client service 

officer who works with you logs your issue and provides you with a case number and an expected 

resolution time. Your client service officer may also engage additional resources as needed.  

5. IT Resources: Will the bank provide dedicated IT liaison(s) to work on set-up, file transfer, 

testing and troubleshooting/issue resolution? During what hours is technical support 

available? 

Yes. In most cases, client service officers can diagnose your problem and provide a solution on the 

first call. However, if there is a problem that our customer care representatives can’t resolve, they 

act as your liaison to escalate the issue to our CC4B Technical Support. 

Hardware and software issues 
While we can’t provide support for the City’s hardware and software, we will assist in any way we can. 

For instance, we can help to troubleshoot an issue with a scanner but won’t troubleshoot an area 

that your IT department is more suited to support; we won’t put your systems at risk. 

Transmissions issues 
Our Wholesale Transmissions department focuses primarily on communication issues related to 

data transmission. Customers who exchange information with Wells Fargo using our data 

transmission service will also have the help of dedicated support staff. 

Hours 
Our CC4B Service Office representatives are available Monday through Friday from 4:00 a.m. to 

7:00 p.m. Pacific Time and Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. Pacific Time. 

Our CC4B Technical Support group is available during the same hours as our CC4B Service Office 

team: 4:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Pacific Time and Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. Pacific Time. 

Again, customer care representatives contact CC4B Technical Support on your behalf and 

communicate the issue back to you. 

489

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 28 

 

C. General banking services 

1. Deposit Processing 

a. Please provide a listing of bank branches, noting the address and distance of the branch 

closest to the City. 

Wells Fargo has two locations in the City of Beaumont. Our closest branch to the City’s main office 

is located at 499 E. Sixth St. 

The branches identified in this table are closest to your locations and can support your commercial 

deposits for cash and checks. 

Your location Branch Branch hours  

(local time) 

Branch deposit 

deadline  

(local time) 

Distance 

City of Beaumont 

550 E. Sixth St. 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

Beaumont 

499 E. Sixth St. 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

951-845-2605 

Mon-Fri: 9:00 a.m. – 

5:00 p.m. 

Sat: 9:00 a.m. – 

12:00 p.m. 

Mon-Fri: 5:00 p.m. 

 

0.09 miles 

2nd Street Marketplace 

1494 E. Second St. 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

951-769-2973 

Mon-Fri: 9:00 a.m. – 

5:00 p.m. 

Sat: 9:00 a.m. – 

12:00 p.m. 

Mon-Fri: 5:00 p.m. 

 

2 miles 

. 

. 

b. For deposits collected and transported by the City, which branch location do you propose 

the City use to deposit funds? 

We propose the City use our Wells Fargo branch located at 499 East Sixth St., conveniently located 

across the street from City Hall. 

c. Please describe the bank’s deposit requirements. How should the coin and currency 

deposits be prepared? How should un-encoded check deposits be prepared? 

Deposit preparation requirements vary based on the deposit method. 

Deposits using post verify service 
If you use our post verify service — so that we verify your cash deposit after you leave the branch — 

we require the City to make your deposit in a secure, plastic, tamper-evident, dual-pouch bag. Each 

bag must contain a bar code, as well as a unique 10-digit serial number on a tear strip, that you 

retain as a record. 

Insert cash in the tamper-evident portion of the bag (top section). Place checks and the deposit 

ticket in the resealable portion of the bag (bottom section). 

490

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 29 

 

You can deposit loose coin in amounts less than $10 at all branches. Most branches accept rolled 

coin for deposit amounts between $10 and $50. You should use FED standard coin bags for 

amounts greater than $50. You may include checks and currency on the same deposit ticket. 

Night depository 
The procedures for night deposits are the same as those for post verification. the City will make 

your deposit in a secure, plastic, tamper-evident, dual-pouch bag. Each bag must contain a bar code, 

as well as a unique 10-digit serial number on a tear strip, that you retain as a record. 

Insert cash in the tamper-evident portion of the bag (top section). Place checks and the deposit 

ticket in the resealable portion of the bag (bottom section). 

Deposits to a cash vault 
Deposits made to a cash vault require a secure, plastic, tamper-evident deposit bag. Each bag must 

contain a bar code, as well as a unique 10-digit serial number on a tear strip, that you retain as a 

record. 

If you’re submitting split deposits, you insert cash in the top section of the bag. Place checks and the 

deposit ticket in the bottom section. If you’re submitting mixed deposits, you insert cash, checks, 

and the deposit ticket in the deposit bag. 

You can deposit both loose and rolled coin in any amount. Special coin bags may be required for 

weight purposes. We recommend that you deposit checks and currency on separate deposit tickets, 

but it’s not required at most of our cash vault locations. 

Deposits to ATM 
Using your business ATM deposit card, the City can deposit cash and checks at any of our 

Wells Fargo deposit-enabled ATMs. The deposit preparation steps are as follows: 

• Make deposits in batches of up to 30 items (cash and bills together) 

• Deposit cash and checks directly into the ATM — you do not need to use an envelope or 

deposit ticket 

Remote cash capture 
You receive detailed deposit preparation requirements and procedures during implementation. The 

requirements and procedures vary based on the safe model that the City selects. You can deposit 

loose coin in amounts less than $10 into the safe as a manual deposit. 

491

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 30 

 

d. What is the ledger cutoff time for deposits? 

Our cutoff times for same-day ledger credit vary based on how you make your deposit. 

Branch deposit services 
• Deposit-enabled ATM — ATM deposits made before 9:00 p.m. local time will be posted on 

the same business day. You receive credit the next business day for deposits you make after 

the deadline, on weekends, and on federal holidays. 

• Night depository — Once we process your deposit, you receive same-day credit for cash and 

check deposits made prior to the cutoff time. 

• Teller line — You receive same-day ledger credit for both cash and check deposits made by 

branch closure, local time. 

The branch deposit deadline for your local Beaumont branches is Monday through Friday, 5:00 p.m. 

Pacific Time. 

Remote cash capture (smart safe) 
Most customers choose to receive provisional deposit credit the next business day through our 

standard or premium remote cash capture service, SafeVantage®. 

We can provide provisional same-day credit to the City’s account. However, this level of service 

requires establishing a cutoff time that is before the end of a typical business day, which can cause 

reconciliation problems. In anticipation of matching transaction data, we post on the same day your 

deposits were made or prior to the cutoff time. We then post the deposits that you make after the 

cutoff time to the next business day. 

The following table shows the cutoff times in local time. 

Service level Cutoff time 

(local time) 

Provisional credit 

received* 

Standard 4:00 a.m. Next business day 

at end of day 

Premium intraday† 4:00 a.m. Next business day 

by 8:00 a.m. 

* At implementation, we can discuss questions you may have concerning receipt of provisional credit. 

† Additional fees apply. 

For check deposits that the City makes in the smart safe’s manual drop slot, you will receive credit 

after the deposit is physically picked up and delivered to Wells Fargo for verification. These 

deadlines for pickup are the Cash Vault cutoff times. 

Cash vault by armored courier service 
Different deadlines apply for cash only, check only, and mixed deposits of cash and checks. You 

receive same-day credit for deposits received by the deposit deadline. 

492

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 31 

 

You can place coin and currency orders 24 hours a day, seven days a week — using our online 

banking portal, automated touchtone phone system, or direct file transmission services. Your 

armored courier normally delivers your change orders the next day; remote locations may require 

two days in transit. Contact your armored courier to confirm your delivery times for change orders. 

The following table lists our cutoff times for deposits and change orders, in local time.* 

Cash vault site  Deposit deadline Order deadline 

Cash-only Check-only Mixed Touch tone Online or 

Transmission 

California      

Los Angeles 7:30 p.m. 7:30 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 10:30 a.m. 10:00 a.m. 

*Cash Vault Locations, Deadlines, and Touch-Tone Quick Reference Guide. Your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, can 

provide this guide. You may also download it from our online banking portal, in the cash vault service section. 

Wholesale lockbox 
The following table lists our deadline for the Los Angeles site. At sites with more than one deadline, 

you can choose the time that best meets your internal balance reporting or transmission 

requirements. 

We include payments received after your established deadline (including any payments processed 

during the weekend or on a holiday), in the following business day’s work. 

Lockbox site Deposit time* 

Los Angeles 4:50 a.m., 10:00 a.m., 5:00 p.m., 7:00 p.m. 

*All times are local. 

e. How are deposits created? Are all items immediately verified? If provisional credit is 

given, when does verification take place? If the financial institution corrects a deposit, 

how with the City be informed of this change? 

The City uses many different deposit methods today, and depending on the service used, the cutoff 

times may vary. The City may have branch deposits, cash vault deposits, lockbox deposits, and items 

submitted through remote deposit or our E-Box solution.  

No matter the solution, we start the verification process right away and will notify you of any items 

or transactions that may be subject to return. If something is returned, we notify the City upon our 

knowledge, and the City can set preferences to obtain returns based on your desired alert settings. 

Branch deposit services 
You will receive a receipt for the amount listed on the deposit ticket and provisional credit at the 

time you hand the deposit to the teller. 

493

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 32 

 

Based on the branch’s proximity to a cash vault location, we verify the cash either at the branch or at 

one of our cash vault locations. If we complete our verification at the branch, we verify it within 48 

hours. If we complete it at a cash vault, we verify it within 72 hours. 

You receive an adjustment notice by U.S. mail or email. The notice includes the amount, reason for 

the adjustment, and location code (if applicable). 

Remote cash capture (smart safe) 
The smart safe holds your deposit until your armored courier picks it up. 

Each smart safe is equipped with a built-in bill validator and counterfeit detection technology. The 

bill validator verifies the authenticity of each bill and confirms deposits note by note. 

The City will receive provisional expedited credit to your account on all cash deposits made by the 

service cutoff time. 

The City has two options to receive provisional credit: 

• Standard — You receive credit for your deposits on the next business day in the evening after 

the cash has been deposited and you can view transactions on previous day reports. 

• Premium intraday — You receive next business day credit by 8:00 a.m. local time and view 

transactions on both intraday deposit and previous day reports. 

Deposit adjustments 

The safe vendors’ guarantee programs cover nearly all deposits that their safes validate; however, 

the process for reimbursement differs by vendor.* 

Brinks 

The Brinks guarantee covers cash in safe and counterfeit items. Wells Fargo will post adjustments 

for out-of-balance conditions. For reimbursements, the City must work directly with Brinks. 

Garda 

The Garda guarantee doesn’t cover cash in the safe or counterfeit items. Wells Fargo will post 

adjustments for out-of-balance conditions. For reimbursements, the City must work directly with 

Garda. 

Loomis 

The Loomis guarantee covers cash in the safe and counterfeit items. This vendor doesn’t make 

adjustments, if the discrepancy is under $100. Wells Fargo will post an adjustment to your account 

for all out-of-balance conditions greater than $100. You can initiate research requests directly with 

the bank. Upon request, we may handle the claims process with Loomis. 

* The process is subject to change by Brinks, Garda, and Loomis. Please contact your armored courier for the vendor’s most current safe 

guarantee program information. 

Cash vault 
Deposit procedures begin once your armored courier transports your deposit. Your armored courier 

transfers the deposit from the vehicle to the cash vault and documents the deposit contents in a 

manifest. 

494

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 33 

 

Our tellers process the deposit* and credit your account for the total declared on the deposit slip. 

You receive same-day credit for deposits received by the vault deadline. 

* Tellers work under video surveillance and follow dual custody procedures. 

Deposit verification 

Within 48 hours of receipt of your deposit, tellers count and verify the cash against the amount 

shown on your deposit slip.  

The City can review deposit and adjustment transaction information using these sources: 

• Daily balance reports* 

• Monthly bank statements  

• Cash vault reports* 

• Cash Vault Activity Summary 

• Deposit Activity 

• Deposit Adjustment Activity 

• Online cash vault service 

* Additional fees apply for reports. 

Deposit adjustments 

You can use our standard adjustment amount or opt to adjust all discrepancies. We generally do not 

disclose our dollar limit. You can choose to receive a phone call notification for all adjustments of 

more than $100. 

For any deposit discrepancy, we send a deposit adjustment notice by email or U.S. mail. Notices 

include the deposit date, declared amount, verified currency total by denomination, and location 

number (if applicable). When you use our online Cash Vault service, you can also see the deposit 

adjustment online. 

Wholesale lockbox 
Operators create a file that contains the MICR data, check amount, and a digital image of each 

deposited check, then transmits the file to our processing department. We then clear the checks 

electronically. 

After your scheduled lockbox deposit deadline passes, we generate your lockbox output that 

includes both images and data. You can receive your reports and images online or by transmission. 

You can also request to receive a paper package by mail.* 

We will gather any unprocessed or rejected items and deliver them to you based on your 

instructions. Because we credit all deposits processed through our lockbox network into  

Wells Fargo accounts, we are responsible for handling all adjustments and resolving any errors. This 

prevents you from having to work with multiple institutions to resolve inconsistencies. 

* Additional fees may apply. 

495

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 34 

 

Deposit corrections 
If errors are discovered, we will notify the City of the issue and it will be notated on the previous day 

report. However, we don’t identify and adjust all discrepancies.  

We reserve the right to write off check adjustments and cash adjustments based on dollar 

thresholds that we set internally. As a matter of policy, we don’t disclose these thresholds to 

customers. 

If your account is a commercial deposit account or an analyzed business deposit account, then you 

may arrange for us to adjust all discrepancies identified during any verification without regard to our 

standard adjustment amount. Please contact your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, to make 

this request. 

When we adjust a deposit amount, we make a separate debit or credit entry to your account. We 

also provide an adjustment notice and relevant backup documents. 

If you use our subaccounting service, then your adjustment notice will include your location number 

and location name (if applicable). 

Reporting 
We provide deposit adjustment notices inform you about discrepancies. Our procedures vary based 

on where we process your deposits. You can also review adjustments on your bank statements, 

online reports*, and file transmissions. Gurleen Pannu, your treasury management sales consultant, 

can discuss timeframes with you at service implementation. 

* Additional fees apply for reports. 

2. Remote Deposit Capture 

a. Describe the financial institution’s ability to process checks by RDC. 

Remote deposit 
You can potentially save both time and money by using our remote deposit service to deposit 

checks into your Wells Fargo account electronically. Our service eliminates the need for your 

employees to make trips to the bank to deposit checks. In addition, an extended deposit deadline of 

7:00 p.m. Pacific Time for same-day ledger credit may mean faster notice of returned items. 

Our service can also help you consolidate your banking relationships, since you no longer need to 

maintain accounts at local banks that have physical branches near your locations. Fewer banking 

relationships can help you save money on account maintenance fees and reduce the time spent 

reconciling multiple bank accounts. 

How it works 
With our remote deposit service, you scan checks for deposit by using an approved check scanner 

and computer with internet access. Next, you confirm the check dollar amounts and verify the 

deposit balances. Then, you submit the deposit to us and receive a prompt confirmation. 

496

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 35 

 

If you enroll in our Alerts service, we send authorized users a deposit confirmation notice by email or 

text message. 

The following diagram shows the remote deposit process flow. 

 

Features 

Image access 

As you scan checks, we capture their images and store them on our servers. Check images are 

immediately available online through our remote deposit service for 90 days and also available 

online through our Transaction Search service for seven years. 

Custom fields 

Using multiple discretionary data fields, you can enter customized information about the checks 

that you receive; this feature lets you search for checks using your own criteria and makes it easy to 

upload data into your AR system. Our quick data feature simplifies the capture process by 

automatically recalling some of your previously entered receivables data. 

Reporting 

You can generate the following reports through our remote deposit service. 

Report name Description 

Deposit Report This report contains general information (including deposit amount, 

number of checks included, and submission date) for deposits completed 

within the past 90 days. It is available in HTML, PDF, CSV, and Excel 

formats.* 

Deposit Report with Item Details This report contains general deposit information (including deposit 

amount, number of checks included, and submission date) and item details 

(including item amount, item status, and check number) for each deposit 

completed within the past 90 days. It is available in HTML, PDF, CSV, and 

Excel formats.* The HTML format includes links to display item images. 

Deposit Report with Check Images This report contains general deposit information and item details for each 

deposit. It is available in PDF format. You can select the number of images 

(up to four per page) that you would like to see, including the option to 

include the back of the check image. 

Deposit detail transmission We offer a deposit detail transmission that can include discretionary data 

that you manually entered, in addition to check detail. This feature allows 

you to receive an electronic file for posting your receivables. 

* CSV, Excel, and HTML formats contain keyed discretionary data. 

497

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 36 

 

User access 

The City’s designated system administrators establish users, grant them access, and set their check 

limits. 

Administrators can customize each user’s access. For example, a user can have scan-only access for 

one account and balance-only access for another account. This flexibility lets you implement dual 

controls so that one person scans and another person submits a deposit. 

Batch deposits 

You can create multiple batches within one deposit. This batching helps to simplify balancing when 

you have checks for multiple entities in the same deposit. To help simplify how you reconcile 

individual batches, our deposit reports show the name and subtotal of each batch. 

Mobile deposit 

You can capture check images and deposit funds* to your account with the camera of a mobile 

device.† Mobile users, such as on-the-road personnel, can accept customer checks and deposit them 

immediately. 

* One check per deposit. 

† Requires an iPhone, iPad, or iPad Mini running iOS version 11 or later or an Android device running 7.0 or later. 

Updates 

If you use our remote deposit service through our online banking portal, you don’t need to install any 

software (other than a scanner driver). Any updates and enhancements we make are promptly 

available to you when you access the system. If you use our remote deposit service through your 

mobile device, you need to download the latest version of our mobile application to access all of the 

latest features and enhancements. 

Quality control 

✓ Before submitting a deposit, you will have a chance to review the scanned items, and make corrections (such 

as rescan images, enter missing data, and verify item amounts) to balance the deposit. 

✓ 
Our Electronic Deposit Center inspects and analyzes the image quality of all items, looking for illegible items, 

image issues such as streaking or interference within key areas, and image contrast. 

✓ 
While image quality exceptions are rare (accounting for approximately 1% or less of all items we process*), we 

follow a standard process for handling them.  

✓ 
If we cannot clear an item, we follow an adjustment process and notify you accordingly. 

* Internal reports, April 2021. 

b. Is there a limit on the number of checks that can be contained in a single deposit? 

Yes. If you use our remote deposit service, you can include up to 1,000 checks in a single deposit. 

You need to create multiple deposits if you have more than 1,000 checks to deposit.  

498

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 37 

 

c. Does your service allow for multiple deposits in a single day? 

Yes. There are no limits on the number of deposits you can make in a day.  

d. How will we be notified of deposit corrections and/or adjustments? 

We provide deposit adjustment notices that you can view online through our Statements and 

Notices service. You can access updates Monday through Friday through our online banking portal 

at 11:00 a.m., 3:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. Pacific Time. 

You can also choose to receive email or text message notifications that let you know when deposit 

adjustment notices are available for viewing. If you prefer, we can send notices to you by mail. 

e. Describe the process used for balancing and correcting deposits transmitted to your 

institution. 

After the City submits a deposit for processing, our Electronic Deposit Center reviews it and 

attempts to resolve any exception items. 

When a correction is necessary, we resolve it by making a separate debit or credit entry to your 

account and provide you with an adjustment notice and associated documentation. 

If your deposit includes 25 or more exceptions, or if exceptions comprise more than 50% of your 

deposit, we do not process it. We contact you by email and ask you to correct the problem for each 

exception and resubmit the deposit. 

f. Does your service offer the ability to adjust data using recognition technology that was 

not captured correctly by the scanner? If yes, please describe. If not, does the service 

allow the addition, deletion, and rescanning of checks during both the correction and 

balancing functions? 

Yes. During the review process, authorized users can correct data that the scanner did not capture 

correctly. Authorized users can perform the following functions to correct data and balance your 

deposits: 

• Rescan an item if the image is not legible or if the information is not captured correctly from 

the MICR line 

• Manually enter missing data, such as the deposit amount and other transaction information 

• Manually key in MICR data 

• Scan additional deposit items 

• Delete one or more items from a deposit 

499

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 38 

 

g. What equipment does the financial institution recommend for RDC and what is the price 

for this equipment? 

Your treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, helps you select and purchase 

equipment that best suits your business needs. 

Our remote deposit service is compatible with Panini, Canon, and Digital Check scanners. The 

following table lists the specifications by manufacturer. 

Suggested daily 

check volume 

Scanner type Check-processing 

speed and volume 

Connection interface and 

dimension 

Fewer than 20 iPhone, iPad and 

Android smartphone 

 • CEO Mobile® deposit 

Digital Check 

CheXpress CX 30-IJ 

Single feed • USB 2.0 (recommended) 

• Backward-compatible with USB 

1.1, with performance limitations 

• 9.5” Lx4.0”Wx7.0”H 

• Weight: 3.5 lbs. 

Fewer than 500 Digital Check TS240-

50 

50 documents per 

minute 

• USB 2.0 (recommended)* 

• Backward-compatible with USB 

1.1, with performance limitations* 

• 11.1”Lx5.1”Wx7.5”H* 

• Weight: 5.2 lbs. 

Panini X 50 50 documents per 

minute 

• Mac compatible 

• USB 2.0 (recommended) 

• Backward-compatible with USB 

1.1, with performance limitations 

• 10.39” Lx5.43”Wx6.88”H 

• Weight: 5.5 lbs. 

More than 500 Canon CR190i II† 190 documents per 

minute 

• USB 2.0 (recommended) 

• 10.7”Lx18.7”Wx8.4”H 

• Weight: 18.5 lbs. 

Digital Check TS 240-

100 

100 documents per 

minute 

• USB 2.0 (recommended)* 

• Backward-compatible with USB 

1.1, with performance limitations* 

• 11.1”Lx5.1”Wx7.5”H* 

• Weight: 5.2 lbs. 

* Applicable to all Digital Check TS240 scanner models. 

† Allow five to seven extra business days for delivery. 

At this time, we do not offer a multi-tray feeder solution for high-volume scanners. 

If you have low volume, the City can consider using our mobile deposit service or purchasing a 

single-feed scanner to capture and deposit checks. 

With average use, all of the scanner models have an expected life cycle of approximately four years. 

500

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 39 

 

Mobile deposit 
Mobile deposit service users with scan and balance authorizations can deposit checks* from a 

camera-enabled iPhone, iPad, or Android smartphone† through the downloadable CEO Mobile app 

available from the Apple App Store® and Google PlayTM store. 

* One check per deposit. 

† Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

We have included pricing on scanner equipment, maintenance fee, necessary supplies, and set-up 

fees in the Appendix section of our proposal. 

h. Can checks be automatically endorsed with the financial institution's RDC service? Is the 

automatic endorsement an electronic image or printed on the check? 

Though scanners cannot print the City’s endorsement on checks, our remote desktop service can 

overlay a virtual, preformatted endorsement on the back of each check image. If you choose to use 

this feature, you don’t need to endorse your checks prior to scanning them. Through our reporting 

services, you can view this virtual endorsement. 

We offer a standard virtual endorsement format that is not customizable. 

i. Are checks cleared as ACHs or image replacement documents? How does the financial 

institution's software determine the clearing mechanism? 

We clear more than 99% of items by image exchange, and less than 1% by image replacement 

document (IRD). 

j. Is there a difference in legal standing for items clearing by ACH or image replacement 

documents (IRDs)? If so, please describe. 

No. 

3. Coin/Currency Ordering Services 

a. Does the financial institution have an automated coin/currency ordering service? 

Describe the deposit and change order procedures, cutoff times, security and other 

features of this system. 

Yes. You can place automated coin and currency orders. We debit your account the day that we fill 

your orders and include your location numbers (if applicable) on your electronic reports and 

statements. 

501

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 40 

 

Online tool for cash management 
the City can create, track, and manage cash deposits and change orders online across multiple banks 

using the DTS Connex Online Cash Management Tool.* You make deposits and place coin and 

currency orders that we provision with our cash vault by armored courier and cash vault by mail 

services. International Financial Services requires a separate enrollment to use this tool. 

* DTS, DTS Connex, and corresponding logos are registered trademarks or service marks of International Financial Services, Inc. IFS is not 

a subsidiary or affiliate of Wells Fargo. The DTS Connex Tool and any other products or services provided by IFS to you are separate 

from the services you receive from us, and we make no representations or warranties and will have no liability to you in connection with 

products and services provided to you by IFS. 

Security features 

The DTS Connex tool features: 

• Account lockout — The system locks out a user account, if there are too many invalid 

password attempts. 

• Password expiration — The system requires users to update their password every 90 days. 

• Timed sign-off — The system automatically signs off users during periods of inactivity. 

Standing, automated order 

During your cash vault service implementation, you can provide details to receive change orders on a 

predetermined delivery schedule (recurring orders). As a security measure, such standing orders 

eliminate the need to place an order manually, which can reduce the likelihood of inaccurate or 

fraudulent orders. 

Deadlines 

Different deadlines apply for cash only, check only, and mixed deposits of cash and checks. Coin and 

currency orders vary according to the cash vault that provisions your order. 

b. Describe change order procedures and restrictions for branch pick up. 

You can call your branch, 24 hours in advance, to place a change order. Depending on the settlement 

method that you choose, restrictions may apply for pickup. If you use a third-party courier for order 

pickup, then bank preapproval is required prior to initiating a relationship with the local branch. 

Additional restrictions — relative to the size and frequency of change orders — vary depending on 

the branch’s location. We will work with you during implementation to review any restrictions and 

identify the best option for you. 

Cash vault services 
You can place change orders online, by touch-tone order service, through a standing order, by 

transmission, or through DTS Connex. Your contracted armored courier delivers change orders from 

a Wells Fargo vault to your location. For cash vault services, we will work with you during 

implementation to review cash vault restrictions and help you to compare our suite of services to 

identify the best option for you.* 

* Some services are available subject to applicable product eligibility.  

502

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 41 

 

4. Returned Item Processing 

a. Can returned items be automatically re-deposited? If so, how many times? 

Yes. We can automatically redeposit items returned for nonsufficient funds (NSF) or uncollected 

funds (UCF) one time. We cannot redeposit items returned for any other reason. Our redeposit 

service is optional by location. 

b. Does the financial institution offer any options that may increase the collection of NSF 

checks? 

Yes. We offer a re-presented check service that provides a highly automated process for 

electronically re-presenting checks returned for NSF or UCF. Our Electronic Returns service 

converts your returned check to an electronic ACH debit. This conversion allows us to make up to 

two re-presentment attempts (instead of only one with the paper deposit process), which can help 

increase your collection rates. 

Consumer checks of less than $2,500 that are returned for NSF or UCF are eligible for this service. 

Wells Fargo began offering our electronic returns (RCK) service in 2000 when Nacha rules began 

allowing banks to convert eligible paper returns to ACH debits. 

c. Can the financial institution provide online access to electronic images (back and front) 

of returned items? How soon after an item is returned can these images be accessed? 

Yes. As shown in the following image, you can access returned items images and detailed 

information the next business day after we receive the items.  

Images are available for up to 180 days. If you enroll in our online decisioning service, you can view 

images of returned items the same day we receive them. 

 

. . 

503

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 42 

 

d. Can the financial institution provide a summary report of returned items identifying the 

payer's name, depositing location, deposit date, and the type of item being returned? 

Yes. You can receive a detailed returned item transmission that includes returned checks, converted 

ACH transactions, and redeposited items.  

The file includes a separate record for each returned item with the following details  

(if available): 

• Checking account and ABA number 

• Check number 

• Check amount 

• Original deposit date 

• Reason code 

• Full name on check* 

• Complete address* 

• Phone numbers* 

• Driver’s license number and state* 

• Check date* 

The transmission does not identify the type of item being returned, but it can identify the 

depositing location either by subaccount or by the location identifier on the deposit ticket.† 

* We can manually key these fields if they are present on the check. 

† Deposits made using a counter ticket or a deposit ticket that does not include the location code on the MICR line may not contain the 

location identifier for returned item reporting purposes. 

5. Positive Pay 

a. Does the financial institution offer Positive Pay and Payee Positive Pay? 

Yes. Positive pay is an important tool for assisting with reducing losses due to check fraud or check 

processing errors. With our positive pay services, we identify checks that may be fraudulent or 

unauthorized by matching checks presented against your account for payment to the check issue 

information that you provide us. We report positive pay exceptions to you through our fraud 

manager tool on our online banking portal. You view exceptions — including images — then make 

decisions to pay or return. 

You can send your check issue information to Wells Fargo by transmission or through our online 

banking portal. When you use our online service, you can upload an Excel file or manually enter the 

check information.* We accept issue information 24 hours a day, seven days a week. If we receive 

your check issue information prior to 8:00 p.m. Pacific Time, then we update your check issue 

information in our system that day. We can update your check issue information more than 50 

times each day. 

You can view exception images quickly and easily and then make pay or return decisions using our 

online banking portal or mobile service.† 

* For current system requirements, see wellsfargo.com/ceosystemrequirements. 

† Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

504

Item 19.

http://www.wellsfargo.com/ceosystemrequirements


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 43 

 

Payee Validation 
Optionally, you can add our Payee Validation service to a positive pay service. 

You include payee names in your check issue file exactly as they appear on your checks. We validate 

payee names on all checks presented for cashing at our teller windows and on deposited checks 

above the threshold dollar amount.  

We pay payee matches and report payee mismatches to you through our online fraud management 

tool. As with our positive pay services, you make your pay or return decisions through the online 

banking portal or mobile service. 

b. How would the City transmit check issuance information to the financial institution? 

We offer two options for providing your issue files to us: 

• Transmit check issue information to us through one of our secure file transfer protocols 

• Upload check issue information using our online fraud management tool 

c. What is the deadline for the transmission of check issuance files to the financial 

institution? 

You will receive next-day exception reporting with check images by 7:00 a.m. Pacific Time. You will 

make your pay and return decisions by 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time. The City accesses the reports and 

enters decisions using our online banking portal. 

d. How frequently can transmission files be uploaded to the financial institution for the 

issuance of additional check, and/or recently voided items? Is there a limit to the number 

of files per day? 

You can transmit multiple issue files to us on the same day. As a general guideline, we prefer that 

issue files contain 500,000 or fewer records that include issues and registers, stop payments, 

cancels and voids. If the file will exceed this guideline, we ask that the City contact our CC4B Service 

Office so that we can monitor the file processing. 

e. Does the financial institution offer the ability to manually enter one-time check 

disbursements issued during the day? Please describe. 

Yes. The City can send manual check issue information, including voids and cancels, using our online 

fraud management tool. You can update your check issue records 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

f. What controls are in place to protect against lost files and duplications of transmissions? 

If duplicates are sent, is there a penalty or potential issues? 

Controls for file transmission 
When you transmit a file to us using one of our supported transmission protocols, you can receive 

an email notification to confirm that we received your file. The email includes the time the bank 

received the file and indicates whether your file loaded successfully or failed. This process helps to 

identify instances of file loss and reduce duplicate transmissions. 

505

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 44 

 

Controls specific to ARP 
Our ARP solution rejects duplicate records, preventing them from posting to the account. Various 

confirmation options identify the items rejected as duplicates. 

Confirmation reports 

Our ARP File Confirmation service, in conjunction with your own internal controls, helps to prevent 

issues such as file loss and duplicate transmissions. Summary and detail confirmation reports indicate: 

• Number of register items received 

• Register items captured 

• Total dollar amount of captured items 

• Each rejected register item 

• Rejected data line as sent to the bank 

• Reject reason 

The Detail ARP File Confirmation transmission additionally lists each item by serial number and 

includes stop payment data for stop payments included on your ARP issue file. 

Duplicate returns 

You cannot send a return request for positive pay exception by file transmission. Instead, the City 

will use our fraud management tool on our online banking portal or mobile service* to review all 

positive pay exception items. If a check was previously paid and is received a second time, it will be a 

positive pay exception that you will return with a reason of ‘duplicate.’ 

* Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

g. How will the City be notified of exception items? What time will the City receive the 

information on exception items? What time does the City have to notify if an exception 

should be accepted or rejected? Does the financial institution offer a "do not pay" default 

for exception items? 

Notifications 
Our optional Alerts service can provide the following information through email, text message, or 

fax. Additionally, you can view the alerts on our online banking portal. 

Alert type Description 

ARP File Confirmation • Wells Fargo has received a check issue file through transmission or the 

online banking portal. 

• Wells Fargo has received an individual check you entered through the ‘Add 

Check Issues’ option in the CEO Fraud Manager service. 

Account Processing Complete • Wells Fargo has completed the daily exception processing for your 

positive pay accounts. 

. 

506

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 45 

 

Deadline 
You will receive next-day exception reporting with check images by 7:00 a.m. Pacific Time. You will 

make your pay and return decisions by 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time. The City accesses the reports and 

enters decisions using our online banking portal. 

Default decision 
To take full advantage of positive pay, we recommend a return default disposition. All items that you 

do not decision will be returned to the bank of first deposit. These items can be redeposited by the 

payee provided the bank of first deposit permits it. If you are sending issue records to us in a timely 

manner, there should be few exception items. 

h. Will stale date checks be reported as exception items? 

We do not generally review the dates on checks. However, you can subscribe to our stale-date 

service, which is available with full account reconciliation and Positive Pay services. You will specify a 

stale-date period that can range from one to 99 months. 

With one of our next-day Positive Pay services, stale-dated checks will post to your account. 

During your implementation, you can choose whether you want us to include your stale-dated 

checks with your positive pay exceptions. If so, then you can make pay or return decisions for each 

one.  

If you choose to return a stale-dated check, then we will reverse the paid transaction and return the 

check the following day. 

If you choose not to include stale-dated checks as exceptions, we will automatically reverse the paid 

transactions and return the stale-dated checks the following day. 

i. Is Positive Pay required for all demand deposit accounts, even on accounts with no check 

writing functionality? Can accounts be designated as "post no checks" to prevent 

potential fraud? Is there a cost to make this account designation? 

We recommend positive pay with payee validation for all accounts with check writing activity. For 

accounts with zero check writing activity, we recommend placing payment authorization on those 

accounts to prevent paper items from clearing. 

Payment authorization 
Our Payment Authorization service helps prevent unauthorized check cashing by: 

• Placing dollar limits on specific transactions 

• Preventing the encashment of checks by individuals at the teller line 

507

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 46 

 

To protect your accounts, you set all, or any of, the following fraud control options. 

Fraud control options 

1. Maximum over-the-counter 

amount* 

You can establish the maximum dollar amount for non-check, over-

the-counter activity at our branches (such as a change order 

request). 

2. Maximum check amount† With this option, you can limit the dollar amount of all checks drawn 

against your Wells Fargo account. This includes checks deposited to 

other Wells Fargo accounts, deposited at other financial institutions, 

and checks cashed at Wells Fargo locations. If you will not issue any 

checks from the account, you can choose to have this limit set to 

$0.00 to prevent all checks from hard posting to the account. We 

will then return checks as “refer to maker”. 

3. Maximum check cashing amount† You can determine the maximum dollar amount paid in cash at our 

branches. If a payee presents a check over that dollar amount, our 

teller will not cash the check. However, the teller can accept the 

check as a deposit to the payee's Wells Fargo account. 

4. Checks to individuals† You can prevent the encashment of checks made payable to 

individuals at our branches. If an individual presents a check for 

encashment, our teller will not cash the check. However, the teller 

can accept the check as a deposit to the payee's Wells Fargo 

account. 

* Available if the account has positive pay. 

† Not available if the account has positive pay. 

We include all pricing information in the Appendix section of our response. 

j. Is Teller Positive Pay available? How frequently is check issuance information updated 

and available to tellers? 

Yes. Ensuring check verification at the teller window is one of the most important ways to help 

minimize the risk of fraud associated with making payments by check. 

For all positive pay services, Wells Fargo captures check issue files more than 50 times a day, seven 

days a week. Your positive pay check issue information reaches our tellers in all of our branches 

within 30 minutes of receipt. Tellers validate checks presented at our teller windows by matching 

the serial number and dollar amount to your check issue information. 

k. Are there any other fraud protection services that the financial institution provides 

and/or recommends? 

Fraud protection services 
We offer many solutions that put controls in place as fraud protection measures. 

Our Payment Authorization service, for example, helps prevent unauthorized transactions by placing 

dollar limits on checks and over-the-counter withdrawals. Our service prevents individuals from 

cashing checks at the teller line. 

508

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 47 

 

We offer positive pay services that systematically compare checks presented for payment to the 

check issue information you provide to us. The bank makes the comparison in order to detect 

mismatched serial numbers and dollar amounts, which can be evidence of fraud. To stop thieves 

from passing legitimate checks with altered payee names, we offer an optional payee validation 

service. We pay payee matches. Through our fraud manager tool on our online banking portal, we 

provide images of payee mismatches for you to view and make decisions on unresolved exceptions 

to pay or return them. 

You have better control over the ACH debits that post to your account when you use our ACH Fraud 

Filter service. You can choose our stop option so that you automatically stop all ACH debits — 

except those that you specifically preauthorize — from posting to your accounts. An alternative is 

our review option, which presents the transactions for you to make pay or return decisions by 

deadline. We describe our ACH Fraud Filter service in more depth in upcoming paragraphs. 

The City can use our Perfect Receivables® service to establish proxy account numbers to route 

incoming ACH and wire payments. Substituting your account number with a proxy account number 

makes your actual account number unavailable to thieves, which helps to deflect fraud before a thief 

attempts to steal the account information. 

Our cyber fraud measures include several layers of monitoring and multiple systems that secure 

your account and transaction information. For example, we require secondary authentications for all 

high-risk transactions such as online payments, FX, and online administration services. 

Your treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, will discuss your Fraud Protection 

Service Report will you and help you determine which services will best help to protect the City 

against fraud. 

Account Validation services 

To help reduce transaction fraud and returns, we partner with Early Warning Services to offer 

Account Validation services that provide real-time account ownership and account status screening 

functionality. 

You can use our services for ACH, check, and wire transactions. Account Validation services can help 

you enhance productivity, save time, and prevent unnecessary losses while maintaining a high level 

of customer service. 

Solutions 
Our services use analytics, a large network of contributed intelligence, and cross-industry data from 

hundreds of financial services organizations. With our Account Status and Account Ownership 

services, the City receives advance notification of both low-risk and potentially high-risk 

transactions. 

509

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 48 

 

Our services work with payments received in the mail, over the telephone, through the internet, or in 

person, and they provide validation for both business and consumer accounts. To determine 

whether to accept a payment for processing, the City extracts and transmits information through an 

inquiry to Early Warning Services. The service then compares the inquiry against the National Shared 

Database™ and provides a response. You receive results in real time. 

Account Status This service confirms whether a deposit account (checking or savings) is open 

and active and if there is a risk of an ACH or check return. The Account Status 

service is best suited for your customer-initiated online payments and 

internal real-time systems such as those supporting call centers or stores. 

Account Ownership This service performs identity-to-account validation, including such key 

owner elements as name, address, Social Security number, and phone 

number. It supports enrollment for recurring ACH payments and screening of 

one-time ACH, wires, and check payments. 

How it works 

 

Inquiry submission types 
You can choose the type of submission process that works best for your organization. 

Inquiry type Purpose Submission channel 

Real-time validation This service lets you submit a real-time 

account inquiry. It returns a response 

in one second or less. 

You submit the inquiry through the 

Wells Fargo Gateway API channel. 

Batch files This service provides back-office 

support of your high-volume batch 

payments. 

You send a file of inquiries directly to 

Early Warning Services through a 

Virtual Private Network or 

Dedicated Circuit (MLPS). 

Graphical User Interface (GUI) This service is a user interface for low-

volume payments where the account 

status or account owner data is 

entered manually and an immediate 

response is desired. It is most 

applicable for walk-up bill payment 

windows or call center agents. 

You send an inquiry to an Early 

Warning Services URL (web 

address). 

510

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 49 

 

. 

Full account reconciliation 

With our ARP and automated reporting services, you can reconcile your disbursement accounts 

quickly and efficiently with your internal accounting records. Our Full ARP service helps you identify 

checks and electronic transactions as paid or outstanding — saving you time. In addition, the service 

helps you detect and reduce your exposure to check fraud. 

Potential benefits 

 • Reduces accounting costs and increases productivity 

• Improves cash control and provides faster, accurate payables information 

• Increases your audit control 

• Minimizes your internal and external fraud losses 

Our Full ARP service reconciles your paid checks to your issued checks then sends a detailed 

statement. First, you provide us with your issued check information* by one of three methods: 

• Direct transmission 

• Uploading a file to our online fraud manager tool† 

• Manually entering check information online 

* Your check issue information also includes stops, voids, and cancels. 

† The file you load to the online tool can contain up to 1,500 registers in a single batch, and you may submit multiple batches daily. 

Within 90 minutes of your submission, you can receive an optional file confirmation for the check 

issue information or stop payments. We update check issue information more than 50 times each 

day, seven days a week. 

On a weekly or monthly basis (according to your preference), we make comprehensive statements 

available for your account. You can request a variety of optional reports including Paid Checks, 

Outstanding Checks, and Stop Payments. You can receive these reports daily, weekly, or monthly in 

PDF, Excel, CSV, flat file text (transmission), and paper formats. The PDF and paper formats can 

include sorting and subtotaling by location or high-order prefix. 

Optional reports 

You can easily access reports through our online banking portal. With our Full ARP service, you can 

customize your reporting to match your accounting needs.  

511

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 50 

 

Choose from the following 14 optional reports. 

ARP optional reports 

• Bank Originated Entries 

• Credits 

• Deposit Location 

• Issue Notices Not Received† 

• Issues This Cycle* 

• Matched Paid Items† 

• Outstanding Checks* 

• Paid Checks 

• Posted Items 

• Prior Payments* 

• Reversed Checks† 

• Stop Payments 

• Unpaid Checks* 

• Voids and Cancels* 

* Only available with Full ARP. 

† Only available with Full ARP or Partial ARP with Positive Pay. 

Electronic fraud protection 

Our ACH Fraud Filter service helps protect your accounts by identifying potentially fraudulent 

transactions and allowing you to review these transactions, and decide what to return, stop, or allow. 

You can access our service through both our online banking portal and mobile service,* so you 

always have a convenient way to make pay or return decisions. 

* Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

Convenient and customizable 
More than debit blocking, our service allows you the option to review and stop debits, credits, or all 

transactions. You can preauthorize the ACH transactions that you want to post to your account 

without review. You can also customize your preauthorizations, setting dollar thresholds and date 

ranges. You will also receive all ACH payment information, so you know who is attempting to send 

transactions to your account. 

You will have 24 hours to make a return request. And since we filter through the transactions for 

you, we present only the ones we feel may be a threat. 

How it works 

Review option: You decide what to return 

1. Review: You preauthorize ACH transactions to post to your account. You can review and make 

decisions on all, just credit, or just debit transactions. You can further look at transactions that 

exceed a dollar amount, date range, or number of occurrences. 

2. Decision: Through our online fraud manager tool, we notify you of any transactions that are 

not preauthorized. You review those transactions and tell us whether you want them paid or 

returned.* When you tell us to return a transaction, we create a reversing adjustment and then 

return it as unauthorized. 

* If you do not make a pay or return decision on an item by the specified deadline, the item is automatically paid or returned based on the 

default action you select during implementation. 

512

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 51 

 

Best practice: Monitor your transactions daily 

We recommend that you log in once a day to monitor your ACH transactions. You can also receive a 

notice by email or text* when an unauthorized ACH transaction posts to your account. You can 

request that we inform you about: 

• All ACH transactions posted to your account 

• All ACH transactions that exceed a predetermined dollar amount 

• ACH credit or ACH debit transactions only 

• ACH credit or debit transactions that exceed a predetermined dollar amount 

• ACH credit or debit transactions outside a specified date range 

• ACH credit or debit transactions that exceed a specified maximum number of occurrences 

* Our alerts service has an additional fee. 

Stop option: Automatically stop unauthorized transactions 

With our stop option, we automatically return transactions that you did not preauthorize.* You can 

request that we stop and return: 

• All ACH transactions 

• All ACH transactions that exceed a predetermined dollar amount 

• All ACH credit or debit transactions only 

• ACH credit or debit transactions outside a predetermined dollar range 

• All ACH credit or debit transactions outside a specified date range 

• All ACH credit or debit transactions that exceed a specified maximum number of occurrences 

We recommend that you log in once a day to monitor your ACH transactions. You can also receive a 

notice by email or text† when an unauthorized ACH transaction posts to your account. 

* Excludes transactions originated by internal Wells Fargo originators, such as Account Analysis fees and settlement entries, that you’ve 

authorized to the account. 

† Our alerts service has an additional fee. 

Block converted checks 
Our electronic check (eCheck) option, for no additional fee, helps you monitor converted check 

entries for business-sized checks that have an auxiliary on-us field in the MICR line. This service 

includes eCheck Post and eCheck Stop options for accounts receivable check (ARC), back office 

conversion (BOC), and point-of-purchase (POP) transactions. 

eCheck Post 

If you use the eCheck Post option in conjunction with our next-day positive pay service, you can see 

unmatched items that will post to your account. You use our online fraud manager tool to indicate 

your decision to pay or return them. 

If you use the eCheck Post option with our same-day positive pay service, we do not match ACH 

converted checks against your check issue records. Instead, we call you for instructions to pay or 

return the converted checks. 

513

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 52 

 

eCheck Stop 

If you choose the eCheck Stop option, we automatically stop all ineligible items inadvertently 

converted before they post to your account. 

6. Stop Payments 

a. How are stop payment orders placed? Can stop payments be placed online? 

You can submit stop payment orders online or by electronic transmission in your Account 

Reconciliation or Positive Pay check issue file. With both methods, you can place stop payments 24 

hours a day, seven days a week, from multiple locations. We process stop payments in real time. 

Online stop payments are effective immediately when successfully initiated through our Transaction 

Search service. The system automatically reviews the previous 180 days and intraday teller-cashed 

activity to determine whether a requested check has paid. 

You can submit a stop payment by transmission as late as 8:00 p.m. Pacific Time and still receive 

same-day processing. The system automatically reviews the previous 90 days and intraday teller-

cashed activity to determine whether a requested check has paid. 

b. Are stop payment requests effective immediately? If not, how long does it take for a stop 

payment request to be effective? 

Yes. Stop payments are effective immediately after you successfully initiate the request online or by 

electronic transmission. 

c. Will the system verify if a check has been paid before processing the stop payment 

request? 

Yes. The system automatically reviews the previous 180 days and intraday teller-cashed activity to 

determine whether a requested check has paid. 

d. What term options are available for stop payments? 

Stop payments remain in effect for six months. You can renew an individual stop payment on an as-

needed basis through our online service or choose to use our automated renewal option.  

The renewal option lets you: 

• Extend a stop payment for up to an additional six years (in 12-month increments) 

• Predetermine a dollar threshold for automatic stop payment renewals 

• Limit the number of times a stop payment is automatically renewed 

e. Can Stop payments be automatically renewed? If so, for how long? What is the associated 

fee for each renewal? 

Yes. Please see the response to the previous question d. We include all fee related information in the 

Appendix section of our response. 

514

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 53 

 

7. ACH Processing 

a. What ACH file transmission options are available? 

The City can use direct origination, send consolidated payables files, or upload files to our online 

banking portal. Based on the business case you’ve outlined, we recommend direct origination for the 

City. 

Direct origination 
With our direct origination service, the City sends us Nacha-formatted files that contain required 

ACH transaction information such as routing and transit number, account number, dollar amount, 

and effective date. 

Our customers use our direct origination service to originate ACH transactions through 33,608 ACH 

Company IDs. This count represents 32.84% of our ACH Company IDs.* 

Consolidated payables origination 
The City can send a consolidated payables file with multiple payment types and remittance 

information directly from your ERP, treasury management, or AP system. Using our Payment 

Manager service, we accept almost any type of file format that your system generates and provide 

you with formatting instructions during implementation. 

Our customers use this service to originate ACH transactions through 18,594 ACH Company IDs. 

This count represents 18.17% of our ACH Company IDs.* 

Online origination 
Our online ACH payment service allows the City to initiate ACH transactions without needing to 

create Nacha-formatted files. 

Our customers use our online ACH services to initiate ACH transactions through 43,506 ACH 

Company IDs. This count represents 42.51% of our ACH Company IDs.* 

Origination with ACH Payments API 
You can use our ACH Payments API service to initiate requests one at any time — with no batch 

requirements — from your ERP, account platform, or payment system. Transactions using 

application programming technology originate through 296 ACH Company IDs. This count 

represents less than one half of one percent of our ACH Company IDs.* 

* Internal reports on ACH Company IDs, April 2022. 

515

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 54 

 

b. What are the transmission deadlines for ACH files? When does the financial institution 

need the file from the City and when are the funds debited from the City’s accounts? 

The following table lists the cutoff times for our ACH initiation methods. 

ACH file deadlines (Pacific Time) 

Input method Two-day 

settlement 

(day cycle) 

Next-day 

settlement 

(night cycle) 

Same-day 

book transfer 

(on us)* 

Same-day 

settlement 

(transit)† 

Direct origination 9:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 6:00 a.m. 

10:00 a.m. 

12:00 p.m. 

Consolidated 

payables file 

5:30 p.m. 5:30 p.m. 5:30 p.m. 6:00 a.m. 

10:00 a.m. 

12:00 p.m. 

Online 6:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 6:00 a.m. 

10:00 a.m. 

12:00 p.m. 

ACH API 5:00 p.m. 5:00 p.m. 5:30 p.m. 6:00 a.m. 

10:00 a.m. 

12:00 p.m. 

* Both the originating and receiving accounts must be Wells Fargo accounts. The $1,000,000 transaction limit for Nacha’s 

Same Day Rule does not apply to on-us transactions. 

† Transactions for more than $1,000,000 and international transactions (IAT) are not eligible for same-day settlement. Funds 

from incoming credits are available by 5:00 p.m. local time. 

c. How are returned and rejected ACH transactions handled? What information does the 

financial institution provide to assist in identifying returned and rejected ACH 

transmissions? When is this information available? 

We list returned entries individually through our information reporting services. We consolidate the 

settlement of returned transactions before posting them to your account. 

Our proprietary ACH return processing system matches returns automatically with your originating 

transactions. This effort can simplify your reconciliation process and save your staff the time and 

effort to handle unresolved returns. 

516

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 55 

 

Information provided 
Regardless of the delivery method you choose, the return information includes the details listed in 

the following table. 

Information provided 

Individual ID and name Dollar amount 

Effective date and descriptive date Return reason and return description 

Receiving bank and account number Original sequence number 

Original entry description and return sequence 

number 

Correction (NOCs only) 

Account (demand deposit or savings) and 

transaction type (debit or credit 

Comments (if applicable) 

To assist you further in reconciling returned entries, we can include optional information from the 

following fields (imported from the original entries) with your ACH returns and NOC reporting: 

• Company discretionary data 

• Original descriptive date 

• Original effective entry date 

Report options 
We post ACH rejects as a separate settlement item on reports and statements. 

We consolidate rejects from the same file with the same settlement date as a lump sum before 

posting them to your account. 

To reconcile your rejects, the City can receive returned entries and NOCs online, by transmission, 

and by fax.* 

* Return status is a feature of ACH Payments API. You track and manage any ACH returns using your existing methods, not by the ACH 

Payments API service. 

d. Describe the financial institution's procedures for handling debits to the City's accounts 

that were not authorized by the City. Does the financial institution notify the City of the 

receipt of an unauthorized ACH debit? 

We offer two options that block ACH debits to your account. 

We can automatically return transactions that you did not preauthorize* and process all that you 

preauthorized. Alternatively, we can block all ACH activity from posting to your account. 

* ACH reversals bypass the ACH Fraud Filter service and post to your account automatically. 

We provide notification of unauthorized ACH debits through our online banking portal and mobile 

service. Additionally, our optional Alerts service sends notification of unauthorized transactions 

proactively. You receive alerts by email and text at the frequency you choose. 

517

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 56 

 

e. If the financial institution provides ACH debit blocking, what level of filtering can be 

applied? 

You can request that we inform you about: 

• All ACH transactions posted to your account 

• All ACH transactions that exceed a predetermined dollar amount 

• ACH credit or ACH debit transactions only 

• ACH credit or debit transactions that exceed a predetermined dollar amount 

• ACH credit or debit transactions outside a specified date range 

• ACH credit or debit transactions that exceed a specified maximum number of occurrences 

f. Does the financial institution offer ACH Positive Pay (ability to make pay/no pay 

decisions on unidentified ACH transactions)? 

Yes. Using the review option of our ACH Fraud Filter service, you review ACH transactions that you 

did not preauthorize and then make a pay or return decision for each item through our online 

banking portal or mobile service. When you return an item, we create a reversing adjustment to your 

account and return the transaction to the originator. 

g. Does the financial institution offer Universal Payment Identification Codes (ability to 

mask visible account numbers to reduce the risk of unauthorized direct debits)? 

Yes. We support Universal Payment Identification Codes (UPICs) for business-to-business 

transactions. 

Our Perfect Receivables service is similar to UPICs, but offers additional features that help you to 

reconcile accounts more efficiently. You can: 

• Assign a unique account number for each originator or sender 

• Group incoming ACH and wire payment transactions into a single settlement credit 

8. Wire Processing 

a. Describe the process of initiating wire transfers including USD domestic wires, repetitive 

wires, USD international wires, and foreign currency international wires. 

Outgoing wires 
We process outgoing wire transfers on a straight through basis according to your instructions. We 

manually review, correct, and verify a wire that does not pass our initial screening and that our 

system cannot correct automatically. 

Our wire system confirms your available funds automatically and verifies that wires are not going to 

a country or beneficiary on the U.S. Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) Specially 

Designated Nationals Blocked Persons list. If a wire meets these requirements, we release it. 

518

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 57 

 

Initiation methods 

Method 

Online and mobile You can sign on to our online banking portal to initiate repetitive or free-form 

domestic and international wires. 

Consolidated payables You can send one file with multiple payment types (including wires, ACH 

payments, credit card payments, and USD and CAD paper checks) and 

remittance information. You can send a file directly from your treasury 

workstation or your ERP, AP, or other internal system. 

We accept most file formats and offer several file transmission protocols, as 

well as an option to upload your file online. 

Telephone1 You can call a single toll-free number and provide an account number, personal 

identification number (PIN), and voiceprint. We validated these credentials 

through a voice response unit (VRU). 

In person2 You can go to any Wells Fargo branch to initiate a wire. You must have signing 

authority on the account to initiate the request. 

Online foreign exchange You can manage your FX transactions and reporting online.3 Our service 

combines the advantages of our live market FX rates with the convenience of 

sending payments online throughout the world. 

SWIFT4 If your organization is a member of SWIFT, you can submit your wire payment 

instructions for processing using SWIFT FIN messages. 

Wire Payments API For domestic and international transactions, you can initiate free-form or 

template wires (including book transfers) from your ERP, account platform, or 

payment system. 

Foreign Exchange API You can book, validate, and offset FX contracts, process wire settlement 

instructions, and receive FX rates and static rate sheets — transmitting 

requests directly to our FX system. 

1. Book transfer initiation option is not available by telephone. 

2. Book transfer initiation option is not available in person. 

3. While our online system is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week, FX markets close at 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on Friday 

and reopen at 2:30 p.m. Pacific Time on Sunday. 

4. SWIFT bills membership and volume fees. 

Wire processes 
In the following paragraphs, we describe the initiation and approval process for each of our wire 

service options. In the last paragraph of this response, we describe the release process, which is the 

same for all wire initiation methods. 

Telephone 

Initiation 

Users call a single toll-free number and provide an account number, PIN, and voiceprint. We validate 

the information using our VRU. 

You can complete repetitive wires set up on our system through the VRU. You will be connected to a 

Wells Fargo employee in the wire department to complete free-form wires and repetitive wires. 

519

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 58 

 

Approval 

To help ensure the safety and accuracy of your telephone-initiated free-form wire transfers, you can 

choose to use our optional callback approval procedure. We call a designated approver prior to 

releasing telephone-initiated free-form wires. We release the wire after the approver provides his or 

her PIN and voiceprint. 

Online and mobile wire transfer 

Initiation 

To sign on to our online banking portal or mobile service, you use a company ID, user ID, and 

password. Then, you enter a PIN and token code. Once authenticated, you can perform wire 

functions based on your authorizations. Functions include initiating repetitive or free-form wires 

and approving wires. We include the steps to create and submit wires in the following table. 

Repetitive wires* Free-form wires 

1. Access the appropriate template by searching or 

selecting from a drop-down list. 

2. Enter information not built into the template (for 

example, the value date or amount). 

3. Submit the wire. You receive a confirmation that you 

can print. 
 

1. Input all required wire transfer fields. 

If needed, you can use our bank lookup feature to 

search for financial institution information — for 

example the beneficiary bank identifier routing 

number — and insert it into the appropriate field. 

2. Submit the wire. You will receive a confirmation that 

you can print. 

* For repetitive wires, you must set up the wire template in advance. 

Approval 

You can approve free-form and repetitive wires through our online and mobile wire transfer 

services. You can customize your setup to require up to four approvers. You can also require an 

additional approver for wires over a specific dollar amount. 

We display items that require approval in the Pending Payments queue. From that screen, you see 

all pending wires for your authorized accounts. You can approve or reject one or more wires from 

the Pending Payments summary list based on your approval authority. Before approving or rejecting 

a wire, you can also review full wire details and modify the wire (if you have the authority). After all 

required approvals are in place, we release the wire. 

Consolidated payables transmission or upload 

Initiation 

You can transmit or upload a consolidated payables file in a standard or custom format to initiate 

wires. 

Approval 

You can choose to require secondary approval for some or all of the wires you send by consolidated 

payables file. You can require an approval at the file or transaction level through our online 

consolidated payables service. 

520

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 59 

 

Our consolidated payables service sends emails to each approver when: 

• We receive your file 

• Payments remain awaiting an approval 

• Payments expire without an approval 

We describe the approval steps at the file and transaction level in the following table. 

Approval steps at file level Approval steps at transaction level 

1. Select the file ID to view the details of the file 

2. Select to approve or delete the file 

3. Select submit or cancel 

1. Select the file ID to view the details of a file 

2. View the transactions 

3. Select the checkbox next to the transaction to 

approve or delete 

4. Select submit or cancel 

Automatic standing transfer (Standing Order) 

Initiation 

You complete paper setup forms for standing repetitive wire transfers and drawdowns. On the 

specified dates and times, we automatically initiate outgoing or drawdown wire transfer requests. 

Approval 

Once you have completed the setup forms authorizing your scheduled transactions, we require no 

further intervention or approval from the City. 

Release process 
Our wire transfer system, regardless of initiation method, automatically verifies there are adequate 

funds available to process the wire, and performs all standard security and risk checks. For example, 

our system verifies that the transfer is not going to a country or beneficiary on the U.S. Treasury’s 

OFAC Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons list. Once approved, our system releases 

the wire immediately. 

b. During what hours is the wire transfer system available? 

We accept incoming Fedwires until 4:00 p.m. Pacific Time and, incoming CHIPS wires until 3:00 p.m. 

Pacific Time, for same-day credit. We process incoming SWIFT transactions for same-day credit 

until 4:00 p.m. Pacific Time. 

The City can initiate wires 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Wires are however subject to business-

day outgoing wire processing deadlines.  

Please also see the upcoming response to question e. 

521

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 60 

 

c. If wire transfers can be initiated online, describe the system’s security features. Can 

varying degrees of authorization be set (i.e. multiple authorizers, maximum dollar 

amounts, etc.)? 

Our required and recommended levels of security safeguards for initiating and releasing wires vary 

by method. We do not offer fax, PC, or LANed PC wire initiation services. 

Internet 
Your company administrator assigns user functionality and account access through our online self-

administration service. We require a second administrator to approve access to our online wire 

service. Your administrator also establishes wire initiation and approval dollar limits by payment type 

for each user. We require two-factor authentication to access our online services. Each user must 

enter the following information: 

• Company ID 

• User ID 

• Password 

• PIN and token code 

We require dual approval for all free-form wire origination and template creation or modifications. 

Additionally, the City can set controls to require up to four approvals. Users can’t approve wire or 

templates that they originate. Additionally, if multiple approvals are required, the same person can’t 

perform more than one approval. 

Mobile 

With the optional use of biometric technology, you can use a compatible mobile device to scan your 

face or fingerprint as a replacement to entering a password when signing on to our mobile banking 

service.* As with using the online banking portal, you will need to carry a token for mobile 

transactions that require two-factor (strong) authentication, such as releasing a payment. 

Biometric solutions use your unique physical characteristics to identify you, making spoofing 

difficult. 

* Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

CPU to CPU 

Automated consolidated payables 

Within your ERP, treasury workstation, or AP system, the City establishes the levels of authority you 

require for transmissions sent directly to us. 

Unless you choose to use secondary approval, we consider any wires initiated and transmitted to us 

by the City as ready for release. If you use the secondary approval option, we release wires after your 

secondary approver approves the file. Each approver (you can require up to three) reviews, modifies, 

approves, or deletes the wires online. 

522

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 61 

 

Files you transmit to us are authenticated and encrypted. Security elements vary according to the 

internet protocol you choose and may include: 

• Digital certificates issued by us 

• ID 

• Key 

• Password 

• PIN and token code 

• PGP encryption 

• Connect:Direct (NDM) with Secure+ 

Manual consolidated payables 

You can upload your wire payment file and perform secondary approvals for uploaded or 

transmitted files through our online banking portal. 

If you use the secondary approval option, we won’t release wires until we receive an approval. Each 

approver (you can require up to three) reviews, modifies, approves, or deletes the wires online. 

We require two-factor authentication to access our online services. Each user must enter the 

following information: 

• Company ID 

• User ID 

• Password 

• PIN and token code 

d. Does the financial institution offer dual control release options (secondary approval 

levels) for electronically initiated transfers? If so, describe. 

Yes. We offer multiple methods for electronically initiating transfers. All methods provide the ability 

to require dual control release capability. This includes wires sent to other Wells Fargo customers 

and beneficiaries at other banks.  

e. What is the cutoff time for same-day wire transfers? 

The following table includes the opening times and cutoff times — by transfer type — for same-day 

execution of initiated wires on U.S. accounts. The same times apply for all of our wire initiation 

methods, including the internet, mobile service, file transmission, and telephone service. 

523

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 62 

 

Pacific Time 

Wire type Opening time 

(PT) 

Cutoff time (PT) 

Fedwire 5:00 a.m. 3:15 p.m. 

CHIPS 5:00 a.m. 2:00 p.m. 

Drawdown request 5:00 a.m. 2:30 p.m. 

SWIFT 5:00 a.m. 2:30 p.m. 

Request for Funds 

Transfer (RFT) 

5:00 a.m. 2:30 p.m. 

U.S. Federal tax 

payments 

5:00 a.m. 2:00 p.m. 

Within 

Wells Fargo* 

5:00 a.m. 5:00 p.m. 

* Transactions within Wells Fargo are moving funds from one Wells Fargo account to another. You can originate these from all 

origination channels to all our available accounts. 

f. What is the financial institution's maximum retention period for future dated 

transactions? For future dated transactions, at what time are warehoused wire transfers 

automatically released on the transaction date? What types of wire transfers can be 

warehoused? Are there warehousing charges? 

Our system can warehouse instructions for future value dated USD wire transfers, up to 60 calendar 

days in advance of the value date, through all of our initiation channels. 

Our FX channel can warehouse instructions for future value dated wire transfers in foreign 

currencies, up to two years in advance of the value date. 

We execute (release) future value dated wires automatically as systems come online in each of our 

available regions. Typically, this occurs by 5:30 a.m. Pacific Time on the value date. The City cannot 

request a specific release time. 

We do not charge a fee for warehousing these instructions. 

524

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 63 

 

g. Describe the financial institution's procedure for providing payment confirmation 

information (e.g., reference numbers) upon acceptance and execution of the wire 

transfer request, including the availability and method of delivery of internal 

confirmation/sequence number and clearing system reference number. 

All wire origination channels 
For all wire origination channels, you can find wire transfer confirmation information through our 

online Wire Transfer Detail and Intraday Composite reports. Both reports contain timely 

information about outgoing wire transfers and include the internal bank and Federal Reserve 

reference numbers. 

Additionally, SWIFT users can receive debit confirmations, which includes information on wire 

transfers sent from your accounts. 

Online wire initiation 
If you initiate wires online, you can view our Wires Payment report, which shows all wires processed 

online, and includes our internal confirmation or sequence number. It also includes the Federal 

Reserve reference number. 

Consolidated payables file 
If you send wires in a consolidated payables file, you can receive confirmation of your wire transfer 

instructions by transmission, secure email, or both. The confirmation includes our internal 

confirmation or sequence number and the Federal Reserve reference number. 

h. Describe the financial institution’s policy for handling a failed wire transfer. How and 

when would the City be notified? 

Reports 
If the receiving bank rejects a wire transfer, it returns the wire to Wells Fargo. We report the 

returned wire to the City as an incoming wire on your current and prior day information reporting. 

We make this reporting available to you online or by transmission. 

Online 

We update current day reporting multiple times throughout the day, and previous day information 

reporting at 3:30 a.m. Pacific Time each business day. 

Transmission 

You can receive current day transmission files at various times throughout the day based on 

prescheduled times that you specify at the time of setup. Previous day transmission files are 

available to the City at 3:30 a.m. Pacific Time each business day. 

We also offer a detailed, intraday wire return report. This report provides details on each originated 

wire returned to the bank along with the matching original transaction and the reasons the return 

occurred. We deliver the wire return report twice daily at 10:00 a.m. Pacific Time and 5:00 p.m. 

Pacific Time through transmission or using Electronic Document Delivery. 

525

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 64 

 

Notifications 
You can receive optional notifications* (immediately or at specific time intervals) about incoming 

wires by email, fax, and text message. These notifications let you know when to sign on to our online 

banking portal to retrieve information about an incoming wire. 

* Additional fees may apply. 

9. Bank Compensation 

a. Can the City compensate the bank for services with fees, balances, or a combination of 

the two at its own election? Please describe any differences in related costs to the City 

with either option. 

Yes. We accept compensation in fees, balances, or a combination of the two. The same price 

schedule applies, regardless of compensation method. We can take all your collected balances that 

are not part of your sweep program and apply the earnings credit for all accounts in the City 

relationship. 

b. Can the City choose between paying for analysis deficiencies by check, auto debit, or ACH 

credit? 

Yes. The City can pay your fees through direct account debit, or pay an invoiced amount by ACH or 

check each month. We prefer automatic billing after the statement cycle. 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services fees are billed monthly and directly debited from your account. 

c. What is the bank’s Earning Credit Rate (ECR) based on, and how is it calculated each 

month? 

We set our standard earnings credit rate (ECR) internally each month after evaluating a combination 

of factors including changes in the Fed Funds Target rate and competitor ECRs. We do not use 

indexes, such as the Treasury Bill (T-Bill), to set the standard rate. 

We set the rate at our discretion and may adjust it during the month to react to market changes. 

We use the following formula to calculate the earnings allowance: 

(Investable balance (also called average daily positive collected balance)) × (number of calendar days in 

the month) × (ECR) ÷ actual number of days in the year 

We do not deduct a reserve requirement prior to calculating the ECR. We calculate your earnings 

allowance based on 100% of your investable balance (also called average daily positive collected 

balance). 

d. List the bank’s average ECR for each the last six months (October 2021 thru March 

2022). 

The government ECR rate for the past 6 months has been 0.25%. The ECR went up to 0.32% on 

June 1, 2022, and increased to 0.49% on July 1, 2022. 

526

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 65 

 

10. Utility Billing services 

The city currently utilizes lockbox service for utility bill payment processing. Utility bills are 

printed and mailed bimonthly and average 17,000. Lockbox transactions processed average 

1,900 per month. 

a. Does the bank have the capability to provide lockbox and electronic lockbox payment 

processing service? If so, please describe the service and any costs associated. 

Wholesale lockbox 

Yes. You can streamline your payment processing by directing payments accompanied by non-

scannable remittance documents (mostly business-to-business) to a wholesale lockbox at 

Wells Fargo for processing. 

By using our wholesale lockbox to process your payments, you may be able to accelerate collection 

of funds and reduce in-house processing expenses. You may also be able to meet early deposit 

deadlines and benefit from improved cash forecasting with intraday availability of funds. 

How it works 
The following workflow shows the wholesale lockbox process flow. 

 

Our network 
You can choose from several image-enabled sites strategically located across the United States. This 

broad coverage means your payments can arrive at our lockbox site — and we can begin processing 

them — a day or two sooner than if you use a more geographically distant site. 

The following table shows the lockbox sites in our network. 

Wholesale lockbox sites 

Atlanta Los Angeles 

Charlotte Minneapolis 

Dallas Philadelphia 

Denver Seattle 

Site recommendation 
Based on the information you provided, we recommend you use our Los Angeles lockbox site. 

527

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 66 

 

Post office pickup schedule 

The following table lists the post office pickup schedule (in local time) for your recommended site. 

Holiday schedules vary by location. During the implementation phase of this project, we will provide 

you with the holiday schedule for the location or locations you select. 

Post office location Weekdays Saturday Sunday 

Los Angeles 

Main Postal Facility 

AM 

12:00, 2:00, 4:00, 

6:00, 8:00, 11:00 

PM 

1:30, 3:30, 10:00 

AM 

12:00, 2:00, 4:00, 

6:00, 8:00, 11:00 

PM 

10:00 

AM 

12:30, 2:00, 4:00, 

6:00, 8:00, 11:00 

PM 

10:00 

Deposit deadlines 

The following table lists our deadlines for the Los Angeles site. At sites with more than one deadline, 

you can choose the time that best meets your internal balance reporting or transmission 

requirements. 

We include payments received after your established deadline (including any payments processed 

during the weekend or on a holiday), in the following business day’s work. 

Lockbox site Deposit times* 

Los Angeles • 4:50 a.m., 10:00 a.m., 5:00 p.m., 7:00 p.m. 

*All times are local. 

Reports 
Lockbox reports help you track and manage your cash flow more effectively. You can view 

availability and detail reports online. 

When you’re not near your computer, you can use your smartphone to access the availability report 

and view deposit totals for each of your accounts. 

Image options 
When you use our image service, you’ll have less paper to store and access to the information you 

need to research and apply payments without the hassle of storing paper documents. You can view 

images of all lockbox documents, including checks, remittance documents, correspondence, and 

envelopes. Online and transmission are available. 

Online 

Your images are available within two hours of your 

deposit deadline. As a standard, we archive images for 

seven years. However, we do offer shorter retention 

periods (90 days, one year, or two years) to customers 

who don’t have a business need to access images for 

seven years. 

Our online image service is the 

quickest option to help resolve 

exceptions and satisfy 

customer needs. 

528

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 67 

 

You can search for transactions using various criteria (including keyed data) by entering either a 

single value or a range of values. Additionally, you can assign a payer name to a unique account 

number and routing transit number combination, which lets you search for payments from a 

particular payer. 

Transmission file 

We post a daily transmission file on our secure website that contains images of your lockbox checks 

and any corresponding documents. You can download the file from our website and archive the 

images on your internal system. You have the option of intraday or next-day file transmissions. 

• Intraday - A separate image file for each batch of work we process is available within two 

hours of your deposit cutoff in either a zip or a PDF file. 

• Next day - A consolidated zip file containing all of your images from the previous day is 

available by 4:00 a.m. Pacific Time the following business day. 

Optional features 

Accounts receivable transmission 

To help eliminate errors associated with manual keyed entry, you can receive an electronic 

transmission of your remittance detail. You can use it to update your AR system, treasury 

workstation, or ERP platform automatically. Your file can include data from other sources, such as 

wire and ACH. 

We generate transmissions to your specifications for frequency and format, including standard BAI 

V2 and EDI layouts. We offer customization for non-standard formats for an additional fee. 

Multiple deposit processing 

Using a single lockbox, you can collect payments efficiently and cost-effectively by using multiple 

deposit accounts. We sort your payments by location, business, or other criteria that you select, and 

prepare separate deposits for each of your accounts. 

Credit card processing 

If your customers provide credit card information, we’ll process their payments by keying the 

information into our credit card processing application. They can use any card with the Visa®, 

Mastercard®, American Express®, or Discover logo. 

Exception processing 

Using our online decision tool, you can submit additional processing information for payments that 

would normally be returned. We present images of each payment to you and give you the following 

options: 

• Accept the payment and enter any additional processing information (such as invoice data 

required to balance a transaction or missing required keyed data) 

• Reject the payment and mail it to you 

• Reject the payment and mail it back to the remitter’s name and address that you provide to 

us; we’ll include a City-specific letter template to detail the reason for rejection 

529

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 68 

 

Virtual lockbox 

You can scan and send us images of checks, correspondence, and invoices you receive at your 

location. We can then process and deposit them like your other lockbox payments. We’ll include 

these items in the image and data transmission files we send you for uploading to your AR system.  

We include all pricing information in the Appendix section of our response.  

Electronic lockbox 

Online bill payments provide a convenient, simple, and paperless way for your customers to pay you. 

However, many bill payments initially submitted online can still end up as mailed paper checks by bill 

service providers. These check payments create exceptions and often have incomplete or inaccurate 

remittance details, which can result in processing delays for you. 

With our E-Box service, you can increase your straight-through processing rate of receivables and 

minimize your staff’s time spent handling exceptions — so that you achieve your goal to simplify bill 

payments. Our E-Box service repairs exceptions and merges all your customers’ online bill payments 

into a consolidated electronic remittance file. You use the file to automatically update your AR 

system and apply credits to your customers’ accounts. Our service accepts payments from all major 

bill service providers and walk-in bill payment providers. 

• Convenient • Simple • Paperless 

How it works 
When you sign up, we notify the bill service providers in our network that you can receive payments 

through our E-Box service. The following graphic shows the flow of a bill payment through the 

various channels using our E-Box and Receivables Manager services. 

 

The City receives a single ACH credit to your deposit account. 

530

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 69 

 

Automated payment validation 
To improve the quality and standardization of the remittance file you receive, you can instruct us to 

use one or more validation routines to identify, filter, and repair invalid payments or other 

exceptions. We suspend payments that include errors or exceptions. You have the option to review 

the suspended payments online and decide what to do with them. You can also instruct us to reject 

and return payments that don’t meet your validation routines to the originator.  

The following table provides descriptions of the validation routines the City can choose from. 

Validation routine Description 

Account mask Confirms that the inbound account number matches your billing account 

number structure 

Check digit* Uses a mathematical equation to determine if an account number is valid 

Cross-reference database processing Translates consumer-initiated account numbers we receive and corrects 

the account number prior to validation and processing (This database can 

correct inaccurate account information your customers enter and can 

make account number changes that may occur due to a merger, 

acquisition, or system change.) 

Positive file processing Compares inbound account numbers to a file of valid account numbers 

you provide 

Stop file processing Compares inbound account numbers to a file of unacceptable accounts 

you provide 

* Applies to credit card billers. 

Online payment management and research 

Manage payments 

With our E-Box service, you can perform the following 

functions online:* 

• View exception payments 

• Initiate returns on exception and processed 

payments 

Dual control 

For added security, a second 

person can review and approve 

all changes initiated by another 

user. 

• Update processed payments requiring account number changes for future processing 

• Make decisions about exception transactions, including repairing payments with invalid 

account numbers 

• Update your cross-reference database with valid account numbers and generate NOCs to 

payment originators 

* The functions you can perform depend on the features you select during implementation. 

Research 

The City can view and research processed payments and access information for reporting and trend 

analysis. 

531

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 70 

 

Payment history 

You can locate transactions using the search criteria in the following table. 

Account number Consumer name or account number 

Amount Processed date 

Biller ID Trace number 

You can access all successfully processed payments for the previous 180 days. You can view and 

print full record-level data in HTML and PDF formats, and you can export data for manipulation and 

analysis in XLS and CSV formats. 

Reporting 

Our Return and Repair report provides a detailed, payment-level audit of all user activity performed 

during the past 180 calendar days. You can tailor it to show only payments that meet your search 

criteria. 

You can view and print activity in HTML and PDF formats, or export in CSV and XML formats. 

We include all pricing information in the Appendix section of our response. 

11. State Activity/LAIF Transfers 

The city transacts State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) transfers on a regular 

basis and receives State electronic payments. 

a. Please describe the LAIF transfer process. Are the transfers done by telephone, email, 

fax, wire transfer, etc.? How is the accuracy of transfers assured? 

The City can originate a direct wire transfer to and from the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  

LAIF transfers are handled as follows: 

• Funds transfer to LAIF — The City will contact the State of California LAIF office to advise of 

a funds transfer. A LAIF representative will provide a transfer confirmation number. The 

deadline is 10:00 a.m. Pacific Time. You will initiate the funds transfer electronically by wire. 

• Funds transfer from LAIF — Contact the State of California LAIF office to request a 

withdrawal. The deadline is 10:00 a.m. Pacific Time. The funds will be transferred into your 

Wells Fargo account by wire transfer the same day. 

b. What is the charge per transfer to LAIF? From LAIF? 

Each outgoing wire transfer will be charged $4.00 and assessed through your account analysis. 

The funds will be transferred into your Wells Fargo account by wire transfer the same day and be 

available immediately provided that it’s received by Wells Fargo before the Federal Reserve closes. 

532

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 
 

City of Beaumont | 71 

c. Does the bank have an office in Sacramento that maintains a direct DDA banking 
relationship with the State Treasurer’s office and the State Controller’s office? 

Yes. Wells Fargo maintains a direct DDA banking relationship the State of California’s Controller and 
Treasurer. 

d. Is the bank an approved State of California depository? 

Yes. Wells Fargo is an approved California State depository of public funds in compliance with 
Sections 53635.2 and 53649 of the California Government Code. 

e. What is the charge for the deposit of State electronic payments? State warrant? 

If the items are collected as an incoming ACH, these items should post as an electronic payments 
received. If the items are posted as an incoming wire, then an incoming wire fee will be charged. 

We include all pricing information in the Appendix section of our response. 

f. What is the bank’s position on past issuance of IOU’s by State of CA? Does the bank 
accept IOU’s for deposits? 

In years past, we obtained a temporary agreement with the State of California to accept IOU’s for a 
brief period of time. Should the need arise in the future, we would have to review the legal 
agreements presented to negotiate those items for deposit based on current laws and procedures. 

12. Overdrafts 

a. What are the fees and interest charges associated with overdrafts? How are these 
charges calculated? 

We do not charge for daylight overdrafts, though we reserve the right to do so. 

We charge for both overdrafts and the use of UCF. We change overdraft fees on a per item basis. 
(Today, the overdraft fee is $35 per item with a max of four fees charged per day.)  

For UCF, the standard interest rate is based on the prime lending rate +3%. The formula for our UCF 
fee uses that interest rate basis as the overdraft rate, applying this formula: 

(average daily negative collected balance × overdraft rate × days in period) ÷ (360) = uncollected 
funds fee 

We can offset these fees (overdraft and UCF) by the earnings credit allowance. 

b. Is there a fee per check or per occurrence when there is an overdraft? 

Wells Fargo charges per item, with a max of four fees per day. Should additional items be presented 
on the following business day, the four-item max will be charged per items presented. 

533

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 72 

 

c. Is there a daily cap on fees? 

Wells Fargo will set overdraft fees on a per item basis. We do have a daily cap on overdraft fees with 

a maximum of four overdraft fees per account per day. 

13. Describe the financial institution security procedures for its information reporting system, 

both for access and information protection. 

Our online banking portal uses the following access and information protection security features. 

Authentication 
The system requires multiple sign-on identifiers, including: 

• Company ID, user ID, and password 

• Strong or two-factor authentication for all online payment and administration services using 

a PIN and token code 

Internal access violations 
We record operating system sign ins and access violations, and monitor system logs for exceptions 

and suspicious activity. The system will lock out a user account when there are invalid password 

attempts.* We investigate these activities and take appropriate actions, as necessary, to protect 

your banking information. 

If an account becomes locked, the user must contact the City’s administrator or a representative in 

our CC4B Service Office to reissue and reset the password. 

* Our online banking portal suspends a user after five unsuccessful sign-on attempts. 

Automatic signoff 
We automatically sign users off from your online and mobile banking session after a period of 

inactivity. This security feature reduces the risk of others accessing information from an unattended 

computer or mobile device. 

Access control 
You determine who can access protected resources and which resources are available for access. We 

can set up entitlements for each user, or, using our online administration service, your 

administrators can create user IDs and assign privileges. 

Dual custody 
To reduce your fraud risk, we require dual custody (separate users to initiate and approve) to release 

online payment transactions and for administration actions related to transaction-based services.  

Dual custody is an industry standard best practice that helps protect against fraud attempts that 

could originate inside or outside your organization. For maximum effectiveness, dual custody should 

involve two users on different computers or mobile devices. You can choose to add dual custody to 

other administration features such as user setup and password resets. 

534

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 73 

 

Encryption and browser requirements 
We conduct user sign-ons and all session activities using 256-bit encryption. During sign-on or 

when using two-factor authentication, we mask passwords, PINs, and token codes for security 

reasons. Additionally, the system stores all passwords using one-way hashing. Our services only 

support browsers that adhere to our encryption standards. 

Security audits and assessments 
Wells Fargo Audit Services performs regular reviews of our online banking portal and issues findings 

and audit summaries. Our management and technical partners review each finding. If changes are 

necessary, management prioritizes and schedules them for implementation. Audit Services tracks 

and monitors findings and completed changes. 

We use internal resources to perform penetration testing on our online banking portal and mobile 

service on a regular basis. In addition, we leverage external resources to perform penetration testing 

on a periodic basis. Management reviews the results and makes appropriate changes to strengthen 

our existing security controls. 

Virus detection 
Our security policies require that we deploy and maintain virus detection software on our servers, 

email gateways, desktops, laptops, and other devices. 

14. Is system administration performed by the financial institution or the customer? What 

functions does the security administrator perform? 

Your company administrator can perform a variety of functions through our online administration 

service, including: 

• Creating, maintaining, and deleting user access, including password resets 

• Restricting user access to services and accounts and setting transaction dollar limits 

• Creating account or user lists to better organize your users and accounts — lists can be used 

throughout the administration service to easily select multiple accounts or users to 

administer 

• Setting up multiple users with similar access controls at the same time 

• Establishing additional controls for specified transactions and functions that require review 

and approval by a one or more approvers before the request is executed* 

• Setting up forced dual controls for all tasks performed through the online administration 

service* 

• Running management reports that show current user entitlements for a rolling 365 days of 

administration activity history 

* We require dual custody for money movement transactions and changes to user access. 

535

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 74 

 

Audit features 
We offer an online audit report that lists: 

• Authorization activities performed by your administrators 

• Access assigned to each user 

We also internally log and monitor customer events that occur on our online system. The service 

event logs provide information about your user activities, including sign-in, user profile updates, and 

transactional activity. The logs identify the user, date and time of event, and other information 

relevant to the activity performed. 

15. Is an audit trail report available, showing all activity, by whom and when, for each system? 

Yes. We internally log and monitor events that the City initiates through our online banking portal 

and mobile banking service. 

The City reports 

Audit trail 

We provide audit trail reporting for many of our online banking portal services. You can access these 

online audit reports that show authorization activity and user access. The following screenshot is a 

sample from our online wire initiation service showing creation and approval audit history. 

 

536

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 75 

 

Your treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, will be happy to discuss additional audit 

reporting capabilities for your specific services. 

Online administration reports 

You can also retrieve online audit reports that show authorization activities performed by your 

company administrators and the entitlements assigned to each user. We’ve included sample reports 

in the following screen shots. 

Administrator activity: Company preferences 

 

User access: User profile activity 

 

537

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 76 

 

Our internal reports 
We record information about user activities, including sign-on history, profile updates, and 

transactions made. Reports identify users, dates and times of events, and other details. 

We do not typically share our internal reports with customers. However, if there is a need to view a 

report, we would evaluate the request on a case-by-case basis. 

We use audit controls to log, monitor, and report the key activities of our online banking portal. 

Audit logs provide transaction and activity records of events, including internal user activity related 

to customer accounts. 

Our enterprise records management requirements determine our audit log retention periods. At a 

minimum, we retain logs for one year. 

16. Describe the types of insurance and bonding carried. 

Protection for our customers and business partners with respect to theft or misappropriation of 

their assets is provided by the financial strength, integrity and contractual obligations of  

Wells Fargo.  

The Wells Fargo & Company Corporate Insurance programs include, but are not limited to, 

Professional Liability insurance (also known as Errors and Omissions policy), Financial Institutions 

Bond coverage, which includes Fidelity (also known as Employee Dishonesty) coverage, and 

Commercial General Liability, and Automobile Liability insurance. 

If you select Wells Fargo as your preferred provider for treasury management services, we will 

provide Certificates of Insurance as required by contract. 

17. Include a copy of the financial institution’s most recent reports issued in accordance with 

the Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE 16) for any processes or 

systems relevant to the services under this RFP. 

Wells Fargo Treasury Management contracts for an annual SSAE 18 examination. Results are issued 

in an SOC 1 report. 

We can provide a copy of our SOC 1 reports upon receipt of a signed non-disclosure agreement. If 

we are chosen as a finalist in the City’s selection process, we will obtain required signatures as 

needed. 

Please refer to Tab B in the Appendix section of our response for our Information Security program 

letter. 

538

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 77 

 

18. If not already covered in the SSAE 16 report, describe the disaster recover plans for each 

proposed service for short- and long-term disaster and power failure recovery. 

Business continuity and resiliency 
Recent history shows us that having a solid business continuity plan in place, no matter the cause of 

the disruption, can be critical to business success. Wells Fargo seeks to manage this risk in 

accordance with our Business Resiliency and Disaster Recovery Risk Management policy and 

business procedures to achieve business goals and comply with laws, rules, regulations, and 

regulatory guidance to protect our customers and ourselves. 

Please refer to Tab C in the Appendix section of our response for our Business Continuity Plan 

Program letters. 

We have formal teams dedicated to managing disruptions to our services. Our Enterprise Business 

Continuity Resiliency Planning office sets the standards for our organization. Each business, in 

conjunction with operational risk management partners, helps ensure preparedness and compliance 

at the organizational levels. 

Standard elements of our business continuity and resiliency programs include: 

 Annual plan review, testing, and maintenance 

 Identification of alternate strategies and recovery procedures 

 Identification of internal and external dependencies including regular review of 

third party service providers 

 Identification of potential risks and controls for mitigation 

 Prioritization of business functions and technology 

 Procedures for communication with customers, suppliers, and essential staff 

 Recovery of technology and data 

General program elements for our enterprise 

Testing recoverability 

We update and test our recovery procedures regularly, with the frequency and timing varying by 

business function or application. We exercise essential business recovery procedures and systems at 

least annually. 

Critical functions 

After a disruption, we prioritize restoring and maintaining normal service levels for our critical 

functions.  

539

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 78 

 

Components of our recovery plans vary based on the potential business disruption, such as a loss of 

facility, loss of technology, or significant reduction to our staff or of third party providers. We 

identify the main areas most commonly affected and then provide our general approach to each. 

Data and operation centers 

We’ve dispersed our data and operation centers strategically across multiple locations to minimize 

potential disruption within a specific geographic region. 

We engage our technology teams quickly when we detect a disruption at a primary data center. Our 

technology teams assess the situation and determine next steps based on the nature of the 

disruption. If we need to shift processing to an alternate data center, we can because we maintain 

redundant platforms for our business critical services. All alternate sites have sufficient capacity to 

maintain processing for an extended period. In most situations, we can restore service at a primary 

data center for critical services within 12 hours.* 

If a disruption occurs at one of our primary operation centers, we use an identified backup site to 

take over day-to-day processing and support. We use our backup site until the primary site returns 

to normal conditions. 

* This zero to 12 hour goal does not guarantee that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that we will achieve specific 

recovery times in the event of a disruption. 

Third party providers 
We use third-party service providers and contractors to support a variety of functions. We evaluate 

each of them prior to the execution of a contract for services, and beyond. Our evaluation uses a 

risk-based approach to assess providers as we review, select, and monitor their performance. 

Our Vendor Management Program conducts service provider validation and joint testing of our 

essential providers. It includes an assessment of the service provider’s ability to meet our disaster 

recovery standards for service level agreements and recovery time objectives. 

Program elements specific to treasury management 
In addition to our enterprise program elements, we’ve incorporated the following elements into our 

business continuity resiliency plans for our treasury management services. 

Communication 

Notification methods to inform you of a service disruption include: 

• Front-end messages from our CC4B Service Office advising 

the City about system issues when you contact us through 

our toll-free number 

• System status alerts displayed on the homepage of our 

online banking portal 

The method we use to communicate with you depends on the nature of a disruption. 

If a disruption prevents you from accessing your information, your relationship team can help. They 

have access to bank systems and can provide the account information, balances, and other data you 

need to continue operating. 

Client service officers are on call 

24 hours a day, seven days a 

week, ready to respond to a 

disruption. 

540

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 79 

 

Backup strategies for online channels 

Online banking portal 

If the online banking portal experiences a disruption, we use our backup environment. The backup 

environment is a duplicate of our online banking portal and is in a separate location from the primary 

site. 

Mobile service 

We have a backup environment for our mobile platform* in the event of a system outage. Our 

mobile service and online banking portal channels use different web addresses and user interfaces. 

This arrangement means that, depending on the nature and root cause of an outage, users may be 

able to access services through the mobile service if our online banking portal experiences a 

disruption. 

Additionally, our mobile token feature allows users to use their mobile devices in place of physical 

tokens to access secure services. This access can be helpful in instances when a disaster event 

separates users from their physical tokens. 

* Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

Backup strategies for core services 

ACH payments 

When we invoke our ACH recovery plan, processing diverts to a backup site. We can recover with 

minimal down time because we run ACH production simultaneously at our primary data center and 

at our backup sites.* 

The diverse geographic locations of our processing centers help to minimize potential disruption. 

However, the severity or nature of a specific event may require use of manual backup procedures. 

As a contingency step, we recommend that you establish an alternate method of initiating 

payments, such as our online ACH services,† to upload files or manually key in payment information. 

* Running simultaneous ACH production does not guaranty that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that we will achieve 

specific recovery times in the event of a disruption. 

† You will need to enroll in our online ACH service separately from the direct origination service and plan for implementation prior to an 

emergency. 

Wire transfer 

When we invoke our business continuity resiliency plan, processing diverts to a backup site. Each 

backup site has the ability to accept transferred wire processing workloads, including wires initiated 

by telephone. 

We maintain redundant connections to two different Federal Reserve Banks, which minimizes 

potential disruption within a geographic region. We conduct comprehensive joint testing with the 

Federal Reserve Bank on a quarterly basis. 

You can also enroll in a backup wire transfer channel. For example, you can choose from telephone-

initiated wires or our mobile service to access select functions of our wire transfer service.* 

* You will need to enroll in backup wire services separately and plan for implementation prior to an emergency. 

541

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 80 

 

Account reconciliation plans and positive pay 

If you're unable to access our online banking portal or send files using data transmission because of a 

business interruption, you can key small-volume issues, cancellations, and voids through our mobile 

service.* 

* You do not need to enroll in the mobile service in advance of a disruption. Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile app available 

for your device from the Apple App Store or Google Play store. 

Transmission service 

We have a backup environment for our browser-based transmissions service. It includes an alternate 

website in case our online banking portal is unavailable. As a best practice, we recommend that 

customers leverage URLs if using automation scripts and not IP addresses, which are subject to 

change. 

Commercial card 

Our business continuity resiliency plan includes contingency planning and routine data backups. We 

are on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week during incident response. In most situations, 

restoration of commercial card processing can occur within 12 to 24 hours, and restoration of our 

expense management service can occur within four hours of disaster declaration.* 

* The forgoing does not constitute a representation or warranty that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that 

Wells Fargo will achieve specific recovery times in the event of a disruption. 

ACH Fraud Filter 

Business disruptions can create opportunities for fraud. It’s important that during a disruption you 

can continue to view details and make decisions on your ACH transactions. You can access our ACH 

Fraud Filter service online or through our mobile service. Alternatively, you can obtain ACH 

information by calling our CC4B Service Office. 

Cash vault 

If a primary cash vault site is unable to accept, deliver, or process cash, we work through a backup 

site. We disperse our cash vault sites strategically so that we minimize potential disruption within a 

specific geographic region. Transportation issues and the additional distance between you and the 

backup site may cause delay of the cash delivery during a disaster or emergency. If such an event 

occurs, we take reasonable action to resume our normal cash delivery service levels as soon as 

possible, given the available transportation options. 

Remote deposit 

We automatically store checks that you capture through our remote deposit service on our servers. 

If a power outage or other disruption prevents you from completing a deposit, it remains in a 

pending deposit status. It remains in this status until you can access the system again. You can view 

a summary of all your deposits that require review prior to completion. As a backup, you can make 

deposits using a mobile device with a camera through our CEO Mobile application or by taking your 

deposit to a Wells Fargo branch. 

542

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 81 

 

Lockbox 

If we invoke our business continuity resiliency plan, lockbox processing at the affected site diverts to 

a backup site, as needed. The specific location of the backup site will depend on the impact of the 

disruption. Alternative processing may include diverting mail delivery from the affected primary site 

to the backup site.* In such a case, after we receive mail at the backup site, we follow customer-

specific instructions to process checks, capture AR data, and image checks and invoices. We notify 

customers and couriers (as appropriate) about their impacted processing site or procedures. 

* Depending on the severity of a disaster, delayed mail delivery may affect processing time, which could impact normal service level 

agreements. 

Image cash letter 

Image cash letter processing moves between two main locations. We mirror and back up all image 

cash letter files in a separate location. Because we back up and store your account data, we can 

provide it to you in an emergency. 

If you’re unable to make deposits through our image cash letter service, as an alternative, you can 

make deposits at any Wells Fargo branch. 

Keeping current 
To keep current with changes in the business continuity resiliency and disaster recovery industry, 

we’re active in forums that discuss and share best practices. 

The forums include: 

• Disaster 

Recovery 

Institute 

International 

• Financial 

Industry 

Regulatory 

Authority 

• Global Financial 

Markets 

Association 

• The Institute of 

International 

Finance 

 

19. Describe any additional security measures available to the City to minimize the risk of 

unauthorized transactions in its accounts. 

Please refer to the previous response to question 13. 

D. Implementation/conversion 

1. Provide a conversion plan for transitioning each of the proposed services to your financial 

institution. 

Our experienced team will meet with the City. Together, we will discuss the process, set 

expectations, and document any potential issues that the team may encounter during the transition. 

In addition, we will conduct follow-up meetings as necessary. 

We will assign an implementation consultant to the City and coordinate an implementation kickoff 

meeting. Your implementation consultant acts as your single point of contact throughout the 

implementation and help determine timelines and responsibilities.  

543

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 82 

 

This regular communication will help develop the relationship that’s required to achieve a smooth 

transition to your new banking or treasury management solutions.  

Your implementation consultant collaborates with you and your staff to develop the schedule and 

document the process we will follow. A sample schedule for our product implementation follows. 

While the sample schedule shows many crucial tasks, it is not comprehensive. After we meet with 

you to discuss your needs, we will customize it. 

The implementation lead time represents the length of time it takes to make the service available to 

the City once: 

• Your relationship team completes all required know your customer due diligence processes* 

• Your implementation consultant gathers all necessary information from you and our internal 

sources needed to implement your services  

• The City completes the required agreements and returns them to Wells Fargo 

* Due diligence processes can take up to 30 days to complete. 

Sample implementation schedule 

Online banking portal and information reporting 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

9-day lead time to establish services 

in online banking portal 

7-day lead time to establish 

information reporting service 

• Review and confirm services 

• Coordinate training 

• Set up online administration for 

reports, and related services 

• Review and confirm services 

• Attend training 

• Review and sign forms 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on the products being implemented. 

 

Account opening 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

1-day lead time • Identify all accounts to be 

opened 

• Provide account numbers 

• Provide MICR specifications 

• Order deposit tickets, check 

stock, and other supplies 

• Validate setup 

• Identify all accounts to be 

opened 

• Order deposit tickets, check 

stock, and other supplies 

 

544

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 83 

 

ACH direct transmission 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

13-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Provide file layout specifications 

• Determine transmission 

method and issue IDs 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Review test file format 

• Perform transmission testing 

(additional time may be needed 

for outbound transmission 

testing, such as for a returned 

item) 

• Move transmission IDs into 

production 

• Validate and finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Determine transmission 

method and issue IDs 

• Create test file 

• Perform transmission testing 

(additional time may be needed 

for outbound transmission 

testing, such as for a returned 

item) 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission testing. 

 

ARP and Positive Pay 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

36-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Coordinate training 

• Provide file layout specifications 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Perform transmission testing 

• Move transmission ID into 

production 

• Validate and finalize setup 

• Activate Positive Pay 

• Review and confirm services 

• Complete training 

• Perform transmission testing 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission testing. Also, adding ARP or 

Positive Pay to an existing account is cycle dependent and can only be done at the beginning of a statement cycle. 

 

545

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 84 

 

Payee Validation 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

30-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Share manual review fee with 

the City† 

• Share key implementation 

requirements, guidelines, and 

video tour 

• Request customer limits check 

stock order 

• Confirm checks are ready to 

monitor 

• Set up for production 

• Begin monitoring test checks 

• Review check stock and monitor 

issue file for three weeks 

• Address any issue file 

corrections 

• If checks pass three weeks of 

testing, there is no further 

follow-up 

• Validate and finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Acknowledge understanding of 

requirements 

• Request customer limits check 

stock order 

• Confirm checks are ready to 

monitor 

• Begin monitoring test checks 

• Review check stock and monitor 

issue file for three weeks 

• Address any issue file 

corrections 

• If checks pass three weeks of 

testing, there is no further 

follow-up 

• If checks fail testing, you have 

60 days to fix issues† 

* Dependent upon results of check stock monitoring. 

† If checks still fail, the manual review fee will be assessed. 

 

ACH Fraud Filter 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

9-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Coordinate training 

• Set up service on ACH platform 

• Set up optional 30-day review 

(before considering stop option) 

• Implement stop option if 

needed 

• Review and confirm services 

• Complete training 

• Identify default decisions and 

preauthorizations 

* This service becomes active after users complete training. The City’s responsiveness will affect the implementation 

lead time; delays in completing training can increase the implementation time frame. 

 

546

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 85 

 

Bank Administration Institute (BAI) transmissions 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

27-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Determine transmission 

method 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Perform transmission testing 

• Move transmission ID into 

production 

• Validate and finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Develop capacity to receive and 

parse BAI file and data 

• Perform transmission testing 

. 

Remote deposit 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

13-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Order supplies 

• Complete and validate setup 

• Send fulfillment package 

• Review and confirm services 

 

Remote deposit with detail reporting 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

21-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Provide transmission 

specifications 

• Set up transmission and test 

connectivity 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Provide test results 

• Move transmission ID into 

production 

• Monitor live files 

• Validate setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Review and approve forms 

• Send test file 

* A Deposit Detail Report can be set up for both our remote deposit and image cash letter services. The timeframe 

for either requires at least a 21-day lead time to establish, create, and test IDs for transmission. 

 

547

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 86 

 

Image File Import (non-lockbox) 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

20-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Provide reference guide 

• Determine transmission 

method 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Send live files 

• Validate and finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Download test file and confirm 

connectivity and format 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission method and testing. 

 

Returned Items 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

11-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Issue transmission IDs 

• Implement instructions 

• Validate setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Send test file 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission testing. 

 

Sweep accounts 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

7-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Implement sweep 

• Establish sweep statement 

access 

• Validate setup 

• Review and confirm services 

 

548

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 87 

 

WellsImage® Media 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

13-day lead time* • Review and confirm services 

• Provide MICR check 

specifications 

• Perform check testing (MICR 

and image) 

• Finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Provide test checks 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer) depending on check testing. It is also cycle dependent and can 

only be added at the beginning of a statement cycle if adding WellsImage Media to an existing account. 

 

Wholesale Lockbox 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

10-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Perform invoice testing 

• Provide lockbox number and 

live date 

• Finalize setup 

• Coordinate image training 

• Review and confirm services 

• Provide sample invoices (for 

image) 

• Complete image training 

 

Wholesale Lockbox with transmission 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

30 to 40-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Provide file layout 

specifications 

• Perform invoice testing 

• Issue transmission ID 

• Perform transmission testing 

• Provide lockbox number and 

live date 

• Move transmission ID into 

production 

• Finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Provide sample invoices (for 

image) 

• Perform transmission testing 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission testing. Lockbox can begin 

receiving deposits 10 business days after the lockbox number is assigned; however, we cannot provide remittance 

details electronically until transmission testing is complete. 

 

549

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 88 

 

Zero balance account (ZBA) 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

7-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Implement ZBA 

• Validate setup 

• Review and confirm services 

 

Consolidated receivables service 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

14- to 42-day lead time* • Complete setup forms 

• Begin setup of all treasury 

management-related products 

• Finalize setup 

• Test transmission 

• Move services into production 

• Coordinate training 

• Complete training 

* The implementation time can be shorter (or longer), depending on transmission testing 

 

Consolidated payables service 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

48-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Determine use of manual or 

automation process and 

method of transmission 

• Provide user guides and 

coordinate training, if using 

Payment Manager Online 

(PMOL) 

• Develop statement of work 

• Approve and sign statement of 

work 

• Validate SIT/UAT test files 

• Add any additional accounts 

• Move services into production 

• Transmit and monitor 

production files 

• Verify and finalize setup 

• Review and confirm services 

• Determine use of manual or 

automation process and 

method of transmission 

• Establish automation 

connection 

• Validate SIT/UAT test files 

• Add any additional accounts 

• Transmit and monitor 

production files 

* The times for all action items can vary depending on your choice of a standard or custom format and the availability 

of your internal resources for development and testing. 

 

550

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 89 

 

Wires (online initiation) 

Approximate time frame* Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

4-day lead time • Review and confirm services 

• Implement and validate services 

• Coordinate training 

• Review and confirm services 

• Complete training 

Commercial card implementation 
The following schedule includes a description of each implementation phase. It includes approximate 

timeframes for completion and actions required of both parties. Factors that can affect the 

estimated time needed to implement our services include the City’s requirements, preferred file 

format (standard versus custom), technical capabilities and testing requirements. 

Pre-implementation 

Prior to your commercial card program implementation, your Wells Fargo relationship team gathers 

information to satisfy credit, legal, and regulatory requirements for the service. We also work with 

you to collect signatures for the required agreements. The lead time for this information gathering 

is typically one to three weeks. 

During implementation 

During implementation, your commercial card program implementation consultant gathers 

additional details for your program and cardholders, coordinates any necessary technical resources, 

and develops a training plan for your program administrators. 

Once your setup is complete, your commercial card payables account manager works with you to 

develop your customized program rollout and training for cardholders and approvers. 

Sample implementation schedule 
Implementation begins once we complete all pre-implementation activities. 

Pre-implementation 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

1 to 3 weeks • Finalize services and pricing 

• Complete any credit or 

regulatory requirements 

• Complete necessary 

commercial card contracts 

• Finalize services and pricing 

• Complete any credit or 

regulatory requirements 

• Gather additional commercial 

card details 

 

 

551

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 90 

 

Implementation 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

3 to 4 weeks lead time standard 

4 to 6 weeks with transmission 

• Gather additional commercial 

card details 

• Provide GL interface file 

format detail 

• Train administrators and 

provide cardholder training 

material 

• Rollout cardholder training and 

card distribution 

• Gather additional commercial 

card details 

• Provide cardholder list and 

profile details 

• Complete merchant category 

code (MCC) template 

worksheet 

• Complete GL mapping 

spreadsheet 

• Provide GL interface file 

format detail 

• Complete internal cardholder 

agreement and application 

• Rollout cardholder training and 

card distribution 

 

Virtual card payments 
Completion of a new standard implementation of our Virtual Card Payments and consolidated 

payables services can take four to six weeks. Factors that can affect the estimated time needed to 

implement our services include: 

• The City’s requirements 

• Preferred file format (standard versus custom) 

• Technical capabilities 

• Testing requirements 

Sample implementation schedule 
The following schedule includes a description of each implementation phase. It includes approximate 

timeframes for completion and actions required of both parties. 

552

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 91 

 

Pre-implementation* 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

1 to 3 weeks • Provide standard file format 

specifications 

• If you will use a custom file 

format: 

• Provide you with a data matrix 

of required fields 

• Analyze and approve your file 

specification format 

• Provide template for your 

suppliers 

• Segment and profile suppliers 

for enrollment 

• Provide signature card and 

card agreements 

• Reserve account numbers 

• Complete credit approval 

• Assign project manager(s) 

• Review Wells Fargo standard file 

and document format 

specifications 

• Self-validate that input file meets 

standards using our file validation 

tool 

• If you will use a custom file 

format: 

• Return completed data 

matrix 

• Produce file 

specification and sample 

file 

• Return supplier list 

• Update ERP system to take new 

payment type 

• Sign and return completed 

documents 

* All pre-implementation actions run concurrently. 

 

Implementation kick off and Business Requirements Document (BRD)* 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

1 to 3 weeks • Provide standard file format 

specifications 

• If you will use a custom file 

format: 

• Provide you with a data 

matrix of required fields 

• Analyze and approve 

your file specification 

format 

• Provide template for your 

suppliers 

• Segment and profile suppliers 

for enrollment 

• Provide signature card and 

card agreements 

• Reserve account numbers 

• Complete credit approval 

• Assign project manager(s) 

• Review and approve BRD 

• Review and approve the 

supplier enrollment strategy 

• Return signed agreements  

* All implementation actions run concurrently. 

553

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 92 

 

 

Development* 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

2 to 4 weeks • Establish services 

• Provide training for our 

consolidated payables and 

online services 

• Contact targeted suppliers and 

provide a weekly enrollment 

report 

• Complete training 

• Update ERP or AP system 

weekly, to reflect changes in 

supplier enrollment 

• Confirm all setups and test 

specifications  

*All development actions run concurrently. 
. 

User acceptance testing* 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

2 weeks • Conduct connectivity testing 

and validation. We also make 

file update recommendations 

and repeat testing until all 

issues are resolved 

• Produce system-generated file 

and receive test files with 

acknowledgments and 

confirmations 

* All user acceptance-testing actions run concurrently. 

 

Go live 

Approximate time frame Wells Fargo actions Your actions 

 • Coordinate any additional 

training needed 

• Move your services to a live 

environment with your 

approval 

• Monitor the first live file that 

you send to us 

• Introduce you to our customer 

service team, CC4B Service 

Office 

• Complete any additional 

training 

• Modify transmission scripts to 

send the first live file 

Merchant services implementation 
To successfully implement your merchant services, several important tasks need to take place in a 

timely manner. In the following paragraphs, we provide an overview of the steps and responsibilities 

involved with implementing your merchant services solution. We will create a customized plan and 

share it with you during the implementation process. 

554

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 93 

 

Wells Fargo steps and responsibilities 

Pre-implementation phase 

During pre-implementation discussions with you, we will determine which merchant processing 

solutions will best meet your needs. Additionally, we will work with you to finalize your solution and 

requirements, complete and sign any required documentation, and gather additional details. 

Implementation phase 

We will assign a merchant services implementation consultant who will guide you through the 

implementation process. He or she will be your main contact throughout the implementation process. 

Your merchant services implementation consultant will provide an overview of the implementation 

experience, gather additional details review the Statement of Work (if applicable), and provide 

additional resources and support for your internal technical setup, including issue resolution. 

Merchant account and product setup 

We will build and configure your merchant processing solution to meet your needs. 

Testing 

As your implementation progresses, you will submit test transactions to help ensure a successful setup. 

Training 

Your merchant services implementation coordinator will provide you with training, so you will be 

ready to use your new merchant solution. 

Start date and monitoring 

You and your merchant services implementation consultant will coordinate a go-live date for your 

new services. We will monitor your account for the first 30 days to help ensure transactions are 

processing correctly. Upon receipt of your first monthly merchant account statement, your 

implementation manager will conduct a statement review and introduce you to your ongoing 

support team. 

The City’s steps and responsibilities 
One of the ways to help ensure we meet your merchant services needs is through a customized 

implementation process and timeline. We build this based on information you provide. We will 

depend on you before and during the implementation process to do the following: 

• Provide additional information that may be needed to complete the implementation as 

requested 

• Help ensure your technical and financial resources are available and prepared to participate as 

needed 

• Be prepared to discuss your reporting and reconciliation requirements 

• Partner with your implementation consultant to coordinate your setup, training, test 

transactions, and go-live date 

555

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 94 

 

Timeframes 
Implementation timeframes for our merchant services solutions vary based on the type of 

processing you require and the size and scope of your implementation. In the following table we list 

general implementation timeframes.* Once we establish your specific needs, we will present you 

with a mutually agreed upon timeframe for implementation. 

Service Time to implement* 

Terminal 1 – 20 

Terminal 21+ 

• 2 – 4 weeks 

• 4 – 8 weeks 

Clover Go • 4 – 6 weeks 

Clover POS 1 – 20 

Clover POS 21+ 

• 2 – 4 weeks 

• 4 – 8 weeks 

Decision Manager • 2 – 4 weeks 

Direct Connect • 8 – 10 weeks 

FD gift card • 12 – 14 weeks 

Independent software vendor (ISV) • 4 weeks 

Wells Fargo Payment Gateway® API integration • 8 – 12 weeks 

Wells Fargo Payment Gateway Secure acceptance • 4 – 8 weeks 

Wells Fargo Payment Gateway Virtual terminal • 2 – 4 weeks 

*Actual timeframe of implementing may vary by individual merchant or vendor. 

2. Who will be responsible for coordinating the transition for each of the proposed services? If 

a conversion team is used, how will the City’s account be transitioned to the ongoing client 

service team? 

Your assigned implementation consultant will act as your single point of contact throughout the 

implementation and help determine timelines and responsibilities. This regular communication will 

help develop the partnership that’s required to achieve a smooth transition to your new banking and 

treasury management solutions. 

After your implementation is complete, you can call or email our CC4B Service Office who can help 

you and your staff with questions about your new services. CC4B Service Office representatives are 

available Monday through Friday from 4:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Pacific Time and Saturday from 6:00 

a.m. to 12:30 p.m. Pacific Time. 

3. Indicate the financial institution’s plans for initial and ongoing educating and training City 

employees in the use of your systems? 

During implementation, we will work with you to determine your training needs. Based on your 

needs, we can create a customized plan that consists of a variety of solutions. In the following 

paragraphs, we describe the training options available to you. 

556

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 95 

 

Online learning resources 
Training for services provided through our online banking portal is available to the City during all 

phases of your implementation. You will also have access to these tools on an ongoing basis once 

implementation is completed. Training includes on-demand modules and a variety of self-paced 

learning tools. 

On-demand modules 

We provide on-demand training modules that are available through our online banking portal 24 

hours a day, seven days a week. This approach offers greater flexibility so that your users can train 

when it is most convenient for them. 

Self-paced learning tools 

If you prefer to learn at your own pace, we offer the following resources: 

• User guides — provide an overview of your services, along with detailed information about 

your services 

• Quick reference guides — offer you at-a-glance information about specific tasks related to 

your services 

• Online demo tool — allows you to become familiar with and practice navigating our online 

banking portal 

Training with your implementation consultant 
Your implementation consultant can provide additional training options, as needed, and will 

supplement online learning solutions so you receive full training support. 

Post-implementation training 
After your implementation is complete, you can call or email our CC4B Service Office who can help 

you and your staff with questions about your new banking services. CC4B Service Office 

representatives are available Monday through Friday from 4:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Pacific Time and 

Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. Pacific Time. 

The CC4B Service Office has a centralized structure with a presence in all time zones. It’s our goal to 

answer your call within 30 seconds; we resolve most questions on the first call.* We hold the same 

high standards across our organization; all client service officers follow the same policies and 

procedures. 

Our Treasury Management Client Delivery teams, along with other customer support teams, are the 

recipients of many prestigious awards and accolades judged by industry professionals. 

*Automatic Virtual Contact Center (VCC) system calculation based on total queue (wait time for both answered and abandoned calls), 

divided by calls answered. 

4. Will the City be allotted a fixed number of hours and training? 

No. Training hours are not counted. Your assigned implementation consultant will ensure that the 

City is comfortable with using services before transitioning support to our CC4B Service Office. 

557

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 96 

 

E. New services and ideas 

1. Describe any new services or ideas that will enhance the City’s utilization of financial 

institution services described. 

We put our customers at the center of every decision we make. We keep these key points in mind as 

we enhance our services: 

• Focus on the customer 

• Stay current with technology 

• Keep things simple 

• Make services easy to implement 

• Help customers keep pace globally 

Through ongoing conversations, we hear what customers want from their treasury services — and 

how they want to use and access them. 

Sweep accounts 

Sweep accounts provide you with an automated solution for optimizing funds and earning interest 

on balances invested overnight. Because investments are either overnight or short-term, the City 

has daily access to your money. 

We also offer a credit sweep service that allows you to use bank account balances to pay down a line 

of credit. You can use the line of credit to fund a bank account that has fallen below a target balance 

amount. You can also choose to tie an investment sweep to the credit sweep account structure. 

Once you determine a target amount (which you can set to zero), we sweep excess collected 

balances over the target amount from your checking account to an investment. Alternately, we 

sweep excess collected balances over the target amount to pay down a line of credit, depending on 

your cash flow needs. 

Benefits 

Automated investment of funds By sweeping automatically each night, our service eliminates the need for 

costly and time-consuming manual funds movement to and from investment 

accounts. 

Accuracy of funds transfer Sweep transfers occur after all the day’s debits and credits post to your 

account. Transferring funds after debits and credits post helps ensure that the 

sweep won’t accidently overdraw your account. 

Consolidated reporting You receive a monthly statement that includes information on your balances 

and the interest or dividends paid on your investment. Our confirmations 

provide you with sweep transaction activity and daily rates. You can monitor 

your sweep activity online using our information reporting service. We can also 

deliver your statements and notifications electronically. 

558

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 97 

 

Money Market Mutual Fund Sweep 
Our Money Market Mutual Fund* automatically sweeps excess collected balances into one of our 

Allspring Money Market Mutual Funds: 

• Government Money Market Fund 

• Treasury Plus Money Market Fund 

* Not FDIC insured, no bank guarantee, and may lose value. 

Because funds stay invested until you need them, you can generate earnings without sacrificing 

access to your cash. 

If your checking account balance is above your target balance at the end of the day, we 

automatically sweep the excess balance from your account into an FDIC-insured omnibus account* 

at the bank. At the beginning of the next business day, we transfer the funds to the money market 

mutual fund custodian. The custodian invests funds in a non-FDIC insured, non-bank guaranteed 

money market mutual fund.† 

* Funds transferred to the omnibus account are eligible for FDIC insurance up to the allowable limit. Additionally, government deposits 

remain collateralized in accordance with state or federal law. We hold funds in the City’s name until released for investment the following 

business day. 

† This statement is just a summary. For complete information, please see the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Service Description and the 

current prospectus for the Allspring Funds ALLSPRING FUNDS MANAGEMENT, LLC, A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF ALLSPRING 

GLOBAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS, LLC (“ALLSPRING GLOBAL”), PROVIDES INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE 

SERVICES FOR THE ALLSPRING FUNDS. OTHER SUBSIDIARIES OF ALLSPRING GLOBAL PROVIDE SUB-ADVISORY AND OTHER 

SERVICES FOR THE FUNDS. THE FUNDS ARE DISTRIBUTED BY ALLSPRING FUNDS DISTRIBUTOR, LLC, MEMBER FINRA/SIPC, A 

SUBSIDIARY OF ALLSPRING GLOBAL. Your investment in a money market mutual fund will be pooled with funds belonging to other 

investors in an omnibus investment account in the name of Wells Fargo as agent on behalf of all its customers invested in the money 

market mutual fund. An investment in a money market mutual fund is not insured by the FDIC or any other government agency. 

Although the mutual funds seek to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in 

a money market mutual fund. In addition, mutual funds are not guaranteed by Wells Fargo and may lose value. For more information 

regarding the money market mutual fund investment sweep option, obtain a current prospectus for the money market mutual fund by 

visiting allspringglobal.com, by calling 1-800-260-5969, or by contacting your Wells Fargo relationship manager. Consider the 

investment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses of the investment carefully before investing. This information can be found in a 

current prospectus. 

559

Item 19.

https://allspringglobal.com/


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 98 

 

Rate report 
Money Market Fund Rate Report - Allspring Global Investments 

 
. 

Remote cash capture (smart safe) 

The remote cash capture process through our SafeVantage service provides daily provisional credits 

to your bank accounts. The smart safe holds your deposit until your armored courier picks it up. The 

service can help the City accelerate cash flow by one to two days. 

The deposit procedures increase employee efficiency and productivity, improve deposit accuracy, 

and improve employee safety. 

How it works 
To implement our remote cash capture solution, the City will choose an armored courier (Brinks, 

Garda, or Loomis) to install bill validating and counterfeit detecting safes in your locations. Your 

employees will simply insert currency into the bill validators. The safe counts the cash, examines the 

bills, and rejects any bills suspected of being counterfeit. It also tracks deposits by employee PIN. 

The smart safe prepares your deposits and then reports them to Wells Fargo. You receive 

provisional credit for the cash in the safe before it physically reaches the bank. 

The safe holds your cash until your armored courier picks it up for delivery to the courier’s cash vault. 

The courier also brings the coin and currency you ordered to your safe.* Depending on your safe’s 

capacity and cash volume, you may be able to reduce the number of courier pick-ups that you need 

per week. 

* Smart safes do not dispense coin or currency. 

560

Item 19.

https://allspringglobal.com/investments/mutual-funds/rate-reports/stagecoach-sweep.html


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 99 

 

In addition to currency deposits, the remote cash capture safe handles: 

• Manual deposits — used for unfit and rejected bills as well as occasional checks or travelers’ 

checks 

• Change order deposits — used to allocate a deposit to offset the debit charge for a change 

order made, which simplifies your reconciliation process 

Reporting 
You can access transaction information either directly from the safe or through the armored 

courier’s online portal. 

You can program your safe to print deposit reports in amounts by employee, shift, and day. Reports 

identify each type of deposit — currency and manual — by a different description on your reporting 

services, which helps simplify reconciliation. 

Deposit cutoff times 
The City receives provisional credit for check and cash deposits that you make in the safe’s manual 

drop slot. The service level determines the (local) cutoff time, as noted in the following table. 

Service level Cutoff time (local 

time) 

Provisional credit received* 

Standard 4:00 a.m. Next business day at end of day 

Premium intraday† 4:00 a.m. Next business day by 8:00 a.m. 

* At implementation, we can discuss questions you may have about receipt of provisional credit. 

† Premium intraday is available to customers who contract with Loomis. Additional fees apply. 

Advantages 
Our remote cash capture solution offers many potential benefits to the City. 

Increased staff efficiency 

Because the safe counts cash, your employees can focus on customer and business needs. They’ll 

spend less time handling cash, preparing deposits, and making trips to the bank. 

Improved safety and fraud prevention 

Criminals may target operations where cash is unsecured. Remote cash capture: 

• Reduces the risk of losses for cash in transit 

• Reduces the risk of fraud because a point-of-sale system tracks funds — the totals shown on 

the system should equal the amount deposited 

• Provides an audit trail with the reporting of deposit data by location and employee 

Expedited credit 

You receive provisional credit and faster access to working capital without being dependent upon a 

daily armored courier pickup. 

561

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 100 

 

Easy reconciliation 

All transactions flow through our regular information reporting channels, including direct BAI file 

transfer and our online reporting service. Several reports provide detailed information about your 

deposits and your coin and currency orders. 

Lower transportation and supply costs 

Because we credit deposits to your account through an electronic data transmission from the safe, 

the City can reduce the number of armored car pickups and trips to the bank. Our remote cash 

capture service also reduces your need for deposit bags and tickets. 

Flexibility 

You can choose from a variety of safe models to meet the size requirements of your locations and 

suit your business processes. 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services 

The City wants to offer your consumers the latest, most efficient payment methods in a cost-

effective manner. To achieve your goals, you need to work with an electronic payments provider 

that understands your business model.  

Serving 105,000 customers in the U.S., Wells Fargo Merchant Services has 

experience working with organizations of all sizes in a variety of sectors. As 

of January 2022, we supported 9.3 billion annual credit and debit 

transactions and $738 billion in total sales volume.* We’re the second 

largest eCommerce (card-not-present) merchant acquirer in the country.† 

A number of prominent fintech companies choose to process transactions 

with us.* 

* Information based on internal reporting. 

† The Nilson Report, March 2022. 

Industries and sectors 

Government Restaurants Technology and telecoms 

Higher education Hospitality Media 

Healthcare Business-to-business Energy and utilities 

Nonprofit Payment facilitators Commercial real estate 

Retail Financial services  

 

Our team draws on this depth and breadth of experience to support you with strategies designed to 

help you control cost, manage risk, and offer consumers convenient payment options. 

562

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 101 

 

Manage working capital 

Manage cash flow effectively by accessing your funds faster. You 

can receive funds as soon as the next business day to your 

Wells Fargo commercial account.* 

* When depositing into a Wells Fargo commercial account. Please refer to the Merchant Services Terms and Conditions and Operating 

Rules for additional information. 

You may settle your Merchant Services funds to an account at the financial institution of your preference. When you use a Wells Fargo 

account for settlement or other Merchant Services purposes, you must use a Wells Fargo business deposit account. We settle by ACH to 

other institutions, and projected funding may vary. The actual time could be longer than two days, depending on the financial 

institution’s status with the Federal Reserve. 

Deposit products offered by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. 

Merchant Services are provided by Wells Fargo Merchant Services L.L.C. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Merchant Services are not deposit 

products. Wells Fargo Merchant Services L.L.C. does not offer deposit products, and its services are not guaranteed or insured by the 

FDIC or any other governmental agency. Merchant Services are subject to application, credit review of the business and its owners, and 

approval. 

Help control cost 
Card processing costs are complex and impacted by many variables. Interchange can be affected by 

merchant category codes (MCCs), file transmission times, availability of transaction data, and 

transaction security. A payment environment that includes inefficiencies, such as redundant systems 

and outdated solutions, can also impact overall costs. We can help you manage costs by suggesting 

processes you can implement to help optimize interchange clearing and streamline your payment 

environment.  

Identify ways to help reduce risk 
Meeting Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) requirements can be complex 

and costly. Our teams work to understand your PCI scope and educate you about steps you can take 

to achieve and maintain PCI compliance. To help you transact securely, our solutions support 

security protocols, such as encryption and tokenization. 

Anticipate consumer needs 
Consumer payment options continue to multiply; we can help you understand these changes and 

provide guidance to help make effective use of solution technology. Whether the City requires 

online or in-person payments, we can support you with payment gateways, electronic bill 

presentment and payment solutions, point-of-sale and mobile technologies, and fraud management 

tools.*  

* Additional fees apply for these services. 

If you choose to use your own or a third-party solution, we can typically support you with core 

processing. Our processor’s system is compatible with thousands of ISVs (independent software 

vendors). The majority of third-party gateways and point-of-sale systems are certified to the 

processing platforms we use.* 

* Your eReceivables consultant, Todd Reed, can provide additional information. 

To help you reconcile and track transactions, we also offer detailed reporting and convenient dispute 

management tools, at no additional cost. 

Funding as soon as the 

next business day* 

563

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 102 

 

Get support  
Our customer service model is designed to provide the City with consistent support based on a solid 

understanding of your organization and industry. 

An implementation project manager will help guide you through your transition. Our customer 

service center will be your day-to-day point-of-contact for merchant services. They can also provide 

resources to help you address PCI DSS compliance concerns, regulatory requirements, consumer 

payment preferences, and technology changes. Your eReceivables consultant, Todd Reed, can 

provide guidance as your payment acceptance requirements evolve. 

Our treasury management and commercial banking teams work in coordination with our merchant 

services team. Your treasury management sales consultant, Gurleen Pannu, and relationship 

manager, Jamie O’Connell, will also offer insights to create a comprehensive receivables strategy. 

Market rate competitive pricing 
The payment networks govern and periodically update interchange and assessments; however, the 

interchange and assessments are only one pricing component for merchant services. 

We provide competitive pricing based on a number of other factors, including the following: 

• Sales volume 

• Average transaction amount 

• Number of locations 

• Processing needs 

• Card acceptance environment 

• Connectivity method 

Clover Go 

Card reader paired to your mobile device 

With Clover Go, you can use your mobile phone or tablet to accept payments 

wherever you do business. You download an app to your iOS or Android device. 

Then, with the use of one card reader, cardholders can dip or tap to pay. The card 

reader, which connects using Bluetooth, is EMV chip card enabled. The service can 

capture signatures for card transactions. In addition, you can record cash and check 

transactions for reporting purposes. 

You connect using your device’s cellular data plan or Wi-Fi supported with a wireless router or 

hotspot. 

Security and fraud protection tools 
With all devices, encryption and tokenization help protect card data, while EMV chip card technology 

helps prevent in-person fraudulent transactions. 

564

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 103 

 

To help potentially reduce your PCI compliance scope, you can configure the Clover Station Solo, 

Clover Station Duo, Clover Mini, and Clover Flex devices to provide point-to-point encryption 

(P2PE) and PCI P2PE-certification at no additional cost.*  

* Because Clover Go uses a Bluetooth card reader linked to your own mobile device, the solution cannot be PCI P2PE-certified and you 

cannot accept PIN-debit transactions.  

Customize the service with the apps you need 
The Clover App Marketplace offers more than 500 apps and is continually growing*. This helps you 

customize the software to meet your business needs. You can tailor the service to include apps for 

managing inventory, employee scheduling and time cards, menus, sales tax management, and more. 

* Additional fees apply for usage of Clover apps from the Clover App Market. Please refer to the Clover App Market terms and conditions 

for details. 

Accept a variety of payment types 
You can potentially help increase sales and customer satisfaction by accepting a variety of payment 

types, including: 

• Credit and signature-debit transactions 

• PIN-debit transactions1,2 

• EBT cash benefit cards2 

• Gift cards2,3 

• Mobile payments — Apple Pay, Google Pay, and Samsung Pay2,4 

• Checks3 

1. PIN-debit transactions are available with the Clover Station Duo, Clover Mini, and Clover Flex devices.  

2. Not available with Clover Station Solo and Clover Go. 

3. Not available with Clover Go. 

4. Mobile payment products are trademarked by their respective owners. 

Apple, the Apple logo, Apple Pay, Apple Watch, Face ID, iPad, iPad Pro, iPhone, iTunes, Mac, Safari, and Touch ID are trademarks of Apple 

Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. Apple Wallet is a trademark of Apple Inc. App Store is a service mark of Apple Inc. 

Android, Chrome, Google Pay, Google Pixel, Google Play, Wear OS by Google, and the Google Logo are trademarks of Google LLC. 

Samsung, Samsung Pay, Galaxy S (and other device names) and Samsung Knox are trademarks or registered trademarks of Samsung 

Electronics Co., Ltd. 

565

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 104 

 

Receive fast funds availability 
If you deposit into a Wells Fargo commercial account1 for settlement, you will typically receive funds 

as soon as the next business day2 for Visa, Mastercard, and Discover Network transactions received 

before the established cutoff time of 11:00 p.m. Pacific Time. 

If you settle transactions for these cards to another financial institution, your funds are typically 

available in two business days.3 

Funds availability for American Express transactions depends on the City’s contractual 

arrangements with the card issuer. 

1. Deposit products offered by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. 

Merchant services are provided by Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Merchant services are not deposit 

products. Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. does not offer deposit products and its services are not guaranteed or insured by the 

FDIC or any other governmental agency. 

2. Please refer to the Merchant Services Terms and Conditions and Operating Rules or Program Guide for additional information. 

3. For ACH deposits, projected funding may vary. The actual time could be longer depending on the financial institution’s status with the 

Federal Reserve. 

Electronic lockbox 

Online bill payments provide a convenient, simple, and paperless way for your customers to pay you. 

However, many bill payments initially submitted online can still end up as mailed paper checks by bill 

service providers. These check payments create exceptions and often have incomplete or inaccurate 

remittance details, which can result in processing delays for you. 

With our E-Box service, you can increase your straight-through processing rate of receivables and 

minimize your staff’s time spent handling exceptions — so that you achieve your goal to simplify bill 

payments. Our E-Box service repairs exceptions and merges all your customers’ online bill payments 

into a consolidated electronic remittance file. You use the file to automatically update your AR 

system and apply credits to your customers’ accounts. Our service accepts payments from all major 

bill service providers and walk-in bill payment providers. 

• Convenient • Simple • Paperless 

How it works 
When you sign up, we notify the bill service providers in our network that you can receive payments 

through our E-Box service. The following graphic shows the flow of a bill payment through the 

various channels using our E-Box and Receivables Manager services. 

566

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 105 

 

 

The City receives a single ACH credit to your deposit account. 

Automated payment validation 
To improve the quality and standardization of the remittance file you receive, you can instruct us to 

use one or more validation routines to identify, filter, and repair invalid payments or other 

exceptions. We suspend payments that include errors or exceptions. You have the option to review 

the suspended payments online and decide what to do with them. You can also instruct us to reject 

and return payments that don’t meet your validation routines to the originator. 

The following table provides descriptions of the validation routines the City can choose from. 

Validation routine Description 

Account mask Confirms that the inbound account number matches your billing 

account number structure 

Check digit* Uses a mathematical equation to determine if an account number is 

valid 

Cross-reference database processing Translates consumer-initiated account numbers we receive and 

corrects the account number prior to validation and processing (This 

database can correct inaccurate account information your customers 

enter and can make account number changes that may occur due to a 

merger, acquisition, or system change.) 

Positive file processing Compares inbound account numbers to a file of valid account numbers 

you provide 

Stop file processing Compares inbound account numbers to a file of unacceptable accounts 

you provide 

* Applies to credit card billers. 

567

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 106 

 

Online payment management and research 

Manage payments 

With our E-Box service, you can perform the following 

functions online:* 

• View exception payments 

• Initiate returns on exception and processed 

payments 

Dual control 

For added security, a second 

person can review and approve 

all changes initiated by another 

user. 

• Update processed payments requiring account number changes for future processing 

• Make decisions about exception transactions, including repairing payments with invalid 

account numbers 

• Update your cross-reference database with valid account numbers and generate NOCs to 

payment originators 

* The functions you can perform depend on the features you select during implementation. 

Research 

The City can view and research processed payments and access information for reporting and trend 

analysis. 

Payment history 

You can locate transactions using the search criteria in the following table. 

Account number Consumer name or account number 

Amount Processed date 

Biller ID Trace number 

You can access all successfully processed payments for the previous 180 days. You can view and 

print full record-level data in HTML and PDF formats, and you can export data for manipulation and 

analysis in XLS and CSV formats. 

Reporting 

Our Return and Repair report provides a detailed, payment-level audit of all user activity performed 

during the past 180 calendar days. You can tailor it to show only payments that meet your search 

criteria. 

You can view and print activity in HTML and PDF formats, or export in CSV and XML formats. 

Virtual lockbox 

Our virtual lockbox service integrates payments that arrive at your location with those we receive in 

your lockbox. 

Using an approved scanner, you’ll scan and submit payments that arrive at your location and we’ll 

integrate them with those we receive in your lockbox. 

568

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 107 

 

You’ll receive same-day ledger credit for payments we receive prior to your submission deadline, 

which you will establish during the implementation process. We process transactions we receive 

after your deadline (including any items we process during the weekend or on a holiday) in the 

following business day’s work. 

Your lockbox reports and transmissions will include payments you submit using the virtual lockbox 

service. Images are available for viewing through the same image channel you use for your lockbox. 

Data entry capabilities 
Each payment you submit undergoes the same lockbox processing currently in use, including data 

entry, deposit windows, and special instructions. 

Remittance document imaging 
You can scan checks, invoices, coupons, envelopes, and correspondence (up to 8½” x 11” in size). We 

store all check and remittance document images — regardless of source — in a convenient, 

searchable electronic archive. 

Remittance file integration 
We combine the payments we receive into your lockbox with those you submit to us using our 

virtual lockbox service and provide you a single electronic transmission of your remittance detail. 

The file is in the same format as your current transmission file. 

How virtual lockbox works 

. 

E-Bill Express 

Our electronic bill presentment and payment 

service* is designed to provide secure and 

convenient options for your customers to view 

and pay their bills. 

It may help you reduce: 

A turnkey solution that works with your 

existing systems and doesn’t require 

webpage development or extensive 

support from your information 

technology resources. 

• Collection time 

• Manual exception processing 

• Days’ sales outstanding 

• Receivables processing costs 

Convenient email and mobile wallet notifications remind your enrolled customers that payments are 

due. Additionally, the service may help lower your print and mail costs because fewer customers may 

require paper bills. 

* Standard bill presentment and payment fees apply. Additional fees may apply for optional services. 

569

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 108 

 

The service, which hosts the bill payment webpages, is designed to be cost-effective, easy to 

implement, and branded to your identity. 

Flexible bill presentment and payment options 
At implementation, you choose the configuration options that are most efficient for your 

organization and designed to meet your customers’ expectations. This may increase the likelihood 

that your customers will choose to view and pay their bills electronically. 

Decide how much information your customers see 

You can provide your customers with detail or summary bill presentment in HTML format or you 

can provide PDF bill presentment.  

The payment page displays: 

• A list of open bills 

• Amount due 

• Due date 

• Invoice number 

• Other optional fields, for example, a purchase order number or invoice line item details 

Detail presentment 

We offer more than 50 billing information fields, including several fields that you can customize. The 

fields include line item details about items ordered and shipped, unit price, and the previous balance 

that is past due. 

Biller information fields 

• Invoice number 

• Invoice date 

• Minimum amount due 

• Due date 

• Previous balance 

• Current balance 

• Total amount due 

Summary presentment 

With the summary presentment option, you can provide high-level billing information such as the 

information fields listed in the following table. In addition to the standard fields, there are several 

customizable fields. 

PDF presentment 

If you’d like your customers to view an exact replica of your invoice, the service can present the 

invoice in PDF format. We offer several options for providing invoices in PDF format. We will discuss 

the options with you during implementation.* 

* Additional fees may apply based on your choice of PDF storage options. 

Sending us your data 

You can use batch files or an API to provide your billing data. 

570

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 109 

 

Batch files 

You can submit your bill files in comma-separated values (CSV) format using one of our secure 

internet transmission protocols or through the service’s administrative portal. 

If we receive your bill files by 8:00 p.m. Pacific Time, your customers can view their billing 

information the next business day. 

API 

You can provide your billing data in real time through an API that uses: 

• Representational State Transfer (REST) for communication 

• JavaScript Object Notation (JSON) messaging format 

• Auth 2.0 authorization protocol 

Your customers can view their billing information immediately, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 

depending on the City’s internal system configuration. 

Notifications help encourage prompt payments 

When your customers enroll for electronic bill presentment and payment, they’ll receive 

notifications that remind them to view and pay their bills. Notifications are available by email, text, 

or through your customer’s mobile wallet. 

Email notification 

We offer the following types of email notifications for enrolled users: 

 Ready-to-view bills 

 Scheduled payments 

 Processed payments, including confirmation number 

 Expiring credit cards 

 Upcoming bill date 

 Past due bills 

The email includes a link to the sign on screen. Once the customer signs on, they can view billing 

information. 

Choose the payment channels available to your customers 

Online 

Your customers will access our service through a link on your website, or by bookmarking our online 

presentment and payment URL. We host the website and it’s branded with your logo. 

571

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 110 

 

When customers access the website, they can select one of three languages: English, Spanish, or 

French. This may increase customer engagement and reduce the number of calls to your customer 

service representatives. 

Telephone payments made through your customer service representatives 

Your customer service representatives can accept payments over the phone and process them 

through the administrative portal of the bill presentment and payment service. 

Accept payments from enrolled users and one-time payers 

You can choose to accept payments from customers enrolled in the online service and those making 

one-time online payments. 

Enrolled users 

Enrolled users can save payment methods, set up recurring or future-dated payments, and view 

their online payment history. 

One-time payments 

Customers can make one-time online payments, including future-dated payments, but they cannot 

save their payment methods or setup recurring payments. These customers won’t have access to 

online payment history. 

Accept multiple payment types 

With our electronic bill presentment and payment service, you can accept: 

• eCheck payments 

• Major credit cards (Visa, Mastercard, Discover, or American Express) 

• Debit cards (with the Visa or Mastercard logo) 

• Corporate and purchasing cards (Level III data supported) 

Keep card information up to date 

Maintaining updated card information for electronic bill presentment and payment users can help 

increase customer satisfaction and potentially minimize declined transactions. However, even if 

prompted by email, the customer may not update their card expiration date or card number. 

You can take advantage of our Account Updater service*, which automatically updates information 

for Visa and Mastercard cards. Once per month, the service updates information for cards used 

within predetermined number of days in the past, or cards that are expiring within a predetermined 

number of days in the future. 

* Additional fees apply for the Account Updater service. 

572

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 111 

 

Receive funds as soon as the next business day 
Funds for payments processed before the cutoff time are typically available in your Wells Fargo 

commercial account1 as soon as the next business day.2,3 You can choose a cutoff time of 5:00 p.m., 

3:00 p.m., or 2:00 p.m. Pacific Time.4 

1. You can settle your merchant services funds to an account at the financial institution of your preference. When you use a Wells Fargo 

account for settlement or other merchant services purposes, you must use a Wells Fargo commercial account. 

Deposit products offered by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. 

Merchant services are provided by Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Merchant services are not deposit 

products. Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. does not offer deposit products and its services are not guaranteed or insured by the 

FDIC or any other governmental agency. 

2. Please refer to the Merchant Services Terms and Conditions and Operating Rules for additional information related to card 

transactions. 

3. Visa, Mastercard, and Discover card transactions and eCheck only. American Express card transactions settle in one to three business 

days depending on the City’ contract with American Express. 

4. You choose the cutoff time when we implement your service. 

Online reports and search capability 

Reports 

Through the administrative portal, you can access a variety of reports, including: 

 User reports that provide information about your customers’ payment activity, status, and enrollment 

 Financial reports that provide information about deposits and payment batches 

 Bill payment and management reports that show payments, recurring payments, suspended payments, and stops 

 File management reports that show the status of your billing files 

Online reports are available 24 hours a day.* You can download reports in CSV, Excel, and PDF 

formats. In addition, you can customize the columns and filters for further analysis. 

You have access to 12 months of payment and invoice history as a standard part of the service. 

However, you can request that we set you up for extended history of up to seven years.† 

* Availability exclusive of unplanned outages. 

† There is an additional monthly fee for extended history. 

Search capabilities 

To assist with customer inquiries, the City’s customer service representatives can search and query 

by date range, customer ID, payment amount range, and invoice number. 

573

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 112 

 

Streamline receivables posting 
You will receive all of the information you need to post and reconcile payments, including: 

• Your internal customer reference number, for example a customer or account number 

• Payer’s name 

• Invoice number 

• Amount paid per invoice number 

• Fee amount (if applicable) 

• Total amount paid, includes multiple invoices and fee amounts (if applicable) 

• Payment method and channel 

In the following paragraphs, we describe the options you can choose for receiving this information. 

Receive a daily accounts receivable file 

To streamline receivables posting and reconciliation, you receive a daily* AR file that automatically 

uploads to your ERP or financial system. The file, which includes remittance information for all 

payment types, provides details of your electronic bill payment activity for eCheck payments and 

returned items and credit and debit card payments. 

The AR file is available in a fixed-width flat file or in a pipe-delimited flat file. If you need a 

customized file to integrate with your system, you can use our consolidated receivables service. 

You will receive this file by secure file transmission. As an alternative, you can download it in CSV 

format through the online administrative portal of our bill presentment and payment service. Your 

AR file is available four hours after your daily cutoff time. 

* Excludes federal holidays and weekends. 

Memo post payments with real-time payment notification*† 

Using an API, you can receive real-time payment data that your representatives can use to help 

provide a better customer service experience for your payers. 

Our system sends the data to a URL that you provide, letting you automatically memo post 

payments to your receivables system. The real-time data includes the same information you will 

receive in the daily AR file. 

* Payments can be cancelled up to 15 minutes before your daily cutoff time. Therefore, we recommend that you use the real-time data 

only to memo post payments and use the daily AR file for final posting and reconcilement. 

† Additional fees apply. 

574

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 113 

 

Consolidated receivables (Receivables Manager) 

With our consolidated receivables service, you can post payments automatically to your ERP 

platform or AR system when you receive an electronic receivables file from us. This consolidated file 

helps accelerate cash application while reducing the number of errors caused by manual data entry. 

Your file can contain receivables data from any combination of the payment sources listed in the 

following table. 

Payment types for online origination 

• ACH 

• Electronic billing service 

• Foreign currency wires 

• Image cash letter 

• International letters of credit 

• Lockbox 

• Online bill payments 

• Real-time payments 

• Remote deposit 

• Wells Fargo Payment Gateway 

• Wires 

How it works 
We translate your receivables data and deliver it to you in a format compatible with your ERP 

platform or AR system. Our service is compatible with most accounting and ERP solutions, including 

Oracle and SAP. We can also accommodate many custom and proprietary file formats. 

Your customers can forward their emailed remittance details sent separately from their ACH and 

wire payments to Wells Fargo; the remittance details can be automatically matched to payments as 

they’re received. If we can’t match payments to the remittance automatically, we will flag exceptions 

in our online banking portal. You can then manually match payments to remittance details based on 

system suggestions. Finally, we can transmit all transactions with remittance data to you for 

automated upload to your ERP system. 

Flexible file options 

Delivery 

We deliver an electronic receivables file to you by transmission. 

Our transmission platform offers a variety of communication protocols including: 

• SFTP 

• FTPS 

• HTTPS 

• AS2 

575

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 114 

 

The following tables describe the formats we support. 

Formats  

Standard formats Using a standard format can minimize your implementation cost and time, 

and you can choose a different format for each payment type. 

Flat file formats We offer two flat file formats — the universal and simplified formats. The 

universal format contains comprehensive EDI detail for ACH payments 

you receive. The simplified format contains data available in STP 820, 

which is also a simplified EDI format for received ACH payments. 

ISO 20022 XML When you receive your information in this format, it streamlines the City’s 

integration and reconciliation process because you are receiving the same 

information from all banks that use the ISO 20022 XML format. 

Custom formats If you cannot work with one of our ERP-specific formats, we can develop a 

custom format for you.* 

* Additional fees may apply. 

Formats 

ANSI X12 820 (Payment Order or Remittance Advice) 

ANSI X12 823 (Lockbox) 

BAI 80/300 (Lockbox) 

ISO 20022 XML format 

Modified Nacha 

Proprietary and custom formats (by request) 

Wells Fargo standard file format 

Wells Fargo flat file formats 

• Simplified 

• Universal 

File availability 
We process your files Monday through Friday (excluding holidays). Because some payment types 

have multiple processing runs and available release times, you can choose to receive more than one 

file each day. 

Choose one or more of the following release times for each file you request. Your file will be available 

within one hour* of the time or times you select. 

Release times (PT) 

4:00 a.m.* 9:00 a.m. 1:00 p.m. 5:30 p.m. 

5:00 a.m.* 10:00 a.m. 2:00 p.m. 10:00 p.m.* 

6:00 a.m.* 11:00 a.m. 3:00 p.m.  

7:00 a.m. 11:30 a.m. 4:00 p.m.  

* Certain times may take longer than one hour. 

576

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 115 

 

Consolidated receivables through our online banking portal 

Advice matching 

Advice matching offers the ability to match payments to remittance advices, which are sent 

separately from the payments. These separate advices are typically sent by the payer through email. 

Our service automatically matches payments to existing payer profiles. We can automatically 

generate a new payer profile for payments that don’t have an existing profile. You can maintain 

payer profiles through our online banking portal. 

Remittance repair 

ACH and wire repair correct improperly formatted 

remittance data sent within an ACH or wire payment. We 

automatically repair remittance data based on your 

business rules. If we are unable to repair the data, the 

payment is available to you through our online banking 

portal as an exception for you to manually decision. 

Automate more of your AR 

processing and manage 

exceptions through our online 

banking portal. 

Decisioning 

The City can perform a return or repair for payment transactions through our online banking portal. 

Commercial card 

One card, one workflow 
Help maximize convenience, efficiency, and control with one card and one platform that handles your 

employee spending, travel, general procurement, AP disbursements, and more. When you 

consolidate expenses into one program, the City gains access to comprehensive information for 

smart decision making. You have the potential to realize significant savings in time, transaction-

processing costs, and internal resources required to support the program. A single-card platform 

integrates multiple processes and creates a solid foundation for future growth. 

Additionally, you will gain an ally with more than 28 years of experience in the card industry and 

knowledge to help make your program successful. 

Accepted almost everywhere 
We issue both Visa and Mastercard, with both platforms boasting millions of global acceptance 

locations.*† This coverage means your employees can make purchases almost everywhere cards are 

accepted. We will help you determine which issuer best meets your needs. 

* Visa. 2021. “ Visa Annual Report 2021.” Visa > Investor Relations > Annual Reports & Meeting. 

† Mastercard. November 10, 2021. “Mastercard Investment Community Meeting.” Mastercard > Investor Relations > Events and 

Presentations. 

577

Item 19.

https://s29.q4cdn.com/385744025/files/doc_downloads/Visa-Inc_-Fiscal-2021-Annual-Report.pdf
https://usa.visa.com/
https://s25.q4cdn.com/479285134/files/doc_downloads/2021/11/10/Mastercard-Investment-Community-Presentation_FINAL-for-website.pdf
https://www.mastercard.us/en-us.html


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 116 

 

Corporate liability: A best practice 
Organizations typically choose a corporate liability program because it’s designed to: 

• Increase visibility of spending across the entire organization 

• Decrease costs, losses, and risk 

• Eliminate individual liability and unnecessary burdens on employees 

Corporate liability also means that your earned revenue share doesn’t depend on cardholder 

reconcilement — giving you the potential to earn more. 

Online program management 
For low IT burden and flexibility, manage your program through our expense management service, 

which offers self-administration functionality and customizable components. There is no need to 

install hardware or software on your system. Our service provides: 

• Intuitive coding of common expenses 

• Real-time online card management 

• Comprehensive standard, custom, and ad hoc reports 

• Customizable transaction fields 

• Secure multi-level approvals 

You can upload expense data from the application to most ERP and treasury workstation platforms, 

which eliminates any manual data entry to your general ledger. 

Your employees can use our expense management service to: 

• Review and approve transactions 

• View and upload receipts 

• Input cash expenses 

• Reclassify line items to multiple cost centers 

Handle tasks on the go 
Employees can manage their expenses when away from their desks using our end-to-end mobile 

service.* Cardholders and approvers can complete almost all of their card-related activities using 

their mobile devices. For example, they can snap receipt images at the time of purchase, manage 

charges and expenses, approve transactions, and view available credit and declines. 

To help keep accounts secure, cardholders can receive text alerts† when transactions are complete 

or when nearing their card limit. They can set notifications by dollar threshold. 

* Functionality for our WellsOne Expense Manager mobile application requires a WellsOne Commercial Card, use of our WellsOne 

Expense Manager service, and access to the CEO portal. Download the latest version of the application for your device from the Apple 

App Store or Google Play store. 

† Your mobile device’s coverage area can affect availability. Your mobile carrier's message and data rates may apply. 

578

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 117 

 

Digital business-to-business payments 
Don’t miss the potential time and cost savings of digital payments. With our Virtual Card Payments 

service, you can pay suppliers using unique virtual card numbers. Initiate a payment through our 

online application or by API file transmission. We produce a unique virtual card number and send it, 

along with transaction details, to your supplier in a secure email. Use an electronic transaction detail 

file to close transactions within your accounting system. For added control and ease of 

reconciliation, you can additionally limit payments to an exact dollar amount or make the payment 

available for a limited time. 

Help make it easier for suppliers to accept your payments 

With our Straight Through Processing* solution, you can make it easier for your suppliers to do 

business with you. Suppliers can arrange to receive your card payments in their bank accounts 

instead of processing the payments themselves. 

* We offer our Straight Through Processing solution as part of a relationship with Mastercard, and in conjunction with our WellsOne 

Virtual Card Payments service. Additional fees and restrictions apply. 

One file for all payments 

To help simplify your payables process even further, send us an electronic payment file directly from 

your treasury workstation, ERP, or AP system. You can consolidate multiple payment types — 

check, ACH, wire transfer, and virtual card transactions — in a single file. Upon receipt of the file, we 

separate payments by type, process them accordingly, and send human-readable remittance 

information to the payee. 

We help onboard your suppliers 

Our experienced Supplier Analysis and Onboarding team can help strengthen your supplier trading 

partner relationships through a single program that covers both commercial card and ACH 

payments. We use proprietary analysis tools to analyze your supplier base and then create a 

customized strategy and targeted outreach campaign specific to your needs. 

Help protect yourself from fraud 
It’s important to have the best fraud protection for your cardholders and accounts. We use 

proprietary fraud mitigation technology, customized transaction monitoring, and convenient 

reconciliation tools to help keep your cardholders and accounts safe.  

Enhanced fraud alerts are just one of the capabilities we use to fight fraud. We send your 

cardholders alerts by email or text* when we identify a suspicious purchase. They can confirm 

whether or not the transaction is fraudulent by simply responding to our email or text. Their 

responses help us detect and prevent fraud almost instantly. 

* Your mobile device’s coverage area can affect availability. Your mobile carrier's message and data rates may apply. 

579

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 118 

 

Additionally, our commercial cards adhere to the 

rigorous security protections of the Visa and 

Mastercard networks. 

Full implementation support 
We approach implementation as a partnership. We 

commit our full-time resources and experienced 

members of our commercial card team to guide the 

design, installation, and rollout of your program. 

Liability protection through Visa 

and Mastercard 

Each commercial card program is 

eligible for a liability waiver offered 

through Visa and Mastercard up to 

$100,000. This waiver can help 

protect your organization from 

certain employee misuse or other 

unauthorized charges. 

Dedicated account manager 
We assign a dedicated account manager to new card programs to provide ongoing guidance and 

support. Your account manager meets with you regularly to track program statistics and measure 

them against your key goals. In addition to this benchmarking, your account manager updates you 

on industry developments and best practices that promote card use. 

Around the clock support 
We have two commercial card service centers within the U.S. dedicated exclusively to serving our 

commercial card customers. Our representatives assist with card maintenance services, such as 

reporting a card as lost or stolen and answering questions about cardholder transactions. The City 

can call our service team for support, 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

Virtual card payments 

With our Virtual Card Payments service, the City can make payments to your suppliers using unique, 

virtual card numbers. When you initiate a payment file, we assign a unique virtual card number to 

that specific transaction. The City can specify the transaction amount and payment tolerances — 

percentages above or below the amount or both — that allow for variation in the actual transaction 

amount. Your recipient has a specified number of days to use the virtual card number. You can also 

initiate payments within our Virtual Card Payments service application instead of sending a 

transmission file. This option gives you the flexibility to make off-cycle payments when needed. 

Our Virtual Card Payments service sends the unique virtual card number and transaction details to 

your recipient automatically by secure email. Your recipient processes your payments just like any 

other credit card payments. Alternatively, with our Straight Through Processing service, you can 

make it even easier for suppliers to do business with you. Suppliers can arrange to receive your card 

payments in their bank accounts instead of processing the payments themselves.* 

* We offer our Straight Through Processing in conjunction with our WellsOne Virtual Card Payments service. Additional fees may apply. 

The City can access all settled transactions through our expense management service. You also have 

the option of receiving an electronic remittance file to expedite the reconciliation of transactions in 

your system. 

580

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 119 

 

Help getting your suppliers on board 

Our dedicated Supplier Analysis and Onboarding team helps analyze your supplier base and 

strategically targets them for card payment acceptance. Based on our findings, we strategize with 

you on payment methods and terms to offer each supplier. Then, we onboard your suppliers by 

explaining the benefits and helping them understand the value of digital payment acceptance. 

On-demand payments 
Our On Demand payments service uses API technology to connect your system to ours. When you 

initiate an API call, your system connects to our bank systems through secured credentials so that 

we can provide the virtual card numbers you want, when you need them. You use these virtual card 

numbers to facilitate individual payments to your recipients.  

We send each virtual card number, along with transaction details, by secure email to your recipients 

or make the virtual card number available for delivery using an alternative process you choose. You 

don’t need to wait long for batch processing; each transaction is almost instantaneous — helping 

improve processing efficiency. 

Consolidated payables (Payment Manager) 

Our consolidated payables service, Payment Manager, can help you streamline and automate your 

payment and remittance processes, help strengthen trading partnerships and drive working capital, 

and help improve operational efficiencies. 

By reducing the use of paper documents and manual data entry, you can minimize mistakes and 

increase efficiency. 

Payment types 
In a single file, you can provide payment instructions and include all related remittance information. 

Your file can include multiple payment types; we separate the payments by type and process them 

accordingly. 

Your file can include the following payment types: 

• USD and CAD* paper checks 

• U.S. ACH transactions in USD 

• Global ACH transactions in foreign currencies 

• USD wires 

• Foreign currency wires 

• Requests for transfer (SWIFT MT101 messages) 

• Wells Fargo virtual card payments 

• Disbursements with Zelle®† 

* CAD paper checks are available only for off-us accounts. You must be the owner of the account. 

† Zelle and Zelle-related marks are wholly owned by Early Warning Services, LLC and are used herein under license. 

581

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 120 

 

Online services 
Through our online banking portal, you can: 

• Upload a payment file 

• Perform additional approvals after sending the file 

• Access acknowledgments and optional confirmations 

• Generate reports on payment files 

• Run an audit report on settings and user entitlements 

Compatibility 
Our service is compatible with the treasury workstations, ERP systems, and AP systems listed in the 

following table. We can also work with additional systems outside of this list. 

Treasury workstations and ERP systems 

GTreasury PeopleSoft 

JD Edwards SAP 

Kyriba SunGard 

Lawson Wall Street Systems 

Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains Yardi 

Oracle*  

* If you use Oracle, you can use our software solution to manage data translation to the file. 

Flexible file options 

Delivery 

Transmit your payment file using a variety of communication protocols (including multiple internet 

options) or upload it online. 

Formats 

Our service accepts: 

• Standard Wells Fargo flat file (delimited or positional) 

• Wells Fargo XML 

• ANSI X12 820 version 4010 

• Lawson AP 161 

• Excel CSV 

• SAP IDoc – Extended Payment Order (PEXR 2002) 

• ISO 20022 (CGI common XML standard) 

• Custom and proprietary formats 

Our service accepts and 

acknowledges your file for 

initial processing, 24 hours 

a day, seven days a week 

582

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 121 

 

Processing deadlines 
Depending on the payment type you send, we process your file the same business day if we receive 

it by our cutoff time. For a file that arrives after our cutoff time, we process it on the next business 

day. If you require secondary approval, it must be completed by the applicable deadline for same-

day processing. If a file includes multiple payment types, the earliest applicable deadline applies to 

the entire file. 

Cutoff times (Pacific Time) 

Payment type File cutoff time 

Checks 

Standard 

Same day1 

 

7:00 p.m. 

9:00 a.m. 

ACH 

On-us same-day settlement 

Transit same-day settlement 

One-day settlement 

Two-day settlement 

 

5:30 p.m. 

6:00 a.m., 10:00 a.m., and 12:00 p.m. 

5:30 p.m. 

5:30 p.m. 

Wires 

Fedwire 

SWIFT 

CHIPS 

Drawdown request 

Request for Funds Transfer (RFT) 

U.S. Federal tax payments 

Within Wells Fargo2 

 

3:15 p.m. 

2:30 p.m. 

2:00 p.m. 

2:30 p.m. 

2:30 p.m. 

2:00 p.m. 

5:00 p.m. 

Wells Fargo virtual card payments Accepted when received 

Zelle® payments3 Accepted when received 

1. Subject to volume limitations and additional fees. 

2. Transactions within Wells Fargo are moving funds from one Wells Fargo account to another. You can originate these from all 

origination channels to all of our available accounts. 

3. For Zelle® payments with the check completion option, if an electronic payment fails to originate, transactions will change 

over to checks. Checks are mailed on the next business day. 

Safety and security 

Secondary approval 

You can make optional secondary approvals for some — or all — of your payments after we receive 

your file. The system can hold an entire file of payments or an individual payment for an authorized 

user to approve or delete. We then generate the payments and send remittance information based 

on your instructions. 

583

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 122 

 

History 

You can search for payment information, view standard reports, create custom reports, and schedule 

report reminders. Data is available for 90 calendar days after we receive your payment file. 

Users with administrative authority have access to an audit report, which provides snapshots of 

setups and user entitlements. You can also view all changes made to setups and user entitlements 

within the last 90 calendar days. 

Acknowledgments  

We let you know by transmission, secure email, or both that your file has reached our system and 

undergone initial processing. You can choose from the following formats: 

• XML 

• ANSI X12 997 (standard EDI) 

• ISO 20022 

• Human-readable report 

If you’d like delivery by both transmission and email, each can be in a different format. You can also 

view and download acknowledgments online. 

Confirmations 

You have the option to receive payment confirmations for wire transfers, virtual card, and ACH 

payments by transmission, secure email, or both. You can also view and download confirmations 

online. You can choose from the following formats: 

• XML 

• ANSI X12 824 (standard EDI) 

• Excel CSV 

• ISO 20022 

• Human-readable report 

2. Please provide any additional information that your financial institution believes to be 

pertinent, but not specifically requested elsewhere in the RFP. 

We’re in one of the most exciting times in our history, with rapid technological advancements 

leading the progress in so many areas that touch our daily lives. That’s why we’ve invested heavily in 

innovation and strengthening our digital foundation while reducing risk and transforming our 

business to meet evolving customer needs. 

Our approach to innovation 
We focus on ideas that make banking faster, easier, and safer. We start with the solution — how we 

can leverage a new capability to make customers’ lives easier. We don’t implement technology just 

for technology’s sake. With that mindset, we’re explore emerging technologies such as distributed 

ledger technology and predictive personalization. We think creatively to understand how it can help 

us deliver transformative customer experiences. For example, we’re using artificial intelligence to 

help simplify processes for both our employees and customers. 

584

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 123 

 

Innovation also includes thinking beyond our walls. The future of banking relies on investing in 

critical partnerships such as those with fintechs. Leveraging the data and scale of Wells Fargo with 

the nimbleness and precision of fintechs and technology firms can help create results that are better 

than the sum of its parts. 

People to drive change 
We have a dedicated group serving as the catalyst for transformational change across Wells Fargo. 

This group focuses on fostering the growth of big ideas that influence business models, processes, 

and programs throughout our organization. With this structure in place, we are better positioned to 

manage our digital foundation and transform our business models to meet evolving customer needs 

and grow. 

Our priorities include: 

• Delivering better 

customer experiences 

faster 

• Enhancing our end-to-

end mobile experience 

• Advancing the use of 

APIs to personalize 

customer experiences 

Mobile first 
As the pandemic has proven, we’ve reached the tipping point for the way customers manage their 

money, with digital adoption growing at an unprecedented rate. And if you’re like many others, you 

live on your smartphone — you accomplish every task and plan your next important life moment 

using the tool in your pocket. You expect your banking app to not just keep up, but possibly even 

anticipate your needs. That’s why we’ve invested in personalizing your mobile experience — to take 

it from banking app to lifestyle money manager. 

Integrated financial services 
Imagine viewing your Wells Fargo account balance in an online retailer’s checkout flow without 

having to open our mobile app or sign into your online bank account. That’s Embedded Banking in 

action and a key area of interest for us as we look to the future. 

Additionally, we will continue to build upon our Wells Fargo Gateway — our award-winning* API 

channel. The Wells Fargo Gateway allows customers and third parties to integrate customer-

persmissioned financial information into their own digital environments. APIs can transform how 

you do business by allowing services to be delivered online and on demand. For example, customers 

can leverage APIs to:  

• Initiate banking transactions 

• Receive real-time responses with banking data or the status of payments 

• Supplement the batch processing of more time-sensitive payments by originating them at 

any time 

* Celent. March 9, 2021. “Winner of Celent Model Bank 2021 Award for Embedded Finances.” celent.com > Reports and Insights >  

Wells Fargo: Enabling Customers to Offer Financial Products. 

585

Item 19.

https://www.celent.com/insights/603740665


Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 124 

 

F. References 

1. Provide at least three references (government entities, if possible), including client name, 

contact person, address, phone number, services provided, and the length of time your 

financial institution has worked for the entity. 

Based on our current understanding of your needs, we have chosen references with services that 

most closely resemble the setup we have proposed for the City. We provide contact information for 

these references in the following table. 

References  

Sylvia Molina 

Finance Department 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

 

951-845-9581 

sylvia.molina@bcvwd.org 

 

560 Magnolia Ave.  

Beaumont, CA 92223 

The Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District uses the 

following Wells Fargo services: 

• ACH 

• Desktop Deposit 

• Previous day reporting 

• Wires 

Lorena Rocha 

Finance Director 

City of Hemet 

 

951-765-2387 

lrocha@hemetca.gov 

 

445 E. Florida Ave. 

Hemet, CA 92543 

The City of Hemet transitioned to Wells Fargo in 

August 2021 and uses the following Wells Fargo 

services: 

• ACH 

• Cash Vault 

• Desktop Deposit 

• Previous day reporting 

• Wires 

Cheryl Stafford 

Accountant II 

City of Banning 

 

951-849-2414 

cstafford@banningca.gov 

 

99 E. Ramsey St. 

Banning, CA 92220 

The City of Banning uses the following Wells Fargo 

services: 

• Cash Vault 

• Desktop Deposit 

• E-Box 

• Lockbox 

* Reference information is confidential. 

2. How many governmental clients has the proposed relationship manager gained and lost in 

the last five years? 

In the last five years, your relationship manager, Jamie O’Connell, has acquired eight new 

government relationships and lost one due to pricing terms. 

586

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 125 

 

G. Sample contract 

1. Provide a sample of the proposed contract for your financial institution’s services. Please 

also provide samples of all other documents which will need to be signed/entered into 

related to the provision of the services requested in this RFP, including any documents 

referenced or incorporated into the contracts/agreements. 

2. It is the intention to incorporate the RFP and your financial institution’s proposal response 

as part of the overall contract. Is this acceptable? If not, why? 

Wells Fargo has included with our response copies of our account and service documentation for the 

deposit and treasury management products and services requested in the RFP, which we require to 

serve as, or be incorporated into, any final agreement. Wells Fargo is willing to discuss the order of 

precedence of any of the City’s additional documents upon award of the contract. 

Our disclosures and legal exceptions can be found in Appendix Tab F. 

The account and service agreements appear in Appendix Tab G. 

H. Pricing and account analysis 

1. For how long is the financial institution willing to guarantee the proposed fees? 

The price schedule that we include in this proposal is valid for 180 days from the date the proposal is 

submitted to you. 

2. Can fees be debited direct from the City’s account rather than billed to the City? 

Yes. The City can pay your fees through direct account debit or pay an invoiced amount by ACH or 

check each month. We prefer automatic billing after the statement cycle. 

3. Provide a complete fee schedule for all the services described in your financial institution’s 

proposal using Association of Finance Professionals (AFP) Service Codes, is possible. 

Fees related to all services described in the proposal must be listed, even if the service is not 

shown on the schedule. Also, include any one-time or set- up charges, research fees, 

minimum fees and all other fees that will be charged. Include any incentives or price breaks 

offered bason on volume, timeliness of payment, rebates or other measures. 

Please refer to Tab A in the Appendix section of our response for pricing. 

587

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 126 

 

4. Are you willing to offer any transition or retention incentives? 

Yes. Wells Fargo wants to earn the City’s relationship. Should you move your full relationship to  

Wells Fargo, we will grant the City a conversion allowance of $35,000 to be used in the first 12 

months upon account opening.* It would be to the City’s benefit to implement new technology 

offered and to try those services you have been considering. If the City implemented lockbox, E-Box, 

or other high-tech solutions, the conversion allowance could pay for the City to initially try the 

solutions at no cost — and transition for free to Wells Fargo. The 12-month cycle begins after the 

first month cycle following the new account opening. 

* Wells Fargo Merchant Services fees are not subject to this conversion credit and are billed separately. 

5. Are there any additional price breaks or incentives? 

We have tailored pricing according to our assumptions of the City’s volumes. If Wells Fargo is 

chosen as the finalist, we can work with the City to reassess the services to ensure that they are the 

best fit and the best priced. 

Additional services 

The bank may desire to offer the City additional services not otherwise specified in this RFP. In 

this event, a supplemental attachment should be prepared and included with the proposal 

describing the additional services offered in detail and indicating the cost, if any, for these 

services. 

If the City would like additional pricing quotes for our high-tech solutions, we may need additional 

data from the City to complete the quote. 

As we were reviewing your statements, there are a number of technology improvements we would 

like to offer the City, if interested. If chosen as a finalist, we can share these ideas and supply a 

proposal for services you find value in. 

588

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 127 

 

V. Pricing of banking services 

Overview 

The City requires banks to offer the following options for payment of service charges: 

Direct payment of service charges (option 1) 

Under this approach, no compensating balance will be maintained by the City. The City will pay 

for actual charges for services provided on all City accounts. If the City elects this option, 

payment will be made by bank debit against the City's general checking account. The bank will 

link all City accounts for analysis and provide individual as well as a summary report on the 

charges and fees on a monthly basis. The bank will provide information identifying the volume of 

service transactions, unit prices and total amounts owed, and an account analysis which will be 

submitted to the City within fifteen (15) working days of the end of the month. The City will 

receive an earnings allowance that will be used to reduce the monthly service charges. 

Acknowledged. This is an option for the City. 

Please refer to Tab A in the Appendix section of our response for pricing. 

Variable compensating balance method (option 2) 

Under this approach, the compensating balance required to be maintained by the City will vary 

monthly based on the City's transaction volumes for the previous month and the bank's unit 

prices for services, reserve requirement and earnings allowance. The earnings allowance rate to 

be utilized is the three-month U.S. Treasury Bill average weekly auction results (coupon 

equivalent yield) for the previous month. Written notification to the Director of Finance will be 

required to adjust the compensating balance amount. 

The City reserves the right to select either of the two options or a combination of both options 

as the method of payment for banking services. The City also reserves the right to change from 

one option to another. 

Acknowledged. At this time, Wells Fargo is only offering a managed rate based on the current 

market conditions. With this flexibility, you can maximize your earnings potential on balances as you 

transition. We are offering the City an ECR of 0.70% which is variable based on market conditions 

and bank discretion. In addition, we offer investment sweep options for excess balances. Should the 

City elect a sweep option, those balances do not earn an earnings credit nor are charged 

recoupment fees, but sweep interest is paid directly to the City’s checking account. Fees are posted 

and debited monthly. The City may also elect to keep some funds in the checking account and 

sweep the rest. The funds not swept are subject to an earnings credit to offset fees. 

Please refer to Tab A in the Appendix section of our response for pricing. 

589

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 

City of Beaumont | 128 

 

Alternative method 

Banks may desire to propose an alternative to the two options described above. In this event, a 

supplemental attachment should be prepared and included with the proposal describing in detail 

the alternative method along with computation detail. 

Acknowledged.  

Please see the proposal included in the pricing Appendix Tab A. 

The City can elect to go with a managed rate that is variable and subject to market conditions and 

bank discretion. All collected balances are subject to this rate as an earnings credit to offset fees.  

The City may look at adding a sweep option to your checking account. You may choose to sweep all 

balances, or leave some collected balances that will earn ECR and offset bank fees. All swept 

balances are subject to earn dividends at the current rate, and those are paid monthly. Swept 

balances are not charged recoupment fees, as those balances are part of the investment options 

chosen by the City. Balances that are swept are money market funds Please see the link that follows 

for prospectus information. 

Rate report 
Money Market Fund Rate Report - Allspring Global Investments 

590

Item 19.

https://allspringglobal.com/investments/mutual-funds/rate-reports/stagecoach-sweep.html


 

 

Appendix 

Pricing .......................................................................................................................... Tab A 

Information security program letter ............................................................. Tab B 

Business continuity program letters ............................................................. Tab C 

Merchant services information ........................................................................ Tab D 

Community involvement ..................................................................................... Tab E 

Disclosures ................................................................................................................. Tab F 

Account agreements and service descriptions ......................................... Tab G 

591

Item 19.



 

 

We provide our pricing and fees in this section. Pricing and fees are valid for 180 days. All pricing 

information is confidential.  

A Message from your Relationship Manager, Jamie O’Connell 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to review banking services for the City. This is a big decision for you 

and I want to make sure that I have fully explained Wells Fargo’s position on our quotes, services 

included, and enhancements that we can offer you in the future. Our goal is to earn your business 

and show you that Wells Fargo is the obvious choice for Beaumont. 

Wells Fargo is offering the City a transition allowance of $35,000 to be used in the first 12 months 

after account opening. This credit may be used at your discretion and can be applied to analysis fees 

or banking supplies. (Merchant services fees are excluded.) Implementing our lockbox solution could 

potentially cover the first year of services for transitioning to Wells Fargo. You also have the 

opportunity to maximize your balances by investing them with one of our sweep options. With the 

transition allowance offered, you will have the peace of mind to transition to Wells Fargo and not 

have to worry about being charged fees at two banks.  

The pricing elements offered are locked for the three-year term you requested and the ECR is a 

variable rate subject to change based on market conditions. We are offering an ECR rate of 0.70% 

upon new account opening, which is a managed rate and variable based on current market 

conditions and bank discretion. As rates fluctuate, your analysis fees may be covered with the 

average balances you maintain today. If the City would like to set up quarterly analysis statements, 

that period reviews activity and balances on a three-month basis and months with excess allowance 

can cover months with a deficit within the same quarter. We are confident you will find value in our 

technology and automation services. 

If the City chooses Wells Fargo, we can look at other areas in finance to assist. You mentioned the 

payroll account being processed at another bank, utilizing a third party to pay your vendors by ACH, 

and having to put all your checks in the cash vault bag for processing. As a city with utilities, we can 

help streamline incoming bill payments with an electronic file for processing. We are excited to share 

our best practices and offer the technology available to our customers today. 

We have two branches located in the city to serve the residents and employees of Beaumont.  

Wells Fargo offers many services and webinars that can assist your community in succeeding 

financially. If City employees do not bank with Wells Fargo, we will waive the check cashing fee as 

long as the City is our customer and provides positive pay check information on the checks the 

employees are cashing. 

Catherine Ramos is the local manager of the Wells Fargo branch across the street from the City. 

Over the years, the local banking team has been involved with community support initiatives and 

volunteer activities. From teaching hands on banking and financial literacy to students at Beaumont 

High School and the Beaumont library — to donating artifacts previously owned by generations of 

Beaumont residents to the San Gorgonio Pass Museum — giving back to our communities is 

important and part of Wells Fargo’s vision and values. 

592

Item 19.



Every customer is unique and with that they have unique needs. At Wells Fargo, we understand that. 

Our job is to build a strong foundation of services that focus on efficiency and risk management, and 

from there introduce new ideas to strategize and address areas of opportunity. Because our 

government banking team only works with municipalities like the City, we can pull from experiences, 

challenges, and efficiencies of other city customers and be true consultants for you. 

Banking services including remote deposit, cash vault, ACH, and fraud tools 

This proposal is based on the numbers you provided and information from the bank statements. We 

included enhancements you were looking for in the RFP, and want to ensure the totals are correct. 

This includes:  

• Balances: We used $17MM in balances based on the average provided in the RFP. When 
reviewing the statements submitted, the balances were much higher than this, but we 
noticed there is an opportunity for the City to review other liquidity options on the excess 
balances. The City could potentially sweep all balances if desired, and once the transition 
allowance has concluded, we can review balances and activity to strategize the best solution 
for the City.

• Account structure: We priced one account to compare with what you have today; however, 
there are many benefits to having your relationship at one institution, and if chosen as a 
finalist, we would like to explore consolidating your payroll account as well.

• Remote deposit: This was an important area of focus for the City and an area we have 
highlighted in the response. Depositing paper check items daily through a scanner is more 
efficient and cost effective which can reduce your armored pick-ups at the City. Our Desktop 
Deposit solution has a scanner driver that is linked to our website for installation and updated 
on our platform. We inserted the 250 items in this scenario to show you how much that 
would be.

• Cash vault: When reviewing this section, it is important to note that our cash vault volumes 
look at the actual cash and currency being deposited. Per your analysis statements, this was 
approximately $25,000 per month, so that is the amount we adjusted it to. Submitting 
checks through cash vault counts as a paper item deposit through analysis. We assumed 350 
deposits per month to our cash vault in Los Angeles, but this amount could be greatly 
reduced by having your checks submitted through remote deposit or another option. We also 
included access to request change orders from our online banking platform; these change 
orders can be delivered by your armored courier during your scheduled pick up.

• Lockbox services: We used the 1900 items requested in the RFP to come up with the 
estimate. There may be some additional need to adjust your payment coupon per lockbox 
specifications, but we can explore that if chosen as a finalist. This quote includes the price for 
images, documents scanned, reporting, and other elements related to lockbox. Our lockbox 
center is in El Monte, California, and is serviced multiple times per day. The City has access to 
reports online and can sort by many fields relevant to your reconciling needs.

• Returned items with redeposit instructions: We can accommodate your returned item 
instructions and offer images and a report so you can respond quickly to items that are being 
returned unpaid. 

593

Item 19.



 

 

• Positive Pay with Payee Validation: The City will send us your check file so we can pay items 

that match your issue file. Payee Validation will also review the payee information to help 

prevent fraud. If you have any unmatched items, we notify the City to make a pay or return 

decision. You will also set a default decision for items that aren’t decisioned. For your 

protection, we recommend a default decision to return items. 

• ACH Fraud Filter: We offer ACH Fraud Filter (stop) and ACH Fraud Filter (review) options. If 

the City expects no vendor activity on the account, we can block all debits from posting. If an 

account has approved vendors listed, we can add our review option and all unfamiliar ACH 

attempts would be presented to the City to decision (pay or return). We recommend you set 

a default decision to return items. 

• ACH services: We entered one ACH ID in place today and completed the expected activity for 

your ACH items. We recommend sending your transmission file one to two days using 

prepaid settlement, but offer same day for individual items less than $100,000. We disclose 

the elements as a possibility should they occur. 

• Wire transfers: All of your incoming, outgoing and LAIF wire activity will be found in this 

section. Wires are sent through our online banking portal and require dual custody. 

• Reports: We are giving quotes for previous day and intraday reporting with 120 days of 

storage, wire transfer, remote deposit, and lockbox reporting, and access to search online for 

transactions. 

• Set up charges: We are waiving all set up charges for services quoted in the Treasury 

Management Pro forma. There will be some development and programming hours for the 

setup of lockbox services, but the City may use the transition allowance for this cost. 

• Merchant Services and Wells Fargo Payment Gateway: Thank you for providing the 

statements. Please refer to the Merchant Services pricing pages attached.  

Enhancements to consider in the future 

During the Q and A period, we asked many detailed questions and appreciate your responses. Some 

of our services require additional information to propose, but we would like to explore those if 

chosen as a finalist. These include: 

• Commercial card: Please refer to section E, New services and ideas. With a completed vendor 

analysis from the City, we can identify an annual spend. Card payments are also a payment 

channel offered with our Payment Manager solution. 

• Payment Manager: Wells Fargo can automate your payables by sending us one file for all of 

your payments — ACH, wire, credit card and check. We welcome the opportunity to review 

this service in more detail and perhaps provide the City a demo if chosen as a finalist. We can 

offer the City a full payables analysis if the vendor match template is completed. We match 

the data against the Visa or Mastercard database to identify the vendors taking card or ACH 

payments, which will help the City move to an electronic payables environment, decreasing 

checks over time. There is also a new feature that allows the City to pay electronically through 

Zelle®. This would allow you to pay constituents by email address or phone number, rather 

than wait for small dollar items to clear. 

594

Item 19.



 

 

• E-Bill Express: This service takes your utility billing file and presents the bill online through the 

City’s website for payment. Your residents can view their bill and pay online by credit card, 

debit card, or directly through their bank account. The City gets a detailed report outlining 

who paid and provides many reconciling tools. To provide a quote, we require additional 

billing information. We are happy to discuss this further if you have interest in this solution. 

• E-Box: As your residents pay their bill through their bank provider, we can make the City an 

electronic receiver in the bill pay network. We work with 26 bill pay service networks and can 

send the City one file of the payments received and provide online decisioning to identify 

those payments that are not recognized. Once the City gives instructions on where to apply 

the payment, the next time it arrives, the payment will be automatically matched to that 

customer. We will need more information on the number of bill pay items that are sent to the 

City today to provide a quote, but we would like to follow up on this conversation. 

• Virtual lockbox: Since the City is looking to relocate your lockbox facility, you can incorporate 

our virtual lockbox service for the over-the-counter checks you receive. This is one option to 

get the paper check items received at City Hall deposited to Wells Fargo. Virtual lockbox 

takes a file from the City and incorporates those items into the lockbox file we receive today. 

For reporting purposes, this will mirror your lockbox report for consistency — whether the 

items are received at City Hall or our lockbox facility in Los Angeles. 

• Wells Fargo Electronic Deposit: This service is another option to process your check 

payments in-house. It is our version of image cash letter and can process check payments at a 

higher speed.  

• Remote cash capture (smart safe): We work with preferred vendors Garda and Loomis to 

install safe(s) at your locations. Cash is dropped in the safe at night and picked up by your 

armored courier on your schedule. The bank receives a daily transmission total from the safe, 

and it offers other fraud prevention tools as well. The contract with the City and armored 

courier is separate from the contract between the City and Wells Fargo.  

• Sweep options: We provide a lot of details and information about the sweep options that can 

be added to your checking account. These options are only offered to municipalities and 

adhere to government investment codes. Please review options for excess cash and let me 

know if you would like more information. 

If you choose Wells Fargo, you are choosing an innovator in banking technology. We will provide the 

City, a complimentary business process review to identify ways to help streamline your efficiencies 

further. As your relationship manager, it is my honor to grow our relationship over time and assist 

with future enhancements the City needs. As technology progresses, so will your payment options. 

For convenience, I am very local to the City of Beaumont and have expertise in many financial needs 

of the public sector. 

Once this RFP period has closed, it would be my pleasure to go over any of these details or address 

additional questions you have regarding our services. We look forward to working with the City of 

Beaumont. 

Thank you! 

 

 

595

Item 19.



Treasury Management Pro Forma

City of Beaumont Pricing as of June 2022

ANALYSIS SUMMARY

Average Positive Collected Balance $ 17,000,000.00

Reserve Requirement @ 0.00% $ 0.00

Investable Balance Available for Services $ 17,000,000.00

Monthly Analyzed Charges $ 5,372.59

Earnings Allowance @ 0.70% $ 9,780.82

Net Monthly Analyzed Charges (EXCESS) $ 4,408.23

*Monthly Fee Based Charges $ 0.00

Total Monthly Analyzed Charges $ 0.00

*Charges not offset by balances

SERVICE DETAILS

WF AFP Service

Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

BALANCE & COMPENSATION INFORMATION 

IAMTH 000230 RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 0.12750 17,000 2,167.50

BALANCE & COMPENSATION INFORMATION Subtotal 2,167.50

GENERAL ACCOUNT SERVICES 

22051 010000 ACCT MAINTENANCE 10.00000 1 10.00

CK021 010100 DEBITS POSTED 0.10000 25 2.50

15007 010101 DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSIT CREDITED 0.55000 21 11.55

GENERAL ACCOUNT SERVICES Subtotal 24.05

LOCKBOX SERVICES 

03302 050400 LBX TRANSMISSION BASE 125.00000 1 125.00

36709 05011R LBX WHOLESALE BASE 220.00000 1 220.00

36755 050100 LBX STANDARD CHECK PROCESSED 0.20000 1,900 380.00

03905 05011R LBX DOCUMENT SCANNED 0.03500 3,800 133.00

34222 05031Z LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM 0.05000 21 1.05

LOCKBOX SERVICES Subtotal 859.05

This proposal is based on our understanding of your requirements and the services in the RFP.  This proposal 

includes volumes provided in your Estimated Monthly Activity Detail with anticipated line items and volumes for the 

products requested in the RFP.  Please see the conversion allowance in the RFP response that can be used to 

offset the fees and setup costs below.

Pro Forma 1 of 13
596

Item 19.



WF AFP Service

Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

DEPOSITORY SERVICES 

08173 100100 CASH VAULT DEPOSIT 3.00000 350 1,050.00

CK061 100400 RETURN ITEM - CHARGEBACK 10.00000 10 100.00

CK069 100401 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 0.60000 0 0.00

CK075 100402 RETURN ITEM REDEPOSITED 5.00000 0 0.00

08110 100144 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 0.12000 27 3.24

08416 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 0.00130 9 0.01

08290 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY/COIN DEPOSITED 0.00130 25,000 32.50

08160 100501 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 6.50000 20 130.00

08025 100015 MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED 0.55000 21 11.55

706 100224 DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSITED ITEM 0.06000 250 15.00

311 100225 WHOLESALE LOCKBOX - DEPOSITED CHECK 0.14000 1,900 266.00

DEPOSITORY SERVICES Subtotal 1,608.30

PAPER DISBURSEMENT SERVICES 

DS191 150122 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 0.01000 40 0.40

12907 150030 POSITIVE PAY MONTHLY BASE 15.00000 1 15.00

22202 150100 DDA CHECKS PAID 0.10000 40 4.00

PAPER DISBURSEMENT SERVICES Subtotal 19.40

PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES 

12377 200201 ARP FULL RECON-ITEM Minimum 40 75.00

12060 200010 ARP MONTHLY BASE - FULL 15.00000 1 15.00

12604 200306 ARP OPTIONAL REPORTS 5.00000 42 210.00

12430 200301 ARP OUTPUT - TRANSMISSION 2.00000 21 42.00

34350 200306 CEO ARP STMT & RPTS MONTHLY BASE 8.00000 1 8.00

12694 200100 OUTGOING TRANSMISSION - PER ITEM 0.01000 40 0.40

PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES Subtotal 350.40

GENERAL ACH SERVICES 

CK018 250201 ELECTRONIC CREDITS POSTED 0.10000 10 1.00

34342 250400 ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION - ITEM 0.20000 6 1.20

34340 250400 ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION-ACCOUNT 10.00000 1 10.00

ES280 250000 ACH MONTHLY BASE 15.00000 1 15.00

ES211 250102 ACH FUTURE DATED ITEM 0.05000 1,847 92.35

ES344 250202 ACH RECEIVED ITEM 0.10000 35 3.50

06502 250302 ACH RETURN ITEM-ELECTRONIC 6.50000 5 32.50

ES801 250501 ACH TRANSMISSION CHARGE 2.00000 4 8.00

34333 251050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 10.00000 1 10.00

06525 250302 ACH NOC - ELECTRONIC 6.50000 1 6.50

GENERAL ACH SERVICES Subtotal 180.05

Pro Forma 2 of 13
597

Item 19.



WF AFP Service

Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

WIRE & OTHER FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE

ES030 350300 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC 10.00000 2 20.00

CS063 350510 WIRE OUT USA ACCT- STANDING 3.00000 0 0.00

ES074 350580 WIRE VERIFY CALL BACK 15.00000 1 15.00

ES139 350100 WIRE OUT DOMESTIC CEO/API 4.00000 2 8.00

WIRE & OTHER FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE Subtotal 43.00

INFORMATION SERVICES 

34123 40022Z CEO ALERTS SERVICE - EMAIL 0.04000 21 0.84

34121 400274 CEO INTRADAY REPORTING ITEMS RPTD 0.10000 100 10.00

34120 400055 CEO INTRADAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 25.00000 1 25.00

34115 400271 CEO PREV DAY REPORTING ITEMS LOADED 0.10000 500 50.00

34100 400052 CEO PREV DAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 25.00000 1 25.00

15017 400003 DESKTOP DEPOSIT MONTHLY BASE 10.00000 1 10.00

INFORMATION SERVICES Subtotal 120.84

SETUP CHARGES

LOCKBOX SERVICES 

03850 050138 LOCKBOX SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

LOCKBOX SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

12021 200410 ARP SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

ES201 251000 ACH SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

06094 251001 ACH FRAUD FILTER - SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

GENERAL ACH SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

Total Analyzed Charges 0.00

*Total Fee Based Charges 0.00

Total Service Charges 0.00

Pro Forma 3 of 13
598

Item 19.



Disclosures

We created this proposal for you based on our understanding of your requirements and the services in which you expressed

interest. This proposal confirms the deposit and treasury management services and the pricing we plan to provide you based on

certain assumptions including projected volumes and other relevant information you provided. 

This document is confidential. Please do not share it without first obtaining our written permission.  The services and pricing

contained in this proposal are valid for 90 days. The pricing is subject to change if the actual volume or scope of services differs

from the assumptions upon which we based the pricing. 

Please let us know if you believe this proposal does not accurately represent the prices or services we discussed with you. If you

have questions about the services in this proposal, please contact your Treasury Management Sales Consultant or visit:

www.wellsfargo.com/accountanalysis for additional information about the services.

Regarding your services

Alerts Service

Charges are assessed against the volume of Alerts per user, per company, per month basis. Users are only charged for

the first 80 events/alerts per month, per delivery mechanism (email or text). There is no per company cap for billing.

Wire Book Transfer

A CEO Wire book transfer is between two accounts initiated via CEO Wires Book Transfer workflow. A Payment

Manager Book transfer is charged when the debit and credit accounts are setup in a single CEO Company id and

entitled to Book Transfer.

Services with No Volumes

Services listed with zero volume are not included in the estimated monthly analysis fee but are included in the event

the service is used in the future.

This message may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the addressee or authorized to

receive this for the addressee, you must not use, copy, disclose, or take any action based on this message or any

information herein. If you have received this message in error, please advise the sender immediately by reply 

email and delete this message.Thank you for your cooperation.

© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Not intended for public distribution.

Pro Forma 4 of 13
599

Item 19.



Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pricing

City of Beaumont Pricing as of June 2022

WF AFP

Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

Cash Vault

08160 100501 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT Adjustment 6.50000

08110 100144 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED Coin roll 0.12000

08416 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED Dollar 0.00130

08190 100140 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-CALL IN Cash order 3.75000

08116 100145 CASH VAULT COIN FURN-STD HALF BOX Coin box 4.00000

08115 100146 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED-STD BOX Coin box 4.00000

08071 100111 CASH VAULT DEP - NONSTD COIN BAG Coin bag 12.00000

08008 100110 CASH VAULT DEP - ROLLED COIN Coin roll 0.12000

08067 100113 CASH VAULT DEP - STD COIN BAG Coin bag 3.50000

08181 100141 CASH VAULT ORDER - AUTOMATED Transaction 3.75000

08630 100147 CASH VAULT ORDER - FED STD BAG Coin bag 3.00000

08114 100147 CASH VAULT ORDER - HALF STD BAG Coin bag 3.00000

08210 100154 SAFEVANTAGE EXPEDITED CREDIT $ pass through 0.00010

08208 100154 SV PREMIUM DEPOSIT CREDIT Location 5.00000

General Account Services

08025 100015 MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED Transaction 0.55000

24250 150340 OVERDRAFT CHARGE-PAID ITEM Transaction 35.00000

CK049 010310 DDA STATEMENT - PAPER Statement 5.00000

CK030 010410 CLIENT ANALYSIS STATEMENT-PAPER Statement 5.00000

CK672 010630 BANK CONFIRMATION AUDIT REQUEST Request 65.00000

CK673 010640 CREDIT RATING AUDIT REQUEST Inquiry 50.00000

Gen Acct Services Recoupment

IAMTH 000230 RECOUPMENT MONTHLY Deposit assessment 0.12750

Additional Service Charges for Disclosure

Customer Price Report 5 of 13
600

Item 19.



WF AFP

Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

Image Delivery

64104 151350 IFI MAINTENANCE PER PRODUCT Customer ID 75.00000

27707 400340 CEO SEARCH Inquiry 0.16000

12812 151352 CEO IMAGE VIEW < 90 DAYS - ITEM Image retrieved 0.01000

12815 151352 CEO IMAGE VIEW > 90 DAYS - ITEM Image retrieved 0.01000

MSC-TM

03303 050410 LBX PKG US MAIL DELIVERY $ pass through 1.00000

22222 150810 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-VENDOR Account 0.01000

Paper Checks Deposited

002 100225 DEPOSITED CHECK Check deposited 0.15000

Wholesale Lockbox

36703 050135 LBX MATCHING FILE BASE Lockbox 60.00000

03102 050000 LBX REMIT PROCESSED CASH Remittance 12.00000

03611 050000 LBX REMIT PROCESSED EXPRESS MAIL Remittance 2.50000

36731 050530 LBX CORRESPONDENCE OR REJECTS Envelope 0.70000

52035 050425 LBX IMAGE FILE IMPORT Image 0.03000

36745 050129 LBX VALUE ADDED KEYING Keystroke 0.02500

34222 05031Z LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM Item accessed 0.05000

ACH Fraud Filter

34334 251050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP MTHLYBASE Account 10.00000

34338 251052 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP - ITEM Transaction filtered 5.00000

34335 251053 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW - ITEM Transaction filtered 5.00000

ACH Origination

ES216 250102 ACH SAME DAY Transaction 0.50000

ES206 250120 ACH ORIGINATED - ADDENDA REC Addenda record 0.05500

ES254 250501 ACH ORIGINATION/REJECT DATA - FILE Batch/file 3.50000

ES240 250310 ACH RETURN ITEM-REDEPOSITED Transaction 6.50000

ES362 250311 ACH RETURN ITEM - DISHONORED Transaction 6.50000

06507 250312 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED -ELECTRONIC Return 6.50000

06511 250312 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED QUALITY FEE Return 5.00000

ES230 250620 ACH DELETE - ITEM Delete 10.00000

ES361 250642 ACH REVERSAL - ITEM Reversal 10.00000

06510 251010 ACH AUTHORIZATION INVESTIGATION Investigation 50.00000

06508 251010 ACH COMPLEX SPECIAL INVESTIGATION Hour 210.00000

ES231 250620 ACH DELETE/REVERSE - BATCH/FILE Batch/file 15.00000

34285 250703 CEO ACH HYP ITM DET INQ - PER ITEM Inquiry 1.50000

Customer Price Report 6 of 13
601

Item 19.



WF AFP

Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

ACH Receive

ES349 250220 ACH RECEIVED ADDENDA Addenda record 0.03000

Account Reconcilement

34421 400272 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) / ITEM Transaction 0.00500

34420 400051 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) BASE Account 5.00000

34337 200201 CEO CHECK ISSUES-ITEM Check issued 0.30000

12687 209999 ARP AGED ISSUE RECORDS ON FILE-ITEM Record 0.02000

12609 200310 ARP PAPER STATEMENT/REPORT DELIVERY Statement 20.00000

12684 200310 ARP PAPER STMT/REPORT MONTHLY BASE Account 20.00000

12615 200304 ARP PDF STMTS/RPTS-TRANSMISSION Account 50.00000

Desktop Deposit/Electronic Check

790 100230 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - DEP ADJUSTMENT Adjustment 18.00000

General Disbursement Services

22030 150412 STOP PAYMENT - AUTO RENEWAL Stop payment 4.00000

12677 150300 MICR CHECK REJECTS >1% THROUGH 2% Reject 0.80000

12678 150300 MICR CHECK REJECTS OVER 2% Reject 1.75000

22225 150240 CHECK CASHING THRESHOLD MO BASE Account 10.00000

MD091 150240 PYMT AUTH MAX CHECK MTHLY BASE Account 17.00000

12670 150410 STOP PAYMENT - ONLINE Stop payment 12.00000

12671 150420 STOP PAYMENT - OPERATOR ASSISTED Stop payment 30.00000

12673 150411 STOP PAYMENT - RANGE Stop payment 15.00000

Incoming Wire Transfers

ES030 350300 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC Transfer 10.00000

ES191 350320 WIRE IN XBDR CORRESP BANK-USD/FX Transfer 7.00000

ES076 350310 WIRE IN XBDR USA ACCT-USD OR FX Transfer 20.00000

18030 350330 WIRE IN REPAIR Exception 9.00000

Positive Pay

DS191 150122 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM Check paid 0.01000

DS194 150299 PAYEE VALIDATION MANUAL REVIEW/ITEM Check 0.25000

34336 150724 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION - CEO IMAGE Image retrieved 0.50000

12908 150310 POS PAY CHECKS WITH NO ISSUE RECORD Check 0.50000

12505 150222 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION CHECKS RETND Check returned 10.00000

12903 150310 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTIONS - ITEM Exception 5.00000

12906 150401 POSPAY VERIFICATION CALL-CASHED Call 20.00000

Returned Items

CK064 100416 CEO RETURN ITEM SERVICE MTHLY BASE Customer ID 0.00000

CK081 100401 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INST MTHLY BASE Account 38.00000

Customer Price Report 7 of 13
602

Item 19.



WF AFP

Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

Wires Origination and Reporting

18901 350115 WIRE OUT XBDR FX CEO/API Transfer 25.00000

ES141 350120 WIRE BOOK TRANSFER CEO/API Transfer 4.00000

18602 350560 WIRE INVESTIGATION Investigation 65.00000

18031 350541 WIRE OUT REPAIR Exception 9.00000

Branch Services

08172 100501 ADJ FOR CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH Adjustment 13.00000

CK161 100006 CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH Dollar 0.00300

CK771 100010 LOOSE COIN DEPOSITED IN BRANCH Coin bag 10.00000

CK197 100040 CASH ORDER FEE IN A WF BRANCH Transaction 9.00000

CK131 100040 ROLLED COIN FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH Coin roll 0.50000

CK141 100040 CURRENCY FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH Dollar 0.00300

22810 150500 WF CHK CASHED FOR NONACCT HOLDER Check cashed 0.00000

08052 100006 BRANCH DEPOSIT Deposit 3.50000

22812 019999 NON ACCT HOLDER CHK CASHING - PAYEE Check cashed 0.00000

Other Non TM

ODACT 000210 DAILY USE OF UNCOLL FUNDS-ACCT LVL $ pass through 1.00000

Sweep

34110 450405 SWEEP ACCOUNT POSITION REPORT Sweep master account10.00000

22087 450403 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUALFND ELECTNIC Statement 0.00000

22094 450200 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUAL FND MO BASE Account 0.00000

Setup Charges

64100 151357 IFI SETUP PER PRODUCT Customer ID 0.00000

03850 050138 LOCKBOX SET UP Lockbox 0.00000

03082 050137 LBX PROGRAMMING Hour 100.00000

34375 251120 CEO ACH ORIG NEW CO ID SETUP Setup 0.00000

06092 251001 ACH ORIGINATION NEW COMP ID-SET UP Setup 0.00000

18325 359999 WIRE ACCOUNT ADD CEO/API Account 0.00000

For additional service definitions, please contact your Treasury Management Sales Consultant or visit:

www.wellsfargo.com/accountanalysis

Customer Price Report 8 of 13
603

Item 19.



Service Description Unit Volume Activity Price Unit total

General account services:

Account maintenance 1 10.0000 10.00

Checks Returned with Statements 7 N/A 0.00

Depository Services

Deposits 350 3.0000 1,050.00

Checks Paid 40 0.1000 4.00

Deposited Items - On Us 60 0.0600 3.60

Deposited Items – Local Clearing 90 0.0600 5.40

Deposited Items – Other 100 0.0600 6.00

Currency Deposited 1 $25,000 0.0013 32.50

Returned Item Debit 10 10.0000 100.00

ACH Returned Item Debit 5 6.5000 32.50

Returned Item Reclear Fee 0 5.0000 0.00

Returned Item Special Handling 0 0.6000 0.00

Controlled Disbursement Services

Checks Paid (on Accounts Payable) 2
40 Minimum2

75.00

Positive Pay Package 1 15.0000 15.00

Cash Reporter/Information Reporting 1 15.0000 15.00

ACH Services

File Input 0 0.00

Credit - Incoming 10 0.1000 1.00

Debit – Incoming 25 0.1000 2.50

Notification of Change 1 6.5000 6.50

Wire Transfer Services

Incoming Domestic Wire 2 10.0000 20.00

Outgoing Domestic Wire 2 4.0000 8.00

Non-PC Repetitive Outgoing Domestic Wire 0 3.0000 0.00

Wire Notification (Phone) 1 15.0000 15.00

Information Reporting Services

Basic Online A/C Maintenance 1 25.0000 25.00

Basic Online Detail Transactions 500 0.1000 50.00

Online CM ACH Maintenance (Stand Alone) 1 15.0000 15.00

ACH Upload Expense 1 N/A 0.00

Grand total $ 1,492.00

NOTES:
1 Updated volume to reflect the average dollar amount of cash and coin deposited monthly.

2 There is a minimum fee for our ARP Full Reconciliation Per Item charge.  The per item charge is .12 if the minimum is exceeded.

Banking Services Proposal — Required Services
Estimated Monthly Activity Detail

Please reference the attached Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pro Forma to see the full detailed proposed pricing.  Please see the 

conversion allowance in the RFP response that can be used to offset monthly fees and setup costs.

604

Item 19.



Service Description Unit Volume Activity Price Unit total

General Account Services:

RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 17,000 0.1275 2,167.50

Account Reconcilement:

ARP OPTIONAL REPORTS 42 5.00000 210.00

ARP OUTPUT - TRANSMISSION 21 2.00000 42.00

PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 40 0.01000 0.40

CEO ARP STMT & RPTS MONTHLY BASE 1 8.00000 8.00

OUTGOING TRANSMISSION - PER ITEM 40 0.01000 0.40

Depository Services

CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 20 6.50000 130.00

CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 27 0.12000 3.24

CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 9 0.00130 0.01

DESKTOP DEPOSIT MONTHLY BASE 1 10.00000 10.00

DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSIT CREDITED 21 0.55000 11.55

Wholesale Lockbox

LBX WHOLESALE BASE 1 220.00000 220.00

LBX TRANSMISSION BASE 1 125.00000 125.00

MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED 21 0.55000 11.55

WHOLESALE LOCKBOX - DEPOSITED CHECK 1,900 0.14000 266.00

LBX STANDARD CHECK PROCESSED 1,900 0.20000 380.00

LBX DOCUMENT SCANNED 3,800 0.03500 133.00

LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM 21 0.05000 1.05

ACH Services

ACH RECEIVED ITEM 35 0.10000 3.50

ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 1 10.00000 10.00

ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION - ITEM 6 0.20000 1.20

ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION-ACCOUNT 1 10.00000 10.00

ACH FUTURE DATED ITEM 1,847 0.05000 92.35

ACH TRANSMISSION CHARGE 4 2.00000 8.00

Information Reporting Services

CEO ALERTS SERVICE - EMAIL 21 0.04000 0.84

CEO INTRADAY REPORTING ITEMS RPTD 100 0.10000 10.00

CEO INTRADAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 1 25.00000 25.00

Grand total $ 3,880.59

ONE TIME Setup Charges

ACH FRAUD FILTER - SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

ACH SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

ARP SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

LOCKBOX SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

Banking Services Proposal — Required Services
ADDITIONAL Standard Monthly Activity Detail

The below activity detail reflects additional charges and volumes anticipated based on our understanding of the City's requirements and 

the services in the RFP.  We have used data from the Q & A responses, the analysis statements provided, as well as the services requested 

in the RFP scope.  Please reference the attached Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pro Forma to see the full detailed proposed pricing 

which includes all volumes provided as well as the below volumes added.  Please see the conversion allowance in the RFP response that can 

be used to offset monthly fees and setup costs.

605

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

08160 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 6.5000

08190 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-CALL IN 3.7500

08116 CASH VAULT COIN FURN-STD HALF BOX 4.0000

08115 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED-STD BOX 4.0000

08110 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 0.1200

08416 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 0.0013

08071 CASH VAULT DEP - NONSTD COIN BAG 12.0000

08008 CASH VAULT DEP - ROLLED COIN 0.1200

08067 CASH VAULT DEP - STD COIN BAG 3.5000

08181 CASH VAULT ORDER - AUTOMATED 3.7500

08630 CASH VAULT ORDER - FED STD BAG 3.0000

08114 CASH VAULT ORDER - HALF STD BAG 3.0000

08210 SAFEVANTAGE EXPEDITED CREDIT 0.0001

08208 SV PREMIUM DEPOSIT CREDIT 5.0000

24250 OVERDRAFT CHARGE-PAID ITEM 35.0000

CK049 DDA STATEMENT - PAPER 5.0000

CK030 CLIENT ANALYSIS STATEMENT-PAPER 5.0000

CK672 BANK CONFIRMATION AUDIT REQUEST 65.0000

CK673 CREDIT RATING AUDIT REQUEST 50.0000

IAMTH RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 0.1275

64104 IFI MAINTENANCE PER PRODUCT 75.0000

27707 CEO SEARCH 0.1600

12812 CEO IMAGE VIEW < 90 DAYS - ITEM 0.0100

12815 CEO IMAGE VIEW > 90 DAYS - ITEM 0.0100

03303 LBX PKG US MAIL DELIVERY 1.0000

22222 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-VENDOR 0.0100

002 DEPOSITED CHECK 0.1500

36703 LBX MATCHING FILE BASE 60.0000

03102 LBX REMIT PROCESSED CASH 12.0000

03611 LBX REMIT PROCESSED EXPRESS MAIL 2.5000

36731 LBX CORRESPONDENCE OR REJECTS 0.7000

52035 LBX IMAGE FILE IMPORT 0.0300

36745 LBX VALUE ADDED KEYING 0.0250

Please submit information on any standard monthly service charges that are not listed in the

Monthly Activity Detail and use the same format shown in the Monthly Activity Detail. If any

service charges are one-time set-up or service charges, or are to be no charge to the City,

please make note of this.

All proposals for additional service must be accompanied by supplemental attachments

describing in full the services offered along with monthly cost detail.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL – ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Cost

606

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

34334 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP MTHLYBASE 10.0000

34338 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP - ITEM 5.0000

34335 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW - ITEM 5.0000

ES216 ACH SAME DAY 0.5000

ES206 ACH ORIGINATED - ADDENDA REC 0.0550

ES254 ACH ORIGINATION/REJECT DATA - FILE 3.5000

ES240 ACH RETURN ITEM-REDEPOSITED 6.5000

ES362 ACH RETURN ITEM - DISHONORED 6.5000

06507 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED -ELECTRONIC 6.5000

06511 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED QUALITY FEE 5.0000

ES230 ACH DELETE - ITEM 10.0000

ES361 ACH REVERSAL - ITEM 10.0000

06510 ACH AUTHORIZATION INVESTIGATION 50.0000

06508 ACH COMPLEX SPECIAL INVESTIGATION 210.0000

ES231 ACH DELETE/REVERSE - BATCH/FILE 15.0000

34285 CEO ACH HYP ITM DET INQ - PER ITEM 1.5000

ES349 ACH RECEIVED ADDENDA 0.0300

34421 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) / ITEM 0.0050

34420 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) BASE 5.0000

34337 CEO CHECK ISSUES-ITEM 0.3000

12687 ARP AGED ISSUE RECORDS ON FILE-ITEM 0.0200

12609 ARP PAPER STATEMENT/REPORT DELIVERY 20.0000

12684 ARP PAPER STMT/REPORT MONTHLY BASE 20.0000

12615 ARP PDF STMTS/RPTS-TRANSMISSION 50.0000

08172 ADJ FOR CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH 13.0000

CK161 CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH 0.0030

CK771 LOOSE COIN DEPOSITED IN BRANCH 10.0000

CK197 CASH ORDER FEE IN A WF BRANCH 9.0000

CK131 ROLLED COIN FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH 0.5000

CK141 CURRENCY FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH 0.0030

22810 WF CHK CASHED FOR NONACCT HOLDER 0.0000

08052 BRANCH DEPOSIT 3.5000

22812 NON ACCT HOLDER CHK CASHING - PAYEE 0.0000

790 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - DEP ADJUSTMENT 18.0000

22030 STOP PAYMENT - AUTO RENEWAL 4.0000

12677 MICR CHECK REJECTS >1% THROUGH 2% 0.8000

12678 MICR CHECK REJECTS OVER 2% 1.7500

22225 CHECK CASHING THRESHOLD MO BASE 10.0000

MD091 PYMT AUTH MAX CHECK MTHLY BASE 17.0000

12670 STOP PAYMENT - ONLINE 12.0000

12671 STOP PAYMENT - OPERATOR ASSISTED 30.0000

12673 STOP PAYMENT - RANGE 15.0000

ES030 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC 10.0000

ES191 WIRE IN XBDR CORRESP BANK-USD/FX 7.0000

Cost

607

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

ES076 WIRE IN XBDR USA ACCT-USD OR FX 20.0000

18030 WIRE IN REPAIR 9.0000

ODACT DAILY USE OF UNCOLL FUNDS-ACCT LVL 1.0000

DS194 PAYEE VALIDATION MANUAL REVIEW/ITEM 0.2500

DS191 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 0.0100

34336 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION - CEO IMAGE 0.5000

12908 POS PAY CHECKS WITH NO ISSUE RECORD 0.5000

12505 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION CHECKS RETND 10.0000

12903 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTIONS - ITEM 5.0000

12906 POSPAY VERIFICATION CALL-CASHED 20.0000

CK064 CEO RETURN ITEM SERVICE MTHLY BASE 0.0000

CK081 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INST MTHLY BASE 38.0000

34110 SWEEP ACCOUNT POSITION REPORT 10.0000

22087 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUALFND ELECTNIC 0.0000

22094 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUAL FND MO BASE 0.0000

18901 WIRE OUT XBDR FX CEO/API 25.0000

ES141 WIRE BOOK TRANSFER CEO/API 4.0000

18602 WIRE INVESTIGATION 65.0000

18031 WIRE OUT REPAIR 9.0000

64100 IFI SETUP PER PRODUCT 0.0000

03082 LBX PROGRAMMING 100.0000

34375 CEO ACH ORIG NEW CO ID SETUP 0.0000

06092 ACH ORIGINATION NEW COMP ID-SET UP 0.0000

18325 WIRE ACCOUNT ADD CEO/API 0.0000

Cost

608

Item 19.



© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC.  

 

Desktop Deposit® – Compatible Scanners and Price Schedule 

Quick Reference Guide 
 
 

Prices effective July 1, 2022 

Prices listed are base prices, subject to change without notice, and do not include shipping, handling, or tax. 
 

Suggested 
daily check 
volume 

 
Scanner type 

 
Description 

 
Warranty 

 
Charge basis 

 
$ Price 

 
 
 
 
 
Fewer than 
20 per day 

 
 
 
CEO Mobile® 

Deposit 

Desktop Deposit users with scan 
and balance authorizations can 
deposit checks from a camera-
enabled iPhone, iPad, or Android 
smartphone through the 
downloadable CEO Mobile app 
available from the Apple 
App Store and Google Play Store. 

N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

 

Digital Check 
CheXpress CX 30-IJ 
– single feed 

12 month per unit $496.00 

24 month per unit $533.00 

 
 
 
 
Fewer than 
500 per day 

 

 

 

Digital Check TS 240-50 
• 50 documents per minute 

 
12 month 

 
per unit 

 
$760.00 

24 month per unit $810.00 
 

 

Panini Vision X 50 
• 50 documents per minute 
 
• Mac Compatible 

12 month per unit $763.00 

24 month per unit $813.00 

 
 
 
 
More than 500 

 

 

 

Digital Check TS 240-100 
• 100 documents per minute 

 
12 month 

 
per unit 

 
$998.00 

 
24 month 

 
per unit 

 
$1,048.00 

per day Canon CR190i II 
• 190 documents per minute 
Note: Allow five to seven extra 

business days for delivery. 

 
12 month 

 
per unit 

 
$2,734.00 

 
24 month 

 
per unit 

 
$3,093.00 

 
 

The following scanners are not sold through Wells Fargo’s scanner fulfillment partner, but are compatible with our service. 
 

• Digital Check TS240-75 
• Canon CR190i 
• Panini Vision X 75 
• Panini Vision X 60 AGP 

609

Item 19.



Desktop Deposit – Compatible Scanners and Price Schedule Quick Reference Guide                                                                                 2  
July 2022 
 

Desktop Deposit price schedule (continued) 
 

12-month extended warranty – purchased at expiration   

Panini Vision X 50 per unit $102.91 

Digital Check CX30 single feed per unit $89.00 

Digital Check TS240 batch scanners per unit $108.00 

24-month extended warranty – purchased at expiration   

Panini Vision X 50 per unit $194.44 

Digital Check CX30 single feed per unit $171.00 

Digital Check TS240 batch scanners per unit $204.00 

36-month extended warranty – purchased at expiration   

Panini Vision X 50 per unit $277.86 

Digital Check CX30 single feed per unit $245.00 

Digital Check TS240 batch scanners per unit $292.00 

Maintenance fees   

Cleaning: Includes removal of loose dirt and debris, complete 
cleaning of the magnetic head, and cleaning of all rubber roller 
surfaces. 

per unit $68.89 

Checkout: Includes evaluation and testing of unit/parts to specified 
standards. 
Note: Only applies if no problem is found. 

per unit $66.95 

Preventive maintenance: Includes a standard cleaning plus 
replacement of all O-rings and the drive belt. 

per unit $159.00 

Expedite: One day turnaround on warranty or service procedures. per unit $55.06 

Expedite: Same day turnaround on warranty or service procedures. per unit $105.99 

Repairs: Not covered under warranty per hour plus parts $159.00 

Repairs: Not covered under warranty Flat rate covers all work 
(except camera or 
motherboard) 

$177.00 

Supplies   

Franker for Panini i:Deal per franker $24.00 

Ink cartridge for Panini Vision X per cartridge $23.09 

Ink cartridge for Digital Check per cartridge $23.09 

3-pack ink cartridge for Panini or Digital Check per 3-pack of cartridges $60.90 

Ink cartridge for Panini AGP per cartridge $58.88 

Check retention bags per 100 bags $25.08 

Replacement box w/inserts (CX30) per kit $19.66 

Replacement box w/inserts (TS240) per kit $24.95 

Replacement box w/inserts (Panini) per kit $35.95 

Cleaning kit for Panini per kit $61.00 

610

Item 19.



Desktop Deposit – Compatible Scanners and Price Schedule Quick Reference Guide                                                                                 3  
July 2022 

Cleaning kit for Digital Check per kit $58.00 

Cleaning kit for Digital Check (small) per kit $18.71 

Cleaning cards for Canon per pack $22.84 

Cleaning swabs for Digital Check per pack $7.30 

Other   

Billing adjustments per occasion $15.75 

Restocking – Cancelled orders (unopened units only) per unit $75.00 

 
 
 

611

Item 19.



****FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY****

Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C.- ("WFMS") - Pricing Terms

City of Beaumont, CA 

Assumptions

Credit Card Volume $6,237,962

Average Transaction Size $136

Number of Locations 4

Anticipated Interchange 
11

 Levels Internet:  020   089/077/317/973

Internet:  020   089/077/317/9H4

Retail:  001   009/023/310/972

Retail:  001   009/023/310/9H3

MCC Code Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

MCC Description Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

American Express® Industry Type Services & Professional Services / Emerging Market

Discover® Network Card Program Yes

Communications Method line charges quoted separately Frame Relay / IPN

Gateway Authorize.net

Pricing Option Interchange + Assessments + Rate

Credit Card Processing Fees 
1

Interchange Plus the Following Fees:

0.25% On Gross Visa®, MasterCard®, Discover® Network Card and American Express Sales

PIN Debit & Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT) Processing Fees

$0.30 Per PIN Debit Transaction (applies to completed and declined transactions)

EBT NOT ENTITLED
Applicable PIN Debit Network, Switch, Service and Administrative fees are passed through on all PIN Debit transactions (completed and

declined).  Applicable PIN Debit Network Interchange fees are passed through on completed PIN Debit transactions only. 

Applicable Fee Schedules: 
Payment Networks Qualification Matrix  https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/creditinterchangeplus

Payment Networks Pass-Through Fees  https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/merchantpassthroughfees

PIN Debit Networks Fee Schedule (if applicable)  https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/merchantdebitfees

Merchant Statement Fee Description Glossary  https://www.wellsfargo.com/interchangefeeglossary

Dues, assessments and pass-through fees are disclosed in the schedules above.

Other Processing Fees 

Set-Up Fee -$                       per location

Monthly Minimum Processing Fee 
9

-$                       per month

Incoming Chargeback Fee 
2

15.00$                   per incoming chargeback

Incoming/Outgoing Exception Chargeback Fee 
2

15.00$                   per exception chargeback

Chargeback Fax/Mail Fee 
12

10.00$                   per Fax/Mail response

Monthly Service Fee (per location) 10.00$                   per month

Statement Billing Fee (Paper Statement) 
7

-$                       per month

Voice Authorization Fee 0.75$                     per attempt

Annual Fee -$                       per location

Authorization/EDC Fee - Visa, MasterCard, Discover Network Card (Credit and Non-PIN Debit) 
3

N/A per attempt

Authorization/EDC Fee - American Express (Credit and Prepaid) 
3

N/A per attempt

TransArmor Token & Encrypt 
13

0.01$                     per attempt

TransArmor Token Registration Fee 
13

0.01$                     per attempt

Legacy Data Conversion Fee 
14

0.01$                     per conversion

Electronic Address Verification Service Fee 0.02$                     per attempt

Voice (Manual) Address Verification Fee 2.00$                     per attempt

Annual Compliance Support Fee 
5

-$                       per location

PCI Compliance Service Program Fee 
8

-$                       per month, per location

Non-validation PCI Compliance Fee 
8

25.00$                   per month, per location

Proposal Date:  06/24/2022

Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant:  Todd Reed

Fee schedules are updated periodically.  To obtain the current applicable fee schedules, as well as a glossary of fee descriptions that may appear 

on your merchant statement, please refer to the URLs above for more information.  If you have questions or cannot access  the schedules, please contact

your Merchant Card Representative and request that a copy of the applicable fee schedules be mailed or faxed to you.

As noted in your Merchant Agreement, Payment Networks change their rates/fees from time to time. They are likely to revise rates/fees in April and

October, but this timing is subject to change.  To learn more about impacts to fee schedules resulting from Payment Network changes, please visit the

URLs above or request an updated schedule.

WFB1221c

6/24/2022; 8:39 AM Page 1 of 5 City of Beaumont, CA - V2 Info Only Terms

612

Item 19.



****FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY****

Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C.- ("WFMS") - Pricing Terms

City of Beaumont, CA 

Assumptions

Credit Card Volume $6,237,962

Average Transaction Size $136

Number of Locations 4

Anticipated Interchange 
11

 Levels Internet:  020   089/077/317/973

Internet:  020   089/077/317/9H4

Retail:  001   009/023/310/972

Retail:  001   009/023/310/9H3

MCC Code Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

MCC Description Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

American Express® Industry Type Services & Professional Services / Emerging Market

Discover® Network Card Program Yes

Communications Method line charges quoted separately Frame Relay / IPN

Gateway Authorize.net

Pricing Option Interchange + Assessments + Rate

Proposal Date:  06/24/2022

Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant:  Todd Reed

Other Processing Fees Continued

N/A per attempt

N/A per attempt

1.00% per transaction

0.00% per transaction

Terminal Reprogramming Fee (Terminal) - Applies to Customer Owned Terminals Only 75.00$                   per unit

150.00$                 per unit

Security Swap Fee for PIN Debit - Applies to Customer Owned PIN Pads Only 75.00$                   per unit

Card Imprinter Option -$                       

Rush Shipping Option N/A

1) Clients may elect to participate in the Discover Network Card program or the Discover EDC program, but not both.  Under the “Discover Network

Card program,” Clients receive all Discover-related authorization, processing and settlement services from WFMS.  Under the “Discover EDC 

program,” Clients enter into a direct agreement with Discover, and WFMS provides only authorization and capture services related to Discover

Network Cards.  Clients may also elect to participate in the American Express program or the American Express EDC program, but not both.  Under the 

“American Express program,” Clients receive all American Express-related authorization, processing and settlement services from WFMS.  Under the 

“American Express EDC program,” Clients enter into a direct agreement with American Express, and WFMS provides only authorization and capture 

services related to American Express Cards.  In all cases, any services provided by WFMS for Discover and American Express transactions are 

subject to the terms of Client’s Agreement with WFMS.

2) Client acknowledges and understands that an authorization only indicates the availability of the Cardholder's credit at the time the authorization

is requested.  It does not warrant that the person presenting the card is the rightful Cardholder, nor is it an unconditional promise or guarantee

that Client will not be subject to a chargeback or debit. A chargeback fee applies to all chargebacks processed by WFMS.

3) Authorization/EDC Fee applies to Visa and Discover Network Card credit authorizations, all Visa, MasterCard, Discover Network Card and

American Express approvals (pre-authorizations, authorizations and authorization reversals), denials, batch inquiries, batch entry transactions

and includes any transaction fees and capture fees.  This fee does not apply to Discover EDC and American Express EDC.

5) The Annual Compliance Support Fee will be assessed and deducted from Client's Settlement Account at each anniversary date after the 

effective date.

6) American Express EDC/Discover EDC Authorization Fees apply to all approvals (pre-authorizations, authorizations and authorization reversals), 

denials, batch inquiries and batch entry transactions. 

7) The monthly Statement Billing Fee can be waived if Client elects to access the monthly statement through Business Track or the Clover Dashboard

instead of receiving a paper copy by mail.  Once enrolled online, please contact Customer Service at 1-800-451-5817 to request that paper statements

no longer be mailed.  If online access is terminated by Client or as a result of at least 180 days of online inactivity, paper statements will be reinstated

with the applicable monthly Statement Billing Fee.  For information about online enrollment, please see Additional Services or contact Customer Service.  

8) The monthly PCI Compliance Service Program Fee and Non-validation PCI Compliance Fee are part of the mandatory PCI Compliance Service

Program.  These fees apply to Level 3 and Level 4 Clients who utilize a card not present solution, a gateway or value added reseller (VAR).  The program

includes access to SecureTrust, a PCI compliance solution to help Client comply with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI DSS)

requirements.  Clients are required to register and complete a PCI DSS certification process by visiting https://pci.securetrust.com/wellsfargo.  If Client

does not comply or fails the PCI DSS certification process, Client will be charged a monthly Non-validation PCI Compliance Fee until the account

becomes compliant.

9) If the total discount fee billed to the Client for Visa, MasterCard, Discover Network Card and American Express transactions in one month is less than the 

Monthly Minimum Processing Fee, then an additional fee will be charged to the Client equal to the Monthly Minimum Processing Fee less the total

discount fee.

11) American Express charges Program Pricing fees and not interchange. Program Pricing fees and interchange fees are subject to change.

12) If Client elects to respond to a Chargeback via fax or mail, a dispute fee will be assessed for each response submitted.  Business Track Dispute

Manager and Clover Disputes are available as an online option at no additional cost.  If not already enrolled, Client can self-enroll by logging into

BusinessTrack.com and accessing Dispute Manager or logging into their Clover Dashboard and choosing Clover Disputes.

13) A TransArmor authorization fee for Token and Encryption or Token Registration processing.  The fee applies to Visa, MasterCard and Discover Network

Card (Credit and Non-PIN Debit), Discover EDC, American Express, American Express EDC, PIN Debit and EBT authorizations.  Based on your current

processing, the TransArmor authorization fee will be billed under one of the following statement descriptor, “TransArmor Token & Encrypt” or “TransArmor 

Token Registration”.  However, if your processing method changes, the TransArmor authorization fee may be billed under one or more of the following 

statement descriptors: (i) TransArmor Token & Encrypt, (ii) TransArmor Token Only or (iii) TransArmor Token Registration.

14) A fee that applies to each unique conversion of: (i) a Primary Account Number to a Token or (ii) a Token to a Primary Account Number.

GeP Services Fee Visa/Mastercard (refunds, credits, returns and chargebacks are independent 

transactions)

GeP Services Fee American Express (refunds, credits, returns and chargebacks are independent 

transactions)

Terminal Reprogramming Fee - Integrated Terminal - Applies to Customer Owned Integrated 

Terminals Only     

American Express EDC and Discover EDC Authorization 
6 

American Express EDC and Discover EDC Capture

WFB1221c

6/24/2022; 8:39 AM Page 2 of 5 City of Beaumont, CA - V2 Info Only Terms

613

Item 19.



****FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY****

Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C.- ("WFMS") - Pricing Terms

City of Beaumont, CA 

Assumptions

Credit Card Volume $6,237,962

Average Transaction Size $136

Number of Locations 4

Anticipated Interchange 
11

 Levels Internet:  020   089/077/317/973

Internet:  020   089/077/317/9H4

Retail:  001   009/023/310/972

Retail:  001   009/023/310/9H3

MCC Code Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

MCC Description Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

American Express® Industry Type Services & Professional Services / Emerging Market

Discover® Network Card Program Yes

Communications Method line charges quoted separately Frame Relay / IPN

Gateway Authorize.net

Pricing Option Interchange + Assessments + Rate

Proposal Date:  06/24/2022

Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant:  Todd Reed

15)  The price for the Clover Flex and/or the Clover Mini device(s) includes a starter kit and Clover Payments software.   Client may choose a more 

advanced version of Clover software at an additional monthly fee per device and/or account, which will be assessed by Clover

directly, and will not appear on Client's WFMS statement.

17) The fees for Clover Go are charged by WFMS. Clover Hardware is not required to use Clover Go. If Client adds Clover Hardware and chooses 

to upgrade to a more advanced version of Clover software, Client will be assessed by Clover directly with an additional monthly fee per device and/or account,

which will not appear on Client's WFMS statement.

If Client has selected to accept TeleCheck Services, if applicable, the Additional Services page will contain the fees and rates billed to Client by

TeleCheck.

If Client does not follow proper authorization procedures, a $50 chargeback handling fee will be assessed on MasterCard transactions.

American Express may Chargeback without first sending an Inquiry any time a Cardmember disputes a charge for any reason other than actual

or alleged fraud. If in any three (3) consecutive months, the monthly ratio of Chargebacks (less Chargeback Reversals) to gross Charges (less

Credits) exceeds one percent (1%), then an Excessive Chargeback fee for in the amount of $25 per Chargeback will be applied after the

"excessive chargeback" threshold has been met.

If Client elects to respond to a Chargeback via fax or mail, a $10 dispute fee will be assessed for each response submitted.  Business Track Dispute

Manager and Clover Disputes are available as an online option at no additional cost.  If not already enrolled, Client can self-enroll by logging into

BusinessTrack.com and accessing Dispute Manager or logging into their Clover Dashboard and choosing Clover Disputes.

Client is responsible for any charges assessed by outside third parties that are not disclosed on the proposal.  To the extent that this pricing

proposal includes pricing for third party products and services, WFMS disclaims legal liability and responsibility for said products and

services.  Client's agreement with the third party provider shall govern Client's relationship with the third party provider.  In the event that 

WFMS is billed for the third party's services, Client will reimburse WFMS for such services.  

Client acknowledges and understands that WFMS shall have no responsibility or liability for any third party hardware or software procured and

used by Client.  To the extent Client has any issues, concerns or liability related to such hardware or software, Client must deal directly with

the third party provider from whom Client procured the hardware or software.  In no event will WFMS be responsible for any indirect, 

incidental or consequential damages that Client may incur as a result of using any third party hardware or software.

WFMS' proposal and associated pricing is based on the information provided.  Any difference to our stated understanding may affect the 

proposed pricing.  Without a signed agreement, this proposal expires 60 days from the proposal date stated above.

Rounding.  In the event the amount being billed to Client for any line item on this pricing proposal includes a total ending in less than a full cent, 

WFMS will either round such amount up or down to the nearest cent.

Fees for supplies, shipping, handling, and applicable sales tax may apply and are subject to change without notice.  Additional information is 

available upon request.

By acknowledging these Pricing Terms, Client is expressly agreeing that WFMS may share all of Client's personally identifiable information (for

example, postal and email addresses, tax identification numbers, names and social security numbers of the authorized signer on the Client's

Agreement with WFMS, account information, etc.), as well as Client's American Express transaction information (for example, all information

required by American Express evidencing charges or credits, including information obtained at the point of sale, information obtained or 

generated during authorization and settlement, and any chargeback or other fee information related to an American Express payment 

card transaction), with American Express.  American Express may use and share this information to perform its responsibilities in connection 

with the American Express payment card acceptance services that Client receives under the Client's Agreement with WFMS.  American  

Express may also use and share this information to promote the American Express Network, to perform analytics and create reports, and for

any other lawful business purpose including to call Client or send Client communications or materials via direct mail, email, SMS, text or facsimile

regarding American Express products, services and resources available to Client. Client consents and agrees to receive autodialed, automated

and/or prerecorded calls and communications (which may include SMS or text messages) at the telephone number(s) Client has provided. If

Client has provided a fax number, Client consents and agrees to receiving fax communications from American Express. In connection with

the foregoing, Client understands that the calls made or communications sent to Client by American Express may be subject to charges or fees

by Client's telecommunications or other applicable service provider that are Client's responsibility to pay.  If Client does not wish to receive

marketing or other communications from American Express, or if Client wishes to discontinue accepting American Express payment cards,

Client must contact WFMS at 1-800-451-5817 to disable Client's American Express acceptance services, and Client will no longer be  

permitted to accept American Express payment cards.
WFB1221c

6/24/2022; 8:39 AM Page 3 of 5 City of Beaumont, CA - V2 Info Only Terms

614

Item 19.



****FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY****

Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C.- ("WFMS") - Pricing Terms

City of Beaumont, CA 

Assumptions

Credit Card Volume $6,237,962

Average Transaction Size $136

Number of Locations 4

Anticipated Interchange 
11

 Levels Internet:  020   089/077/317/973

Internet:  020   089/077/317/9H4

Retail:  001   009/023/310/972

Retail:  001   009/023/310/9H3

MCC Code Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

MCC Description Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

American Express® Industry Type Services & Professional Services / Emerging Market

Discover® Network Card Program Yes

Communications Method line charges quoted separately Frame Relay / IPN

Gateway Authorize.net

Pricing Option Interchange + Assessments + Rate

Proposal Date:  06/24/2022

Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant:  Todd Reed

The Operating Rules include summaries of some of the key rules and regulations from the Card Payment Networks that merchants must 

adhere to in connection with their card acceptance practices.  For example, they describe the process for submitting card transactions for

payment, obtaining authorizations, responding to chargebacks and media retrieval requests, and other aspects of our services.  Client is
required to comply with these Operating Rules in addition to all other applicable payment network rules.  The Operating Rules also include 

additional terms and conditions applicable to Client's American Express Card Acceptance.  By accepting American Express cards

after the effective date of these Pricing Terms, Client is expressly agreeing that the terms and conditions of Client's agreement with
WFMS, including the terms and conditions of the Operating Rules, also apply to Client's American Express accceptance.  To obtain

the latest copy of the Operating Rules that includes updates from American Express, please download them from this

website: www.wellsfargo.com/operatingrules.  Client may also contact WFMS at 1-800-451-5817 to request a paper copy of the Operating Rules.

Additional Notes:

MCC Code MCC Description

9399 GOVERNMENT SERVICES, NOT ELSEWHERE

4900 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC,GAS,WATER

Terms and Conditions of WFMS - Pricing Terms:

1)   WFMS pricing as provided in its response to this RFP is based upon the information provided by City of Beaumont, CA (e.g., existing processing   

      technology, number of merchant accounts, etc.) as of the date the pricing provided in WFMS RFP response was created. In responding to this    

      RFP, WFMS only agrees to be bound to the pricing WFMS provided therein to the extent that the assumptions upon which it was based, was   

      reasonably derived in relation to the information provided by City of Beaumont, CA as of the date of the creation of that pricing, are accurate   

      and unchanged. In the event that WFMS is the successful bidder, and City of Beaumont, CA subsequently provides additional information to  

      WFMS that would affect the pricing (including pass through fees paid by City of Beaumont, CA), WFMS shall not be bound by the pricing provided

      in the RFP response and shall have the right to revise the pricing based upon the corrected information provided by City of Beaumont, CA. 

      Further, should WFMS be the successful bidder for this RFP, City of Beaumont, CA shall be required to execute a Final Pricing Terms document. 

2)   Pricing may require an re-evaluation if the annual net sales volume or average transaction size are not as expected or if you significantly alter 

      your method of doing business.

Card Type Annual Net Sales Volume Annual Net Transactions

Average 

Transaction Size

 Visa / MasterCard / Discover $6,237,962 45,965 $135.71

3)    Should any terminal require a reprogramming for credit card, non-bankcards or debit cards, the reprogramming charge is $75 per terminal and

       $150 per terminal with an integrated PIN Pad.  This price includes download and telephone training. Customer owned PIN Pads

       require encryption and are charged a security swap fee of $75 per PIN Pad.

4)    This pricing proposal assumes that City of Beaumont, CA will utilize First Data Merchant Services'  North authorization

       network and First Data Merchant Services' North settlement/reporting platform. 

5)   Should City of Beaumont, CA require development needs of unique functionalities outside of certification, 

       the City of Beaumont, CA will be billed $85 per hour of programming needed.

6)   On-site service, outside of training provided by the Account Manager, will be billed at a rate of $70 per hour. Travel related

      costs will be passed through to City of Beaumont, CA.

WFB1221c

6/24/2022; 8:39 AM Page 4 of 5 City of Beaumont, CA - V2 Info Only Terms

615

Item 19.



****FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY****

Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C.- ("WFMS") - Pricing Terms

City of Beaumont, CA 

Assumptions

Credit Card Volume $6,237,962

Average Transaction Size $136

Number of Locations 4

Anticipated Interchange 
11

 Levels Internet:  020   089/077/317/973

Internet:  020   089/077/317/9H4

Retail:  001   009/023/310/972

Retail:  001   009/023/310/9H3

MCC Code Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

MCC Description Various - Refer to "Additional Notes" Section of Pricing Terms

American Express® Industry Type Services & Professional Services / Emerging Market

Discover® Network Card Program Yes

Communications Method line charges quoted separately Frame Relay / IPN

Gateway Authorize.net

Pricing Option Interchange + Assessments + Rate

Proposal Date:  06/24/2022

Merchant Services Product Sales Consultant:  Todd Reed

Processing Solutions

Type Quantity Financing Method Total w/o TAX

Authorize.net 2 Purchase N/A

Clover® Flex 2nd Gen WiFi 
15 

5 Purchase 565.00$                 per device

Clover® Go 3rd Gen Reader 
17

5 Purchase 69.00$                   per reader

*Prices and equipment availability are subject to change without notice.  

WFB1221c

6/24/2022; 8:39 AM Page 5 of 5 City of Beaumont, CA - V2 Info Only Terms

616

Item 19.



Treasury Management Proposal

 

 CITY OF BEAUMONT Pricing as of June 2022
 WF AFP Monthly Activity
 Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price Volume Charges

 MERCHANT CARD SERVICES             
 41912 070223 PMT GATEWAY CREDIT CARD TRANS Transaction 0.10$          0 -$             
 41913 070223 PMT GATEWAY ELECTRONIC CHECK TRANS Transaction 0.15$            0 -$             

ACH Origination fees apply to eCheck Trans
 41910 070223 PMT GATEWAY MONTHLY BASIC Account 30.00$          0 -$             
 41938 070223 PMT GATEWAY SUBSCRIPTION TRANS Request 0.05$            0 -$             
 Subtotal -$             

 Total Monthly Activity Charges -$             

 Setup Charges
 41918 070223 PMT GATEWAY SET UP Account 125.00$        0 -$             
 Total Setup Charges -$             
 
 Disclosures
 We created this proposal for you based on our understanding of your requirements and the services in which you
 expressed interest. This proposal confirms the deposit and treasury management services and the pricing we plan
 to provide you based on certain assumptions including projected volumes and other relevant information
 you provided. 
  
 This document is confidential. Please do not share it without first obtaining our written permission. The services
 and pricing contained in this proposal are valid for 90 days. The pricing is subject to change if the actual volume
 or scope of services differs from the assumptions upon which we based the pricing. 
  
 Please let us know if you believe this proposal does not accurately represent the prices or services we discussed
 with you. If you have questions about the services in this proposal, please contact your Treasury Management
 Sales Consultant or visit: www.wellsfargo.com/accountanalysis for additional information about the services.
  
 Regarding your services
  
 Services with No Volumes
 Services listed with zero volume are not included in the estimated monthly analysis fee but are included in the event
 the service is used in the future.
  

 

 This message may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the addressee or authorized to
 receive this for the addressee, you must not use, copy, disclose, or take any action based on this message or any
 information herein. If you have received this message in error, please advise the sender immediately by reply 
 email and delete this message.Thank you for your cooperation.
   
 © 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Not intended for public distribution.

Customer Proposal Report 1 of 1
617

Item 19.



reproduced, distributed, or used, in whole, or in part, for any purpose other than as expressly authorized by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

 
 

April 18, 2022 

Dear Customer: 

Sunil  Seshadri  

Chief  Info rmatio n  Security Officer 

Wells  Fargo Bank, N.A. 

This letter provides an overview of the Wells Fargo Information Security Program for our commercial, government, 

institutional, and other customers. 

Information Security Risk Management Program
Wells Fargo considers the security of our customers’ data a top risk priority. We have a comprehensive, enterprise 

information security risk management program (IS Program) designed to safeguard the security and confidentiality of 
customer information globally. The IS Program is designed to: 

 Safeguard the security and confidentiality of customer information; 

 Defend against anticipated threats or hazards to the security of information; 

 Protect against unauthorized data access or use that results in substantial harm to the customer; and 

 Ensure proper disposal of customer and consumer information. 

The IS Program is designed to enhance information security governance and effective information security risk 
management. The IS Program is structured around an information security domain program that is influenced by 
prevailing industry standards and Wells Fargo experts (described below under Information Security Domains). 

Information Security Governance
The Wells Fargo Board of Directors annually approves the Wells Fargo IS Program and receives regular updates. Wells Fargo’s 

Information and Cyber Security organization (ICS) is led by the Chief Information Security Officer (CISO). ICS is responsible 

for managing information security enterprise and ensuring information security risks are managed within the company’s 
risk appetite. ICS defines and executes core front-line information security controls to protect Wells Fargo systems, 

networks, and customer data through the design, execution, and oversight of the IS Program. ICS also dedicates Business 
Information Security Officers (BISOs) to each line of business to serve as security experts and provide strategic guidance. 

All Wells Fargo organizations, employees, and contingent resources with access to Wells Fargo systems or sensitive information 
are required to adhere to Wells Fargo’s IS Program. Third parties and other non-employees with access to Wells Fargo 

systems or sensitive information are required to adhere to ISO 27001/27002 Standards on Information Security 

Management, or any successor standard (or alternate information security industry-recognized standards, e.g., 
Interagency Guidelines Establishing Information Security Standards, FFIEC IT Handbook – Information Security Booklet, 

and NIST SP-800-53 Security and Privacy Controls for Federal Information Systems and Organizations). The IS Program 
includes requirements to ensure that information and cyber security risks are effectively identified, assessed, mitigated, and 

reported throughout Wells Fargo in and outside the United States. 

 

 

 

 

© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. This document contains information that is confidential and is the property of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. The contents of this document may not be 

618

Item 19.



2 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

IS Program Standards 
The Wells Fargo IS Program consists of policies, procedures, and controls adopted from industry standards and best 
practices, including: 

 National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Cybersecurity Framework; 

 NIST 800-53 Revision 5: Security and Privacy Controls for Federal Information Systems and Organizations; 

 International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 27001:2013 standard; 

 COBIT 5; and 

 Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC) IT Handbook. 

Through its independent information security risk management oversight program, Wells Fargo Information Security Risk 
Management Oversight (ISRMO), oversees and credibly challenges ICS on its control requirements and risk posture. 

ISRMO works closely with the CISO to ensure implementation and sustainability of an effective IS Program. 

Cloud
Wells Fargo’s approach to cloud security is based on three key focus areas: 

 Cloud Control Framework: To manage risk in the cloud, we developed a cloud security strategy and defined a 

proprietary cloud security control framework based on industry authoritative sources (e.g., CSA and NIST) that 
applies to all cloud computing service models like Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS), Platform as a Service (PaaS), 

and Software as a Service (SaaS) and deployment types, such as private, public, and hybrid. The framework is 
continuously refined to adapt to evolving threats and emerging regulations. Cloud service providers are required 

to adhere to the Wells Fargo cloud security control framework. 

 Control Implementation: In alignment with the cloud security control framework, we deploy cloud security 

controls and enable consistent security configuration of cloud platforms and applications. 
 Continuous Monitoring: Repeatable and scalable processes monitor cloud security control requirements and 

effectiveness across the cloud computing environment, leveraging automated capabilities wherever possible. 

Information Security Domains
The IS Program is organized around asset domains (what we protect) and process domains (how we protect). Itis designed 

to improve transparency, accountability, and consistency across the enterprise. The information security domains support 
existing information security risk management governance and are managed by domain owners who report to the CISO.

 

The information security domain model supports information security governance, transparency, and consistency across 
Wells Fargo’s global enterprise. The nine domains are: 

Asset Domains Process Domains 

Application Information Security Cyber Defense Management 

Information Protection Identity and Access Management 

Infrastructure Information Security Information Security Risk Management 

Workforce Accountability Third Party Information Security Management

Vulnerability Management 

Each domain is described below. 

619

Item 19.



3 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

Application Information Security 
The Application Information Security Domain provides an enterprise-wide set of policies, standards, controls, processes, 

and education necessary to reduce vulnerabilities that can be introduced through the software development lifecycle in 
Wells Fargo business applications. Effective Application Security reduces the risk that the company will have a material 

security breach or other significant impact resulting from our application portfolio.

Application security standards are a set of control requirements that must be met within the software development life 

cycle. From development, design, pre-production security (final) reviews before implementing or deploying the application 
within the Wells Fargo environment, through ongoing security monitoring, to final retirement. Application security 

controls are provided through security practices and capabilities, enabling these requirements to be met and validated as 
part of the lifecycle. A governance function provides oversight and assurance to validate that the controls remain effective. 

The Application Information Security domain has developed secure software development requirements, which have been 
integrated into the Enterprise Software Development Lifecycle (SDLC). These requirements reduce application security 

defects before source code is promoted to production, including mobile software. As part of this domain, Wells Fargo 

Technology teams must complete specified application security practices in each phase of the enterprise software 
development lifecycle whenever code changes are introduced and, in the absence of code changes, at least once every 12 

months. In each phase of the SDLC, standards and tools highlight the required application security activities. Completion 

of application security practices is supported by a comprehensive project methodology from trained project management 
staff and validated through pre-production security and compliance reviews. 

Information Protection
The Information Protection domain provides high quality, stable, and scalable security solutions that enable Wells Fargo to 

deploy secure products and services to our customers and across the company. These security solutions include network 

security services that provide policies, perimeter controls, and network security compliance support; security 
authentication and access for privileged access, high-risk transactions, and remote access; endpoint security and server 

infrastructure management, distributed platform management; and content filtering and relationship management for 
infrastructure critical security controls. 

The Information Protection domain includes policies and controls related to Wells Fargo’s global operations, which are 
supported by employees and third parties (collectively “Personnel”) located in the United States and a number of other 

countries. The IS Program includes policies to appropriately protect and control access to customer information and 

related data at all of Wells Fargo international operations, and limits access to customer information and related data to
Personnel with an approved business need to know. 

The Information Protection domain includes data protection management policies andprocedures thatreduce the risk to Wells 
Fargo from incidents related to information theft, loss, or disclosure. Hard-drive encryption is required by policy and 

implemented on all laptops and desktops. Email encryption is required by policy and implemented for all restricted data and 

confidential data sent via email externally. Corporate workstations and laptops disable by default the ability to read or 
write from a USB port, unless approved through an exception process that requires use of an approved device. 

Data classification, Cryptography, Data Loss Prevention (DLP), and media handling are key components of information 

protection management and are discussed below. 

620

Item 19.



4 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

Classification 
Information protection policy requires data classification (i.e., public, internal use, confidential, restricted) and controls 

based on data type. Approved controls (at a minimum, encryption or tokenization) are required for confidential 
information transmissions over any non-Wells Fargo network; storage on workstations, portable digital storage media, and 

backup tapes; and storage on servers, storage devices, and externally hosted services. 

Cryptography 
Cryptographic algorithms, key lengths, and solutions must be approved by Information Security Architecture and 
Information Protection Engineering and follow the latest American National Standards Institute (ANSI), ASC X9, 

International Organization for Standardization (ISO), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and United States National Institute of 

Standards and Technology (NIST) standards. There is an established cryptographic key management process to manage, 
exchange, and distribute keys within Wells Fargo or with third-party vendors. Encryption keys are rotated according to 

established timeframes based upon Key Management Lifecycle (KML) requirements.

Data Loss Prevention
The Data Loss Prevention (DLP) Program focuses on monitoring data in motion, data in use, and data at rest, in order to 
reduce the risk of accidental or malicious transmission of certain sensitive information, including credit card numbers, 

various types of account numbers, and select personal information data elements. The DLP applications alert and 

conditionally block data transfers when policy violations are detected. DLP controls have been deployed for monitoring 
and content-sensitive blocking of outbound email, web posts (HTTP, HTTPS), and content saved to removable media. 

Certain data-at-rest environments are scanned for unsecured files containing sensitive data. 

Media Handling 
Wells Fargo is responsible for information in its possession on all types of media. We have establishedstandards to govern 

handling of information media containing personal, financial, and other sensitivedata. 

In addition, Wells Fargo has taken additional precautions during the COVID-19 pandemic to protect our customer and 

related data, infrastructure and systems due to the increase in the number of our global Personnel working remotely. 

Infrastructure Information Security 
The Infrastructure Information Security domain provides the controls, processes, and education necessary to reduce 

vulnerabilities that can be introduced through technology solutions deployed within the Wells Fargo infrastructure and 
used by company personnel. Effective security infrastructure management reduces the risk that Wells Fargo will have a 

material security breach or other significant impact from the computing infrastructure. 

Malware and Mobile Code Protection 
Malware protection and anti-virus controls are distinct components of Wells Fargo’s IS Program standards. The standards 

require the installation, use, and maintenance of anti-virus and anti-malware software to detect malicious code on 
hardware, software, networks, and/or mobile devices. Testing and employment of the software is required, and virus 

definitions are updated as they become available. It is Wells Fargo’s practice to perform anti-virus scanning at predefined 

intervals. In addition, corporate practices prescribe requirements for malicious code protection and provide instructions 
that prohibit the introduction of any computer code designed to self-replicate, damage, or otherwise hinder the 

performance of, or access to corporate information resources. The malicious code protection controls include 

consequences for violating these prohibitions. 

Network Architecture and Security Monitoring 
The Wells Fargo network security architecture is reviewed and approved by the Wells Fargo Architecture Review Board. 

Device types connecting to the Wells Fargo Network are also reviewed by the Architecture Review Board. The company has 

621

Item 19.



5 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

a compliance policy and continuously scans network devices for compliance and vulnerabilities. Results are provided to the 

relevant authority for remediation based on risk and severity. 

Changes to our production systems must adhere to the corporate change control management process. Proposed 
environment changes are reviewed to ensure compliance with standards and approved by management prior to execution. 

Validation is performed when change activity is executed. System level updates (such as security updates, software upgrades, 

and so forth) are reviewed and periodically applied as appropriate. 

Wells Fargo has a mature, risk-based security monitoring program that functions as part of a larger defense-in-depth model. 

This program uses guidance from many industry best practices (e.g., SANS, OWASP) to ensure high-risk vulnerabilities are 
identified. As a part of the program, both automated and manual testing is conducted at least annually, depending on scope 

and risk. 

The monitoring program includes:

 Vulnerability scanning, web application testing, and penetration testing; 

 Examining routing tables, validating all registered and internal IP addresses; 

 The use of commercial, non-commercial, and internally developed scanning tools; 

 Scans originating from both the internet and from within the internal network; and 

 A defined process for remediating findings and retesting based on risk and management directives. 

Physical and Environmental Security 
Wells Fargo has a Physical Security Policy that defines the necessary physical access control systems, exterior security 

controls, camera surveillance, mantraps, security guards, physical security, and environmental controls. In addition, our 
Physical Security Policy outlines how the company ensures the safety and security of Wells Fargo employees and the data 

center computer operations. 

Wells Fargo data centers are unmarked, non-descript facilities that are located in geographically dispersed locations 
throughout the United States. They are located in single-tenant facilities that are owned and operated by the company. 
Physical security controls are regularly tested to ensure they are functioning properly. 

 

Workforce Accountability
Wells Fargo employs controls and processes to ensure employees, contingent resources, and third-party service providers 

are aware of and able to execute information security responsibilities. 

Personnel Training 
All employees and non-employees with access to Wells Fargo’s systems or customer and consumer information must take 

annual training relating to information protection. Enterprise training, policies, and information handling standards 
continue to be updated to provide employees the information they need to understand their role in protecting customer 

and consumer information. In addition, employee and non-employee background checks are performed prior to 

onboarding and hiring. Background check contract requirements and oversight are also in place for all third-party service 
providers that handle Wells Fargo’s customer information. 

 

Cyber Defense Management
The Cyber Defense Management domain is led by the Cyber Security Defense & Monitoring (CSD&M) team within ICS. By 

monitoring, analyzing, and assessing the threat landscape this team leads enterprise efforts to reduce Wells Fargo’s 

exposure to cyber-attacks and track adversary activity data. CSD&M is responsible for reducing exposure to cyberattacks 

through 24/7/365 monitoring of several key information and cyber security control areas including: 

622

Item 19.



6 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

 Cyber Threat Fusion Center (CTFC) 

 Security Content Development (SCD) 

 Threat Detection Services (TDS) 

 Cyber Threat Management (CTM) 

 Threat intelligence 

 Adversarial simulation 

 Cyber resiliency 

 Data, analytics and reporting 

o Vulnerability reporting 

o Patch management reporting 

o Security configuration reporting 

CSD&M often uses various evaluation tools to periodically measure how well cybersecurity risk management practices 

are integrated into the company’s overall risk management practices. 

Cyber Security Incident Management and Response 
Wells Fargo has a comprehensive process in place to detect and report security breaches, loss of equipment that contains 

customer information, loss of files, and unauthorized access to our networks. The company reports actual and reasonably 

possible information and cyber security and/or privacy breaches when required to appropriate regulatory bodies, including 
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC), Federal Reserve Board (FRB), and Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation (FDIC), along with notification to the impacted customers and state regulatory authorities. 

There is an established incident management program that has been approved by management, shared with appropriate 

constituents, and assigned an owner to maintain and review the program. The incident management program includes an 
incident response plan and guidance for escalations, procedures to collect and maintain a chain of custody for evidence 

during incident investigation, and a feedback process to ensure those reporting information security events are notified of 

the results after the issue has been addressed and closed. The program also contains actions to be taken in the event of an 
information security incident, a formal disciplinary process for dealing with those employees or contingent workers who 

commit a security breach, and a process for assessing and executing customer and third-party legal, regulatory and 

contractual notification requirements. Events relevant to supporting incident investigations are also regularly reviewed 
using a specific methodology to uncover gaps and areas of improvement. 

Vulnerability Management 
The Vulnerability Management domain identifies, communicates, and mitigates vulnerabilities that can be exploited to 
compromise Wells Fargo’s technology assets. Vulnerability detection tools and techniques, including penetration testing 

and vulnerability scanning, are required for Wells Fargo-owned and managed systems, as well as for third-party service 

provider infrastructure and products, in order to identify system security vulnerabilities. Vulnerability Management 
primarily focuses on promptly and accurately identifying and accessing vulnerabilities using best-in-class methodologies, 

tools, industry expertise, and the following practices: 

 Mature and continually improve scanning coverage and build automation; 

 Monitor and report on remediation timelines to show adherence to policy; 

 Mature reporting and metrics measure risk associated to detected vulnerabilities; 

 Execute an industry-leading offensive security program; and 
 Continually mature our capabilities to assess risk within Wells Fargo through mature asset discovery, scanning, and 

correlation of near real-time cyber threat intelligence. 

623

Item 19.



7 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

Identity and Access Management 
The Identity and Access Management (IAM) domain is an ongoing practice to ensure the right access is granted to the 

right individuals while restricting access and reducing risk to sensitive enterprise systems, assets, and information. This is 
accomplished through five key controls: provisioning, de-provisioning, certifications, authorization, and authentication. 

The type and extent of logical access controls to the Wells Fargo network and systems are determined by risk criteria. 

Corporate standards prohibit access without a strict business need-to-know. The company issues unique user 

identifications (user IDs) for access to networks and systems, which do not contain confidential or identifying 
information. Wells Fargo standards prohibit the sharing of user IDs. 

To the extent possible, centralized IAM technologies are utilized to grant access rights based upon the user role and need 

to access certain systems, applications, and data. User access rights are regularly reviewed through validation of continued 
business need. Passwords use non-display or masked fields for entry. Standards are in place to establish password 

complexity, change timeframes, and reuse criteria. All passwords are required to be encrypted. Multi-factor authentication is 
used as appropriate throughout the enterprise to further strengthen access controls and in compliance with regulations for high- 

risk transactions and asset access. 

 

Network systems use an approved logon banner with appropriate prompts. System logon failures display a generic error 
message without specific reference to the error. System access and activity logs are reviewed for evidence of unauthorized 
activities and password violations. 

Privileged Access Program 
As part of IAM, the Privileged Access Program provides strategic leadership and execution for managing privileged access 

on enterprise-wide platforms and applications. This program provides oversight and governance concerning privileged 
access, including metrics and reporting, to ensure that privileged access across Wells Fargo is managed to the appropriate 

level of risk. 

Information Security Risk Management
Wells Fargo is committed to protecting customer, employee and company information by managing information security 
risks that are prevalent in nearly every aspect of the company’s business. Wells Fargo meets this commitment through the 

Information Security Risk Management (ISRM) domain which includes well-defined information security risk management 

processes, controls, procedures, and tools. 

The ISRM domain provides the day-to-day risk management and governance necessary to strengthen information 

security risk management at Wells Fargo by: 

 Providing timely risk intelligence to individuals who own, manage and report on information security risk; 
 Promoting informed business decisions through earlier engagement and a more complete risk profile and the 

enterprise, line of business, and asset levels; and 
 Providing information security risk assessments for all information assets and reporting on the results of security 

measures of performance. 

Information owners must create a detailed adherence plan for any system or application that is not in compliance with 

information security policies and control requirements, and they must use the Information Security Policy Exception 
Management process to track non-adherence. 

624

Item 19.



8 Wells Fargo Information Security Overview Letter 

Third Party Information Security Risk Management 
Wells Fargo has an established Third Party Risk Management Program. The program reviews and evaluates third parties 

prior to engagement and throughout the third-party relationship using risk assessments conducted at intervals driven by 
the services provided. 

Third parties and their employees are required to adhere to ISO 27001/27002 Standards on Information Security 
Management, or any successor standard (or alternate information security industry-recognized standards, e.g., 

Interagency Guidelines Establishing Information Security Standards, FFIEC IT Handbook – Information Security Booklet, 

and NIST SP-800-53 Security and Privacy Controls for Federal Information Systems and Organizations).These standards 
also apply to all Wells Fargo non-employees located outside of the United States who have access to company and 

consumer information for purposes of delivering services to or on behalf of the company. As part of this compliance 
obligation, contracts are in place with each third party that include the appropriate confidentiality language, non-disclosure 

agreements, and information security provisions. 

Thank you for using or considering Wells Fargo to support your business and helping achieve your goals. 

Sincerely, 

 
Sunil Seshadri
Chief Information Security Officer 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

This document provides an overview of Wells Fargo’s IS Program as of the date of publication and is provided as a non- 

binding description of the program. This description does not modify, amend, or supplement any agreement, warranty or 
representation unless expressly stated. Wells Fargo may modify or replace the IS Program and related domains, policies, or 

procedures described here, without providing notice, where such modifications do materially alter the protections to your 
information. The only information-security terms, obligations, or commitments binding Wells Fargo will be in an 

agreement in which an authorized representative signed on behalf of Wells Fargo as a party. 

625

Item 19.



 

© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. 

Business Continuity Planning 
 

Overview for Wells Fargo Clients and Business Partners 

  

626

Item 19.



 

2 Business Continuity Planning – Overview for Wells Fargo Clients and Business Partners 

Wells Fargo is committed to service excellence.   A strong and viable business continuity planning program is a key 

component of Wells Fargo’s commitment to service and is part of our normal, ongoing business practice.   

Business continuity entails proactively developing procedures that enable an organization to respond to events impacting 

business operations in a manner that allows critical functions to continue without customer impact. 

The material presented below provides an overview of the approach endorsed by Wells Fargo’s management and adopted 

throughout the enterprise. 

 

Business Continuity Methodology 

 

The objective of business continuity planning at Wells Fargo is to provide continuous service, and to meet business and 

legal obligations to customers.  Business continuity plans are created and maintained for business and technology areas 

within each line of business.  These plans are designed to safeguard and protect team members, customers, cash flow and 

long-term market share in the event of an unplanned interruption to lines of business.  Standard elements of the Wells 

Fargo business continuity program include: 

 

• Procedures for communication with customers, suppliers, and essential staff 

• Prioritization of business functions and technology 

• Identification of potential risks and controls for mitigation 

• Identification of alternate strategies and recovery procedures 

• Training staff on implementation of recovery procedures 

• Recovery of technology and data 

• Identification of internal and external dependencies 

• Annual plan review, maintenance and testing 

 

Wells Fargo understands that it has a responsibility to prepare for any type of disruption, and is committed to meeting the 

needs of our customers, while being supportive of our employees.  As interruptions may vary in nature and scope, Wells 

Fargo plans for the following high-level scenarios: 

 

• Loss of Technology (e.g., data center impacts, telecommunications failures, cyber response, etc.) 

• Loss of Facility (e.g., building fire, flooding, etc.)  

• Pandemic Loss/Reduction of Human Capital (e.g., pandemic, transit strikes, etc.) 

• Loss of Third Party Service Provider 

 

In order to maintain readiness of business continuity plans, Wells Fargo has established the following requirements for 

both business and technology: 

 
• Business continuity plan units identify inherent risks, taking into account the probability and impact of those risks, 

and document the associated risk-mitigation controls within the plan.   

• Each group is required to store a copy of their plan off-site.  Additionally, all plans across the organization are 

stored in a centralized electronic repository managed by the Enterprise Business Continuity Planning Group. 

• Each group is required to perform exercise and maintenance tasks throughout the year. 

• Business continuity plans containing critical functions are validated via simulations at least annually.  Plans 

containing critical functions may also be reviewed during regularly-scheduled internal and external audits. 

• Wells Fargo ensures key third party providers align with and support Wells Fargo business continuity recovery 

requirements. 

 

An independent review of business continuity plans containing critical functions is conducted annually by the Enterprise 

Business Continuity Planning Group.  This review examines plan content to ensure compliance with current requirements 

established by the Enterprise Business Continuity Planning Group. 

627

Item 19.



 

3 Business Continuity Planning – Overview for Wells Fargo Clients and Business Partners 

 

Technology Planning Methodology 

 

Wells Fargo provides for internal recovery of its major data centers.  It is Wells Fargo’s strategy to place production within 

primary data centers, while technology recovery and development should be located at other data center sites.  Wells 

Fargo’s strategy is to maintain sufficient equipment at a recovery location to enable critical processing to be restored in a 

minimal amount of time.  For applications supporting critical functions, in order to facilitate a quicker recovery, as 

production data changes, corresponding data may also be updated at the recovery site. 

 

Steps are taken to mitigate the impacts of threats to all major processing centers through redundant systems or other 

protective measures.  In spite of the preventative measures, if a disaster should occur, plans are in place to restore 

processing as quickly as possible. 

 
• A common approach and methodology has been implemented for the recovery of Wells Fargo data centers. 

• Network Services between all store locations and the data centers can be restored utilizing automated rerouting 

technology.  This rerouting capability is tested on a regular basis. 

• Wells Fargo’s comprehensive business continuity planning program includes the maintenance of documentation 

associated with technology recovery into the overall business continuity plans within each line of business.  

Completeness of plans that support applications for critical function is verified during annual internal reviews, 

regular audits, and various testing during technology recovery exercises throughout the year. 

 
Risk Avoidance 

 
Wells Fargo has implemented many features designed to mitigate the effects should a business interruption occur.  These 

features are continually under review and upgraded as necessary to ensure they are accurate to support the changing 

enterprise environment and needs. 

 
Features include: 

 

• Physical Access Controls – Data centers, operations centers, and many sensitive business units have implemented 

card access to control physical access to work areas.  In addition, data centers and operational centers have 

security personnel on site. 

• Logical Access Controls – Wells Fargo utilizes software on all computing platforms to appropriately restrict access 

to data and transactions to authorized persons only. 

• Virus Protection - Virus protection software has been installed on all workstations, laptops, servers and local area 

networks. 

• Network Access Controls – Network access controls have been established in the form of a gateway between 

Wells Fargo’s internal network and the public sector.  A firewall is in place between the public segment and Wells 

Fargo’s internal network to restrict unauthorized access.  All access to the Wells Fargo internal network is designed 

to pass through the firewall component. 

• Alternate Power Sources – Wells Fargo’s data centers and major operations centers have uninterruptible power 

supply (UPS) devices to provide short-term, uninterrupted power to critical hardware; and diesel generators 

provide long-term power.  These devices are automatically triggered so that a loss of commercial power will not 

shut down the facility.  The generators are tested on a regular basis. 

  

628

Item 19.



 

4 Business Continuity Planning – Overview for Wells Fargo Clients and Business Partners 

Summary 

 
Wells Fargo takes seriously its obligation to use all financially reasonable means to assure business continuity for the 

company and its customers.  However, the forgoing does not constitute a representation or warranty that certain events 

will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that Wells Fargo will achieve specific recovery times in the event of a disruption.  

This document is intended only to provide an overview of the business continuity planning process at Wells Fargo, and 

nothing in this document modifies, amends or supplements any agreement or other warranty or representation with 

respect to Wells Fargo products or services, including the availability of such products or services.  Wells Fargo may change 

procedures and protections described in this document, without providing notice, as it deems appropriate.   

 

For further information, please contact your Wells Fargo Representative. 

 
 

629

Item 19.



© 2021 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved. 

Deposit products are offered through Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is a banking affiliate of Wells Fargo & Company.   

TM-0530– 06/2021 

Treasury
Management

Business continuity 

and resiliency 

Business continuity and resiliency

Recent history shows us that having a solid business continuity plan in place, no matter the cause of the disruption, 

can be critical to business success. Wells Fargo seeks to manage this risk in accordance with our Business Resiliency 

and Disaster Recovery Risk Management policy and business procedures to achieve business goals and comply  

with laws, rules, regulations, and regulatory guidance to protect our customers and ourselves. 

We have formal teams dedicated to managing disruptions to our services. Our Enterprise Business Continuity Resiliency 

Planning office sets the standards for our organization. Each business, in conjunction with operational risk management 

partners, helps ensure preparedness and compliance at the organizational levels. 

Standard elements of our business continuity and resiliency programs include: 

 Annual plan review, testing, and maintenance 

 Identification of alternate strategies and recovery procedures

Identification of internal and external dependencies

Identification of potential risks and controls for mitigation

 Prioritization of business functions and technology 

Procedures for communication with customers, suppliers, and essential staff

 Recovery of technology and data 

630

Item 19.



General program elements for our enterprise

Testing recoverability

We update and test our recovery procedures regularly, with the 

frequency and timing varying by business function or application.  

We exercise essential business recovery procedures and systems 

at least annually. 

Teams on call 24 hours a day, 

seven days a week, ready to 

respond to a disruption. 

Critical functions
After a disruption, we prioritize restoring and maintaining normal service levels for our critical functions. We have teams 

on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week, ready to respond disruptions. 

Components of our recovery plans vary based on the potential business disruption, such as a loss of facility, loss of 

technology, or significant reduction to our staff. We identify the main areas most commonly affected, and provide 

our general approach to each. 

We’ve dispersed our data and operation centers strategically across multiple locations to minimize potential disruption 

within a specific geographic region. 

Data centers

We engage our technology teams quickly when we detect a disruption at a primary data center. Our technology teams 

assess the situation and determine next steps based on the nature of the disruption. If we need to shift processing to an 

alternate data center, we can because we maintain redundant platforms for our business critical services. All alternate sites 

have sufficient capacity to maintain processing for an extended period.

In most situations, we can restore service at a primary data center for critical services within 12 hours.*

*This 0-12 hour goal does not guarantee that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that we will achieve specific recovery times in the event 

of a disruption. 

Operation centers 

If a disruption occurs at one of our primary operation centers, we use an identified backup site to take over day-to-day 

processing and support. We use our backup site until the primary site returns to normal conditions. 

Program elements specific to treasury management
In addition to our enterprise program elements, we’ve incorporated the following elements into our business continuity 

resiliency plans for our treasury management services.

Communication 

Notification methods to inform you of a service disruption include:

Phone calls or emails from your client service officer 

Recorded messages from our Customer Care for Businesses (CC4B) Service Office advising you about system issues 

when you contact us though our toll-free number 

System status alerts displayed on the homepage of our online banking portal 

The method we use to communicate with you depends on the nature of a disruption.

631

Item 19.



If a disruption prevents you from accessing your information, your relationship team or client service officer can help. 

They have access to bank systems and can provide the account information, balances, and other data you need to  

continue operating.

Backup strategies for online channels 

Online banking portal

If the online banking portal experiences a disruption, we use our backup environment as needed. We maintain a duplicate 

environment of our online banking portal in a separate location. We monitor the readiness of the alternate site actively by 

using it to deploy code enhancements and enact disaster preparedness simulations. 

Mobile service

We have a backup environment for our mobile platform* in the event of a system outage. Our mobile service and online 

banking portal channels use different web addresses and user interfaces. This arrangement means that, depending on the 

nature and root cause of an outage, users may be able to access services through the mobile service if our online banking 

portal experiences a disruption.

Additionally, our mobile token feature allows users to use their mobile devices in place of physical tokens to access secure 

services. This access can be helpful in instances when a disaster event separates users from their physical tokens. 

* Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile® app available for your device from the Apple App Store® or Google Play™ store. 

Backup strategies for core services 

ACH 

When we invoke our ACH recovery plan, processing diverts to a backup site. We can recover with minimal down time because 

we run ACH production simultaneously at our primary data center and at our backup sites.* 

The diverse geographic locations of our processing centers help to minimize potential disruption. However, the severity or 

nature of a specific event may require use of manual backup procedures.

As a contingency step, we recommend that you establish an alternate method of initiating payments, such as our online ACH 

payments service,† to upload files or manually key in payment information. 

* Running simultaneous ACH production does not guaranty that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that we will achieve specific recovery 

times in the event of a disruption. 

† You will need to enroll in the CEO® ACH Payments service separately from the direct origination service and plan for implementation prior to an 

emergency.

ACH Fraud Filter 

Business disruptions can create opportunities for fraud. It’s important that during a disruption you can continue to view 

details and make decisions on your ACH transactions. You can access our ACH Fraud Filter service online or through our 

mobile service. Alternatively, you can obtain ACH information by calling our CC4B Service Office or your client service officer.

Lockbox 

If we invoke our business continuity resiliency plan, lockbox processing at the affected site diverts to a backup site, as 

needed. The specific location of the backup site will depend on the impact of the disruption. Alternative processing may 

include diverting mail delivery from the affected primary site to the backup site.* In such a case, after we receive mail at the 

backup site, we follow customer-specific instructions to process checks, capture accounts receivable data, and image checks 

and invoices. We notify customers and couriers (as appropriate) about their impacted processing site or procedures. 

* Depending on the severity of a disaster, delayed mail delivery may affect processing time, which could impact normal service level agreements. 

632

Item 19.



Cash vault

If a primary cash vault site is unable to accept, deliver, or process cash, we divert functions to an identified backup site, as 

needed. The transportation distance between you and the backup site may delay receipt or delivery of cash. If such an event 

occurs, we take reasonable action to resume our normal cash delivery service levels as soon as possible, given available 

transportation options.

Wires

When we invoke our business continuity resiliency plan, processing diverts to a backup site. Each backup site has the ability to 

accept transferred wire processing workloads, including wires initiated by telephone.

We maintain redundant connections to two different Federal Reserve Banks, which minimizes potential disruption within a 

geographic region. We conduct comprehensive joint testing with the Federal Reserve Bank on a quarterly basis.

You can also enroll in a backup wire transfer channel. For example, you can choose from telephone-initiated wires or our 

mobile service to access select functions of our wire transfer service.*

* You will need to enroll in backup wire services separately and plan for implementation prior to an emergency.

Check outsourcing

Our facilities, employees, and business functions are geographically disbursed, and if one site is unable to function, we move 

check printing to our other site. The sites mirror each other and operate in the same way, making it easy to transition print 

jobs from one site to another.

Foreign exchange online 

If you are unable to complete a foreign exchange transaction through our online banking portal, you can call or email your 

foreign exchange specialist for help to complete your transaction. 

Account reconciliation plans and positive pay 

If you're unable to access our online banking portal or send files using data transmission because of a business interruption, 

you can key small-volume issues, cancellations, and voids through our mobile service.* 

* You do not need to enroll in the mobile service in advance of a disruption. Download the latest version of the CEO Mobile® app available for your device 

from the Apple App Store® or Google Play™ store. 

Remote deposit

We automatically store checks that you scan through our remote deposit service on our servers. If a power outage or other 

disruption prevents you from completing a deposit, it remains in a pending deposit status. It remains in this status until you 

can access the system again. You’ll have the opportunity to review the deposit before submission to the bank, which helps 

ensure the inclusion of all your checks. As a backup, you can make deposits using our mobile deposit service* or take your 

deposit to a Wells Fargo branch. 

* You do not need to enroll in the mobile service in advance of a disruption. Supported devices include iPhone, iPad, and Android. Download the latest 

version of the CEO Mobile® app available for your device from the Apple App Store® or Google Play™ store. 

Transmission service

We have a backup environment for our browser-based transmissions service. It includes an alternate website in case our 

online banking portal is unavailable. As a best practice, we recommend that customers leverage URLs if using automation 

scripts and not IP addresses, which are subject to change. 

633

Item 19.



Commercial card

Our business continuity resiliency plan includes contingency planning and routine data backups. We are on call 24 hours a 

day, seven days a week during incident response. In most situations, restoration of commercial card processing can occur 

within 12 to 24 hours, and restoration of our expense management service can occur within four hours of disaster 

declaration.*

* The forgoing does not constitute a representation or warranty that certain events will not affect Wells Fargo systems or that Wells Fargo will achieve 

specific recovery times in the event of a disruption.

Third party providers 

We use third-party service providers and contractors to support a variety of functions. We evaluate each of them prior 

to the execution of a contract for services, and beyond. Our evaluation uses a risk-based approach to assess providers  

as we review, select, and monitor their performance.

Our Vendor Management Program conducts service provider validation and joint testing of our essential providers.  

It includes an assessment of the service provider’s ability to meet our disaster recovery standards for service level 

agreements and recovery time objectives.

Keeping current
To keep current with changes in the business continuity resiliency and disaster recovery industry, we’re active in forums that 

discuss and share best practices. 

The forums include: 

 Disaster Recovery 

Institute 

International 

 Financial Industry 

Regulatory 

Authority 

Global Financial 

Markets 

Association 

 The Institute of 

International 

Finance 

634

Item 19.



Merchant Services

Wells Fargo’s point-of-sale solutions 
Take payments with ease – at the counter, curbside or on the go

Choose the equipment that’s right for your business  

We offer a full range of point-of-sale options to meet your 
individual business needs – from a simple solution you can pair  
with your mobile device to a comprehensive, full-service payment 
processing and business system for your countertop.

Offer your customers more ways to pay  

Increase sales by giving your customers more ways to pay, 
including contactless and digital wallet payment options like  
Apple Pay® and Google Pay™. 

Help protect your transactions  

Help safeguard your customers’ card data with the latest security 
technology – including end-to-end encryption and tokenization.  
All solutions are PCI PTS certified.

Access convenient technology  

Minimal equipment setup needed so you can get started taking 
payments without delay. And all options are convenient for 
business owners, employees, and customers to use.

Additional features  

• Real-time access to transaction activity, and custom reports  
to identify trends and opportunities.

• Choose from a variety of features such as touch screen,  
large batch capacity, wired, or Wi-Fi connectivity.

• Some point-of-sale solutions have optional apps available to 
help you manage your business. 

Use your current payment devices 
We’ll help you transfer your current system to minimize 
disruptions and avoid the additional expense of new 
hardware. If your device is not eligible for transfer, we  
can recommend an alternate solution.  

View our options for point-of-sale systems to find the solution 
that’s right for your business. 

Point-of-sale devices and accessories are subject to availability.

To learn more, contact your Merchant Services 
specialist. 

You may settle your Merchant Services funds to an account at the financial institution of your preference. When you use a Wells Fargo account for settlement or other Merchant Services purposes, you must use a Wells Fargo business deposit account.  
Deposit products offered by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Member FDIC.
Merchant Services are provided by Wells Fargo Merchant Services L.L.C. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Merchant Services are not deposit products. Wells Fargo Merchant Services L.L.C. does not offer deposit products and its services are not guaranteed or insured by the FDIC or any other governmental agency.
Apple, the Apple logo, Apple Pay, Apple Watch, Face ID, iPad, iPad Pro, iPhone, iTunes, Mac, Safari, and Touch ID are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. Apple Wallet is a trademark of Apple Inc. The App Store is a service mark of Apple Inc.   

© 2021 Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. All rights reserved.    WFMS-462  (12/2021)

635

Item 19.



Accept payments with a terminal that’s as adaptable as your business – from a flexible portable device  
to a compact countertop solution

Point-of-sale devices 
and accessories are 
subject to availability

FD150 RP10 PIN pad  
(to use with FD150) Verifone V400c Plus Verifone P200 PIN pad  

(to use with Verifone V400c Plus) Verifone V400m

Designed for

• Retail, restaurant, quick service, 
petroleum, and mail order/phone order

• Multi-merchant (supports up to 99 
merchants in same location)

• Businesses that want to settle batches 
multiple times in a day 

• Restaurants, retail, and personal service 
businesses that want a customer facing 
option for chip card insertion and PIN 
entry

 • RP10 PIN pad must be connected to  
the FD150

• Retail, restaurant, quick service, and 
mail order/phone order

• Businesses that want a compact 
countertop device

• Restaurants, retail, and personal  
service businesses that want a 
customer facing option for chip card 
insertion and PIN entry 

 • Verifone P200 PIN pad must be 
connected to the Verifone V400c Plus

• Retail, restaurant, and quick service 
• Businesses that want a compact  

mobile device

Device  
features

• Dial , wired internet or Wi-Fi 
connectivity 

• Combination terminal, PIN pad, chip 
card reader, contactless card, and 
mobile payment reader

• Allows tax prompting on Visa and 
Mastercard commercial cards

• Supports RP10 external PIN pad 
(optional)

• Large batch capacity (450 transactions)
• Software updates every 30 days 
• Supports industry-specific transaction 

information for auto rental and lodging 
businesses

• Combination PIN pad, chip card reader, 
contactless card, and mobile payment 
reader 

• Interactive payment process and 
ergonomic keypad, with visual display 
prompts and lights, and audio cues 

• Wired Internet or 2.4GHz/5GHz Wi-Fi 
internet connectivity 

• Combination terminal, PIN pad, chip 
card reader, contactless card, and 
mobile payment reader

• Can accept payments when device is 
offline using store & forward feature  

• Allows for tax prompting on Visa and 
Mastercard commercial cards

• Supports Verifone P200 PIN pad 
(optional)

• Supports Spanish language terminal 
prompting and receipt text

• Software updates daily

• Combination PIN pad, chip card reader, 
contactless card, and mobile payment 
reader

• Interactive payment process and 
ergonomic keypad, with visual display 
prompts and lights, and audio cues 

• 4G LTE AT&T Wireless Network 
functionality  

• Supports 2.4GHz/5GHz Wi-Fi 
connectivity 

• Combination terminal, PIN pad, chip 
card reader, contactless card, and 
mobile payment reader

• Can accept payments when device is 
offline using store & forward feature  

• Allows for tax prompting on Visa and 
Mastercard commercial cards

• Supports Spanish language terminal 
prompting and receipt text

• Software updates daily

Security  
features

• PCI PTS approved. Version 5.x  
• Transport Layer Security (TLS) 

encryption
• Password protection
• Retail Address Verification Service

• PCI PTS approved. Version 5.x • PCI PTS approved. Version 5.x
• Transport Layer Security (TLS) 

encryption
• Password protection
• Retail Address Verification Service

• PCI PTS approved. Version 5.x • PCI PTS approved. Version 5.x
• Transport Layer Security (TLS) 

encryption
• Password protection
• Retail Address Verification Service

Hardware size • 3.50” H x 3.70” W x 7.87” L • 2.32” H x 2.87” W x 5.27” L • 2.76” H x 3.15” W x 7.48” L • 1.73” H x 3.15” W x 6.57” L • 1.00” H x 2.98” W x 6.33” L

Display screen • Touch-screen capability with  
320 x 240 color display

• 2.4” 320 x 480 full color TFT display • 3.5” Touch Screen capability with  
320 x 480 color display

• 2.8” color screen • 3.5” Touch Screen capability with  
320 x 480 color display 

Printer Yes – 18 lines per second No Yes – 30 lines per second No Yes – 30 lines per second  

1. Dial connection requires an analog phone line.  
2. Offline payments, or store & forward capability allows merchants to take transactions, even when their device is not connected to the Internet. Offline payments, or store & forward capability allows authorizations to be attempted later when the device’s connection has been restored. There are risks to accepting offline transactions. 

Payments accepted offline are not guaranteed to be approved. If an offline payment is declined, the merchant is responsible for working with the customer to collect the payment. Merchants must monitor all transactions they take offline, and they assume the risk for any chargebacks associated with offline transactions.  
3. A monthly wireless fee will apply.

636

Item 19.



Combine payment processing and business management support with a Clover® point-of-sale system

Point-of-sale devices 
and accessories are 
subject to availability

Clover Station Duo   
(formerly known as Clover Station Pro)

Clover Station Solo Clover Mini Clover Flex Clover Go

Designed for

• Businesses that want robust payment 
processing, business management 
capabilities, contactless PIN entry, and an 
interactive customer display 

• Counter/Quick service restaurants, retail, 
and personal services businesses that 
want an interactive customer display  

• Businesses looking for robust payment 
processing and business management 
capabilities 

• Table service restaurants, retailers, and 
personal services businesses that don’t 
need a customer display

• Businesses that want robust payment 
processing and business management 
capabilities in a compact, space saving 
device  

• Restaurants, retail, and personal services 
businesses that want to replace a larger 
terminal with an all-in-one device 

• Businesses that want to accept on-the-
go payments and want the benefits of an 
onscreen signature pad, built-in printer, 
camera and QR scanner 

• Restaurants, retail, and other mobile 
businesses 

• Businesses that want to use their own 
phone or tablet to accept payments, and 
email or text receipts 

• Caterers, florists, home appliance delivery 
and repair, and other mobile or delivery-
based businesses 

Device location/ uses • Counter-top • Counter-top • Counter-top • Counter-top
• Mobile 

• Mobile
• Works with phone or tablet

Software

• Register
• Counter Service Restaurants
• Table Service Restaurants

• Register
• Counter Service Restaurants
• Table Service Restaurants

• Payments
• Essentials
• Register
• Counter Service Restaurants
• Table Service Restaurants

• Payments
• Essentials
• Register
• Counter Service Restaurants
• Table Service Restaurants

• Payments
• Essentials

Hardware size
• Merchant display base plate: 8.73” x 8.9” 
• Customer display base plate: 6.52” x 8.0”
• Cash drawer: 16.5” x 16.5”

• Display base plate: 8.73” x 7.25” • 6.5” x 8.0” x 3.7” • 7.5” x 3.0” • 3.2” x 2.2” x 0.47”

Display • Merchant: 14” (1920 x 1080 hi-def)
• Customer: 7” (1280 x 800)

• 14” (1920 x 1080 hi-def) • 7” (1280 x 800)
• Color TFT LCD

• 5” (720 x 1280)
• Color TFT LCD

• Uses your phone or tablet screen

Printer • External (included) • External (included) • Built-in • Built-in • N/A

Optional accessories  
(unless marked as 
included)

• Cash drawer (included)
• Kitchen printer  (Wi-Fi or LAN)
• Weight scale
• 2D handheld barcode scanner
• 2D hands-free barcode scanner

• Cash drawer (included)
• Kitchen printer  (Wi-Fi or LAN)
• Weight scale
• 2D handheld barcode scanner
• 2D hands-free barcode scanner

• Cash drawer
• Kitchen printer  (Wi-Fi or LAN)
• Weight scale
• 2D handheld barcode scanner
• 2D hands-free barcode scanner

• Kitchen printer  (Wi-Fi)
• Flex Extender

• N/A

Internet connectivity

• Wi-Fi or Ethernet 
• Can accept payments when device is 

offline using store & forward feature

• Wi-Fi, Ethernet, or up to 4G LTE wireless
• Can accept payments when device is 

offline using store & forward feature

• Wi-Fi, Ethernet, or up to 4G LTE wireless
• Can accept payments when device is 

offline using store & forward feature

• Wi-Fi or up to 4G LTE wireless
• Can accept payments when device is 

offline using store & forward feature

• Wi-Fi or up to 5G LTE wireless, if your device 
has Wi-Fi or 5G LTE

• Can accept payments when device is 
offline using store & forward feature

Embedded camera N/A

2d barcode scanner

Compatible with Clover  
Check Acceptance

Fingerprint sign in If available on your device 

2. Offline payments, or store & forward capability allows merchants to take transactions, even when their device is not connected to the Internet. Offline payments, or store & forward capability allows authorizations to be attempted later when the device’s connection has been restored. There are risks to accepting offline transactions. 
Payments accepted offline are not guaranteed to be approved. If an offline payment is declined, the merchant is responsible for working with the customer to collect the payment. Merchants must monitor all transactions they take offline, and they assume the risk for any chargebacks associated with offline transactions.  

4. If you use Clover Flex or Clover Mini with Clover Payments or Clover Essentials and choose to add a Clover Station device on the same location, then you will be required to upgrade the software plan to either Register, Counter Service Restaurants or Table Service Restaurants so that all your devices are on the same software plan.
5. Kitchen printers must always be hardwired to a router. The kitchen printer connectivity methods in the table show how specific Clover devices can communicate with a kitchen printer. 
6. A monthly wireless fee may apply for 4G LTE wireless usage.

637

Item 19.



Clover® solutions offer powerful software, robust reporting, and a choice of 500+ apps  to help you manage your business

Clover software comparison Payments Essentials Register Counter Service Restaurants Table Service Restaurants

Software description Entry-level Clover software plan 
that enables payment acceptance 

Includes the features of 
Payments, plus basic inventory  

and order management

Full-featured plan with enhanced 
inventory and order management

Full-featured POS software 
designed for counter and  
quick service restaurants

Full-featured POS software 
designed for table service 

restaurants

Device required? Optional Optional

Acceptance of credit, debit, gift cards,  
EBT and chip cards. Also, acceptance of 
checks and mobile wallet payments like 
Apple Pay®

Order Management Basic Basic Basic + online ordering +  
takeout/delivery

Basic + online ordering +  
takeout/delivery + table mapping 

Reporting Basic Basic + tax Basic + tax + item cost Basic + tax + item cost +  
order type

Basic + tax + item cost +  
order type

Inventory Management Basic Basic + item variants + categories Basic + cost tracking + menu item 
modifiers + menu management

Basic + cost tracking + menu item 
modifiers + menu management

Customer Management  
(purchase tracking)

Customer Engagement  
(Promos, loyalty programs and feedback) With device only

Employee Management  
(managing user access and roles)  (Basic)  (Basic)

Order type definition and Clover  
weight scale support

Kitchen printer/display integration, 
pre-authorize a tab

Dining features: Table mapping,  
tableside ordering/firing/payment, 
multiple bill splitting, and scan to pay

Monthly Software Cost Included in Merchant Services  
monthly service fee $9.95 per device $39.95 first device;  

$9.95 additional device(s)
$39.95 first device;  

$9.95 additional device(s)
$69.95 first device;  

$9.95 additional device(s)

7. Clover solutions made available through Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. (WFMS) come with Clover Payments software that allows you to take payments through a web browser, mobile app, or your Clover device. The cost of this software is included in the monthly service fee WFMS charges each month per account. Clover Station 
products will not work with the Clover Payments software alone, and require a more advanced software plan. Upgraded software plans, including those for Clover Station products, require an additional monthly fee per device, and will be billed directly from Clover. All your devices must use the same software plan. Availability of certain 
software plans, applications, or functionality may vary based on your selected Clover equipment, software, or industry. All fees are subject to change.

 WFMS and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. do not provide, and are not responsible for, third-party software or applications, including those offered by Clover. Clover software, applications and other third-party applications that may be available through Clover or in the App Market are subject to the terms and conditions of the developer and may 
include additional fees subject to change at any time. Software and App Market application fees are disclosed in the Clover App Market or your Clover dashboard and are in addition to the fees listed within your Agreement with us. 

8. Dependent on Clover device used.
9. Merchants that are using Payments only without hardware or Clover Go only, can upgrade to the Essentials plan at a cost of $9.95/month. 
Apple, the Apple logo, Apple Pay, Apple Watch, Face ID, iPad, iPad Pro, iPhone, iTunes, Mac, Safari, and Touch ID are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. Apple Wallet is a trademark of Apple Inc. The App Store is a service mark of Apple Inc.
The Clover® name and logo are trademarks owned by Clover Network, Inc., an affiliate of First Data Merchant Services LLC, and registered or used in the U.S. and many foreign countries.

638

Item 19.



 

 

Community involvement 

Wells Fargo is committed to opening pathways to 

economic advancement, championing safe and 

affordable homes, empowering small businesses to 

thrive, and enabling a just, low-carbon economy.  

Through our businesses and the Wells Fargo Foundation, 

we align our resources and expertise to make a positive 

impact in communities, address complex societal issues, 

and help build a more inclusive, sustainable future for all. 

“We believe we have both an 

obligation to do all we can and are 

in a position to provide meaningful 

support to our employees, 

communities, and customers.”  

Charles W. Scharf, CEO 

Wells Fargo & Company 

Investing in our communities 
Wells Fargo is dedicated to making meaningful, inclusive, and enduring contributions as our 

communities address and recover from recent social and economic challenges. We’re focused on 

addressing systemic issues and supporting an inclusive recovery as we aim to break down barriers to 

enable a better future. 

The following table shows some of the major investments we made in local communities in 2020. 

2020 highlights 

~$475 million  • Donated to nonprofits through our businesses and the Wells Fargo Foundation 

~$80 million • Donations to support housing affordability initiatives, including efforts to help provide 

or maintain housing for more than 200,000 people affected by the COVID-19 

economic downturn 

~$420 million • In grants committed to nonprofits serving small businesses through the Open for 

Business Fund, to be paid out over the next several years 

~$75 billion • Deployed in financing to sustainable businesses and projects to accelerate the 

transition to a low-carbon economy (2018 – 2020) 

Additional highlights and commitments can be found in our most recent Environmental, Social, and 

Governance (ESG) report, which is accessible through the following link: 

wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/about/corporate-responsibility/environmental-social-

governance-report.pdf 

Through these commitments, we work to strengthen the resiliency of our communities and our 

planet, with a focus on supporting nonprofits that strategically align with our funding priorities, 

which are:  

• Financial health 

• Housing affordability 

• Small business growth 

• Sustainability and environmental justice 

639

Item 19.

https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/about/corporate-responsibility/environmental-social-governance-report.pdf
https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/about/corporate-responsibility/environmental-social-governance-report.pdf
https://www.wellsfargo.com/about/corporate-responsibility/community-giving/national/


 

 

Financial health  
We’re opening pathways to economic advancement for racially and ethnically diverse and low- and 

moderate-income individuals and families through programs that increase financial inclusion and 

access, reduce debt, drive savings and wealth-building behavior, and transform systems that provide 

a better context within which people lead their financial lives. 

Banking Inclusion Initiative 

One such program is our Banking Inclusion Initiative — a 10-year commitment to helping unbanked 

individuals gain access to affordable, mainstream, digitally enabled transactional accounts. The 

initiative will focus on reaching unbanked communities and helping to remove barriers for Black and 

African American, Hispanic, and Native American and Alaska Native families, which account for more 

than half of America’s seven million unbanked households.* 

* Source: 2019 FDIC data. 

Clear Access Banking 

In 2020, we launched Clear Access Banking, a new low-cost and checkless bank account with no 

overdraft or insufficient funds fees to make it easier for customers to manage their money, make 

payments, and save. Clear Access Banking meets the Cities for Financial Empowerment Fund’s Bank 

On National Account Standards for safe and appropriate financial products that can help people 

enter or reenter the financial system. 

Virtual Financial Coaching 

We’ve also expanded free financial counseling and coaching services and access to other emergency 

financial recovery resources. This includes supporting national nonprofits in expanding virtual 

financial coaching services, cost-free, to help the public adapt in these challenging times.  

Housing affordability 
We’re working to increase access to safe, stable, and affordable places to live, including transitional 

housing, rentals, and home ownership, especially for individuals and families historically shut out of 

the market.  

To that end, we’ve made two significant commitments to increase Hispanic and Black 

homeownership over 10 years by making $185 billion in home purchase loans to Hispanic and Black 

borrowers, increasing the diversity of our mortgage sales team, and providing $25 million in 

homebuyer education and counseling. 

Dream. Plan. Home.  

In November of 2020, Wells Fargo Home Lending launched “Dream. Plan. Home.” — a new program 

that provides a closing cost credit on a limited basis in five metropolitan areas. The program 

addresses one of the key barriers facing first-time homebuyers by providing up to $5,000 toward 

closing costs to make it easier for low- and moderate-income families to purchase a home. This 

program aligns with our efforts to help drive economic growth, sustainable homeownership, and 

neighborhood stability in low- and moderate-income communities. 

640

Item 19.



 

 

Small business growth 
Small businesses are the heartbeat of our communities, and they’re the key to millions of local jobs. 

Wells Fargo is committed to helping small businesses impacted by COVID-19 stay open and get 

back to growth. 

Through the initial phase of the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), we: 

• Approved lending to companies representing a total of 1.3 million jobs 

• Submitted 259,000 PPP applications to the U.S. Small Business Association (SBA) 

• Funded approximately 194,000 loans totaling more than $10.5 billion  

Open for Business Fund 

In July 2020, Wells Fargo established the Open for Business Fund, an approximately $420 million 

small business recovery effort across the U.S. to help small businesses navigate the pandemic, with 

an emphasis on those with Black and racially diverse owners. The initiative focuses on three key 

areas: increasing access to capital through Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs), 

technical assistance, and long-term recovery and resiliency programs.  

Sustainability and environmental justice 

As trillions of dollars of sustainable capital flows will be 

required to adequately avoid, sequester, and redirect 

greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, we continue toward 

our goal of achieving net zero greenhouse gas emissions 

by 2050. 

In March 2021, Wells Fargo set an 

ambitious climate goal to achieve 

net-zero greenhouse emissions by 

2050 — including our financed 

emissions. 

To help meet this goal, we’re focusing on the following near-term priorities:  

• Measure and disclose financed emissions for select carbon-intensive portfolios 

• Set interim emission reduction targets by the close of 2022 

• Advocate for policy initiatives that support our clients’ low-carbon transitions, as well as 

those that advance the goals of the Paris Agreement 

• Integrate climate considerations into Wells Fargo’s Risk Management Framework 

• Launch Institute for Sustainable Finance to manage the deployment of $500 billion in 

financing to sustainable businesses and projects by 2030 

Wells Fargo in Beaumont, California 
In addition to being a strategic financial partner, we hold ourselves accountable to supporting and 

having a measurable positive impact in the communities where we do business. Investing in our 

communities is a way for us to help create future economic growth and prosperity where we live and 

work. 

641

Item 19.



 

 

Here's how Wells Fargo makes an impact in your community. 

Our presence in Beaumont Total 

Employees 411 

Community banking branches 21 

ATMs 51 

Deposit share (ranking) 20.67% (32) 

Total deposits $201,365 million2 

 

Lending in the City of Beaumont3 

Home mortgage4, 5 

We provided 136 mortgage loans (total HMDA), 

extending $30.8 million in credit 

• Of that, 29 mortgage loans were made in low-to-

moderate income (LMI) borrowers, providing 

$5.9 million in credit 

Wells Fargo is the largest lender in 

low- and moderate-income 

communities and the largest 

affordable housing lender in 

America.* 

*According to the Mortgage Bankers 

Association, 2020  

Small business5 

We provided 80 small business loans, extending $4.3 million in credit 

• Of that, 17 small business loans were in LMI communities, providing $1.3 million in credit 

Community development in Riverside County6, 7 

• We provided 8 community development loans, totaling $69.5 million 

• We provided 27 community development investments, totaling $30.5 million 

Philanthropic investing in Riverside County8 

• 32 grants totaling over $1 million to nonprofits and schools through corporate and 

foundation giving 

1. Twelve-month company data as of June 2022. 

2. FDIC Deposit Market Share report as of June 30, 2021. 

3. Information provided is as of June 2022. 

4. Mortgage includes home purchase, home improvement, home refinance, and multi-family originated and purchased loans. 

5. Totals include census tract income level classified loans only. 

6. Some investments and grants cannot be tracked to the county or city level. 

7. Investments include grants and are subject to change as updates are received. 

8. Twelve-month company data as of 2021. 

 

642

Item 19.



Wells Fargo is 
committed to 
local California 
communities

More than $65.5 million 
donated to California 
nonprofits, schools, and 
community organizations in 
2020, as well as more than 
$10.2 million from its 
Open for Business Fund   

31,900 employees 

909 Consumer Banking 
branches 

$140.7 million in Small 
Business Administration loans 
in federal fiscal year 2020

$60.2 billion in 106,045 
mortgage loans, including 
those for low- and moderate-
income families and 
individuals in 2019

$5.5 billion for loans to 
more than 110,309 small 
businesses in 2019

Investing in California
Helping local communities grow

Los 3 Pollos keeps pleasing 
palates amid the pandemic
Efrain Mejorada Jr. wasn’t even out of high 
school the first time his dad, Efrain Sr., took him 
to a Wells Fargo branch in greater Los Angeles.

It was one of his dad’s regular 50-minute 
drives to meet Senior Business Banking 
Specialist Mario Murillo. The banker had 
returned to his Latino community to help small 
businesses like Mejorada’s restaurants thrive.

The Mejoradas credit Murillo’s financial 
guidance and advice with helping them 
start their first restaurant in 2009, grow the 
concept to three restaurants in California, 
and add the payment processing technology 
and other support to keep Los 3 Pollos going 
amid COVID-19.

“My father does not speak English, so he 
had to have someone he could turn to who 
was bilingual and who knew small business 
in and out and that he could trust with our 
future,” said Mejorada Jr. of Murillo’s role in 
the company’s success.

Although COVID-19 has reduced profits 
and required changes in the kitchen and 
other operations for safety, Mejorada Jr. 
said the pandemic hasn’t dented Los 3 
Pollos’ outlook. The establishment is one of 
an estimated 5 million Latino-owned U.S. 
businesses according to Stanford Latino 
Entrepreneurship Initiative’s fourth annual 
survey of Latino business owners. n

COVID-19: Helping families at risk 
of eviction stay in their homes
To help families at risk of losing their homes 
due to the economic slowdown caused by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, Wells Fargo created 
The United Way Bay Area Rental Relief 
Fund to provide rental assistance to 300 
families through UWBA’s existing network of 
SparkPoint Centers and community partners.

“Wells Fargo is committed to being part of 
the solution and help people from slipping 
into homelessness. Our initial donation of 
$750,000 will help hundreds of families get 
caught up or stay current on paying their 
rent,” said Erica Trejo, community relations 
senior manager for Wells Fargo.

“We are excited that Wells Fargo is providing 
much-needed assistance to families impacted 
by our Bay Area housing crisis. The UWBA 
Rental Relief Fund is a great example of 
how the nonprofit and private sectors can 
strengthen our communities by partnering 
together. We hope that this initiative can serve 
as a model as we continue to work on our 
region’s most pressing community issues,” said 
Kevin Zwick, chief executive officer, UWBA.

UWBA is leveraging Wells Fargo’s $750,000 
donation to raise an additional $2.5 million over 
the next six months to serve more families. 

The funds are part of the $175 million 
donation Wells Fargo announced to support 
nonprofits and communities playing a key role 
in COVID-19 relief efforts. n

643

Item 19.



Information as of May 2021. 
© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.  All rights reserved.

Our commitment to 
sustainable housing
In 2019, Wells Fargo provided 
more than $15 million in 
philanthropic investments to 
boost local homeownership 
through their NeighborhoodLIFT 
program in Los Angeles and 
Sacramento, creating nearly 
600 homeowners. Since 2012, 
NeighborhoodLIFT and other 
LIFT programs have invested 
$77 million through 10 program 
launches in California. They 
will create more than 3,000 
homeowners by offering 
homebuyer education and down 
payment assistance grants for low- 
and moderate-income buyers.

Wells Fargo has also donated 
19 mortgage-free homes to 
support military veterans and 
their families in California and 
donated more than 400 homes 
valued at over $60 million in all 
50 states since 2012

Our history in California
In 1852, Henry Wells and 
William Fargo founded  
Wells Fargo & Co. in the Gold 
Rush port of San Francisco 
to serve the West. The new 
company offered banking and 
express services. The bank  
was soon doing business across 
the state of California. In the 
boom and bust economy of the 
1850s, Wells Fargo earned a 
reputation of trust by dealing 
rapidly and responsibly with 
people’s money.

Learn more: stories.wf.com/
California

wellsfargo.com/impact

Cultivating kidpreneurs for 
success
As a little girl in Mexico, Leonor Hipólito was 
called the “mango lady”— teased for selling 
mango preserves on the streets made from 
her dad’s fruit harvest.

“I always dreamt of someone going to my 
parents and telling them, ‘Your daughter 
is smart and she needs to go to school,’” 
Hipólito said. “I wish someone would have 
grabbed me by the arm and taken me to 
school.”

In one of the most underbanked areas 
in the U.S. — Fresno and Bakersfield in 
the Central Valley were among the top 
10 nationally — Hipólito is now that 
encourager, changing futures and growing 
entrepreneurship among children through her 
nonprofit Pequeños Empresarios.

Spanish for “young entrepreneurs,” 
Pequeños Empresarios teaches courses 
on language, leadership, personal growth, 
finance, business operations, manners, 
environmental stewardship, and more to 
children ages 7 to 12.

Hipólito said Wells Fargo has been a key ally 
for Pequeños Empresarios, providing its first 
corporate support in 2014 and encouraging 
others to follow suit, which ended a reliance 
on hot chocolate and tamale sales to fund 
operations.

To date, Wells Fargo has awarded Pequeños 
Empresarios more than $75,000 in grants and 
provided volunteers and other guidance. n

Forging a pathway for veterans in 
manufacturing
With more than 200,000 U.S. service 
members leaving the military each year, 
San Diego-based nonprofit Workshops 
for Warriors® (WFW) is working to ensure 
veterans are fully supported for a successful 
transition back to civilian life. WFW offers two 
16-week machining and welding programs 
that help train, certify, and place veterans and 
transitioning service members into advanced 
manufacturing careers. 

Since 2008, WFW has graduated more 
than 700 veterans and transitioning service 
members who have earned more than 6,200 
nationally recognized credentials. With a 94% 
job placement rate, WFW alumni have gone 
on to work for top manufacturing companies 
across the country in every state. 

WFW credits its sustainability and success 
to the hard work and dedication of its staff 
and students, as well as the support from 
private and corporate donors, including  
Wells Fargo. Since 2013, Wells Fargo has 
donated more than $680,000 in support of 
WFW’s overall programming and operations. 

Despite having to pivot to instructor-
led online education in response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, newly implemented 
hygiene and safety protocols — including 
mandatory face masks, constant disinfecting 
and handwashing, social distancing, and 
remote working — have allowed Workshops 
for Warriors to responsibly continue 
operations. n

644

Item 19.

http://stories.wf.com/California
http://stories.wf.com/California


 

 

Municipal Advisor RFP Disclosure 
This proposal is submitted in response to your Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking and 

Merchant Services dated June 2022. The contents of this proposal and any subsequent 

discussions between us, including any and all information and analysis with respect to product 

is provided to you in reliance upon your compliance with the guidance of the staff of the SEC’s 

office of Municipal Securities in order for a request for proposal to be consistent with the 

exemption for responses to requests for proposals or qualifications provided under the 

municipal advisor rules (the “Muni Advisor Rules”) of the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(the “SEC”) (240 CFR 15Ba1-1 et seq.). 

In submitting this proposal (a) Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) is not acting as an advisor 

to the City of Beaumont (“you”) and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to you with respect to the information and material 

contained in this proposal; (b) Wells Fargo is acting for its own interests; and (c) you should 

discuss any information and material contained in this proposal with any and all internal or 

external advisors and experts that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or 

material. 

645

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 
City of Beaumont | 1 

Treasury Management RFP disclosures 
Upon award of business, Wells Fargo will negotiate and enter into mutually acceptable 

agreements with the City of Beaumont (the City) in connection with the deposit and treasury 

management products and services requested under the RFP. Wells Fargo’s right to negotiate all 

contract terms upon award of business will not be affected or diminished by any language in the 

RFP, including language that purports to require specific comments (or to prohibit general 

exceptions) to the City’s contractual requirements or to bind Wells Fargo to the City’s contractual 

requirements unless specifically commented upon.  

Wells Fargo has included with its response copies of its account and service documentation for the 

deposit and treasury management products and services requested in the RFP, which we would 

request serve as the starting point for contract negotiations or be incorporated into any final 

agreement. 

Page_Section Description 

Wells Fargo Treasury Management exceptions 

II. Proposal Terms and Conditions 

Pg. 7_Item #15 

Collateral 

Wells Fargo takes exception. There is no requirement in which the bank is 

required to notify the customer. 

II. Proposal Terms and Conditions 

Pg. 7_ Item #16 

Causes for termination 

Wells Fargo reserves the right to terminate subject to reasonable 

termination periods and/or grounds, which may be negotiated upon award 

of business. 

IV. Information Requested 

C. General Banking Services 

Pg. 14_ Item # 12  

Overdrafts 

The decision to allow overdraft is a discretionary credit decision by the Bank. 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any overdraft shall be immediately due 

and payable by the Customer to the Bank. If the Bank permits an overdraft, 

the Bank is authorized to charge interest on the amount of the overdraft as 

long as the overdraft is outstanding, at a rate determined by the Bank, up to 

the maximum rate permitted by law at the time of the overdraft. 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services exceptions 

II. Proposal Terms and Conditions 

Pg. 6_Item #7 

Property of the City / Ownership of 

Intellectual Property 

Other than possibly statements, there will be no work product or intellectual 

property under the Agreement that the City will own. Any work product or 

intellectual property under this Agreement shall be subject to a separate 

mutually negotiated statement of work (SOW), and ownership and usage 

rights of any such work as a result of any such SOW and/or work product or 

intellectual property shall be as set forth in the mutually negotiated SOW 

between the parties. 

II. Proposal Terms and Conditions 

Pg. 7_Item #12 

Assignment 

While we understand City’s desire to include this provision, we retain certain 

rights regarding assignment in the Wells Fargo Merchant Services Terms 

and Conditions. As such we request to modify this section to start the 

sentence with "Subject to §13 of the Wells Fargo Merchant Services Terms 

and Conditions..." 

646

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 
City of Beaumont | 2 

Page_Section Description 

II. Proposal Terms and Conditions 

Pg. 7_Item #14 

Termination for Convenience 

Our RFP response is based on the expectation that you will receive services 

for a three (3) year term. Your termination rights are as set forth in Section 

14.4 of the Wells Fargo Merchant Terms and Conditions. 

IV. Information Requested 

H. Pricing and Account Analysis 

Pg. 15 

Pricing / Pricing set for period of days 

With respect to the merchant services, please understand that in addition to 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services’ fees, the Card Organizations and other 

third-party fees will apply and may not be specifically outlined in the  

Wells Fargo Merchant Services Pricing Schedule/Cost Proposal. Such third 

party/Card Organization fees, are subject to change. 

 

647

Item 19.



Wells Fargo  Treasury Management 

 
City of Beaumont | 1 

Commercial Card RFP disclosures 

Page_Section Description 

General Wells Fargo has reviewed the City of Beaumont Request for Proposal (the 

“RFP”) including the terms and conditions and/or sample contract contained 

therein, in the context of a commercial credit card program and advances 

thereunder. Based on such review, Wells Fargo believes that the provisions 

set forth in the RFP appear to be designed to accommodate a Treasury 

Management banking relationship and not a commercial credit card 

program specifically. 

 

As such, Wells Fargo respectfully proposes that the accompanying sample 

WellsOne® Commercial Card Agreement and related sample ancillary 

documents or service descriptions (collectively, the “Commercial Card 

Service Documentation”) would serve as the primary governing contract 

with respect to your commercial card program and advances thereunder. If 

Wells Fargo is the successful bidder, it is willing to consider and, where 

possible, negotiate changes and/or additions to the Commercial Card 

Service Documentation proposed by you, including changes and/or additions 

based upon the RFP. Nonetheless, and notwithstanding any language in the 

RFP to the contrary, Wells Fargo does not agree, with respect to the 

commercial credit card program, to any modifications or additions to the 

terms and conditions of the Commercial Card Service Documentation solely 

by virtue of submitting a response to the RFP. 

 

 

 

648

Item 19.



 

 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services RFP Legal Disclosures 

Legal entity and contracting parties 
Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. (Wells Fargo Merchant Services) is an alliance between 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and First Data Merchant Services, L.L.C. 

Any agreement for merchant services will be entered into between City of Beaumont (the 

City) and Wells Fargo Merchant Services, L.L.C. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. This Agreement is 

separate from any new or existing agreement between the City and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. for 

banking or treasury management services. Furthermore, the Merchant Processing Agreement 

is separate from agreements for those services, including agreements for any proposed or 

existing treasury management services used in addition to or in conjunction with merchant 

processing services. 

Disclosures 
Our proposal is intended to be a description of the services we can provide in response to the 

requirements described in the request for proposal (RFP). If our proposal is accepted in 

principle, we are willing to negotiate mutually acceptable terms and conditions that shall 

govern our merchant services relationship with the City. However, by responding to the RFP, 

we are not indicating our acceptance of any of the terms or conditions contained in the RFP. 

Our right to negotiate all terms upon award of business will not be affected or diminished by 

any language in the RFP, including language that purports to be binding on 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services by virtue of our proposal, including, but not limited to, any 

signature page statements, certifications, confirmations and the like required as part of an 

RFP response. 

We are providing links to our Wells Fargo Merchant Services Terms and Conditions 

(wellsfargo.com/termscustom0920) and our Operating Rules 

(wellsfargo.com/operatingrules). We expect these documents to become the final Agreement 

or part of the final agreement (dependent on your product and service selections) between 

the City and Wells Fargo Merchant Services if you choose us as your provider. 

The City should be aware that the processing of credit and debit card transactions is subject to 

the terms, conditions, policies, and procedures of the Card Organizations and the non-

bankcard issuers. A summary of many of the key elements of those Card Organization 

requirements is provided in our Operating Rules (wellsfargo.com/operatingrules). The terms, 

conditions, policies, and procedures of the Card Organization and the non-bankcard issuers are 

independently established and beyond the control of Wells Fargo Merchant Services to 

negotiate. The Card Organizations govern their mandated fees and assessments, which are 

subject to change during the term of the Agreement. 

649

Item 19.

https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/small-business/merchant/services/terms-and-conditions-custom-0920.pdf
https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/small-business/merchant/operating-rules.pdf
https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/small-business/merchant/operating-rules.pdf


 

 

Pricing disclosures 
Wells Fargo Merchant Services pricing, as provided in our proposal, is based upon the 

information provided by the City (for example, processing requirements or number of 

merchant accounts) as of the date the RFP response was submitted. 

In responding to this RFP, Wells Fargo Merchant Services only agrees to be bound to the 

pricing we provided therein to the extent that the assumptions upon which it was based were 

reasonably derived in relation to the information provided by the City as of the date of the 

creation of that pricing and are accurate and unchanged. 

In the event that Wells Fargo Merchant Services is the successful bidder, and the City 

subsequently provides additional information to us that would affect the pricing (including 

pass through fees paid by the City), Wells Fargo Merchant Services shall not be bound by the 

pricing provided in the RFP response and shall have the right to revise the pricing based upon 

the corrected information provided by the City.  

Furthermore, should Wells Fargo Merchant Services be the successful bidder for this RFP, The 

City shall be required to execute a Pricing Terms Schedule document, which is a part of your 

Agreement. 

Information contained in this response is valid for 90 days from the date of submittal. 

 

650

Item 19.



© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved.

Commercial Account Agreement 
Effective May 2022 

Contents

02           About this agreement

03           Resolving disputes      
               through arbitration
04           Important legal information

05           Statements and other   
               notices relating to your   
               deposit account

09           Rights and responsibilities

01           Welcome to Wells Fargo 15          Checking and savings  
              accounts
17          Electronic check   
              indemnifications

18          Funds availability policy

20          Available balance, posting   
              order, and overdrafts
21          Additional rules for checks  
              and withdrawals

23           Your account ownership

24           Interest earning accounts

25           Time Accounts (CDs)

26           Electronic banking services

28           Selected services

Welcome to Wells Fargo 
Thank you for opening an account with us. We value your relationship and hope we answered all your questions when 
you opened your account. Please review this account agreement for further details about your account and related 
services. 

What words do we use to refer to you (the customer), Wells Fargo, and this account agreement?
•   Customer is "company", "you", "your", or "yours".
•   Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is "Wells Fargo", "bank", "we", "us" or "our".
•   This Commercial Account Agreement and the disclosures listed below constitute the "Agreement":

-   The pricing information and other account-related information
-   Our privacy policy
-   Our rate sheets for interest-bearing accounts
-   Any additional disclosures we provide to you about your account and related services 

When can you begin using your account?
We will notify you when your account and related services may be used. We reserve the right to restrict use of your 
account and related services until we have approved your use of the account and services and completed setting them 
up. 

You should not attempt to use your account or provide any information about your account to any third party until we 
have confirmed that your account is available to process transactions. 

651

Item 19.



2 Commercial Account Agreement

About this Agreement
What information does the Agreement contain?
The Agreement: 

•   Explains the terms of your banking relationship with Wells Fargo and applies to new and existing accounts and 
services, and 

•   Replaces all prior deposit agreements including any oral or written representations. 

You are responsible for ensuring that any signer on your account is familiar with this Agreement.
We suggest you keep a copy of this Agreement  - and any further information we provide you about changes to this 
Agreement  - for as long as you maintain your Wells Fargo accounts.

Words with specific meanings
Certain words have specific meanings as they are used throughout this Agreement. These words and their meanings 
are defined in this section, and others are found later in this Agreement.

Affiliate
A bank or other entity that is, directly or indirectly, a wholly or substantially owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company.

Account
Any business deposit account or commercial deposit account that is not held or maintained primarily for personal, 
family or household purposes. Examples of accounts include an account owned by an individual acting as a sole 
proprietor, a partnership, a limited partnership, a limited liability partnership, a limited liability company, a corporation, a 
joint venture, a non-profit corporation, an employee benefit plan or a governmental unit including an Indian tribal entity.

Business day
Every day is a business day except Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays.

Collected balance
The collected balance is the ledger balance in your account less the deposit float.

Deposit float
The deposit float is the total dollar amount of items deposited in your account that has yet to be credited as part of your 
collected balance as a result of the Bank's or applicable affiliate's collection schedule.

Investable balance
The investable balance is the collected balance in your account less the portion required by law to be held at a Federal 
Reserve Bank and other adjustments.

Item
An item is an order, instruction, or authorization to withdraw or pay funds or money from your account. Examples 
include checks, drafts, and electronic transactions, including ACH. Paper items may be referred to as checks in this 
Agreement. 

Ledger balance
The ledger balance is the balance in your account after all debits and credits for the business day have been posted.

652

Item 19.



3 Commercial Account Agreement

Overdraft
An overdraft is a negative balance in your account.

Signer
A person who has your actual or apparent authority to transact business in connection with your account and services. 
We may rely solely on our records to determine the form of ownership of and the signers on your account.

Are we allowed to change the Agreement?
Yes. We can change the Agreement by adding new terms or conditions, or by modifying or deleting existing ones. We 
refer to each addition, modification, or deletion to the Agreement as a modification.

Notice of a modification:  If we are required to notify you of a modification to the Agreement, we will describe the 
modification and its effective date by a message in your account statement or by any other appropriate means.

Waiver of a term of the Agreement:  If we waive a right related to your account under this Agreement on one or more 
occasions, it does not mean we are obligated to waive the same right on any other occasion.

How do you consent to the Agreement and any future modifications to the Agreement?
By signing the Agreement or using your account or service, you consent to this Agreement. Continuing to maintain or 
use the account or service after a modification to the Agreement means that you have consented to the changes.

Can you consent to the Agreement electronically?
Yes. You may consent to the Agreement using your “Electronic Signature”, as defined in the Electronic Signatures in 
Global and National Commerce Act (“ESIGN Act”), and we may accept your Electronic Signature on any other account-
related document. Under the ESIGN Act, your Electronic Signature will constitute your original and binding 
signature. The fact that you sign using your Electronic Signature will not, by itself, be grounds for invalidating the 
document. 

What happens if a term of the Agreement is determined to be invalid?
Any term of the Agreement that is inconsistent with the laws governing your account will be considered to be modified 
by us and applied in a manner consistent with those laws. Any term of the Agreement that a court of competent 
jurisdiction determines to be invalid will be modified accordingly. In either case, the modification will not affect the 
enforceability or validity of the remaining terms of the Agreement.

With whom will we communicate about your account?
We may provide you or a signer with information about your account. When we receive information from a signer, we 
treat it as a communication from you. You agree to notify us promptly in writing if a signer no longer has authority on 
your account.

Resolving disputes through arbitration
Arbitration Agreement between you and Wells Fargo
Upon demand of by you or us, any dispute or claim arising from or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, must
be submitted to arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) under its Commercial 
Arbitration Rules, and must be heard before three arbitrators if the amount in dispute is U.S. $5,000,000 or more or its 
equivalent in any other currency, and before one arbitrator for amounts less than U.S. $5,000,000 or its equivalent in 
any other currency. Arbitration will proceed in a location selected by AAA in the state of the applicable Governing Law, 
and if there is no such state, the place of arbitration must be New York, NY. The language of the arbitration must be 
English.

653

Item 19.



4 Commercial Account Agreement

Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court having competent jurisdiction. This 
arbitration requirement does not limit the right of you or us to: (a) exercise self-help remedies, including setoff or (b) 
obtain provisional or ancillary remedies such as injunctive relief or attachment, before, during or after the pendency of 
any arbitration proceeding. This exclusion does not constitute a waiver of the right or obligation of you or us to submit 
any dispute to arbitration hereunder, including those arising from the exercise of the actions detailed in (a) and (b) of 
this subsection. 

Can either Wells Fargo or you participate in class or representative actions?
No. Wells Fargo and you agree that the resolution of any dispute arising from the terms of this Agreement will be 
resolved by a separate arbitration proceeding and will not be consolidated with other disputes or treated as a class. 
Neither Wells Fargo nor you will be entitled to join or consolidate disputes by or against others as a representative or 
member of a class, to act in any arbitration in the interests of the general public, or to act as a private attorney 
general. If any provision related to a class action, class arbitration, private attorney general action, other 
representative action, joinder, or consolidation is found to be illegal or unenforceable, the entire Arbitration 
Agreement will be unenforceable. 

Important legal information
What laws govern your account?
The laws governing your account include:

•      Laws, rules, and regulations of the United States, and
•      Laws of the state in which the office that maintains your account is located, without regard to its conflicts of laws 

principles.
If a different state law applies, we will notify you.

Any funds transfer (including a wire transfer) that is a remittance transfer as defined in Regulation E, Subpart B, will be 
governed by the laws of the United States and, to the extent applicable, the laws of the state of New York, including 
New York's version of Article 4A of the Uniform Commercial Code, without regard to its conflict of laws principles. 

What are our rules on illegal transactions?
You must not use your account or any relationship you may have with us for any illegal purpose, including “restricted 
transactions” as defined in the Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act of 2006 and its implementing regulation, 
Regulation GG. In our discretion, we may block or otherwise prevent or prohibit those transactions and, further, we 
may close the account or end our relationship with you. 

Are we your fiduciary?
No. Our relationship to you concerning your account is that of a debtor and creditor. There is no fiduciary, quasi-
fiduciary, or special relationship between you and us.

Will any person or entity be considered a third party beneficiary under this Agreement?
No. No other person or entity will be considered to be a third party beneficiary under this Agreement. 

Can you use our name or refer to our relationship without our consent?
No. You and we will not use each other's name or refer to our relationship in any solicitation, marketing material, 
advertisement, news release or other written, online or oral communication without specific prior written consent for 
each such use or release, except that we may use your name as a reference in service proposals if we obtain your 
prior oral or written approval for such use. 

654

Item 19.



5 Commercial Account Agreement

What is the controlling language of our relationship?
English is the controlling language of our relationship with you. If there is a discrepancy between our English-
language and translated materials, the English version prevails over the translation. 

How will we contact you about your account?
For us to service your account or collect any amount you owe, we may contact you by telephone, text, email, or mail. 
We are permitted to use any address, telephone number or email address you provide. You agree to provide accurate 
and current contact information and only give us telephone numbers and email addresses that belong to you.
When you give us a telephone number, you are providing your express consent permitting us (and any party acting on 
behalf of Wells Fargo) to contact you by calling or texting that telephone number. When we call you, you agree that we 
may leave prerecorded or artificial voice messages. You also agree that we may use automatic telephone dialing 
systems in connection with calls or text messages sent to any telephone number you give us, even if it is a mobile 
phone number or other communication service for which the called party may be charged. 

What courts may be used to resolve a dispute?
Wells Fargo and you each agree that any lawsuits, claims, or other proceedings arising from or relating to your 
account or the Agreement, including the enforcement of the Arbitration Agreement and the entry of judgment on any 
arbitration award, will be venued exclusively in the state or federal courts in the state whose laws govern your 
account, without regard to conflict of laws principles. 

Statements and other notices relating to your deposit account
How do we make account statements and notices available to you?
We will mail, send electronically, or otherwise make available to you an account statement reflecting your account 
activity for each statement period. We will do the same with notices. We will send all account statements and notices 
to the postal or electronic address associated with your account. 

Combined account statements:  To reduce the number of separate account statements you receive each month, we 
may combine statements if you have more than one deposit account. 

If we provide a combined account statement for your accounts,       we consider your first account as your primary 
account. You will receive your account statement at the address listed for your primary account. Statements for accounts 
in a combined statement will be delivered according to the delivery preference of the primary account. 

When are your account statements and notices considered received?
If there is more than one signer on your account, we may send statements and notices to any one of them (unless you 
have otherwise instructed us in writing). You assume the risk of loss in the mail.

Mailed account statements:  When we mail your account statement or notices, we consider it received by you on the 
second business day after mailing it. 

Electronic delivery of account statements:    Account statements will be made available through Wells Fargo Business 
Online® Banking or the Commercial Electronic Office®, as applicable, after the end of the statement period. You will be 
notified by email that the account statement is available for viewing. We consider the account statement to be delivered 
to you when it is available online. 

655

Item 19.



6 Commercial Account Agreement

What happens if your account statements or notices are returned or undeliverable?
Unless otherwise prohibited by the laws governing this Agreement, your account statements or notices will be considered 
unclaimed or undeliverable if:

•  Two or more account statements or notices are returned to us through the mail because of an incorrect address, or
•   We notify you electronically that your account statement or notices are available for viewing at Wells Fargo Business 
     Online® Banking or the Commercial Electronic Office®, as applicable, and we receive email notifications that our 

message is undeliverable.
In either event, we may:
-   Discontinue sending account statements and notices, and
-   Destroy account statements and notices returned to us as undeliverable

How can you or Wells Fargo change your address for your account?
Address change requests you make:     You can change the postal or email address or other means by which we make 
your account statements and notices available to you at any time by notifying us of your request by telephone or email. 
We will act on your request within a reasonable time after we receive it. Unless you instruct otherwise, we may change 
the postal or email address only for the accounts you specify or for all or some of your other accounts with us.

Address changes we make:    We may update your listed address without a request from you if we:
•   Receive an address change notice from the U.S. Postal Service,
•   Receive information from another party in the business of providing correct address details that your actual address 

does not match the listed address for your account or card, or
•   Identify a need to rely on another address you have provided us.

When are notices you send to us effective?
Any notice from you is effective once we receive it and have a reasonable opportunity to act on it.

What obligations do you have to review account statements and notices and notify us of unauthorized 
transactions or errors?
You are obligated to:

•   Examine your account statements and notices promptly and carefully.
•   Notify us promptly of any errors.
•   Notify us within 30 days after we have made your account statement or a notice available to you of any unauthorized 

transaction on your account. Note: If the same person has made two or more unauthorized transactions and you do 
not notify us of the first one within this 30-day period, we will not be responsible for unauthorized transactions made 
by the same wrongdoer.  

•   Notify us within 6 months after we have made your account statement or a notice available to you if you identify any 
endorsements which are unauthorized or missing, or other errors relating to endorsements on your checks. 

You can notify us of unauthorized transactions or errors on your account statement by promptly:
•   Calling the telephone number listed on your account statement or in notices, or
•   Sending us a written report (if instructed by us) as soon as possible, and at least within the specified timeframes.

Funds transfers are subject to different time periods for notification of errors, as described in the “Fund transfer 
services” part of this Agreement. Common examples of fund transfers are ACH, wire transfers, and Real-Time 
Payments (RTP®).

What happens if you do not notify us of an unauthorized transaction within the time frames specified above?
If you do not notify us of any unauthorized transaction, error, or claim for a credit or refund within the time frames 
specified above, your account statement or transaction will be considered correct. We will not be responsible for any 
unauthorized transaction, error, or claim for transactions included in this statement.

656

Item 19.



7 Commercial Account Agreement

When is a check unauthorized?
A check is unauthorized when it is:

•   Not signed by a signer on your account, or you have not otherwise authorized or benefitted from it,
•   Forged, or
•   Altered (for example, the amount of a check or the payee's name is changed). 

What happens when you report an unauthorized transaction?
We investigate any reports of unauthorized activity on your account. After you submit a claim, we may require you to:

•   Complete and return the claim form and any other documents we require,
•   Notify law enforcement, and
•   Cooperate fully with us in our investigation. 

We can reverse any credit made to your account resulting from a claim of unauthorized transaction if you do not 
cooperate fully with us in our investigation or recovery efforts, or we determine the transaction was authorized. 

Are you responsible for taking reasonable steps to help prevent fraud on your account?
Yes. You agree to take reasonable steps to ensure the integrity of your account and items drawn on your account or 
deposited to it. You acknowledge that there is a growing risk of losses resulting from unauthorized items. To help 
prevent fraud and protect your assets, we recommend that you take these preventive measures:

•    Assign responsibilities for your account to multiple individuals. The individuals who reconcile statements for your    
     account should be different from the individuals who issue items drawn on your account.
•    Reconcile statements for your account as you receive them; notify us promptly of any problem.
•    Contact us promptly if you do not receive the statement for your account when you would normally expect to.
•    Watch for checks cashed out of sequence or made out to cash. These are classic red flags for embezzlement.
•    Secure your supply of checks at all times. Stolen checks are a common method of fraud.
•    Periodically reassign accounting duties, such as reconciling your account or making a deposit.
•    Review your transaction activity for unexpected fluctuations. For example, compare the percentage of cash 

deposits   
     to total deposit size. Most businesses will maintain a constant average. A large fluctuation might indicate fraud.
•   Destroy any checks that you do not intend to use.
•   Use tamper resistant checks at all times.
•   Notify us promptly when a signer's authority ends so that his/her name can be deleted from our records for your 

account, and any cards that we have issued to him/her or online access can be cancelled.
•   Do not sign blank checks.
•   Obtain insurance coverage for these risks.

This is not an exhaustive list and there may be additional preventive measures you may take to prevent fraud and 
protect your account.

Protection against unauthorized items
Does Wells Fargo offer services to help prevent fraud on your account?
Yes. We offer services for your account that provide effective means for controlling the risk from unauthorized items.
Examples of these services include:

•   Positive Pay, Positive Pay with payee validation, and Reverse Positive Pay
•   ACH fraud filter, and
•   Payment authorization service.

657

Item 19.



8 Commercial Account Agreement

In addition, we may recommend you use certain fraud prevention practices to reduce your exposure to fraud. Each of 
these practices is an "industry best practice."  Dual custody is an example of an industry best practice. With dual 
custody, when one user initiates an action, like a payment or a change in the set-up of a service, the action does not 
take effect until a second user approves the action using  a different computer or mobile device than one used to initiate 
the action.

What are potential consequences if you do not implement a fraud prevention service or industry best practice 
Wells Fargo has recommended?
If we have expressly recommended you use a fraud prevention service or industry best practice and you either (a) 
decide not to implement or use the recommended service or industry best practice, or (b) fail to use it in accordance with 
the applicable service description or other applicable documentation, then you will be treated as having assumed the risk 
of any losses that could have been prevented or mitigated by correct use of the recommended fraud prevention service 
or industry best practice.

Lost or stolen checks; unauthorized items
If any of your unissued checks have been lost or stolen, or if you learn that unauthorized items are being issued on your 
account, you agree to notify us at once. To the extent that your failure to notify us hampers our ability to prevent loss, we 
will be relieved of any liability for those items. Upon receipt of any notice from you, we - without any liability to you - will 
dishonor any item you, or any signer, has indicated is unauthorized and may:

•   Close your account and open a new account for you, or
•   Pay any item presented for payment on your account, provided you have instructed us to pay that item and given us 

its number.

If we open a new account for you and you have authorized a third party to automatically make regular deposits to or 
withdrawals from your account (such as wire or ACH transfers), we will have no liability to you if you do not receive any 
regularly scheduled deposit or if a regularly scheduled payment is not made for you because you did not notify that third 
party in a timely fashion of the number of your new account. 

When does your account become dormant?
Checking accounts, savings accounts, and time accounts (CDs)
Generally, your account becomes dormant if you do not initiate an account-related activity for:

•   12 months for a checking account,
•   34 months for a savings account, or
•   34 months after the first renewal for a time account.

An account-related activity is determined by the laws governing your account. Examples of account-related activity are 
depositing or withdrawing funds at a banking location or ATM, or writing a check which is paid from the account.
Automatic transactions (including recurring and one-time), such as pre-authorized transfers, payments and electronic 
deposits (including direct deposits), set up on the account may not prevent the account from becoming dormant.

What happens to a dormant account?
We put safeguards in place to protect a dormant account which may include restricting the following transactions:

•   Transfers by telephone,
•   Transfers or payments through Wells Fargo Business Online® Banking or the Commercial Electronic Office®, and
•   Wire transfers (incoming and outgoing).

Normal monthly service and other fees continue to apply (except where prohibited by law).

If you do not initiate an account-related activity on the account within the time period as specified by state unclaimed 

658

Item 19.



9 Commercial Account Agreement

property laws, your account funds may be transferred to the appropriate state. This transfer is known as "escheat." If your 
account becomes escheatable, account statements will no longer be available. Your account will be closed. To recover 
your account funds, you must file a claim with the state.

Rights and responsibilities
What responsibilities do you and Wells Fargo have to each other?
You and we are responsible for complying with the Agreement. We exercise ordinary care when we provide services. 
When we take a check for processing by automated means, ordinary care does not require us to examine the check. In 
all other cases, ordinary care requires only that we follow standards that do not vary unreasonably from the general 
standards followed by similarly situated banks.

Except to the extent we fail to exercise ordinary care or to comply with the Agreement, you agree to indemnify and hold us 
harmless from all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, judgments, and expenses (including attorney's fees and expenses) 
arising out of or in any way connected with our performance under the Agreement. You agree this indemnification will 
survive termination of the Agreement.

In no event will either Wells Fargo or you be liable to the other for any special, consequential, indirect, or punitive 
damages. The limitation does not apply where the laws governing your account prohibit it.

We will not have any liability to you if your account has non-sufficient available funds to pay your items due to actions we 
have taken according to the Agreement.

Circumstances beyond your control or ours may arise and make it impossible for us to provide services to you or for you 
to perform your duties under the Agreement. If this happens, neither Wells Fargo nor you will be in violation of the 
Agreement.

Are you obligated to pay our fees?
Yes. By continuing to maintain your account you agree to pay our fees according to the pricing information. 

Why do we charge a recoupment fee?
We assess the recoupment fee to partially recover insurance premiums we pay to the FDIC for deposit insurance. The 
amount of the recoupment fee appears on the periodic statement or client analysis statement for your account and is 
based on the monthly average ledger balance you maintain in your account. The recoupment fee is subject to change by 
us at any time without notice.

Note: The FDIC charges each insured bank a fee to cover its share of the cost of providing deposit insurance to 
depositors. The FDIC does not charge a bank's depositors for deposit insurance or require banks to pass the cost of 
deposit insurance on to their depositors. The FDIC does, however, permit a bank to recoup the cost of deposit insurance 
from its depositors, so long as the fee the bank charges its depositors does not reveal information that could be used to 
determine the bank's confidential supervisory ratings or mislead depositors by implying the FDIC is charging the fee. 

Is your account subject to a deposit balance fee?
We reserve the right to assess a monthly deposit balance fee on the average positive collected balance in your business 
and commercial deposit account(s) with us. When we assess the deposit balance fee, the amount of the fee will appear 
on the periodic statement or client analysis statement for your account(s). The deposit balance fee is subject to change by 
us at any time without notice. 

659

Item 19.



10 Commercial Account Agreement

Are you responsible for paying taxes?
Yes. Fees may be subject to state and local sales taxes, which vary by location, and will be assessed as appropriate. 
You also agree to pay an amount equal to any other applicable taxes, including backup withholding tax. 

How do you pay our fees and expenses?
We are permitted to either directly debit your account or invoice you for our fees, expenses, and taxes incurred in 
connection with your account and related services. We will debit service fees on the day of each calendar month we 
separately disclose to you, or if that day is not a business day, on the next business day. If there are non-sufficient funds 
in your account to cover the debit, we may create an overdraft on your account. 

You agree to promptly pay any invoiced amount. We may assess finance charges on any invoiced amounts that are not 
paid within 45 days of the date of invoice. Finance charges are assessed at a rate of 1.5% per month (18% per annum) or 
the highest amount permitted by the laws governing this Agreement, whichever is less. Charges for accrued and unpaid 
interest and previously assessed finance charges will not be included when calculating finance charges. Payments and 
other reductions of amounts owed will be applied first to that portion of outstanding fees attributable to charges for 
accrued and unpaid interest and previously assessed finance charges, then to other fees and charges. 

If an earnings allowance accrues, do we apply it to your fees and expenses?
Yes. If an earnings allowance accrues on your account, we will periodically apply your accrued earnings allowance to 
eligible fees and expenses (unless we otherwise indicate in writing). If both an earnings allowance and interest accrue on 
your account, the interest may be shown as an offset to the earnings allowance on the client analysis statement for your 
account. If your earnings allowance exceeds your total maintenance and activity fees for the statement cycle for your 
account, the excess credit is not paid to you, nor is it carried forward to the following statement cycle. We may debit your 
account (or any other account you maintain with us) or invoice you for any amount by which the fees and expenses 
exceed the accrued earnings allowance on your account.

Note: Your earnings allowance is calculated by applying the earnings credit rate to the investable balance available in 
your account.  The earnings credit rate is a variable rate that we may change at any time.

May we use the funds in your accounts to cover debts you owe us?
Yes. We have the right to apply funds in your accounts to any debt you owe us. This is known as setoff. When we set off 
a debt you owe us, we reduce the funds in your accounts by the amount of the debt. We are not required to give you any 
prior notice to exercise our right of setoff.

A debt includes any amount you owe individually or together with someone else, both now and in the future. It includes 
any overdrafts and our fees. We may set off for any debt you owe us that is due or past due as allowed by the laws 
governing your account.

If your account is an unmatured time account, then we may deduct any early withdrawal fee or penalty. This may be due 
as a result of our having exercised our right of setoff.

If you have a sweep account, you authorize us to redeem your shares in the designated money market fund and apply 
the proceeds to any amount you owe us. Our right to setoff is in addition to and apart from any other rights under any 
other security interest you may have granted to us.

Do you grant us a security interest in your accounts with us?
Yes. To ensure you pay us all amounts you owe us under the Agreement (e.g., overdrafts and fees), you grant us a lien 
on and security interest in each account you maintain with us, including your accounts with any affiliate. By opening and 
maintaining each account with us, you consent to our asserting our security interest if the laws governing the Agreement 
require your consent. Our rights under this security interest are in addition to and apart from any other rights under any 

660

Item 19.



11 Commercial Account Agreement

other security interest you may have granted to us. 

Can Wells Fargo benefit from having the use of funds in customers' non-interest bearing accounts?
Yes. We may use these funds to reduce our borrowing from other sources such as the Fed Funds market, or invest them 
in short-term investments such as our Federal Reserve Account. This benefit may be referred to as spread. It is not 
possible to quantify the benefit to us that may be attributable to a particular customer's funds. That's because funds from 
all customers' non-interest earning accounts are aggregated to reduce our borrowing costs and for investment, and our 
use of funds may vary depending on a number of factors including interest rates, Federal Funds rates, credit risks, and 
our anticipated funding needs. Our use of funds as described in this paragraph has no effect or impact on your use of and 
access to funds in your account.

What is the applicable exchange rate?
The applicable exchange rate is the exchange rate we set and use for you when we convert one currency to another 
currency. It includes a markup. The markup factors include without limitation costs incurred, market risks, and our desired 
return. The exchange rate we provide to you may be different from exchange rates you see elsewhere. Foreign exchange 
markets are dynamic and rates fluctuate over time based on market conditions, liquidity, and risks. We reserve the right to 
refuse to process any request for a foreign exchange transaction. 

What is FDIC "pass-through" insurance?
FDIC "pass-through" insurance is FDIC insurance that could exceed the standard maximum deposit insurance amount 
(currently $250,000 per depositor in the same ownership right and capacity). When you use your account to hold funds on 
behalf of third parties who are the beneficial owners of the funds, your account may qualify for FDIC pass-through 
insurance, provided you meet FDIC account titling and recordkeeping requirements.  With FDIC pass-through insurance, 
each beneficial owner's funds held in your account are aggregated with other funds the beneficial owner holds in 
accounts with us in the same ownership right and capacity. The beneficial owner's aggregated funds are insured by the 
FDIC up to the standard maximum deposit insurance amount.  Examples of holding funds on behalf of third parties 
include funds you hold as an agent, nominee, guardian, executor, custodian or funds held in some other capacity for the 
benefit of others.

What are the FDIC's recordkeeping requirements for pass-through FDIC insurance when your account has 
"transactional features"?
For any account with "transactional features" you agree to provide the FDIC (a) with the required information about the 
beneficial owners of the funds in your account, (b) in the required format, (c) within 24 hours of our failure.  Your account 
has "transactional features" when funds can be transferred from the account, as detailed in 12 CFR 370.2(j). 

What are the consequences if you are unable to provide the FDIC with the necessary data on the beneficial 
owners of funds in your account in the required format in the specified time frame?
As soon as the FDIC is appointed as our receiver, a hold may be placed on your account so that the FDIC can conduct 
the deposit insurance determination. This hold will not be released until the FDIC obtains the necessary data to enable it 
to calculate the deposit insurance.  You understand and agree that your failure to provide the necessary data to the FDIC 
in the required format and in the specified time frame may result in a delay in receipt of insured funds by the beneficial 
owners of the funds in your account and legal claims against you from the beneficial owners.

Detailed information about the FDIC's requirements for pass-through FDIC insurance coverage are available at the 
FDIC's website. Notwithstanding other provisions in this Agreement, these three FDIC subsections survive after the FDIC 
is  appointed as our receiver, and the FDIC is considered a third party beneficiary of these subsections.

What are we allowed to do if there is an adverse claim against your account?
An adverse claim occurs when:

661

Item 19.



12 Commercial Account Agreement

•   Any person or entity makes a claim against your account funds,
•    We believe a conflict exists between or among the signers on your account, or
•   We believe a dispute exists over who has account ownership or authority to withdraw funds from your account.

In these situations, we may take any of the following actions without any responsibility to you:
•   Continue to rely on the documents we have on file for your account.
•   Honor the claim against your account funds if we are satisfied the claim is valid.
•   Freeze all or a part of the funds in your account until we believe the dispute is resolved to our satisfaction.
•   Close your account and send a check for the available balance in your account payable to you or to you and each 

person or entity who claimed the funds.
•   Pay the funds into an appropriate court.

We also may charge any account you maintain with us for our fees and expenses in taking these actions (including 
attorney's fees and expenses).

How do we handle legal process?
Legal process includes any levy, garnishment or attachment, tax levy or withholding order, injunction, restraining order, 
subpoena, search warrant, government agency request for information, forfeiture or seizure, and other legal process 
relating to your account. 

We are permitted to accept and act on any legal process we believe to be valid, regardless of how and where it is served, 
including if process is served in locations, states, or jurisdictions other than the jurisdiction in which the account was 
opened or the account, property, or records are located. We may, but are not required to, provide notice of legal process 
relating to your account(s). 

Any fees or expenses (including attorney’s fees and expenses) or losses we incur as a result of responding to legal 
process related to your account(s) are your responsibility. We may charge these costs to any account you maintain with 
us.

If you carry special insurance for employee fraud or embezzlement, can we require you to file your claim with 
your insurance company before making any claim against us?
Yes. If you have special insurance for employee fraud or embezzlement, we reserve the right to require you to file your 
claim with your insurance company before making any claim against us. In that event, we will consider your claim only 
after we have reviewed your insurance company's decision, and our liability to you, if any, will be reduced by the amount 
your insurance company pays you.

Are there any minimum balance requirements or other restrictions?
We may impose minimum balance requirements or other restrictions on your account, which we may disclose to you.

Are we allowed to restrict access to your account?
Yes. If we suspect any suspicious, unauthorized, or unlawful activities, we can restrict access to your account and other 
accounts with us that you maintain or control.

Are we allowed to convert your account without your request?
Yes. We can convert your account to another type of account (by giving you any required notice). 

Are we allowed to terminate or suspend a service related to your account?
Yes. We can terminate or suspend specific services (e.g., wire transfers) related to your account without closing your 
account and without prior notice to you. You can discontinue using a service at any time.

662

Item 19.



13 Commercial Account Agreement

When can we close your account?
•   We reserve the right to close your account at any time.
•   If we close your account, we may send the remaining balance on deposit in your account by mail or credit it to 

another account you maintain with us.
•   We will not be liable for any loss or damage that may result from not honoring items or recurring payments or 

withdrawals that are received after your account is closed.
•   After your account is closed, you will remain responsible for any negative balance.

When can you close your account?
•   You can request to close your account at any time if the account is in good standing (e.g., does not have a negative 

balance or restrictions such as holds on funds, legal order holds, or court blocks on the account). At the time of your 
request, we will assist you in withdrawing or transferring any remaining funds, bringing your account balance to zero. 
Whether you or we close the account, you agree to maintain on deposit in your account sufficient funds (determined in 
our sole discretion) to cover outstanding items to be paid from your account, charge-backs including returned 
deposited items, and our fees and expenses.

•   All outstanding items need to be processed and posted to your account before you make a request to close. Once the 
account is closed, items will be returned unpaid.

•   Any recurring payments or withdrawals from your account need to be cancelled before you make a request to close 
(examples include bill payments and direct deposits). Otherwise, they may be returned unpaid.

•   We will not be liable for any loss or damage that may result from not honoring items or recurring payments or 
withdrawals that are received after your account is closed.

•   At the time of your request to close:
•   For interest-earning accounts, your funds stop earning interest from the date of your request.
•   The Agreement continues to apply.
•   If you have requested closing your account and a positive balance remains, we may send you a check for the 

remaining balance.
•   After your account is closed, you will remain responsible for any negative balance.

Are transactions subject to verification by us?
Yes. All transactions are subject to our verification. This includes cash, items, or other funds offered for deposit for which 
we have provided a receipt. We do not verify all transactions. We reserve the right to reverse or otherwise adjust, at any 
time without prior notice to you, any debit or credit we believe we have erroneously made to your account. 

Are we required to accept all deposits to your account?
No. We may decline all or part of a deposit, including a cash deposit. Some examples are:

•   An item made out to a payee not on your account,
•   An item with an endorsement we are unable to verify,
•   A check or draft issued on a credit account,
•   A very large cash deposit, and
•   A non-U.S. item.

When we are unable to verify an endorsement on an item, we can also decline to pay, cash, or send the item for 
collection. We can require all endorsers to be present and we may require you to deposit the item instead of permitting 
you to cash it. For non-U.S. items, please see the response to "How do we handle non-U.S. items?". We may require any 
person wanting to make a cash deposit to provide an acceptable form of identification before we accept the deposit for 
processing. 

Who is responsible to make sure the declared amount of funds offered for deposit is accurate?
It is your responsibility, and we have no obligation to make sure the declared amount of your deposit is accurate. If we 
find a discrepancy exists between the declared and the actual amount of the funds, we are permitted to debit or credit 

663

Item 19.



14 Commercial Account Agreement

your account and we may notify you if any adjustments are made. We are also permitted to use the declared amount as 
the correct amount to be deposited and to not adjust a discrepancy if it is less than our standard adjustment amount. We 
are permitted to vary our standard adjustment amount from time to time without notice to you and to use different 
amounts depending on account type. 

You may arrange for us to adjust all discrepancies identified during any verification without using our standard 
adjustment amount by contacting your relationship manager.

What happens if there is an error in the amount of a deposit?
If you notify us of an error in the amount of a deposit shown on your account statement within 30 days after receiving your 
account statement or it is made available to you, we will review the deposit and make any adjustment we determine is 
appropriate, subject to any applicable fees. If you do not notify us during this timeframe, we will consider the deposit 
amount on your statement to be correct. This means that if the actual amount is less than the amount on the statement, 
the difference will become your property. If the actual amount is more than the amount shown on the statement, the 
difference will become our property.

Are we allowed to obtain credit reports or other reports about you?
Yes. We can obtain a credit or other report about you to help us determine whether to open or maintain an account. Other 
reports we can obtain include information from the following: 1) motor vehicle departments, 2) other state agencies, or 3) 
public records.

Are we required to obtain a tax identification number certification from you?
Yes. U.S. Treasury regulations require us to determine the tax residency of all customers and payees who could receive 
income that is reportable to the IRS. We accomplish this by obtaining a Form W-9 from all U.S. taxpayers and a type of 
Form W-8 from all foreign customers.

•   For U.S. taxpayers, the Form W-9 is how we document U.S. tax residency and obtain a Taxpayer Identification 
Number ("TIN") from the primary owner of each account that earns reportable income. Until we have received the 
Form W-9 and TIN, we are required to apply backup withholding to that income.

•   Foreign individuals (also referred to as nonresident aliens) and foreign entities document their tax residency outside 
the U.S. on the applicable type of Form W-8. That form also allows us to apply the correct withholding rate or 
exemption to your income earned in the U.S. If you do not provide a valid type of Form W-8, we are required to apply 
the 30% withholding rate, or in some cases, presume you are an uncertified U.S. taxpayer subject to backup 
withholding on all income and gross proceeds regardless of whether or not it is U.S. sourced.

•   Accounts jointly owned by at least one foreign individual or entity must provide a Form W-8 or Form W-9 for all of the 
joint owners.

•   Foreign individuals provide a Form W-8BEN. Foreign entities that are the beneficial owner of the income provide a 
Form W-8BEN-E unless they can make a special withholding exemption claim and instead provide either a Form 
W-8EXP or Form W-8ECI.

•   Entities that act as intermediaries or flow-through entities receiving income on behalf of someone else provide a Form 
W-8IMY. In some cases, that Form W-8IMY must also include a withholding statement that allocates the income to 
each of the beneficial owners and copies of the tax certification documentation for those underlying beneficial owners.

If you own your account as an individual or sole proprietor, upon your death we must be provided with the estate's or 
successor's IRS Form W-9 or Form W-8. If these are not provided, we may either refuse to pay interest earned on your 
account from the date of your death or apply backup withholding on the income earned after the date of your death.

When do we share information about your account with others?
Generally, if we do not have your consent, we will not share information about your account. However, we may share 
information about your account under the following circumstances:

•   To comply with the laws governing this Agreement;

664

Item 19.



15 Commercial Account Agreement

•   In connection with examinations by state and federal banking authorities;
•   To comply with any legal process, including a subpoena, search warrant, or other order of a government agency or 

court;
•   When we determine that disclosure is necessary or appropriate in order to complete a transaction;
•   To verify the existence and condition of your account for a third party, such as a merchant or credit bureau;
•   To provide information to your legal representative or successor;
•   When reporting the involuntary closure of your account;
•   When we conclude that disclosure is necessary to protect you, your account, or our interests;
•   To our agents, independent contractors, and other representatives in connection with the servicing or processing of 

your account or account transactions, account analysis, or similar purposes;
•   To our affiliates and affiliated companies; and
•   If you give your permission.

How do we protect your data?
We are part of an international business with affiliated companies, employees, and service providers (collectively 
"Personnel") located in the United States and a number of countries around the world. Any information or data we obtain 
in connection with or relating to your accounts or services, including personal information (collectively "Data"), may be 
accessed by Personnel in any of these countries. Any of these Personnel will be subject to the requirements of our 
information security program, which includes policies to protect Data and limit access to those Personnel with a 
reasonable business need to know.

Are we allowed to monitor and record our communications with you?
Yes. We can monitor, record, and retain your communications with us at any time without further notice to anyone, unless 
the laws governing your account require further notice.

Monitored and recorded communications include:
•   Telephone conversations,
•   Electronic messages,
•   Electronic records, or
•   Other data transmissions.

Is your wireless operator authorized to provide information to assist in verifying your identity?
Yes. As a part of your account relationship, we may rely on this information to assist in verifying your identity. 

You authorize your wireless operator (AT&T, Sprint, T-Mobile, US Cellular, Verizon, or any other branded wireless 
operator) to use your mobile phone number, name, address, email, network status, customer type, customer role, billing 
type, mobile device identifiers (IMSI and IMEI) and other subscriber status details, if available, solely to allow verification 
of your identity and to compare information you have provided to Wells Fargo with your wireless operator's account profile 
information for the duration of the business relationship.

Checking and savings accounts
What are the requirements for a correct endorsement?
An endorsement is a signature, stamp, or other mark on the back of a check. If you have not endorsed a check that you 
deposited to your account, we may endorse it for you. We may also send for collection any unendorsed check that is 
payable to you that you have deposited to your account.

665

Item 19.



16 Commercial Account Agreement

Are we bound by restrictions or notations on checks?
No. We are not bound by restrictions or notations, such as "void after six months," "void over $50," or "payment in full."
When you cash or deposit a check with a notation or restriction, you are responsible for any loss or expense we incur 
relating to the notation or restriction.

What is a substitute check?
A substitute check is created from an original check; under federal law, it is legally equivalent to that original check. A 
substitute check contains an accurate copy of the front and back of the original check and bears the legend: "This is a 
legal copy of your check." You can use it the same way you would use the original check. As noted in the legend, a 
substitute check is the same as the original check for all purposes, including proving that you made a payment. Any 
check you issue or deposit that is returned to you may be returned in the form of a substitute check. You agree that you 
will not transfer a substitute check to us, by deposit or otherwise, if we would be the first financial institution to take the 
substitute check, unless we have expressly agreed in writing to take it. 

What happens if you breach a warranty associated with an item?
If you breach any warranty you make to us under the laws governing your account with respect to any item, you will not 
be released or discharged from any liability for the breach so long as we notify you of the breach within 120 days after we 
learn of the breach. If we fail to notify you within this 120-day period, you will be released from liability and discharged 
only to the extent our failure to notify you within this time period caused a loss to you. 

How do we handle non-U.S. items?
A non-U.S. item is an item 1) payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars or 2) drawn on a financial institution that is not 
organized under U.S. law. We are not required to accept a non-U.S. item for deposit to your account or for collection. We 
may accept non-U.S. items on a collection basis without your specific instruction to do so. We can reverse any amount 
we have credited to your account and send the item on a collection basis even if we have taken physical possession of 
the item.

If we accept a non-U.S. item, the U.S. dollar amount you receive for it will be determined by our applicable exchange rate 
that is in effect at the time of deposit or our receipt of final payment (less any associated fees) of the collection item. If 
the non-U.S. deposited item is returned unpaid for any reason, we will charge the amount against your account (or any 
other account you maintain with us) at the applicable exchange rate in effect at the time of the return. For information on 
the applicable exchange rate, see "What is the applicable exchange rate?" in the "Rights and responsibilities" section of 
this Agreement.

Our funds availability policy does not apply to a non-U.S. item.
What is our responsibility for collecting a deposited item?
We are responsible for exercising ordinary care when collecting a deposited item. We will not be responsible for the lack 
of care of any other bank involved in the collection or return of a deposited item, or for an item lost in collection or return.

What happens if we send an item for collection?
We may, upon notice to you, send an item for collection instead of treating it as a deposit. This means that we send the 
item to the issuer's bank for payment. Your account will not be credited for the item until we receive payment for it.

Our funds availability policy does not apply to an item we accept for collection.

What happens when a deposited or cashed item is returned unpaid?
We can deduct the amount of the deposited or cashed item from your account (or any other account you maintain with 
us). We can do this when we are notified that the item will be returned. We do not need to receive the actual item (and 
usually do not receive it). We can do this even if you have withdrawn the funds and the balance in your account is not 
sufficient to cover the amount we hold or deduct and your account becomes overdrawn. In addition, we will charge you all 
applicable fees and reverse all interest accrued on the item.

666

Item 19.



17 Commercial Account Agreement

We may place a hold on or charge your account for any check or other item deposited into your account if a claim is 
made or we otherwise have reason to believe the check or other item was altered, forged, unauthorized, has a missing 
signature, a missing or forged endorsement, or should not have been paid, or may not be paid, or for any other reason. 
When the claim is finally resolved, we will either release the hold or deduct the amount of the item from your account. We 
are not legally responsible if we take or fail to take any action to recover payment of a returned deposited item.

What happens when an electronic payment is reversed?
We may deduct the amount of an electronic payment credited to your account (e.g., direct deposit) that is reversed. We 
can deduct the amount from any account you have with us at any time without notifying you. You agree to promptly repay 
any overdrafts resulting from the reversed payment.

Are you responsible for assisting in reconstructing a lost or destroyed deposited item?
If a deposited item is lost or destroyed during processing or collection, you agree to provide all reasonable assistance to 
help us reconstruct the item.

Electronic check indemnifications
What warranties do we provide for electronic checks and electronic returned checks?
An "electronic check" and an "electronic returned check" mean an electronic image of, and electronic information derived 
from, a paper check or a paper returned check. When we transfer or present an electronic check or electronic returned
check, we provide the following warranties:

•   Image Quality Warranty: We guarantee that the electronic image of a check accurately represents all of the 
information on the front of the check as of the time that the original check is truncated, and the electronic information 
includes an accurate record of all MICR line information required for a substitute check and the amount of a check.

•   No Double Debit Warranty: We guarantee that the warrantee will not receive a presentment of or otherwise be 
charged for an electronic check, an electronic returned check, the original check, a substitute check, or a paper or 
electronic representation of a paper substitute check, in a way that the warrantee will be asked to make payment on a 
check that it has already paid.

When we transfer an electronic check for collection or payment, we make the image quality warranty and the no double 
debit warranty to the transferee bank, any subsequent collecting bank, the paying bank, and the drawer. When we 
transfer an electronic returned check for return, we make the image quality warranty and the no double debit warranty to 
the transferee returning bank, the depository bank, and the owner.

What indemnities are applicable to electronic checks and electronic returned checks?
You will indemnify, defend, and hold us harmless from and against all liabilities, damages, claims, obligations, demands, 
charges, costs, or expenses (including reasonable fees and disbursements of legal counsel and accountants) awarded 
against or incurred or suffered (collectively, "losses and liabilities") by us arising directly or indirectly from or related to the 
transfer or return of an electronic check or an electronic returned check on your behalf. If we suffer any losses or liabilities 
arising directly or indirectly from or related to a breach of either the image quality warranty or the no double debit 
warranty, you will reimburse us and not hold us responsible or liable.

What indemnities are applicable to remote deposit capture services?
By providing the remote deposit capture service to you, we are required to indemnify and reimburse a depository bank 
that accepts the original check from which an electronic check is created for losses incurred by that depository bank if the 
loss is due to the check having already been paid. If we suffer any losses or liabilities arising directly or indirectly from or 
related to that type of depository bank indemnity obligation, you will indemnify and reimburse us and not hold us 

667

Item 19.



18 Commercial Account Agreement

responsible or liable.

What indemnities are applicable to electronically created items?
If we transfer or present an "electronically created item" and receive settlement or other consideration for it, we are 
required to indemnify and reimburse each transferee bank, any subsequent collecting bank, the paying bank, and any 
subsequent returning bank against losses that result from the fact that:

•   The electronic image or electronic information of the electronically created item is not derived from a paper check;
•   The person on whose account the electronically created item is drawn did not authorize the issuance of the 

electronically created item or to the payee stated on the item; or
•   A person receives a transfer, presentment, or return of, or otherwise is charged for an electronically created item in 

such a way that the person is asked to make payment based on an item or check it has paid.

If we suffer any losses or liabilities arising directly or indirectly from or related to that type of electronically created item 
indemnity obligation, you will indemnify and reimburse us and not hold us responsible or liable.

Funds availability policy
When can you withdraw funds?
Our funds availability policy is to make funds from your checking deposit available to you on the first business day after 
the day we receive your deposits.

Funds from the deposits listed below are available on the first business day after the day of your deposits, if you make the 
deposit in-person to one of our employees or agents and you use a special deposit slip we provide:

•   State and local government checks that are payable to your company.
•   Cashier's, certified, and teller's checks that are payable to your company where we are not the issuer or drawee.

While we generally make funds from your check deposits available to you on the first business day after the day we 
receive the deposits, our policy makes funds available according to an availability schedule or schedules we provide or 
make available to you, subject to, among other things, the location of the deposit transaction or the manner in which the 
deposit is made.

Our funds availability policy relating to other types of deposits is described below. If we delay the availability of a deposit, 
the length of the delay varies depending on the type of deposit as explained below.

Once they are available, you can withdraw the funds in cash. We will use the funds to pay checks and other items 
presented for payment and applicable fees that you have incurred. 

When is your deposit considered received?
For determining the availability of your deposits, every day is a business day, except Saturdays, Sundays, and federal 
holidays. If you make a deposit before our established cutoff time on a business day that we are open, we will consider 
that day to be the day your deposit is received by us. For deposits granted same calendar day availability as described 
below, the calendar day you make the deposit will be considered the day of deposit. For all other deposits, if you make a 
deposit after our cutoff time or on a day we are not open, we will consider the day your deposit is received by us to be 
the next business day we are open.

Our established cutoff time is when a branch closes for business and may vary by location. The cutoff time for checks 
deposited at a Wells Fargo ATM is 9:00 p.m. local time (8:00 p.m. in Alaska).

Any deposits placed in a "night depository" before the established deadline on a business day we are open will be 
credited to your account by the close of business that day. Deposits placed in the "night depository" after the established 

668

Item 19.



19 Commercial Account Agreement

deadline will be credited to your account by the close of the next business day we are open.

Same business day availability
The following deposits will be available on the business day we receive the deposit:

•   Incoming wire transfers.
•   Electronic direct deposits.
•   Cash deposited at a teller window.
•   Checks drawn on us.

If you do not make your deposit in person to one of our employees (for example, if you mail the deposit), funds from 
these deposits will be available on the second business day after the day we receive your deposit. For example, if we 
receive your mailed deposit on Monday, the funds will be available on Wednesday.

Longer delays may apply.

In some cases, we will not make all the funds that you deposit by check available to you on the first business day after the 
day of your deposit. Depending on the type of check you deposit, funds may not be available until the second or third 
business day after the day of your deposit. The first $225 of your deposit, however, may be available on the first business 
day after the day of your deposit.

Except as otherwise explained in this paragraph, if we are not going to make all funds from your deposit available on the 
business day of deposit or the first business day after the day of deposit, we will notify you at the time you make your 
deposit. We will also tell you when the funds will be available. If your deposit is not made directly to a Wells Fargo 
employee, or if we decide to take this action after you have left the premises, we will mail you the notice by the first 
business day after we receive your deposit.

If you need the funds from a deposit right away, you may ask us when the funds will be available.
In addition, funds you deposit by check may be delayed for a longer period under the following circumstances:

•   We believe a check you deposit will not be paid.
•   You deposit checks totaling more than $5,525 on any one day.
•   You redeposit a check that has been returned unpaid.
•   You have overdrawn your account repeatedly in the last 6 months.
•   There is an emergency, such as a failure of computer or communications equipment. 

We will notify you if we delay your ability to withdraw funds for any of these reasons, and we will tell you when the funds 
will be available. The funds will generally be available no later than the seventh business day after the day of your 
deposit. 

Holds on other funds (check cashing)
If we cash a check for you that is drawn on another bank, we may withhold the availability of a corresponding amount of 
funds that are already in your account. Those funds will be available at the time funds from the check we cash would 
have been available if you had deposited it.

Holds on other funds (other account)
If we accept a check for deposit that is drawn on another bank, we may make funds from the deposit available for 
withdrawal immediately but delay your ability to withdraw a corresponding amount of funds that you have on deposit in 
another account with us. 

The funds in the other account would then not be available until the time periods that are described in this policy. 

669

Item 19.



20 Commercial Account Agreement

Available balance, posting order, and overdrafts
How do we determine your account's available balance?

•   Your account’s available balance is our most current record of the amount of money in your account available 
for your use or withdrawal. We use the available balance to process your transactions during the day (e.g., wire 
transfers and other electronic transactions). We also use the available balance when we process your 
transactions during our nightly processing. We calculate your available balance as follows: We start with the 
ending daily account balance from our prior business day nightly processing that includes all transactions 
deposited to or paid from your account.

•   We subtract from this balance any holds placed on a deposit to your account and any holds placed due to legal 
process. 

•   We add pending deposits that are immediately available for your use (including cash deposits, electronic 
deposits, and the portion of a paper check deposit we make available; see “Funds availability policy” section for 
details).

•   We subtract pending withdrawals we have either received (such as wire transfers and other electronic 
transactions) or are known to us (such as your checks we receive for payment from your account) but have not 
processed. 

How do we post transactions to your account?
We post transactions each business day (Monday through Friday except federal holidays) during our nightly processing. 
Once we process a transaction, we post the results to your account. There are three key steps to this process. The most 
common types of transactions are processed as described below. 

1. We determine the available balance in your account (as described above) that we can use to pay your 
transactions.

2. We sort your transactions into three categories: deposits, “must-pay” transactions, and checks and 
certain ACH payments. 

•   Deposits.  We credit your account for deposits, including cash and check deposits and incoming electronic 
transfers, received before the cutoff time at the location the deposit or transfer was made. 

•   “Must-pay” transactions.  A “must-pay” transaction is a withdrawal/payment we have previously authorized 
and cannot return unpaid, such as account transfers, and teller-cashed checks. If we receive more than one of 
these transactions for payment from your account, we will generally sort and pay them based on the date and 
time we received them.  Multiple transactions that have the same time will be sorted and paid from lowest to 
highest dollar amount. 

•   Checks and certain ACH payments. Finally, we use your remaining funds to pay to pay your checks and 
preauthorized ACH payments (such as bills you pay by authorizing a third party to withdraw funds directly from 
your account). If there is more than one of these types of transactions, they will be sorted by the date and time 
we received them. Multiple transactions that have the same time will be sorted and paid from lowest to highest 
dollar amount.

3. If the available balance in your account is not enough to pay all of your transactions, we will decide 
whether to pay your transaction and overdraw your account or return your transaction unpaid.  

670

Item 19.



21 Commercial Account Agreement

•   Important Note:  When we receive multiple transactions on the same day and the available balance in your 
account is not enough to pay all the transactions, we reserve the right to choose the order in which we pay the 
transactions, including paying the highest dollar amount first or in any other order we determine in our sole 
discretion.  

What is your responsibility if your account has an overdraft?
If you have an overdraft on your account (including transactions we have paid on your behalf into overdraft, plus any 
fees), you must promptly make a deposit or transfer to return your account to a positive balance.

Additional rules for checks and withdrawals
What identification do we request to cash items presented over the counter by a non-customer?
For these transactions, we require acceptable identification, which can include a fingerprint from the person presenting 
your item. We may not honor the item if the person refuses to provide us with requested identification.

Are there special rules if you want to make a large cash withdrawal or deposit?
We may place reasonable restrictions on a large cash withdrawal. These restrictions include requiring you to provide five 
business days' advance notice to ensure we have sufficient cash on hand. We do not have any obligation to provide 
security if you make a large cash withdrawal. If you want to deposit cash for a very large amount, we have the right to 
require you to provide adequate security or exercise other options to mitigate possible risks.

Can you perform transactions at an affiliate?
Yes. You may make deposits to and withdrawals from your account at an affiliate, provided the affiliate agrees. If you 
make a deposit to your account at an affiliate, that affiliate's collection schedule and funds availability policy will 
determine when the deposited funds will be considered collected and available. If an affiliate cashes an item for you, we 
may place a hold on your account for a corresponding amount of funds. If the item is later returned to the affiliate for any 
reason, we may debit one or more of your accounts for the amount of the item.

Are we responsible for reviewing checks for multiple signatures?
No. We are not responsible for reviewing the number of signatures on your account. We do not accept any duty to 
enforce multiple signature requirements. If you indicate that more than one signature is required, this indication is for 
your own internal procedures and is not binding on us.

Are we required to honor dates and special instructions written on checks?
No. We may, without inquiry or liability, pay a check even if it:

•   Has special written instructions indicating we should refuse payment (e.g., "void after 30 days" or "void over $100");
•   Is stale-dated (i.e., the check's date is more than 6 months in the past), even if we are aware of the check's date;
•   Is post-dated (i.e., the check's date is in the future); or
•   Is not dated.

We may also pay the amount encoded on your check in U.S. dollars, even if you wrote the check in a foreign currency or 
made a notation on the check's face to pay it in a foreign currency. The encoded amount is in the line along the bottom 
edge of the front of the check where the account number is printed. 

Can you use a facsimile or mechanical signature?
Yes. If you use a facsimile or computer-generated signature and/or a logo (including a stamp), any item appearing to 
use your facsimile or computer-generated signature and/or logo will be treated as if a signer on your account had 
actually signed it.

671

Item 19.



22 Commercial Account Agreement

Are we liable for paying a consumer ACH debit entry on your account?
No. Under the ACH operating rules, certain types of ACH debit entries may only be presented on a consumer account ("a 
consumer ACH debit entry"). We will have no obligation to pay, and no liability for paying, any consumer ACH debit entry 
on your account.

What is the acceptable form for your checks?
Your checks must meet our standards, including paper stock, dimensions, and other industry standards. Your checks 
must include our name and address, as provided by us. Certain check features, such as security features, may impair the 
quality of a check image that we or a third party create.

We reserve the right to refuse checks that do not meet these standards or cannot be processed or imaged using our 
equipment. We are not responsible for losses that result from your failure to follow our check standards.

How do you reorder checks?
You can reorder checks by mailing the reorder form enclosed in your current order of checks or by calling us at the 
telephone number shown on your account statement. If you or a third party prints its items, we shall have no liability to 
you if we are unable to process these checks by automated means.

How do you stop payment on a check?
You may request a stop payment on your check in a time and manner allowing us a reasonable opportunity to act on it 
before we pay, cash, or otherwise become obligated to pay your check.

Each stop payment order is subject to our verification that we have not already paid or otherwise become obligated to pay 
the check from your account. This verification may occur after we accept your stop payment order.

In order to issue a stop payment order on a check, we request the following information:
•   Your bank account number,
•   The check number or range of numbers,
•   The check amount or amounts,
•   The payees' names, and
•   The date on the check.

We are not responsible for stopping payment on a check if you provide incorrect or incomplete information about the 
check. We are also not responsible if we do not pay a check for which a valid stop payment order is in effect.

What is the effective period for a stop payment order?
A stop payment order on an item is valid for 6 months. We may pay a check once a stop payment order expires. If you 
do not have our STOP AUTO-RENEWAL Service on your account, you must place a new stop payment order if you do 
not want it to expire. We treat each renewal as a new stop payment order. We will charge you for each stop payment 
order you place (as well as each renewal).

If you have our STOP AUTO-RENEWAL Service on your account, your stop payment order renews annually for up to six 
12- month periods, unless you otherwise notify us in writing.

How do you cancel a stop payment order?
To cancel a stop payment order, we must receive your request in a time and manner allowing us a reasonable 
opportunity to act on it.

Are you still responsible if we accept a stop payment on a check?
Yes. Even if we return a check unpaid due to a stop payment order, you may still be liable to the holder (e.g., a check 
cashing business) of the check, and potentially additional amounts that the holder may be due under the laws governing 

672

Item 19.



23 Commercial Account Agreement

this Agreement.

How can you prevent a post-dated item from being paid before its due date?
A post-dated item is an item you issue with a date in the future. We are not responsible for waiting to honor the item until 
that date, unless you instruct us to do so through the use of a stop payment order for the item. You are responsible for 
notifying us to cancel the stop payment order when you are ready to have that item paid.

How do you stop payment for preauthorized electronic fund transfers?
For information on placing a stop payment order on an ACH debit entry, please refer to "Fund transfer services" In the 
"Electronic banking services" section of this Agreement.

Your account ownership
Can you assign ownership of your account?
No. No assignment of your account will be valid or binding on us, and we will not be considered to have knowledge of it, 
until we consent and the assignment is noted in our records. However, by noting the assignment, we do not have any 
responsibility to assure that the assignment is valid. Any permitted assignment of your account is subject to our setoff 
rights.

What if an owner does not sign account documentation?
If a customer identified in our records as an owner or a co-owner of an account does not sign the account application or 
other account-related documentation, it does not prevent us from treating the customer as an owner or a co-owner of that 
account; we are not liable to anyone as a result. 

Are all joint owners responsible for liabilities on your account?
Yes. All joint owners are each individually and jointly responsible for any overdraft on your account, regardless of who 
caused or benefited from the overdraft. If there is a setoff, an enforcement of our security interest in your account, or legal 
action (such as a third party garnishment, seizure, forfeiture, or tax levy) affecting any co-owner, we have the right to treat 
all funds in the account as belonging to the customer against whom the setoff, enforcement of the security interest, or 
other legal action is directed. If your account is closed for unsatisfactory handling, we may report all joint owners to the 
consumer reporting agencies. 

What happens upon death or incompetence of a signer or account owner?
Please notify us promptly if you learn or suspect an account owner or signer has been declared incompetent by a court or 
a legal authority, or has died. When we receive proper notice, we may:

•   Freeze the account until we receive documents verifying the incapacity or death and instructions for the funds 
remaining in the account,

•   Pay (without inquiring) any item authorized by the account owner before being declared incompetent or dying,
•   Return or reverse deposits made to the account, and
•   Apply funds in the account to any debt the account owner owes us before recognizing the rights to any remaining 

funds of a surviving joint owner or other person.
If we are liable for taxes because we released funds in an account after the account owner's death, the account owner's 
estate is responsible for reimbursing us for those taxes.

Upon notifying us of the death or incompetence of a business owner, the business entity will need to provide 
documentation evidencing any change in the ownership or control of the entity following applicable legal formalities.

673

Item 19.



24 Commercial Account Agreement

Interest earning accounts
What interest rate applies to an interest earning account?
When you open an interest earning account, we will provide you with the current interest rate and Annual Percentage 
Yield (APY) for your account. Interest earning accounts earn interest at a variable rate, except time accounts. We may 
change the interest rate for variable-rate accounts at any time. The interest rate may vary depending on your daily 
balances.

How do we calculate earned interest?
We may use either the daily balance method or the average daily balance method to calculate interest. Unless we have 
specified otherwise in writing, we will use the daily balance method to calculate interest. The daily balance method 
applies a daily periodic rate to principal each day.

The average daily balance method applies a periodic rate to the average daily collected balance for the period. The 
average daily balance is calculated by adding principal each day and dividing by the number of days in the period.

If your account is a tiered-rate account, we may pay the same interest rate on more than one tier.

When does a deposit begin accruing interest?
Cash deposits begin accruing interest the same business day a deposit is credited to your account. If you deposit an item 
such as a check, interest begins accruing on the business day we receive credit for the item.

Is interest compounded and when is it credited?
Interest will compound on a daily basis. For checking and savings accounts, interest will be credited on a monthly basis. 
For time accounts, we will notify you separately as to the frequency with which interest will be credited to your account. 

Can you specify a target balance on your accounts?
Yes. If you maintain multiple accounts with us, you may, with our consent, designate in writing one of these accounts as 
your "principal account" and one or more additional accounts as "target balance accounts." For each target balance 
account, you will separately specify to us in writing the ledger balance or collected balance which you wish to maintain in 
that account (the "target balance"). At the end of each business day, we will determine the applicable balance on deposit 
in each target balance account. If the applicable balance in a target balance account is greater than its target balance, we 
will transfer to the principal account the funds necessary to bring the applicable balance to the target balance. If the 
applicable balance is less than the target balance, we will transfer to the target balance account the funds necessary to 
bring the applicable balance to the target balance. We may, but will not be required to, transfer funds even if the transfer 
would create an overdraft or exceed the collected balance on deposit in the principal account.

When are interest adjustments disclosed in your account statement?
An interest adjustment may be reflected on your account statement in a month later than the month in which it occurs.

What is the difference between Annual Percentage Yield (APY) and Annual Percentage Yield Earned (APYE)?
•   The Annual Percentage Yield (APY) is a percentage rate reflecting the total amount of interest paid on an account 

based on the interest rate and the frequency of compounding for a 365-day period.
•   The Annual Percentage Yield Earned (APYE) is an annualized rate that reflects the relationship between the amount 

of interest actually earned on your account during the statement period and the average daily balance in the account 
for the statement period.

We calculate both your APY and APYE according to formulas established by federal regulations. The APYE appears on 
your account statement.

674

Item 19.



25 Commercial Account Agreement

Do we have the right to require 7 days written notice before you withdraw money from your savings account?
Yes. We have the right to require 7 days written notice before you withdraw money from your savings account.

Time accounts (CDs)
What are time accounts?
Time accounts include deposits which are payable at the expiration of a specified term, no less than seven calendar days 
after the date of deposit. We may also refer to a time account as a CD or a Certificate of Deposit, even though we do not 
issue a paper certificate when opening the account or require a paper certificate to close the account. The time account's 
maturity date is the last day of the term for the time account. The maturity date is printed on your receipt.

When can you withdraw funds from your time account?
You may withdraw funds from your time account on the maturity date without a penalty. You may also generally 
withdraw funds without a penalty within the seven calendar days after the maturity date (grace period). You may be 
charged a penalty if you make a withdrawal at any other time.

How is the early withdrawal penalty assessed?
If you withdraw funds from your time account before the maturity date, an early withdrawal penalty will be assessed. For 
terms:

•   Less than three months (or less than 90 days), the fee is one month's interest.
•   Three months (or 90 days) through 12 months (or 365 days), the fee is three months' interest.
•   Over 12 months through 24 months, the fee is six months' interest.
•   Over 24 months, the fee is 12 months' interest.

The minimum fee is $100.

The early withdrawal penalty is based on the principal amount withdrawn, at the interest rate on your time account at the 
time of withdrawal. For purposes of determining the amount of the early withdrawal penalty, one month's interest is equal 
to one year's interest - at the interest rate in effect at the time of withdrawal - divided by 12. The amount of the early 
withdrawal penalty is deducted from earned interest. If the penalty is greater than the earned interest, the difference is 
deducted from the principal. In no event will the early withdrawal penalty for a withdrawal during the first six days after the 
date of deposit be less than seven days' simple interest.

Can you deposit additional funds into your time account?
You can only deposit additional funds during the grace period.

Will your Annual Percentage Yield (APY) change if you withdraw interest before maturity?

The APY we disclose to you assumes the interest you earn will remain on deposit until your time account matures. If you 
withdraw your earned interest before maturity, your account will earn less interest over time and the actual APY will be 
less than the disclosed APY.

How does your time account renew?
Your time account will automatically renew at maturity:

•   Typically for a similar term unless we inform you prior to maturity of a different term; and
•   At our interest rate in effect on the maturity date for a new time account of the same term and amount, unless we 

have notified you otherwise.

675

Item 19.



26 Commercial Account Agreement

Electronic banking services
Fund transfer services
The following terms and conditions apply to funds transfers to or from your account. These terms and conditions are in 
addition to, and not in place of, any other agreements you have with us about funds transfers. The terms "funds transfer," 
"funds-transfer system," "payment order," and "beneficiary" are used here as defined in Article 4A of the Uniform 
Commercial Code, as adopted by the state whose laws govern this Agreement.

Rules of funds transfer systems
Funds transfers to or from your account will be governed by the rules of any funds transfer system through which the 
transfers are made, including Fedwire, the National Automated Clearing House Association, the Electronic Check 
Clearing House Organization, any regional association (ACH), the Clearing House Interbank Payments System (CHIPS), 
the Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunications (SWIFT), and the RTP system (RTP System).

We are under no obligation to honor, in whole or in part, any payment order or other instruction that could result in our 
violation of applicable law, including requirements of the U.S. Department of the Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets 
Control and the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network.

Sending funds transfers
In acting on your transfer instructions, we may use any means of transmission, funds transfer system, clearing house, or 
intermediary bank that we reasonably select.

Notice of funds transfers
We will notify you of funds electronically debited from or credited to your account through the account statement covering 
the period in which the transaction occurred. We are under no obligation to provide you with any additional notice or 
receipt 

Reliance on identification numbers
•   If a payment order or other instruction to transfer funds describes the party to receive payment inconsistently by name 

and account number, we may make the payment based on the account number, even if it identifies a party different 
from the named recipient.

•   If an instruction or order to transfer funds describes a participating financial institution inconsistently by name and 
identification number, we may rely on the identification number as the proper identification of the financial institution.

Duty to report unauthorized or erroneous funds transfers
You will exercise ordinary care to determine whether a funds transfer to or from your account was either not authorized or 
erroneous. You will also notify us of the facts within a reasonable time, not exceeding 14 days after you have received 
your account statement from us on which the funds transfer appears or you otherwise have notice of the funds transfer, 
whichever is earlier. You must notify us within 14 days to be entitled to a refund from us. If you do not notify us within 14 
days, we will be entitled to retain payment for the funds transfer. 

Erroneous payment orders
We have no obligation to detect errors you make in payment orders - for example, an instruction to pay a beneficiary not 
intended by you, or to pay an amount greater than the amount you intended, or a transmission of a duplicate payment 
order previously sent by you. If we detect an error on one or more occasions, we will not be obligated to detect errors in 
any future payment order.

ACH transactions
In addition to the other terms in the Agreement, the following terms and conditions apply to payments to or from your 
account that you transmit through an ACH:

•   Your rights for payments to or from your account will be based on the laws governing your account.

676

Item 19.



27 Commercial Account Agreement

•   When we credit your account for an ACH payment, the payment is provisional until we receive final settlement 
through a Federal Reserve Bank or otherwise receive payment.

•   If a payment is credited to your account and we do not receive final settlement or payment, we are entitled to a refund 
from you for the amount credited to your account.

•   You authorize any Originating Depository Financial Institution (ODFI) to initiate, according to ACH Operating Rules, 
ACH debit entries to your account for presentment or re-presentment of items written or authorized by you. 

Reversal or return of ACH transactions
Under the ACH Rules, we can return any non-consumer ACH debit entry as unauthorized until midnight of the business 
day following the business day we post the entry to your account. (For example, if we post the entry on Tuesday, we can 
return it up to midnight on Wednesday.) For us to meet this deadline, you are required to notify us to return any non-
consumer ACH debit entry as unauthorized by the cutoff time we separately disclose. The cutoff time is currently 3:00 PM 
Central Time. (In the example above, you would need to notify us by 3:00 PM Central Time on Wednesday). 
If you do not notify us in a timely manner of the unauthorized non-consumer ACH debit entry, we will not be able to return 
it without the cooperation and agreement of the originating bank and the originator of the debit entry. Any other effort to 
recover the funds must occur solely between you and the originator of the entry.

Stop payment orders on ACH debit entries
You may request a stop payment order for an ACH debit entry that has not already been paid from your account. An 
"ACH debit entry" is an order or request for the withdrawal of money from your account through ACH. To be effective, a 
stop payment order must be received in a time and manner that gives us a reasonable opportunity to act on it. If you 
provide oral instructions to stop payment on an ACH debit entry, we may require confirmation in writing. If that written 
confirmation is not received, we may remove the stop payment order after 14 days. An instruction to revoke a stop 
payment order must be received in a time and manner that gives us a reasonable opportunity to act on it.

To place a stop payment order on an ACH debit entry, you must provide:
•   Your account number,
•   Amount of the ACH debit entry,
•   Effective date of the ACH debit entry, and
•   Name associated with the originator of the debit entry.

We may request additional information and may use only a portion of the required information to identify the ACH debit 
entry. We may be able to place a stop payment order based on the company identification number of the originator of the 
ACH debit entry, but this may stop all ACH entries received from this sender.

Additional information on ACH debit entries
Any information provided by you that is incorrect or subject to change (for example, if the originator changes its company 
identification number or individual identification number) may result in payment of the ACH debit entry. You acknowledge 
this risk and agree that you are responsible for notifying the originator of the ACH debit entry that your authorization has 
been revoked. You agree to indemnify and reimburse us and hold us harmless from and against any loss incurred by us 
as a result of our paying an ACH debit entry if any of the information relied on in the stop payment order is incorrect or 
incomplete (or as a result of us not paying an ACH debit entry for which a valid stop payment order is in effect).

Receiving RTP payments
The following additional terms apply to any real-time payments we receive for credit to your account through the RTP 
System. The terms "sender," "receiver," and "sending participant" are used here as defined in the System Rules 
governing RTP payments ("RTP Rules"). In addition to the RTP Rules, RTP payments will be governed by the laws of the 
state of New York, including New York's version of Article 4A of the Uniform Commercial Code, as applicable, without 
regard to its conflict of laws principles.

•   The RTP System may be used only for eligible payments between a sender and receiver with accounts located in the 

677

Item 19.



28 Commercial Account Agreement

United States. You may not send or receive payments on behalf of any person or entity not domiciled in the United 
States. RTP payments that are permitted under the RTP Rules and our requirements will be considered eligible 
payments for purposes of this Agreement.

•   RTP payments cannot be cancelled or amended by the sender. If we receive a message from a sending participant 
requesting return of an RTP payment received for credit to your account, we may notify you of that request. You are 
not obligated under the RTP Rules to comply with any such request for return of funds. Any dispute between you and 
the sender of an RTP payment should be resolved between you and the sender.

•   If you do not wish to accept an RTP payment received for credit to your account, you may request that we return that 
payment to the sender. We may, at our sole discretion, attempt to honor that request, but will have no liability for our 
failure to do so.

•   RTP payments are typically completed within 30 seconds of transmission of the RTP payment by the sender, unless 
the RTP payment fails or is delayed due to a review by us or the sending participant, such as for fraud, regulatory, or 
compliance purposes. Transaction limits imposed by the RTP System or sending participant may also prevent RTP 
payments from being received for credit to your account. 

Selected services
Stagecoach Deposit® - ATM Deposit Only Card Service.
You may elect to use Wells Fargo's Stagecoach Deposit® Deposit Only Card Service by completing and returning to us 
the setup form for the service. This service allows you to make deposits to your account using a Stagecoach Deposit® 
ATM Deposit Only card ("Deposit Card") at a designated Wells Fargo ATM ("ATM") or in a Wells Fargo branch.

When you make deposits at a designated Wells Fargo ATM, you will make those deposits according to the instructions 
we provide. You will gain access to the ATM using the Deposit Card and a Personal Identification Number ("PIN"); you 
assume the risk of misuse of both. We will provisionally credit each deposit to your account based on the amount you key 
into the ATM. Your ATM deposits are subject to the standard cut-off time established for the ATM into which the deposit 
was made and our funds availability policy applicable to your account. If the dollar amount of your deposit - as 
determined by us - differs from your total (as shown on your ATM receipt), we will send you a statement showing the 
amount of this difference. You agree that our count of the dollar amount of your deposit will be conclusive and binding on 
you. You will have full responsibility for each deposit and its contents until the deposit has been completely and physically 
accepted into the ATM. If you claim any portion of a deposit was lost or stolen while in our custody, you acknowledge that 
you have the burden of proving your claim. If you order supplies for the ATM Deposit Service through the ATM, you 
authorize us to initiate debits to your account and credits to the accounts of third party vendors to cover the cost of those 
supplies provided to you. Those transfers may be processed through an automated clearing house or any other means 
chosen by us, and will be subject to the rules of the funds transfer system used by us. Your authorization for the transfers 
will remain in full force and effect until we have received written notification from you of its termination in a time and 
manner as to afford us and any third-party vendor a reasonable opportunity to act on it.

Stagecoach Deposit® - Post Verify Service.
If you elect to use our Stagecoach Deposit® - Post Verify Service, you will prepare, package, and deliver Stagecoach 
deposits to us according to our instructions. We will provisionally credit your account for the currency shown on the 
deposit ticket enclosed in your Stagecoach deposit bag as follows:

•   Same day credit for deposits delivered to one of our offices before that office's cut-off time on any business day we 
are open or for deposits placed in night depository before 6:00 a.m. on any business day we are open; or

•   Next business day credit for deposits delivered to one of our offices on any business day we are open on or after the 
office's cut-off time or on any non-business day.

All Stagecoach deposits are subject to our acceptance and verification. We will verify the currency in your Stagecoach 
deposit bag either at a later time in our office or when your Stagecoach deposit bag is delivered to our cash vault. Checks 
will be verified when they are delivered to our check processing center. We reserve the right to adjust (debit or credit) your 

678

Item 19.



29 Commercial Account Agreement

account if we determine that the amount shown on your deposit ticket is incorrect. Because the frequency of armored 
courier transportation from our offices to our vaults varies from office to office, the time it takes to verify your Stagecoach 
deposit may vary, depending on the office to which your Stagecoach deposit bag is delivered. In most cases, adjustments 
will be made and notification will be sent within three business days. Adjustments will be effective when they are 
processed.

Overdraft Protection
This is an optional service you can add to an eligible checking account by linking up to two eligible accounts (one savings, 
one credit). We will use available funds in your linked account(s) to authorize or pay your transactions if you don't have 
enough money in your checking account. If you link two accounts, you may tell us which account to use first to transfer/
advance funds. If you do not specify an order, we will first transfer funds from your linked savings account.

•   Transfers from linked savings account. If the available balance in your savings account is $25 or more and can 
cover the overdraft, we will transfer the exact amount needed or a minimum of $25. If the available balance in your 
savings account is less than either $25 or the amount needed, we will transfer the available balance.

•   Advances from linked credit card or line of credit account. If the available credit in your credit card account is $25 
or more and can cover the overdraft, we will advance the exact amount needed or a minimum of $25. If the available 
credit in your credit card account is less than either $25 or the amount needed, we will advance the available credit. 
Advances from an eligible linked Wells Fargo line of credit will be made in increments of $100 or $300 (See your 
Credit Account Agreement for specific details).

Debit Card Overdraft Service
Debit Card Overdraft Service allows us to approve (at our discretion) your ATM and everyday (one-time) debit card 
transaction(s) if you do not have enough money in your checking account or in accounts linked for Overdraft Protection at 
the time of the transaction. With this service, ATM and everyday (one-time) debit card transactions may be approved into 
overdraft at our discretion and an overdraft fee may apply. If you make a covering transfer or deposit (subject to our funds 
availability policy) by the posted cutoff time on the same business day as the transaction, no fees will be assessed. Debit 
Card Overdraft Service does not apply to checks and other transactions such as Bill Pay, ACH, or recurring debit card 
transactions (such as utilities or health club memberships). We may continue to authorize or pay these transactions into 
overdraft, at our discretion, and our standard overdraft fees and policies will apply. 
 
If Debit Card Overdraft Service is not added and there is not enough money in your checking account or accounts linked 
for Overdraft Protection, your ATM and everyday (one-time) debit card transactions will be declined, and there will be no 
fees for declined transactions. If the service is not added and your ATM or everyday (one-time) debit card transaction 
creates a negative balance during posting, there will not be an overdraft fee.

Debit Card Overdraft Service is automatically added to eligible business accounts at account opening.
You can add or remove the service at any time. Debit Card Overdraft Service is not available for certain accounts, such 
as accounts for government entities or savings accounts. Debit Card Overdraft Service is a discretionary service that we 
may remove for a variety of reasons including excessive overdrafts or returned items, as we determine.

Wells Fargo's standard overdraft coverage
Our standard overdraft coverage is when, at our discretion, we pay items, such as checks or automatic payments (e.g., 
ACH payments) into overdraft rather than returning them unpaid. You can request to remove our standard overdraft 
coverage from your account by speaking to a banker. 
 
Important: If standard overdraft coverage is removed from your account, the following will apply if you do not have 
enough money in your checking account or in accounts linked for Overdraft Protection to cover a transaction:

679

Item 19.



30 Commercial Account Agreement

•   We will return your checks and automatic payments (such as ACH payments) and you could be assessed fees by 
merchants.

•   We will not authorize ATM and everyday (one-time) debit card transactions into overdraft. If your account is enrolled 
in Debit Card Overdraft Service, the service will also be removed.

We will not authorize certain transactions (such as cashed checks, recurring debit card transactions, or Bill Pay 
transactions) into overdraft. However, if these transactions are authorized when your account has enough money but are 
later presented for payment when your account does not have enough money, we will pay the transaction into overdraft 
and charge an overdraft fee.

Important information about fees:
•   Fees may be assessed with each item paid into overdraft subject to the following:
•   No overdraft fee will be assessed on ATM and everyday (one-time) debit card transactions unless Debit Card 

Overdraft Service is added to your account. The merchant informs us if a debit card transaction is a one-time or 
recurring transaction. An overdraft fee can be assessed on recurring debit card transactions and any other item we 
pay into overdraft.

•   Any overdraft fee assessed will be deducted from your account during the morning of the next business day following 
our nightly process.

•   We will track transactions that reduced your available balance while pending and caused overdraft fees on other 
transactions. If these transactions are presented for payment within 10 business days after they first appeared as 
pending, we will waive any overdraft fees on those transactions. In rare circumstances, the merchant presents 
transactions for payment with a different identification code than was used when the transaction was sent for 
authorization and we are unable to match them.

680

Item 19.



Page 1 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Treasury Management Product Enrollment

Customer Information

Customer Name CEO Company ID 

Street Address 

City State Zip 

Country Name 
Country Code 
(if applicable)

Primary Contact Phone 

Email Address Fax 

CEO® Users Set-up

User Name User ID (if existing)

Select one or more CEO Products for the user(s) listed above:

ACH Payments1 User ACH Payments1 Administrator ACH Fraud Filter Cards2 Payment Manager Online

Other Treasury Management Products not in Administration3 Other Treasury Management Products in Administration4

Cash Vault (specify): Deposit Inquiry Change Orders Inquiry Change Orders Supply Order

Accounts:

ACH IDs (File ID/Company ID):

1 This only covers giving users access to the high level product in the CEO and the ACH application. Additional approval is required to set up detailed product entitlement within the ACH application. 
2 Recognition Card. 
3 Autolink, Bill Manager, Document Retrieval, Electronic Document Delivery, Invoice Manager, Payment and Delivery Preferences, Receivables Manager, Retail Lockbox Image Archive, Reverse Positive Pay, Sweep 
and Fed Funds - Statements and Confirmations, and Wells Fargo Business Online (Single Sign On). 
4 Alerts, ARP Register Maintenance, Basic Banking, Canadian Treasury Services, Cash Concentration, Centralized Disbursements, Centralized Disbursements – Clients, Claims Payments, Deposit Maintenance 
(Smart Decision), Desktop Deposit, E-Box Decisioning, Fed Funds, Image, Image Positive Pay, Item Detail Inquiry Service, Lockbox, Lockbox Correspondence, Payment Manager File Validation Tool, Returned Items, 
SAFE Transmission, Statements and Notices (Client Analysis Statements, Commercial Checking/Savings Account Statements, Deposit Adjustment Notices, Merchant Notices, Multi Currency Account Statements 
and Stop Notices), Supplier Payments, Transaction Search, Treasury Information Reporting, and WellsTAX®.

INTERNAL BANK USE ONLY

Does the customer have Administration, or is it included in the current request? Yes No

CEO® Users Set-up

User Name User ID (if existing)

681

Item 19.



Page 2 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

User Name User ID (if existing)

Select one or more CEO Products for the user(s) listed above:

ACH Payments1 User ACH Payments1 Administrator ACH Fraud Filter Cards2 Payment Manager Online

Other Treasury Management Products not in Administration3

Cash Vault (specify): Deposit Inquiry Change Orders Inquiry Change Orders Supply Order

Accounts:

ACH IDs (File ID/Company ID):

1 This only covers giving users access to the high level product in the CEO and the ACH application. Additional approval is required to set up detailed product entitlement within the ACH application. 
2 Recognition Card. 
3 Autolink, Bill Manager, Document Retrieval, Electronic Document Delivery, Invoice Manager, Payment and Delivery Preferences, Receivables Manager, Retail Lockbox Image Archive, Reverse Positive Pay, Sweep 
& Fed Funds - Statements & Confirmations, & Wells Fargo Business Online (Single Sign On). 
4 Alerts, ARP Register Maintenance, Basic Banking, Canadian Treasury Services, Cash Concentration, Centralized Disbursements, Centralized Disbursements – Clients, Claims Payments, Deposit Maintenance 
(Smart Decision), Desktop Deposit, E-Box Decisioning, Fed Funds, Image, Image Positive Pay, Item Detail Inquiry Service, Lockbox, Lockbox Correspondence, Payment Manager File Validation Tool, Returned Items, 
SAFE Transmission, Statements & Notices (Client Analysis Statements, Commercial Checking/Savings Account Statements, Deposit Adjustment Notices, Merchant Notices, Multi Currency Account Statements and 
Stop Notices), Supplier Payments, Transaction Search, Treasury Information Reporting, & WellsTAX®.

INTERNAL BANK USE ONLY

Does the customer have Administration, or is it included in the current request? Yes No

RSA SecurID Token Request Set-up

Please complete the information below to manage RSA SecurID Tokens for Company and Users 
 
RSA SecurID tokens are mailed to Company Administrators.  If the Company Administrator's mailing address is different than the address 
listed above in the Customer Information section, please indicate the correct mailing address below: 

Company Administrator  
Name

Phone Number 

Street Address (tokens 
cannot be shipped to 
post office boxes):

City 

State Zip 

For new users

• New Token:    To order a token for the first time for a user.
• Assign Token:    To assign a token to a new user from the supply of tokens accumulated in your Company Token Pool. 

For users who have a token today (to request changes for existing users):
• Replace Token:   To order a replacement token for an existing user if there are no tokens available in the Company Token 

Pool.
• Assign Token:    To assign a token to a new user from the supply of tokens available in your Company Token Pool.
• Un-assign Token:   To remove a token from a user and return the token to you Company Token Pool for reassignment.  Please 

begin collecting and securely retaining unassigned tokens instead of discarding them. 
• Delete Token:    To delete a token completely.  This option will remove the token from a user and your Company Token 

Pool.  Once a token is deleted, it can no longer be reused and should be discarded.  Follow your local e-waste 
disposal regulations  to dispose of old tokens.

682

Item 19.



Page 3 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

User Name # 1 User ID (for existing CEO® users) 

Token Serial #* ACH Payments Admin Yes No

New User New Token Assign Token*

Existing User 
(Select one box only)

Replace Token Assign Token* Un-Assign Token* Delete Token*

CEO® Administration Set-up

Type of Request - Select request type with corresponding start date.

New Change (Make selections only for options that should change) Start Date:

Company Administrator - Complete applicable fields.  

Company Administrators automatically gain access to all Administration functions.  If selecting Administrator you will need to specify 
the detailed Administration functionality that should be entitled.   

A minimum of two (2) Company Administrators is required for Dual Custody. 

Each Administrator will be sent a token (unless one has been assigned already) and will be authorized as an administrator for all or 
specific company authorized Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal services.

Company Administrator Name Email Address
Token Serial Number (If 

reassigning existing token)
User ID (if existing)

Administrators

You will need to specify the detailed Administration functionality that should be entitled to an Administrator level user.  

Each Administrator will be sent a token (unless one has been assigned already) and will be authorized as an administrator for all or 
specific company authorized Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal services.  

Administrator # 1 Detailed Setup - Complete applicable fields

Administrator Name Email Address
Token Serial Number  

(If reassigning existing token) User ID (if existing)

User Administration Options

User Maintenance Administrator Maintenance  Reset Password

If granting User Maintenance or Reset Password what users can the Administrator view and manage?

All Users Specific Users

User 
List:

If granting User Maintenance what CEO Services can the user administer?

All CEO Services Specific CEO Services

CEO Services:

683

Item 19.



Page 4 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

If granting User Maintenance what Accounts can the user administer?

All Accounts Specific Accounts

Accounts:

If granting User Maintenance what ACH IDs can the user administer?

All ACH IDs Specific ACH IDs

ACH IDs:

WellsOne Commercial Card use only

All Divisions Specific Divisions

List Divisions that can be administered.

Company Administration Options

Manage User Defined Lists

All User List Specific User List:

Specify User List(s) that can be administered.

All Account List Specific Account List:

Specify Account List(s) that can be administered.

Manage Company Dual Custody Settings Manage Account Nicknames Manage ACH Custom Names

Access to Administration Reports Manage Tokens

Company Service Options

Manage Company Alerts Settings Manage Company Statement and Notices Settings

Manage Company Wires Settings

Custody Option

Single Custody - Non-Standard Security Procedure - Customer has declined to use dual custody, which is part of Bank's standard 
CEO® Administration procedures.  With dual custody, an authenticated second user approves select high-risk activities.  Customer 
has instead elected to use single custody.  With single custody Secure Validation is used for ACH Payments, Foreign Exchange, 
Wires, and Administration activities within CEO Administration.  Customer acknowledges the significantly reduced security, and 
recognizes the risks and losses that may materialize as a result of its decision to use single custody.

Dual Custody - Bank's standard CEO® Administration procedures also include dual custody for select, high-risk activities.  With dual 
custody, an authenticated second user approves these activities.  There is no additional charge for dual custody.

Forced Dual Custody - By selecting this option, you agree that Wells Fargo will control the dual custody settings for all products 
and transactions initiated in the CEO® Administration service.  You will not be able to change the dual custody settings in 
Administration, as these may only be modified by contacting your bank representative.

Customized Forced Dual Custody - By selecting this option, you agree to work with your banker to customize your dual custody 
preferences and select the Administration transactions that will require dual custody.  Once these customizations have been 
established you will not be able to modify or remove them through the CEO® Administration service, as they may only be changed 
by contacting your banker.  If you enroll in a new CEO® product, it will not automatically be placed in dual custody, unless you 
contact you bank representative.

684

Item 19.



Page 5 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Customized Forced Dual Custody Settings - Select the products you would like under dual custody in the CEO® Administration 
service.  Only select products for which your company is enrolled.  Additionally, specify the CEO® Administration service functions 
you would like under dual custody.

Product Custody Settings

ACH Payments (incl. Domestic and International) Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Administration Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Alerts Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Basic Banking Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Canadian Treasury Solutions Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Cash Concentration Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Centralized Disbursements Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Centralized Disbursements - Clients Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Claims Payments Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Credit Management Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Dealer Inventory Finance Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Deposit Maintenance Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Derivatives Access Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Desktop Deposit Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

E Box Decisioning Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Fed Funds Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Foreign Exchange Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Fraud Manager:

ACH Fraud Filter Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

ARP Register Maintenance Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Image Positive Pay Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Image Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Institutional Investing – Reporting Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Item Detail Inquiry Service Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Lockbox Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Payment Manager® Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Returned Items Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

SAFE Transmission Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Statements and Notices Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Supplier Payments Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Transaction Search Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

685

Item 19.



Page 6 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Product Custody Settings

Treasury Information Reporting Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Warehouse Lending Finance Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

WFED - Wells Fargo Electronic Deposit Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Wells Capital Management Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

WellsOne Virtual Card Payments Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

WellsTAX Payments Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

WF Business Online Banking Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Wires Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Administration Settings Custody Settings

Add/Edit User Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Password Reset Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Hide Secret Question and Answer Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Wires Limits and Authorizations Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

Desktop Deposit Company Preferences Forced Dual Custody Single Custody

CEO® Wires Set-up

New Change

Company Authorization - (For existing CEO Wires customers, only complete values in this section if an update is requested.  For 
New requests confirm and update all fields in this section.)

Cumulative Funds Transfer Daily Limit 
(Default - 0)  

Duplicate Check No. Of Days (Default - 10) Default Wire Fee Assignment (select one)

$

Shared (Default)

Beneficiary

Originator

Value Date Roll Forward
File Import 

(File Import and Payment Manager Import)
Get Rate

Yes No (Default) Yes (Default) No Yes (Default) No

Additional Approver Limits (Optional)

Wires $ Book Transfer $ Drawdown $

Complete the following regarding Funds Transfer Information for specific payment types – (For new and existing CEO Wires 
customers, only complete values in this section if an update is requested. For New requests; at least one (1) Wire Type must be 
selected). 

Wire Type Services Allowed
Number of Verifiers for Templated 

Wires (default is 1)
Numbers of Verifiers for 

Freeform Wires (default is 1

Wire Transfers (Domestic, Intl 
and Federal Tax Payment)

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

N/A - No Change N/A - No Change

686

Item 19.



Page 7 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Drawdown

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

N/A - No Change N/A - No Change

Book Transfer

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

N/A - No Change N/A - No Change

Template Maintenance Not Applicable N/A - No Change Not Applicable

Account Authorization - Account Services Limits

(For existing CEO Wires customers, only complete values in this section if an update is requested. For New customers at least one 
(1) account in this section is required).

Account Number Cumulative Daily Limit Associated Application

$ Wires Drawdowns Book Transfers Template Maintenance

$ Wires Drawdowns Book Transfers Template Maintenance

$ Wires Drawdowns Book Transfers Template Maintenance

Company Default Settings (Optional User Limits)

For companies choosing to utilize Company Default User Settings (Default User Limits); complete all fields to specify optional 
default limits for users. Enter User information below and select the Use Company Default Limit checkbox.

Application Type
Individual Create/ 

Modify/ 
Delete Limit

Cumulative Daily Create/
Modify/Delete Limit

Individual Approve/Reject 
Limit

Cumulative Daily Approve/
Reject Limit

Wire Transfers 

Drawdown

Book Transfer

Template 
Maintenance

-------------- -------------- -------------- --------------

User # 1 Information - Complete all fields 

User Name User ID (if CEO user) 

User Settings

(For new and existing CEO Wires customers, only complete values in this section if an update is requested. For 
New customers without Administration; at least one (1) user in this section is required. Note: For customers in dual 
custody without Administration at least two (2) users are required).

Get Rate File Import

Yes No Yes No

687

Item 19.



Page 8 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Services  Type Allowed
Individual 

Create/Modify/
Delete Limit

Individual 
Approve/Reject 

Limit

Cumulative Daily 
Approve/Reject 

Limit

Additional 
Approver Limit*

Cumulative 
Create/Modify/

Delete Limit

Wire Transfer

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

Book Transfers

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

Drawdowns

Templated Only

Freeform Only

Templated and Freeform

User Account Authorizations - Provide account number and funds transfer service authorization type.

Account Number

Wires Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Book Transfers Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Drawdowns Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Template 
Maintenance

Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Account Number

Wires Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Book Transfers Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Drawdowns Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Template 
Maintenance

Create/Modify/Delete Approve/Reject

Voice Wires Set-up

Type of Request: New Update Existing Information Delete Existing Information

Account Numbers (list accounts to be debited for each wire transfer)

1)

G/L DDA

2)

G/L DDA

3)

G/L DDA

Advice Information (additional fees apply for these services)

 For Fax or E-mail notification on intraday wire activity use the InfoFax setup form.

Mail Advice (this paper based service is no longer available to add) Delete Mail Advice

Mailing address for PINs (if blank, items will be mailed to address on primary statement mailing address)

Mail PINs to:

Authorized Callers (people authorized to initiate wires)

$ Limit = Use "N" if unlimited.  The limit applies to all functions unless noted otherwise.  If no limit is noted we will set the limit as 
unlimited. 
 
Initiation Type = If no Initiation Type is noted, we will set the individual up for both Repetitive and Non-Repetitive Wire Initiation.  
Complete by checking appropriate box: R=Repetitive / B=Both Repetitive and Non-Repetitive.

Authorized Callers 
First and Last Name

$ Limit
Phone Number 

including area code
Initiation Type

R B

Alternate Account to be Charged for Wire Fees

688

Item 19.



Page 9 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

List account only if wire fees are to be assessed to this account. (Alternate account to be charged must be an Analyzed 
account. Not available to Retail customers.)

DDA AU and G/L

Optional Verify Callback Service (does not apply to repetitive wires)

Selecting this fee-based service requires a minimum of two persons with wire transfer authority because the initiator of a wire 
cannot also approve the wire.  If the form does not indicate an Authorized Approver other than the initiator, the optional Verify 
Callback Service cannot be provided.

Authorized Approvers 
first and last name

$ Limit
Phone Number 

including area code

Payment Authorization Service

This service is part of, and will be subject to the terms and conditions stated in the Commercial Account Agreement ("Agreement").  
This set-up form supersedes any and all prior payment authorization service forms set up on the referenced account numbers. 

Termination:  The Service(s) may be immediately terminated by you or us at any time with or without cause by giving written notice 
to the other party.

Type of Request - Select request type.  (Refer to the reference guide for complete instructions.)

Account-specific Request

Add Payment Authorization Service 
features checked below to all existing 
Subaccounts listed under the Master 
Account – 
NOTE: Must attach subaccount list.  
Does not apply to Maximum Check 
Amount Authorized Payment Service.

Blanket Company Level Approval – 
Checking this box covers all future accounts 
and/or subaccounts owned by the specified 
legal entity.  (A separate form must be 
completed for each legal entity.)

For Account-specific requests, enter individual account number or Master account number. Does not apply to Blanket Company Level 
Approval and do not list all Subaccounts.

Maximum Check Amount Authorized Payment Service (not available in conjunction with Positive Pay or Perfect Presentment)

SERVICE: Under the Maximum Check Amount Authorized Payment Service (the "Service") we will automatically (without your 
specific approval) return unpaid (marked "REFER TO MAKER") checks presented to us drawn against your account specified below 
which exceeds the Maximum Dollar Authorized Payment Amount specified below:

Check one: Add Service Change Amount Delete Service

Maximum Dollar Authorized Payment Amount: 

Account Number(s):

Maximum Check Cashing Amount Authorized Payment Service (not available in conjunction with Positive Pay or Perfect Presentment)

SERVICE: Under the Maximum Check Cashing Amount Authorized Payment Service (the "Service") we will (without your specific 
approval) refuse encashment of checks presented to us through our branch/store network drawn against your account specified 
below which exceed the Maximum Check Cash Amount specified below: 

Check one: Add Service Change Amount Delete Service

Maximum Dollar Authorized Payment Amount:

Account Number(s):

689

Item 19.



Page 10 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Maximum Over the Counter Amount Authorized Payment Service

SERVICE: Under the Maximum Over the Counter Amount Authorized Payment Service (the "Service") we will (without your specific 
approval) refuse withdrawal requests presented to us through our branch/store network drawn against your account specified 
below which exceeds the Maximum Over the Counter Withdrawal Amount  specified below

Check one: Add Service Change Amount Delete Service

Maximum Over the Counter Withdrawal:

Account Number(s):

Checks to Individuals Authorized Payment Service 

SERVICE: Under the Checks to Individuals Authorized Payment Service (the "Service") we will (without your specific approval) 
refuse encashment of checks presented to us through our branch/store network drawn against your account specified below for 
any item made payable to an individual.

Check one: Add Service Delete Service

Account Number(s):

Customer Legal Entity Information

The enrollment contains ACH, Wire or Sweep services the following Customer Entities: 

Customer Legal Entity Name(s) Entity ID Type Entity ID

Select One

Designation of Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep® Option

Customer DDA(s)

Statements and/or Confirmations will be sent to Customer by electronic means unless otherwise requested by Customer.  
Electronic means include Bank's Commercial Electronic Office®, facsimile and/or Secure E-Mail. 

The Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep® Service Description can be viewed by pasting this link into an internet browser window: 

https://wellsoffice.wellsfargo.com/ceopub/assets/pdf/stgcoach-swp/Stagecoach_Sweep_Service_Description.pdf

690

Item 19.



Page 11 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Investment Sweep

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Preferred Option. 

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Repurchase Agreement Option with secondary Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep, 
Preferred Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Repurchase Agreement Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Fed Funds Purchased Agreement Option. (Correspondent Bank Only)

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Fed Funds Sold Agreement Option. (Correspondent Bank Only)

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Wells Fargo Stagecoach Sweep Fed Funds Purchased and Sold Agreement Option. (Correspondent Bank Only)

Add Change

Target Balance:

Money Market Mutual Fund Sweep

Customer elects the Allspring Treasury Plus Money Market Fund - Class A - Fund 453 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring Treasury Plus MMMF- Service Class - Fund 454 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring 100% Treasury Money Market Fund - Service Class - Fund 8 Option.

691

Item 19.



Page 12 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring Government MMMF Admin Class - Fund 947 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring Government MMMF Institutional - Fund 1751 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring Government MMMF Select Class - Fund 3802 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Customer elects the Allspring Treasury Plus MMMF Institutional - Fund 793 Option.

Add Change

Target Balance:

Credit Sweep

Customer elects Bank's Credit Sweep Option.  

Add Change

Target Balance:

Obligor # (if applicable):

Loan # (Obligation):

Wire Transfer Services - Security Procedure Elections

For detail on the Security Procedure for an applicable initiation method, refer to the language in the Treasury Management Security 
Procedures Reference Guide. The Initiation Method(s) and Security Procedure(s) Customer has elected for Wire Transfers are:

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) - Dual Custody

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) - Single Custody

Payment Manager® - Secure Application File Exchange Transmission ("SAFE-T")

Payment Manager® - Machine-to-Machine ("M2M")

Payment Manager® - IBM® Connect:Direct®  with Secure Plus+

Payment Manager® - Value-Added Network ("VAN")

Payment Manager® - SWIFT® FileAct

692

Item 19.



Page 13 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

Wells Fargo Gateway (API)

Voice

Bank's voice initiation security procedure consists of confirming (a) the personal identification number ("PIN") accompanying a 
Payment Order corresponds with a valid PIN assigned to Customer for voice-initiated Payment Orders and (b) the voice print 
provided when placing a Payment Order matches the print registered for the PIN holder.

Optional Verify Callback Service.  If Bank receives a voice-initiated, non-repetitive Payment Order of $

or more, Bank will make one attempt to telephone an individual authorized to approve wires ("Authorized Approver"), not the 
initiator, to verify that Payment Order is authorized.  A PIN and voice print are required to authenticate each Authorized Approver.  
If Bank is unable to (a) contact and authenticate or (b) obtain approval from an Authorized Approver, the wire will not be processed. 

SWIFT®

ACH Origination Services - Security Procedure Elections

For detail on the Security Procedure for an applicable initiation method, refer to the language in the Treasury Management Security 
Procedures Reference Guide. The Initiation Method(s) and Security Procedure(s) Customer has elected for ACH are:

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) - Dual Custody

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) - Dual Custody with User Approve Own Entitlements

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) - Single Custody

Direct Origination - Secure Application File Exchange Transmission ("SAFE-T")

Direct Origination - IBM® Connect:Direct®  with Secure Plus+

Direct Origination - SWIFT® FileAct

Wells Fargo Gateway (API)

Payment Manager® - Secure Application File Exchange Transmission ("SAFE-T")

Payment Manager® - Machine-to-Machine ("M2M")

Payment Manager® - IBM® Connect:Direct®  with Secure Plus+

Payment Manager® - Value-Added Network ("VAN")

Payment Manager® - SWIFT® FileAct

Third Party Service Provider

Third Party Service Provider:

Contact Person:

Telephone: Fax: 

RTP Services

For detail on the applicable initiation method, refer to the language in the Treasury Management Security Procedures Reference Guide. 
The Initiation Method(s) and Security Procedure(s) Customer has elected for RTP are:

Wells Fargo Gateway (API)

Bill Manager Service

For detail on the applicable initiation method, refer to the language in the Treasury Management Security Procedures Reference Guide. 

693

Item 19.



Page 14 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

The Initiation Method and Security Procedure Customer has elected for Bill Manager is:

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) 

E-Bill Express Service

For detail on the applicable initiation method, refer to the language in the Treasury Management Security Procedures Reference Guide. 
The Initiation Method and Security Procedure Customer has elected for E-Bill Express is:

Bill File Inbound - SAFE-T

AR File Outbound - SAFE-T

CEO® EDD, Electronic Document Delivery Set-up - For Company and 
Customer(Biller) ID

Type of Request
Customer (Biller) ID 
(must be associated with the 

CEO Company ID)

CEO User Name CEO User Id Role (select one)

Add

Change

Delete

View only (default)

View and Authorize

Customer (Biller) 
Administrator

Add

Change

Delete

View only (default)

View and Authorize

Customer (Biller) 
Administrator

Add

Change

Delete

View only (default)

View and Authorize

Customer (Biller) 
Administrator

Add

Change

Delete

View only (default)

View and Authorize

Customer (Biller) 
Administrator

Zero Balance Account (ZBA)

Request Type Master Account Child Account Cycle Target Balance

Add Change

694

Item 19.



Page 15 of 15© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., All rights reserved. 
TM Product Enrollment 
TM-1500 (Rev 08/20/2021)

International Zero Balance Account (ZBA)

Level 2 Accounts

Request 
Type

Child Account(s) Currency
Transfer  
Funds To

Sweep Type
Target  

Balance
Minimum 
Balance

Maximum 
Balance

Add

Change

Debit*

Credit*

Target

Maximum

*One-way Sweep

Level 3 Accounts

Request 
Type

Child Account(s) Currency
Transfer  
Funds To

Sweep Type
Target  

Balance
Minimum 
Balance

Maximum 
Balance

Add

Change

Debit*

Credit*

Target

Maximum

*One-way Sweep

Customer Approval  - (Authorized Signature Required)

Each person who signs this form on Customer's behalf is authorized to do so by resolution, agreement or other legally 
sufficient action of the governing body of Customer, if Customer is not an individual, or is an Authorized Signer on 
Customer's account.

Printed Name of Authorized Signer Phone

Signature Date

Voice Wire Only - Submitter Information and Instructions

Submitter Name Submitter Phone

Submitter E-mail Submitter Fax

NOTE:  If Voice Wire is a component of this form, once the customer approves and signs the form, the Banker/Relationship Manager 
must approve and sign the form, then fax it to Wire Implementation at 866-922-6202 from a valid Wells Fargo Fax.  File copies in
your location's record-retention file.

695

Item 19.



Acceptance of Services 
(EDOCS#17849129 Rev. 05/26/20) 

Page 1 of 2 

Acceptance of Services

1. Agreement to be Bound by Service Documentation  
 

By signing this Acceptance of Services ("Agreement"), the customer identified on the 
signature block ("Customer" or "Company") confirms that it has received and agrees to 
be bound by the Service Documentation for the Treasury Management Services (each, 
a "Service"). Customer may also be referred to as "Company" in the Service 
Documentation. "Service Documentation" is defined in Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.'s 
("Bank") Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.  Customer's use of any 
Service, including each Service Customer enrolls in, confirms Customer's receipt of and 
agreement to be bound by the Service Documentation relating to that Service. 

2. Power and Authority of Signer 
 

Customer has granted the person(s) signing this Agreement the authority on 
Customer's behalf to (i) enter into this Agreement and other agreements with Bank for 
Services on or after the Effective Date of this Agreement and (ii) amend, terminate or 
otherwise act on behalf of Customer with respect to this Agreement and the Services. 

3. Security Procedures 
 

Unless otherwise agreed, Customer agrees that "Security Procedure" is the applicable 
security procedure described in the Service Documentation for Customer's Initiation 
Method for the Service, which Bank will use to verify the authenticity of a Transaction. 
The term "Initiation Method" refers to the method Bank offers in the product 
enrollment form ("Set-up Form") or other Service Documentation for delivering 
Customer's Transaction instructions to Bank with respect to the applicable Service and 
includes any applicable transmission protocols.  The term "Transaction" means (i) any 
funds transfer or payment instruction (including any communication cancelling or 
amending an instruction), and (ii) any instruction, data or other information which Bank 
receives in Customer's name with respect to a funds transfer. 
 
The purpose of the Security Procedure is to verify the authenticity of the Transaction. 
Bank will not use the Security Procedure to detect an erroneous or duplicate 
transaction. Customer will be responsible for any erroneous or duplicate transaction 
Bank receives in Customer's name.  Customer agrees to be bound by each Transaction, 
whether or not authorized by Customer, issued in Customer's name and accepted by 
Bank in compliance with the Security Procedure for the Service.  

696

Item 19.



Acceptance of Services 
(EDOCS#17849129 Rev. 05/26/20)  
© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved

Page 2 of 2 

4. Commercially Reasonable 
 

Customer acknowledges that it has had an opportunity to review the Security 
Procedures offered by Bank in the Security Procedure Reference Guide, available on our 
Commercial Electronic Office portal.  Customer agrees that each Security Procedure for 
the Initiation Method Customer has elected in the Set-up Form or other Service 
Documentation for each of its Services (a) best meets Customer's requirements with 
regard to the size, type and frequency of its Transactions, and (b) is commercially 
reasonable.   
 
If Customer has refused to use a standard Security Procedure and elects a non-
standard Security Procedure, then Customer expressly agrees that the non-standard 
Security Procedure(s) Customer has elected better meets Customer's requirements 
than any standard Security Procedure with regard to the size, type and frequency of 
Transactions issued by Customer to Bank and is commercially reasonable. 

5. Confidentiality of Security Procedure and Authentication devices/passwords 
 

Customer and Bank will preserve the confidentiality of the Security Procedure(s) and 
any passwords, codes, security devices and related instructions provided by Bank.  If 
one party becomes aware of a breach, or suspects that a breach may occur, it will 
promptly notify the other party.  Customer will maintain effective internal procedures 
to safeguard against any unauthorized Transaction and warrants that no individual will 
be allowed to initiate a Transaction without proper supervision and safeguards. 

Customer Name(s)

Printed Name of Authorized Representative

Signature

Date

697

Item 19.



© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved.
Revised March 2022

Master Agreement for 
Treasury Management Services
The Service Documentation contains the terms under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and the banks, branches or 
subsidiaries listed in Appendix X (collectively, "Bank") provide you treasury management services (each a "Service"). 
"You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll 
in a Service ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Master 
Agreement for Treasury Management Services ("Agreement") are defined in this document.

You and we agree:

1. Service documentation.  The Service Documentation contains the terms governing each Service and includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the specific Service),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. This Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all Services),
d. The account agreement governing the account(s) (each, an "Account") you use in connection with the Service,
e. The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each Service in which you are enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, 

instructions, and notices).

The documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together as one 
agreement between you and us. This Agreement and the Service Descriptions for Services you enroll in are posted at our 
Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of the Service 
Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your receipt of, and agreement 
to be bound by, this Agreement and all Service Documentation.

2. Services. You and we will agree upon the Services to be provided and the start date for each Service. Each Service is 
subject to the approval by our applicable branch or subsidiary.  We will notify you when you have completed all 
requirements for enrolling in the Service and the Service is ready for you to use.

3. Changes to services. We may change (or add to) the terms and fees in the Service Documentation at any time. If a 
change to a Service requires a change to the Service Documentation, we will post the document(s) with the change 
on the CEO portal. When required by Applicable Law, we will notify you of the change. If you continue to use a 
Service after a change takes effect, you will be bound by the change. As used in this Agreement, the term "Applicable 
Law" means all applicable laws (including common or customary laws), statutes, constitutions, policies, decrees, 
judgments, treaties, regulations, directives, by-laws, rulings, orders or operating circulars governing our activities and/
or any Transaction (see section 6-a) governed by this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the funds transfer 
system and clearing and settlement house rules.

4. Term and termination. Unless a Service is terminated in accordance with the Service Documentation, this Agreement 
and each Service will continue in effect until terminated by either party upon 30 days' prior written notice to the other 
party.  When a Service is terminated for any reason, the Service Documentation governing the terminated Service is 
also terminated.

We may suspend or terminate any Service:

698

Item 19.



Page 2 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

a. After we notify you of a breach of any provision of the Service Documentation or any other agreement with us, 
and you fail to cure the breach (if it can be cured) within 15 days of the date of the notice; or

b. Without prior notice to you if:
i. We reasonably suspect that an Account associated with a Service has been compromised or otherwise 

subject to irregular, unauthorized, fraudulent, or illegal activity,
ii. You become subject to any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding, or any receivership, liquidation, 

reorganization, or other similar proceeding, or you enter into any agreement or proceeding for voluntary 
liquidation, dissolution, composition with or assignment for the benefit of creditors or other winding up,

iii. We determine in our sole discretion that continuing to provide a Service may place us at risk of financial 
loss or result in an unacceptable credit exposure,

iv. Any guaranty of your obligations to us ("Guaranty") is terminated, revoked, or its validity contested by the 
guarantor ("Guarantor"),

v. We determine in our sole discretion that a material adverse change has occurred in your ability to perform 
your obligations under the Service Documentation, or in the ability of a Guarantor to perform its 
obligations under a Guaranty, or

vi. The Account necessary to provide a Service is closed.

The termination of a Service will not affect your or our respective rights and obligations with respect to the Service(s) 
provided before the termination including without limitation Transactions. We will not be liable to you for any losses or 
damages you may incur as a result of any termination of any Service or termination or restriction of any CEO portal 
access rights under section 9(d) below.

5. Service fees. You will pay us the fees described in the Service Documentation and any taxes applicable to each 
Service, however designated, but excluding taxes based on our net income. We may debit your Account for any fees 
not covered by earnings credits and any taxes that are due, or we may send you an invoice for these amounts, which 
you will promptly pay. Our charges and fees are in the applicable fee schedule for Services used in connection with 
your Account.

6. Security procedures.
a. Unless otherwise agreed, you agree that "Security Procedure" is the applicable security procedure described in 

the Service Documentation for your Initiation Method for the Service, which we will use to verify the authenticity of 
a Transaction. The term "Initiation Method" refers to the method we offer in the product enrollment form ("Set-up 
Form") or other Service Documentation for delivering your Transaction instructions to us with respect to the 
applicable Service and includes any applicable transmission protocols. The term "Transaction" means (i) any 
funds transfer, payment order, or payment instruction (including any communication cancelling or amending an 
instruction), and (ii) any instruction, data or other information which we receive in your name with respect to a 
funds transfer. The purpose of the Security Procedure is to verify the authenticity of the Transaction. We will not 
use the Security Procedure to detect an erroneous or duplicate transaction. You will be responsible for any 
erroneous or duplicate transaction we receive in your name. You agree to be bound by each Transaction, whether 
or not authorized by you, issued in your name and accepted by us in compliance with the Security Procedure for 
the Service.

b. You agree that each Security Procedure for the Initiation Method in the Set-up Form or other Service 
Documentation for each of the Services (a) best meets your requirements with regard to the size, type and 
frequency of your Transactions, and (b) is commercially reasonable. 

7. Confidential information. Unless otherwise stated in the Service Documentation, "Confidential Information" means all 
(a) User Guides and Terms of Use, and (b) Security Procedures, passwords, codes, security devices and related 
instructions. You will not acquire any ownership interest in or rights to Confidential Information as a result of your use 
of any Service.

You will:
a. Maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information,

699

Item 19.



Page 3 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

b. Not disclose (or permit your employees or agents to disclose), copy, transfer, sublicense, or otherwise 
make any of it available to any person or entity, other than your employees who have a need to use the 
Confidential Information in connection with the applicable Service, and 

c. Not decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, modify, or create derivative works of any Confidential 
Information.

You will notify us immediately if you know of or suspect any unauthorized disclosure, possession, use, or knowledge 
(each, an "Unauthorized Use") of any Confidential Information. If you (or your employees or agents) are responsible 
for the Unauthorized Use, you will, at your expense, promptly take all actions, including initiating court proceedings to 
recover possession and prevent further Unauthorized Use of the Confidential Information. You will also compensate 
us for any injury caused to us as a result of the Unauthorized Use.

8. Currency conversion. When your instructions require us to convert the amount of a Transaction from the currency in 
which the Account is denominated ("Account Currency") to another currency ("Foreign Currency"), we will do so using 
the Applicable Exchange Rate in effect at the time we execute your Transaction. "Applicable Exchange Rate" means 
the exchange rate we set and use for you when we convert one currency to another currency and includes a markup. 
The markup factors include costs incurred, market risks and our desired return. The exchange rate we provide to you 
may be different from the exchange rates you see elsewhere. Foreign exchange rates are dynamic, and rates 
fluctuate over time based on market conditions, liquidity, and risks.

If a financial institution designated to receive the funds does not pay the beneficiary specified in the Transaction, and 
the funds are returned to us, we will not be liable to you for a sum greater than the amount of the Transaction after 
we have converted it from the Foreign Currency to the Account Currency using the Applicable Exchange Rate in 
effect at the time the funds are returned to us. You accept the risks of any change in the Applicable Exchange Rate 
between the time you request a Transaction and the time the Transaction is either completed or is unwound due to a 
cancellation, an amendment, a rejection, or a return.

9. CEO portal.
a. Description of the CEO portal. The CEO portal is our electronic banking portal that is accessed through the 

Internet. Your Authorized Agents (defined below) may use the CEO portal to access (i) Services in which you 
have separately enrolled and (ii) third-party sites we may make available through the CEO portal. We offer 
different channels through which you may access the CEO portal, including personal computers and mobile 
devices. We may add or eliminate channels at any time. A Service or third party site accessible through one 
channel may not be accessible through another channel.

b. Access to the CEO portal. When you enroll in the CEO portal, and as we may determine is necessary after 
enrollment, we will provide Log-On Credentials (defined below) to the persons who are authorized to access the 
CEO portal on your behalf (each, an "Authorized Agent"). Log-On Credentials mean one or more secure methods 
we provide to access the Services and may include user IDs, passwords, token IDs, and other methods that we 
adopt from time to time. We have no obligation to separately verify or authenticate any communication we receive 
in your name through the CEO portal, whether or not it was actually from an Authorized Agent. You assume the 
entire risk of (i) unauthorized use of your Log-On Credentials and (ii) unencrypted electronic transmissions.

c. Administration of the CEO portal. We offer two options for administering the CEO portal: (i) Administration and (ii) 
Bank administration.

i. Administration. If you enroll in the Administration option, there are three categories of Authorized Agents: 
Company Administrator, Administrator, or User. Unless you and we separately agree, we will provide 
Log-On Credentials only to your initial Company Administrator(s) who will (a) assign Log-On Credentials 
to other individuals and (b) designate those individuals as one of the following:

(1) A Company Administrator, who may perform all functions of your initial Company Administrator,
(2) An Administrator, who may perform all functions of an Administrator including designating other 

Administrator(s) and User(s), or
(3) A User, who may access the Services designated by a Company Administrator or an 

Administrator, as well as those Services in which we permit a User to self-enroll.
700

Item 19.



Page 4 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

Each Company Administrator and Administrator has the authority to enroll you in additional Services. In 
addition to your use of Administration as described in this subsection, you may request that we assign 
Log-On Credentials to Users that you designate in writing to us. Your designation to us will specify the 
Services which the User is authorized to access in addition to those Services in which we permit a User 
to self-enroll.

ii. Bank administration. For the Bank administration option, there is one category of Authorized Agent: 
Users. We will assign Log-On Credentials to each User you designate.

You will promptly revoke the Log-On Credentials of any Authorized Agent or User when that individual is no 
longer authorized to access the CEO portal. If you notify us in writing to revoke the Log-On Credentials of an 
Authorized Agent or User, we will have a reasonable time after receiving your written notification to revoke the 
individual's access.

d. Terminating access. We may terminate or restrict any Authorized Agent's access to any Service through the CEO 
portal if we determine such use:

i. Does not comply with any term applicable to the CEO portal,
ii. Is not permitted by Applicable Law,
iii. Is not authorized by you or any third party whose authorization we believe is necessary, or
iv. Should be denied for your or our protection (without us agreeing to or being required to make this 

determination in any circumstance).
e. Financial information. Financial market data, quotes, news, research, and other financial information developed 

by third parties and transmitted to us ("Financial Information") may be available to you at the CEO portal. The 
posting of any Financial Information or any other information or data at the CEO portal is not a recommendation 
by us of any particular Service oraction. We do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of any Financial 
Information, nor are we responsible for (i) the actions or omissions of the third parties developing or transmitting 
Financial Information or (ii) any decision you make or action you take by relying on any Financial Information.

f. Miscellaneous. For purposes of this section 9 only, "Service" includes each service and product we or any of our 
affiliates offer that you access through the CEO portal. This section 9 will survive the termination of any Service or 
this Agreement.

10. Alerts.
a. Non-subscribed alerts. When you enroll in the CEO portal or other channels or Services, you consent to receiving 

by email or other delivery channels, servicing messages that we determine are important or urgent. You do not 
need to subscribe to receive such alerts and you do not pay additional service fees.

b. Subscribed alerts. You may also enroll in fee-based alerts for applicable Services so that you can receive 
messages you subscribe to at the intervals and through delivery channels that you choose.

11. Liability and indemnification. 
a. We are not obligated to honor, in whole or in part, any Transaction or other instruction that:

i. Exceeds the available balance in the Account, unless otherwise provided in the Service Documentation,
ii. Does not comply with the Service Documentation or our applicable policies, procedures, or practices 

made available to you,
iii. We have reason to believe may not have been duly authorized, should not be honored for our or your 

protection, or involves funds subject to a hold, dispute, restriction, or legal process, or
iv. Would possibly result in us not complying with Applicable Law.

b. Neither we nor our software vendors make any express or implied representations or warranties with respect to 
the Services or any software used in connection with the Services, including any warranty as to the 
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, other than those expressly set forth in the Service 
Documentation.

c. Any claim, action, or proceeding against us for losses or damages arising from a Service, must be brought within 
one year from the date of the act or omission, except as otherwise stated in the account agreement governing the 
Account.

701

Item 19.



Page 5 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

d. We will have no liability for our failure to perform or delay in performing a Service if the failure or delay is due to 
circumstances beyond our reasonable control. If we determine that any funds transfer or communications 
network, Internet service provider, or other system used to provide a Service is unavailable, inaccessible, or 
otherwise unsuitable for use by you or us, we may, upon notice to you, suspend or discontinue the affected 
Service.

e. We will only be liable to you for actual damages incurred as a direct result of our failure to exercise reasonable 
care in providing the Services. Reasonable care requires only that we follow standards that do not vary 
unreasonably from the general standards followed by similarly situated banks. Our policies and procedures are 
general internal guidelines for our use and do not establish a higher standard of care for us than otherwise 
established under Applicable Law. A mere clerical error or an honest mistake will not be considered a failure by 
us to perform any of our obligations. Our liability to you will be limited to an amount not greater than 10 times our 
fees incurred in the calendar month immediately before the calendar month in which the loss or damages were 
incurred (or, if no fees were incurred in that month, our fees incurred in the month in which the losses or damages 
were incurred).

f. Except in the case of our negligence or intentional misconduct, you will indemnify and hold us, our directors, 
officers, employees and agents ("Representatives") harmless from all losses or damages that arise out of:

i. The performance of a Service in compliance with the Service Documentation, including any warranty we 
are required to make to a third party in connection with a Service,

ii. An act or omission of any of your agents, couriers, or Authorized Agents, and
iii. If the Service includes a license or sublicense of any software, any use or distribution of the software by 

you or any person gaining access to the software through you that is inconsistent with the license or 
sublicense.

You will promptly provide us with written proof of loss, and notify us if you become aware of any third party claim 
related to a Service. You will cooperate fully (and at your own expense) with us in recovering a loss. If we 
reimburse you, we or our designee will be subrogated to all of your rights (i.e., we will be entitled to assert any 
legal rights you had relating to the claim).

g. Except as expressly provided otherwise in the Service Documentation, neither party nor its Representatives will 
be liable to the other party for:

i. Any special, consequential, incidental (including court costs and attorneys' fees), indirect, or punitive 
losses or damages, or

ii. Business interruption, loss of profits, loss of business, loss of revenue, loss of goodwill, loss of opportunity, 
loss or injury to reputation, or loss of anticipated savings, whether any claim is based on contract or tort, or 
whether the likelihood of these losses or damages was known to the other party and regardless of the 
form of the claim or action.

h. When you send payments on behalf of your third party customers, you agree you are solely liable to your 
customers for any and all losses those customers may suffer. We exclude all and any liability of whatever nature 
(including those losses detailed in subsection g above) arising out of your relationship with your customer.

12. Governing law. The Service Documentation will be governed by: (a) U.S. federal law and (b) the law of (i) the U.S. 
state in which the office of Bank that maintains the Account is located or, if there is no such state or no account 
associated with such Service, (ii) the State of New York, without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws 
("Governing Law").

13. Arbitration agreement. Upon demand by you or us, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or 
the breach thereof, must be submitted to arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") 
under its Commercial Arbitration Rules, and must be heard before three arbitrators if the amount in dispute is U.S. 
$5,000,000 or more or its equivalent in any other currency, and before one arbitrator for amounts in dispute of less 
than U.S. $5,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currency. Arbitration will proceed in a location selected by AAA in 
the state of the applicable Governing Law, and if there is no such state, the place of arbitration must be New York, 
NY. The language of the arbitration must be English. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be 
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This arbitration requirement does not limit the right of you or us to: (a)

702

Item 19.



Page 6 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

exercise self-help remedies including setoff or (b) obtain provisional or ancillary remedies such as injunctive relief or 
attachment, before, during or after the pendency of any arbitration proceeding. This exclusion does not constitute a 
waiver of the right or obligation of you or us to submit any dispute to arbitration hereunder, including those arising 
from the exercise of the actions detailed in (a) and (b) of this section.

14. Jurisdiction. For any proceedings regarding this Agreement (not subject to arbitration as provided in this Agreement), 
you hereby irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Borough of Manhattan, New York City, in the 
State of New York or the federal courts located there and irrevocably agree that all claims in relating to the proceeding 
may be heard or determined in those courts.

15. Miscellaneous.
a. Severability. Any portion of the Service Documentation which is inconsistent with Applicable Law or Governing 

Law will be deemed modified and applied in a manner consistent therewith, and we will incur no liability to you as 
a result of the inconsistency or modification and application to any dispute regarding the Service Documentation. 
If any portion or provision of the Service Documentation is deemed unenforceable, it will not affect the 
enforceability or validity of the remaining Service Documentation nor the enforceability or validity of that portion or 
provision under the law of any other jurisdiction.

b. Entire agreement. The Service Documentation (and any documents referred to therein):
i. Constitutes the entire agreement between you and us regarding the Services we provide for all Accounts 

opened with us, and
ii. Supersedes and extinguishes all prior agreements, understandings, representations and warranties of any 

nature (including requests for proposals and other sales material), whether oral or written, between you 
and us relating to any of our Services (including any other Master Agreement for Treasury Management 
Services, but excluding the current Commercial Account Agreement or Global Commercial Account 
Agreement, as applicable).

c. Electronic agreement. To facilitate execution, the Service Documentation may be executed by a party in the form 
of an "Electronic Record" (as defined in the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act at 15 
U.S.C. §7001 et seq. ["ESIGN Act"]). The Service Documentation may be executed in as many counterparts as 
may be required to reflect all parties' approval, and all counterparts will collectively constitute a single agreement. 
An "Electronic Signature" (as defined in the ESIGN Act) that can be authenticated will constitute an original and 
binding signature of a party. The fact that a document is in the form of an Electronic Record or is signed using an 
Electronic Signature will not, in and of itself, be grounds for invalidating such document.

d. No waiver. Neither our failure nor any delay by us in exercising any right or remedy will be deemed to be a waiver 
of the right or remedy. No course of dealing or waiver of any right on one occasion will constitute a modification of 
the Service Documentation or be a waiver of that right on a subsequent occasion.

e. Third party beneficiaries. Except as otherwise provided in the Service Documentation, no person or entity other 
than the parties to this Agreement will be deemed to be a third party beneficiary under the Service 
Documentation.

f. Financial condition. You will provide us promptly upon our request any existing financial statements or other 
information pertaining to your financial condition or any previously unprepared financial statements which we may 
require you to prepare and/or to be audited or reviewed by independent certified public accountants acceptable to 
us.

g. Your representations and warranties. You represent and warrant that: (i) you will not use any Service in a manner 
that would violate any Applicable Law by you or us; (ii) if you employ an agent in connection with its use of any 
Service, you represent and warrant to us that: (1) your governing body has duly authorized the agent; (2) you will 
exercise appropriate controls to ensure each authorized agent does not exceed the authority granted to it; and (3) 
you will preserve the confidentiality of the Log-On Credentials and immediately notify us if you become aware or 
suspect that any Log-On Credential may have been compromised.

h. Use of names. You and we will not use each other's name or refer to our relationship in any solicitation, 
marketing material, advertisement, news release, or other written, online or oral communication without specific 
prior written consent for each such use or release, except that we may use your name as a reference in service 
proposals if we obtain your prior written approval for such use.

703

Item 19.



Page 7 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

i. Notices and communications.Either party may provide notice to the other party by mail, personal delivery, or 
electronic transmission.

i. You will notify us promptly in writing of any change in your name, Address, legal status, or any other 
changes relevant to the conduct of the Account or affecting your business relationship with us.

ii. The term "Address" as used in this Agreement refers to a mailing or electronic address.
iii. You will use the Address where your relationship manager or other manager is located and will address 

any notice to the attention of the manager.
iv. Each party will have a reasonable time after receipt of any notice to act on it.
v. Any communication or notice to us from your agent about your use of a Service will be deemed to be a 

communication from you, and you authorize us to communicate with your agent about any such 
communication or Service.

vi. We are entitled to rely on any communication or notice from you that we believe in good faith was 
authorized by your authorized representative or Authorized Agent and, we will have no obligation to verify 
or authenticate an identity of a sender or signature on any notice or communication, except as expressly 
provided in the Service Documentation.

16. Survival. Sections 7, 9, 11 - 15 will survive termination of the Services or this Agreement. 

704

Item 19.



Page 8 Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

Appendix X
Applicable Branches or Subsidiaries of Bank 

1. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., UK Branch

2. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Canadian Branch

3. Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Shanghai Branch

4. Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Hong Kong Branch

705

Item 19.



 

© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only 

 

 

 

 

Amendment to Master Agreement 

for Treasury  Management Services 
 

Treasury Management Services 

  

 

706

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

2 Amendment to Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services | September 18, 2020 

 Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only  

 

 

Introduction 
 

This Amendment supplements and modifies the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services (“Master 

Agreement”) for [Customer Legal Name].  “You,” “your” or “yours” refers to the customer identified in the 

immediately preceding sentence. The terms “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the Bank. Capitalized terms used but not 

defined in this Amendment are defined in the Master Agreement.  This Amendment constitutes part of the 

Service Documentation as defined in the Master Agreement.  If there is a conflict between this Amendment and 

the Master Agreement or other Service Documentation, this Amendment will control.  Except as expressly 

modified by this Amendment, all terms and provisions of Master Agreement and Service Documentation will 

continue to apply with full force and effect.  

 

Amendment 
 

We agree that the Master Agreement governing our relationship with you is amended as follows: 

 

1. The following text is added at the end of Section 3 of the Master Agreement (titled “Changes to 

services”): 

 

“Notwithstanding the immediately preceding paragraph, through the Initial Term End Date (as defined 

below) Bank will not change the fees for Services reflected on Attachment A, except: 

 

 in order to reflect the impact of any change in Applicable Law; 

 

 in the event your Service usage volume is materially lower than that reflected on Attachment A; 

 

 for changes to Bank’s pricing methodology for Services, including element IDs associated with a 

Service, so long as the change does not increase the total price of the Services to you (unless 

permitted under one of the two immediately preceding bullet points). 

 

If you implement additional Services not described on Attachment A prior to the Initial Term End Date, 

the fees for such additional Services will be as disclosed to you in connection with the implementation of 

such additional Services.”  

 

2. The following text is added at the beginning of Section 4 (titled “Term and termination”) as a new first 

sentence:   

 

“Subject to the termination provisions below, the initial term of this Agreement will commence on 

[Insert Start Date] and expire on [Insert End Date] (“Initial Term End Date”)[, and this Agreement may 

be extended for not more than [Insert Number] additional one-year extension terms by your and our 

mutual consent].” 

 

3. The text of Section 12 (titled “Governing Law”) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“Governing law. The Service Documentation will be governed by: (a) U.S. federal law and (b) the law of  

[Insert State Where Customer is Located], without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws 

(“Governing Law”).” 

707

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

3 Amendment to Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services | September 18, 2020 

 Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only  

 

 

4. The text of Section 14 (titled “Jurisdiction”) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“Jurisdiction. For any proceedings regarding this Agreement (other than a proceeding subject to 

arbitration), you and we each hereby irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the courts of [Insert 

State Where Customer is Located] or the federal courts located there and irrevocably agrees that all 

claims relating to the proceeding may be heard or determined in those courts.” 

 

 
 

 WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.   [INSERT CUSTOMER NAME] 

 

 By:       By:      

Name:       Name:      

Title:       Title:      

Date:       Date:      

 

 

 

 

708

Item 19.



Amendment to Commercial Account Signature Card

© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC 
Amendment to Commercial Account Signature Card 595250(Rev 02 – 06/21)

1. Account Title(s)

2. Amendment to Account Signers - Add

Internal use only: CIS customer number for above signer:

Internal use only: CIS customer number for above signer:

Internal use only: CIS customer number for above signer:

709

Item 19.



© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC 
Amendment to Commercial Account Signature Card 595250(Rev 02 – 06/21)

3. Amendment to Account Signers - Delete

4. Customer’s Certification, Acknowledgement, and Agreement

5. Bank Use Only

710

Item 19.



Authorization Certificate 
Deposit Accounts and Treasury Management Services 

Page 1 of 1
© 2022 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved. Confidential when completed.  
Authorization Certificate –  Non-personal accounts   
EDOCS-#22815818 (Revised 04-06-2022) 

The undersigned hereby certifies to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Bank) that:
1.  

(Account holder's complete legal entity/company name), a

(description of Account holder's business entity type)
(“Customer”), has authorized the undersigned to make the certifications in this Certificate on Customer’s behalf. 

2.  
Name Title Country of  

permanent residence
Business  
phone number

Business email 
address

is referred to in this Certificate as an “Authorized Representative” with full authority, acting alone, to: 
a) enter into those agreement(s) that Bank requires regarding opening, operating, and closing deposit accounts 

for Customer at Bank (each, an Account) and enrolling in, using, and terminating Bank services including 
Bank's non-deposit sweep services used in connection with the Account(s) (each, a Service);

b) authorize transactions of all types on the Accounts and instruct Bank regarding Accounts and Services; and
c) designate individuals as additional Authorized Representatives.

3.  This Certificate reflects actions duly taken by Customer in accordance with its governing documents. It shall continue 
in effect until Bank has received and had a reasonable time to act on Customer's written notice revoking it, which 
shall be effective only as to actions which are taken by Customer thereafter. Actions authorized in this Certificate but 
performed prior to its execution are approved and ratified.

Certified to:
By/Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Tax Identification Number of Customer:
(TIN of the Account holder as assigned by the IRS)

711

Item 19.



© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Commercial Depository Service 
Description
Treasury Management Services

712

Item 19.



2 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Bank") 
provides you the services described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the 
Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll in Services ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" 
refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are defined in the Master Agreement 
or in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The service ("Service") covered by this Service Description is:
• Commercial Depository
• SafeVantage®

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
b. The SafeVantage Service Setup Form (the "SafeVantage Setup Form"),
c. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
d. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
e. The Account Agreement governing your account that you use for the Service ("Account"),
f. The Product Enrollment Form ("Set-up Form") (which contains set-up information for the service in 

which you are enrolling), and
g. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, 

instructions, and notices).

The separate documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read 
together as one agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted 
at our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of the 
Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your receipt of, 
and agreement to be bound by, this Service Description and all Service Documentation.

Commercial Depository Service

1. Description of services.  With the Service, you may:
a. Order Cash we prepared and make such Cash available to your Agent at our cash vault, and
b. Deliver currency, coin, checks and other negotiable instruments to our cash vault or Night Depositories 

for processing.

2. Cash orders from our cash vault.
a. Cash Requests. You may make a Cash Request of a Cash Shipment. The Cash Shipment will be made 

available to your Agent in Cash Bags at our cash vault. We are authorized to act upon any Cash Request 
we receive in accordance with this Service Description, and which we believe in good faith has been made 
by one of your Authorized Representatives. We will have no obligation to verify, and will not be liable for 
our failure to verify or investigate, any Cash Request.

b. Making Cash available to your Agent. We are authorized to make Cash Shipments available to any 
person we in good faith believe to be your Agent. We will have no further responsibility, and you assume 
all risk of loss for Cash made available to any such person. We will make Cash Shipments available only at 
the locations, on days, and during the hours published by us from time to time. We reserve the right to 
suspend the Service at any time without notice.

713

Item 19.



3 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

c. Your Authorized Representatives. You will promptly certify to us the identity of each Authorized 
Representative. You will give prior written notice to us of any change in the authority of any Authorized 
Representative. We will be fully protected in relying on each such notification and on your obligation to 
promptly notify us of any change in the status of the Authorized Representative. We will have a 
reasonable period of time to act after receiving such notification.

d. Security procedures. For requests made in writing or by fax, operator-assisted telephone call or 
transmission, a Customer ID assigned by us is required. For CEO requests, you must have Log-On 
Credentials. For touch-tone/automatic response telephone requests, a Passcode is required. Operator 
limits may also be required. It is your responsibility to establish internal procedures that will minimize 
the risk of an unauthorized person gaining access to the Customer ID, Log-On Credentials and 
Passcode(s). Such internal procedures include without limitation requiring users to maintain such 
number(s) and code(s) in strict confidence. You will notify us immediately in the event a breach of 
security is suspected.

e. Debit of Account. On each Business Day that we make a Cash Shipment available to your Agent, we are 
authorized to debit your Account for the aggregate amount of the Cash Shipment. You will maintain 
collected balances in the Account sufficient at all times to fully cover any debit. We have no obligation to 
release a requested Cash Shipment or any portion thereof to your Agent unless there are sufficient 
collected funds in the Account to fully cover the amount of the Cash Shipment when it is to be made 
available to your Agent. If you fail to specify your Account to us, we may debit any account which you 
maintain with us for the amount of a requested Cash Shipment.

f. Packing slip; differences in shipment amount. A packing slip will be included with each Cash Shipment 
which states:
i. The aggregate amount of the Cash Shipment,
ii. The overall number of containers included in the Cash Shipment, and
iii. The number of containers delivered to your Agent for transmittal to you.

For each Cash Shipment we make available to your Agent, you will notify us immediately in writing of any 
difference between the amount specified on the packing slip for that Cash Shipment and the amount, as 
counted by you, of the Cash Shipment. In the event that the difference cannot be resolved, our count of 
the amount of the disputed Cash Shipment will be conclusive and binding on you.

3. Cash vault processing. The following procedures will govern delivery of Deposit Shipments to our cash vault 
locations and our processing of such Deposit Shipments:
a. Delivery by your Agent. You will deliver Deposit Shipments in Deposit Bags to one of our cash vaults via 

your Agent. You are responsible for making all arrangements with your Agent for delivery of Deposit 
Shipments, and you assume all risk of loss while a Deposit Shipment is in the possession of your Agent. 
We may accept Deposit Shipments from any person we believe in good faith to be your Agent. The 
delivery of a Deposit Bag to us or our receipt of it on a manifest will not be deemed proof of our receipt of 
the contents listed on the deposit slip contained in the Deposit Bag or your records. We will have no 
responsibility for any Deposit Bag or its contents delivered to one of our cash vaults until we accept the 
Deposit Bag in accordance with our procedures and we count the contents of the Deposit Bag.

b. Delivery procedures. When you deliver a Deposit Shipment to our cash vault, you agree you (and/or your 
Agent) will do the following:
i. Deliver Deposit Bags only at the locations, on the days, and during the hours published by us from 

time to time,
ii. Properly endorse all checks and other negotiable instruments included in a Deposit Shipment,
iii. Use only Deposit Bags approved by us that are properly secured,
iv. At the time of delivery, your Agent will provide us with a delivery manifest which specifies the number 

of Deposit Bags you included in the overall shipment delivered to us, as well as the contents of each 
Deposit Bag,

714

Item 19.



4 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

v. Obtain the signature of our employee who accepts delivery on that portion of the delivery manifest 
which your Agent retains, and

vi. Retain a copy of the receipt or other document covering each Deposit Bag you deliver to your Agent for 
at least one year from the date of delivery.

You agree you will only use Deposit Bags for the deposit of Items. You will not use Deposit Bags in any 
unauthorized manner or for any unlawful purpose. As to any property other than Items included in a 
Deposit Bag, we will not be deemed a bailee and will have no liability for any loss of or damage to such 
property.

c. Cutoff Time; AccountDeposits. If a Deposit Shipment is received at one of our cash vaults on a Business 
Day before the Cutoff Time for that cash vault, the total amount of the deposits in such Deposit 
Shipment will be credited on that Business Day to the Account specified on the deposit slip for that 
Deposit Shipment. If a Deposit Shipment is received at a cash vault on a Business Day after the Cutoff 
Time, the total amount of the deposits in that Deposit Shipment will be credited to the Account on the 
next succeeding Business Day. We will not deposit any Items received in any Deposit Shipment unless the 
account number of the Account into which the deposit is to be made is specified on the deposit slip for 
that Deposit Shipment.

d. Processing of Deposit Shipments. You authorize us to open each Deposit Bag, count the contents, credit 
the amount of Items to the Account with us indicated on the deposit slip contained in the Deposit Bag 
and process, all in accordance with our customary procedures. All deposits are subject to verification, and 
our count of the Items will be conclusively deemed to be correct and complete for all purposes. No 
relationship of debtor and creditor will arise between you and us until the count has been completed and 
the deposit credited to the Account. You acknowledge that you have had an opportunity to have our 
applicable count and verification procedures explained to your Authorized Representative and agree that 
the same will be deemed commercially reasonable.

e. Adjustment procedures. If the aggregate amount of the Items in any Deposit Shipment, as counted by 
us, is less than the amount reported on the deposit slip covering that Deposit Shipment, we will debit the 
Account specified on the deposit slip by such difference and report the difference to you. If that Account 
has an insufficient collected and available balance to cover the debit, we will debit any of your other 
accounts with us for the difference. You agree to promptly reimburse us for the difference (or any portion 
thereof) for which there are insufficient available balances in your accounts with us. If the aggregate 
amount of the Items in any Deposit Shipment, as counted by us, is more than that reported on the deposit 
slip covering the Deposit Shipment, we will credit the Account specified on the deposit slip for the 
difference and notify you.

4. Night Depository delivery and processing. The following procedures will govern Night Deposits, and our 
processing of Night Deposits:
a. Night Depositories; issuance of keys. You may make Night Deposits to your Account by placing the 

Items to be deposited into a Night Bag and then placing the Night Bags in the Night Depository. Each of 
your offices listed on the Night Depository Set-up Form will receive one key to the Night Depository at a 
designated Branch. You will designate to us in writing the individuals to receive the key for each of your 
offices. We may require such individuals to sign a receipt for the keys they receive.

715

Item 19.



5 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

b. Contents of Night Bags; deposit of Night Bags. You agree that Night Bags will be used only for the 
deposit of Items, and will not be used in any unauthorized manner or for any unlawful purpose. If any 
property other than Items is included in a Night Bag, we will not be deemed a bailee and will have no 
liability for any loss of or damage to such property. Each Night Bag must contain one or more deposit slips 
which:
i. Lists all the Items contained in that Night Bag and their total dollar amount, and
ii. Identifies your Account to which the dollar amount of the deposit is to be credited.

At the time each Night Bag is placed in a Night Depository you agree to securely close each Night Bag, 
place it completely in the Night Depository and securely lock the Night Depository.

c. Processing of Night Deposits. We may open each Night Bag and remove its contents without you or any 
of your representatives present. The contents of each Night Bag will be processed in accordance with our 
standard procedures. The Cutoff Time for deposits made through the Night Depository may be different 
from that for deposits made at the teller line. You understand and agree that the contents of a Night Bag 
will not be credited to the Account, nor will the relationship between you and us be that of a debtor to a 
creditor with respect to any Item in a Night Bag, until we have accepted the Item for deposit into the 
Account after counting all the Items in the Night Bag and calculating the total dollar amount of all such 
Items.

d. Counting and adjustments. If your records regarding the total dollar amount of the Items in any Night 
Bag differ from our calculation of the total dollar amount of the Items in the Night Bag, you have the 
burden of proving that your records show the correct amount in the Night Bag or our total will be 
accepted as final. If there is a difference between our total and your total for the amount of Items in a 
Night Bag (as shown on the deposit slip(s) in the Night Bag), we will send you a statement indicating the 
amount of the difference. In the event that the difference cannot be resolved, our count of the dollar 
amount will be conclusive and binding on you. 

e. Claims of lost or stolen Items. You agree that you will have total responsibility for each Night Bag and its 
contents until the Night Bag has dropped completely into a Night Depository. You agree to notify us 
immediately if you determine that any Night Bag or any Item in a Night Bag has been lost or stolen while 
at one of our Branches. You will have the burden of proving the amount of any Item which you claim was 
lost or stolen while it was at a designated Branch and that disappearance of the Item occurred while it was 
at the designated Branch.

5. Special instructions. You may notify us in writing of any special instructions relating to cash orders or deposits 
of Items at our cash vault or Night Depositories. We may at our option accept or reject the instructions and so 
notify you. Even if accepted, we may stop complying with the instructions upon prior notice to you if we 
believe continued compliance would increase our costs or risks, interfere with our established or revised 
procedures, or diminish the efficiency of our operations. You will be solely liable for any loss attributable to 
increased risk resulting from a special instruction.

6. Further assurances. You agree to do all acts we may consider reasonably necessary or desirable to implement 
and carry out the intent of this Service Description. You agree to provide us with information we request 
regarding any Deposit Shipment, including any information necessary to file a Currency Transaction Report and 
to determine the source of any Cash or Items in a Deposit Shipment.

7. Representations and warranties. To be eligible to make Deposit Shipments at a cash vault or Night 
Depository, you represent and warrant to us at the time of the delivery of each Deposit Shipment that:
a. Deposits for own account. You make Deposit Shipments for your sole account and do not directly or 

indirectly make any Deposit Shipments on behalf of any other party, unless you have previously disclosed 
such party to us and we have approved such party in writing, in our sole discretion.

716

Item 19.



6 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

b. No deposits from outside the United States. You do not make Deposit Shipments from any source 
known, or which upon reasonable inquiry would be known to you, to be outside the United States.

c. No business as a foreign exchange house. You do not conduct any business, whether in whole or any part, 
as a foreign exchange house including, without limitation, as a Casa de Cambio.

8. Contaminated Cash. You agree not to send contaminated or damaged Cash to our cash vaults unless you or 
our Agent has prepared such Cash in accordance with the Federal Reserve Banks' applicable specifications 
and procedures.

9. Termination of Services. We may immediately terminate this Service in whole or in part in the event of your 
breach of any representation or warranty in section 7 (Representations and warranties). Otherwise, we may 
terminate this Service upon sixty (60) days prior notice to you.

10. Survival.  Sections 2(e), 2(f), 3(d), 3(e), 4(d), 4(e), 6 and 9 will survive termination of this Service.

SafeVantage® Service

1. Description of Service. We make the SafeVantage Service available to you in connection with the 
Commercial Depository Service described above in this Service Description. With the SafeVantage Service, 
we will provide provisional expedited credit to you for the Cash currency properly deposited into the 
Equipment's currency acceptors. Following our receipt of a Safe Report, we will provide provisional 
expedited credit to your Account in the total amount set forth in such Safe Report. Credits will only be 
applied on Business Days in accordance with the SafeVantage Setup Form. Currency and other Items 
inserted using the manual envelope drop of the Equipment will not receive provisional expedited credit, and 
will be processed and credited in accordance with the cash vault processing procedures for the Commercial 
Depository Service, as described above in this Service Description.

2. Conditions to provision of our SafeVantage Service.  As conditions to our provision of the SafeVantage 
Service:
a. You must enter into a Vendor Agreement,
b. We must agree that the Equipment is suitable and compatible, in our sole discretion, for the SafeVantage 

Service, and
c. You must agree to use the Equipment in accordance with the Vendor Agreement and as instructed by us 

as necessary from time to time in connection with the SafeVantage Service.

You acknowledge that we are not providing the Equipment and have no obligation or liability with respect 
to the Equipment or any service related thereto other than the SafeVantage Service.

3. Ownership of Cash. You agree that Wells Fargo-Owned Cash is our Cash currency and will not at any time be 
your property or the property of any other person, including your Agent. No person, other than us and our 
Representatives, shall have any possessory or ownership rights to Wells Fargo-Owned Cash under Section 
362 or Section 541 of the U.S. bankruptcy code. You shall take all actions necessary, and all additional 
commercially reasonable actions that we request to ensure and evidence that Wells Fargo-Owned Cash 
remains our sole and exclusive property. You agree that neither you nor your Agent will commingle Wells 
Fargo-Owned Cash with Cash currency owned by another financial institution or any other person. 

717

Item 19.



7 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

4. Access to Cash.   You agree that physical access to Wells Fargo-Owned Cash will be restricted to:
a. Your Agent solely for the purpose of performing services in accordance with the Vendor Agreement, and
b. If applicable, a maintenance service provider solely for the purposes of providing routine maintenance 

services or repairs on the Equipment.

You agree that we will, at all times, have control and immediate access to all Wells Fargo-Owned Cash by 
having : (1) the ability to recall any of the Wells Fargo-Owned Cash the same Business Day as the day of 
the request; and (2) unfettered and immediate access to the Wells Fargo-Owned Cash upon your financial 
distress as determined in our sole discretion. You agree to fully cooperate with us and our representatives 
in connection with our access to Wells Fargo-Owned Cash, including instructing your Agent to deliver 
Wells Fargo-Owned Cash to one of our cash vault locations if and as requested by us. You release us and 
our representatives (including without limitation any armored carrier engaged by us) from any and all 
Losses arising out of or related to our representative acting on our request or direction to access Wells 
Fargo-Owned Cash on our behalf and/or to deliver the Wells Fargo-Owned Cash to us, except to the 
extent any Losses arise from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of our representative. Our 
representative shall be a third party beneficiary of the release described above in this section.

5. Risk of loss. You are responsible for all risk of loss and liability for Wells Fargo-Owned Cash that is not at one 
of our cash vault locations, including but not limited to loss, damage or contamination of Wells Fargo-Owned 
Cash, theft or destruction of Wells Fargo-Owned Cash, malfunction of the Equipment or you, your Agent's or 
any of your representative's negligence or willful misconduct.

6. Adjustments. If the total amount of the Cash currency processed and verified for a Safe Report is less than 
the amount reported for such Safe Report, we may debit the Account without notice to you. If the Account 
has insufficient funds to cover the debit,we may debit any of your other accounts with us for the difference, 
and you agree to promptly reimburse us for the difference (or any portion thereof) upon our demand, 
without setoff or counterclaim. If the total amount of the Cash currency processed and verified for a Safe 
Report is more than the amount reported on such Safe Report, we will credit the Account for the difference 
without notice to you. If your Vendor Agreement provides any guarantees or other protection for the 
contents of the Equipment including Cash currency deposited through the currency acceptors, we reserve 
the right to require you to file a claim with such vendor before making any claim against us.

7. Reimbursement. Unless it results solely from our negligence or willful misconduct, you will reimburse us for 
Losses we incur from (a) providing the SafeVantage Service to you in accordance with this Service 
Description, or (b) an action you ask us to take in connection with the SafeVantage Service and this Service 
Description. You authorize us to recover any such amount by debit to your accounts with us or our affiliates.

8. Contaminated Cash. You agree not to send contaminated or damaged Cash to our cash vaults unless you or 
our Agent has prepared such Cash in accordance with the Federal Reserve Banks' applicable specifications 
and procedures.

9. Survival.  Sections 3 - 7 will survive the termination of the SafeVantage Service.

10. Notice. You agree to provide us immediate notice of any default or breach of the Vendor Agreement by you 
or the vendor or termination of the Vendor Agreement.

11. Termination. Either party may terminate the SafeVantage Service in accordance with the terms of the 
Master Agreement. In addition, if the Vendor Agreement is terminated for any reason, the SafeVantage 
Service will automatically terminate, unless otherwise agreed by you and us.

718

Item 19.



8 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

Glossary

Account Agreement  means the applicable account agreement governing your Account.

Agent  means an armored car service approved by us or, in Alaska only, the U.S. Postal Service, in each case, acting 
as your agent.

Applicable Law  is defined in section 3 of the Master Agreement.

Authorized Representative  means (a) any person you authorize us to communicate with regarding authorization 
codes or other security procedures for this Service; (b) your Agent authorized to accept delivery of Cash; and (c) 
where applicable, the persons who are authorized users of this Service.

Branch means one or more of our branch locations listed on our Night Depository Set-up Form.

Business Day means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays.

Cash  means U.S. denominated currency and coin.

Cash Bag  means bags or other containers into which Cash Shipments are placed.

Cash Request  means a request you make to us in writing, telephonically by operator-assisted call or by touch 
tone/automated response, or electronically via transmission, fax, or our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal 
for a Cash Shipment in the amount you specify.

Cash Shipment  means shipments of Cash in Cash Bags in accordance with this Service Description.

Currency Transaction Report  is defined in the regulations implementing the Currency and Foreign Transactions 
Reporting Act of 1970, as amended from time to time.

Customer ID  is a unique identifier given to you by us for each of your locations enrolled in the Service.

Cutoff Time  means our cutoff time each Business Day that we separately disclose to you for the Service.

Deposit Bag  means bags or other containers into which Deposit Shipments are placed.

Deposit Shipment  means your delivery of Items in accordance with this Service Description.

Equipment  means certain units of safes provided by vendors, in each case, acceptable to us.

Items  mean, collectively, Cash, checks and other negotiable instruments properly endorsed by you.

Losses  means all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses (including 
reasonable fees, disbursements of legal counsel and court fees).

Master Agreement  means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

Night Bag  means disposable bags used for Night Deposits.

Night Deposit  means your delivery of Items to our Night Depositories in accordance with this Service Description.

Night Depository  means the night depository receptacle at one of our Branches.

719

Item 19.



9 | Commercial Depository Service Description | Revised January 2, 2020

Night Depository Set-up Form  means the form required to be completed to receive key(s) to access the Night 
Depository.

Passcode means a code established to access our Telephony Interface Unit via the telephone number we provide 
to you.

Safe Report  means a transmission report from any unit of Equipment stating the amount of Cash currency 
inserted into the Equipment's currency acceptors.

Vendor Agreement  means a valid and binding agreement with a vendor, acceptable to us, for the provision of the 
Equipment.

Wells Fargo-Owned Cash  means all Cash currency located in the Equipment and the amount of Cash currency 
removed from the Equipment for delivery to us by your Agent, in each case, for which we have given you 
provisional expedited credit.

720

Item 19.



© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved.

Check Collections Service Description

Treasury Management Services

November 8, 2019

721

Item 19.



2 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

Table of contents 

03           Introduction

03           Services

03           Returned Item Service

06           Wells Fargo Remote 
Deposit Capture and Image 
Delivery

722

Item 19.



3 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions governing each service ("Service") that Wells 
Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Bank") provides to Company under this Service Description.  "Company" is the Bank customer 
identified on the Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll in Services ("Acceptance").

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the specific Service),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates Company’s acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. The Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services (“Master Agreement”) (which contains 

terms and conditions applicable to all Services),
d. The account agreement governing the account(s) (each, an “Account”) Company uses in connection 

with the Service,
e. The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each Service in which Company is 

enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, 

instructions, and notices).

This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at Bank's Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) 
portal.  If there is a conflict among the documents comprising the Service Documentation, they will govern in 
the order listed above.  Company's use of the Service confirms Company's receipt of an agreement to be bound 
by the applicable Service Documentation.  If an enhancement to the Service or other change requires a change 
to this Service Description, Bank will post an updated Service Description on the CEO® portal.  When required by 
applicable law, Bank will notify Company of the update.  If Company continues to use the Service after the 
update takes effect, Company will be deemed to have agreed to the update.

Services
Returned Item

1. Description of Bank’s Returned Items Services.  A "Returned Item" is an Item that is returned to Bank 
unpaid after Company deposits it to an account at Bank (or another financial institution) that Company has 
enrolled in one or more of Bank's Returned Item Services (each, "Account").  Bank's Returned Item Services 
include:

 a. Special Instructions regarding the handling of Company's Returned Items (section 3);

 b. Returned Item Decisioning through Bank's CEO® portal (section 4);
 c. Electronic Returns through which Bank submits Company's Returned Items as RCK entries in 

accordance with the National Automated Clearing House Association ("NACHA") Operating Rules and 
Guidelines as supplemented by any applicable operating rules of any automated clearing house of which 
Bank is a member, each as may be amended from time to time (together, "NACHA Rules") (sections 
5-10); 

 d. Centralized Return Processing through which Bank processes Company's Returned Items as Company's 
centralized return processor (sections 11-14);

 e. Returned Item Forwarding through which Bank forwards Returned Items Bank receives on Company's 
Accounts at Bank to Company's centralized returns processor (section 16); and

 f. Returned Item Service Fee Recovery through which Bank issues MICR drafts to recover service fees 
Company assesses on its customers in connection with Returned Items (section 17).

723

Item 19.



4 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

2. Rules applicable to Bank's Returned Item Services.  Bank will provide the Services to Company in 
accordance with: 

 a. The Service Documentation including without limitation the User Guide that Bank makes available to 
Company at www.wellsfargo.com; and

 b. State and federal laws and regulations and clearinghouse rules applicable to a Returned Item which may 
include Federal Reserve Board Regulation CC Subpart C relating to the collection of checks ("Reg CC"), 
Federal Reserve Board Regulation E ("Reg E") and, in the case of Bank's Electronic Returns Service, when 
Bank originates an RCK entry on Company's behalf, the NACHA Rules.  

3. Special Instructions Service.  When Company enrolls in Bank's Special Instructions Service, Bank will 
process Company's Returned Items in accordance with the Special Instructions Company communicates to 
Bank from time to time. 

4. Returned Item Decisioning Service.  When Company enrolls in Bank’s Returned Item Decisioning Service, Bank 
will use the CEO® portal to notify Company of Returned Items Bank receives prior to the cut off time Bank 
separately discloses to Company each Business Day.  Each Returned Item will be listed by the default disposition 
(redeposit or chargeback) Company separately selects.  Prior to the daily deadline Bank separately discloses, 
Company will review the Returned Items and accept or change the disposition of each Returned Item Bank 
identifies as eligible for decisioning through the CEO® portal.  Bank will process each Returned Item not accepted 
or changed by this deadline according to Company's default disposition on file with Bank.

5. Electronic Returns Service.  When Company enrolls in Bank's Electronic Returns Service, Bank submits RCK 
entries for Company's Returned Items that Bank, using a data-based decisioning method, has determined qualify 
as RCK entries under the NACHA Rules.  The financial institution on which a Returned Item was drawn may reject 
any RCK entry without liability to Bank.  The NACHA Rules require the originator of an RCK entry to make certain 
representations and warranties with respect to the original item for which the RCK entry is initiated.  If Bank 
incurs any liability for breaching any of these warranties, Bank will look to Company to reimburse Bank.  

6. Authorization.  Company represents and warrants to Bank that the issuer of any Returned Item has authorized 
Company to represent the Returned Item electronically and that such authorization is in all respects legally 
sufficient under applicable law.

7. Rejected entries.  In the event any RCK entry submitted on behalf of Company is rejected by the ACH for any 
reason and sufficient data is available to Bank to permit it to repair the RCK entry, Bank will make the repair.  
Company will provide to Bank on request all information necessary to repair any RCK entry or file of RCK entries.

8. Representment/returned check fees.  Company acknowledges that the NACHA Rules do not allow collection of 
fees associated with a represented item by means of a single RCK entry in the amount of both the represented 
item and associated fees.  Company represents and warrants that each item it deposits to its Account at Bank or 
another financial institution will only be for the amount of the item, and will not include any amount for a 
representment/returned item fee or similar fee.

9. Provisional credit.  Any credit to Company's Account in connection with an RCK entry is provisional until such 
time as settlement for the RCK entry becomes final.  In the event any RCK entry is returned or an adjustment 
memorandum is received with respect to the RCK entry, Company will immediately deposit with Bank sufficient 
good and collected funds to cover the returned RCK entry or adjustment memorandum.  Company authorizes 
Bank to debit any of Company's account(s) for the amount of any such returned RCK entry or adjustment 
memorandum.

724

Item 19.



5 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

10. Reimbursement.  Unless it results solely from Bank's negligence or intentional misconduct, Company will 
indemnify and reimburse Bank from and against any and all Losses and Liabilities that Bank incurs either directly 
or indirectly, in connection with (a) the breach of any warranty Bank makes under the NACHA Rules or Company 
makes in the Service Description, or (b) any action Company asks Bank to take in connection with Bank's 
Electronic Returns Service.

11. Centralized Check Return Service.  When Company enrolls in Bank's Centralized Check Return Service, Bank 
processes Returned Items from Company's Account(s) at Bank and financial institution(s) other than Bank with 
which Company arranges for Bank to provide the Service.  Company will place a special endorsement on the back 
of each check or other item it intends to deposit with a financial institution other than Bank that, upon dishonor, 
it wishes to have returned to Company's Centralized Return Account at Bank.  This endorsement is the 
"centralized returns endorsement".  It will include all of the information required by 12 CFR §229.35 (as amended 
from time to time) to be included in an endorsement made by a bank of first deposit and, to the extent possible, 
conform to the form of such an endorsement.  The centralized returns endorsement will be designed to be more 
prominent than the endorsement of the actual depositary bank and thereby increase the likelihood that the 
paying bank or other payor and any subsequent returning bank will identify Bank as Bank of first deposit.  Bank, 
upon request, will supply Company with endorsement stamps or examples of endorsement stamps that satisfy 
the requirements of this section.  

12. Relation of multiple endorsements.  Company understands (a) the centralized returns endorsement is in 
addition to, and not in place of, the endorsement placed on an Item by the depositary bank; (b) the centralized 
returns endorsement may or may not obscure, in whole or in part, the endorsement placed on the Item by the 
depositary bank; and (c) the endorsement placed on each Deposited Item by the depositary bank may or may not 
obscure, in whole or in part, the centralized returns endorsement.  

13. Delayed returns; lost instruments; liability; indemnification.  With respect to where to return checks, 12 CFR 
§§229.30(g) and 229.31(g), respectively, provide that paying and returning banks may rely on any routing 
number that appears on a returned check as that of the bank of first deposit.  This means a Returned Item may be 
returned to either Bank or to the actual depositary bank.  It also means there may be a significant delay in Bank's 
receipt of a Returned Item.  Company, not Bank, is solely responsible for any and all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses of any kind including without limitation attorney's fees and costs (collectively, "Losses and Liabilities") 
that may arise, either directly or indirectly, in connection with any delay in the return of any Returned Item.  
Company agrees to indemnify and hold Bank, its directors, officers, employees and agents (collectively, 
"Indemnified Persons") harmless from all Losses and Liabilities arising out of or in any way connected with acts or 
omissions by Bank or any such indemnified party in connection with the delay in the return of any Item deposited 
to Company’s account at another financial institution .  

14. Bank's right to chargeback Returned Items.  Bank may chargeback a Returned Item to any account Company 
owns in whole or in part at Bank or any affiliate of Bank without regard to whether the Returned Item was initially 
deposited to Company's Account at Bank or at another financial institution. 

15. Returned Item Forwarding.  When Company enrolls in Bank's Returned Item Forwarding Service, Company will 
place its centralized returns endorsement identifying Company's centralized return processor on the back of each 
check or other item it deposits to its Account(s) at Bank that, upon dishonor and subsequent receipt by Bank, it 
wishes Bank to forward to Company's Centralized Return processor.  Bank will forward Company's Returned 
Items that Bank receives to Company's centralized return processor.  Company acknowledges the possibility of a 
delay in its centralized return processor's receipt of a Returned Item that is first received by Bank and agrees 
Section 13 of this Service Description including Company's agreement to indemnify Indemnified Parties applies 
to Losses and Liabilities of any Indemnified Party in connection with Bank's Returned Item Forwarding Service.  
ited to Company's Account at Bank or at another financial institution.  

16. Returned Item Service Fee Recovery.  When Company enrolls in Bank's Returned Item Service Fee Recovery 
Service, Bank issues a MICR draft on the account of the issuer of a Returned Item in the amount to which 
Company and Bank separately agree will be Company’s Returned Item service fee.  Company represents and 
warrants to Bank that Company has properly disclosed to all its customers that it assesses a service fee for checks 
returned unpaid for any reason.

725

Item 19.



6 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

17. Company's agreement to indemnify Bank.  Company will indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Indemnified 
Persons from and against all Losses and Liabilities awarded against or incurred or suffered by Indemnified Persons 
arising directly or indirectly from or related to:

 a. Any material breach in a representation, warranty, covenant, or obligation of Company contained in the 
Service Documentation; 

 b. The violation of any applicable law, statute, or regulation or of the Rules Applicable to Bank's Returned 
Items Services including without limitation Reg CC, Reg E and the NACHA Rules in the performance of 
Company's obligations under the Service Documentation; 

 c. A breach of any warranty Bank makes under the NACHA Rules in connection with Bank's Electronic 
Returns Service under this Service Description ; and

 d. Any negligent or intentional act or omission by Company in the performance of its obligations under the 
Service Documentation.  

18. Survival.  Sections 5, 6, 8, 13, 15 and 17 of this Service Description will survive termination of the Service.

Wells Fargo Remote Deposit Capture and Image Delivery

1. Description of service.  The Service enables Company to create or process Electronic Checks from eligible 
paper checks and transmit the Electronic Checks in an electronic file ("Electronic File") to Bank for review 
and processing for credit to Company's deposit account at Bank ("Account") in accordance with this Service 
Documentation.  An "Electronic Check" means an electronic image of, and electronic information derived 
from, an eligible U.S. Dollar paper item or check that conforms to ANSI X9.100-187.  Bank's Reference 
Guide for the Service lists eligible U.S. Dollar checks (and ineligible checks).  For each Electronic Check Bank 
determines is eligible for processing, Bank will:  

 a. Create a substitute check conforming to ANSI X9.100-140 that Bank will present directly or indirectly 
to the bank (a) on which the original paper check to which the Electronic Check relates is drawn, or (b) at 
or through which the original paper check is payable (each, the "Paying Bank"); 

 b. Include the Electronic Check in an electronic file for presentment directly or indirectly to the Paying 
Bank; or

 c. Post or present any Electronic Check for which Bank is the Paying Bank.
2. Creating or processing Electronic Checks and transmitting Company's Electronic File to Bank.  To create 

or process Electronic Checks and transmit Company's Electronic File to Bank, Company will use either (a) 
Bank provided software and Bank provided, certified or approved hardware, or (b) Company's software and 
hardware or third-party provided software and hardware, provided each generates Electronic Checks and 
Electronic Files that meet Bank's then current standards and specifications.  Any third-party processor 
Company uses to prepare and/or transmit Company's Electronic File is Company's agent, and Company will 
be responsible for ensuring its agent complies with Company's responsibilities under this Service 
Description.  In particular, each Electronic File Company's agent transmits to Bank will include only 
Electronic Checks payable or endorsed to Company, unless Bank expressly agrees to permit Company's 
agent to include Electronic Checks payable to customers of Company or Bank.

3. Processing Company's Electronic File.  Bank will review each Electronic Check and process the Electronic 
Checks Bank determines are eligible for processing on the Business Day Company transmits Company's 
Electronic File to Bank, if Bank receives Company's Electronic File before the processing deadline Bank 
separately discloses to Company ("Cut-Off Time") on that Business Day and on the next Business Day if 
Company transmits Company's Electronic File to Bank after Bank's Cut-Off Time.  "Business Day" is every 
day except Saturday, Sunday and any federal holiday.

726

Item 19.



7 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

4. Exception Checks.  Each Business Day on which Bank processes Company's Electronic File, Bank may, without 
liability to Company, reject Electronic Checks Bank determines are ineligible for the Service (each, an "Exception 
Check").  "Exception Check" includes without limitation an Electronic Check that (a) is illegible or contains MICR 
data that is not machine-readable, (b) was previously processed as an Electronic Check, (c) is drawn on a bank 
located outside the United States and is not payable at or through a bank located within the United States, (d) 
fails to conform to ANSI X9.100-187, or (e) any Electronic Check other than one described in (a), (b), (c), or (d) of 
this section 4 that applicable law prohibits Bank from accepting through a remote deposit capture platform.  
Bank will notify Company of each Exception Check through Bank's Commercial Electronic Office® service or other 
communication channel at Bank's discretion.  Company will deposit an Exception Check to Company's Account 
only by depositing the original Paper Check to which the Exception Check relates or as otherwise agreed by Bank 
and Company.  Even if Bank does not identify an Exception Check when Bank processes the Electronic File that 
includes the Exception Check, the substitute check or purported substitute check Bank creates from the 
Electronic Check may be returned to Bank because, among other reasons, the Paying Bank determines it is 
illegible or missing an image.  Bank's failure to identify an Exception Check will not limit Company's obligations to 
Bank under section 8.  

5. Deposits to Company's Account.  Bank will be deemed to have accepted each Electronic Check for deposit to 
Company's Account (other than any Exception Check) (a) on the Business Day Bank processes the Electronic 
Check (b) at the Bank office where Company's Account is maintained.  Funds from these Electronic Checks will be 
made available in accordance with Bank's Funds Availability Policy applicable to Company's Account and will be 
deemed to be collected in accordance with Bank's Electronic Deposit Collected Funds Schedule which Bank will 
provide to Company upon request and may amend from time to time.  If an Electronic Check or substitute check 
is dishonored by a Paying Bank, Company acknowledges and agrees that Paying Bank may create and return to 
Company or its customers a return substitute check conforming to ANSI X9.100-140 in lieu of the originally 
presented Electronic Check or substitute check.  Company acknowledges and agrees that if Bank receives a notice 
of nonpayment from Paying Bank with respect to an Electronic Check or substitute check presented for payment, 
Bank has no obligation to provide this notice to Company or its customers.   

6. Third-party processors.  

 a. General. This section contains additional terms applicable when Company is a third-party 
processor.  Company is a "third-party processor" when it uses the Service either to (a) create and 
process an Electronic Check on behalf of a customer or (b) process an Electronic Check one of its 
customers has created and transmitted to Company.

 b. Prerequisites for acting as a third-party processor.  Prior to acting as a third-party processor 
with respect to any customer, Company will conduct due diligence appropriate to the type of 
customer (consumer or business).  As part of Company's due diligence, at time a customer initially 
opens an account with Company, Company will obtain the customer's name, Taxpayer 
Identification Number, and address.  In addition, Company will fulfill obligations under applicable 
law with respect to (a) establishing and maintaining a Customer Identification Program and an 
Anti-Money Laundering Program, (b) establishing and maintaining written procedures reasonably 
designed to identify and verify beneficial owners of legal entity customers and to include such 
procedures in its Anti-Money Laundering Program and (c) suspicious activity monitoring and 
reporting.  Company will also enter into an agreement with each of its customers which includes (i) 
provisions paralleling those in this Service Description relating to creating Electronic Checks and 
maintaining the security of original Paper Checks; (ii) warranties paralleling each of the warranties 
Company makes to Bank in this Service Description; (iii) an acknowledgement that Bank may at 
any time refuse to process Electronic Checks for that customer; and (iv) if the customer is a 
business entity, an obligation that customer, upon request by Company, provide Company the 
information Company requires to enable Company to understand the nature of the customer's 
business.

727

Item 19.



8 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

 c. Risk parameters; ongoing monitoring.  For each customer for which Company acts as a third-
party processor, Company will, in accordance with reasonable commercial standards, monitor the 
customer's deposits for suspicious activity including out-of-pattern, duplicate and suspicious 
Electronic Checks on an ongoing basis and take appropriate actions with respect to the customer's 
account with Company, up to and including refusing to process Electronic Checks for the 
customer and/or preventing the customer from transacting on its account(s) with Company. Bank 
will establish and maintain confidential internal risk parameters for Company's Electronic File but 
Company is solely responsible for monitoring its customer's Electronic Checks.

7. Company's representations and warranties.  Company represents and warrants to Bank Company will:

 a. Use the Service only for eligible paper checks payable to or endorsed for deposit by Company or its 
customers (unless Bank expressly agrees otherwise);

 b. Transmit to Bank only Electronic Checks suitable for processing including without limitation legible 
Electronic Checks containing machine-readable MICR data;

 c. Not transmit to Bank any Electronic Check that duplicates an Electronic Check previously transmitted 
to Bank or that did not originate as an eligible paper check;

 d. Maintain control over and sole responsibility for secure retention and destruction of each original 
eligible paper check for which Company or one of Company's customers has created an Electronic Check 
(including the security and integrity of nonpublic personal information appearing on the original paper 
check throughout the transmission flow and while in storage) and properly secure all hardware 
Company uses in connection with the Service at all times; 

 e. Not transmit to Bank, deposit to Company's Account, or otherwise negotiate any original eligible paper 
check with respect to which Company has transmitted an Electronic Check to Bank, unless Bank has 
notified Company that the Electronic Check is an Exception Check; 

 f. If Company uses an agent to create Electronic Items and/or transmit Company's Electronic File to Bank, 
Company will ensure its agent includes only Electronic Check payable to Company in an Electronic File, 
unless Bank expressly agrees to permit the agent to include Electronic Check payable to multiple 
customers of Bank; an

 g. If Company is a third-party processor as set forth in section 6 of this Service Description, comply with 
section 6 of this Service Description. 

8. Company's agreement to indemnify Bank.  Company will indemnify, defend, and save harmless Bank, its parent 
company, and its affiliates and each of their respective directors, officers, employees, and agents (collectively in 
this section 8, "Indemnitees") from and against all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, 
charges, costs, or expenses (including reasonable fees and disbursements of legal counsel and accountants) 
awarded against or incurred or suffered (collectively, "Losses and Liabilities") by Indemnitees arising directly or 
indirectly from or related to:

 a. Any negligent or intentional act or omission by Company in the performance of its obligations under 
this Service Description including without limitation failing to maintain control over and sole 
responsibility for secure retention and destruction of each original paper check for which Company has 
created an Electronic Check (including the security and integrity of nonpublic personal information 
appearing on the original paper item throughout the transmission flow and while in storage), in which 
event Losses and Liabilities will include without limitation consequential damages;

 b. Any material breach in a representation, warranty, covenant, or obligation of Company contained in this 
Service Description; 

 c. Bank acting as a "reconverting bank" under the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act through the 
creation of "substitute checks" or purported substitute checks using an Electronic Check, an Exception 
Check or an Electronic File, in which event Losses and Liabilities will include without limitation 
consequential damages; and 

 d. Bank posting or presenting an Electronic Check for which Bank is Paying Bank or presenting an 
Electronic Check to the Paying Bank for payment. 

728

Item 19.



9 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

 e. Company will further indemnify, defend, and save harmless Indemnitees from and against all Losses and 
Liabilities by Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly from or related to Regulation CC (12 CFR Part 
229) or Regulation J (12 CFR Part 210) as follows:

 i. Bank warrants to a warrantee that (i) the electronic image of a check accurately represents all of 
information on the front and back of the original check as of the time that the original check 
was truncated and the electronic information includes an accurate record of all MICR line 
information required for a substitute check and the amount of the check ("Image Quality 
Warranty") and (ii) the warrantee will not receive a presentment of or otherwise be charged for 
an Electronic Check, an Electronic Returned Check, the original check, a substitute check, or a 
paper or electronic representation of a substitute check, such that the warrantee will be asked 
to make payment based on a check it has already paid ("No Double Debit Warranty").  In the 
case of transfers for collection or payment, Bank makes the Image Quality Warranty and the No 
Double Debit Warranty to the transferee bank, any subsequent collecting bank, the paying 
bank, and the drawer.  In the case of transfers for return, Bank makes the Image Quality 
Warranty and the No Double Debit Warranty to the transferee returning bank, any subsequent 
returning bank, the depository bank, and the owner.  If any Indemnitee suffers any Losses or 
Liabilities arising directly or indirectly from or related to a breach of any of these warranties, 
Company will indemnify the Indemnitee and not hold it responsible or liable.

 ii. Through Bank's providing the Service to Company, Bank is required to indemnify a depository 
bank that accepts the original paper check from which an Electronic Check is created for losses 
incurred by that depository bank if the loss is due to the check having already been paid.  If any 
Indemnitee suffers any Losses or Liabilities arising directly or indirectly from or related to such 
depository bank indemnity obligation, Company will indemnify Indemnitee and not hold it 
responsible or liable.

 iii. If Bank transfers or presents an "electronically created item" and receive settlement or other 
consideration for it, Bank is required to indemnify each transferee bank, any subsequent 
collecting bank, the paying bank, and any subsequent returning bank against losses that result 
from the fact that (i) the electronic image or electronic information is not derived from a paper 
check; (ii) the person on whose account the electronically created item is drawn did not 
authorize the issuance of the item or to the payee stated on the item; or (iii) a person receives a 
transfer or presentment, or return of, or otherwise is charged for an electronically created item 
such that the person is asked to make payment based on an item or check it has paid.  If any 
Indemnitee suffers any Losses or Liabilities arising directly or indirectly from or related to such 
electronically created item indemnity obligation, Company will indemnify Indemnitee and not 
hold it responsible or liable.

9. Termination.  In addition to its rights to discontinue providing Services under the Master Agreement, Bank may 
discontinue providing the Service to Company immediately upon notice if Bank determines in its sole discretion 
that Company has breached any of Company's obligations under sections 7 or 8 of this Service Description. 

10. Additional controls on Company. 

 a. General.  In FIL-4-2009, Risk Management of Remote Deposit Capture ("RDC") Guidelines, the FFIEC 
sets forth guidelines for agreements between a financial institution and its RDC customers.  In 
accordance with these guidelines, Bank has the authority upon reasonable prior notice to Company to 
(a) mandate specific internal controls at Company's locations, (b) periodically audit or require audits of 
Company's RDC operations including Company's IT infrastructure at Company's expense, and (c) 
request additional information about Company.

 b. Company's Internal Controls.  Company will establish internal controls related to Company's RDC 
operations.  Upon reasonable request, Company will provide Bank with information about its internal 
controls and will work in good faith with Bank to resolve any concerns that Bank identifies with respect 
to such internal controls.

729

Item 19.



10 November 8, 2019 | Check Collections Service Description

 c. Company's Consumer Complaints.  Bank may upon reasonable prior notice to Company request 
information about: 
 i. Company's procedures for handling consumer complaints relating to Company's RDC product 

("consumer complaints"),

 ii. The number of consumer complaints Company received in the prior calendar quarter, and

 iii. The then current status of each consumer complaint.

11. Survival.  Sections 7 and 8 of this Service Description will survive termination of the Service.

730

Item 19.



© 2021 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Electronic Receivables Service Description
Treasury Management Services

731

Item 19.



2 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

Introduction 
The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Bank") 
provides you the services described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the 
Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll in Services ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" 
refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are defined in the Master Agreement 
or in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The services (each a "Service") covered by this Service Description are:
• E-Bill Express service
• E-Box service
• Integrated Receivables
• Receivables Manager service

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
d. The Account Agreement governing your account that you use for the Service ("Account"),
e. The Product Enrollment Form ("Set-up Form") (which contains set-up information for the service in 

which you are enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, 

specifications, instructions, and notices).

The separate documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read 
together as one agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted 
at our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of 
the Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your 
receipt of, and agreement to be bound by, this Service Description and all Service Documentation.

E-Bill Express service
1. Description of services.   With this Service:

a. You can make electronic bills available to your Customers through the Website,
b. Customers make payments to you through the Website and other Payment Channels (see section 2) 

and using the Payment Methods (see section 3) offered in connection with the Service,
c. We credit the Customer payments to your Account, and
d. We offer electronic reporting options relating to your bills and your Customers' payments received 

through the Service (see section 4).

The specific features for the Service we will provide you, are detailed in the Statement of Work (SOW) 
to which you and we agree separately.

2. Payment Channels.  The "Payment Channels" we offer to you are detailed in our User Guide for the 
Service and include the Website, telephone and an optional Interactive Voice Response (IVR) Payment 
Channel.
a. We maintain the Website through which Customers may make payments to you.
b. With the telephone Payment Channel, a Customer arranges for a payment by calling you at a telephone 

number you maintain. For all Customer payments made through the telephone Payment Channel, you 
are required to enter information about the payment at the administrative portal for the Service.

732

Item 19.



3 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

c. With the IVR Payment Channel, we maintain a specific toll-free number for you and custom to you 
branded greeting and prompts.

3. Payment Methods.   The "Payment Methods" you may make available to Customers are detailed in our User 
Guide for the Service and include debit and credit cards and electronic payments through ACH.
a. If you will accept debit and credit card payments, the Service Documentation includes the Merchant 

Payment Solutions Service Description.
b. For ACH payments, the Service Documentation includes the ACH and Related Services Service 

Description. In the event of a conflict, this Service Description will control over the ACH and Related 
Services Service Description.

c. We may withdraw a Payment Method available for the Service at any time.

4. Information reporting.   We make information and reporting about your bills and Customers' payments 
available to you through the administrative portal on the Website or automated transmission file.

5. Verification.   We will not verify the accuracy of your bills or your Customers' payment amounts made through 
any Payment Channel. 

6. Your privacy policy.  You will provide us with any URL(s) you host for our use at the Website. The URLs you 
provide will direct Customers to your then-current privacy policy and terms of use. You will maintain current 
versions of your privacy policy and terms of use. 

7. Licensed Marks.   You grant to us a license to use the service marks, trademarks and or logos listed on the 
SOW (each, a "Licensed Mark") on the Website. We will not modify a Licensed Mark without your prior 
written consent. The term of this trademark license will be the same as the term set forth in the Master 
Agreement, unless either party provides written termination in accordance with this Section 4 of the Master 
Agreement. Either party may terminate this license at any time, with or without cause, upon notice to the 
other. Upon termination or expiration of this license, we will discontinue use of all Licensed Marks.

8. Representations and warranties.   You represent and warrant to us that:
a. You will issue each bill only for products or services actually provided to the billed Customer and will 

retain each bill for a minimum of one year from the date of the bill,
b. The billed amount will be the actual amount charged to the billed Customer for such products or 

services,
c. You are the sole owner of each URL you provide to us pursuant to Section 7 and each Licensed Mark, 
d. You will maintain current versions of your privacy policy and terms of use at the URLs provided to us, and
e. You have received a copy of Federal Reserve Board Regulation E and will comply with it at all times.

9. Survival.  Section 8 will survive termination of the Service.

E-Box service
1. Description of service.   With this Service:

a. We provide you with information about payments your Customers make to you ("Remittance 
Information") through online bill payment services and other payment channels described in our User 
Guide for the Service, 

b. We process Customer payments for credit to your Account, and

733

Item 19.



4 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

c. We provide information reporting ("Remittance File") on your Payments through our separate 
Receivables Manager Service. The specific processing services we will provide to you are detailed in 
the BRD to which you and us agree to separately.

2. Research and decisioning.  We will make available to you a decisioning tool where you can view all 
payments, make decisions on exception items, perform payment research, and return payments.

3. Unfunded payments.   We will process Payments for which we have received Remittance Information but 
not funding in accordance with the BRD.

4. Account credit.   Each Business Day, we will credit your Account for Funded Payments through a 
consolidated ACH credit Entry. We originate each credit Entry in accordance with the ACH Rules.

5. Service requirement.   In order to enroll in the Service, you will also have to enroll in our Receivables 
Manager Service.

Integrated Receivables service 

1. Description of Service.                                         With this information reporting Service, we apply programmatic rules and logic, 
configured with your input, to create and transmit to you electronic files (each, a “Posting File”) containing the 
details of matches between credits to your Accounts made by your payers through ACH, wire transfer, or 
check (each, a “Payment”) to your eligible Wells Fargo deposit accounts enrolled in the Service (each, an 
“Account”) and the open accounts receivables details you have provided to us in electronic files (each, an 
“Open Receivables File”). 
Automatic matching.                                      We apply programmatic rules and logic, configured with your input, to match credits to 
your Accounts made by your payers  through ACH, wire transfer, or check (each, a “Payment”) to information 
you send to us relating to Payments and your accounts receivables details to identify sets of matching 
Payments and accounts receivables details in the steps described in this section.   

2.

a. Re-association.                              We analyze data elements pertinent to electronic Payments credited to your Accounts 
to associate such Payments with their respective remittance information (information from your payer 
describing the accounts receivable record for which a payment is being made, such as one or more 
invoice numbers) that you separately provide to us in a “Remittance File” or is provided in an e-mailed 
advice by your customers in accordance with the protocol to which you and we agree. Each such match is 
a “Re-associated Payment”. 

b. Invoice matching.                                 We automatically match Payments and Remittance Details with Accounts Receivable 
records you separately report to us in your Open Receivables File. Each such match is a “Validated 
Payment”.  

i. Checks.                For check Payments credited to your Accounts that we receive through a lockbox we 
maintain for you, we extract remittance information from Remittance Materials (as defined in the 
Lockbox Service Description) and use it to the extent reasonable to create Validated Payments. 

ii. Addenda Records.                                 For electronic Payments that include remittance information embedded 
within the electronic payment instruction for such Payments (“Addenda Records”), we use such 
Addenda Records to the extent reasonable to create Validated Payments. 

734

Item 19.



5 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

iii. Re-associated Payments.                                            We use the remittance information associated with Payments in the 
Re-association step described in 2.a above to the extent reasonable to create Validated 
Payments.  

3. Manual matching.                                 Each credit to your Accounts for which we are not able to create a Re-associated 
Payment or a Validated Payment through the Service is an “Exception”. You may view Exceptions in our CEO 
portal in accordance with its applicable terms and conditions. 

a. Review.                In CEO, we will display details of Exceptions and items described in your Remittance Files and 
Open Receivables Files that, as of the time of viewing, have not been included as components of 
Matched Payments in any Posting File we have previously made available to you. 

b. Match items.                        Using the CEO interface, you may create additional Validated Payments by manually 
matching the Exceptions with open accounts receivables details displayed in CEO. 

4. Posting Files.                          You may configure the Service to automatically generate and transmit Posting Files in 
accordance with the frequency to which you and we separately agree. Each Posting File is an electronic 
document setting out certain pre-determined data elements pertaining to each Validated Payment (including 
manually Validated Payments) that, as of the time of generation, has not been included in any previous 
Posting File we created for you. We will transmit each Posting File in accordance with your configuration 
preferences and the pre-determined transmission protocol to which you and we agree. 

5. Payment dates.                             For purposes of the Service, the date of each Payment is the Business Day on which we 
receive the Payment.  

6. Files transmitted to us.                                          You will transmit your Remittance File and Open Receivables File to us in 
accordance with the pre-determined file format and transmission specifications to which you and we 
separately agree. You are responsible for ensuring that, with respect to each item in each file, you include 
information we can reasonably use to identify its matching credit(s) to your Account(s). 

7. Liability to you.                             We perform the automatic matching activity described in Section 2, on a commercially 
reasonable efforts basis, in accordance with logic you provide to us. We undertake no liability for damages 
arising from or relating to any defects in, or failure to test, such logic as provided.  

8. Liability to payers.                                  We bear no liability to your payers for any inaccuracies in the Service relating to Matched 
Payments or Unmatched Payments, including, without limitation, inaccurate matches between Payments and 
remittance information or accounts receivables details. 

9. Eligible Accounts.                                  You may enroll your Wells Fargo demand deposit accounts that are capable of receiving 
credits by ACH, wire transfer, or check. 

10. Survivability.                         Sections 7 and 8 survive termination of the Service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

735

Item 19.



6 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

Receivables Manager service
1. Description of service.   With this Service, you may receive consolidated electronic files and/or human 

readable documents containing information (each, a "File") regarding credits and/or debits to your 
Account(s) and associated Remittance Information.

2. User Guide.  The User Guide provides details about the following:
a. The types of payments for which we provide the Service,
b. The options we offer for formatting Files,
c. The secure transmission platforms we offer to deliver Files to you,
d. The schedule we follow in providing the Service, and
e. Our Service level goals.

3. Advice Matching Service.  If you enroll in our Advice Matching Service, we will accept an email or File 
containing Remittance Information from your payer and attempt to match the information to payments the 
payer makes separately by ACH, wire transfer, or check, provided the payer does the following:
a. Sends the remittance Information to us in advance of the payment information being sent to you in the 

File, and
b. Includes information we can use to identify the payer and match the Remittance Information and the 

associated payment based upon criteria you establish.

You have the ability to manually match any payments we are unable to match automatically using the 
Receivables Manager application on CEO. You may also use this application to set-up payer information 
to automatically match future payments.

4. Remittance Repair Service.  If you enroll in our Remittance Repair Service, we will automatically reformat 
freeform Remittance Information. If we are unable to automatically repair the format, you can manually 
repair remittance information using the Receivables Manager application on CEO. Optionally, you can save 
the repair instructions as rules to apply to future payments from the payer.

5. Your receipt of Files; acknowledgments.   We will not monitor Files transmitted to you through the Service 
including, but not limited to, any acknowledgment your system may generate upon its receipt of a File. If 
you do not receive a File when you expect to, you must notify us. Upon your request, we will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to resend a File to you within 14 days after we initially transmitted the File, 
but we will have no liability for not doing so.

6. Incorrect, Incorrectly Formatted Information.   We are not responsible for the accuracy of and will not verify 
Remittance Information we receive from your trading partners and provide to you through the Service

736

Item 19.



7 | Electronic Receivables Service Description | Revised July 28, 2021

Glossary

Account Agreement  means the applicable account agreement governing your Account.

ACH  means Automated Clearing House

ACH Rules  means the Nacha Operating Rules and applicable local ACH rules.

Applicable Law  is defined in section 3 of the Master Agreement.

BRD  means Business Requirements Document.

Business Day  means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. When used in connection with 
funds transfer Services, "Business Day" means each day on we are open for business related to that Service.

Customer(s)   means the purchaser(s) of your products and services.

Cutoff Time   means our cutoff time each Business Day that we separately disclose to you for the Service.

Entry   is defined in the ACH Rules.

Funded Payment  means a payment for which we receive Remittance Information and the funds relating to the 
Payment. 

Losses   means all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses 
(including reasonable fees, disbursements of legal counsel and court fees). 

Master Agreement  means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services. 

Representatives   is defined in section 11(f) of the Master Agreement.

SOW  means Statement of Work.

Website  means the website we maintain in your name in connection with the E-Bill Service.

737

Item 19.



© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Lockbox Service Description
Treasury Management Services

738

Item 19.



2 | December 1, 2019 | Lockbox Service Description

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
("Bank") provides you the services described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer 
identified on the Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll in Services ("Acceptance"). The 
terms "we," "us," or "our" refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are 
defined in the Master Agreement or in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The service ("Service") covered by this Service Description is:
• Lockbox

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
d. The Account Agreement governing your account that you use for the Service ("Account"),
e. The Product Enrollment Form ("Set-up Form") (which contains set-up information for the 

service in which you are enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, 

specifications, instructions, and notices).

The separate documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read 
together as one agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are 
posted at our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that 
are part of the Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service 
confirms your receipt of, and agreement to be bound by, this Service Description and all Service 
Documentation.

Lockbox Service

1. Description of lockbox service.

a. With this Service we provide you with a lockbox ("Lockbox") and Lockbox Address for receipt and 
processing of (i) Checks, and (ii) Charge Authorizations (if you elect this service option and subject 
to the requirements in section 4 below).

b. The Service will start after we have assigned the Lockbox Address to you, you have opened your 
Account, delivered to us the Set-up Form selecting your options for the Service and provided us 
with any other requested information or documents.

c. You will instruct your customers to mail Checks and Charge Authorizations (if applicable) to the 
Lockbox Address, or for overnight delivery to the applicable street address. You will also instruct 
your customers and other payors not to send cash to the Lockbox. Cash that is sent to the 
Lockbox will be subject to Currency Transaction Reporting.

d. We or our agents will have exclusive and unrestricted access to the Lockbox.

2. Lockbox processing.

 a. Processing remittance materials.
 i. Each Business Day we will examine the Remittance Materials in the Lockbox and image them 

in accordance with section 6.

739

Item 19.



3 | December 1, 2019 | Lockbox Service Description

 ii. Cash will be removed from the envelope and a credit advice for the amount of the cash will be 
placed with the envelope and imaged.

 iii. Except as provided in this Service Description or as otherwise agreed, we will not reconcile the 
Payments in the envelopes to Invoices or to any other Remittance Materials.

 iv. Subject to any Business Rules you specify, we will process a Check (1) by automated means 
when a scannable Invoice is included with the Check ("Automated Processed Check") and (2) 
manually when a non-standard Invoice is included with the Check or no Invoice is included 
("Manually Processed Check").

b. Deposits. Each Business Day, we will deposit Checks (other than Exception Manual Checks 
described in section 2(d) below) and cash received in the Lockbox to the Account in accordance 
with the Account Agreement.

 c. Payments processed by automated means.
 i. Except as set forth in section 2(c)(ii) below or in your Business Rules, each Automated 

Processed Check may be deposited in the Account despite any discrepencies in the amount, 
any postdating or staledating, missing information or alterations on the Check, as described in 
the User Guide.

 ii. If you elect to use the Decisioning Module described in section 3, you can give us specific 
processing instructions for Automated Processed Checks before the Cutoff Time.

 d. Payments processed manually.
 i. Except as set forth in your Business Rules, each Manually Processed Check will be deposited in 

your Account, except:
 1. An Exception Manual Check,
 2. A Manually Processed Check that has been altered (subject to section 2(e) below),
 3. You specifically instruct us to the contrary using the Decisioning Module described in 

section 3, and
 4. You have given us a written list of acceptable payee names and the payee name on 

the Manually Processed Check does not match an acceptable payee name.
 e. Alterations. We will use commercially reasonable efforts to identify any alteration to a Manually 

Processed Check and not accept a Check we have identified as altered for deposit.
 f. Restrictive notations. We will not inspect Checks to determine whether they bear restrictive 

notations, such as "Paid in Full."
 g. Foreign checks. If you and we enter into an agreement to provide services for Foreign Checks we 

will deposit and process a Foreign Check if both the foreign bank location and the Foreign Check 
currency appear on our approved list. A Foreign Check not meeting these criteria will not be 
deposited and will be returned to you in accordance with section 2(h).

 h. Rejected remittance materials. Unless you elect otherwise in writing, we will mail to you (i) any 
Remittance Materials which are not imaged in accordance with section 6, and (ii) any Checks or 
other instruments which are not deposited in accordance with this Service Description.

3. Decisioning module. If you elect to use our Decisioning Module for the Service, you can send us 
processing instructions through the CEO portal for certain Checks which we have determined may be 
unprocessable (each, an "Unprocessable Check"). Each message related to the processing of an 
Unprocessable Check (your "Decisioning Instruction") must be received by us by the Cutoff Time. If 
we do not receive a Decisioning Instruction by the Cutoff Time, we will handle the Unprocessable 
Check in accordance with your Default Option. "Default Option" means your election for us to take 
one of the following actions for any Unprocessable Check:

 a. "Deposit all," meaning we deposit the Unprocessable Check in your Account (this will be the 
default option unless you elect otherwise), or

 b. "Reject all," meaning we reject the Unprocessable Check and return it to you as described in 
section 2(h).

740

Item 19.



4 | December 1, 2019 | Lockbox Service Description

4. Charge authorizations. If you elect this Service option (and it is available at your Lockbox processing 
site), you are required to enter into a Merchant Agreement with us and the Merchant Agreement will 
govern any Charge Authorizations. As set forth in the Merchant Agreement:

 a. We will process each Charge Authorization received in the Lockbox which is completed with the 
required processing information,

 b. We will not process a Charge Authorization and will return it to you if any required information is 
missing or it is illegible,

 c. We will seek approval from the issuer of the credit card for the payment on the Charge 
Authorization,

 d. We will request settlement for each Charge Authorization that the issuer approves, and 
 e. Each Business Day we will make information on processed Charge Authorizations available 

through the channel you and we agree to.

5. Virtual lockbox service.
 a. Description of service. When you enroll in our optional Virtual Lockbox Service you can:
 i. Create Electronic Checks from eligible paper checks in accordance with the Wells Fargo 

Remote Deposit Capture Service Description ("RDC Service Description"), which is 
incorporated by reference into this Service Description,

 ii. Create images of Invoices and other Remittance Materials according to this Service 
Description, and

 iii. Transmit Electronic Checks and Remittance Materials to us in an Electronic File for processing 
according to the RDC Service Description and this Service Description.

 b. Processing.
 i. Business Rules. If you and we have agreed to Business Rules to apply during the processing of 

your Electronic Files, we will apply them to each Electronic File you send us. Our processing will 
include data capture of the dollar amount of each Electronic Check, along with data entry 
related to Remittance Materials, as agreed to by you and us in your Business Rules.

 ii. Exception Electronic Checks. If we identify any Electronic Checks that are ineligible for 
processing, we will identify these exception checks in a report made available to you. You are 
responsible for reviewing each electronic check identified in this report in a timely manner and 
arranging for the timely disposition of each check (whether through recapture or physical 
deposit) outside the process available in connection with this Service.

 c. Instructions. If this option is available to you, you can use the CEO portal or another 
communications channel you and we agree to use to give us specific processing instructions for 
the Electronic Files.

6. Imaging and retention.
 a. Imaging and access to images. Unless you and we agree otherwise, we will electronically image all 

Remittance Materials unless rejected or otherwise unprocessable. You may access images of 
Remittance Materials through the CEO portal or other communications channels or transmission 
methods we offer to you. We will redact credit card information including account number, 
signature and expiration date on images of Charge Authorizations.

 b. Destruction of originals. All original Checks and other Remittance Materials that we image 
pursuant to this Service Description will be destroyed 5 Business Days after the processing date. 
You will notify us of any issues which require inspection of original Checks or Remittance Materials 
before the end of the 5-day period.

 c. Intraday image access. Any images that you access on an intraday basis may not be final and are 
subject to further value-added keying. You assume all risk associated with your use of or reliance 
on intradayimages.

741

Item 19.



5 | December 1, 2019 | Lockbox Service Description

7. Representations and warranties. You represent and warrant to us that:
 a. Any person you identify in the Set-up Form or any other communication delivered to us is 

authorized to receive communications and give us instructions regarding the Service. If the 
authority of any authorized person changes, you will promptly notify us in writing. We will have a 
reasonable time after receipt of a communication to act on it.

 b. If a payee on a Check received in the Lockbox is a legal entity other than you, you are duly 
authorized by the payee to have the Check endorsed and deposited into your Account.

 c. Each Charge Authorization received at the Lockbox is legitimate and duly authorized by the 
account debtor.

8. Indemnification. You agree to indemnify and hold us and our Representatives harmless from and against any 
and all Losses which we or our Representatives suffer or incur relating to:

 a. A breach of your representations and warranties in section 7,
 b. Any keying errors or misapplied payments resulting from your Decisioning Instructions or errors 

or delays in your Decisioning Instructions caused by your computer system issues,
 c. Any action taken by us in response to a Decisioning Instruction, except to the extent that any such 

Losses are directly caused by our gross negligence or willful misconduct, and
 d. The processing of Charge Authorizations.

9. Limitation on liability.
 a. We will have no liability or responsibility for Losses arising from:
 i. Any keying errors or misapplied payments resulting from your Decisioning Instructions or 

errors or delays in your Decisioning Instructions caused by your computer system issues,
 ii. Depositing a Check bearing a restrictive notation in accordance with this Service Description, 

regardless of whether we have knowledge of the restrictive notation,
 iii. The deposit of any altered Check, unless the loss results directly from the willful misconduct 

of our officers or employees, or
 iv. Processing a Charge Authorization in accordance with this Service Description.
 b. In addition to the other limitations on our liability contained in the Master Agreement, if you incur 

a material loss which results directly from our negligence or breach in performing the Service due 
to our failure to deposit a Payment according to this Service Description, our liability will be 
limited to direct damages in an amount not to exceed interest on the Payment amount calculated 
at the Federal Funds rate for the time period such Payment amount is not in your Account, not to 
exceed 30 days.

10. Miscellaneous.
 a. Service fees. We may require that you establish a separate analyzed account with us for billing 

purposes. You authorize us to debit our Service fees and charges from the billing account.
 b. Termination. Upon termination of the Service, we will (i) close the Lockbox, and (ii) dispose of the 

mail addressed to the Lockbox in the manner instructed by you for a period of 3 months after the 
termination date, unless otherwise agreed between you and us. You will prepay our Service fees to 
dispose of the Lockbox mail based on our estimate at the time of termination.

 c. Customer service. Any questions that you have with respect to the Service should be addressed 
to our customer service center at the telephone number and address separately provide to you.

 d. Assignment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Service Description or the Service 
Documentation, our rights and obligations with respect to the Service shall be assignable to any 
successor in interest without restriction.

 e. Survival. Sections 8 and 9 of this Service Description will survive termination of the Service.

742

Item 19.



6 | December 1, 2019 | Lockbox Service Description

Glossary

Account Agreement means the applicable account agreement governing your Account.

Applicable Law is defined in section 3 of the Master Agreement.

Business Day means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays.

Business Rules mean certain processing rules that you and we agree in writing to apply to the Payments 
and Electronic Checks.

Charge Authorization means a written authorization to charge your customer's credit card for a payment 
due to you.

Check means a paper Item (which includes drafts) received at the Lockbox that we accept in payment of 
obligations to you.

Cutoff Time means our cutoff time each Business Day that we separately disclose to you for the Service.

Decisioning Module means our Online Lockbox Decisioning Module.

Electronic Check means an electronic image of, and electronic information derived from a paper check.

Electronic File means an electronic file transmitted to us with an Electronic Check.

Exception Manual Check means a Manually Processed Check that we determine in our sole discretion is 
not eligible for processing, as described in the User Guide for the Service.

Foreign Check means a Check drawn on a foreign bank or payable in a currency other than U.S. Dollars.

Invoice means an invoice or remittance coupon included with a Payment received in the Lockbox.

Item is defined in the Account Agreement.

Lockbox Address means the United States Postal Service address we assign to you for the Service.

Losses means all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses 
(including reasonable fees, disbursements of legal counsel and court fees).

Master Agreement means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

Merchant Agreement means a separate merchant services agreement you and we enter into for us to 
process your Charge Authorizations.

Payment means a Check, Charge Authorization or cash received in the Lockbox. 

Remittance Materials means any Checks, Charge Authorizations, Invoices, correspondence, papers, 
documents, and other envelope contents (other than cash).

Representatives is defined in section 11(f) of the Master Agreement.

743

Item 19.



[REVISED – December 18, 2020] 
© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

ACH and related services 
Service Description
Treasury Management services

744

Item 19.



2 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

Table of contents 

03           Introduction

03           Services

03           ACH Origination Service

06           Cash Concentration Service

07           ACH Fraud Filter Service

08           Perfect Receivables® Service

09           WellsTAX® Payments Service

11           Glossary

745

Item 19.



3 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which we provide you the services described below. 
"You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll 
in the Services ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service 
Description are defined in the Master Agreement or in the Glossary at the end of this Service Description.

The services (each a "Service") covered by this Service Description are:
 • ACH Origination service
 • ACH Fraud Filter service
 • Cash Concentration service
 • Perfect Receivables® service
 • WellsTAX® Payments service

The Service Documentation includes:
 a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
 b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
 c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
 d. The Account Agreement governing the Account,
 e. The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each service in which you are enrolling), and
 f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, instructions, 

and notices).

The documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together as one 
agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at our Commercial 
Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of the Service Documentation, 
they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your receipt of, and agreement to be bound by, 
this Service Description and all Service Documentation.

Services

ACH Origination Service

1. Description of services.  With this Service you can originate ACH credit and debit Entries in accordance with the ACH 
Rules. Any capitalized terms not specifically defined in the Service Documentation will be as defined in the ACH Rules. 
By using this Service, you authorize us to originate Entries on your behalf to Receivers' accounts, you agree to be 
bound by the ACH Rules, and you agree not to originate Entries that violate the laws of the United States.

2. Preparation of Entries and Files; processing schedules.  You will prepare and deliver each File in accordance with the 
ACH Rules, User Guides and other guidelines we make available to you. You agree to use the applicable Security 
Procedure when you send Entries to us. We will process each File under our current processing schedule and any 
instructions about the Settlement Date of an Entry that you provide, if (a) we receive the File by our Cutoff Time on a 
Business Day and (b) the ACH is open for business. Your Files will be considered received by us when the transmission 
is completed and authenticated in compliance with the Security Procedure. If your File is received after our Cutoff 
Time or on a day when the ACH is not open for business, we will treat the File as having been received prior to our 
Cutoff Time on the next Business Day on which the ACH is open for business. In processing your Entries or Files, we 
may use any means of transmission, funds transfer system, clearing house or intermediary bank that we reasonably 
select.

746

Item 19.



4 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

3. Inconsistency of name and number.  If an Entry describes the RDFI both by name and identifying number, we, a 
Gateway Operator or another financial institution handling the Entry may rely on the identifying number to identify 
the RDFI, even if the identifying number refers to an institution other than the named RDFI. If an Entry describes a 
Receiver both by name and identifying number, the RDFI may pay the Entry based on the identifying number, even if 
the number identifies a person different from the named Receiver.

4. Your payment obligations with respect to entries.  You are obligated to pay us in immediately available funds an 
amount equal to the sum of all credit Entries you deliver to us before we send your Entries to the ACH or Gateway 
Operator, or post an on-us Entry. When we act as both the ODFI and RDFI for an Entry, the Entry is an "on-us Entry." 
You will maintain available funds in each Account sufficient to cover your credit Entries. You authorize us to debit the 
Account for the total amount of all credit Entries originated from it at any time. We may refuse to process any credit 
Entries, even if we have done so in the past, without having first been paid by you, but, if we do, the amount is 
immediately due and payable without notice or demand. We may take other actions to ensure we receive payment for 
your credit Entries including (a) upon notice to you, placing a hold on funds in any account you hold with us or our 
affiliate sufficient to cover your credit Entries and (b) setting off against any amount we or our affiliate owes you. In 
addition, we may charge the Account or any other of your accounts held with us or our affiliate for any debit Entry, 
including any correcting or Reversal Entry later returned to us. You will reimburse us for any returned debit Entries on 
the same day you receive notice of the returned Entry. You agree that we do not need to send a separate notice of 
debit Entries which have been returned unpaid.

5. Provisional credit.  If we credit your Account for an Entry, the credit is provisional until we receive final settlement. If 
we do not receive final settlement, we are entitled to debit your Account or any other accounts you own in whole or in 
part with us or our affiliate for the amount of the Entry. If there is any remaining shortfall, you will pay it immediately 
upon demand.

6. Rejected entries.  We may reject an Entry or File if you do not comply with the terms of the ACH Rules and the Service 
Documentation, and we will attempt to notify you promptly so you may correct the problem. We will have no liability 
for rejecting an Entry or File or failing to provide notice of a rejection. If you ask us to repair an Entry or File, we will 
have no liability if we are unable to make the requested repair. You will pay all charges and expenses for any repair or 
attempted repair.

7. Cancellation, amendment, reversal.  You have no right to cancel, amend or reverse an Entry or File after we receive it. If 
you do request that we cancel, amend or reverse an Entry or File, we may, in our sole discretion, attempt to complete 
the request. If we do not complete the request, we will have no liability and you will reimburse us for any expenses, 
losses or damages we incur.

8. Your duty to report erroneous or unauthorized entries.  You will exercise reasonable care to determine whether an 
Entry we accepted was either erroneous or not authorized and to notify us of the relevant facts within a reasonable 
time not exceeding 14 days after you receive our notification that the Entry was accepted or that the Account was 
debited for the Entry, whichever is earlier. If you do not notify us within 14 days, we will not be liable for any loss of 
interest or for any other loss relating to an erroneous or unauthorized debit to your Account or because of any other 
discrepancy in the notification.

9. Re-transmission of returned entries.  We are not required to re-transmit a returned Entry or File to the ACH or 
Gateway Operator, or to take any further action on a returned on-us Entry.

10. Audit. You grant us ongoing access to your Files and the right to audit periodically your Files, ACH processes and 
controls so we can verify your compliance with the ACH Rules and this Service Description or any other Service 
Documentation.

747

Item 19.



5 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

11. Warranties.  We make certain warranties under the ACH Rules and other Applicable Law when you use this Service. You 
will reimburse us for any Losses we incur, including our reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses, as the result of a 
breach of a warranty we make in connection with any of your Entries, except to the extent that the Losses resulted 
from our own gross negligence or intentional misconduct.

12. Indemnification.  WWe indemnify certain persons under the ACH Rules when you use this Service. You agree to 
reimburse us and our Representatives for any Losses we incur, including our reasonable attorneys' fees and legal 
expenses, as the result of the enforcement of any such indemnity, except to the extent the Losses resulted solely from 
our own gross negligence or intentional misconduct. In addition, you will indemnify us and our Representatives from 
and against all Losses awarded against or incurred or suffered by us arising directly or indirectly from or related to any 
material breach of a representation, warranty, or covenant you provide regarding this Service.

13. Termination.  In addition to the termination provisions contained in the Master Agreement, we may terminate this 
Service immediately upon notice to you if we determine in our sole discretion: the number of returned debit Entries is 
excessive; you have breached a warranty provided under the ACH Rules or this Service or otherwise failed to comply 
with the ACH Rules.

14. Survival. Sections 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 12 and 13 will survive termination of this Service.

Additional Terms and Service options

15. International Entries. This section contains additional terms that apply when you originate International Entries.
 a. General. You agree to comply with, and we will process each International Entry in accordance with:
   i. The laws and payment system rules of the receiving country of your International Entry,
  ii. Any agreement we provide to you governing International Entries between us and the Gateway Operator 

we use to process the International Entry, and
 iii. The ACH Rules.
 If there is a conflict among these three areas, they will govern in the order listed above.
 b. Currency conversion. With respect to International Entries we agree to originate in a Foreign Currency, the 

currency conversion is governed by section 8 (Currency conversion) of the Master Agreement. For debit Entries, 
however, we use the Applicable Exchange Rate in effect at the time we receive the funds for settlement of the 
debit Entry rather than at the time we send (or execute) the debit Entry. If the debit Entry is returned to us, we may 
charge the applicable Account or any other of your accounts with us or our affiliate for the amount equal to the 
value of the returned debit Entry, after we have converted the Foreign Currency to the Account Currency at the 
Applicable Exchange Rate in effect when we process the returned debit Entry. We will not be liable for a sum in 
excess of the original amount of the debit Entry after conversion.

 c. Acts or omissions of third parties. We will not be liable for:
 i. Any failure or delay by a Gateway Operator, any intermediary financial institution, or the financial 

institution designated to receive the International Entry in the receiving country in processing or failing to 
process any Entry we transmit to the receiving country, or

 ii. Any acts or omissions by a third party including the delay or failure of any third party to process, credit or 
debit any International Entry.

16. Third-party sender activities. This section contains additional terms that apply when you are a Third-Party Sender.
 a. General. Prior to originating any Entry on behalf of each customer or upon our request, you will:
   i. Provide us with the information we require to understand the nature of your customer's business, including 

the name, Taxpayer Identification Number, business activity and geographic location of your customer, and 
whether your customer is also a Third-Party Sender,

748

Item 19.



6 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

  ii. Timely provide us with information we require for purposes of our registration of you or your customer as a 
Third-Party Sender in accordance with the ACH Rules ("Registration") and supplemental Registration 
information requested by us, and

 iii. Upon our request, obtain our written approval to originate or continue to originate Entries for that customer 
(which we may rescind upon written notice to you), and

 iv. Enter into a written agreement with that customer in which that customer agrees:
 1. To assume the responsibilities of an Originator under the ACH Rules and to be bound by the ACH 

Rules,
 2. Not to originate ACH Entries in violation of the laws or regulations of the United States including 

without limitation the regulations issued by the Office of Foreign Assets Control,
 3. To grant us ongoing access to audit the customer and any ACH Entry that it has transmitted to you 

for transmission to us, and
 4. That we may at any time refuse to process an ACH Entry for that customer.
 b. Updates to registration information. You will timely notify us of any changes to information you provide to us for 

the Registration of you or your customer as a Third Party Sender.
 c. Representations and warranties. With respect to each of your customers for which you are originating 

transactions through us, you represent and warrant to us that you have conducted the appropriate due diligence 
to determine that:

 i. Each customer is engaged in a legitimate business, and
 ii. The type, size and frequency of transactions that each customer is originating is normal and expected for the 

customer's type of business.
 d. Ongoing monitoring. You will use reasonable commercial standards to monitor each customer's business and 

transactions on an ongoing basis, and notify us promptly if you identify any unusual activity by your customer. You 
will take appropriate actions with respect to the customer, including refusing to originate Entries for your 
customer.

17. Perfect NOC service. With our Perfect NOC Service, we maintain a database of Notifications of Change (each, a 
"NOC") that we receive. We use this database to update your Entries in accordance with the Service options you select 
from time to time. We will notify you of each NOC we receive in connection with your Entries. Additional details about 
this Service are more fully described in the applicable User Guide.

18. MICR-split processing service.
 a. With our MICR-Split Processing Service, if we determine that an RDFI for a debit Entry you sent is not an ACH 

participant (or as otherwise reasonably determined by us as appropriate), you authorize us to issue a preauthorized 
check ("PAC") using the debit Entry data you provided. PACs are drawn upon the Receiver's account with the 
applicable RDFI and deposited in your Account, but do not contain the signature of the Receiver.

 b. You represent and warrant to us that:
 i. You have the appropriate authorization from each person owning the Receiver's account shown in the 

debit Entry data, which remains effective when we issue the PAC, and
 ii. You are not a "telemarketer" for purposes of the Federal Trade Commission's Telemarketer Sales Rule (16 

C.F.R. Part 310).

19. Cash Concentration service. With the Cash Concentration Service, we originate debit Entries to move funds from your 
Remote Accounts into your Concentration Account. We make summary and detail level reports of your cash 
concentration transactions available to you through our Cash Concentration Reporting Service. Additional details 
about this Service and available service options are more fully described in the applicable User Guide.

 a. Options. You can choose from the following options:
 i. Touchtone or online option. We originate debit Entries to collect funds from your Remote Accounts for 

the transfer amounts you specify based on deposit information entered for each location by touch-tone 
telephone or computer.

749

Item 19.



7 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

 ii. Automated Cash Concentration option. We request account balances from the financial institutions 
holding the Remote Accounts. We calculate transfer amounts and originate debit Entries based on your 
specified target balances for the Remote Accounts and other transfer parameters you may establish.

 b. Representations and warranties. With respect to each debit Entry we originate on your behalf, you represent and 
warrant to us that:

 i. The debit Entry is authorized,
 ii. If you are using the Touchtone/Online option, the corresponding deposit input is accurate, and
 iii. If you are using the Automated Cash Concentration Option, you have authorized each financial institution 

holding a Remote Account to comply with our request for balance information.
 c. ACH deadlines. If by our applicable Cutoff Time (i) you do not complete your deposit inputs for the Touchtone or 

Online option or (ii) we are unable to obtain balance information for a Remote Account for the Automated Cash 
Concentration option, we will not be responsible for failing to meet the ACH deadlines to originate the debit 
Entries.

 d. Automated Cash Concentration authorization. You authorize us in our own name or in your name, to request that 
each financial institution holding a Remote Account provide us or our designee with the account balance 
information each Business Day using any method specified by us.

ACH Fraud Filter Service

1. Description of service. With this Service, you can manage incoming ACH Entries in accordance with the ACH Rules. 
Any capitalized terms not specifically defined in the Service Documentation will be as defined in the ACH Rules. You 
have the following options:

 a. Stop option. This option stops all incoming ACH Entries you have not authorized in advance (and not set as 
preauthorizations). Entries stopped under the Stop Option will be returned to the ODFI as unauthorized.

 b. Review option. You review and decision each incoming ACH Entries (not set as preauthorizations) before the 
applicable cutoff time and select each Entry to be either paid or returned. Entries that you have selected for return 
under the Review Option will be returned to the ODFI as unauthorized and we will create a reversing adjustment to 
your Account. If you do not make a pay/return decision on an Entry prior to the applicable cutoff time, the Entry 
will be paid or returned based on the default action you specified.

 c. Additional criteria. You may also set up additional decisioning criteria, including limits and preauthorizations.

2. Echecks. You have the following options for incoming ACH Entries that have been converted from a check (Echecks).
 a. Stop option. All Echecks will be automatically stopped and returned to the ODFI as unauthorized.
 b. Post option. All Echecks will automatically post without your review.
 c. No additional criteria. Additional decisioning criteria, including limits and preauthorizations, are not available for 

Echecks.

3. Service restrictions. You agree to be bound by the ACH Rules for all Entries. Regardless of the Service options or other 
criteria you have in place, we may return any Entry in accordance with the ACH Rules and Applicable Law. We may also 
accept any Entry, Reversal Entry or adjustment in accordance with our obligations under the ACH Rules and Applicable 
Law. This Service does not apply to transactions between you and us. We may pay Entries which you have authorized 
us to originate against your Account (for instance, loan or credit card payments), whether or not you have included 
these in your decisioning criteria.

4. Termination. Upon termination of this Service, you will still have the right to return individual Entries in accordance with 
the ACH Rules and Applicable Law.

750

Item 19.



8 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

Perfect Receivables® Service

1. Description of service. With this Service, you can elect options for posting and reporting information about ACH 
entries and wire transfers (each, a "Remittance") that we post each Business Day to your Account(s). We provide a 
range of unique Wells Fargo payment identification codes (WPICs) that can be used to route Remittances to your 
Account and help you identify and post your receivables to the correct remitter.

2. WPIC restrictions.
 a. You may not assign a WPIC to more than one remitter or reuse any WPIC numbers.
 b. If you cannot post the Remittance to your remitter in accordance with the WPIC information, you must return the 

Remittance.
 c. We reserve the right to limit your ability to receive debit or credit Remittances for any WPIC number or range of 

WPIC numbers above a specified amount and to change the specified amount, which may be as low as zero, at any 
time upon notice to you,

 d. We have the right to rescind any WPIC number or range of WPIC numbers at any time in our sole discretion. For 
example, we may do so if we consider it necessary to comply with Applicable Law. We will use reasonable efforts 
to notify you before rescinding any WPIC number unless we are prohibited from doing so by Applicable Law, or by 
our applicable policies and standards, as amended from time to time. When you receive notice of the rescission of 
any WPIC number, you will promptly notify the remitter assigned to the rescinded WPIC number that the WPIC 
number may no longer be used to receive Remittances. You will use best efforts to prevent the WPIC from being 
used to receive Remittances and will block or otherwise restrict access to funds received through a rescinded 
WPIC.

3. Processing of Remittances; chargebacks. Each Business Day, we will post to your Account all Remittances we receive 
prior to the Cutoff Time, except for Remittances we reject or other restricted Remittances. Each credit to your 
Account for a Remittance is provisional until we receive final settlement for the Remittance. If we do not receive final 
settlement, we may debit your Account or any other account you own, in whole or in part, with us or any of our 
affiliates for the amount of the Remittance. You will pay us immediately upon demand for any shortfall remaining 
after such chargeback.

4. Rejected Remittances. We may, but are not obligated to, reject a Remittance:
 a. That does not contain all of the required information specified by us,
 b. If we suspect that you are not entitled to the Remittance,
 c. If at the time we receive the Remittance, you do not maintain an Account with us, the Service has been 

terminated, or we are not permitted by Applicable Law to accept credits or debits to any of your Accounts, or
 d. If you are in default under this Service Description or any other Service Documentation.

5. Reporting. Each Business Day, we will provide you with the information about Remittances posted to your Accounts 
through the communications channels you elect.

6. Violation of Applicable Law. You represent and warrant to us that you will not use the Service in a manner that could 
result in a violation of Applicable Law. You will provide us with the information we require to understand the nature of 
your use of the Service and grant us ongoing access to audit your compliance with Applicable Law. In addition to our 
other rights to terminate the Service under the Service Documentation, we may terminate the Service upon notice to 
you if we determine your use of the Service could result in a violation of Applicable Law.

751

Item 19.



9 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

WellsTAX® Payments Service

1. Description of service. With this Service, you can use our CEO® portal or a touch-tone telephone to request transfers 
from your Account (each, a "Transfer") to pay your U.S. federal, state or other taxes specified from time to time in our 
User Guides. By using this Service, you authorize us to originate ACH credit Entries on your behalf to effectuate the 
Transfers. You agree to be bound by the ACH Rules, and also comply with applicable provisions of the ACH Service 
Description, which is incorporated by reference into this Service Description.

2. Procedures for initiating transfers. You will deliver your requests for Transfers in accordance with the Service 
Documentation, including the User Guides. You agree to use the applicable Security Procedures for your Initiation 
Method (including access codes and passwords for touch-tone telephone initiation method) when you send Transfer 
requests to us.

3. Accuracy of data. You will provide us with the information necessary for us to inform the applicable government 
agency or entity of the tax payment within the time period required by any rule or regulation governing the payment. 
You authorize us to rely on the accuracy of the information you have provided to us.

4. Transfer deadline. Any Transfer request delivered on any Business Day after the applicable Cutoff Time, or on a non-
Business Day, will be deemed received on the following Business Day. You must deliver Transfer requests by the 
applicable Tax Transfer Deadline.

5. Authorized reporting agent. If you are a taxpayer required by federal law to make electronic Federal Tax Deposit 
(FTD) payments to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and submit FTD information through the U.S. Department of 
the Treasury's Electronic Federal Tax Payment System (EFTPS), we will make your Transfers as FTD payments 
submitted through EFTPS, regardless of any other instructions from you. In performing the Service, we are acting as 
your authorized reporting agent. You authorize us to accept debit Entries from the IRS to make the Transfers, and to 
debit your Account for the amount of such payments.

6. Payment for Transfers. You authorize us to debit your Account before we process a Transfer. We may refuse to 
process a Transfer if the Transfer would exceed the available funds in the Account on the Tax Transfer Deadline.

7. Rejected Transfers. We also reserve the right to delay or reject any Transfer if we believe the Transfer may violate 
Applicable Law or if we believe the Transfer will present a risk to you and/or us, or for other reasons. If we do not 
accept a Transfer request or must delay making a requested Transfer, we will attempt to notify you.

8. No verification of Transfer Requests. We are under no obligation whatsoever at any time to verify any Transfer and 
will have no liability for failing to investigate or verify any Transfer request.

9. Confirmations. We will confirm each Transfer on your account statement or on any bank information reporting service 
that we provide you. You must immediately inform us of any Transfer that is incorrect or unauthorized.

10. Amendments and cancellations of transfer requests. You may cancel a Transfer request before the Cutoff Time if we 
have not processed the Transfer. After we have processed a Transfer, it cannot be canceled, amended or reversed.

11. Records, information and audits. You will verify the accuracy of all records and information regarding the Service or 
any Transfer and you will notify us immediately of any errors. Nothing in the Service Documentation will relieve you of:

 a. Any responsibility imposed by law, regulation or contract with regard to the maintenance of records, or
 b. Any responsibility to perform audits and account reviews customarily conducted by persons or entities whose 

businesses are similar to your business.

752

Item 19.



10 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

12. Responsibility for paying taxes. Any interruption in the Service will not relieve you of any obligation to pay any tax to 
the IRS, or any other government agency or entity owed the tax, and we will have no liability to you for your failure in 
such circumstances to pay any tax.

753

Item 19.



11 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

Glossary

Account means your account(s) with us used in connection with the Service.

Account Agreement means the applicable account agreement governing the Account.

Account Currency is defined in section 8 (Currency conversion) of the Master Agreement.

ACH means Automated Clearing House.

ACH Rules means the Nacha Operating Rules and any applicable local ACH rules.

Applicable Exchange Rate is defined in section 8 (Currency conversion) of the Master Agreement.

Applicable Law is defined in section 3 (Changes to service) of the Master Agreement.

Business Day means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. When used in connection with funds transfer 
Services, "Business Day" means each day on we are open for business related to that Service.

CEO® portal means our Commercial Electronic Office® portal.

Concentration Account means your Account designated in the Concentration Account Services Set-up Form.

Cutoff Time means our cutoff time each Business Day we separately disclose to you for the applicable Service.

Entry is defined in the ACH Rules.

File is defined in the ACH Rules.

Foreign Currency is defined in section 8 (Currency Conversion) of the Master Agreement.

Gateway or Gateway Operator is defined in the ACH Rules.

Initiation Method is defined in section 6 (Security procedures) of the Master Agreement.

International Entry means an Entry to an account outside the United States.

Item is defined in the Account Agreement.

Log-on Credentials is defined in section 9 (CEO portal) of the Master Agreement.

Losses means liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses (including reasonable 
fees and disbursements of legal counsel and court fees).

Master Agreement means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

NOC or Notification of Change is defined in the ACH Rules.

ODFI (Originating Depository Financial Institution) is defined in the ACH Rules.

754

Item 19.



12 | ACH & Related Services - Revised December 18, 2020

Originator is defined in the ACH Rules.

Payment Order means an instruction to us in your name to transfer funds from your Account (and includes any 
communication cancelling or amending an instruction).

RDFI (Receiving Depository Financial Institution) is defined in the ACH Rules.

Receiver is defined in the ACH Rules.

Remote Account means one or more accounts owned or controlled by you in the United States.

Representatives is defined in section 11(f) (Liability and indemnification) of the Master Agreement.

Reversal or Reversing Entry is defined in the ACH Rules.

Security Procedure is defined in the Product Enrollment Form and in section 6 (Security procedures) of the Master 
Agreement.

Settlement Date is defined in the ACH Rules.

Tax Transfer Deadline means a date at least one Business Day prior to the date the tax payment is due to the 
applicable tax authority.

Third Party Sender is defined in the ACH Rules.

755

Item 19.



© 2016 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC.

Addendum to ACH Origination Service 
Description for State Tax Refund Return 
Opt-in Program Participants

1. Introduction. This Addendum to ACH Origination Service Description for State Tax Refund Return Opt-In 
Program Participants (“Addendum”) applies to Company in connection with its use of the ACH origination service 
(“Service”) pursuant and subject to the terms of the Service Documentation, including the ACH Origination 
Service Description (“Service Description”). If there are any conflicts between this Addendum and the Service 
Description, this Addendum shall control. Any capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Addendum shall have 
the meaning set forth in the Service Description or the ACH Rules, unless otherwise indicated.

2. Description of Program Services. Company has agreed to participate in the State Tax Refund Return Opt-In 
Program (“Program”) offered by NACHA—The Electronic Payments Association (“NACHA”), through which 
participating RDFIs can submit Return Entries to Company under operating rules adopted specifically for the 
Program. In connection with Company’s participation in the Program, Company has requested that Bank enter into 
a State Tax Refund Return Opt-In Program ODFI Agreement with NACHA (“ODFI Agreement”). The ODFI 
Agreement permits Bank, as ODFI for Company, to receive Return Entries transmitted under an R17 return reason 
code in accordance with the operating rules adopted for the Program and the ACH Rules (collectively, “Program 
Rules”). Bank will provide “Program Services” under this Addendum in accordance with its obligations under the 
ODFI Agreement. In the event of a conflict among the foregoing requirements, the following order of precedence 
shall apply: (1) the ODFI Agreement; (2) the Program Rules; and (3) the ACH Rules.

3. Program Returns. Bank will receive R17 Return Entries on behalf of Company in accordance with the Program 
Rules. Company understands and agrees that Bank is otherwise permitted to dishonor R17 Return Entries in 
accordance with the ACH Rules, and that it is Company’s responsibility to notify Bank of Program Entries that 
should be dishonored, in accordance with the time limits set forth in the ACH Rules. Company understands and 
agrees that all Program Returns (as defined in the Program Rules) may be transmitted for up to 60 days following 
the Settlement Date of the original Entry. If a Participating RDFI wishes to transmit a Program Return after 60 
days from the Settlement Date of the original Entry, the Participating RDFI must contact Bank to obtain 
permission for a late Program Return and Bank shall accept or deny the late Program Return request at its sole 
discretion. Company understands and agrees that it is the Participating RDFI’s responsibility to provide Bank with 
the appropriate subcode specifying the nature of each Program Return.

4. Program Information. In accordance with the requirements of the Program Rules, Company understands and 
agrees that Bank is permitted to share information with NACHA regarding Company’s participation in the Program, 
including but not limited to transaction volumes.

5. Indemnification. Bank shall have no liability for the acceptance of any Program Return in accordance with this 
Addendum and the ODFI Agreement. In addition, Company will indemnify Bank from and against all liabilities, 
losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses (including reasonable fees and 
disbursements of legal counsel and accountants) awarded against or incurred or suffered by Bank arising directly 
or indirectly from or related to its performance of the Program Services.

6. Termination. In addition to the termination provisions contained in the Master Agreement and Service 
Description, Bank may terminate this Addendum immediately upon notice to Company if it receives notice of 
termination of the applicable ODFI Agreement.

756

Item 19.



© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Wire Transfer Service Description
Treasury Management Services

757

Item 19.



2 November 20, 2019 | Wire Transfer Service Description

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which we provide you the services 
described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the Acceptance of 
Services that is signed when you enroll in the Service ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" refer to 
the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are defined in the Master Agreement or 
in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The service ("Service") covered by this Service Description is:
• Wire Transfer

The Service Documentation includes:
a.  The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
b.  The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c.  The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
d.  The Account Agreement governing the Account,
e.  The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each service in which you 

are enrolling), and
f.  User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, 

specifications, instructions, and notices).

The documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together 
as one agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at 
our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part 
of the Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms 
your receipt of, and agreement to be bound by, this Service Description and all Service Documentation.

Wire Transfer Service

1. Description of service. With this Service you can instruct us to transfer funds by wire. You agree to 
comply with all applicable payment system rules, including the national payment system rules and any 
other Applicable Laws and regulations of the receiving country of the transaction.

2. Preparation of payment orders; processing schedules. You will prepare each Payment Order 
according to guidelines we separately make available from time to time. You will use the applicable 
Security Procedure when you send a Payment Order to us. 

 
We will execute each Payment Order in accordance with our then current processing schedule and any 
accompanying instructions you include regarding the date a Payment Order is to be executed. A 
Payment Order will be deemed received by us when we have verified it in compliance with the Security 
Procedure.
a. If we receive a Payment Order after our Cutoff Time on any Business Day, we will treat the 

Payment Order as having been received before our applicable Cutoff Time on our next Business 
Day.

b. If we execute your Payment Order by sending instructions to another financial institution, we may 
send the Payment Order by any transmission method and by any route we in our sole discretion 
consider reasonable.

758

Item 19.



3 November 20, 2019 | Wire Transfer Service Description

3. Inconsistency in name and number.
a. If a Payment Order describes the person to receive the funds under the Payment Order both by 

name and identifying number, we or another financial institution through which the Payment 
Order is routed may rely solely on the identifying number to identify the person, even if the 
number identifies a person other than the one named.

b. If a Payment Order describes a financial institution both by name and identification number, we or 
another financial institution through which the Payment Order is routed may rely solely on the 
identification number to identify the financial institution, even if the identification number refers 
to a financial institution other than the one named. 

4. Authorization to pay. You authorize us to:
a. Execute any Payment Order we verify in accordance with the applicable Security Procedure, and
b. Debit the account specified in the Payment Order even if a debit results in an overdraft on the 

execution date. If no account is specified, we will debit your Account or any other of your 
account(s) with us or one of our affiliates.

You will maintain sufficient available funds in the account specified in the Payment Order at the time 
of each debit.

5. Your duty to report erroneous or unauthorized transfer instructions. You will exercise reasonable 
care to:
a. Determine whether a Payment Order accepted by us was either erroneous or not authorized, and
b. To notify us of the relevant facts within a reasonable time not exceeding 14 days after we notify 

you that the Payment Order was accepted or that the Account was debited for the Payment 
Order, whichever is earlier.  

If you do not notify us within 14 days, we will not be liable for any loss of interest or for any other loss 
relating to an erroneous or unauthorized debit to your account or because of any other discrepancy in 
the notice.

6. Rejected payment orders. If a Payment Order is rejected for any reason, we will attempt to notify you 
promptly so you can cure the defect. However, we will have no liability to you for a rejected Payment 
Order or any loss resulting from our delay or failure to notify you.

7. Cancellation, amendment, reversal. A Payment Order will be final and not subject to cancellation, 
amendment or reversal by you, except we may, at your request, make an effort to cancel, amend or 
reverse a Payment Order without incurring any liability for our failure or inability to do so.

8. Drawdown requests. A “drawdown request” is an instruction from you to another depository 
institution to debit:
a. An account at that institution and transfer the funds to us (an “outgoing drawdown request”), or
b. The Account and transfer the funds to that institution (an “incoming drawdown request”).

In this Service description, “Payment Order” includes drawdown requests. We may execute an 
incoming drawdown request that conforms with instructions we receive through Fed Wire, SWIFT, 
CHIPs or any other funds transfer system, provided those instructions are not inconsistent with 
instructions you separately provide in writing. The authority to execute the incoming drawdown 
request will continue until we receive your express written notice that such authority is revoked and 
have a reasonable time to act on it.

759

Item 19.



4 November 20, 2019 | Wire Transfer Service Description

9. Limitation of liability. We will not be liable for any third party’s failure to or delay or error in 
processing a Payment Order. If the beneficiary bank does not pay the beneficiary specified in the 
Payment Order, a refund will be made only after we have received confirmation of the effective 
cancellation of the Payment Order and we are in free possession of the funds debited or earmarked in 
connection with the Payment Order. If we are notified the beneficiary bank did not credit the Account 
for the full amount stated in a Payment Order, our sole obligation will be to promptly execute a 
second Payment Order in the amount of the stated deficiency. 

 
If we execute a Payment Order that is more than the amount stated in the Payment Order, to the 
extent you do not receive the benefit of the full amount of the Payment Order, we will only be liable 
for any loss of the principal amount transferred in excess of the amount stated in the Payment Order. 
Additionally, we will be liable for the amount of interest you have lost due to the transfer of the excess 
amount, computed at the Federal Funds rate or as otherwise agreed. However, our liability for loss of 
interest will be limited to 20 calendar days’ interest. This section sets forth our complete liability for a 
Payment Order issued or received under this Wire Transfer Service description.

10. Survival. Sections 5, 6, 7 and 9 will survive the termination of the Services.

Glossary

Account means your account(s) with us used in connection with the Service.

Account Agreement means the applicable account agreement governing the Account.

Applicable Law is defined in section 3 of the Master Agreement.

Business Day means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. When used in connection 
with funds transfer Services, "Business Day" means each day on we are open for business related to that 
Service.
Cutoff Time means our cutoff time each Business Day we separately disclose to you for the applicable 
Service.
Master Agreement means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

Payment Order means an instruction to us in your name to transfer funds from your Account (and 
includes any communication cancelling or amending an instruction).

Security Procedure is defined in the Product Enrollment Form and in section 6 of the Master Agreement.

760

Item 19.



Wire Transfer Services Customer Setup Form and 
Agreement

© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. 
WTR8173/595369 (Rev 09 – 07/19)

Page 1 of 4

Part I – Setup Information

Treasury Management Customers 

Complete Part I and sign as provided in Part III. The information in this setup form and your separate treasury management documents relating to wire transfers 
govern your use of Wells Fargo’s wire transfer service. 

All Other Customers (including consumers and non-Treasury Management business customers) 

Complete Part I, review the Wire Transfer Services Agreement in Part II, and sign as provided in Part III.

Type of Request: New Update Existing Information Delete Existing Information

A. Account Numbers (list accounts to be debited for each wire transfer) 

For additional accounts attach a signed listing with notation of Customer’s name and the additional account numbers. Check the appropriate box for each 
account number to identify the account type.

1)

DDA G/L

2)

DDA G/L

3)

G/L DDA

4)

DDA G/L

5)

DDA G/L

6)

DDA G/L

7)

G/L DDA

8)

DDA G/L

9)

DDA G/L

10)

DDA G/L

11)

G/L DDA

12)

DDA G/L

B. Advice Information (additional fees apply for these services) 

For Fax or Email Notification on intraday wire activity use the InfoFax setup form.

Mail Advice (this paper based service is no longer available to add) Delete Mail Advice

C. Authorized Callers (people authorized to initiate wires) 
$ Limit = Use “N” if unlimited. The limit applies to all functions unless noted otherwise. If no limit is noted we will set the limit as unlimited. 
Initiation Type = If no Initiation Type is noted, we will set the individual up for both Repetitive and Non-Repetitive Wire Initiation. Complete by checking 
appropriate box: R = Repetitive / B = Both Repetitive & Non-Repetitive.

Authorized Callers 

first & last name Caller $ Limit
Phone Number 

including area code
InitiationType √ 

 R          B

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

D. OPTIONAL Verify Callback Service (does not apply to repetitive wires) 
Selecting this fee-based service requires a minimum of two persons with wire transfer authority because the initiator of a wire cannot also approve the wire. If 
the form does not indicate an Authorized Approver other than the initiator, the optional Verify Callback Service cannot be provided.

Verify Orders exceeding: $
Authorized Approvers 

first & last name Approver $ Limit
Phone Number 

including area code

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

761

Item 19.



Page 2 of 4© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. 
WTR8173/595369 (Rev 09 – 07/19)

Authorized Approvers 

first & last name Approver $ Limit
Phone Number 

including area code

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

Add Delete $

E. Alternate Account to be Charged for Wire Fees (Available to Business and Wealth Private Banking customers ONLY) 

List account only if wire fees are to be assessed to this account for the accounts listed in Part I-A.

DDA AU and G/L

Part II  - Wire Transfer Services Agreement

1.      Introduction. This Wire Transfer Services Agreement ("Agreement"), along with the account agreement applicable to the account used in connection 
with the wire transfer services ("Account"), govern your use of Wells Fargo's wire service. With this service, the Wells Fargo customer identified in this 
Agreement (“you” or “your”) can instruct Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Wells Fargo") to transfer funds by wire from the Account ("Order").

2.      Security Procedure

2.1.      General. You agree to use the security procedure described in this Section ("Security Procedure") when you request an Order (except for an 
Order delivered to Wells Fargo in person by you or your authorized representative). The purpose of the Security Procedure is to verify the authenticity of 
an Order delivered to us in your name and not to detect errors in the transmission or content of an Order.  You agree the  Security Procedure is 
commercially reasonable and, in view of your requirements, is a satisfactory method of  verifying  the authenticity of Orders. You agree you are bound 
by any Order, whether or not authorized, issued in your name and accepted by Wells Fargo in compliance with the Security Procedure. 

2.2.      Voice Initiated Orders. Wells Fargo's standard Security Procedure for a voice-initiated Order consists of confirming the personal identification 
number ("PIN") accompanying an Order corresponds with a valid PIN assigned to you, and confirming the voice print provided when placing an Order 
matches the print registered on file for that PIN holder. A PIN and voice print are required for all voice-initiated transfers. 

2.3.      PIN. Each person authorized to initiate and/or approve Orders for you will be issued a unique PIN. PINs are computer-generated and you cannot 
choose your own PIN. Wells Fargo employees do not have access to PINs.  You agree to safeguard any PIN assigned to you. You must supply the PIN 
each time you initiate an Order. PINs are issued via a two-part, confidential mailer sent to you. If lost or forgotten, Wells Fargo cannot reconstruct PINs. 
For your protection, if you suspect a PIN has been compromised, or if an authorized person is no longer authorized, immediately notify Wells Fargo Wire 
Transfer Services at 888-384-8400. Wells Fargo,  in its sole discretion, may cancel or reissue any PIN it believes may have been compromised, including, 
without limitation, a PIN that has never been acknowledged as having been received and any PIN that has been used by anyone other than the 
intended authorized user.

2.4.      Identify Authorized Persons. You will notify Wells Fargo in writing of the identity of each individual authorized to receive information regarding 
the Security Procedure. You will promptly notify Wells Fargo in writing of any change in an authorized individual. Your notice will be binding on Wells 
Fargo if it is received in a time and manner that gives Wells Fargo a reasonable opportunity to act on it. Wells Fargo will be fully protected in relying on 
your notices.

2.5.      OPTIONAL Verify Callback Service. If you select this optional fee-based service by providing the information requested in Section D of Part I, it 
will become part of your Security Procedure. Wells Fargo will make at least one attempt to telephone an individual authorized to approve wires other 
than the initiator (an "Authorized Approver") to verify the voice-initiated non-repetitive wire transfer order is authorized when the amount of the wire 
exceeds the wire transfer order limit designated in Section D of Part I. You may designate a limit up to which an Authorized Approver may authorize an 
order. A PIN is required to authenticate each Authorized Approver. If Wells Fargo is unable to (a) contact and authenticate or (b) obtain approval from an 
Authorized Approver, the wire will not be processed.

3.      Inconsistency of Name and Number. If an Order describes the person to receive the wire transfer ("Beneficiary") inconsistently by name and account 
number, the wire transfer may be made on the basis of  the account number even if the account number identifies a person different from the Beneficiary.  If 
a wire transfer request describes a financial institution inconsistently by name and identification number, the identification number may be relied upon as the 
proper identification of the financial institution.  You further acknowledge the beneficiary account number or beneficiary bank identification number (e.g. 

IBAN, RTN, or SWIFT BIC) you provide in connection with an Order will be complete and accurate, and you understand you could lose the transfer amount 

if the information is incorrect.

4.      Responsibility of Wells Fargo. Wells Fargo may send an Order by wire, telegraph, telephone, cable, or whatever other transmission method Wells Fargo 
considers to be reasonable. Wells Fargo may transmit an Order directly to the Beneficiary's bank, or indirectly to the Beneficiary's bank through another bank, 
government agency, or other third party that Wells Fargo considers to be reasonable. Wells Fargo may utilize any reasonably selected funds transfer system 
or intermediary bank, even if its selection differs from instructions in the request.

5.      Additional Actions by Wells Fargo. Any action Wells Fargo takes to detect an erroneous Order, or any actions Wells Fargo takes beyond those 
described above in an attempt to detect an unauthorized Order, will be taken at Wells Fargo's sole discretion. No matter how many times Wells Fargo takes 
this action, it will not become part of Wells Fargo's standard procedures for attempting to detect such erroneous or unauthorized Orders, and Wells Fargo will 
not in any situation be liable for failing to take or to correctly perform the action.

762

Item 19.



Page 3 of 4© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. 
WTR8173/595369 (Rev 09 – 07/19)

6.      Liability. Wells Fargo is only responsible for making a good faith effort to execute your Orders and will only be responsible for performing the services 
specified in this Agreement. For Orders subject to Article 4A of the Uniform Commercial Code ("UCC 4A"), Wells Fargo will be liable to you only for damages 
required to be paid under UCC 4A. For Orders not subject to UCC 4A and for other obligations under this Agreement, Wells Fargo will only be liable for its 
negligence or willful misconduct. Wells Fargo will not be liable for any third party's failure to or delay or error in processing an Order. Wells Fargo will not be 
liable for any delay in performing or failure to perform if the delay or failure results from any cause beyond its reasonable control. In no event will Wells Fargo 
have any liability for consequential, special, punitive or indirect loss or damage which you may incur in connection with this Agreement.

7.      Indemnification. You agree to indemnify and hold Wells Fargo, its directors, officers, employees and agents harmless from all third party claims, 
demands, judgments, and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising out of or connected with the performance of any wire transfer service 
under this Agreement. This indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement.

8.     Cancellation, Amendment, Reversal. An Order will be final and not subject to cancellation, amendment or reversal by you, except Wells Fargo may, at 
your request, make an effort to effect such cancellation, amendment or reversal without incurring any liability for its failure or inability to do so.

9.      Your Duty to Notify Wells Fargo of Unauthorized Activity. If you identify any discrepancies in your account setup (including repetitive wire transfer 
templates), please contact us immediately at 1-888-384-8400. Wells Fargo will not be responsible for any delays in payment or additional fees caused by your 
failure to notify us promptly of any such discrepancy. You will exercise ordinary care to determine whether an Order accepted by Wells Fargo was either 
erroneous or not authorized and to notify Wells Fargo of the facts within a reasonable time not exceeding 14 days after you have received notification from 
Wells Fargo that the Order was accepted or that your Account was debited or credited with respect to the Order, whichever is earlier. You will be precluded 
from asserting that Wells Fargo is not entitled to retain payment for an Order unless you object within 14 days.

10.      Fees and Taxes. You agree to pay Wells Fargo's current wire transfer service fees. A copy of Wells Fargo's current fee schedule is available to you on 
request. You also agree to pay amounts equal to any applicable taxes on these wire transfer services (exclusive of taxes based on net income of Wells Fargo).

11.      Currency. An Order expressed in U.S. Dollars will be sent in U.S. Dollars. You may request that prior to executing an Order, Wells Fargo convert the 
amount to be transferred from U.S. Dollars to the currency of a designated foreign government or intergovernmental organization ("Foreign Currency"). 
Wells Fargo makes money when it converts one currency to another currency for you. The exchange rate provided to you is set by Wells Fargo in its sole 
discretion, and it includes a markup over Wells Fargo’s cost of sourcing the relevant currency or currencies. The markup may be based on several factors, 
including without limitation costs incurred, market risks, services rendered, the client relationship, the transaction and our desired return.  
 
The exchange rate Wells Fargo provides to you may be different from exchange rates you see online, in publications, at other banks or other foreign 
exchange providers. Also, different customers may receive different exchange rates for transactions that are the same or similar. The exchange rate may 
depend on the type of transaction being conducted, the dollar amount, type of currency, the date and time of the exchange and/or the factors noted above. 
The foreign exchange market is dynamic, so exchange rates can change rapidly. If you delay executing a transaction, the exchange rate may change and 
could even be significantly different. Wells Fargo reserves the right to refuse to process any request for a foreign exchange transaction.  
 
Wells Fargo will not be liable for a sum in excess of the value of the Order after it has been converted from Foreign Currency to U.S. Dollars at Wells Fargo’s 
buying rate for exchange at the time the cancellation of the Order is confirmed by Wells Fargo.

12.      Term and Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by you or Wells Fargo with prior written notice, but will remain in effect with respect to 
any transaction occurring prior to its termination.

13.      Amendments to Agreement. Wells Fargo may, from time to time, notify you of a change to this Agreement or its rules or procedures. By using the 
wire transfer service after the notice is sent or otherwise made available to you, you will be conclusively deemed to have agreed to the change.

14.      Governing Law; Rules and Regulations. Our rights and obligations regarding Orders will be governed solely by this Agreement, your account 
agreement, and, to the extent applicable, federal law and the state laws governing your Account. All Orders will be subject to the rules and regulations of any 
funds transfer system used by Wells Fargo, as amended from time to time.

15.     Notices; Receipt of Confirmations. If a notice is sent to you, it will be effective if it is delivered in person or sent by first class mail to your last address as 
shown on Wells Fargo's records. If a notice is sent to Wells Fargo, it will be effective if it is delivered by first class mail to the address shown in Wells Fargo's 
then current fee schedule (or to such other address as Wells Fargo may from time to time direct) and after Wells Fargo has had a reasonable opportunity to 
act on it. An optional confirmation or a bank statement showing a wire transaction, sent electronically or by mail, to your last address as shown in Wells 
Fargo's records and not returned, will be conclusively presumed to have been received by you. Wire Transfer mail confirmations are not available for 
addresses outside of the United States.

16.      Miscellaneous. Wells Fargo's waiver of any term of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other term or impair any of its rights if you 
breach this Agreement. You agree not to assign your interest in this Agreement to anyone else. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court to 
be invalid, it will not affect the validity of any other provision. In interpreting this Agreement, the headings will not be considered a substantive part of this 
Agreement. Unless the context requires otherwise, terms not defined in this Agreement have the meanings, if any, provided in UCC4A. This Agreement and 
any applicable account agreements constitute our entire Agreement with respect to the matters they cover and supersede all prior oral or written 
communications between us regarding such matters. In the event of conflict between a provision of this Agreement and any other agreement you may have 
with Wells Fargo (including without limitation, any account agreement between us), the terms of this Agreement will govern the subject matter of this Wire 
Transfer Agreement.

17.      Additional Terms Governing Outgoing Consumer International Wires

17.1.      General. This Section contains additional terms applicable only to Orders initiated by a natural person in the United States to transfer funds to a 
Beneficiary in a foreign country for personal, family, or household purposes (each, an "Outgoing Consumer International Wire"). This Section does not 
apply to any Order sent to a Beneficiary in the United States, to any Order initiated by a non-consumer, or to any Order initiated by a consumer for any 
non-personal, non-family, or non-household purposes. In the event of a conflict between a provision in this Section and a provision in the rest of this 
Agreement or in the agreement governing your Account, the provision in this Section will control.

17.2.      Disclosures and Receipts. Prior to sending an Outgoing Consumer International Wire, Wells Fargo will disclose to you, by telephone, the 
amount that will be transferred to the Beneficiary, a description of any fees and taxes imposed by Wells Fargo, the total amount of the transaction, the 
exchange rate to be used, the amount to be transferred in the Foreign Currency, a description of any fees and taxes to be applied by any other person to 
the extent known by Wells Fargo, and the amount that will be received by the Beneficiary. Wells Fargo will mail a receipt for an Outgoing Consumer 
International Wire within 30 days after payment is made for the Outgoing Consumer International Wire.

763

Item 19.



Page 4 of 4© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Member FDIC. 
WTR8173/595369 (Rev 09 – 07/19)

17.3.      Liability. Wells Fargo is liable only for damages required to be paid as provided under Regulation E, subpart B or, to the extent applicable, 
UCC4A (except as expressly modified by this Agreement). Except as required by Regulation E, subpart B, Wells Fargo will not be responsible for the acts 
or omissions of any other person or entity, including but not limited to any processor, any country's central bank, or any other financial institution, and 
no such person or entity will be deemed Wells Fargo's agent. In no event shall Wells Fargo have any liability for any indirect, incidental, consequential, 
punitive, or special damages, even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

17.4.      Cancellation.  You may cancel an Outgoing Consumer International Wire for a full refund within 30 minutes of completing a transaction. To 
cancel, call the cancellation phone number provided to you at the time of your request.

17.5.      Error Resolution. In the event that you believe an error has occurred with respect to an Outgoing Consumer International Wire, you must 
notify Wells Fargo no later than 180 days after the "Availability  Date" (the date when funds will be available to the Beneficiary) disclosed to you by 
contacting us at 1-888-384-8400 or by mailing Wells Fargo at the address shown in Wells Fargo's then current fee schedule or to such other address as 
Wells Fargo may from time to time direct.  If you fail to notify us within this time period, Wells Fargo will not be liable for any error or loss of interest or 
any interest equivalent relating to the erroneous transaction. 
 
When you contact us, please tell us: (a) your name, address, and telephone number where we can reach you during business hours; (b) the Beneficiary's 
name and, if known, his or her telephone number and address; (c) the date, dollar amount and transaction confirmation number of the Outgoing 
Consumer International Wire; and 
 
(d) the error or problem with the wire transfer, and why you believe it is an error or problem.

17.6.      Governing Law. An Outgoing Consumer International Wire is a "remittance transfer" as defined in Regulation E, Subpart B, and will be 
governed by the laws of the United States and, to the extent applicable, the laws of the state of New York, including New York's version of UCC4A, 
without regard to its conflict of laws principles.

Part III – Agreement and Approval

Customer Approval - Signatures as required by Certificate of Authority or the Signature Card. 

Under the dispute resolution program in your account agreement, you agree our disputes may be decided before one or more neutral persons in an 

arbitration proceeding and not by a judge or jury trial. 

Legal Name as it appears on your Account Customer's Primary Phone No.

Mailing address for PINs and mail advice including City, State, and zip code. (If blank, items will be mailed to address on primary statement mailing address.)

Printed Name of Authorized Signer

Signature Date

Printed Name of Authorized Signer

Signature Date

Bank Approval  - Forms submitted without Customer and Banker signatures or older than 90 days will be returned unprocessed. 

Customer's 

1st ID

ID Type ID Number Issued by State/Country Expiration Date

Customer's 

2nd ID

ID Type ID Number Issued by State/Country Expiration Date

Banker/Officer’s Phone # Banker/Officer’s Fax # Bank MAC

Banker’s Wells Fargo email address for notification. A reasonable attempt will be 
made to contact the banker at the Wells Fargo email provided upon completion. 
Notification will NOT be sent to any email address outside the Wells Fargo 
system.

Document Prepared by & phone # (in case of questions about this setup)

Banker/Officer’s Printed Name Banker/Officer Signature — Required Date

Once the customer's approval/signature is received on the form, the Banker/Relationship Manager must approve/sign the form, then fax to  

866-922-6202, or email to imgwiresetups@wellsfargo.com. The form must be submitted from a valid Wells Fargo Fax or email address. File copies in 

your location's record retention file.

764

Item 19.



© 2019 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Information Reporting and Image Delivery 
Service Description
Treasury Management Services

November 8, 2019

765

Item 19.



2 | November 8, 2019 | Information Reporting and Image Delivery Service Description 

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which we provide you the services 
described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the Acceptance of 
Services that is signed when you enroll in the Service ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" refer to 
the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are defined in the Master Agreement or 
in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The service ("Service") covered by this Service Description is:
• Information Reporting and Image Delivery

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Service),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
d. The Account Agreement governing the Account,
e. The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each service in which you 

are enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, 

specifications, instructions, and notices).

The documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together    
as one agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at 
our Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of 
the Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your 
receipt of, and agreement to be bound by, this Service Description and all Service Documentation.

Information Reporting and Image Delivery

1. Description of services.

 a. With this Service we make data regarding transactions and/or images of Items posted to or 
processed through your Accounts available to you in order to provide you with timely information 
on your Account activity. We refer to the data and images as "information." The information and 
reports you can access are described in the User Guide for the Service. If you elect to use the Cash 
Flow Analysis Service (described further in the User Guide for the Service), you may also manually 
populate external data you want to view through this Service.

 b. The methods we use to make information available to you (and we may remove or add methods 
from time to time) include without limitation BAI File Transfer, InfoFax fax/email, SWIFT 
messaging, ISO 20022 XML transmission, physical media (CD-ROM and DVD), Machine-to-
Machine, our CEO portal, and an Application Programming Interface ("API") through the Wells 
Fargo Gateway.

 c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
 i. Posted to or processed through the Account,
 ii. Cashed or collected by us or accepted for deposit to the Account, and
 iii Returned unpaid to the Account.

766

Item 19.



3 | November 8, 2019 | Information Reporting and Image Delivery Service Description 

Images of posted paper Items that have been converted to ACH Entries pursuant to the ACH Rules 
may not be available through this Service.

2. Accuracy of Information.

 a. We will not verify the accuracy or completeness of: (i) information from other financial 
institutions, (ii) information you manually populate, or (iii) cash forecasting information. 
Forecasting information is not a guarantee of actual performance.

 b. Account balances and other information that reflect intraday activity on your Account may differ 
from the available balance as determined under our funds availability policy (as described in the  
Account Agreement) and by our internal risk parameters.

3. Software Sublicense. If a software license or sublicense is required for you to access the Service 
("Software Sublicense"), we will make the terms of the Software Sublicense available to you as part of 
the set up process for the Service. You will be required to accept the Software Sublicense before  
being allowed to access the Service. We may terminate any Service requiring use of a Software 
Sublicense immediately on written notice to you, including without limitation if you fail to comply with 
the Software Sublicense.

4. Stop payment orders. If you elect a service option through which you can place stop payment orders, 
your rights and our obligations regarding any stop payment order will be determined as provided in 
the Account Agreement.

Glossary

Account means your account(s) with us used in connection with the Services.

Account Agreement means the applicable account agreement governing the Account.

ACH means automated clearing house.

ACH Rules means the Nacha Operating Rules and any applicable local ACH rules.

Item is defined in the Account Agreement.

Master Agreement means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

767

Item 19.



© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved.  
Revised November 6, 2020

Check Disbursements and 
Fraud Prevention Services 
Service Description
Treasury Management Services

768

Item 19.



Page 2 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Table of contents 

03           Introduction

04           Fraud Prevention and 
Related Services

04           Positive Pay

07           Reverse Positive Pay

09           Payment Authorization

09           Account Reconciliation Plan

10           Controlled Disbursement 
Account

13           Specialized Disbursements 
Services

13           Centralized Disbursements 
Manager

19           Payable Through Draft

21           Third Party Drafts

25           Glossary

769

Item 19.



Page 3 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Introduction 

The Service Documentation contains the terms and conditions under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Bank") 
provides you the services described below. "You," "your" or "yours" refer to the Bank customer identified on the 
Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll in Services ("Acceptance"). The terms "we," "us," or "our" 
refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Service Description are defined in the Master Agreement 
or in the Glossary at the back of this Service Description.

The services (each a "Service") covered by this Service Description are:
Fraud Prevention and Related Services

• Positive Pay Service
• Reverse Positive Pay Service
• Payment Authorization Service
• Account Reconciliation Plan Service
• Controlled Disbursement Account Service

Specialized Disbursement Services
• Centralized Disbursements Manager Service
• Payable Through Draft Service
• Third Party Drafts Service

The Service Documentation includes:
a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the Services),
b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation),
c. The Master Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all services),
d. The Account Agreement governing your account(s) that you use for the Service ("Account"),
e. The Product Enrollment Form ("Set-up Form") (which contains set-up information for the service in 

which you are enrolling), and
f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, 

instructions, and notices).

You agree to the terms and conditions governing the Services in which you have enrolled, as described in this 
Service Description and in the Service Documentation, which includes details of your enrolled Services. The 
separate documents comprising of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together as one 
agreement between you and us. This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at our 
Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of the 
Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your receipt of, 
and agreement to be bound by, the applicable terms for the Service in this Service Description and all Service 
Documentation.

770

Item 19.



Page 4 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Fraud Prevention and Related Services:

As further described in the Account Agreement, we offer certain Services to help reduce the risk of fraud, 
including the Services below.

Positive Pay Service

1. Description of service.  With this Service you can instruct us to pay or return counterfeit Checks, Checks 
otherwise not validly issued and certain altered Checks presented to us for payment on the Accounts you 
enroll in this Service. For purposes of this Positive Pay Service Description, "Check" refers to each check 
presented for payment on your Account, whether it is counterfeit, not validly issued, altered or validly issued 
by you. Except as otherwise provided in this Service Description, enrollment in our Account Reconciliation 
Plan Service is required.
a. Service summary.  Each Business Day, either before or after posting the Check to your Account, based on 

the Service option you choose as described in section 1b below:

i. We electronically compare the serial number and numeric amount of each Check presented to us for 
payment before our Cutoff Time on the prior Business Day to your Check Issue Data (see section 2),

ii. We will provide you with a report ("Exception Report") of each Check that does not match your 
Check Issue Data (an "Exception Check") (see section 4),

iii. We review each Exception Check, and either correct or reverse and repost each Exception Check with 
errors that we can correct, depending on the Service option you choose as described in section 1b,

iv. We will pay or return each Exception Check (see section 5), and
v. We separately review each "directly-presented Check" (see section 8).

b. Service options.  You may enroll an Account in one of two options of the Service:
i. Perfect Presentment® Positive Pay.  We electronically compare a Check to your Check Issue Data 

prior to posting the Check to your Account. Each Check with error(s) that we can correct, such as an 
encoding error, will be corrected, so that the Exceptions Report includes only unresolved Exception 
Checks. This option is offered only on an Account enrolled in our Controlled Disbursement Service.

i. Positive Pay and Positive Pay Only.  We electronically compare a Check to your Check Issue Data 
after posting the Check to your Account. We then review each Exception Check, and reverse and 
repost each Exception Check with error(s) that we can correct, such as encoding errors, so that the 
Exception Report includes only unresolved Exception Checks. Enrollment in our ARP Service is not 
required for Positive Pay Only.

2. Check Issue Data.  You will provide us with the Check Issue Data for all issued Checks, in the format, through 
the communications channel, and at the place we specify no later than our Cutoff Time. You will not 
distribute any Check before you have included the Check in the Check Issue Data you have provided to us. In 
performing this Service:
a. We will use only the Check Issue Data you provide to us,
b. If the Check Issue Data includes a post-dated Check (a check you issue with a date in the future), we will 

not compare that Check against the Checks presented for payment on the Account until that date, and
c. We will not accept Check Issue Data for Checks with an issue date more than forty-five (45) calendar 

days in the future.

3. Payment of Matching Checks.  For each Matching Check, we will make final payment on the Check and 
charge the Check to your Account (subject to section 11).

771

Item 19.



Page 5 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

4. Notifying you of Exception Items; providing images.  When we identify an Exception Check through our 
electronic comparison, we notify you through the Exceptions Report. This report is available on our CEO 
portal. We will use reasonable efforts to provide an image of any Exception Check (including a Holdover 
Exception Check) to you, but we will have no liability if we are unable to do so before the Decision Deadline.
a. Holdover Exception Checks.  This subsection applies when you have enrolled your Controlled 

Disbursement Account in our Perfect Presentment Positive Pay Service. A "Holdover Exception Check" 
is an Exception Check we identify after we prepare and transmit the Exceptions Report to you. We will 
use our best efforts to notify you by calling you at the number we have on file for you.

5. Decision Deadline.  You will make your pay or return decision based on the information about the serial 
number and amount of the Exception Check in the Exceptions Report, and if you use our Payee Validation 
Service (see section 7), on any payee information we provide to you.
a. Instructions before the Decision Deadline.  If, before the Decision Deadline, you instruct us to pay or 

return an Exception Check, we will follow your instructions (subject to section 11). You will use the same 
communications channel to instruct us that we used to notify you of the Exception Check, except that if 
we included the Exception Check on the Exception Report we post on the CEO portal, you will use the 
CEO portal to communicate your instruction regarding the Exception Check to us.

b. No instructions before the Decision Deadline.  If you do not instruct us before the Decision Deadline 
regarding an Exception Check, we will process the Check in accordance with your Default Option. If we 
are unable to obtain your instructions prior to the Decision Deadline regarding a Holdover Exception 
Check described in subsection 4(a) we will process the Holdover Exception Check in accordance with 
your Default Option.

6. Default Options.  We return the Exception Check to the bank of first deposit marked "refer to maker" 
even if you validly issued the Exception Check (and do not charge it to your Account). We recommend the 
"return all" Default Option because it reduces the risk of unauthorized Checks being paid on your Account 
(even though it may result in valid Checks being returned unpaid).
a. "Return all."   We return the Exception Check to the bank of first deposit marked "refer to maker" even if 

you validly issued the Exception Check (and do not charge it to your Account). We recommend the 
"return all" Default Option because it reduces the risk of unauthorized Checks being paid on your 
Account (even though it may result in valid Checks being returned unpaid).

b. "Pay all."   We charge the Exception Check to your Account. This Default Option presents a higher risk of 
unauthorized checks being paid on your Account. If you elect this Default Option, you assume full liability 
for any losses resulting from counterfeit, altered or Checks otherwise not validly issued as described in 
section 9 below.

7. Payee Validation Service.
a. Description of Payee Validation Service.  When you enroll in our optional Payee Validation Service, we 

will do the following:
i. On each Check that is greater than the Payee Validation Threshold, we electronically compare the 

payee's name on your check to your Check Issue Data. The "Payee Validation Threshold" is the dollar 
amount we choose above which we will perform the payee validation service.

ii. If (1) there is a difference between the two names that is not within guidelines we establish, or (2) a 
notation or legend on the Check prevents the electronic comparison of the payee's name, we will 
include the Check as an Exception Check in your Exceptions Report.

iii. If you notify us you have incurred a loss as a result of an unauthorized alteration of the payee's name, 
we will reimburse you for the face amount of any Check we pay under the Payee Validation 
Threshold except as provided below, provided that you notify us of your loss in writing within 3 years 
after the statement or Check is made available to you.

772

Item 19.



Page 6 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

NOTE: When you enroll in our optional Payee Validation Service, you are charged a per-Check fee for 
each Check presented on your Account during a monthly billing cycle. This fee is separately disclosed to 
you. The per-Check fee is assessed on each Check presented including without limitation Checks not 
exceeding the Payee Validation Threshold.

b. When we do not perform payee validation.  We will not perform any payee validation review with respect 
to a Check if:
i. The Check is less than the Payee Validation Threshold,
ii. The payee's name on the Check is handwritten instead of machine-printed,
iii. You fail to include the payee's name on the Check in your Check Issue Data,
iv. We do not receive your Check Issue Data for the Check before our Cutoff Time, or
v. You request we add the payee's name manually to Check Issue Data you have previously provided to 

us.
c. Exceptions to reimbursement.  We will not reimburse you for losses resulting from an unauthorized 

alteration in the payee's name if:
i. The Check with the unauthorized alteration is hand-written, or
ii. We fail to identify an alteration or other discrepancy in the payee's name because:

1. The payee name in your Check Issue Data did not exactly match the payee name on the Check, or
2. You used customized zone formatting.

8. Directly-presented checks.  A "directly-presented Check" is a Check we receive for deposit or cashing at our 
branch or through another depository channel that may present higher risk. The risk is we may be required to 
make proceeds from a directly-presented Check available before you can review and make a timely decision 
on the directly-presented Check identified as an Exception Check in our Exceptions Report. When your 
Check Issue Data on file with us does not include or match a directly-presented Check:

a. if we receive the Check for deposit, we will take those steps as we, in our sole discretion, determine are 
commercially reasonable for the depository channel used, to review and accept the Check or refuse to 
accept the check, and

b. if we receive the Check for cashing, we reserve the right to refuse to accept the Check.

You may instruct us to exclude all directly-presented Checks from this process. In that case, each 
directly-presented Check will be considered a Matching Check, even if it is not included in your Check 
Issue Data on file with us at the time we receive it, and we will pay it without further inquiry.

9. Limitation of liability and indemnification.
a. Liability limit.  We will pay each Check you have authorized us to pay as described in this Service 

Description (including each Matching Check) and each Check you are considered to have authorized us to 
pay (including each Check we pay according to your Default Option) without performing any Check 
verification procedure other than those procedures described with this Service Description. We will have 
no liability for paying a Matching Check or an Exception Check you are considered to have approved if:
i. There is an alteration in its serial number or amount,
ii. It is counterfeit, bears a forged or unauthorized signature, or
iii. It was otherwise not validly issued.

b. Indemnification.  Each Check that we pay according to this Service Description will be considered 
properly payable, and each Check that we return as provided in this Service Description will be 
considered not properly payable. Without limiting the indemnification provisions contained in the other 
Service Documentation, you:
i. Indemnify and hold us harmless from any and all Losses that we may suffer or incur as a result of our 

payment or return of a Check at your instruction or otherwise according to sections 5 or 8 of this 
Service Description, including a Check you issue before including it in your Check Issue Data,  and

773

Item 19.



Page 7 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

ii. Release and forever discharge us from all claims and damages, whether known or unknown, 
liquidated or unliquidated, contingent, direct or indirect, which you have, or claim to have against us 
relating to the payment or return of any Check as provided in this Service Description.

10. Stop payment; cancel and void instructions; stale-dated Checks.
a. You will not use this Service as a substitute for our stop payment service. You will follow our standard stop 

payment procedures described in the applicable Account Agreement if you wish to stop payment on a 
Check that was validly issued. You will use: 
i. A cancel instruction only to delete an outstanding Check included in your Check Issue Data, and
ii. A void instruction only to notify us that a Check included in your Check Issue Data has been 

destroyed and will not be re-issued.
b. Using notations or legends on a Check is not an effective stop payment order or void instruction. We will 

not be liable for failing to follow your cancel or void instruction for any Check on which we have made 
final settlement.

c. If you choose to use our "stale-dated" feature, we will return each Matching Check (other than a directly 
presented Check) that is dated past your specified stale-date, unless you instruct us to pay the Check.

11. Our right to return checks.  Nothing in this Service description will limit our right to return any Check you 
have authorized us to pay as part of this Service if we determine that:
a. The Check is not properly payable for any reason (without us agreeing to, or being required to, make such 

determination in any circumstance), or
b. There are insufficient collected and available funds in your Account to pay the Check.

You agree that our determination not to pay a Check will not constitute wrongful dishonor of that Check.

12. Survival.  Sections 4, 7, 9 , 10 and 11 will survive termination of Services.

Reverse Positive Pay Service

1. Description of Service.  Our Reverse Positive Pay Service is an alternative to our Positive Pay Service that we 
provide to select customers, including customers that issue Drafts. The Reverse Positive Pay Service is 
required when you enroll in the Third Party Drafts or Payable Through Drafts Services. With this Service:
a. You can detect fraudulent Checks by reviewing information we provide to you each Business Day about 

Checks that have posted to your Account from the prior Business Day ("Paid Items Report") (see section 
2),

b. You can request we edit Checks that have posted incorrectly to your Account,
c. If you have elected our Teller Match Service, we may perform a positive pay verification of certain 

directly-presented Checks (see section 3) as we determine in our sole discretion from time to time, and
d. You can instruct us to return unauthorized Checks.

For purposes of this Reverse Positive Pay Service Description, a "Check" is a check, Draft or other paper 
instrument purportedly issued on your Account, whether it is counterfeit, not validly issued, altered or 
validly issued by you.

2. Paid Items Report.  Each Business Day, we will provide you with the Paid Items Report through our CEO 
portal or by other methods you may elect. Each Business Day, you will compare the Paid Item Report to your 
Check Issue Data and before the Decision Deadline, notify us through the CEO portal of any edit requests or 
return instructions for those Checks described on the Paid Items Report for that Business Day. You will 
include in your notification the serial number and amount of each Check you wish to edit and the reason for 
returning each Check you wish to return.

774

Item 19.



Page 8 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

3. Teller match service.
a. You may separately elect to have us perform a positive pay verification on certain directly-presented 

Checks, in which case the provisions in section 8 (Directly-presented Checks) of the Positive Pay Service 
Description are incorporated here by reference and shall apply and govern. If you enroll in this Service 
option, you will provide the Check Issue Data for each Check to us before you issue the Check.

b. With respect to a directly-presented Check, we will have no liability to you for not performing:
i. Any positive pay verification, if we do not receive and have a reasonable amount of time to act on 

your Check Issue Data for the Check before we receive the directly-presented Check, or
ii. Payee validation, if you fail to include the payee's name in your Check Issue Data for the directly-

presented Check.

4. Your failure to give us timely instructions.  If we do not receive your edit requests and/or return instructions 
by the Decision Deadline on any Business Day, we will pay each Check described in the Paid Items Report for 
that Business Day, unless you have already instructed us by effective stop payment order to return that 
Check unpaid.

5. Checks to be paid; liability limit and indemnification.
a. We will pay each Check you are deemed to have authorized us to pay in accordance with this Service 

Description without performing any further review of such Check. We will have no responsibility 
whatsoever for paying such a Check even if its serial number or amount is altered, it is counterfeit, bears 
forged or unauthorized signature, or is not validly issued. You waive and release us from and agree to 
protect us against any Losses resulting from a claim that such a Check was not properly payable.

b. We will have no liability if you instruct us to return a Check (including without limitation a Check that is 
counterfeit, not validly issued or altered) but your instruction does not reach us in a time and manner 
affording us a reasonable opportunity to return the Check before we pay, accept, certify, cash or 
otherwise become obligated to pay the Check as provided in the Uniform Commercial Code.

c. You will promptly reimburse us for any loss we incur when we make the proceeds from a Check available 
in accordance with Reg CC prior to our receipt of your instructions regarding the Check.

6. Edit requests and return instructions.
a. Edit requests.  We reserve the right to deny any of your edit requests based on our evaluation of the edit 

request. We will not accept edit requests with respect to any Checks that you attempt to communicate 
to us by any means other than the CEO portal.

b. Return instructions.  We reserve the right to decline your return instruction based on our evaluation of 
the return instruction. If your reason for returning a Check is fraud, your return instruction alone will not 
constitute a claim for a fraudulent transaction. You must file a separate claim with us relating to the 
fraudulent transaction.

7. Stop payment and our right to return Checks.  Sections 10a and b (Stop payment and void instructions) and 
11 (Our right to return Checks) of the Positive Pay Service Description are incorporated here by reference 
and shall apply and govern. 

8. Survival.  Sections 3, 5, 6 and 7 will survive termination of Services.

775

Item 19.



Page 9 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Payment Authorization Service

NOTE: If you have the ability to write checks on your Account, we recommend that you use the Positive Pay 
Services to prevent check fraud. You understand that the Payment Authorization Service does not provide the 
same level of protection as the Positive Pay Services. If you decide not to implement the Positive Pay Services, 
or you do not properly use it, you assume the risk of loss for unauthorized checks.

1. Description of service.  With this Service you can set limits on paper Items that may be drawn on your 
Accounts based on the options you choose. You may also prevent any paper checks being paid on your 
Accounts by choosing to set the applicable limit to zero.

2. Available options.

Option 
(on Product Enrollment Form) Action we will take

Maximum Check Amount Authorized 

We will automatically return unpaid Items drawn against the 
Account which are presented to us but exceed the "Maximum 
Check Amount Authorized" you provide us with. These Items 
are marked "Refer to Maker."

Maximum Check Cashing Amount
We will refuse to cash checks drawn against the Account and 
presented to us through our branch network, if they exceed the 
"Maximum Check Cashing Amount" you specify.

Maximum over the Counter Withdrawal Amount

We will refuse withdrawal requests against the Account which 
are presented to us through our branch network, if they exceed 
the "Maximum over the Counter Withdrawal Amount" you 
specify.

Checks to Individuals
We will refuse to cash checks drawn against the Account which 
are presented to us through our branch network, and which are 
made payable to an individual.

Account Reconciliation Plan (ARP) Service

1. Description of Service.  With our ARP Service, you can receive automated reporting to help you reconcile 
your Accounts. With this Service you can:
a. Receive Account information reporting, based on the Service options you select,
b. Store information about Items you issue on your Accounts, and
c. Process the information in accordance with the Service options that you elect in the Set-up Form. Our 

User Guide for the Service details the Service options.

2. Issued check information.  If you elect our full ARP Service, each Business Day prior to the Cutoff Time, you 
will provide us with the Issued Check Information using the communication channel(s) you elect. For 
purposes of this Service Description, "Issued Check Information" is the issue date, serial number and dollar 
amount of each Item (as defined in the applicable Account Agreement) that you issue on your Account. If you 
elect our Deposit Location Reporting Service, you will provide us with a list of your location numbers and 
names and may amend the list from time to time by notifying us in writing.

776

Item 19.



Page 10 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

3. Stop payment orders.  If you use the ARP Service to place a stop payment order on any Item, you understand 
that:
a. The Account Agreement governs the stop payment order,
b. Each stop payment order is subject to our verification that the Item described in the stop payment order 

has not been paid, and
c. This verification may occur a minimum of ninety (90) minutes after the time you transmit the stop 

payment order to us.

Controlled Disbursement Account Service

1. Description of Service; required Accounts.  The Controlled Disbursement Account ("CDA") Service is 
available to select customers that qualify based on their credit and other considerations. With the CDA 
Service, you will establish and maintain:
a. One or more demand deposit accounts with us (each, a "Funding Account"),
b. One or more checking accounts with us linked to a Funding Account (each, a "Disbursement Account"), and

c. The information reporting service specified by us ("Information Reporting Service").

Each Funding Account and Disbursement Account and the Information Reporting Service will be identified 
in the Set-up Form for this Service. You will enroll each Disbursement Account in our Positive Pay Service. 
You will use each Disbursement Account solely to issue Checks, Drafts and electronic debits (each, a 
"Debit") in accordance with this Service Description. You will not issue any Debits on any Disbursement 
Account until we notify you that such Disbursement Account is operational.

2. Determination of Total Net Presentment.  Each Business Day by the Cutoff Time, we will make the Total 
Net Presentment for each Disbursement Account available to you through the Information Reporting 
Service. The "Total Net Presentment" consists of the total dollar amount of:
a. Debits that have posted in the first and, if applicable, second presentment on that Business Day, and
b. Adjustments to the Disbursement Account reported on our CD Summary report, including without 

limitation Debits posted after the last presentment on the prior Business Day (these Debits are referred 
to collectively as the "Prior Day Funding Adjustments").

If the Total Net Presentment is not available to you through the Information Reporting Service by the 
Cutoff Time, we will have no liability, and you will estimate the Total Net Presentment.

3. Your obligation to deposit funds in Funding Account.
a. Each Business Day before the Cutoff Time, you will deposit good and collected funds in your Funding 

Account so that the balance in the Funding Account, as determined in accordance with the Account 
Agreement, is sufficient to cover either:
i. The Total Net Presentment or your estimate of the Total Net Presentment, and
ii. The total of any Debits that have been memo posted to your Disbursement Account before the 

Cutoff Time on the current Business Day as set forth in the intra-day composite report we make 
available to you.

b. If you fail to transfer funds as required in subsection 3(a) above or if such transfer was based on your 
estimate of the Total Net Presentment and such estimated amount was less than the actual Total Net 
Presentment, we may, at our sole option:
i. Advance to the Funding Account(s) sufficient funds to pay the Debits presented for payment on 

the Disbursement Account and transfer such funds to the Disbursement Account, or
ii. Return Debits, in any order, unpaid (even though we may have previously established a pattern of 

paying such Debits).

777

Item 19.



Page 11 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

4. Transfer of funds to Disbursement Account.  Each Business Day, we will:
a. Transfer from the Funding Account to the Disbursement Account the amount necessary to cover the 

Total Net Presentment as shown on the CD Summary Report for that Business Day, and
b. Advance funds to the Disbursement Account in the amount sufficient to cover Debits that posted to 

Disbursement Account after the last presentment on that Business Day (and the amount advanced by us 
will be reported on the CD Summary Report for the next Business Day as the Prior Day Funding 
Adjustments).

5. Our obligation to pay debits.  We will have no obligation to pay any Debit if the balance of good and 
collected funds in the Disbursement Account on which the Debit is drawn is not sufficient to cover the Debit 
at the time we make our payment decision.

6. Your agreement to repay our advances to Disbursement Account.  You will unconditionally pay us on 
demand without setoff or counterclaim in good and collected funds the full amount of any advance we make 
pursuant to sections 3 and 4 plus our fees and costs incurred in connection with such advance.

7. Security interest.  As security for the Obligations, you pledge to us, and grant us a lien on and a security 
interest in, the following property and all proceeds thereof (collectively, the "Collateral") as security for the 
prompt satisfaction of the Obligations:
a. Each Funding Account, each Disbursement Account, and all of your other accounts with us and our 

affiliates, and
b. Any of your property now or at any time delivered, conveyed, transferred, assigned, pledged or paid to us 

in any manner whatsoever.

Our receipt at any time of any kind of security, including cash, will not be a waiver of any of our rights or 
powers under any agreement between us. Upon our request, you will sign and deliver to us, any security, 
control or other agreements and documents as we determine are necessary or desirable (in our sole opinion) 
to grant us or perfect our security interest in the Collateral. At the time any Obligation becomes due and 
payable, we may apply or dispose of any and all Collateral, received or to be received, at any time or place, for 
any price and upon terms and conditions as we determine. We may apply the amounts on deposit or net 
proceeds of the sale or other disposition (together with any sums credited by or due from us to you), to the 
payment of the Obligations, all without prejudice to our rights with respect to any portion of the Obligations 
which remain unpaid. You expressly waive any right to require us to make any presentment or demand, or 
give any notices of any kind, including, but not limited to, any notice of nonpayment or nonperformance, 
protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of intent to accelerate or notice of acceleration. If we 
are required by Applicable Law to give you reasonable notice before the sale or other disposition of 
Collateral, that requirement is met if notice is given at least 5 calendar days before the date any sale, 
application or other disposition will be made. Our rights and remedies under any agreements between us or 
instruments signed by you in our favor are in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other rights or remedies 
we have under Applicable Law.

8. Fraud prevention.  Enrollment in one of our Positive Pay Services is required for enrollment in this Service. 
You acknowledge there is a growing risk of losses resulting from unauthorized Items. You recognize that 
Controlled Disbursement Service customers are especially susceptible to losses from unauthorized checks. 
You are aware that we offer an additional service known as "Payee Validation," which is an effective means of 
controlling risk from counterfeit checks, altered checks and certain other types of fraudulent checks. We 
have advised you that if you do not enroll in and properly use our Payee Validation Service, we will be unable 
to prevent losses from counterfeit, altered and certain other types of fraudulent checks and you will be 
treated as having assumed the risk of these losses.

778

Item 19.



Page 12 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

9. Liability and indemnification.  In addition to the liability and indemnification provisions in the Master 
Agreement, we will not be liable for any Losses paid, suffered or incurred by you, and you will indemnify us 
from and hold us harmless against any Losses that we suffer or incur, arising directly or indirectly and relating 
to:
a. Your performance or failure to perform your obligations in accordance with this Service Description,
b. Us acting on any information you provide us in any Service Documentation or otherwise,
c. If we return any Check unpaid because you have not deposited good and collected funds in the Funding 

Account related to the Disbursement Account on which a Debit is drawn sufficient to cover the Total Net 
Presentment,

d. Our dishonor and return of any Debit unpaid if you issue the Debit before we notify you the Disbursement 
Account on which it was drawn is operational,

e. Our nonpayment of a Debit, unless the nonpayment results directly and proximately from our gross 
negligence or willful misconduct,

f. If any Debit fails which has not been tested and approved by us to satisfy our check specifications, our 
late return of that Debit and any presentment-related problem resulting from the failure of that Debit,

g. Except as otherwise provided in the Positive Pay, Reverse Positive Pay, ARP, Payable-Through Draft or 
Third-Party Draft Service Descriptions, if we provide you with one or more of these Services, our 
payment of any Check or Draft for which there is an alteration in serial number or amount, is counterfeit, 
bears a forged or unauthorized signature, or is otherwise not validly issued, or

h. The exercise of our rights or the performance of our obligations in accordance with this Service 
Description or the Positive Pay, Reverse Positive Pay, ARP, Payable-Through Draft or Third-Party Draft 
Service Descriptions, if we provide you with one or more of these Services.

10. Termination.  In addition to our right to terminate this Service under the Master Agreement, we may 
terminate this Service and close the Funding Account and Disbursement Account immediately upon sending 
you written or oral notice (confirmed in writing) of such action if:
a. You fail at any time to fund the Funding Account as required in this Service Description,
b. A lawsuit or other proceeding is commenced by any federal or state agency alleging, or we receive an 

opinion of counsel, that this Service or any material term or condition of this Service Description violates 
any law or regulation, or

c. You default in your obligations under the other Service Documentation or under any other agreement or 
instrument signed by you in our favor including without limitation any loan agreement or promissory 
note.

Upon termination of this Service, you will, in accordance with our instructions, stop issuing Debits on the 
Disbursement Accounts, and we will close the Disbursement Accounts and stop processing Debits. You will 
continue to be liable for all Debits issued on the Disbursement Accounts prior to termination and for all 
Debits we are obligated to pay.

11. Survival.  Sections 2 and 5 – 9 will survive the termination of this Service.

779

Item 19.



Page 13 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Specialized Disbursements Services

Centralized Disbursements Manager Service

1. Your relationship to clients.  You have represented to us that you function as claims administrator, property 
manager, or accounts payable administrator with respect to your clients (each individually a "Client" and 
collectively, "Clients"), who may be (i) insurance companies or business organizations maintaining a program 
of self-insurance, (ii) owners of commercial real property, or (iii) other business organizations with a need for 
administrative services related to accounts payable and other disbursements. The services you provide to 
your Clients may include (without limitation) evaluation, resolution, and/or payment of claims or other types 
of accounts payable on behalf of your Clients, facilitating the funding of payments related to claims or other 
accounts payable, and reconciliation and reporting with regard to the payment process.

2. Centralized Disbursements Manager ("CDM") desktop.   You will interact with our electronic system for 
operating the Service through our "CDM Desktop" function, which you will access through the applicable 
treasury management services internet portal maintained by us.

3. Account structure.  To facilitate your disbursement and payment funding activities on behalf of your Clients, 
you will establish and maintain with us, in your name and taxpayer identification number: (i) a zero-balance 
controlled disbursement account against which all checks you issue on behalf of your Clients will be drawn 
("Disbursement Account"), (ii) a master account linked to the Disbursement Account for the purpose of 
funding payment of items presented against the Disbursement Account ("Master Funding Account"), (iii) at 
your option, one or more accounts linked to the Master Funding Account and associated with an individual 
Client for the purpose of funding disbursements for the benefit of such Client (each an "Individual Client 
Funding Account"), (iv) an account against which exception items that you instruct us to pay are to be 
temporarily posted ("Default Account"), and (v) one or more accounts to serve as recovery, refund or 
adjustment-related transactional accounts; alternative funding sources for payment of checks when the 
appropriate Individual Client Funding Account lacks adequate funds; or for electronic payment settlement 
(each, a "Recovery Account").

4. Accounts for the benefit of individual clients.  At your option, you may open one or more Individual Client 
Funding Accounts in your name, each for the benefit of an individual Client, in a way that permits the Client's 
taxpayer identification number to be associated with the Account for tax reporting or other purposes. This 
type of Individual Client Funding Account is referred to herein as a "Beneficial Owner Account", and may be 
used for the broader purposes of receiving, holding, managing and/or disbursing Client funds. Beneficial 
Owner Accounts must be non-interest-bearing. For each Beneficial Owner Account that you open, you 
represent and warrant to us that you have valid and proper authorization from the applicable Client to open 
the Account for the benefit of such Client, and to receive, hold, manage and/or disburse funds in such 
Account. In no event will any Client be considered a party to, or a third party beneficiary of, this Service 
Description or the Master Agreement.

5. Client profiles.  For each Client for which you make disbursements, you will establish and maintain through 
the CDM Desktop an electronic client profile (each a "Client Profile"). As part of each Client Profile, you will 
assign the applicable Client a unique alpha/numeric identifier (a "Client ID") no more than ten characters in 
length. We will electronically associate each Client ID with an Individual Client Funding Account to facilitate 
funding of disbursements from the proper funding source.

780

Item 19.



Page 14 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

6. Client set-up forms.  For each Individual Client Funding Account you open under the Service (including each 
Beneficial Owner Account), you will, prior to opening the Account, deliver to us a form (each a "Client Set-up 
Form") in a format approved by us, containing information about the Client for whose benefit Company is 
opening the Account, including, without limitation, the Client's name, physical address (including zip code, 
and country, if other than the United States), taxpayer identification number, and business type. If we 
determine at any time that we do not have a Client Set-up Form for a particular Account, you will upon our 
request promptly cause such a form to be prepared and forwarded to us.

7. Delivery of W-9 or W-8 forms.  For each Individual Client Funding Account you open under the Service, you 
will, prior to opening the Account, deliver to us an original Internal Revenue Service Form W-9, "Request for 
Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification" (each a "W-9 Form") or Form W-8BEN, "Certificate of 
Foreign Status of Beneficial Owner for United States Tax Withholding" or other appropriate W-8 series form 
(each a "W-8 Form"), properly completed and executed by (i) the Client for whose benefit you are opening 
the Account, or (ii) if the Client lacks legal capacity to execute the W-9 Form or W-8 Form, by an individual 
whom the appropriate taxing authority and applicable law recognizes as being authorized to execute a W-9 
Form or W-8 Form on the Client's behalf (an "Authorized Representative"). You represent and warrant that 
each W-9 Form or W-8 Form which you deliver to us in relation to an Account has been duly and lawfully 
executed by the Client for whose benefit the Account is opened or an Authorized Representative of such 
Client. If we determine at any time that we do not have a W-9 Form or W-8 Form for a particular Client, you 
will upon our request promptly cause such a form to be prepared and forwarded to us.

8. Disbursements by check; use of Positive Pay.  All checks you issue in payment of claims or other obligations 
on behalf of your Clients ("CDM Checks") must be drawn on the Disbursement Account, which will be a 
controlled disbursement account governed by our standard Controlled Disbursement Service Description. 
You may not draw checks, or authorize the drawing or presentment of checks, drafts or other instruments 
against any of the Accounts other than the Disbursement Account or the Recovery Accounts. You must at 
all times use our Positive Pay Service in connection with the Disbursement Account. Your use of our Positive 
Pay Service will be governed by our Positive Pay Service Description and other documentation in effect from 
time to time with respect to that Service.

9. CDM check issuance; Issue Files.  You must identify and describe each CDM Check you issue in an electronic 
issue file (each an "Issue File"), which you must transmit to us in connection with the CDM's Check issuance. 
You must create and transmit each Issue File to us in compliance with our published standards for creation 
and transmission of issue files for use with the Service. You must include in each entry for a CDM Check 
listed in a particular Issue File (each an "Issue Record") the appropriate Client ID for the Client on whose 
behalf you issued the CDM Check. You agree that you will not mail, transmit, send, deliver or otherwise issue 
or distribute any CDM Check until you have properly transmitted to us an Issue File containing the 
corresponding Issue Record for that check. We will compile the information in each Issue File and 
incorporate that information in our cumulative CDM data base of issued and outstanding CDM Checks (the 
"Issue File Data Base").

781

Item 19.



Page 15 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

10. Presentment and payment of CDM checks.  Upon presentment of a check against the Disbursement 
Account, we will, as part of our Positive Pay Service, compare certain data fields on such item with certain 
information in the Issue File Data Base. If we identify the item as a CDM Check that matches a 
corresponding Issue Record in the Issue File Data Base (a "Matching Check"), we will ascertain the Client ID 
accompanying the Issue Record. To the extent that the Individual Client Funding Account associated with 
the Client ID contains sufficient collected and available funds to pay all Matching Checks presented on the 
same Business Day which are associated with the same Client ID, we will pay all such Matching Checks. We 
will cause the applicable Individual Client Funding Account to be debited, with the resulting credit made to 
the Master Funding Account. To the extent that the Individual Client Funding Account associated with the 
Client ID does not contain sufficient collected and available funds to pay all Matching Checks associated with 
such Client ID which are presented on the same Business Day, we may, in our sole discretion (i) return all such 
Matching Checks unpaid, unless specific alternative funding arrangements have been made between you and 
us in advance, or (ii) pay such Matching Checks and cause the applicable Individual Client Funding Account to 
be overdrawn in the amount of the shortfall. Any overdraft on an Individual Client Funding Account is 
immediately due and payable from you to us.

11. Default Account.  If, after comparison with the Issue File Data Base, a presented item cannot be associated 
with an Issue Record, but you nevertheless instructs us to pay the item, we will cause the item to be posted 
to the Default Account. For each item posted to the Default Account that causes the Default Account to 
become overdrawn, you will promptly provide us with instructions via CDM Desktop or in the form of an 
Issue Record incorporated in an Issue File, to repost the item to an Individual Client Funding Account.

12. Minimum balance requirement for Recovery Accounts.  You must at all times maintain in one or more 
Recovery Accounts an aggregate balance of collected and available funds which equals or exceeds the 
aggregate amount of negative balances, if any, maintained in Individual Client Funding Accounts and the 
Default Account. Any positive balances maintained in any Individual Client Funding Accounts and/or the 
Default Account are expressly excluded from this calculation. We may return unpaid any CDM Checks 
presented for payment against the Disbursement Account during any period in which you fail to maintain 
the balance requirement set forth in this section 12. We may at any time, in our sole discretion, set off some 
or all of the balances in the Recovery Accounts against any negative balances in any Individual Client Funding 
Accounts or the Default Account.

13. Funding basis.  Each Issue File, as it pertains to each Client on whose behalf you issue CDM Checks, will be 
funded on either an "Issue Funding" basis or a "Presentment Funding" basis. You must identify the funding 
basis for each Client as part of the Client Profile for such Client. Once the funding basis for a particular Client 
has been established, you agree that it will not be changed without our written consent.
a. Issue Funding Basis. If you are funding the Issue File for a particular Client on an Issue Funding basis,  

then the funding of the corresponding Individual Client Funding Account is determined with reference to 
our receipt of each Issue File from you that pertains to the Client.

b. Presentment Funding Basis. If you are funding the Issue File for a particular Client on a Presentment 
Funding basis, then the funding of the corresponding Individual Client Funding Account is determined 
with reference to presentment against the Disbursement Account of items related to the Client.

14. Funding method.  You will fund each Individual Client Funding Account by using one of the funding methods 
set forth in this section 14. The process of funding by any of these funding methods will be governed by the 
Master Agreement, this Service Description and other Service Documentation.  YOU WILL NOT, AT ANY 
TIME OR UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, FUND OR PERMIT FUNDING OF ANY INDIVIDUAL CLIENT 
FUNDING ACCOUNT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY MEANS OF A CASH DEPOSIT OR A DEPOSIT MADE BY A 
THIRD PARTY.  Each Client Debit account must be owned by your Client. As used in this section 14, the term 
"Funding Day" has the meaning given to it in section 15.

782

Item 19.



Page 16 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

a. ACH Debit Entries.  You may use ACH debit entries to debit the account of the corresponding Client with 
us or at another financial institution ("Debit Account"). If you use this funding method, then prior to 
sending an Issue File for a particular Client, you will ensure that the corresponding Client Profile contains 
adequate information about that Client's Debit Account to enable us to generate an ACH debit entry 
from the Debit Account. Provided that we have adequate information about the Debit Account, we will 
transmit an ACH debit entry file to the designated receiving depository financial institution through the 
applicable clearing house channel on the same day that (i) we receive an Issue File for a particular Client, 
if you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) one or more items related to the Client are 
presented against the Disbursement Account, if you are using a Presentment Funding Basis for the 
Client. However, if that day is not a Funding Day, then the debit entry file will be created and transmitted 
on the next Funding Day. You authorize us to create and transmit each such debit entry file, and 
represent and warrant to us that each debit entry created using information you provide to us in a Client 
Profile and/or an Issue File is properly authorized by the owner of the account to be debited. Funds in  
the amount of an ACH debit entry must be received in the applicable Individual Client Funding Account 
on the Business Day following our transmission of the file containing such ACH debit entry.

b. ACH credit entries.  You may use ACH credit entries to transfer funds to an Individual Client Funding 
Account from an account of the applicable Client with us or another financial institution. Provided that 
we have adequate address information about the Client on whose behalf the Individual Client Funding 
Account is maintained, we will transmit an automatic ACH credit entry funding notice, by e-mail and/or 
fax at your option, to you and the Client on the same day that (i) we receive an Issue File for the Client, if 
you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) one or more items related to the Client are 
presented against the Disbursement Account, if you are using a Presentment Funding Basis for the 
Client. However, if that day is not a Funding Day, then the funding notice will be transmitted on the next 
Funding Day. Funds in the amount specified in a funding notice must be received in the applicable 
Individual Client Funding Account on the Business Day following our transmission of the funding notice.

c. Wire credit transfers.  You may use wire credit transfers to transfer of funds to an Individual Client 
Funding Account from an account of the applicable Client with us or another financial institution. 
Provided that we have adequate address information about the Client on whose behalf the Individual 
Client Funding Account is maintained, Bank will transmit an automatic wire credit transfer funding 
notice, by e-mail and/or fax at your option, to Company and the Client on the same day that (i) we 
receive an Issue File for the Client, if you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) one or 
more items related to the Client are presented against the Disbursement Account, if you are using a 
Presentment Funding Basis for the Client. However, if that day is not a Funding Day, then the funding 
notice will be transmitted on the next Funding Day. Funds in the amount specified in a funding notice 
must be received in the applicable Individual Client Funding Account on the same day we transmit the 
funding notice.

d. Drawdown wires.  You may use drawdown wires to debit the Debit Account. If you use this funding 
method, prior to sending an Issue File for a particular Client, you will ensure that the corresponding 
Client Profile contains adequate information about that Client's Debit Account to enable us to generate 
a drawdown wire from the Debit Account. Provided that we have adequate information about the Debit 
Account, we will cause a drawdown wire to be automatically initiated and transmitted to the designated 
depository financial institution through the applicable channel on the same day that (i) we receive an 
Issue File for a particular Client, if you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) one or more 
items related to the Client are presented against the Disbursement Account, if you are using a 
Presentment Funding Basis for the Client. However, if such day is not a Funding Day, then the drawdown 
wire will be initiated on the next Funding Day. You authorize us to create and transmit each drawdown 
wire, and represent and warrant to us that each drawdown wire created using information you provide to 
us in a Client Profile and/or an Issue File is properly authorized by the owner of the account to be 
debited. Funds in the amount of the drawdown wire must be received in the applicable Individual Client 
Funding Account on the same day we initiate the drawdown wire.

783

Item 19.



Page 17 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

e. Internal book transfers.  You may use internal book transfers to debit the Debit Account, so long as the 
Debit Account is maintained with us. If you use this funding method, then prior to sending an Issue File 
for a particular Client, you will ensure that the corresponding Client Profile contains adequate 
information about such Client's Debit Account to enable us to generate an internal book transfer from 
the Debit Account. Provided that we have adequate information about the Debit Account, we will cause 
an internal book transfer to be initiated from the Debit Account on the same day that (i) we receive an 
Issue File for a particular Client, if you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) one or more 
items related to the Client are presented against the Disbursement Account, if Company is using a 
Presentment Funding Basis for the Client. However, that if that day is not a Funding Day, then the 
internal book transfer will be initiated on the next Funding Day. You authorize us to initiate and execute 
each such internal book transfer, and represent and warrant to us that each internal book transfer 
initiated using information you provide to us in a Client Profile and/or an Issue File is properly authorized 
by the owner of the account to be debited. Funds in the amount of the internal book transfer must be 
received in the applicable Individual Client Funding Account on the same day we initiate the internal book 
transfer.

15. Funding Frequency.  You will fund each Individual Client Funding Account according to one of the funding 
frequency options set forth in this section 15. Each day on which funding is to occur under a particular 
funding frequency option is hereinafter referred to as a "Funding Day."
a. Daily funding.  Under the "Daily Funding Frequency Option", funding will occur (i) each day that we 

receive an Issue File for a particular Client, if you are using an Issue Funding Basis for the Client, or (ii) 
each day on which one or more items related to the Client are presented against the Disbursement 
Account, if you are using a Presentment Funding Basis for the Client.

b. Weekly funding.  Under the "Weekly Funding Frequency Option", funding will occur once a week, on the 
same day of the week as you select.

c. Monthly funding.  Under the "Monthly Funding Frequency Option", funding will occur one day each 
month, on either (i) the same numeric day of the month, or (ii) the first or last day of the month, as you 
select.

d. Semi-monthly selected date funding.  Under the "Semi-Monthly Funding Frequency Option", funding 
will occur twice each month, on the same two numeric days, as selected by you. 

e. P.A.L. funding.  The "P.A.L. Funding Frequency Option" is only available for accounts you are funding on 
an Issue Funding Basis. Under this option, funding will occur each time an aggregate dollar amount of 
items accumulates within one or more Issue Files, with a dollar limit you specify. 

f. Threshold funding.  The "Threshold Funding Frequency Option" is only available for accounts you are 
funding on a Presentment Funding Basis. Under this option, funding will occur each time an aggregate 
dollar amount of items is presented for payment in relation to a particular Client, with a dollar limit you 
specify.

16. Supplemental funding days.  You may, at your option, establish one or more additional Funding Days that 
supplement the funding frequency options chosen for a particular Client under section 15 above. Each 
additional funding day may be designated as either a "Clean-up Date" or "End-of-Contract Date", depending 
on the purpose of the supplemental funding. Funding on each supplemental Funding Day will take place 
according to the Funding Basis and Funding Method previously selected for the applicable Client.

17. Right of setoff.  In the event that any negative balance is maintained in an Individual Client Funding Account 
or the Default Account, whether created by action of you or us, we may at any time, and without prior notice 
to you, set off the amount of such negative balance against funds on deposit in any Recovery Account or any 
other deposit account you maintain with us; provided, however, that we may not set off against any other 
Individual Client Funding Account.

784

Item 19.



Page 18 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

18. Security interest in Recovery Accounts.  As security for the Obligations, you grant us a security interest in 
and lien on the Recovery Accounts, and all amounts from time to time on deposit in, or withdrawable from, 
the Recovery Accounts (the "Collateral"). Our receipt at any time of any kind of security, including cash, will 
not be a waiver of any of our rights or powers under any agreement between us. Upon our request, you will 
sign and deliver to us, any security, control or other agreements and documents as we determine are 
necessary or desirable (in our sole opinion) to grant us or perfect our security interest in the Collateral. At  
the time any Obligation becomes due and payable, we may apply or dispose of any and all Collateral, received 
or to be received, at any time or place, for any price and upon terms and conditions as we determine. We may 
apply the amounts on deposit or net proceeds of the sale or other disposition (together with any sums 
credited by or due from us to you), to the payment of the Obligations, all without prejudice to our rights with 
respect to any portion of the Obligations which remain unpaid. You expressly waive any right to require us to 
make any presentment or demand, or give any notices of any kind, including, but not limited to, any notice of 
nonpayment or nonperformance, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of intent to accelerate 
or notice of acceleration. If we are required by Applicable Law to give you reasonable notice before the sale or 
other disposition of Collateral, that requirement is met if notice is given at least 5 calendar days before the 
date any sale, application or other disposition will be made. Our rights and remedies under any agreements 
between us or instruments signed by you in our favor are in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other rights 
or remedies we have under Applicable Law.

19. Account closure or debit block.  We reserve the right to either close or place a debit block on any Individual 
Client Funding Account which, in our sole judgment, is subject to repeated overdrafts or overdrafts of an 
excessive amount, or in the event that the Client associated with such Account is subject to a bankruptcy 
proceeding or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

20. Business Associate Agreement.  If you are an organization that performs any function or activity involving 
the use, transmission, or disclosure of individually identifiable health information, you and we must enter 
into a Business Associate Agreement (addressing certain requirements of Subtitle F of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations) in form and substance 
satisfactory to us.

21. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  You represent, warrant, and covenant to us that you will at all times 
comply with all Applicable Laws governing the receipt, holding, management and/or disbursement of funds 
in any Beneficial Owner Account.

22. Indemnification.  You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold us harmless from and against any and all Losses 
which we suffer or incur as a result of or in connection with (i) your failure to have proper authorization to act 
on behalf of any Client, (ii) any Client Set-up Form or related information you provide to us which is 
incomplete or erroneous, and (iii) your failure to comply with Applicable Laws governing the receipt, holding, 
management and/or disbursement of funds for the benefit of Clients. 

23. Ownership dispute.  In the event that any Client asserts ownership rights to an Account held for the benefit 
of such Client, or any of the funds therein, then absent the mutual written consent of both you and the 
Client to dispose of the Account and related funds, we reserve the right, in its sole discretion, to suspend all 
activity on that Account and to interplead the funds into court.

785

Item 19.



Page 19 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

24. Termination.  Unless terminated sooner in accordance with the terms of the Master Agreement or this 
Service Description, this Service Description and the Service will continue in effect until terminated by either 
party upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other party. We may terminate the Service following 
notice to you (i) if you breach any material provision of the Master Agreement or this Service Description 
and fail to cure the breach within fifteen (15) days after we give notice of the breach, or (ii) notwithstanding 
the foregoing, if you fail at any time to maintain the minimum balance in the Recovery Accounts required 
under section 12 of this Service Description. Termination of the Service will not affect your or our rights 
with respect to transactions which occurred before termination.

25. Survival.  Sections 4, 10, 12, 14, 17- 19, 22- 24 will survive termination of the Services.

Payable Through Draft Service

1. Description of Service.  With this Service, we provide you with information about payable-through Drafts 
that are purportedly drawn on you and received by us so that you can determine if you will pay, edit or 
dishonor each Draft.

2. Requirements for Draft stock.  You will ensure each Draft contains:
a. The legend "PAYABLE THROUGH WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A."; and
b. Our routing number on the MICR line of the Draft. You will also comply with all other requirements we 

communicate to you. You will not issue any Draft until we notify you that your Draft stock meets our 
specifications.

3. Electronic presentment.  Each Business Day, we will present to you each Draft we receive before the Cutoff 
Time. We will electronically present you with a report or transmission ("Activity Report") containing the 
serial number and amount of each Draft available to you through your chosen information reporting service. 
No physical delivery of a Draft or of a substitute check or a purported substitute check in lieu of a Draft will 
occur.

4. Images of Drafts; identifying Unauthorized Drafts.  We will make an electronic image of each Draft available 
to you through our CEO® portal. If for any reason we cannot make an electronic image of a Draft available to 
you, you remain solely responsible for determining whether a Draft described in each Activity Report is an 
Unauthorized Draft.

5. Funding.  You will maintain immediately available funds in your Account sufficient to cover the full amount of 
Drafts you issue. We have no obligation to honor any Draft if you do not have immediately available funds in 
your Account sufficient to cover the full amount of the Draft. If an arbitrator or a court determines a Draft 
has been paid under circumstances that we incur any liablility for the Draft under Applicable Law or any 
agreement having the force of law, you will pay us on demand for the amount of the Draft.

6. Decisioning.  You must notify us of any presented Draft that is to be edited (section 8 [Edits to Drafts]) or 
dishonored (section 9 [Drafts to be dishonored]) by the Cutoff Time on the next Business Day following the 
Business Day on which we made the Activity Report available to you ("Decision Deadline"). You will notify us 
through our CEO portal as set forth in the Reverse Positive Pay Service Description or, in the case of 
dishonor instructions only, through a means acceptable to us. If we do not receive your edit requests or 
dishonor instructions by the applicable Decision Deadline, you will be deemed to have instructed us to pay 
each Draft described in the Activity Report(s) for that Business Day, and you will be obligated to pay the 
amount of each Draft.

786

Item 19.



Page 20 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

7. Provisional payment of Drafts.  Any payment or other settlement for a Draft, except a Draft cashed in 
accordance with section 10, will be provisional and subject to revocation by:
a. You, if you direct us to dishonor a Draft before the applicable Decision Deadline, or
b. Us at any time before midnight of the day we presented the Draft to you.

8. Edits to Drafts.  You may request edits of the serial number and/or amount of any Draft described on the 
Activity Report(s) for any current Business Day. You will notify us of each edit request by means acceptable 
to us. We may deny your edit request based on our evaluation.

9. Drafts to be dishonored.
a. General.  We are subject to requirements regarding the return of Drafts under Applicable Law, including 

the requirement to provide notice of a dishonored Drafts. We may be liable for the amount of the Draft 
and other damages if we do not meet these requirements. You are solely responsible for dishonoring any 
Draft including any Unauthorized Draft. If you decide to dishonor any Draft we present to you, you will 
notify us prior to the Decision Deadline in accordance with the Reverse Positive Pay Service Description.

b. Reimbursement obligation; revocation instructions.  You will promptly reimburse us for any Losses we 
suffer or incur as a result of our dishonor of a Draft in accordance with your notice to us. Any payment or 
other settlement of a Draft will be provisional and can be revoked by:
i. You, if you direct us to dishonor a Draft before the Decision Deadline, and
ii. Us, at any time before midnight of the first Business Day after the day we presented the Draft to 

you.
To be effective, we must receive your revocation instruction in a time and manner that gives us a 
reasonable opportunity to act on it before the payee deposits, cashes or otherwise negotiates the Draft.

c. Fraud.  If your reason for dishonoring a Draft is fraud, your return instruction alone will not constitute a 
claim for a fraudulent transaction. You must file a separate claim with us relating to the fraudulent 
transaction.

10. Draft Cashing.  We offer a Draft Cashing Service (see our User Guide for more information). If you enroll in 
this Service, you waive any rights to dishonor or issue an edit request with respect to any Draft we cash at 
our teller line.

11. Liability and Indemnification.
a. Indemnification.  You will indemnify, defend, and hold us, and our Representatives harmless from and 

against all Losses arising out of or relating to:
i. (1) our failure to identify an Unauthorized Draft, (2) our refusal to cash a Draft, (3) our failure to 

meet any requirement to which section 9 (Drafts to be dishonored) of this Service Description 
refers, (4) our payment of an Unauthorized Draft, or (5) our exercise of our rights, or our 
performance of our obligations, in accordance with this Service Description,

ii. A breach of either the Image Quality Warranty or the No Double Debit Warranty (as defined below),
iii. Our obligation to indemnify and reimburse a depository bank that accepts the original paper check 

from which an electronic check is created, if the loss is due to the check having already been paid, and
iv. If we transfer or present an "electronically-created item" and receive settlement or other 

consideration for it, our obligation to indemnify and reimburse each transferee bank, any subsequent 
collecting bank, the paying bank, and any subsequent returning bank against Losses that result from 
the fact that:
1. The electronic image or electronic information of the electronically-created item is not 

derived from a paper check,
2. The person on whose account the electronically-created item is drawn did not authorize the 

issuance of the electronically-created item or to the payee stated on the item, and

787

Item 19.



Page 21 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

3. A person receives a transfer, presentment, or return of, or otherwise is charged for an 
electronically-created item in such a way that the person is asked to make payment based on an 
item or check it has paid.

"Electronically-created item" means an electronic image that has all the attributes of an electronic check 
or electronic returned check but was created electronically and not derived from a paper check. "Image 
Quality Warranty" means our guarantee that the electronic image of the check accurately represents all 
of the information on the front of the check as of the time the original check is truncated, and the 
electronic information includes an accurate record of all MICR line information required for a substitute 
check and the amount of the check. "No Double Debit Warranty" means our guarantee that the 
warrantee will not receive a presentment of or otherwise be charged for an electronic check, an 
electronic returned check, the original check, a substitute check, or a paper or electronic representation 
of a paper substitute check, in a way that the warrantee will be asked to make payment on a check that it 
has already paid.

When we transfer an electronic check for collection or payment, we make the Image Quality Warranty 
and the No Double Debit Warranty to the transferee bank, any subsequent collecting bank, the paying 
bank, and the drawer. When we transfer an electronic returned check for return, we make the Image 
Quality Warranty and the No Double Debit Warranty to the transferee returning bank, the depository 
bank, and the owner. For purposes of this section 11.a, the term "check" and "electronically created item" 
includes a Draft.

b. Unauthorized Draft.  With respect to each Draft, we:
i. Will be deemed to be a collecting bank and not a drawee bank, and
ii. Disclaim all liability applicable to a payor bank under the Transfer and Presentment Warranties in 

Articles 3 and 4 of the UCC.
In the event any Draft paid by you is subsequently determined to be an Unauthorized Draft, we will take 
any action reasonably requested by you to enforce against prior parties (including prior collecting banks, 
endorsers and other holders) whatever rights you may have against those prior parties, but we will not 
be liable to you with respect to the Unauthorized Draft and will not be obligated to take any action with 
respect to the Unauthorized Draft unless you first indemnify us for all costs, expenses and liabilities, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses, which we may incur as a result of such action.

c. Delayed Return.  You are responsible to any party that incurs a loss in connection with a Draft, if:
i. The loss is due to a delay in the return of the Draft, and
ii. The delay is caused, in whole or in part, by any presentment-related problem resulting from:

1. The failure of any Draft to meet our draft specifications (section 2), or
2. Material appearing on the back of the Draft when it was issued by you including without 

limitation carbon blanks, blacked-out areas and printed or written text or numbers.

12. Survival.  Sections 3, 4, 6, 9, 10, and 11 of this Service Description will survive termination of the Service.

Third Party Drafts Service

1. Description of Service.  You provide draft stock to your customers (each, a "third party") that issue third 
party drafts. With this Service, we will provide you with a controlled disbursement service for third party 
drafts. You will establish and maintain:
a. One or more demand deposit accounts with us (each, a "Funding Account"), and
b. One or more demand deposit accounts with us (each, a "Disbursement Account"), each of which is linked 

to a Funding Account and assigned to one of our controlled disbursement end points (each, an "End 
Point").

788

Item 19.



Page 22 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

2. Requirements for Draft stock.  You will ensure each Draft contains:
a. The legend "PAYABLE THROUGH WFB, N.A."; and
b. Our routing number on the MICR line of the Draft. You will also comply with all other requirements we 

communicate to you. You will not provide Draft stock to any third party until we notify you that your 
Draft stock meets our specifications.

3. Electronic presentment.  Each Business Day, we will present to you each Draft we receive before the Cutoff 
Time. We will electronically present you with a report or transmission ("Activity Report") containing the 
serial number and amount of each Draft available to you through your chosen information reporting service. 
No physical delivery of a Draft or of a substitute check or a purported substitute check in lieu of a Draft will 
occur.

4. Images of Drafts; identifying Unauthorized Drafts.  We will make an electronic image of each Draft available 
to you through our CEO® portal. If for any reason we cannot make an electronic image of a Draft available to 
you, you remain solely responsible for determining whether a Draft described in each Activity Report is an 
Unauthorized Draft.

5. Funding.  You will maintain immediately available funds in your Account sufficient to cover the full amount of 
Drafts you issue. We have no obligation to honor any Draft if you do not have immediately available funds in 
your Account sufficient to cover the full amount of the Draft. If an arbitrator or a court determines a Draft 
has been paid under circumstances that we incur any liablility for the Draft under Applicable Law or any 
agreement having the force of law, you will pay us on demand for the amount of the Draft.

6. Decisioning.  You must notify us of any presented Draft that is to be edited (section 8) or dishonored 
(section 9) by the Cutoff Time on the next Business Day following the Business Day on which we made the 
Activity Report available to you ("Decision Deadline"). You will notify us through our CEO portal as set forth 
in the Reverse Positive Pay Service Description or, in the case of dishonor instructions only, through a means 
acceptable to us. If we do not receive your edit requests or dishonor instructions by the applicable Decision 
Deadline, you will be deemed to have instructed us to pay each Draft described in the Activity Report(s) for 
that Business Day, and you will be obligated to pay the amount of each Draft that is not timely returned by 
us.

7. Provisional payment of Drafts.  Any payment or other settlement for a Draft, except a Draft cashed in 
accordance with section 10 [Draft cashing], will be provisional and subject to revocation by:
a. You, if you direct us to dishonor a Draft before the applicable Decision Deadline, or
b. Us at any time before midnight of the day we presented the Draft to you.

8. Edits to Drafts.  You may request edits of the serial number and/or amount of any Draft described on the 
Activity Report(s) for any current Business Day. You will notify us of each edit request by means acceptable 
to us. We may deny your edit request based on our evaluation.

9. Drafts to be dishonored.
a. General.  We are subject to requirements regarding the return of Drafts under Applicable Law, including 

the requirement to provide notice of a dishonored Draft. We may be liable for the amount of the Draft 
and other damages if we do not meet these requirements. You are solely responsible for dishonoring any 
Draft including any Unauthorized Draft. If you decide to dishonor any Draft we present to you, you will 
notify us prior to the Decision Deadline in accordance with the Reverse Positive Pay Service Description.

789

Item 19.



Page 23 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

b. Reimbursement obligation; revocation instructions.  You will promptly reimburse us for any Losses we 
suffer or incur as a result of our dishonor of a Draft in accordance with your notice to us. Any payment or 
other settlement of a Draft will be provisional and can be revoked by:
i. You, if you direct us to dishonor a Draft before the Decision Deadline, and
ii. Us at any time before midnight of the first Business Day after the day we presented the Draft to 

you.
To be effective, we must receive your revocation instruction in a time and manner that gives us a 
reasonable opportunity to act on it before the payee deposits, cashes or otherwise negotiates the Draft.

c. Fraud.  If your reason for dishonoring a Draft is fraud, your return instruction alone will not consitute a 
claim for a fraudulent transaction. You must file a separate claim with us relating to the fraudlent 
transaction.

10. Draft cashing.  We, or an affiliate, will not cash any Draft presented for encashment at our teller line, except 
at our own discretion.

11. Liability and indemnification.
a. Indemnification.  You will indemnify, defend, and hold us, and our Representatives harmless from and 

against all Losses arising out of or relating to:
i. (1) our failure to identify an Unauthorized Draft, (2) our refusal to cash a Draft, (3) our failure to 

meet any requirement to which section 9 (Drafts to be dishonored) of this Service Description 
refers, (4) our payment of an Unauthorized Draft, or (5) our exercise of our rights, or our 
performance of our obligations, in accordance with this Service Description,

ii. A breach of either the Image Quality Warranty or the No Double Debit Warranty (as defined below),
iii. Our obligation to indemnify and reimburse a depository bank that accepts the original paper check 

from which an electronic check is created, if the loss is due to the check having already been paid, and
iv. If we transfer or present an "electronically-created item" and receive settlement or other 

consideration for it, our obligation to indemnify and reimburse each transferee bank, any subsequent 
collecting bank, the paying bank, and any subsequent returning bank against Losses that result from 
the fact that:
1. The electronic image or electronic information of the electronically-created item is not 

derived from a paper check,
2. The person on whose account the electronically-created item is drawn did not authorize the 

issuance of the electronically-created item or to the payee stated on the item, and
3. A person receives a transfer, presentment, or return of, or otherwise is charged for an 

electronically-created item in such a way that the person is asked to make payment based on an 
item or check it has paid.

"Electronically-created item" means an electronic image that has all the attributes of an electronic check 
or electronic returned check but was created electronically and not derived from a paper check. "Image 
Quality Warranty" means our guarantee that the electronic image of the check accurately represents all 
of the information on the front of the check as of the time the original check is truncated, and the 
electronic information includes an accurate record of all MICR line information required for a substitute 
check and the amount of the check. "No Double Debit Warranty" means our guarantee that the 
warrantee will not receive a presentment of or otherwise be charged for an electronic check, an 
electronic returned check, the original check, a substitute check, or a paper or electronic representation 
of a paper substitute check, in a way that the warrantee will be asked to make payment on a check that it 
has already paid.

When we transfer an electronic check for collection or payment, we make the Image Quality Warranty 
and the No Double Debit Warranty to the transferee bank, any subsequent collecting bank, the paying 

790

Item 19.



Page 24 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

bank, and the drawer. When we transfer an electronic returned check for return, we make the Image 
Quality Warranty and the No Double Debit Warranty to the transferee returning bank, the depository 
bank, and the owner. For purposes of this section 11.a, the term "check" and "electronically created item" 
includes a Draft.

b. Unauthorized Draft.  With respect to each Draft, we:
i. Will be deemed to be a collecting bank and not a drawee bank, and
ii. Disclaim all liability applicable to a payor bank under the Transfer and Presentment Warranties in 

Articles 3 and 4 of the UCC.

In the event any Draft paid by you is subsequently determined to be an Unauthorized Draft, we will take 
any action reasonably requested by you to enforce against prior parties (including prior collecting banks, 
endorsers and other holders) whatever rights you may have against those prior parties, but we will not 
be liable to you with respect to the Unauthorized Draft and will not be obligated to take any action with 
respect to the Unauthorized Draft unless you first indemnify us for all costs, expenses and liabilities, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses, which we may incur as a result of such action.

c. Delayed return.  You are responsible to any party that incurs a loss in connection with a Draft, if:
i. The loss is due to a delay in the return of the Draft, and
ii. The delay is caused, in whole or in part, by any presentment-related problem resulting from:

1. The failure of any Draft to meet our draft specifications (section 2), or
2. Material appearing on the back of the Draft when it was issued by you including without 

limitation carbon banks, blacked-out areas and printed or written text or numbers.

12. Anti-money laundering and sanctions controls.  While this Service Description is in effect, you will:
a. Be solely responsible for monitoring, interpreting and complying with all laws, regulations, judicial and 

administrative decisions, and executive orders that apply to you as a provider of accounts to your 
customers on which Drafts are issued, including the U.S. anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist 
financing ("AML") and sanctions laws and regulations;

b. Maintain policies and procedures to reasonably ensure compliance with applicable provisions of the U.S. 
AML laws and regulations, including but not limited to the USA PATRIOT Act ("PATRIOT Act"), and 
regulations promulgated by the Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC") of the United States 
Department of the Treasury;

c. Where you qualify under section 314(b) of the PATRIOT Act, maintain an effective notice with FinCEN 
evidencing your intent to engage in information sharing pursuant to section 314(b) of the PATRIOT Act;

d. If subject to the PATRIOT Act, maintain policies and procedures that include a risk assessment of its 
products and services, designate a Board-approved AML Compliance Officer responsible for overseeing 
the components of the AML Program, and include processes for training, monitoring of Drafts, 
recordkeeping and reporting;

e. Provide copies of your policies, procedures and practices designed to comply with this section 12, as we 
may request from time to time; and (b) upon our request and sole expense, allow us, or our designee, to 
make such on-site visits to you as we deem necessary or appropriate to review your policies, procedures 
and practices designed to comply with this section 12; and

f. Work with us in good faith to minimize the number of on-site visits and to limit the impact of the on-site 
visits on your business.

13. Survival.  Sections 3, 4, 6, 9, 10 and 11 of this Service Description will survive termination of the Service.

791

Item 19.



Page 25 of 25 Check Disbursements and Fraud Prevention Services Service Description 

Glossary

Account Agreement means the applicable account agreement governing your Account.

Applicable Law is defined in section 3 of the Master Agreement.

Business Day means every day except Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays. When used in connection with 
funds transfer Services, "Business Day" means each day on we are open for business related to that Service.

Check Issue Data means for any Check or Draft, the complete serial number and numeric amount. If you have 
elected the Payee Validation service option under the Positive Pay Service, Check Issue Data also includes the 
payee's name.

Cutoff Time means our cutoff time each Business Day that we separately disclose to you for the Service.

Decision Deadline means on any Business Day, (i) for the Positive Pay Service, the time we establish by which you 
must choose to pay or return each Exception Check, and (ii) for the Reverse Positive Pay Service, the time we 
establish by which you must choose to edit or return each Check on the Paid Items Report. 

Draft means each payable-through draft or third party draft we present to you in accordance with this Service 
Description and includes an Unauthorized Draft.

Item has the meaning given in the Account Agreement.

Losses means all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or expenses (including 
reasonable fees, disbursements of legal counsel and court fees).

Master Agreement means the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services.

Matching Check is a Check presented to us that matches the Check Issue Data you have provided to us.

Obligations means any and all advances, debts, loans, obligations and liabilities that you owe us and our affiliates 
pursuant to the terms of this Service Description, including any advances we make to the Funding Account 
pursuant to Section 3 of the Controlled Disbursements Service Description and any advances we make to the 
Disbursement Account pursuant to Section 4 of the Controlled Disbursements Service Description.

Representatives is defined in section 11(f) of the Master Agreement.

Unauthorized Draft means a counterfeit or altered Draft, a reproduction of a duly authorized Draft, a Draft with 
a forged or other unauthorized signature, or a forged, unauthorized, incorrect or illegible endorsement.

792

Item 19.



 

Check Cashing Service Description                       
Revised 06-17-2021 

 

Check Cashing Service Description 

 

 
1. Introduction. The Service Documentation contains the terms governing the Wells Fargo Bank, 

N.A. (“Bank”) check cashing service (“Service”) and includes:  
 
(a)    this Service Description;  
 
(b)  the Acceptance of Services or Treasury Management Product Enrollment form;  
 
(c) the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services ("Master Agreement");  
 
(d)  the account agreement governing the account(s) Company uses in connection with the  
      Service; and 
 
(e)  User Guides which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules,  
      specifications, instructions, and notices;   
 
This Service Description and the Master Agreement are posted at Bank’s Commercial 
Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents comprising the 
Service Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Company’s use of the 
Service confirms Company’s receipt of and agreement to be bound by the applicable Service 
Documentation. If an enhancement to the Service or other change requires a change to this 
Service Description, Bank will post an updated Service Description on the CEO® portal. When 
required by applicable law, Bank will notify Company of the update. If Company continues to 
use the Service after the update takes effect, Company will be deemed to have agreed to the 
update. 

 
2. Description of Bank’s Service. Bank’s Service enables Company to have Bank and Bank’s 

affiliates (each an “Affiliate” and unless otherwise specified, along with Bank, collectively “Bank”) 
cash checks drawn on Company’s accounts held at other banks.  

 
2.1. Company’s Request to Cash Checks. Company requests Bank cash checks each of 

which: (a) has a face amount equal to or less than the amount separately agreed to by 
Company and Bank in the Setup Form for the Service (“Setup Form”); (b) purports to be 
drawn by Company on an account identified on the Setup Form for the Service (each an 
“Account” and collectively “Accounts”) at a drawee bank identified on the Setup Form 
(“Drawee”) (each such check a “Check”) whether actually issued by Company or not; and (c) 
is presented in person by the payee at an office of Bank.  

 

793

Item 19.



 
2 Check Cashing Service Description   
                  

2.2. Check Cashing Procedures. Company authorizes Bank to cash any Check that it does not 
have actual knowledge bears an unauthorized signature, contains a material alteration, or is 
otherwise not properly payable so long as Bank has followed its then current check cashing 
procedures in connection with the cashing of the Check. Bank reserves the right to require 
Company to consult with Bank with respect to any information concerning Bank that is 
printed on Company’s check stock. COMPANY UNDERSTANDS THIS SERVICE IS NOT 
AVAILABLE AT CERTAIN AFFILIATES OR BANK BRANCHES LOCATED IN CERTAIN 
STATES AS SEPARATELY DISCLOSED TO COMPANY.  

 
3. Fees. Company agrees to pay Bank a periodic fee for the Service, which fee will be charged 

whether any Check is cashed during a period and may be changed by Bank from time to time upon 
prior written notification to Company, in accordance with the Service Documentation. In addition, a 
per-check check cashing fee may apply. Company agrees to inform its payees in writing that a per-
check check cashing fee may apply.  

 
4. Termination of Service. In addition to the termination provisions contained in the Master 

Agreement, Bank may immediately and without prior notice terminate the Service whenever it has 
any basis to believe that there will not be sufficient available funds in the Account to pay a Check 
when presented or, in its sole determination, there is an unacceptable risk of fraudulent activity. The 
provisions of this Service Description and the other Service Documentation will continue in effect 
with respect to all Checks cashed by Bank prior to termination of the Service.  

 
5. Company’s Guarantee of Payment and Obligation of Reimbursement.  
 

5.1. Guarantee of Check Payment. Company unconditionally guarantees payment of all 
Checks even though at the time any particular Check is presented for payment (a) the 
endorsement of the named payee is unauthorized; (b) the Check was not drawn, issued or 
authorized by Company; (c) the Drawee has received a valid stop payment order regarding 
the Check; (d) Company does not have sufficient funds in the Account to cover the Check; 
(e) the Account has been closed or the Drawee is prohibited from paying Checks drawn 
against the Account; or (f) the Drawee has knowledge that the Check bears an unauthorized 
signature, contains a material alteration, or is otherwise not properly payable.  

 
5.2. Obligation of Reimbursement. If a Check is dishonored or if Bank is obligated to 

reimburse the Drawee or a collecting bank with respect to a Check, upon written demand 
accompanied by evidence of such dishonor or reimbursement, Company agrees to promptly 
reimburse Bank for all resulting loss. Company waives presentment and other notice of 
dishonor. In addition, Bank has the right to debit or chargeback any account of Company at 
Bank for any such loss.  

 
6. Bank’s Limitation of Liability and Company’s Agreement to Indemnify Bank. Bank will have no 

liability including liability for any consequential, special, punitive or indirect loss or damage which 
Company, a payee, the Drawee, a collecting bank or any other person may incur or suffer in 
connection with a Check. Company will indemnify, defend, and save harmless Bank, and each of its 
directors, officers, employees, and agents (collectively in this section, “Indemnified Persons”) from 
and against all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, obligations, demands, charges, costs, or 
expenses (including reasonable fees and disbursements of legal counsel and accountants) 
(collectively, "Losses and Liabilities") awarded against or incurred or suffered by Indemnified 

794

Item 19.



 
3 Check Cashing Service Description   
                  

Persons arising directly or indirectly from or related to the cashing of any Check by Bank in 
accordance with this Service Description and/or the breach of any material obligation of Company 
hereunder.  

  
Survival. Sections 4, 5 and 6 of this Service Description survive termination of the Service.  

© 2021Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

795

Item 19.



796

Item 19.



797

Item 19.



798

Item 19.



799

Item 19.



800

Item 19.



801

Item 19.



802

Item 19.



803

Item 19.



804

Item 19.



805

Item 19.



 

© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only 

 

 

 

 

Amendment to Master Agreement 

for Treasury  Management Services 
 

Treasury Management Services 

  

 
  

806

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

2 Amendment to Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services | September 18, 2020 

 Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only  

 

Introduction 
 

This Amendment supplements and modifies the Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services (“Master 

Agreement”) for City of Beaumont.  “You,” “your” or “yours” refers to the customer identified in the immediately 

preceding sentence. The terms “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the Bank. Capitalized terms used but not defined in 

this Amendment are defined in the Master Agreement.  This Amendment constitutes part of the Service 

Documentation as defined in the Master Agreement.  If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the 

Master Agreement or other Service Documentation, this Amendment will control.  Except as expressly modified 

by this Amendment, all terms and provisions of Master Agreement and Service Documentation will continue to 

apply with full force and effect.  

 

Amendment 
 

We agree that the Master Agreement governing our relationship with you is amended as follows: 

 

1. The following text is added at the end of Section 3 of the Master Agreement (titled “Changes to 

services”): 

 

“Notwithstanding the immediately preceding paragraph, through the Initial Term End Date (as defined 

below) Bank will not change the fees for Services reflected on Attachment A, except: 

 

• in order to reflect the impact of any change in Applicable Law; 

 

• in the event your Service usage volume is materially lower than that reflected on Attachment A; 

 

• for changes to Bank’s pricing methodology for Services, including element IDs associated with a 

Service, so long as the change does not increase the total price of the Services to you (unless 

permitted under one of the two immediately preceding bullet points). 

 

If you implement additional Services not described on Attachment A prior to the Initial Term End Date, 

the fees for such additional Services will be as disclosed to you in connection with the implementation of 

such additional Services.”  

 

2. The text of  Section 4  (titled “Term and termination”) Subsection (a) is deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with the following: 

 

“ a.  After we notify you of a breach of any provision of the Service Documentation or any other 

agreement with us, and you fail to cure the breach (if it can be cured) within 45 days of the date of 

notice; or” 

 

3. The following text is added at the beginning of Section 4 (titled “Term and termination”) as a new first 

sentence:   

 

“Subject to the termination provisions below, the initial term of this Agreement will commence on 

August 1, 2022 and expire on July 31, 2027 (“Initial Term End Date”), and this Agreement may be 

extended for not more than two additional two-year extension terms by your and our mutual consent.” 

 

807

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

3 Amendment to Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services | September 18, 2020 

 Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only  

 

4. The text of Section 12 (titled “Governing Law”) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“Governing law. The Service Documentation will be governed by: (a) U.S. federal law and (b) the law of  

the State of California, without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws (“Governing Law”).” 

 

 

5. The text of Section 14 (titled “Jurisdiction”) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“Jurisdiction. For any proceedings regarding this Agreement (other than a proceeding subject to 

arbitration), you and we each hereby irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of 

California or the federal courts located there and irrevocably agrees that all claims relating to the 

proceeding may be heard or determined in those courts.” 

 

 

 

 WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.   City of Beaumont 

 

 By:       By:      

Name:       Name:      

Title:       Title:      

Date:       Date:      

 

 

 

808

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

4 Amendment to Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services | September 18, 2020 

 Approved for Use in Local Government Banking Only  

 

Attachment A 

Pricing for Specified Treasury Management Services 

See Attached 
 

809

Item 19.



Service Description Unit Volume Activity Price Unit total

General account services:

Account maintenance 1 10.0000 10.00

Checks Returned with Statements 7 N/A 0.00

Depository Services

Deposits 350 3.0000 1,050.00

Checks Paid 40 0.1000 4.00

Deposited Items - On Us 60 0.0600 3.60

Deposited Items – Local Clearing 90 0.0600 5.40

Deposited Items – Other 100 0.0600 6.00

Currency Deposited 1 $25,000 0.0013 32.50

Returned Item Debit 10 10.0000 100.00

ACH Returned Item Debit 5 6.5000 32.50

Returned Item Reclear Fee 0 5.0000 0.00

Returned Item Special Handling 0 0.6000 0.00

Controlled Disbursement Services

Checks Paid (on Accounts Payable) 2
40 Minimum2

75.00

Positive Pay Package 1 15.0000 15.00

Cash Reporter/Information Reporting 1 15.0000 15.00

ACH Services

File Input 0 0.00

Credit - Incoming 10 0.1000 1.00

Debit – Incoming 25 0.1000 2.50

Notification of Change 1 6.5000 6.50

Wire Transfer Services

Incoming Domestic Wire 2 10.0000 20.00

Outgoing Domestic Wire 2 4.0000 8.00

Non-PC Repetitive Outgoing Domestic Wire 0 3.0000 0.00

Wire Notification (Phone) 1 15.0000 15.00

Information Reporting Services

Basic Online A/C Maintenance 1 25.0000 25.00

Basic Online Detail Transactions 500 0.1000 50.00

Online CM ACH Maintenance (Stand Alone) 1 15.0000 15.00

ACH Upload Expense 1 N/A 0.00

Grand total $ 1,492.00

NOTES:

 1 Updated volume to reflect the average dollar amount of cash and coin deposited monthly.
2 There is a minimum fee for our ARP Full Reconciliation Per Item charge.  The per item charge is .12 if the minimum is exceeded.

Banking Services Proposal — Required Services
Estimated Monthly Activity Detail

Please reference the attached Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pro Forma to see the full detailed proposed pricing.  Please see the 

conversion allowance in the RFP response that can be used to offset monthly fees and setup costs.

810

Item 19.



Service Description Unit Volume Activity Price Unit total

General Account Services:

RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 17,000 0.1275 2,167.50

Account Reconcilement:

ARP OPTIONAL REPORTS 42 5.00000 210.00

ARP OUTPUT - TRANSMISSION 21 2.00000 42.00

PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 40 0.01000 0.40

CEO ARP STMT & RPTS MONTHLY BASE 1 8.00000 8.00

OUTGOING TRANSMISSION - PER ITEM 40 0.01000 0.40

Depository Services

CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 20 6.50000 130.00

CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 27 0.12000 3.24

CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 9 0.00130 0.01

DESKTOP DEPOSIT MONTHLY BASE 1 10.00000 10.00

DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSIT CREDITED 21 0.55000 11.55

Wholesale Lockbox

LBX WHOLESALE BASE 1 220.00000 220.00

LBX TRANSMISSION BASE 1 125.00000 125.00

MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED 21 0.55000 11.55

WHOLESALE LOCKBOX - DEPOSITED CHECK 1,900 0.14000 266.00

LBX STANDARD CHECK PROCESSED 1,900 0.20000 380.00

LBX DOCUMENT SCANNED 3,800 0.03500 133.00

LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM 21 0.05000 1.05

ACH Services

ACH RECEIVED ITEM 35 0.10000 3.50

ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 1 10.00000 10.00

ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION - ITEM 6 0.20000 1.20

ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION-ACCOUNT 1 10.00000 10.00

ACH FUTURE DATED ITEM 1,847 0.05000 92.35

ACH TRANSMISSION CHARGE 4 2.00000 8.00

Information Reporting Services

CEO ALERTS SERVICE - EMAIL 21 0.04000 0.84

CEO INTRADAY REPORTING ITEMS RPTD 100 0.10000 10.00

CEO INTRADAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 1 25.00000 25.00

Grand total $ 3,880.59

ONE TIME Setup Charges

ACH FRAUD FILTER - SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

ACH SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

ARP SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

LOCKBOX SET UP 1 0.0000 0.00

Banking Services Proposal — Required Services
ADDITIONAL Standard Monthly Activity Detail

The below activity detail reflects additional charges and volumes anticipated based on our understanding of the City's requirements and 

the services in the RFP.  We have used data from the Q & A responses, the analysis statements provided, as well as the services requested 

in the RFP scope.  Please reference the attached Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pro Forma to see the full detailed proposed pricing 

which includes all volumes provided as well as the below volumes added.  Please see the conversion allowance in the RFP response that can 

be used to offset monthly fees and setup costs.

811

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

08160 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 6.5000

08190 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-CALL IN 3.7500

08116 CASH VAULT COIN FURN-STD HALF BOX 4.0000

08115 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED-STD BOX 4.0000

08110 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 0.1200

08416 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 0.0013

08071 CASH VAULT DEP - NONSTD COIN BAG 12.0000

08008 CASH VAULT DEP - ROLLED COIN 0.1200

08067 CASH VAULT DEP - STD COIN BAG 3.5000

08181 CASH VAULT ORDER - AUTOMATED 3.7500

08630 CASH VAULT ORDER - FED STD BAG 3.0000

08114 CASH VAULT ORDER - HALF STD BAG 3.0000

08210 SAFEVANTAGE EXPEDITED CREDIT 0.0001

08208 SV PREMIUM DEPOSIT CREDIT 5.0000

24250 OVERDRAFT CHARGE-PAID ITEM 35.0000

CK049 DDA STATEMENT - PAPER 5.0000

CK030 CLIENT ANALYSIS STATEMENT-PAPER 5.0000

CK672 BANK CONFIRMATION AUDIT REQUEST 65.0000

CK673 CREDIT RATING AUDIT REQUEST 50.0000

IAMTH RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 0.1275

64104 IFI MAINTENANCE PER PRODUCT 75.0000

27707 CEO SEARCH 0.1600

12812 CEO IMAGE VIEW < 90 DAYS - ITEM 0.0100

12815 CEO IMAGE VIEW > 90 DAYS - ITEM 0.0100

03303 LBX PKG US MAIL DELIVERY 1.0000

22222 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-VENDOR 0.0100

002 DEPOSITED CHECK 0.1500

36703 LBX MATCHING FILE BASE 60.0000

03102 LBX REMIT PROCESSED CASH 12.0000

03611 LBX REMIT PROCESSED EXPRESS MAIL 2.5000

36731 LBX CORRESPONDENCE OR REJECTS 0.7000

52035 LBX IMAGE FILE IMPORT 0.0300

36745 LBX VALUE ADDED KEYING 0.0250

Please submit information on any standard monthly service charges that are not listed in the

Monthly Activity Detail and use the same format shown in the Monthly Activity Detail. If any

service charges are one-time set-up or service charges, or are to be no charge to the City,

please make note of this.

All proposals for additional service must be accompanied by supplemental attachments

describing in full the services offered along with monthly cost detail.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL – ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Cost

812

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

34334 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP MTHLYBASE 10.0000

34338 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP - ITEM 5.0000

34335 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW - ITEM 5.0000

ES216 ACH SAME DAY 0.5000

ES206 ACH ORIGINATED - ADDENDA REC 0.0550

ES254 ACH ORIGINATION/REJECT DATA - FILE 3.5000

ES240 ACH RETURN ITEM-REDEPOSITED 6.5000

ES362 ACH RETURN ITEM - DISHONORED 6.5000

06507 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED -ELECTRONIC 6.5000

06511 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED QUALITY FEE 5.0000

ES230 ACH DELETE - ITEM 10.0000

ES361 ACH REVERSAL - ITEM 10.0000

06510 ACH AUTHORIZATION INVESTIGATION 50.0000

06508 ACH COMPLEX SPECIAL INVESTIGATION 210.0000

ES231 ACH DELETE/REVERSE - BATCH/FILE 15.0000

34285 CEO ACH HYP ITM DET INQ - PER ITEM 1.5000

ES349 ACH RECEIVED ADDENDA 0.0300

34421 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) / ITEM 0.0050

34420 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) BASE 5.0000

34337 CEO CHECK ISSUES-ITEM 0.3000

12687 ARP AGED ISSUE RECORDS ON FILE-ITEM 0.0200

12609 ARP PAPER STATEMENT/REPORT DELIVERY 20.0000

12684 ARP PAPER STMT/REPORT MONTHLY BASE 20.0000

12615 ARP PDF STMTS/RPTS-TRANSMISSION 50.0000

08172 ADJ FOR CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH 13.0000

CK161 CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH 0.0030

CK771 LOOSE COIN DEPOSITED IN BRANCH 10.0000

CK197 CASH ORDER FEE IN A WF BRANCH 9.0000

CK131 ROLLED COIN FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH 0.5000

CK141 CURRENCY FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH 0.0030

22810 WF CHK CASHED FOR NONACCT HOLDER 0.0000

08052 BRANCH DEPOSIT 3.5000

22812 NON ACCT HOLDER CHK CASHING - PAYEE 0.0000

790 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - DEP ADJUSTMENT 18.0000

22030 STOP PAYMENT - AUTO RENEWAL 4.0000

12677 MICR CHECK REJECTS >1% THROUGH 2% 0.8000

12678 MICR CHECK REJECTS OVER 2% 1.7500

22225 CHECK CASHING THRESHOLD MO BASE 10.0000

MD091 PYMT AUTH MAX CHECK MTHLY BASE 17.0000

12670 STOP PAYMENT - ONLINE 12.0000

12671 STOP PAYMENT - OPERATOR ASSISTED 30.0000

12673 STOP PAYMENT - RANGE 15.0000

ES030 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC 10.0000

ES191 WIRE IN XBDR CORRESP BANK-USD/FX 7.0000

Cost

813

Item 19.



ITEM NO. SERVICE DESCRIPTION SUMMARY Per unit Monthly

ES076 WIRE IN XBDR USA ACCT-USD OR FX 20.0000

18030 WIRE IN REPAIR 9.0000

ODACT DAILY USE OF UNCOLL FUNDS-ACCT LVL 1.0000

DS194 PAYEE VALIDATION MANUAL REVIEW/ITEM 0.2500

DS191 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 0.0100

34336 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION - CEO IMAGE 0.5000

12908 POS PAY CHECKS WITH NO ISSUE RECORD 0.5000

12505 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION CHECKS RETND 10.0000

12903 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTIONS - ITEM 5.0000

12906 POSPAY VERIFICATION CALL-CASHED 20.0000

CK064 CEO RETURN ITEM SERVICE MTHLY BASE 0.0000

CK081 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INST MTHLY BASE 38.0000

34110 SWEEP ACCOUNT POSITION REPORT 10.0000

22087 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUALFND ELECTNIC 0.0000

22094 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUAL FND MO BASE 0.0000

18901 WIRE OUT XBDR FX CEO/API 25.0000

ES141 WIRE BOOK TRANSFER CEO/API 4.0000

18602 WIRE INVESTIGATION 65.0000

18031 WIRE OUT REPAIR 9.0000

64100 IFI SETUP PER PRODUCT 0.0000

03082 LBX PROGRAMMING 100.0000

34375 CEO ACH ORIG NEW CO ID SETUP 0.0000

06092 ACH ORIGINATION NEW COMP ID-SET UP 0.0000

18325 WIRE ACCOUNT ADD CEO/API 0.0000

Cost

814

Item 19.



Treasury Management Pro Forma

 City of Beaumont Pricing as of June 2022

 ANALYSIS SUMMARY

 Average Positive Collected Balance $ 17,000,000.00

 Reserve Requirement @ 0.00% $ 0.00

 Investable Balance Available for Services $ 17,000,000.00

 

 Monthly Analyzed Charges $ 5,372.59

 Earnings Allowance @ 0.70% $ 9,780.82

 Net Monthly Analyzed Charges (EXCESS) $ 4,408.23

 *Monthly Fee Based Charges $ 0.00

 Total Monthly Analyzed Charges $ 0.00

 *Charges not offset by balances

 SERVICE DETAILS

 WF AFP Service

 Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

 BALANCE & COMPENSATION INFORMATION 

 IAMTH 000230 RECOUPMENT MONTHLY 0.12750 17,000 2,167.50

 BALANCE & COMPENSATION INFORMATION Subtotal 2,167.50

 GENERAL ACCOUNT SERVICES           

 22051 010000 ACCT MAINTENANCE 10.00000 1 10.00

 CK021 010100 DEBITS POSTED 0.10000 25 2.50

 15007 010101 DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSIT CREDITED 0.55000 21 11.55

 GENERAL ACCOUNT SERVICES Subtotal 24.05

 LOCKBOX SERVICES           

 03302 050400 LBX TRANSMISSION BASE 125.00000 1 125.00

 36709 05011R LBX WHOLESALE BASE 220.00000 1 220.00

 36755 050100 LBX STANDARD CHECK PROCESSED 0.20000 1,900 380.00

 03905 05011R LBX DOCUMENT SCANNED 0.03500 3,800 133.00

 34222 05031Z LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM 0.05000 21 1.05

 LOCKBOX SERVICES Subtotal 859.05

 

 

This proposal is based on our understanding of your requirements and the services in the RFP.  This proposal 

includes volumes provided in your Estimated Monthly Activity Detail with anticipated line items and volumes for the 

products requested in the RFP.  Please see the conversion allowance in the RFP response that can be used to 

offset the fees and setup costs below.

Pro Forma 6 of 13
815

Item 19.



 

 

 

 WF AFP Service

 Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

 

 DEPOSITORY SERVICES                

 08173 100100 CASH VAULT DEPOSIT 3.00000 350 1,050.00

 CK061 100400 RETURN ITEM - CHARGEBACK 10.00000 10 100.00

 CK069 100401 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 0.60000 0 0.00

 CK075 100402 RETURN ITEM REDEPOSITED 5.00000 0 0.00

 08110 100144 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED 0.12000 27 3.24

 08416 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 0.00130 9 0.01

 08290 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY/COIN DEPOSITED 0.00130 25,000 32.50

 08160 100501 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT 6.50000 20 130.00

 08025 100015 MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED 0.55000 21 11.55

 706 100224 DESKTOP DEPOSIT-DEPOSITED ITEM 0.06000 250 15.00

 311 100225 WHOLESALE LOCKBOX - DEPOSITED CHECK 0.14000 1,900 266.00

 DEPOSITORY SERVICES Subtotal 1,608.30

 PAPER DISBURSEMENT SERVICES        

 DS191 150122 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 0.01000 40 0.40

 12907 150030 POSITIVE PAY MONTHLY BASE 15.00000 1 15.00

 22202 150100 DDA CHECKS PAID 0.10000 40 4.00

 PAPER DISBURSEMENT SERVICES Subtotal 19.40

 PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES  

 12377 200201 ARP FULL RECON-ITEM Minimum 40 75.00

 12060 200010 ARP MONTHLY BASE - FULL 15.00000 1 15.00

 12604 200306 ARP OPTIONAL REPORTS 5.00000 42 210.00

 12430 200301 ARP OUTPUT - TRANSMISSION 2.00000 21 42.00

 34350 200306 CEO ARP STMT & RPTS MONTHLY BASE 8.00000 1 8.00

 12694 200100 OUTGOING TRANSMISSION - PER ITEM 0.01000 40 0.40

 PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES Subtotal 350.40

 GENERAL ACH SERVICES               

 CK018 250201 ELECTRONIC CREDITS POSTED 0.10000 10 1.00

 34342 250400 ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION - ITEM 0.20000 6 1.20

 34340 250400 ACH CEO RETURN SUBSCRIPTION-ACCOUNT 10.00000 1 10.00

 ES280 250000 ACH MONTHLY BASE 15.00000 1 15.00

 ES211 250102 ACH FUTURE DATED ITEM 0.05000 1,847 92.35

 ES344 250202 ACH RECEIVED ITEM 0.10000 35 3.50

 06502 250302 ACH RETURN ITEM-ELECTRONIC 6.50000 5 32.50

 ES801 250501 ACH TRANSMISSION CHARGE 2.00000 4 8.00

 34333 251050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 10.00000 1 10.00

 06525 250302 ACH NOC - ELECTRONIC 6.50000 1 6.50

 GENERAL ACH SERVICES Subtotal 180.05

 

 

Pro Forma 7 of 13
816

Item 19.



 WF AFP Service

 Code Code Service Description Unit Price Volume Charges

 

 WIRE & OTHER FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE

 ES030 350300 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC 10.00000 2 20.00

 CS063 350510 WIRE OUT USA ACCT- STANDING 3.00000 0 0.00

 ES074 350580 WIRE VERIFY CALL BACK 15.00000 1 15.00

 ES139 350100 WIRE OUT DOMESTIC CEO/API 4.00000 2 8.00

 WIRE & OTHER FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE Subtotal 43.00

 INFORMATION SERVICES               

 34123 40022Z CEO ALERTS SERVICE - EMAIL 0.04000 21 0.84

 34121 400274 CEO INTRADAY REPORTING ITEMS RPTD 0.10000 100 10.00

 34120 400055 CEO INTRADAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 25.00000 1 25.00

 34115 400271 CEO PREV DAY REPORTING ITEMS LOADED 0.10000 500 50.00

 34100 400052 CEO PREV DAY REPORTING SUBSCRIPTION 25.00000 1 25.00

 15017 400003 DESKTOP DEPOSIT MONTHLY BASE 10.00000 1 10.00

 INFORMATION SERVICES Subtotal 120.84

 SETUP CHARGES

 LOCKBOX SERVICES                   

 03850 050138 LOCKBOX SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

 LOCKBOX SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

 12021 200410 ARP SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

 PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

 ES201 251000 ACH SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

 06094 251001 ACH FRAUD FILTER - SET UP 0.00000 1 0.00

 GENERAL ACH SERVICES Subtotal 0.00

 Total Analyzed Charges 0.00

 *Total Fee Based Charges 0.00

 Total Service Charges 0.00

 

 

Pro Forma 8 of 13
817

Item 19.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 Disclosures

 We created this proposal for you based on our understanding of your requirements and the services in which you expressed

 interest. This proposal confirms the deposit and treasury management services and the pricing we plan to provide you based on

 certain assumptions including projected volumes and other relevant information you provided. 

  

 This document is confidential. Please do not share it without first obtaining our written permission.  The services and pricing

 contained in this proposal are valid for 90 days. The pricing is subject to change if the actual volume or scope of services differs

 from the assumptions upon which we based the pricing. 

  

 Please let us know if you believe this proposal does not accurately represent the prices or services we discussed with you. If you

 have questions about the services in this proposal, please contact your Treasury Management Sales Consultant or visit:

 www.wellsfargo.com/accountanalysis for additional information about the services.

  

 Regarding your services

  

 Alerts Service

 Charges are assessed against the volume of Alerts per user, per company, per month basis. Users are only charged for

 the first 80 events/alerts per month, per delivery mechanism (email or text). There is no per company cap for billing.

  

 Wire Book Transfer

 A CEO Wire book transfer is between two accounts initiated via CEO Wires Book Transfer workflow. A Payment

 Manager Book transfer is charged when the debit and credit accounts are setup in a single CEO Company id and

 entitled to Book Transfer.

  

 Services with No Volumes

 Services listed with zero volume are not included in the estimated monthly analysis fee but are included in the event

 the service is used in the future.

  

 

 This message may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the addressee or authorized to

 receive this for the addressee, you must not use, copy, disclose, or take any action based on this message or any

 information herein. If you have received this message in error, please advise the sender immediately by reply 

 email and delete this message.Thank you for your cooperation.

   

 © 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. Not intended for public distribution.

Pro Forma 9 of 13
818

Item 19.



Wells Fargo Treasury Management Pricing

 City of Beaumont Pricing as of June 2022

 

 WF AFP

 Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

 Cash Vault

 08160 100501 CASH VAULT DEP -  ADJUSTMENT Adjustment 6.50000

 08110 100144 CASH VAULT COIN ROLLS FURNISHED Coin roll 0.12000

 08416 100199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED Dollar 0.00130

 08190 100140 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-CALL IN Cash order 3.75000

 08116 100145 CASH VAULT COIN FURN-STD HALF BOX Coin box 4.00000

 08115 100146 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED-STD BOX Coin box 4.00000

 08071 100111 CASH VAULT DEP - NONSTD COIN BAG Coin bag 12.00000

 08008 100110 CASH VAULT DEP - ROLLED COIN Coin roll 0.12000

 08067 100113 CASH VAULT DEP - STD COIN BAG Coin bag 3.50000

 08181 100141 CASH VAULT ORDER - AUTOMATED Transaction 3.75000

 08630 100147 CASH VAULT ORDER - FED STD BAG Coin bag 3.00000

 08114 100147 CASH VAULT ORDER - HALF STD BAG Coin bag 3.00000

 08210 100154 SAFEVANTAGE EXPEDITED CREDIT $ pass through 0.00010

 08208 100154 SV PREMIUM DEPOSIT CREDIT Location 5.00000

 General Account Services

 08025 100015 MISCELLANEOUS CREDITS POSTED Transaction 0.55000

 24250 150340 OVERDRAFT CHARGE-PAID ITEM Transaction 35.00000

 CK049 010310 DDA STATEMENT - PAPER Statement 5.00000

 CK030 010410 CLIENT ANALYSIS STATEMENT-PAPER Statement 5.00000

 CK672 010630 BANK CONFIRMATION AUDIT REQUEST Request 65.00000

 CK673 010640 CREDIT RATING AUDIT REQUEST Inquiry 50.00000

 Gen Acct Services Recoupment

 IAMTH 000230 RECOUPMENT MONTHLY Deposit assessment 0.12750

 

Additional Service Charges for Disclosure

Customer Price Report 10 of 13
819

Item 19.



 

 

 WF AFP

 Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

 Image Delivery

 64104 151350 IFI MAINTENANCE PER PRODUCT Customer ID 75.00000

 27707 400340 CEO SEARCH Inquiry 0.16000

 12812 151352 CEO IMAGE VIEW < 90 DAYS - ITEM Image retrieved 0.01000

 12815 151352 CEO IMAGE VIEW > 90 DAYS - ITEM Image retrieved 0.01000

 MSC-TM

 03303 050410 LBX PKG US MAIL DELIVERY $ pass through 1.00000

 22222 150810 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-VENDOR Account 0.01000

 

 Paper Checks Deposited

 002 100225 DEPOSITED CHECK Check deposited 0.15000

 Wholesale Lockbox

 36703 050135 LBX MATCHING FILE BASE Lockbox 60.00000

 03102 050000 LBX REMIT PROCESSED CASH Remittance 12.00000

 03611 050000 LBX REMIT PROCESSED EXPRESS MAIL Remittance 2.50000

 36731 050530 LBX CORRESPONDENCE OR REJECTS Envelope 0.70000

 52035 050425 LBX IMAGE FILE IMPORT Image 0.03000

 36745 050129 LBX VALUE ADDED KEYING Keystroke 0.02500

 34222 05031Z LBX CEO TIR REPORT PER ITEM Item accessed 0.05000

 ACH Fraud Filter

 34334 251050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP MTHLYBASE Account 10.00000

 34338 251052 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER STOP - ITEM Transaction filtered 5.00000

 34335 251053 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW - ITEM Transaction filtered 5.00000

 ACH Origination

 ES216 250102 ACH SAME DAY Transaction 0.50000

 ES206 250120 ACH ORIGINATED - ADDENDA REC Addenda record 0.05500

 ES254 250501 ACH ORIGINATION/REJECT DATA - FILE Batch/file 3.50000

 ES240 250310 ACH RETURN ITEM-REDEPOSITED Transaction 6.50000

 ES362 250311 ACH RETURN ITEM - DISHONORED Transaction 6.50000

 06507 250312 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED -ELECTRONIC Return 6.50000

 06511 250312 ACH RETURN UNAUTHORIZED QUALITY FEE Return 5.00000

 ES230 250620 ACH DELETE - ITEM Delete 10.00000

 ES361 250642 ACH REVERSAL - ITEM Reversal 10.00000

 06510 251010 ACH AUTHORIZATION INVESTIGATION Investigation 50.00000

 06508 251010 ACH COMPLEX SPECIAL INVESTIGATION Hour 210.00000

 ES231 250620 ACH DELETE/REVERSE - BATCH/FILE Batch/file 15.00000

 34285 250703 CEO ACH HYP ITM DET INQ - PER ITEM Inquiry 1.50000

 

 

 

Customer Price Report 11 of 13
820

Item 19.



 

 

 WF AFP

 Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

 

 ACH Receive

 ES349 250220 ACH RECEIVED ADDENDA Addenda record 0.03000

 Account Reconcilement

 34421 400272 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) / ITEM Transaction 0.00500

 34420 400051 ARP STMTS & RPTS (CSV/EXCEL) BASE Account 5.00000

 34337 200201 CEO CHECK ISSUES-ITEM Check issued 0.30000

 12687 209999 ARP AGED ISSUE RECORDS ON FILE-ITEM Record 0.02000

 12609 200310 ARP PAPER STATEMENT/REPORT DELIVERY Statement 20.00000

 12684 200310 ARP PAPER STMT/REPORT MONTHLY BASE Account 20.00000

 12615 200304 ARP PDF STMTS/RPTS-TRANSMISSION Account 50.00000

 Desktop Deposit/Electronic Check

 790 100230 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - DEP ADJUSTMENT Adjustment 18.00000

 General Disbursement Services

 22030 150412 STOP PAYMENT - AUTO RENEWAL Stop payment 4.00000

 12677 150300 MICR CHECK REJECTS >1% THROUGH 2% Reject 0.80000

 12678 150300 MICR CHECK REJECTS OVER 2% Reject 1.75000

 22225 150240 CHECK CASHING THRESHOLD MO BASE Account 10.00000

 MD091 150240 PYMT AUTH MAX CHECK MTHLY BASE Account 17.00000

 12670 150410 STOP PAYMENT - ONLINE Stop payment 12.00000

 12671 150420 STOP PAYMENT - OPERATOR ASSISTED Stop payment 30.00000

 12673 150411 STOP PAYMENT - RANGE Stop payment 15.00000

 Incoming Wire Transfers

 ES030 350300 WIRE IN TO USA ACCT-USA DOMESTIC Transfer 10.00000

 ES191 350320 WIRE IN XBDR CORRESP BANK-USD/FX Transfer 7.00000

 ES076 350310 WIRE IN XBDR USA ACCT-USD OR FX Transfer 20.00000

 18030 350330 WIRE IN REPAIR Exception 9.00000

 Positive Pay

 DS191 150122 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM Check paid 0.01000

 DS194 150299 PAYEE VALIDATION MANUAL REVIEW/ITEM Check 0.25000

 34336 150724 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION - CEO IMAGE Image retrieved 0.50000

 12908 150310 POS PAY CHECKS WITH NO ISSUE RECORD Check 0.50000

 12505 150222 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION CHECKS RETND Check returned 10.00000

 12903 150310 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTIONS - ITEM Exception 5.00000

 12906 150401 POSPAY VERIFICATION CALL-CASHED Call 20.00000

 Returned Items

 CK064 100416 CEO RETURN ITEM SERVICE MTHLY BASE Customer ID 0.00000

 CK081 100401 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INST MTHLY BASE Account 38.00000

 

Customer Price Report 12 of 13
821

Item 19.



 

 

 WF AFP

 Code Code Service Description Charge Basis Price

 Wires Origination and Reporting

 18901 350115 WIRE OUT XBDR FX CEO/API Transfer 25.00000

 ES141 350120 WIRE BOOK TRANSFER CEO/API Transfer 4.00000

 18602 350560 WIRE INVESTIGATION Investigation 65.00000

 18031 350541 WIRE OUT REPAIR Exception 9.00000

 Branch Services

 08172 100501 ADJ FOR CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH Adjustment 13.00000

 CK161 100006 CASH DEPOSITED IN WF BRANCH Dollar 0.00300

 CK771 100010 LOOSE COIN DEPOSITED IN BRANCH Coin bag 10.00000

 CK197 100040 CASH ORDER FEE IN A WF BRANCH Transaction 9.00000

 CK131 100040 ROLLED COIN FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH Coin roll 0.50000

 CK141 100040 CURRENCY FURNISHED BY WF BRANCH Dollar 0.00300

 22810 150500 WF CHK CASHED FOR NONACCT HOLDER Check cashed 0.00000

 08052 100006 BRANCH DEPOSIT Deposit 3.50000

 22812 019999 NON ACCT HOLDER CHK CASHING - PAYEE Check cashed 0.00000

 

 Other Non TM

 ODACT 000210 DAILY USE OF UNCOLL FUNDS-ACCT LVL $ pass through 1.00000

 Sweep

 34110 450405 SWEEP ACCOUNT POSITION REPORT Sweep master account10.00000

 22087 450403 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUALFND ELECTNIC Statement 0.00000

 22094 450200 SWEEP STAGECOACH MUTUAL FND MO BASE Account 0.00000

 Setup Charges

 64100 151357 IFI SETUP PER PRODUCT Customer ID 0.00000

 03850 050138 LOCKBOX SET UP Lockbox 0.00000

 03082 050137 LBX PROGRAMMING Hour 100.00000

 34375 251120 CEO ACH ORIG NEW CO ID SETUP Setup 0.00000

 06092 251001 ACH ORIGINATION NEW COMP ID-SET UP Setup 0.00000

 18325 359999 WIRE ACCOUNT ADD CEO/API Account 0.00000

 

 

 

 

 For additional service definitions, please contact your Treasury Management Sales Consultant or visit:

 www.wellsfargo.com/accountanalysis

Customer Price Report 13 of 13
822

Item 19.



 

 

 
© 2022 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 

Revised March  2022 

Master Agreement for  

Treasury Management Services 
 

The Service Documentation contains the terms under which Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and the banks, branches or 

subsidiaries listed in Appendix X (collectively, “Bank”) provide you treasury management services (each, a “Service”). 

“You,” “your” or “yours” refer to the Bank customer identified on the Acceptance of Services that is signed when you enroll 

in a Service (“Acceptance”). The terms “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the Bank. Other capitalized terms used in this Master 

Agreement for Treasury Management Services (“Agreement”) are defined in this document. 

 

You and we agree: 

 

1. Service documentation. The Service Documentation contains the terms governing each Service and includes: 

a. The Service Description (which contains terms and conditions applicable to the specific Service), 

b. The Acceptance (which indicates your acceptance of the Service Documentation), 

c. This Agreement (which contains terms and conditions applicable to all Services), 

d. The account agreement governing the account(s) (each, an “Account”) you use in connection with the Service, 

e. The Product Enrollment Form (which contains set-up information for each Service in which you are enrolling), and 

f. User Guides (which include Terms of Use, software, software licenses, price schedules, specifications, 

instructions, and notices). 

 

The documents and individual provisions of the Service Documentation are intended to be read together as one 

agreement between you and us. This Agreement and the Service Descriptions for Services you enroll in are posted at our 

Commercial Electronic Office® (CEO®) portal. If there is a conflict among the documents that are part of the Service 

Documentation, they will govern in the order listed above. Your use of a Service confirms your receipt of, and agreement 

to be bound by, this Agreement and all Service Documentation. 

 

2. Services. You and we will agree upon the Services to be provided and the start date for each Service. Each Service is 

subject to the approval by our applicable branch or subsidiary.  We will notify you when you have completed all 

requirements for enrolling in the Service and the Service is ready for you to use. 

 

3. Changes to services. We may change (or add to) the terms and fees in the Service Documentation at any time. If a 

change to a Service requires a change to the Service Documentation, we will post the document(s) with the change 

on the CEO portal. When required by Applicable Law, we will notify you of the change. If you continue to use a 

Service after a change takes effect, you will be bound by the change. As used in this Agreement, the term “Applicable 

Law” means all applicable laws (including common or customary laws), statutes, constitutions, policies, decrees, 

judgments, treaties, regulations, directives, by-laws, rulings, orders or operating circulars governing our activities 

and/or any Transaction (see section 6-a) governed by this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the funds transfer 

system and clearing and settlement house rules. 

 

4. Term and termination. Unless a Service is terminated in accordance with the Service Documentation, this Agreement 

and each Service will continue in effect until terminated by either party upon 30 days’ prior written notice to the other 

party.  When a Service is terminated for any reason, the Service Documentation governing the terminated Service is 

also terminated.  

 

We may suspend or terminate any Service: 

823

Item 19.



Page 2  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

a. After we notify you of a breach of any provision of the Service Documentation or any other agreement with us, 

and you fail to cure the breach (if it can be cured) within 15 days of the date of the notice; or 

b. Without prior notice to you if: 

i. We reasonably suspect that an Account associated with a Service has been compromised or otherwise 

subject to irregular, unauthorized, fraudulent, or illegal activity, 

ii. You become subject to any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding, or any receivership, liquidation, 

reorganization, or other similar proceeding, or you enter into any agreement or proceeding for voluntary 

liquidation, dissolution, composition with or assignment for the benefit of creditors or other winding up, 

iii. We determine in our sole discretion that continuing to provide a Service may place us at risk of financial 

loss or result in an unacceptable credit exposure,  

iv. Any guaranty of your obligations to us (“Guaranty”) is terminated, revoked, or its validity contested by the 

guarantor (“Guarantor”),  

v. We determine in our sole discretion that a material adverse change has occurred in your ability to perform 

your obligations under the Service Documentation, or in the ability of a Guarantor to perform its 

obligations under a Guaranty, or 

vi. The Account necessary to provide a Service is closed.  

 

The termination of a Service will not affect your or our respective rights and obligations with respect to the Service(s) 

provided before the termination including without limitation Transactions. We will not be liable to you for any losses or 

damages you may incur as a result of any termination of any Service or termination or restriction of any CEO portal 

access rights under section 9(d) below. 

 

5. Service fees. You will pay us the fees described in the Service Documentation and any taxes applicable to each 

Service, however designated, but excluding taxes based on our net income. We may debit your Account for any fees 

not covered by earnings credits and any taxes that are due, or we may send you an invoice for these amounts, which 

you will promptly pay. Our charges and fees are in the applicable fee schedule for Services used in connection with 

your Account.   

 

6. Security procedures. 

a. Unless otherwise agreed, you agree that “Security Procedure” is the applicable security procedure described in 

the Service Documentation for your Initiation Method for the Service, which we will use to verify the authenticity of 

a Transaction. The term “Initiation Method” refers to the method we offer in the product enrollment form (“Set-up 

Form”) or other Service Documentation for delivering your Transaction instructions to us with respect to the 

applicable Service and includes any applicable transmission protocols. The term “Transaction” means (i) any 

funds transfer, payment order, or payment instruction (including any communication cancelling or amending an 

instruction), and (ii) any instruction, data or other information which we receive in your name with respect to a 

funds transfer. The purpose of the Security Procedure is to verify the authenticity of the Transaction. We will not 

use the Security Procedure to detect an erroneous or duplicate Transaction. You will be responsible for any 

erroneous or duplicate transaction we receive in your name. You agree to be bound by each Transaction, whether 

or not authorized by you, issued in your name and accepted by us in compliance with the Security Procedure for 

the Service.  

b. You agree that each Security Procedure for the Initiation Method in the Set-up Form or other Service 

Documentation for each of the Services (a) best meets your requirements with regard to the size, type and 

frequency of your Transactions, and (b) is commercially reasonable.  

 

7. Confidential information. Unless otherwise stated in the Service Documentation, “Confidential Information” means all 

(a) User Guides and Terms of Use, and (b) Security Procedures, passwords, codes, security devices and related 

instructions. You will not acquire any ownership interest in or rights to Confidential Information as a result of your use 

of any Service. 

 

  You will: 

a. Maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information,  

824

Item 19.



Page 3  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

b. Not disclose (or permit your employees or agents to disclose), copy, transfer, sublicense, or otherwise 

make any of it available to any person or entity, other than your employees who have a need to use the 

Confidential Information in connection with the applicable Service, and  

c. Not decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, modify, or create derivative works of any Confidential 

Information. 

 

You will notify us immediately if you know of or suspect any unauthorized disclosure, possession, use, or knowledge 

(each, an “Unauthorized Use”) of any Confidential Information. If you (or your employees or agents) are responsible 

for the Unauthorized Use, you will, at your expense, promptly take all actions, including initiating court proceedings to 

recover possession and prevent further Unauthorized Use of the Confidential Information. You will also compensate 

us for any injury caused to us as a result of the Unauthorized Use.  

 

8. Currency conversion. When your instructions require us to convert the amount of a  Transaction  from the currency in 

which the Account is denominated (“Account Currency”) to another currency (“Foreign Currency”), we will do so using 

the Applicable Exchange Rate in effect at the time we execute your Transaction. “Applicable Exchange Rate” means 

the exchange rate we set and use for you when we convert one currency to another currency and includes a markup. 

The markup factors include costs incurred, market risks and our desired return. The exchange rate we provide to you 

may be different from the exchange rates you see elsewhere. Foreign exchange rates are dynamic, and rates 

fluctuate over time based on market conditions, liquidity, and risks.  

 

If a financial institution designated to receive the funds does not pay the beneficiary specified in the Transaction, and 

the funds are returned to us, we will not be liable to you for a sum greater than the amount of the Transaction after we 

have converted it from the Foreign Currency to the Account Currency using the Applicable Exchange Rate in effect at 

the time the funds are returned to us. You accept the risks of any change in the Applicable Exchange Rate between 

the time you request a Transaction and the time the Transaction is either completed or is unwound due to a 

cancellation, an amendment, a rejection, or a return. 

 

9. CEO portal. 

a. Description of the CEO portal. The CEO portal is our electronic banking portal that is accessed -through the 

Internet. Your Authorized Agents (defined below) may use the CEO portal to access (i) Services in which you 

have separately enrolled and (ii) third-party sites we may make available through the CEO portal. We offer 

different channels through which you may access the CEO portal, including personal computers and mobile 

devices. We may add or eliminate channels at any time. A Service or third party site accessible through one 

channel may not be accessible through another channel. 

b. Access to the CEO portal. When you enroll in the CEO portal, and as we may determine is necessary after 

enrollment, we will provide Log-On Credentials (defined below) to the persons who are authorized to access the 

CEO portal on your behalf (each, an “Authorized Agent”). Log-On Credentials mean one or more secure methods 

we provide to access the Services and may include user IDs, passwords, token IDs, and other methods that we 

adopt from time to time. We have no obligation to separately verify or authenticate any communication we receive 

in your name through the CEO portal, whether or not it was actually from an Authorized Agent. You assume the 

entire risk of (i) unauthorized use of your Log-On Credentials and (ii) unencrypted electronic transmissions. 

c. Administration of the CEO portal. We offer two options for administering the CEO portal: (i) Administration and (ii) 

Bank administration. 

i. Administration. If you enroll in the Administration option, there are three categories of Authorized Agents: 

Company Administrator, Administrator, or User. Unless you and we separately agree, we will provide Log-

On Credentials only to your initial Company Administrator(s) who will (a) assign Log-On Credentials to 

other individuals and (b) designate those individuals as one of the following: 

(1) A Company Administrator, who may perform all functions of your initial Company Administrator, 

(2) An Administrator, who may perform all functions of an Administrator including designating other 

Administrator(s) and User(s), or 

(3) A User, who may access the Services designated by a Company Administrator or an 

Administrator, as well as those Services in which we permit a User to self-enroll. 

 

825

Item 19.



Page 4  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

Each Company Administrator and Administrator has the authority to enroll you in additional Services. In 

addition to your use of Administration as described in this subsection, you may request that we assign 

Log-On Credentials to Users that you designate in writing to us. Your designation to us will specify the 

Services which the User is authorized to access in addition to those Services in which we permit a User to 

self-enroll. 

 

ii. Bank administration. For the Bank administration option, there is one category of Authorized Agent: 

Users. We will assign Log-On Credentials to each User you designate. 

 

You will promptly revoke the Log-On Credentials of any Authorized Agent or User when that individual is no 

longer authorized to access the CEO portal. If you notify us in writing to revoke the Log-On Credentials of an 

Authorized Agent or User, we will have a reasonable time after receiving your written notification to revoke the 

individual’s access. 

 

d. Terminating access. We may terminate or restrict any Authorized Agent’s access to any Service through the CEO 

portal if we determine such use: 

i. Does not comply with any term applicable to the CEO portal, 

ii. Is not permitted by Applicable Law,  

iii. Is not authorized by you or any third party whose authorization we believe is necessary, or  

iv. Should be denied for your or our protection (without us agreeing to or being required to make this 

determination in any circumstance). 

e. Financial information. Financial market data, quotes, news, research, and other financial information developed 

by third parties and transmitted to us ("Financial Information") may be available to you at the CEO portal. The 

posting of any Financial Information or any other information or data at the CEO portal is not a recommendation 

by us of any particular Service or action. We do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of any Financial 

Information, nor are we responsible for (i) the actions or omissions of the third parties developing or transmitting 

Financial Information or (ii) any decision you make or action you take by relying on any Financial Information. 

f. Miscellaneous.  For purposes of this section 9 only, “Service” includes each service and product we or any of our 

affiliates offer that you access through the CEO portal. This section 9 will survive the termination of any Service or 

this Agreement. 

 

10. Alerts.   

a. Non-subscribed alerts. When you enroll in the CEO portal or other channels or Services, you consent to receiving 

by email or other delivery channels, servicing messages that we determine are important or urgent. You do not 

need to subscribe to receive such alerts and you do not pay additional service fees. 

b. Subscribed alerts.  You may also enroll in fee-based alerts for applicable Services so that you can receive 

messages you subscribe to at the intervals and through delivery channels that you choose.  

 

11. Liability and indemnification. 

a. We are not obligated to honor, in whole or in part, any Transaction or other instruction that: 

i. Exceeds the available balance in the Account, unless otherwise provided in the Service Documentation, 

ii. Does not comply with the Service Documentation or our applicable policies, procedures, or practices 

made available to you, 

iii. We have reason to believe may not have been duly authorized, should not be honored for our or your 

protection, or involves funds subject to a hold, dispute, restriction, or legal process, or  

iv. Would possibly result in us not complying with Applicable Law.  

b. Neither we nor our software vendors make any express or implied representations or warranties with respect to 

the Services or any software used in connection with the Services, including any warranty as to the 

merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, other than those expressly set forth in the Service 

Documentation.   

c. Any claim, action, or proceeding against us for losses or damages arising from a Service, must be brought within 

one year from the date of the act or omission, except as otherwise stated in the account agreement governing the 

Account.  

826

Item 19.



Page 5  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

d. We will have no liability for our failure to perform or delay in performing a Service if the failure or delay is due to 

circumstances beyond our reasonable control. If we determine that any funds transfer or communications 

network, Internet service provider, or other system used to provide a Service is unavailable, inaccessible, or 

otherwise unsuitable for use by you or us, we may, upon notice to you, suspend or discontinue the affected 

Service. 

e. We will only be liable to you for actual damages incurred as a direct result of our failure to exercise reasonable 

care in providing the Services. Reasonable care requires only that we follow standards that do not vary 

unreasonably from the general standards followed by similarly situated banks. Our policies and procedures are 

general internal guidelines for our use and do not establish a higher standard of care for us than otherwise 

established under Applicable Law. A mere clerical error or an honest mistake will not be considered a failure by 

us to perform any of our obligations. Our liability to you will be limited to an amount not greater than 10 times our 

fees incurred in the calendar month immediately before the calendar month in which the loss or damages were 

incurred (or, if no fees were incurred in that month, our fees incurred in the month in which the losses or damages 

were incurred).   

f. Except in the case of our negligence or intentional misconduct, you will indemnify and hold us, our directors, 

officers, employees and agents (“Representatives”) harmless from all losses or damages that arise out of:  

i. The performance of a Service in compliance with the Service Documentation, including any warranty we 

are required to make to a third party in connection with a Service, 

ii. An act or omission of any of your agents, couriers, or Authorized Agents, and 

iii. If the Service includes a license or sublicense of any software, any use or distribution of the software by 

you or any person gaining access to the software through you that is inconsistent with the license or 

sublicense.   

 

You will promptly provide us with written proof of loss, and notify us if you become aware of any third party claim 

related to a Service. You will cooperate fully (and at your own expense) with us in recovering a loss. If we 

reimburse you, we or our designee will be subrogated to all of your rights (i.e., we will be entitled to assert any 

legal rights you had relating to the claim). 

 

g. Except as expressly provided otherwise in the Service Documentation, neither party nor its Representatives will 

be liable to the other party for:  

i. Any special, consequential, incidental (including court costs and attorneys’ fees), indirect, or punitive 

losses or damages, or 

ii. Business interruption, loss of profits, loss of business, loss of revenue, loss of goodwill, loss of 

opportunity, loss or injury to reputation, or loss of anticipated savings, whether any claim is based on 

contract or tort, or whether the likelihood of these losses or damages was known to the other party and 

regardless of the form of the claim or action. 

h. When you send payments on behalf of your third party customers, you agree you are solely liable to your 

customers for any and all losses those customers may suffer. We exclude all and any liability of whatever nature 

(including those losses detailed in subsection g above) arising out of your relationship with your customer. 

 

12. Governing law. The Service Documentation will be governed by: (a) U.S. federal law and (b) the law of (i) the U.S. 

state in which the office of Bank that maintains the Account is located or, if there is no such state or no account 

associated with such Service, (ii) the State of New York, without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws 

(“Governing Law”). 

 

13. Arbitration agreement. Upon demand by you or us, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or 

the breach thereof, must be submitted to arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) 

under its Commercial Arbitration Rules, and must be heard before three arbitrators if the amount in dispute is U.S. 

$5,000,000 or more or its equivalent in any other currency, and before one arbitrator for amounts in dispute of less 

than U.S. $5,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currency. Arbitration will proceed in a location selected by AAA in 

the state of the applicable Governing Law, and if there is no such state, the place of arbitration must be New York, 

NY. The language of the arbitration must be English. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be 

entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This arbitration requirement does not limit the right of you or us to: (a) 

827

Item 19.



Page 6  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

exercise self-help remedies including setoff or (b) obtain provisional or ancillary remedies such as injunctive relief or 

attachment, before, during or after the pendency of any arbitration proceeding. This exclusion does not constitute a 

waiver of the right or obligation of you or us to submit any dispute to arbitration hereunder, including those arising 

from the exercise of the actions detailed in (a) and (b) of this section.  

 

14. Jurisdiction. For any proceedings regarding this Agreement (not subject to arbitration as provided in this Agreement), 

you hereby irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Borough of Manhattan, New York City, in the 

State of New York or the federal courts located there and irrevocably agree that all claims in relating to the proceeding 

may be heard or determined in those courts.  

 

15. Miscellaneous.  

a. Severability. Any portion of the Service Documentation which is inconsistent with Applicable Law or Governing 

Law will be deemed modified and applied in a manner consistent therewith, and we will incur no liability to you as 

a result of the inconsistency or modification and application to any dispute regarding the Service Documentation. 

If any portion or provision of the Service Documentation is deemed unenforceable, it will not affect the 

enforceability or validity of the remaining Service Documentation nor the enforceability or validity of that portion or 

provision under the law of any other jurisdiction.   

b. Entire agreement. The Service Documentation (and any documents referred to therein): 

i. Constitutes the entire agreement between you and us regarding the Services we provide for all Accounts 

opened with us, and 

ii. Supersedes and extinguishes all prior agreements, understandings, representations and warranties of 

any nature (including requests for proposals and other sales material), whether oral or written, between 

you and us relating to any of our Services (including any other Master Agreement for Treasury 

Management Services, but excluding the current Commercial Account Agreement or Global Commercial 

Account Agreement, as applicable).  

c. Electronic agreement. To facilitate execution, the Service Documentation may be executed by a party in the form 

of an “Electronic Record” (as defined in the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act at 15 

U.S.C. §7001 et seq. [“ESIGN Act”]). The Service Documentation may be executed in as many counterparts as 

may be required to reflect all parties’ approval, and all counterparts will collectively constitute a single agreement. 

An “Electronic Signature” (as defined in the ESIGN Act) that can be authenticated will constitute an original and 

binding signature of a party. The fact that a document is in the form of an Electronic Record or is signed using an 

Electronic Signature will not, in and of itself, be grounds for invalidating such document. 

d. No waiver. Neither our failure nor any delay by us in exercising any right or remedy will be deemed to be a waiver 

of the right or remedy. No course of dealing or waiver of any right on one occasion will constitute a modification of 

the Service Documentation or be a waiver of that right on a subsequent occasion.  

e. Third party beneficiaries. Except as otherwise provided in the Service Documentation, no person or entity other 

than the parties to this Agreement will be deemed to be a third party beneficiary under the Service 

Documentation. 

f. Financial condition. You will provide us promptly upon our request any existing financial statements or other 

information pertaining to your financial condition or any previously unprepared financial statements which we may 

require you to prepare and/or to be audited or reviewed by independent certified public accountants acceptable to 

us. 

g. Your representations and warranties. You represent and warrant that: (i) you will not use any Service in a manner 

that would violate any Applicable Law by you or us; (ii) if you employ an agent in connection with its use of any 

Service, you represent and warrant to us that: (1) your governing body has duly authorized the agent; (2) you will 

exercise appropriate controls to ensure each authorized agent does not exceed the authority granted to it; and (3) 

you will preserve the confidentiality of the Log-On Credentials and immediately notify us if you become aware or 

suspect that any Log-On Credential may have been compromised. 

h. Use of names. You and we will not use each other’s name or refer to our relationship in any solicitation, marketing 

material, advertisement, news release, or other written, online or oral communication without specific prior written 

consent for each such use or release, except that we may use your name as a reference in service proposals if 

we obtain your prior written approval for such use. 

828

Item 19.



Page 7  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

i. Notices and communications. Either party may provide notice to the other party by mail, personal delivery, or 

electronic transmission.  

i. You will notify us promptly in writing of any change in your name, Address, legal status, or any other 

changes relevant to the conduct of the Account or affecting your business relationship with us.  

ii. The term “Address” as used in this Agreement refers to a mailing or electronic address.  

iii. You will use the Address where your relationship manager or other manager is located and will address 

any notice to the attention of the manager.  

iv. Each party will have a reasonable time after receipt of any notice to act on it.  

v. Any communication or notice to us from your agent about your use of a Service will be deemed to be a 

communication from you, and you authorize us to communicate with your agent about any such 

communication or Service.  

vi. We are entitled to rely on any communication or notice from you that we believe in good faith was 

authorized by your authorized representative or Authorized Agent and, we will have no obligation to verify 

or authenticate an identity of a sender or signature on any notice or communication, except as expressly 

provided in the Service Documentation. 

 

16. Survival. Sections 7, 9, 11 - 15 will survive termination of the Services or this Agreement. 

  

829

Item 19.



Page 8  Master Agreement for Treasury Management Services 

 

Appendix X 
Applicable Branches or Subsidiaries of Bank 
 

 
1. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., UK Branch 

 
2. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Canadian Branch 

 
3.  Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Shanghai Branch   
 
4.  Wells  Fargo Bank, National Association, Hong Kong Branch 

830

Item 19.



Authorization Certificate 
Deposit Accounts and Treasury Management Services 

Page 1 of 1
© 2022 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved. Confidential when completed.  
Authorization Certificate –  Non-personal accounts   
EDOCS-#22815818 (Revised 04-06-2022) 

The undersigned hereby certifies to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Bank) that:
1.  

(Account holder's complete legal entity/company name), a

(description of Account holder's business entity type)
(“Customer”), has authorized the undersigned to make the certifications in this Certificate on Customer’s behalf. 

2.  
Name Title Country of  

permanent residence
Business  
phone number

Business email 
address

is referred to in this Certificate as an “Authorized Representative” with full authority, acting alone, to: 

a) enter into those agreement(s) that Bank requires regarding opening, operating, and closing deposit accounts 
for Customer at Bank (each, an Account) and enrolling in, using, and terminating Bank services including 
Bank's non-deposit sweep services used in connection with the Account(s) (each, a Service);

b) authorize transactions of all types on the Accounts and instruct Bank regarding Accounts and Services; and
c) designate individuals as additional Authorized Representatives.

3.  This Certificate reflects actions duly taken by Customer in accordance with its governing documents. It shall continue 
in effect until Bank has received and had a reasonable time to act on Customer's written notice revoking it, which 
shall be effective only as to actions which are taken by Customer thereafter. Actions authorized in this Certificate but 
performed prior to its execution are approved and ratified.

Certified to:

By/Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Tax Identification Number of Customer:
(TIN of the Account holder as assigned by the IRS)

Municipal Government

 
831

Item 19.



© 2020 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All rights reserved. 
Certification of Official Custodian(s)  - Government Depositor (EDOCS #19664833 - Rev  - 12/2020)

595711 (Rev 00 - 01/21) Page 1 of 2 

Certification of Official Custodian(s) -  
Government Depositor

Bank Use Only:

ECN WCIS ID Account Number

1.  Introduction.
Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 330.15, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) separately insures each official 
custodian of funds deposited with an insured institution. The purpose of this certification is to confirm to  
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Bank) the official custodian(s) of the government depositor identified below. This certification 
does not establish or confer transactional or other authority with respect to any account or related services maintained by 
the government depositor with Bank.

2.  Definitions.
For purposes of this certification, the following terms have the following meanings:

"Government depositor" includes the following 

(i) the United States, 
(ii) any state of the United States, or any county, municipality, or political subdivision thereof, 
(iii) the District of Columbia, 
(iv) the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico or any other territory of the United States, or any county, municipality or 

political subdivision thereof, or
(v) an Indian tribe (as defined in 25 U.S.C. 1452(c)) or any agency thereof.

"Official custodian" means an official of the government depositor that has plenary authority, including control, over 
funds owned by the government depositor that the official is appointed or elected to serve. Control of funds owned by a 
government depositor includes possession, as well as the authority to establish accounts for such funds in insured 
depository institutions and to make deposits, withdrawals, and disbursements of such funds.

3.  Certification.
The undersigned authorized representative of the government depositor identified below certifies to Bank that he or she 
is duly authorized by the government depositor to provide this certification on its behalf, and that the official(s) of the 
government depositor listed (by title) below is or are its official custodian(s):

Note: Please only list the official title(s) (such as Treasurer, Comptroller, Chief Financial Officer, etc.) of the official 
custodian(s). Do not list the name(s) of the official custodian(s). You are not required to list more than one (1) 
official custodian. 

Official Custodian Title Official Custodian Title

Official Custodian Title Official Custodian Title

Official Custodian Title Official Custodian Title

Official Custodian Title Official Custodian Title

 
832

Item 19.



Treasury Management | Certification of Official Custodian(s)  - Government Depositor (EDOCS #19664833 - Rev  - 12/2020)

595711 (Rev 00 - 01/21) Page 2 of 2 

4.  Signatures.
This certification may be signed using an "Electronic Signature", as defined in the Electronic Signatures in Global and 
National Commerce Act.

Certified on behalf of:

(Name of Government Depositor)

(Employer Identification Number  
 of Government Depositor)

Certified by:

(Signature)

(Name)

(Title)

(Date)

 
833

Item 19.



Treasury 
Management

© 2022 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved. 
Deposit products are offered through Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Member FDIC. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is a banking affiliate of Wells Fargo & Company. 

City of Beaumont
Response to Request for Proposals for Banking and Merchant Services

July 22, 2022

834

Item 19.



Agenda

• Introductions

• Beaumont’s Focused Initiatives

• Wells Fargo in your Community and the Government Sector
– A Message from our Division Executive: Kathleen McClure-Wight

• Improving your Integration

• Implementation Timelines

• Review of Current Services

• Analysis Review and Sweep Options

• The Future of your Payables and Receivables

• CEO Online Demo

• Q&A

2

835

Item 19.



Introductions to your Local Government Team

Relationship Banking

Jamie O’Connell
Relationship Manager
jamie.Oconnell@wellsfargo.com

Kathleen McClure-Wight
Division Executive
kathleen.s.mcclure-wight@wellsfargo.com

Anna Gonzales
Relationship Associate
anna.l.gonzales@wellsfargo.com

Treasury Management

Todd Reed
Merchant Services Product 
Consultant
todd.reed2@wellsfargo.com

Gurleen Pannu                                 
Treasury Management Consultant          
gurleen.pannu@wellsfargo.com

Jessie Volz
Treasury Management Analyst
jessie.volz@wellsfargo.com

3

836

Item 19.



City of Beaumont wants Wells Fargo will deliver

1High levels of customer service with single points 
of contact

A dedicated relationship team that specializes in the 
government sector

2Improved integration with its systems

3Clear and fair charging structure
Multiple ways to access activity, fees, statements, and 
notices

4A full-service and easy-to-use configurable online 
portal with ease of access to banking data and 
transactions

A single sign-on portal that delivers commercial services at 
your fingertips

A thorough Business Process Review to access automation 
strategies specific to the City’s systems 

837

Item 19.



Wells Fargo in your community | Beaumont, CA

5

• 2 banking locations, including 1 in LMI* 
communities

• 5 ATMs, 2 in LMI communities

Our people Our locations Our community

• 41 team members live here

• 54 team members work here

1Community Impact and CRA reflects 2020 data
2Some community development activity cannot be tracked at the city level
3Community development activity is subject to change as updates are received
*LMI = low to moderate income
Our people and location information as of June 2022

Charitable contributions1

Foundation giving Total grants $ amount

Human services 1 5,250

838

Item 19.



Source: FDIC Deposit Market Share Report as of June 30, 2021

Wells Fargo in your community | Beaumont, CA

6

Home mortgage lending in your community1

Community lending1,2,3

• 136 mortgage loans extending $30.8 million in credit

– Of that, 3 were in LMI communities, providing $520,000 in credit and 29 
mortgage loans were made to LMI borrowers, providing $5.9 million in credit

• 80 small business loans extending $4.3 million in credit

– Of that, 17 were in LMI communities, providing $1.3 million in credit

Total loans $ amount

Home purchases 32 8,128,221

LMI borrower 13 2,777,045

Home improvement 0 0

Home equity 0 0

Home refinance 71 16,639,065

LMI borrower 15 2,997,667
Wells Fargo continues to be among highest credit rated U.S. banks

Bank Moody’s S&P Fitch

Wells Fargo Bank, NA Aa1(cr) A+ AA-

JP Morgan Chase Bank Aa1(cr) A+ AA

Bank of America Aa2(cr) A+ AA-

US Bank Aa2(cr) AA- AA-

Citibank Aa3(cr) A+ A+

Deposit share Rank # Total deposits ($000)

20.67% 3 201,365

(cr) – Reflects Moody’s Counterparty Risk Assessment
Source: Bloomberg as of January 21, 2021

Credit ratings

FDIC deposit market share

4Community Impact and CRA reflects 2020 data
5Mortgage includes home purchase, home improvement, home refinance, other purpose, NA and originated and purchased loans.
6Totals include low, moderate, middle, upper and unclassified income levels.

839

Item 19.



• Reducing costs and improving operational efficiency 

• Providing excellent service to taxpayers 

• Preventing impostor fraud and data breaches

• Financing infrastructure projects to keep up with 
changing landscape and maintenance backlogs

• Optimizing overall debt profile for low interest rate 
environment

• Maximizing investment returns and managing 
pension liabilities

We’re committed to the government sector

Your priorities Our abilities

• Customized account structure to maximize 
systematic, operational, and monitoring controls

• Technology efficiencies to free up resources for 
customized taxpayer-friendly solutions 

• Operational products to help mitigate fraud risks 
and protect public funds

• Products to enhance cash flow information 
including previous day and intraday reporting, 
controlled disbursement, and lockbox services 

79 government

relationship 
managers *

5,500
government

relationships *

$29 billion 
in deposits

$22.5 billion in 

commitments*

CRA 
overall rating of 

outstanding†

* Internal Wells Fargo analytics
† Community Reinvestment Act Performance Evaluation, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency,  February 4, 2019

840

Item 19.



Everything under 

one roof

Wells Fargo 
relationship team

General
Banking

Treasury 
Management 

Purchasing
Card

Lockbox

Merchant 
services

Public 
Finance

Capital 
Markets

Direct
Purchase 
lending

Municipal 
Sales & 
Trading

Employee 
financial 

education

8

841

Item 19.



City of Beaumont wants Wells Fargo will deliver

1High levels of customer service with single points 
of contact

A dedicated relationship team that specializes in the 
government sector

2Improved integration with its systems

3Clear and fair charging structure
Multiple ways to access activity, fees, statements, and 
notices

4A full-service and easy-to-use configurable online 
portal with ease of access to banking data and 
transactions

A single sign-on portal that delivers commercial services at 
your fingertips

A thorough Business Process Review to access automation 
strategies specific to the City’s systems 

842

Item 19.



Business Process Review

10

Gaining insight and identifying potential risks 
in your processes

Observe, analyze, and consult

Focused on what matters 
most to you

Proven results benchmarked 
to your industry

843

Item 19.



• Credit Card processing available with Wells Fargo 
Merchant Services

• Approx $6.2MM in annual processing today

• Wells Fargo Merchant Services can also enhance your 
online payments with easy to pay utility billing.

• Beaumont has 51 cards issued today with CalCard; approx. $150,000 in annual 
spend.

• Our Commercial Card program is an all-in-one expense reporting platform

• We provide a complimentary vendor analysis to identify vendors that can be 
paid electronically.  

• Issue both Visa and Mastercard, whichever the City prefers

• Virtual card and vendor outreach is available with Payment Manager

• Platform linked to CEO for real-time card maintenance 

• Dual controls, delegated approvers for cardholders 

• Receipt images loaded to transactions via site or mobile device

• Commercial card is subject to credit approval and vendor analysis

Executive summary

• Wells Fargo offers in-house wholetail and wholesale lockbox 
processing

• Both Wholetail and Wholesale processing is available

• First class priority zip code offered to Beaumont payments

• Reporting options available to staff to reconcile daily transactions

• Coupon testing and file transmission can process concurrently with 
other services implemented. 

• 35K transition allowance to be used in first 12 mo.

• Locked pricing for a three year term 

• ECR offered at 70bps- a managed rate and variable based on market conditions 
and bank discretion

• What services you’re utilizing today

• Remote Deposit

• Lockbox

• Cash Vault

• Returned item with re-deposit instructions

• Positive pay with Payee Validation

• ACH Fraud Filter 

• ACH services

• Wire transfers

• Reports

• Merchant Services Banking 
services

Purchasing 
card

Merchant 
services

Lockbox

11

844

Item 19.



Implementation and timelines

845

Item 19.



How your relationship team will handle the onboarding process:

13

Jamie O’Connell
Relationship Manager

Gurleen Pannu
Treasury Management Consultant

• Primary contact and escalation point

• Finalize contract, terms, and requirements

• Oversees implementation and ongoing service

• Provide regular relationship reviews, credit and future needs

• Understands your business, current processes, and future goals

• Determine the right services and solutions

• Designs your new solutions

• Offers new ideas as technology advances 

Anna Gonzales
Relationship Associate

Jessie Volz
Treasury Management Sales Analyst

• Handles the new account process and documents submitted for electronic 
signatures

• Assists with all service requests related to maintenance and signer changes

• Covers Jamie O’Connell when she is in customer meetings and out of the 
office

• Submits research requests and any items that require further review

• Gathers required information for treasury services that are requested

• Submits request to implementation team for implementation of treasury 

services

• Manages progress of implementation process

• Assists with treasury pricing questions

846

Item 19.



|   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   | |   |   |   |

1 
week

2 
weeks

3 
weeks

4 
weeks

5 
weeks

6 
weeks

7 
weeks

8 
weeks

9 
weeks 

10 
weeks

11 
weeks

Document completion 
(service and legal agreements)

CEO®, online portal

Cash Vault 

Disbursement products (ARP/Positive Pay)

ACH

E-Box®

Customer training

Project close out

Pre-implementation planning

Product implementations

Training

Project close out/monitoring
Legend

Timelines represent standard SLA windows given full customer 
resource engagement (business and IT) and standard file formats

Sample project timeline

14

DDA

Lockbox

847

Item 19.



Smart Safe and Armored Pickup

848

Item 19.



Day 3Day 2

SafeVantage® service: Smart safe deposit processing

16

• Cash deposit information sent daily from 
safe to Wells Fargo for credit

• Customer receives credit for deposit

‐ Standard Credit: Deposits are posted 
the evening of Day 2

‐ Premium Intraday Credit: Deposits 
are posted on Day 2 by 8:00 a.m. local 
time - Intraday deposit reporting is 
also available on Day 2

• Cash deposit information available on 
vendor web-based reporting

• Store employees place deposit into 
safes

• Safes validate the total amount 
deposited

• At close of business, safes provide a 
printout of each deposit, along with 
the daily total

• Armored carrier pickup

• Delivery to a cash vault

• Any adjustments are sent within 48 hours 
of receipt at the vault – Significant drop 
in adjustment volume is expected

Wells Fargo information reporting 
is available

• BAI files and Treasury Information 
Reporting (TIR) options available

• Reporting contains different 
descriptions for

‐ Currency

‐ Manual drop

‐ Change order deposits

Day 1

Beyond

849

Item 19.



Lockbox

850

Item 19.



Wholesale lockbox

18

How it works

851

Item 19.



Virtual Lockbox

852

Item 19.



Virtual lockbox: How it works

20

Review
and submit 
deposit

02

Payment data
integrated 
with lockbox 
business rules

03

Receive 
accounts 
receivable 
transmission

04

Access
images 
and data

05

Receive
and scan checks 
and remittances

01

853

Item 19.



City of Beaumont wants Wells Fargo will deliver

1High levels of customer service with single points 
of contact

A dedicated relationship team that specializes in the 
government sector

2Improved integration with its systems

3Clear and fair charging structure
Multiple ways to access activity, fees, statements, and 
notices

4A full-service and easy-to-use configurable online 
portal with ease of access to banking data and 
transactions

A single sign-on portal that delivers commercial services at 
your fingertips

A thorough Business Process Review to access automation 
strategies specific to the City’s systems 

854

Item 19.



Analysis Accounts (Fee 
Structure and ECR)

855

Item 19.



Summary of Services Included

Balances of $17MM at current ECR of .70%

1 Account

Lockbox Volumes for items on bid sheet

Cash Vault estimate of $25,000 in currency

Desktop Deposit for paper checks

Positive Pay w/ Payee Validation (40 checks)

Full Account Reconcilement Report

ACH Future Dated Items- 1 ACH ID

ACH Fraud Filter

Incoming/Outgoing wire transfers

Intraday & Previous Day Reports

856

Item 19.



Sample Analysis Comparison

• Wells Fargo Bank 
• Citibank

• * Volumes used by Wells Fargo were provided by City of Beaumont’s Bid Sheet

857

Item 19.



Sweep and Investment

858

Item 19.



Money Market Fund Rate Report - Allspring Global Investments- Link to Investment options

859

Item 19.

https://www.allspringglobal.com/investments/mutual-funds/rate-reports/stagecoach-sweep.html


860

Item 19.



The Future of your Payables

861

Item 19.



• Recognizes commitment to 
service through high 
authorization approval rates 
while helping to control risk

• Exemplify strong partnership 
through excellence in 
innovation, operational 
efficiency, and cardholder 
satisfaction

Who we are – leading our peers and the market

The WellsOne® Commercial Card program received the Highest Authorization Approval Rate award 
as part of Visa’s Global Service Quality Awards

Visa® https://usa.visa.com/visa-
everywhere/innovation/global-
service-quality-awards.html#2

862

Item 19.

https://usa.visa.com/visa-everywhere/innovation/global-service-quality-awards.html#2


Payment Manager® value
Leveraging your current technology investment

Optimize
your ERP investment 

and AP processing

Improve
your working capital 
and cash forecasting

Increase
your security 
and control

Reduce
your processing costs 
and manual data entry

30

863

Item 19.



The Future of your Receivables

864

Item 19.



• Mailed check payments increases delivery time 
and delays settlement

• Payments received with incorrect or incomplete 
billing data cause posting delays and decrease
customer satisfaction

• Receiving multiple input files from different bill 
service providers creates logistical challenges

• Manual returns process is 
time-consuming

50%
more time to initiate, mail, deliver, and 
post a paper check through online bill pay 
than by leveraging the electronic process*

Bill pay challenges- EBOX

32

It takes 
about 
6 days, 
which is

* Wells Fargo internal analytics

865

Item 19.



Wells Fargo Merchant Services Proforma

866

Item 19.



Sample WFMS statements 

867

Item 19.



Interchange for all four Brands 

• Payment Networks Qualification Matrix:  https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/interchangeplus

• Payment Networks Pass-Through Fees:  https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/merchantpassthroughfees

• PIN Debit Networks Fee Schedule (if applicable):  PIN Debit Networks Fee Schedule (wellsfargomedia.com)

• Merchant Statement Fee Description Glossary:  Merchant Interchange Fee Glossary (wellsfargomedia.com)

• All merchant accounts have an MCC (merchant category code) – Utility is 4900.  When you search for 4900 
some of the results will see “eligible” and others “ineligible”

– Eligible means the rates apply to that MCC

– Ineligible means the rates does not appl to that MCC

868

Item 19.

https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/interchangeplus
https://www.wellsfargo.com/biz/merchantpassthroughfees
https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/small-business/merchant/debit-fee-schedule.pdf
https://www08.wellsfargomedia.com/assets/pdf/small-business/merchant/processing-fee-glossary.pdf


36

Service fees overview

• WFPG merchants in select Government and Education MCCs are eligible to 
charge service fees
- Select Government MCCs: 9311,9222, 9399, 9211
- Higher Education MCCs: 8220,8211,8244,8249

• Can be charged on tax, non-tax, and education payments to offset transactional 
costs for both the principal and service fee transaction

• Principal amount and fee are processed as two separate transactions

• Can be collected by Wells Fargo Merchant Services (WFMS) 

• The cardholder descriptor for the fee is displayed as “WF4xxxxxxxxx*Srvce Fee”
869

Item 19.



City of Beaumont wants Wells Fargo will deliver

1High levels of customer service with single points 
of contact

A dedicated relationship team that specializes in the 
government sector

2Improved integration with its systems

3Clear and fair charging structure Multiple ways to access activity, fees, statements, and 
notices

4A full-service and easy-to-use configurable online 
portal with ease of access to banking data and 
transactions

A single sign on portal that delivers commercial services at 
your fingertips

Speak to BPR: experienced relationship and 
implementation teams- get most of what you paid 

870

Item 19.



Stand by for

demo

871

Item 19.



Appendix

872

Item 19.



Reference

Wells Fargo customer Contact Phone

City of Hemet Lorena Rocha/Tiffany Barnett 951-765-2387

* Transitioned from Citibank about 11 months ago

* Currently implementing Merchant Services and Sweep Option 

* Services used today: ACH, Cash Vault, Desktop Deposit, Wires,    
Previous Day Report

40

873

Item 19.



Q & A for Beaumont

874

Item 19.



Treasury 
Management

Thank you

875

Item 19.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Jeff Hart, Public Works Director 

DATE August 02, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Traffic Mitigation Measures for Veile Avenue at Sixth Street 
  

Background and Analysis:  

 

On May 18, 2021, staff brought forth a discussion item regarding traffic, safety, and 

public concerns regarding the intersection of Veile Avenue and Sixth Street.  Previous 

analysis was done to study various options to alleviate concerns regarding illegal left 

turns from northbound Veile Avenue to westbound Sixth Street, safety impacts from 

truck traffic making eastbound turns onto Sixth Street from northbound Veile Avenue, 

and safety impacts from truck traffic making southbound turns onto Veile Avenue from 

eastbound Sixth Street.   

 

City Council direction from the May 2021 meeting was to move forward with a concept 

to close Veile Avenue from Luis Estrada Road to Sixth Street.  Though no public 

comments of opposition were made at the meeting, staff received several complaints 

about the potential closure afterwards and was directed to hold off on moving forward 

with the requested concept.   

 

At City Council’s request, staff is now bringing forth potential options to mitigate the 

public safety concerns and is seeking direction on a preferred path forward. 

 

Previous Mitigation Measures 

 

Sixth Street in this area is a main collector that provides access to both Interstate 10 

and State Route 60 westbound, as well as providing entry to the downtown area from 

both Interstate 10 and State Route 60 eastbound.  The traffic movements on Sixth 

Street are free and Veile Avenue northbound is controlled by a STOP sign to enter Sixth 

Street.  Sixth Street westbound has two through lanes including a de-facto right turn 

lane for the Westbound on ramp to I-10 at the intersection of Sixth Street and Veile 

876

Item 20.



Avenue.  See following graphic for location:

 
 

Staff installed raised delineators along the centerline of Sixth Street fronting Veile 

Avenue in 2020, which has nearly alleviated all occurrences of illegal left turns from 

Veile Avenue northbound onto Sixth Street westbound.   

 

Potential Additional Mitigation Measures 

 

In order to address potential public and safety concerns, staff is recommending a 

phased approach (if necessary) to minimize concerned activity.  The first phase would 

include implementation of additional signing and striping to clearly show legal truck 

routes, as well as prohibited routes established in previous analysis associated with the 

Rolling Hills Specific Plan.  Signage would include the following: 

 

Figure 1 

 Notification of established truck route at intersection of Veile Ave/Fourth Street 

 Postage of NO TRUCK TRAFFIC at eastbound Fourth Street beyond Veile Ave, 

and 

o Eastbound Fourth Street at Elm Ave 

o Eastbound Fourth Street at Olive Ave 

 Postage of established truck route along southbound Veile between Fourth 

Street and First Street 

 Postage of established truck route along northbound Veile between Fourth Street 

and Luis Estrada Road 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 
877

Item 20.



 
 

 

Figure 2 

 Notification of established truck route at SE corner intersection of Veile Ave/Luis 

Estrada Rd 

 Postage of NO TRUCK TRAFFIC at NE corner intersection Veile Ave/Luis 

Estrada Rd  

 Postage of NO TRUCK TRAFFIC at NE corner intersection Sixth St/Elm Ave  

 Postage of NO TRUCK TRAFFIC at NE corner intersection Sixth St/Wellwood 

Ave 

 Postage of NO TRUCK TRAFFIC at NE corner intersection Sixth St/Egan Ave 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 878

Item 20.



Figure 2 

 
 

In addition to the previous listed measures, staff is also proposing to work with existing 

businesses in the vicinity to make them aware of established truck routes.  Staff will 

create a single page reader that shall be provided to employers to disseminate to staff, 

as well as a request for the information to be provided to all incoming truck drivers.  

Many of these businesses contract drivers which further compounds the public safety 

concerns due to the unfamiliarity of the area.  Providing information to these drivers 

upon entry that clearly depicts established truck routes and prohibitions should help 

minimize future concerns. 

 

Staff is also recommending a monitoring period of 6 months after implementation to 

assess effectiveness of proposed mitigations.  Should the improvements be ineffective, 

additional measures will be brought forth, including partial or complete closure of Veile 

Avenue between Luis Estrada and Sixth Street.  See following figures 3-6 for potential 

options showing: 

 Figure 3 – Closure of NB Veile Ave from Luis Estrada to Sixth Street to prohibit 

all vehicular and truck traffic in NB direction. 

 Figure 4 – Closure of SB Veile Ave from Luis Estrada to Sixth Street to prohibit 

all truck traffic, though allowing vehicular traffic in SB direction. 

 Figure 5 – Closure of SB Veile Ave from Luis Estrada to Sixth Street to prohibit 

all vehicular and truck traffic in SB direction. 

 Figure 6 – Closure of Veile Ave in both directions from Luis Estrada to Sixth 

Street to prohibit all vehicular and truck traffic. 
879

Item 20.



Figure 3 ~ Closure of Northbound Veile Avenue 

 
 

Figure 4 ~ Closure of Southbound Veile Avenue to Truck Traffic 

 
 

 
880

Item 20.



Figure 5 ~ Closure of Southbound Veile Avenue to All Traffic 

 
 

Figure 6 ~ Closure of Veile Avenue to All Traffic 

 
 

 

 
881

Item 20.



State Route 60 Eastbound to Interstate 10 Westbound Interchange 

 

Additional safety concerns have been raised about the transition from EB State Route 

60 to WB Interstate 10.  The existing transition requires traffic to exit State Route 60, 

immediately merge left in conflict with EB Interstate 10 traffic exiting at Sixth Street, in 

order to enter the on-ramp to WB Interstate 10 at its intersection with Sixth Street (see 

following graphic).  Since this transition solely lies within the California Department of 

Transportation jurisdiction (Caltrans), staff intends to begin outreach with Caltrans to 

explore potential remedies to mitigate the safety risk. 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

The cost of preparing the staff report is estimated to be $500.  The estimated costs for 

the recommended mitigations are anticipated to be $7,500 which will be paid from the 

Streets Budget, GL 100-3250-7070-0000, Special Department Supplies. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Provide staff direction on whether or not to implement recommended traffic 

mitigation measures. 

 

882

Item 20.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Elizabeth Gibbs, City Manager 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Review and Discussion of Continuing or Rescinding Local 

Emergency Declaration Established via the Adoption of City of 

Beaumont Resolution No. 2020-07 Adopted on March 17, 2020 
  

Background and Analysis:  

At the regular meeting on July 19, 2022, City Council voted 4-1 to take no action on the 

local emergency declaration established via the adoption of City of Beaumont 

Resolution No. 2020-07 on March 17, 2020, and directed staff to bring the item back 

tonight with more information. 

 

Review 

Resolution No. 2020-07 (“Resolution”) authorizes the City Manager to execute a 

declaration of the existence of a local emergency in the City of Beaumont and 

empowers the City Manager with certain authority.  Approval of the Resolution was in 

response to the declaration by the World Health Organization (WHO) of the COVID – 19 

pandemic, Governor Gavin Newsom’s declaration of a state of emergency for all 

California, and the increase of infections within the City of Beaumont and the immediate 

area. 

 

As of the time that this staff report was prepared, the most recent executive order N-11-

22 dated June 17, 2022, terminates portions of 2 previous executive orders related to 

the COVID-19 pandemic (Attachment A). Under this same order, 5 provisions are 

terminated immediately, as well as replacement of 7 provisions of previously adopted 

provisions in various other orders.   

 

The replaced provisions include orders relating to out of state medical personnel, 

licensing under the Department of Social Services, implementation by the Director of 

the Emergency Medical Services Authority to local optional scopes of practice, the 

waiver of professional licensing and certifications requirements by the State Department 

883

Item 21.



of Public Health, and finally the suspension of any licensing, certifications, etc. by the 

Director of the California Emergency Medical Services Authority. 

 

Rescinding 

Should City Council determine that a local emergency declaration is no longer required, 

the resolution should be rescinded. However, by rescinding the adopted resolution, all 

public meetings under the Brown Act will require that all elected and appointed officials 

(i.e. City Council, Planning Commission, Finance and Audit Committee, and Economic 

Development Committee) resume meetings in person. Additionally, the City’s ability to 

seek reimbursement for certain consumables related to the COVID-19 pandemic from 

FEMA would end.  The future costs for these items are expected to be minimal and 

should not have an impact to the FY2023 budget. 

Fiscal Impact: 

City staff estimates the cost of preparation of this report to be approximately $150. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Review and discuss Resolution No. 2020-07; and 

Take no action and keep the existing declaration of emergency resolution in 

place; OR 

Direct staff to bring back Resolution No. 2020-07 at the next regular City Council 

meeting on August 16, 2022, for rescission in its entirety; and 

Direct staff to begin notification of all elected and appointed officials of the 

requirement for in person meetings after August 16, 2022.   

Attachments: 

A. Order N-11-22 

B. City of Beaumont Resolution No. 2020-07 

884

Item 21.



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-11-22 

WHEREAS on March 4, 2020, I proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS since March 2020, the State has taken decisive and meaningful 
actions, relying on the most current data and science available, to reduce the 
spread, and mitigate the impacts, of COVID-19, saving an untold number of 
lives; and 

WHEREAS on June 11, 2021, as a result of reducing case rates throughout 
California at that time, I issued Executive Order N-08-21, which systematically 
rolled back many of the Executive Order provisions I put in place to ensure for 
the continued provision of public and essential services while preserving public 
health and safety; and 

WHEREAS following my issuance of Executive Order N-08-21, the Delta and 
Omicron variants of COVID-19 spread throughout California, the United States, 
and the world, posing significant threats to the health and safety of Californians 
and necessitating additional decisive actions, including those implemented 
through Executive Order; and 

WHEREAS as a result of the effective actions Californians have taken, 
including more than 75 percent of eligible Californians who have been fully 
vaccinated, another 8 percent of eligible Californians who are partially 
vaccinated, and more than 57 percent of eligible Californians who have 
received a booster, California has turned another corner in its fight against 
COVID-19, and in particular, the Omicron variant; and 

WHEREAS on February 17, 2022, I unveiled the SMARTER Plan, which is 
guiding California's strategic approach to managing the current phase of the 
COVID-19 pandemic while moving the State's recovery forward, with a focus on 
continued equity, readiness, awareness, and flexibility; and 

WHEREAS on February 25, 2022, I issued Executive Order N-4-22, which 
rolled back a significant number of the remaining Executive Order provisions I 
put in place, while retaining a limited set of provisions that remained necessary 
to continue responding to the threat posed by, and mitigating the effects of, 
the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS in light of the current state of the COVID-19 pandemic in 
California, it is appropriate to, again, through measured and decisive action, roll 
back additional provisions of my COVID-19-related Executive Orders and allow 
other provisions set to expire on June 30, 2022 to do so; and 

WHEREAS a limited number of provisions of my COVID-19-related Executive 
Orders remain critical to help California respond to, recover from, and mitigate 

885

Item 21.



the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic - including maintaining California's 
robust testing and vaccination programs and protecting hospital capacity and 
vulnerable populations, consistent with the State's SMARTER Plan - such that 
terminating those provisions at this time would compound the effects of the 
emergency and impede the State's recovery by disrupting the State's ability to 
support ongoing medical response and preparedness; and 

WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8571, I find 
that strict compliance with the various statutes and regulations specified in this 
Order would continue to prevent, hinder, or delay appropriate actions to 
prevent and mitigate the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California, 
in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes of the State of California, and in particular, Government Code sections 
8567, 8571, and 8627, do hereby issue the following Order to become effective 
immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1) The following provisions are terminated: 
a. Executive Order N-84-20, paragraphs 7-9; and 
b. Executive Order N-5-22, paragraphs 1-2. 

2) Paragraph 1 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 3,1, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

Paragraph 3 of my State of Emergency proclaimed on March 4, 2020 
shall remain in place and shall have ful l force a·nd effect for the 
duration of this emergency. 

3) Paragraph 2 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

To ensure hospital.sand other health facilities are able to adequately 
implement COVID-19 related mitigation strategies, the Director of the 
California Department of Public Health (Department) may waive any of 
the licensing requirements of Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Health and 
Safety Code and accompanying regulations with respect to any 
hospital or health facility identified in Health and Safety Code section 
1250. Any waiver shall include alternative measures that, under the 
circumstances, will allow the facilities to implement COVID-19 related 
mitigation strategies while protecting public health and safety. Any 
facilities being granted a waiver shall be established and operated in 
accordance with the facility's required disaster and mass casualty plan. 
The Director shall not waive licensing requirements governing facility 

886

Item 21.



staffing ratios, except for individual facility waivers otherwise authorized 
by law. Any waivers granted pursuant to this paragraph shall be posted 
on the Department's website. 

4) Paragraph 3 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

Paragraph 14 of my State of Emergency proclaimed on March 4, 2020 
shall remain in place and shall have full force and effect for the 
duration of this emergency. Any facility operating under a waiver 
pursuant to this provision may operate pursuant to such a waiver 
through the expiration as set forth by California Department of Socia l 
Services or through the duration of this emergency, whichever occurs 
first. 

5) Paragraph 4 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

Paragraph 4 of Executive Order N-25-20 shall remain in place and shall 
have full force and effect for the duration of this emergency. 

6) Paragraph 5 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

Paragraph 2 of Executive Order N-39-20 shall remain in place and shall 
have full force and effect for the duration of this emergency. 

7) Paragraph 6 of Executive Order N-12-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text: 

Paragraph 6 of Executive Order N-39-20 sha ll remain in place and sha ll 
have full force and effect for the duration of this emergency. 

8) Paragraph 1 of Executive Order N-17-21, as extended by Executive 
Order N-21-21 through March 31, 2022 and Executive Order N-4-22 
through June 30, 2022, is hereby withdrawn and replaced with the 
following text : 

Paragraph 1 of Executive Order N-35-20 shall remain in place and shall 
have full force and effect for the duration of this emergency. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be filed in 
the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice 
be given of this Order. 

887

Item 21.



This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 
California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or any other 
person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seal of the 
State of California to be affixed this 17th 
day of June 2022. 

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 

888

Item 21.



889

Item 21.



890

Item 21.



891

Item 21.



892

Item 21.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Christina Taylor, Deputy City Manager 

DATE August 2, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Discussion on a Proposed Land Use Management Policy for 

Logistics, Warehouse, Distribution and Other Similar Industrial 

Development  
  

Background and Analysis:  

The City of Beaumont is experiencing significant interest from the 

logistics/warehouse/distribution industries. The City is currently home to Amazon, 

Wolverine, Icon and CJ Foods all of which operate in the Manufacturing (M) zone south 

of SR-60 along the Fourth Street corridor. The Planning Department has applications on 

file for approximately 30 million additional square feet of similar developments in the 

Manufacturing (M) zone and surrounding sphere of influence.  

 

In light of the current and anticipated growth, the Land Use Subcommittee directed the 

City Manager’s office to prepare a draft policy for management of these types of 

development. Staff worked with the Land Use Subcommittee on the draft included as 

Attachment A to this report. Below are some highlights of the draft Land Use 

Management Policy:  

 

Purpose  

The policy is intended to provide a guide through which logistics, warehouse and similar 

projects can be planned in a way that lessens their impact on the community and the 

environment. 

 

The policy will provide standards which applicants and the public can look to and will 

provide an opportunity for City staff to monitor individual conditions of approval.  

 

Applicability 

The policy guidelines will apply to new projects submitted after the policy is approved 
and will be implemented during the development review process.  

893

Item 22.



The policy will apply to logistics, warehouse or similar projects including any building 
larger than 100,000 square feet in size or type. It is intended to provide general 
guidance that will be appropriate for most industrial or logistics, warehouse or similar 
projects. 
 

Analysis 

The analysis section speaks to a variety of studies and other documents which will be 

required as part of the project review process. Some of the studies will already be 

required through the CEQA process and some are new items, not currently required as 

part of the development review process or by CEQA.  

 

Construction Phase    

The construction phase requirements are intended to mitigate the impacts of 

construction activities for both the surrounding area and the environment. The 

requirements listed address items such as air quality, noise and construction debris. 

This section also provides for inspection by City staff to ensure compliance.  

 

Siting and Design 

The siting and design section addresses concerns with the physical aspects of a project 

and how it functions in the built environment. Issues addressed include location of 

loading docks, circulation, screening and overall design of the project.  

 

Operation 

The facility operation component of the policy concentrates on post-construction 

operations of a facility. The intent of this portion is to support measures which reduce air 

quality and noise impacts while in operation.  

 

Wayfinding  

Wayfinding speaks predominately to signage throughout the entire site. The purpose is 

to direct large truck traffic and employee traffic appropriately, with the intent of 

minimizing truck-passenger vehicle conflict. The wayfinding section also requires a point 

of contact be identified as the responsible position for ensuring the conditions and 

mitigations in this section are being met. 

 

Community Benefit  

The community benefit section focuses on two items: meaningful community 

engagement and future community benefit fee. Meaningful and transparent community 

engagement will be required prior to an item moving through the public hearing process. 

The engagement efforts must be quantifiable and make an effort to address community 

concerns. The future community benefit fee could be implemented at the direction of 

City Council. Staff would have a nexus study prepared and conduct the appropriate 

894

Item 22.



hearings in accordance with California Government Code sections 66000- 66025 (the 

“Mitigation Fee Act”), and Assembly Bill (AB) 1600 to establish and implement a fee.  

Fiscal Impact: 

The cost to prepare this staff report is approximately $350.   

 

Recommended Action: 

Adopt the Land Use Management Policy; or 

Discuss and provide direction to staff on the draft Land Use Management policy.  

Attachments: 

A. Draft Land Use Management Policy 

895

Item 22.



City of Beaumont 
DRAFT – Land Use Management Policy 

Purpose 

For the past decade, the City of Beaumont was one of the fastest growing cities in the region. The City’s 

proximity to Los Angeles, Orange and San Diego counties, the availability of affordable land and high 

quality of life have all contributed to making Beaumont an attractive place to live and work. The 

continuing rate of growth in Beaumont and in the larger region exceeds the capacity of the City’s 

financial resources to meet the needs for transportation infrastructure. Warehousing, logistics, e-

commerce and distribution are established sectors of the Inland Empire economy and are increasing in 

the City of Beaumont. These uses contribute to local job growth and continue to expand based on 

trends in e-commerce. Due to the City’s location, providing direct access to I-10, SR-60 and SR79, it is 

anticipated that strong demand for growth in the logistics industry will continue.  

The City recognizes construction and operations of logistics, warehouses and other similar types of 

projects in close proximity to sensitive land uses or sensitive receptors, negatively affects quality of life. 

Sensitive receptors generally include residences, schools, parks, playgrounds, community centers, 

assisted living, day care centers, nursing homes, hospitals, and similar uses. The City of Beaumont has 

all of these types of sensitive receptors and additionally has several active-55+ communities.   

This policy is intended to provide a guide through which logistics, warehouses and similar projects can 

be planned in a way that lessens their impact on the community and the environment. This policy will 

aid in minimizing potential impacts to sensitive receptors by acknowledging the City’s existing General 

Plan and zoning which provides location and standards for development of these types of projects and 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) project analysis. This policy does not exempt a project from 

preparation of the appropriate environmental review and application of any necessary measures that 

may arise as a result. This policy provides criteria which shall be implemented to supplement project-

level mitigation measures, to further reduce impacts related to logistics, warehousing and any project of 

similar size or type of development. 

The application of this policy is intended to be included in the evaluation of and conditions of approval 

for individual development projects. This will provide standards for which applicants and the public can 

look to and will provide an opportunity for City staff to monitor individual conditions of approval. The 

policies are organized into specific categories, to address potential quality of life issues from initial 

design to construction and operations. 

Applicability 

The policy guidelines apply to new projects submitted after the policy approval date and will be 

implemented during the development review process.  

This policy applies to logistics and warehouse projects that include any building larger than 100,000 

square feet in size or type. It is intended to provide a general guidance that will be appropriate for most 

industrial or logistics, warehouse or similar projects. Project-level review under CEQA applies to any 

project, regardless of square footage and may include any technical reports including, but not limited to 

noise, greenhouse gas, air quality, and traffic. The Planning Department shall use this policy to review 

projects and in instances where a project does not conform to the policy shall document findings to be 

considered by the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 

896

Item 22.



City of Beaumont 
DRAFT – Land Use Management Policy 

Analysis 

1. An “Air Quality” study shall be prepared in accordance with CEQA and the South Coast Air 

Quality Management District (SCAQMD) guidelines which includes both project specific and cumulative 

impact analysis. 

2. A “Health Risk Assessment” shall be prepared in accordance with CEQA and the South Coast Air 

Quality Management District (SCAQMD) guidelines when a proposed project meeting the criteria of this 

policy is located within 1,000 feet of a sensitive receptor. 

3. A “Noise Impact Analysis” shall be prepared in accordance with CEQA guidelines to assess 

potential impacts to the neighboring properties and surrounding community.  

4. A “Construction Traffic Control Plan” shall be prepared, reviewed and approved prior to 

issuance of a grading permit, which details the locations of equipment staging areas, material stockpiles, 

proposed road closures, and hours of construction operations.  

5. A “Traffic Study” or “Traffic Impact Analysis” shall be prepared in accordance with CEQA, 

analyzing both Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) and Level of Service (LOS) as identified in the City’s General 

Plan. The study shall identify improvements and fair share costs for the project.  

6. A “Water Supply Assessment” shall be prepared as part of the environmental review process. 

7. A “Sewer Study” shall be prepared as part of the environmental review process. 

8. An “Economic Impact Study” shall be prepared as part of the environmental review process. 

9. An “Energy Efficiency Plan” shall be prepared as part of the environmental review process that 

shows above and beyond Title 24 requirements. 

 

Construction Phase 

1. During construction of the project, all construction equipment accessing the site shall have 

CARB-Compliant engines or newer as identified by the most current CARB engine standards. 

2. Construction contractors shall locate or park all stationary construction equipment away from 

sensitive receptors nearest the project site. 

3. The surrounding streets shall be swept on a daily basis to remove any construction related 

debris and dirt. 

4. Dust control measures meeting SCAQMD standards shall be implemented for all land 

disturbance and construction activity. 

5. Construction contractors shall prohibit truck drivers from idling more than five (5) minutes and 

require operators to turn off engines when not in use, in compliance with the California Air Resources 

Board regulations. 

897

Item 22.



City of Beaumont 
DRAFT – Land Use Management Policy 

6. During construction, a City representative shall conduct an on-site inspection with a project 

representative to verify compliance with these policies, and to identify other opportunities to reduce 

construction impacts. 

 

Siting and Design 

1. Truck bays and loading docks shall be a minimum of 1,000 feet, from the property line of the 

sensitive receptor to the nearest dock door using a direct straight-line method. This distance may be 

reduced if the site design includes berms or other similar features to appropriately shield and buffer the 

sensitive receptors from the active truck operations areas. Dock doors shall not be visible from 

surrounding residential properties or the public right-of-way. Other setbacks appropriate to the site’s 

zoning classification shall be incorporated in the design. 

2. Projects shall be designed to provide adequate on-site parking for commercial trucks and 

passenger vehicles and on-site queuing for trucks not visible from sensitive receptors. Commercial 

trucks shall not be parked in the public right-of-way or nearby residential areas. Queuing shall not 

extend into the public right-of-way.  

3. Truck driveways shall be placed on streets that do not front sensitive receptors. 

4. Sites shall clearly mark entry and exit points for trucks and service vehicles. 

5. Facility operators shall establish specific truck routes between the facility and regular 

destinations, identifying the most direct routes to the nearest highway/freeway and prohibit traveling 

near sensitive receptors or through residential neighborhoods. The truck route should be submitted as 

part of the entitlement package. 

6.  Separate entry and exit points for trucks and passenger vehicles shall be provided to minimize 

vehicle/truck conflict. 

7. Sites shall be densely screened with landscaping along all bordering streets and adjacent 

sensitive receptors, with trees spaced no further apart than 25 feet on center. Fifty percent of the 

landscape screening shall include a minimum of 36-inch box trees. A permanent maintenance 

mechanism shall be approved as part of the entitlement process to assure that the landscaping remains 

in place and functional in accordance with the approved landscaping plan. 

8. A “wing-wall” shall be installed perpendicular to the loading dock areas to further reduce truck 

or operational noise and to serve as an aesthetic screening feature for the loading area when adjacent 

to sensitive receptors. 

9. All project lighting shall comply with the City’s “Dark Sky Ordinance”, Beaumont Municipal Code 

Chapter 8.50 Outdoor Lighting. Lighting shall be directed down to the interior of the site and not spill 

over onto adjacent properties. 

10. Project facilities shall install electrical panels and conduit to facilitate future electrical 

connections, to eliminate idling of main and auxiliary engines during the loading and unloading process. 

At all cold storage facilities electrical connections shall be provided to each dock. 

898

Item 22.



City of Beaumont 
DRAFT – Land Use Management Policy 

11. Facility construction and operational noise shall comply with Beaumont Municipal Code Chapter 

9.02 Noise Control. 

12.  Sites shall be designed to significantly minimize aesthetic impact and structures shall have a 

neutral palette, blending in with the surrounding environment.   

 

Operation 

1. Facility operators shall prohibit truck drivers from idling more than five (5) minutes and require 

operators to turn off engines when not in use, in compliance with the California Air Resources Board 

regulations. 

2. Facility operators shall coordinate with CARB and SCAQMD to obtain the latest information 

about regional air quality concentrations, health risks, and trucking regulations. 

3. On-site equipment shall be compliant with CARB and SCAQMD regulations. 

4. Facility operators shall require all drivers to park and perform any maintenance of trucks in 

designated on-site areas and not within the surrounding community or on public streets. 

5. Facility operators for sites that exceed 250 employees shall establish a rideshare program, in 

accordance with AQMD rule 2202, with the intent of discouraging single-occupancy vehicle trips and 

promote alternate modes of transportation, such as carpooling and transit where feasible. 

6. A minimum of 5% or as required by the Cal Green Code, whichever is greater of employee 

parking spaces shall be designated and infrastructure installed and operational for electric or other 

alternative fueled vehicles. 

7. Externally announcing public address (PA) system are prohibited with the exception of 

emergency notifications. 

8. Facility operational noise shall comply with Beaumont Municipal Code Chapter 9.02 Noise 

Control. 

 

Wayfinding 

1. Wayfinding signs shall be posted in the appropriate locations that trucks should not idle for 

more than five (5) minutes and that truck drivers should turn off their engines when not in use. 

2. Wayfinding signage shall be posted in the appropriate locations that clearly show the designated 

entry and exit points for trucks, service vehicles and passenger vehicles. 

3. Signs stating parking and maintenance of all trucks is to be conducted within designated areas 

and not within the surrounding community or on public streets shall be posted in the appropriate 

locations. 

899

Item 22.



City of Beaumont 
DRAFT – Land Use Management Policy 

4. Signs should be posted in the appropriate locations and handouts should be provided that show 

the locations of nearest food options, fueling, truck maintenance services, and other similar 

convenience services, if these services are not available onsite. 

5. Each facility shall designate a point of contact responsible for implementing the measures 

described herein and/or in the project conditions of approval and mitigation measures. Contact 

information should be provided to the City and updated annually, and signs should be posted in visible 

locations providing the contact information for the point of contact to the surrounding community. 

These signs shall also identify the website and contact information for the South Coast Air Quality 

Management District. 

6. Signage shall comply with the City’s Sign Ordinance, Beaumont Municipal Code Chapter 17.07 

Signage, which may be amended from time to time. 

  

Community Benefit 

1. Applicants for proposed projects meeting the criteria for this policy shall engage in meaningful 

and transparent community outreach to engage the existing community in determining issues of 

concern. The applicant shall make a quantifiable effort to address concerns through site design and 

other means during the project entitlement process. Suggested outreach efforts include but are not 

limited to, hosting community meetings, making presentations at Homeowner’s Association meetings, 

and Planning Commission workshops. 

2. Warehouse/distribution, logistics, e-commerce and other similar types of industrial 

development typically produce some community impacts related to the construction and operation of 

these facilities. The applicant for any new project will be required to participate in the Land Use 

Management Mitigation Fee, which would be utilized to address applied to further off-set potential air 

quality impacts to the community and provide a community benefit above and beyond any CEQA related 

mitigation measures. The fee would be based on a nexus study and subject to the requirements of  

California Government Code sections 66000- 66025 (the “Mitigation Fee Act”), and Assembly Bill (AB) 

1600. The fee will be collected on a one-time basis. Funds collected through the fee program will be 

subject to designation for use by the City Council and will generally be used for projects that directly 

benefit the impacted community wherein the project is located.  

900

Item 22.



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

DESIGN TO

CONSTRUCTION
Construction on a Capital Improvement Project

is a process that, depending on size and

magnitude, can take months or even years to

complete. 

Capital Improvement Projects are deeply

complex with the following start to finish

process:

PARK PROJECTS 
AT-A-GLANCE

STEWART PARK
In April 2022, a Professional Services Agreement was awarded to PlaceWorks to provide

Landscape Architecture and Engineering Design Services for Stewart Park. A public

survey discussing park features was completed in July with over 650 responses. The

draft conceptual plan based on staff review and public input will be presented to the City

Council in October. The project is fully funded and construction is anticipated to begin in

2023.

RANGEL PARK
In the Spring of 2022, the Beaumont Community Services assembled a Special Team to

complete the renovation of Rangel Park and Valdivia Field in time for the annual Coyotes

Fastpitch Softball Tournament. Completed projects include installation of new irrigation,

sod/landscaping, decomposed granite (DG) warning track, drinking fountains, bleachers,

sidewalk and ballfield fencing. To complete the project, staff is awaiting the delivery of

the playground and the installation of new LED lights. 

THREE RINGS RANCH PARK
In 2021, the City of Beaumont was awarded a grant from the  State of California

Department of Parks and Recreation Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS).

Conceptual designs were presented to families at a Pop Up in The Park event held at

Three Rings Ranch Park; participants were asked to select color schemes and

playground amenities. Equipment will be ordered by Summer 2022 with installation

expected by early 2023. 

MT. VIEW PLAYGROUND SHADE
This current CIP Project is funded to provide a new playground that will include integrated

shade structures. The installation of shade elements incorporated into new playgrounds

saves space and is essential to protecting children from UV rays. This project included

replacing the existing 5-12 year-old and 2-5 year-old playgrounds. The project is fully

funded and equipment will be ordered by Fall 2022 with installation expected by early

2023. 

STAGE 1: Identify
Identify City Infrastructure to be improved,

such as parks, streets, transit, community

facilities, etc.

STAGE 2: Conceptual Design
City staff conducts community outreach,

such as surveys, to assess the needs and

develop a concept plan of what the project

will look like. 

STAGE 3: Obtain Funding
Depending on the type of project and it's

impact locally, regionally or beyond, funding

sources can include one or more of the

following: Grants, local, county, state,

federal funding, and/or tax revenue.

STAGE 4: Construction Design
Architects and engineers determine the

scope of the project and develop a timeline,

which includes environmental planning and

design. This process can take 6-48 months

depending on the complexity of the project.

STAGE 5: Construction
At the construction phase, the public will

see the project start to take shape.

STAGE 6: Completion
Every completed project ELEVATES our

City!

ALBERT A CHATIGNY SR. COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER

1310 Oak Valley Parkway

(951)769-8524  |  Parks@BeaumontCA.gov  |              @BMTparks

For more information on these projects, please visit

BeaumontCA.gov REV. July 2022

901

Item 23.



TENNIS COURT
HANDBALL COURT
FOOTBALL/RUGBY FIELD1 1

18

WHO WE ARE
BY THE NUMBERS
BEAUMONT PRIDES ITSELF ON OFFERING PARKS
AND RECREATION SERVICES THAT ADDRESS THE
NEEDS OF EVERY CITIZEN.

RENTABLE SPACES

BASEBALL
FIELDS

12 BASKETBALL COURTS

7 SOCCER
FIELDS4

SKATE PARK

OUTDOOR PARK
FITNESS LOOP

MILES OF
PARK TRAILS6 COMMUNITY

MEETING ROOMS

1
DISC GOLF COURSE

5
5 PARK GAZEBOS

2 AUDITORIUM/
GYMNASIUMS 

DOG PARK
SMALL AND LARGE DOG SECTIONS

SENIOR CENTER

PARK 
RESTROOMS7 SNACK 

BARS3

INDOOR PERFORMANCE
STAGES2

OUTDOOR AMPHITHEATER1

PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS
CITY-OWNED COMMUNITY

Find all your Beaumont parks by downloading the
new Beaumont app! 902

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 1.	Purple Heart Proc
	Proclamation - Purple Heart Day

	Item 3.	CC Minutes 07.19.2022
	CC Minutes 07.19.2022

	Item 4.	Ratification of Warrants
	20220630 warrants
	20220711 Warrants

	Item 5.	Plot Plan No. 2019-0223 Security Agreement and Performance Bond Acceptance
	Staff Report - Linc Bond Acceptance
	Att A - PW2021-0718 - Agreement and Bond 674215565 with Approved Plans

	Item 6.	Performance Bond Exoneration
	Staff Report - Bond Exoneration 
	Att A- PW2022-0817 - Bond-x Packet
	Att B- PW2020-0451 - Bond-x Packet
	Att C- 16-3770 - Bond-x Packet

	Item 7.	Weed Abatement
	Staff Report -Weed Abatement Charge Collection
	Attachment A - Resolution Weed Abatement 2022
	Attachment B - Weed Abatement Parcel List FY22

	Item 8.	Hasa Amendment
	Staff Report - HASA 2022
	Attachment A - HASA First Amendment
	Attachment B - AWWA Letter - Highlighted
	Attachment C - 2nd Amendment to Professional Services Agreement HASA

	Item 9.	NorthStar Contract Amendment
	Staff Report - NorthStar 2022
	Attachment A - Northstar Amendment #1 C21-27.1
	Attachment B - Northstar Amendment #2 C21-27.11

	Item 10.	Perricone Agreement Extension Amendment
	Staff Report - Perricone
	Attachment A - Original Perricone agreement
	Attachment B - Perricone extension request Letter 12.3.21
	Attachment C - MKN Interim Rate Letter July 2022
	Attachment D - Amendment to Pretreatment Facilities Agreement

	Item 11.	Public Hearing - Sewer Tax Roll
	Staff Report - Placement of Delinquent Sewer Fees on the Tax Roll 072722
	Reso - Delinquent Sewer Fees
	Sewer Totals 68-2105 2022-2023
	Public Hearing - Delinquent Sewer Notice

	Item 12.	Public Hearing - Solid Waste Tax Roll
	Staff Report - Placement of Delinquent Solid Waste Fees on the Tax Roll copy
	Attachment A - Reso - Delinquent Solid Waste Fees on Tax Roll
	Attachment B - Exhibit A to Resolution, 2022 List of Sanitation Fee Deliquencies
	Attachment C - Delinquent Solid Waste Notice

	Item 13.	BOS Letter discussion
	Staff Report
	Attachment A - Letter to County - San G Cross

	Item 14.	City Manager Contract
	Staff Report - Gibbs Contract - City Manager
	Attachment A - CM Agreement (DRAFT) (SBEMP)
	Attachment B - City Manager
	Attachment C - CM Powers and Duties

	Item 15.	Compensation Plan and Salary Table
	Staff Report - Compensation Plan
	Attachment A - Compensation Plan and Salary Table

	Item 16.	Annual CFD Levy
	Staff Report - Annual CFD Levy
	Resolution for Annual Levy  2022 (Balance)
	Resolution for Annual Levy  2022 (White Recusal - IA 18)
	Resolution for Annual Levy 2022 (Fenn and Santos recusal - IA 14 and 14B)
	Resolution for Annual Levy  2022 (Martinez Recusal - IA 9)
	Resolution for Annual Levy  2022 (Santos Recusal - IA 17A)
	EXHIBIT F
	FY22-23 Beaumont CFD Annual Enrollment

	Item 17.	Award a Construction Contract for the Westside Fire Station
	Staff Report- Westside Fire Station- Award
	Att A - Kemcorp PWA
	Att B - PWA-Exhibit A
	Att C - PWA- Exhibit B

	Item 18.	Update on Veterans and First Responders Memorial Plaza Improvement Project
	Memorial Plaza Update Staff Report
	Attachment A - Conceptual Plan Beaumont Veterans and First Responders Memorial Plaza
	Attachment B - Memorial Plaza Renderings

	Item 19.	Banking Services Contract
	Staff Report - Banking Services Contract
	Attachment A - City of Beaumont Bank RFP
	Attachment B - Wells Fargo Proposal
	Attachment C - Acceptance of Services
	Attachment D - City of Beaumont_Amendment to Master Agreement
	Attachment E - Authorization Certificate
	Attachment F - Certification of Official Custodian(s) - Government Depositor
	Attachment G - City of Beaumont Finalist Presentation

	Item 20.	Traffic Mitigation Measures for Veile Avenue at Sixth Street
	Staff Report Veile Traffic

	Item 21.	Emergency Declaration Review
	Staff report - Emergency Declaration
	Attachment A - Executive Order N-11-22
	Attachment B - Reso 2020-07

	Item 22.	Discussion on a Proposed Land Use Management Policy for Logistics, Warehouses, Distribution and Other Similar Industrial Development
	Staff Report - Land Use Management
	Attachment A - DRAFT COB Land Use Management Policy 7.26.2022

	Item 23.	Park Projects at a Glance
	Park Projects (1)

	Bottom

